
1 

 

Agenda 
City Council Regular Meeting 
City Council Chambers | 50 Natoma Street, Folsom CA  95630 
June 14, 2022 
6:30 PM 

Welcome to Your City Council Meeting 

We welcome your interest and involvement in the city’s legislative process. This agenda includes 

information about topics coming before the City Council and the action recommended by city staff. You 

can read about each topic in the staff reports, which are available on the city website and in the Office 

of the City Clerk. The City Clerk is also available to answer any questions you have about City Council 

meeting procedures. 

Participation 

If you would like to provide comments to the City Council, please: 

 Fill out a blue speaker request form, located at the back table. 

 Submit the form to the City Clerk before the item begins. 

 When it’s your turn, the City Clerk will call your name and invite you to the podium. 

 Speakers have three minutes, unless the presiding officer (usually the mayor) changes that 

time. 

Reasonable Accommodations 

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you are a person with a disability and you need 

a disability-related modification or accommodation to participate in this meeting, please contact the City 

Clerk’s Office at (916) 461-6035, (916) 355-7328 (fax) or CityClerkDept@folsom.ca.us.  Requests must 

be made as early as possible and at least two full business days before the start of the meeting. 

How to Watch 

The City of Folsom provides three ways to watch a City Council meeting: 

In Person Online On TV 

 

  
City Council meetings take place at 

City Hall, 50 Natoma Street 
Watch the livestream and replay past 

meetings on the city website, 
www.folsom.ca.us 

Watch live and replays of meetings on 
Sac Metro Cable TV, Channel 14 

 
More information about City Council meetings is available at the end of this agenda 

 
 

Page 1

file:///C:/Users/ELobbato/Downloads/CityClerkDept@folsom.ca.us
http://www.folsom.ca.us/


2 

 

 

 

City Council Regular Meeting 
 

Folsom City Council Chambers 
50 Natoma Street, Folsom, CA 

 

 www.folsom.ca.us   

Tuesday, June 14, 2022 6:30 PM 
 

Kerri Howell, Mayor 

 

Rosario Rodriguez, Vice Mayor Sarah Aquino, Councilmember 
YK Chalamcherla, Councilmember Mike Kozlowski, Councilmember 

 
REGULAR CITY COUNCIL AGENDA 

Members of the public wishing to participate in this meeting via teleconference may participate 
either online or by telephone via WebEx. 

 
Meeting Number: 2551 510 5507 
Meeting Password: 06 14 2022 

 

Join the meeting by WebEx online: 
 https://cityoffolsom.my.webex.com/cityoffolsom.my/j.php?MTID=mbbb8b7b1df8da07726c1a89bcefea455 

 

To make a public comment using the WebEx online platform, please use the “raise hand” feature at the 
bottom center of the screen. Please make sure to enable audio controls once access has been given by the City 

Clerk to speak. Please wait to be called upon by the City Clerk. 
 

Join the meeting by WebEx telephone:  Dial 1-415-655-0001  

To make a public comment by phone, please  press *3 to raise your hand.  Please make sure to enable audio 
controls by pressing *6 once access has been given by the City Clerk to speak.  Please wait to be called upon by 

the City Clerk. 
Verbal comments via virtual meeting must adhere to the principles of the three-minute speaking time 

permitted for public comment at City Council meetings. 
 

 
CALL TO ORDER 

ROLL CALL: 

Councilmembers:     Kozlowski, Rodriguez, Aquino, Chalamcherla, Howell 

Page 2

http://www.folsom.ca.us/
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fcityoffolsom.my.webex.com%2Fcityoffolsom.my%2Fj.php%3FMTID%3Dmbbb8b7b1df8da07726c1a89bcefea455&data=05%7C01%7Clkonopka%40folsom.ca.us%7Cac372f4b3a334d5e44a408da48a23963%7C1cfb4b4a254c47b48448af71335fd6c0%7C0%7C0%7C637902158840288031%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=bknJ7cqowxpTRrSApAcA62CyTyKdMy51cUXLhYadBHs%3D&reserved=0


3 

The City Council has adopted a policy that no new item will begin after 10:30 p.m.  Therefore, if you are 
here for an item that has not been heard by 10:30 p.m., you may leave, as the item will be continued to 
a future Council Meeting. 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

AGENDA UPDATE 

BUSINESS FROM THE FLOOR: 

Members of the public are entitled to address the City Council concerning any item within the Folsom 
City Council's subject matter jurisdiction.  Public comments are limited to no more than three 
minutes.  Except for certain specific exceptions, the City Council is prohibited from discussing or taking 
action on any item not appearing on the posted agenda. 

SCHEDULED PRESENTATIONS: 

1. A Proclamation of the Mayor of the City of Folsom Proclaiming June 19, 2022 as Juneteenth 
National Freedom Day in the City of Folsom 

2. A Proclamation of the Mayor of the City of Folsom Proclaiming July 1 - 3, 2022 as Western 
Rodeo Days in the City of Folsom 

CONSENT CALENDAR: 

Items appearing on the Consent Calendar are considered routine and may be approved by one 
motion.  City Councilmembers may pull an item for discussion. 

3. Approval of May 10, 2022 Special and Regular Meeting Minutes 

4. Approval of May 24, 2022 Special and Regular Meeting Minutes 

5. Resolution No. 10862 - A Resolution Calling and Giving Notice of the Holding of a General 
Municipal Election to be Held on Tuesday, November 8, 2022, Requesting the Board of 
Supervisors of the County of Sacramento Consolidate the General Municipal Election with the 
Statewide General Election, and Establishing Policies for Candidates’ Statements 

6. Resolution No. 10863 – A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute a Regional Water 
Authority Biological Opinion Services and Support Program Agreement and Appropriation of 
Funds 

7. Resolution No. 10864 – A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute an Agreement 
with E Source Companies, LLC to Complete the City of Folsom’s Water Loss Control Program 
and Appropriation of Funds 

8. Resolution No. 10865 - A Resolution Authorizing Public Fireworks Displays During the Annual 
Folsom Pro Rodeo Activities 

9. Resolution No.  10866 – A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute a Subdivision 
Improvement Agreement and Accept Offers of Dedication for the Toll Brothers at Folsom Ranch 
Phase 1E Subdivision, and Approval of the Final Map for the Toll Brothers at Folsom Ranch 
Phase 1E Subdivision 

10. Resolution No. 10867 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute Non-Exclusive 
Agreements with Approved Licensed Contractors to Implement the Sacramento Housing and 
Redevelopment Agency Inter-Agency Contract for the Seniors Helping Seniors Home Repair 
Program 

11. Resolution No. 10869 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Adopt Local Assistance 
Procedures Manual Chapter 10, Consultant Selection, Policies and Procedures for Federal and 
State-only Funded Projects 

Page 3



4 

12. Resolution No. 10872 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Submit an Application for 
Grant Funds to the United States Department of Justice, Community Oriented Policing Services 
(COPS) Hiring Program 

13. Resolution No. 10873 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute an Agreement 
with BrightView Landscape Services for Landscaping and Lighting Districts, Community Facilities 
Districts, and Folsom Plan Area Landscapes for the City of Folsom and Appropriation of Funds 

PUBLIC HEARING: 

14. Resolution No. 10861 – A Resolution Adopting the City Manager’s Fiscal Year 2022-23 
Operating and Capital Budgets for the City of Folsom, the Successor Agency, the Folsom Public 
Financing Authority, and the Folsom Ranch Financing Authority 

OLD BUSINESS: 

15. Resolution No. 10871 - A Resolution Adopting the Public Works and Parks and Recreation 
Departments 2022 Active Transportation Plan (ATP) 

NEW BUSINESS: 

16. Resolution No. 10868 - A Resolution of the City Council Determining that the Proposed Lease 
Renewal is Exempt from the California Environmental Quality Act and Authorizing the City 
Manager to Execute and Agreement to Renew a Land Lease with the Placerville & Sacramento 
Valley Railroad for the Use of the Wye Property 

17. Resolution No. 10870 - A Resolution of Consideration of the City Council of the City of Folsom to 
Amend the Rate and Method of Apportionment for Improvement Area No. 6 within the City of 
Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch), and Related Matters 

CITY MANAGER REPORTS: 

COUNCIL COMMENTS: 

ADJOURNMENT 

 
 

NOTICE:  Members of the public are entitled to directly address the City Council concerning any item 

that is described in the notice of this meeting, before or during consideration of that item.  If you wish to 

address Council on an issue, which is on this agenda, please complete a blue speaker request card, and 

deliver it to a staff member at the table on the left side of the Council Chambers prior to discussion of the 

item.  When your name is called, stand to be recognized by the Mayor and then proceed to the podium.  If 

you wish to address the City Council on any other item of interest to the public, when the Mayor asks if 

there is any “Business from the Floor,” follow the same procedure described above.  Please limit your 

comments to three minutes or less. 

 

NOTICE REGARDING CHALLENGES TO DECISIONS:   Pursuant to all applicable laws and regulations, 

including without limitation, California Government Code Section 65009 and or California Public 

Resources Code Section 21177, if you wish to challenge in court any of the above decisions (regarding 

planning, zoning and/or environmental decisions), you may be limited to raising only those issues you or 

someone else raised at the public hearing(s) described in this notice/agenda, or in written 

correspondence delivered to the City at, or prior to, the public hearing. 

As presiding officer, the Mayor has the authority to preserve order at all City Council meetings, to remove 

or cause the removal of any person from any such meeting for disorderly conduct, or for making personal, 

impertinent, or slanderous remarks, using profanity, or becoming boisterous, threatening or personally 

abusive while addressing said Council, and to enforce the rules of the Council. 

Page 4



5 

PERSONS INTERESTED IN PROPOSING AN ITEM FOR THE CITY COUNCIL AGENDA SHOULD 

CONTACT A MEMBER OF THE CITY COUNCIL. 

The meeting of the Folsom City Council is being telecast on Metro Cable TV, Channel 14, the 

Government Affairs Channel, and will be shown in its entirety on the Friday and Saturday following the 

meeting, both at 9 a.m.  The City does not control scheduling of this telecast and persons interested in 

watching the televised meeting should confirm this schedule with Metro Cable TV, Channel 14. The City 

of Folsom provides live and archived webcasts of regular City Council meetings.  The webcasts can be 

found on the online services page of the City's website www.folsom.ca.us. 

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you are a person with a disability and you need 

a disability-related modification or accommodation to participate in this meeting, please contact the City 

Clerk’s Office at (916) 461-6035, (916) 355-7328 (fax) or CityClerkDept@folsom.ca.us.  Requests must 

be made as early as possible and at least two full business days before the start of the meeting. 

Any documents produced by the City and distributed to the City Council regarding any item on this agenda 

will be made available at the City Clerk’s Counter at City Hall located at 50 Natoma Street, Folsom, 

California and at the Folsom Public Library located at 411 Stafford Street, Folsom, California during 

normal business hours. 

  

Page 5

http://www.folsom.ca.us/
https://municode.sharepoint.com/sites/WebMeetingsTeam/Shared%20Documents/_Customers/California/Folsom%20California/Meetings%20Project/Templates/CityClerkDept@folsom.ca.us


6 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

This page is intentionally left blank. 

Page 6



PROCI-AVIATION
OF THE MAYOR OF THE CITY OF FOLSOM

PROCLAIMING JLINE ag, 2o.22
AS

JUNETEENTH NATIONAL FREEDOM DAY
IN THE CITY OF FOLSOM

WHEREAS, our nation was conceived on July 4, t776, with the Declaration of Independence.
One of the foundational statements of the Declaration was:
"We hold these truths to be self-evident, that all men are created egual, that they
are endowed by their Creator with certain unalienable RighB, that among these
are Life, Libefi and the purcuit of HappinesC'; and

WHEREAS, President Abraham Lincoln signed the Emancipation Proclamation on January 1,
1863, declaring the slaves in Confederate territory free, paving the way for the passing of
the 13th Amendment which formally abolished slavery in the United States of America; and

WHEREAS' word about the signing of the Emancipation Proclamation was delayed over two
years, finally reaching authorities and African Americans in the South and Southwestern
United States on June 19, 1865; and

WHEREAS, June 19th has a special meaning, and is called "Juneteenth" combining the words
June and Nineteenth. Juneteenth honors the end to slavery in the United States and it is
considered the longest-running African American holiday; and

WHEREAS' Juneteenth, also called Juneteenth National Independence Day, Emancipation
Day, Freedom Day, Jubilee Day, Black Independence Day, and Juneteenth Independence
Day, commemorates the emancipation of African American slaves. It officially became a
federal holiday in 202I, and it is a day that should be celebrated by all Americans:

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Folsom City Council hereby proclaims June
t9,2022 as "Juneteenth National Freedom Day" in Folsom. Juneteenth is an opportunity to
learn about American history and the ideals of equality and freedom. We encourage
residents, schools, businesses, and community groups to celebrate Juneteenth as a day of
remembrance and celebration.

PROCLAIMED this 14th day of June 2022

Attest:

Kerri M. Howell, Mayor Christa Freemantle, City Clerk

Page 7

06/14/2022 Item No.1.



This page is intentionally left blank.

Page 8

06/14/2022 Item No.1.



PROCI-AMATION
OF THE MAYOR OF THE CITY OF FOLSOM

PROCLAIMING JULY 1- 3' 2022
AS

WESTERI\ RODEO DAYS
IN THE CITY OF FOLSOM

WHEREAS, the City of Folsom proudly recognizes Folsom's western heritage and acknowledges

the benefits of preseruing the traditions and customs of the City's history; and

WHEREAS, the annual Folsom Pro Rodeo is a cornerstone of Folsom's link to its colorful past

and is thoroughly enjoyed by residents and visitors alike; and

WHEREAS, this year's event, to be held July 1 - 3 at the Dan Russell Arena, marks the 61st

anniversary of the Folsom Pro Rodeo and marks it as one of the longest-running events in
Northern California; and

WHEREAS, this year's Grand Marshal and the rodeo's own "Uncle Sam" is Adam Frick. An

astounding community paftner and volunteer who has been a member of the Chamber of
Commerce and a rodeo volunteer since 2005; and

WHEREAS, the 61st anniversary event highlights include traditional rodeo events such as

saddle and bareback bronc riding, steer wrestling, team roping, barrel racing, bull riding,
peformance by the Painted Ladies Drill Team, Flying Cowboys, rodeo clowns, nightly fireworks,

mutton busting, and live music in the Saloon Under the Stars; and

WHEREAS, in honor of the traditional patriotic theme, the Folsom Pro Rodeo will celebrate

with the ever-popular in-arena spectacular fireworks; and

WHEREAS, the Folsom Pro Rodeo is made possible with the assistance of hundreds of
volunteers and thousands of fans and spectators who enjoy every minute of the exciting action-
packed rodeo and entertainment; and

NOW THEREFORE, I, Kerri M. Howell, Mayor of the City of Folsom, do hereby proclaim July 1

- 3,2022, as WESTERN RODEO DAYS IN FOTSOM and call upon all citizens to "cowboy up"

and join in the festivities celebrating the 61st anniversary of the Folsom Pro Rodeo; and

BE IT FURTHER PROCLAIMED that the Folsom City Council extends sincere best wishes to

the Chamber of Commerce for a successful rodeo season.

PROCLAIMED this 14th day of June 2022.

Attest:

Kerri M. Howell, Mayor Christa Freemantle, City Clerk

Page 9

06/14/2022 Item No.2.



This page is intentionally left blank.

Page 10

06/14/2022 Item No.2.



Book 76 Page 236
Folsom City Council

May 10,2022

City Gouncil Special Meeting

MINUTES

Tuesday, May 10, 2022 6:00 PM

CALL TO ORDER

The special City Council meeting was called to order at 6:00 pm with Mayor Kerri Howell

presiding.

ROLL GALL:

Councilmembers Present: Sarah Aquino, Councilmember
YK Chalamcherla, Councilmember
Rosario Rodriguez, Vice MaYor
Kerri Howell, Mayor

Councilmembers Absent:

Participating Staff:

Mike Kozlowski, Councilmember

City Manager Elaine Andersen
City Attorney Steven Wang
Deputy City Clerk Lydia KonoPka

ADJOURNM TO CLOSED SESSI FOR THE FOLLOWING PURPOSES:

1. Conference with Legal Counsel - Anticipated Litigation. Significant Exposure to Litigation
pursuant to Government Code section 54956.9(e)(3): Application for Leave to File a Late

Claim by George Lane

Motion by Gouncilmember Sarah Aquino, second by Vice Mayor Rosario Rodriguez to
adjourn tb CloseO Session for the above referenced item. Motion carried with the
following roll call vote:

AYES: Gouncilmember(s): Rodriguez, Aquino, Ghalamcherla, Howell
NOES: Gouncilmember(s): None
ABSENT: Gouncilmember(s): Kozlowski
ABSTAIN: Gouncilmember(s): None

RECONVENE

City Attorney Steven Wang announced that no final action was taken during Closed Session

DRAFT - Not official until approued bit the Ciry Coundl. Page 11

06/14/2022 Item No.3.



Book 76 Page237
Folsom Gity Council

May 10,2022

ADJOURNMENT

The meeting was adjourned at 6:17 p.m

ATTEST:

Kerri Howell, Mayor

SUBMITTED BY

Lydia Konopka, Deputy City Clerk

DRAFT - Not oficial until apprnued b! the Ciry Council. Page 12

06/14/2022 Item No.3.



Book 76 Page 238
Folsom City Council

May 10,2022

City Gouncil Regular Meeting

MINUTES

Tuesday, May 10, 2022 6:30 PM

CALL TO ORDER

The regular City Council meeting was called to order at 6:30 pm with Mayor Kerri Howell
presiding.

ROLL GALL:

Councilmembers Present: Sarah Aquino, Councilmember
YK Chalamcherla, Councilmember
Rosario Rodriguez, Vice Mayor
Kerri Howell, Mayor

Councilmembers Absent: Mike Kozlowski, Councilmember (arrived at 7:39 pm)

Participating Staff: City Manager Elaine Andersen
City Attorney Steven Wang
Deputy City Clerk Lydia Konopka
Communications Director Christine Brainerd
Administrative Assistant Jennifer Thiot
Police Lieutenant Lou Wright
Police Lieutenant Brian Lockhart
Senior Office Assistant Lindsey Tayler
CFO/Finance Director Stacey Tamagni
Associate Planner Josh Kincade
Community Development Director Pam Johns
Public Works Director Mark Rackovan

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

The Pledge of Allegiance was recited

AGENDA UPDATE

City Attorney Steven Wang announced that item 18 had additional information

BUSINESS FROM THE FLOOR:

None

DRAFT - Not official until approued b1 the Citit Coandl. Page 13

06/14/2022 Item No.3.



Book 76 Page239
Folsom City Council

May 10,2022

SGHEDULED PRESENTATIONS:

1. Proclamation of the Mayor of the City of Folsom Proclaiming May 1 5-21,2022 as

National Police Week in the City of Folsom

Mayor Kerri Howell presented the proclamation to Lieutenant Lou Wright and Lieutenant Brian

Lockhart.

Z. Proclamation of the Mayor of the City of Folsom Proclaiming May 15 through May 21 ,

2022 as "National Public Works Week" and May 18,2022 as "City Works Day" in the City

of Folsom

Communications Manager Christine Brainerd introduced the item. Administrative Assistant
Jennifer Thiot and Senior Office Assistant Lindsey Tayler made a presentation.

Councilmember Sarah Aquino presented the proclamation.

3. City Manager's Fiscal Year 2Q21-22Third Quarter Financial Report

CFO/Finance Director Stacey Tamagni made a presentation and responded to questions from

the City Council.

4. Presentation of the City Manager's Fiscal Year 2022-23 Proposed Operating and Capital
Budgets for the City of Folsom, the Successor Agency, the Folsom Public Financing
Authority, and the Folsom Ranch Public Financing Authority

CFO/F;nance Director Stacey Tamagni made a presentation and responded to questions from

the City Council.

GONSENT CALENDAR:

Items appearing on the Consent Calendar are considered routine and may be approved by one
motion. City Councilmembers may pull an item for discussion.

5. Approval of April 12,2022 Special and Regular Meeting Minutes

6. Approval of April 26,2022 Regular Meeting Minutes

7 . Resolution No. 10839 - A Resolution of the City Council Ratifying the City Manager's
Authorization for Emergency Replacement of the On-Site Fuel Tanks at the City of
Folsom Corporation Yard, Determining the Project is Exempt from CEQA, and

Appropriation of Funds

8. Resolution No. 10840 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute a

Subdivision lmprovement Agreement and Accept Offers of Dedication for the Mangini

DRAFT - Not official antil approued fui the Ciry Council. Page 14

06/14/2022 Item No.3.



Book 76 Page240
Folsom City Council

May 10,2022

Ranch Phase 2 Village No. 3 Subdivision, and Approval of the Final Map for the Mangini
Ranch Phase 2 Village No. 3 Subdivision

g. Resolution No 10841 - A Resolution Ratifying the City Manager's Execution of a
Purchase Agreement with Golden State Fire Apparatus lnc. for a Ladder Truck from
Pierce Manufacturing lnc. Pursuant to Folsom Municipal Code Section 2.36.150, and the
Approval of an lnterfund Loan and Appropriation of Funds

10. Resolution No. 10842 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute an

Agreement with McGuire and Hester for Construction of the Water Treatment Plant
Backwash and Recycled Water Upgrades Project and Appropriation of Funds

1 1. Resolution No. 10843 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute an

Agreement with lnferrera Construction Management Group, lnc. for Construction
Management and lnspection Services for the Water Treatment Plant Backwash and

Recycled Water Upgrades Project

12. Resolution No. 10844 - A Resolution Approving the Preliminary Engineer's Report for the
following Landscaping and Lighting Districts for Fiscal Year 2022-2023 and Setting Public
Hearing for American River Canyon North, American River Canyon North No. 2,

American River Canyon North No. 3, Blue Ravine Oaks, Blue Ravine Oaks No. 2, Briggs
Ranch, Broadstone, Broadstone No. 4, Broadstone Unit No. 3, Cobble Ridge, Cobble
Hills Ridge ll/Reflections ll, Folsom Heights, Folsom Heights No.2, Hannaford Cross,

Lake Natoma Shores, Los Cerros, Natoma Station, Natoma Valley, Prairie Oaks Ranch,

Prairie Oaks Ranch No. 2, Prospect Ridge, Sierra Estates, Silverbrook, Steeplechase,
The Residences at American River Canyon, The Residences at American River Canyon
ll, Willow Creek Estates East, Willow Creek Estates East No. 2, Willow Creek Estates
South, and Willow SPrings

13. Resolution No. 10845 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute an

Amendment to the Memorandum of Understanding Agreement (Contract No. 174-2120-
062) with the Capital Southeast Connector Joint Powers Authority for the Southeast
Connector Segment D3(A) Bike Trail and Appropriation of Funds

14. Resolution No. 10846 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute a Design
and Consulting Services Contract with Bennett Engineering Services, lnc. forthe East
Bidwell Street/lron Point Road and US50 Onramp lmprovement Project and
Appropriation of Funds

15. Resolution No. 10847 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute a Contract
Change Order for the Pedestrian/Bike Trail with Goodfellow Brothers, LLC (Contract No.

174-2120-060) for the Capital SouthEast Connector Segment D3(A), Project No.

PW1607, Federal Project No. 5288(046)

16. Resolution No. 10848 - A Resolution Adopting a List of Projects for Fiscal Year 2022-23
to be Funded by Senate Bill 1: The Road Repair and Accountability Act

17. Resolution No. 10850 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute a

Subdivision lmprovement Agreement and Accept Offers of Dedication for the Mangini

DRAFT - Not ffiial until approued fui the Ci4t Coundl. Page 15

06/14/2022 Item No.3.



Book 76 Page241
Folsom City Council

May 10,2022

Ranch Phase 1C South Village No. 4 Subdivision, and Approval of the Final Map for the
Mangini Ranch Phase'1C South Village No.4 Subdivision

Motion by Vice Mayor Rosario Rodriguez second by Gouncilmember YK Chalamcherla, to
approve the Gonsent Galendar.

Motion carried with the following roll call vote:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:

Gouncilmember(s): Aquino, Chalamcherla, Rodriguez, Howell
Councilmember(s): None
Gouncilmember(s): Kozlowski
Gouncilmember(s): None

PUBLIC HEARING:

(item taken out of order)

19. Folsom Corporate Center Apartments - South Side of lron Point Road, East of the
lntersection of lron Point Road and Oak Avenue Parkway (PN 21-120)

i. Resolution No. 10849 - A Resolution to Adopt a Mitigated Negative Declaration,
Approve a General Plan Amendment, and Approve a Planned Development Permit for
the Folsom Corporate Center Apartments Project

ii. Ordinance No. 1327 - An Uncodified Ordinance to Amend the Zoning Designation for
a7.24-acre Parcel (Lot 1) from M-L PD to R-4 PD and to Amend the Zoning Designation
for a 4.68-acre Parcel (Lot 6) from BP PD to R-4 PD for the Folsom Corporate Center
Apartments Project (lntroduction and First Reading)

Councilmember Sarah Aquino announced that she needed to recuse herself from this item due
to both members of Cole Partners being family friends and one is also a client at her insurance
business. She left the room for the duration of this agenda item.

Councilmember Mike Kozlowski arrived at 7:39 pm

Community Development Director Pam Johns made a presentation and responded to questions
from the City Council. Traffic consultant Dr. Thomas Kear from T. Kear Transportation,
Planning and Management, lnc. provided clarification.

Mayor Kerri Howell opened the public hearing. Hearing no public comments, the public hearing
was closed.

Motion by Vice Mayor Rosario Rodriguez second by Gouncilmember Mike Kozlowski, to
approve Resolution No. 10849.

Motion carried with the following roll call vote:

AYES: Councilmember(s): Ghalamcherla, Kozlowski, Rodriguez, Howell
NOES: Councilmember(s): None

DRAFT - Not offidal until approued fui the Citl Council.
Page 16

06/14/2022 Item No.3.



Book 76 Page242
Folsom City Council

May 10,2022

Motion by Councilmember Mike Kozlowskisecond by Vice Mayor Rosario Rodriguez, to
introduce and conduct the first reading of Ordinance No. 1327.

Motion carried with the following roll call vote:

ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:

Gouncilmember(s): Aquino (recused)
Gouncilmember(s): None

Gouncilmember(s): Ghalamcherla, Kozlowski, Rodriguez, Howell
Councilmember(s): None
Councilmember(s): Aquino (recused)
Gouncilmember(s): None

Councilmember Sarah Aquino returned to the dais.

18. Appeal by lgor Semenyuk of a Decision by the Historic District Commission Denying a

Conditional Use Permit for the Lakeside Memorial Lawn Crematorium project (PN 19-

182) located at 1201 Forrest Street (Gontinued from April 26, 20221

Associate Planner Josh Kinkade made a presentation and responded to questions from the City
Council. Additional clarification was provided by Community Development Director Pam Johns.

Appellant lgor Semenyuk addressed the City Council and responded to questions.

Mayor Kerri Howell opened the public hearing

The following speakers addressed the City Council

1. Janice Brial
2. Dean Dodson
3. Dan Charlebois
4. Dan Winkelman
5. Steve Walsh
6. Matt Almas
7. Larry Allbauch
8. lsaac Monical
9. Dwight B.
10. Kathryn Corbett
11. Dr. McGary (via teleconference)
12. Owen Thomas (via teleconference)
13. Mike Reynolds (via teleconference)
14.Tim McGary (via teleconference)

Hearing no further comments, the public hearing was closed

Appellant lgor Semenyuk provided closing remarks to the City Council

Associate Planner Josh Kinkade responded to questions from the City Council

DRAFf - Not fficial until approued b.y rhe Ci4t Coundl. Page 17

06/14/2022 Item No.3.



Book 76 Page243
Folsom City Council

May 10,2022

Motion by Gouncilmember Sarah Aquino, second by Councilmember Mike Kozlowski, to
deny the appeal and affirm the Historic District Commission's decision to deny the
conditional use permit.

City Attorney Steven Wang provided clarification regarding the finding of the conditional use
permit as it related to the motion.

Each of the Councilmembers commented regarding the project.

City Attorney Steven Wang asked Mayor Kerri Howell to allow community member Loretta
Hettinger to speak on this item now, as she was unable to comment using her Webex
connection at home. Mayor Howell agreed.

The following speaker addressed the City Council:
o Loretta Hettinger

Mayor Kerri Howell called for the vote on Gouncilmember Sarah Aquino's motion

Motion failed with the following roll call vote:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN

Gouncilmember(s): Aquino, Kozlowski
Councilmember(s): Ghalamcherla, Rodriguez, Howell
Councilmember(s): None
Councilmember(s): None

City Attorney Steven Wang explained that the motion failed, but another motion may be made.

He suggested that the Mayor call for a recess to help craft the findings should the Council wish
to make a different motion.

Motion by Vice Mayor Rosario Rodriguez to grant the appeal and overturn the Historic
District Commission's decision.

Councilmember YK Chalamcherla asked to amend the motion to add the requirement that
the applicant add a weather station for monitoring air quality to the project and that the
project go before a design review committee. Vice Mayor Rosario Rodriguez agreed to
the amendment to her motion.

Mayor Kerri Howell called for a recess at 9:56 pm. The City Council resumed the meeting at

10:09 pm.

City Attorney Steven Wang reminded the Gity Gouncil that the pending motion was a
motion to grant the appeal by lgor Semenyuk, thereby overturning the decision of the
Historic District Gommission denying a Conditional Use Permit for the Lakeside
Memorial Lawn Grematorium (PN 19-1821located at1201Forrest Street, based upon the
conditions of approval and based upon the following findings:

Gommunity Development Director Pam Johns read the findings for the record:
General Findings:

DRAFT - Nor fficial until approued b1 the Ci4t Coundl. Page 18

06/14/2022 Item No.3.



Book 76 Page244
Folsom City Council

May 10,2022

A. Notice of hearing has been given at the time and in the manner required by State
law and Gity code.

B. The project is consistent with the General Plan and the Zoning Gode of the Gity

CEQA Findings:

C. A mitigated negative declaration has been prepared for the project in accordance
with GEQA.

D. Pursuant to AB 52, before release of the Mitigated Negative Declaration for this
project, the Gity contacted all Galifornia Native American tribes on the City's AB
52 contact list in association with the proiect.

E. The Gity received one request for consultation from California Native American
tribes and consultation was subsequently concluded. No changes to the project
were required as a result of the consultation.

F. The Gity Gouncil has considered the Initial Study, the proposed Mitigated Negative
Declaration and all comments received during the public review process before
making a decision regarding the project.

G. The Mitigated Negative Declaration reflects the independent judgement and
analysis of the Gity of Folsom.

H. The Mitigated Negative Declaration has determined that the proposed project
would not have a significant effect on the environment with the required with the
required mitigation measures and the conditions of approval on the project.

l. On the basis of the whole record, there is no substantial evidence that the project
will have a significant effect on the environment with the required mitigation
measures and the conditions of approval on the project.

Land Use Gompatibility Finding:

J. As conditioned, the proposed crematory is appropriate as an accessory use to the
existing cemetery.

Conditional Use Permit Finding:

K. As conditioned, the establishment, maintenance and operation of the use applied
for will not, under the circumstances of this particular case, be detrimental to the
health, safety, peace, morals, comfort, and generalwelfare of persons residing or
working in the neighborhood, or be detrimental or injurious to property and
improvements in the neighborhood or to the general welfare of the Gity, as the
proposed project will not have negative impacts to nearby commercial or
residential uses that have not been mitigated.

Additionally, the conditions in the staff report Attachment 2 starting on page 514 as
presented to the Historic District Commission, Gonditions No. 1-30, with the addition of
new condition No. 31.

New condition 31 would read:
"31. A Davis lnstruments Vantage Vue, Vantage Pro2 or similar weather station shall be
installed on the shed on which the crematory machine is proposed prior to installation of
the crematorium to the satisfaction of the Community Development Department."

DRAFT - Not fficial until approued fut the Ci4t Coundl Page 19

06/14/2022 Item No.3.



Book76 Page245
Folsom City Council

May 10,2022

City Attorney Steven Wang reminded the Gity Gouncil that lf the Gouncil were to approve
this motion, the Council will also be approving the lnitial Study and Mitigated Negative
Declaration.

There was more discussion and clarification between the City Council and staff on requiring the

applicant to install a weather station. Vice Mayor Rosario Rodriguez recommended that the
motion not include requiring the applicant to install a weather station because it is not a
requirement of the Air Quality Management District for other crematoriums. Councilmember YK
Chalamcherla concurred. Community Development Director Pam Johns confirmed that a
condition requiring the applicant to install a weather station will not be a part of the approval.

Motion carried with the following roll call vote:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:

Gouncilmember(s): Ghalamcherla, Rodriguez, Howell
Councilmember(s): Aquino, Kozlowski
Gouncilmember(s): None
Councilmember(s): None

Councilmember(s): Aquino, Ghalamcherla, Rodriguez, Kozlowski
Councilmember(s): None
Councifmember(s): Howell (recused)
Councilmember(s): None

OLD BUSINESS:

20. Resolution No. 10831 - A Resolution of the City Council of the City of Folsom Approving
an Affordable Housing Loan in the Amount of $588,265.55 to Bidwell Place, LP for
Construction of the 7S-unit Bidwell Place Affordable Multifamily Project, and

Appropriation of Funds

Mayor Kerri Howell announced that she needed to recuse herself from this item due to leasing
property within 500 feet of the project location. She left the room for the duration of this agenda
item.

Community Development Director Pam Johns made a presentation and responded to questions

from the City Council.

Motion by Councilmember Sarah Aquino second by Gouniilmember Mike Kozlowski, to
approve Resolution No. 10831.

Motion carried with the following roll call vote:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:

Mayor Kerri Howell returned to the dais.

Councilmember Sarah Aquino asked that the 10:30 rule be waived in order to continue the
meeting.

Motion by Councilmember Sarah Aquino second by Vice Mayor Rosario Rodriguez to
waive the 10:30 rule.

DRAFT - Not fficial until approued fui the Ci4t Coancil' Page 20

06/14/2022 Item No.3.



Book 76 Page246
Folsom City Council

May 10,2022

Motion carried with the following roll callvote:

AYES: Councilmember(s): Aquino, Ghalamcherla, Kozlowski, Rodriguez, Howell
NOES: Gouncilmember(s): None
ABSENT: Gouncilmember(s): None
ABSTAIN: Councilmember(s): None

NEW BUSINESS:

21. Ordinance No. 1326 - An Uncodified Ordinance of the City of Folsom Approving the
Folsom Police Department's Military Equipment Use Policy in Compliance with Assembly
Bill481 (lntroduction and First Reading)

Police Lieutenant Brian Lockhart made a presentation.

Motion by Councilmember Sarah Aquino second by Gouncilmember YK Ghalamcherla, to
introduce and conduct the first reading of Ordinance No. 1326.

Motion carried with the following roll call vote:

AYES: Gouncilmember(s): Aquino, Ghalamcherla, Kozlowski, Rodriguez, Howell
NOES: Gouncilmember(s): None
ABSENT: Councilmember(s): None
ABSTAIN: Gouncilmember(s): None

22. Consideration of Letter in Response to Demand Letter Received from Scott Rafferty
Regarding Alleged Non-Compliance with the Brown Act

Motion by Gouncilmember Mike Kozlowski second by Gouncilmember YK Ghalamcherla,
to continue to comply with the Brown Act.

Motion carried with the following roll call vote:

AYES: Gouncilmember(s): Aquino, Ghalamcherla, Kozlowski, Rodriguez, Howell
NOES: Gouncilmember(s): None
ABSENT: Gouncilmember(s): None
ABSTAIN: Councilmember(s): None

CITY MANAGER REPORTS:

City Manager Elaine Andersen announced that Folsom was named in the top 50 livable small
cities in the United States by the Personal Finance website. She congratulated Folsom
businesses and apartment communities for diverting food waste from landfills and explained
that voters can drop otf their ballots at the ballot drop box location at City Hall or the vote center
at the Community Center.

DRAFT - Not ffidal until apprlued bjt the Ciry Council' Page 21

06/14/2022 Item No.3.



Book 76 Page247
Folsom City Council

May 10,2022

GITY COUNGIL GOMMENTS:

Vice Mayor Rosario Rodriguez commented regarding her positive experience on the recent Cap

to Cap tilp. Mayor Kerri Howell responded with her past experiences on that trip.

Councilmember YK Chalamcherla spoke of the recent School Board/City Council Two by Two

meeting and the Golden State Regional Scouts Council meeting he attended. He stated that he

will also be attending the City Leadership Summit. He commented about attending the
upcoming city works Day and thanked staff for all their hard work.

Councilmember Mike Kozlowski commented regarding the recent SACOG Policy and lnnovation

meeting he attended and the Vista Del Lago Varsity track meet and their 8th consecutive win.

Mayor Kerri Howell spoke of the continuing construction of the Southeast Connector segment

and the recent Regional Transit meeting. She encouraged everyone to drive safely.

ADJOURNMENT

There being no further business to come before the Folsom City Council, Mayor Kerri Howell

adjourned the meeting at 1O:44 Pm.

SUBMITTED BY

Lydia Konopka, Deputy City Clerk

ATTEST:

Kerri Howell, Mayor

DRAFT - Not offidal until Eproued fu the Ciry Counc"il. Page 22

06/14/2022 Item No.3.



Book 76 Page248
Folsom City Council

May 24,2022

Gity Council Special Meeting

MINUTES

Tuesday, May 24,2022 5:30 PM

CALL TO ORDER

The special City Council meeting was called to order at 5:30 pm with Mayor Kerri Howell
presiding.

ROLL GALL:

Councilmembers Present YK Chalamcherla, Councilmember
Rosario Rodriguez, Vice Mayor
Sarah Aquino, Councilmember
Kerri Howell, Mayor

Councilmembers Absent: Mike Kozlowski, Councilmember (anived during Closed Session)

Participating Staff: City Manager Elaine Andersen
City Attorney Steven Wang
City Clerk Christa Freemantle

ADJOURNMENT TO CLOSED SESSION FQR THE FOLLOWING PURPOSES:

L Conference with Legal Counsel - Existing Litigation - Pursuant to Government Code
Section 54956.9(d)(1): Eric Weitzelv. City of Folsom, Workers' Compensation Appeals
Board Case Nos. ADJ7048246 and ADJ8729812

2. Conference with Real Property Negotiator - Pursuant to Government Code section
54956.8: Exchange a portion of City property located at 814 Comstock Drive, APN 071-
0190-054, consisting of 3,086 sq.ft., for 3,817 sq.ft. of adjacent property. Negotiating
Parties: City Manager Elaine Andersen on behalf of the City of Folsom, and Asghar and
Patricia Agheli. Under Negotiation: Price and Terms of Exchange

3. Conference with Labor Negotiator - Pursuant to Government Code Section
54957.6. Agency Negotiator: lnterim Human Resources Director John Spittler. Employee
Organization: lnternational Union of Operating Engineers, Local 39

Motion by Gouncilmember Sarah Aquino second by Vice Mayor Rosario Rodriguez to
adjourn to Glosed Session for the above referenced items. Motion carried with the
following roll call vote:

DRAFT - Not fficial antil approued fui the Ci4t Council. Page 23

06/14/2022 Item No.4.



Book 76 Page 249
Folsom City Council

May 24,2022

AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:

Gouncilmember(s): Chalamcherla, Rodriguez, Aquino, Howell
Gouncilmember(s): None
Gouncilmember(s): Kozlowski
Councilmember(s): None

RECONVENE

City Attorney Steven Wang announced that no final action was taken during Closed Session

ADJOURNMENT

The meeting was adjourned at 6:36 p,m

SUBMITTED BY

Christa Freemantle, City Clerk

ATTEST:

Kerri Howell, Mayor

DRAFT - Not fficial until approued fu the Ciry Coancil.
Page 24

06/14/2022 Item No.4.



Book 76 Page 250
Folsom City Council

May 24,2022

City Gouncil Regular Meeting

MINUTES

Tuesday, May 24,2022 6:30 PM

cAlrl TO ORDER

The regular City Council meeting was called to order at 6:36 pm with Mayor Kerri Howell
presiding.

ROLL CALL:

Councilmembers Present: YK Chalamcherla, Councilmember
Mike Kozlowski, Councilmember
Rosario Rodriguez, Vice Mayor
Sarah Aquino, Councilmember
Kerri Howell, Mayor

Councilmembers Absent:

Participating Staff:

None

City Manager Elaine Andersen
City Attorney Steven Wang
City Clerk Christa Freemantle
Community Development Director Pam Johns
City Engineer Steve Krahn
CFO/Finance Director Stacey Tamagni
Police Chief Rick Hillman (via teleconference)
Fire Chief Ken Cusano
Engineering Manager Brian Reed

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

The Pledge of Allegiance was recited

AGENDA UPDATE

City Attorney Steven Wang announced that items 10,11 and 12 were continued to a future
meeting and items 5 and 14 have been revised.

BUSINESS FROM THE FLOOR:

None

DRAFT - Not fficial until approued fut the Ci4t Coundl. Page 25

06/14/2022 Item No.4.



Book 76 Page251
Folsom City Council

May 24,2022

SCHEDULED P NTATIONS:

1. Presentation by the Sacramento-Yolo Mosquito and Vector Control District

General Manager Gary Goodman of the Sacramento-Yolo Mosquito and Vector Control District

made a presentation via teleconference and responded to questions from the City Council.

Craig Burnett, Folsom's representative to the Sacramento-Yolo Mosquito and Vector Control

District provided additional information and comments.

2. Folsom Plan Area Semi-Annual Report

Community Development Director Pam Johns and City Engineer Steve Krahn made a
presentation and responded to questions from the City Council'

GONSENT GALENDAR:

Items appearing on the Consent Calendar are considered routine and may be approved by one

motion. City Councilmembers may pull an item for discussion.

3. Ordinance No. 1326 - An Uncodified Ordinance of the City of Folsom Approving the
Folsom Police Department's Military Equipment Use Policy in Compliance with Assembly
Bill 481 (Second Reading and Adoption)

4. pulled for separate vote

5. Resolution No. 10851 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute a

Construction Agreement with B&M Builders, lnc. for the lron Point Road Median
lmprovement Project, Project No. PW2102 and Appropriation of Funds (amended)

6. Resolution No. 10852 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute an

Amendment to the Design and Consulting Services Agreement with R.E.Y. Engineers,
lnc. for the Natoma Street Drainage Phase 2 Project, Project No. PW1901

7 . Resolution No. 10853 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute a

Construction Agreement with All Phase Construction, lnc. for the Natoma Street Drainage
lmprovement Project Phase 2, Project No. PW1901, State Project No. 5288(047) and
Appropriation of Funds

8. Resolution No. 10854 - A Resolution Authorizing Staff to Submit Active Transportation
Program Grant Applications (Cycle 6) to the California Transportation Commission and the

Sacramento Area Council of Governments for the Historic District Connectivity Project

g. Resolution No. 10855 - A Resolution Authorizing Staff to Submit Active Transportation
Program Grant Applications (Cycle 6) to the California Transportation Commission and

the Sacramento Area Council of Governments for the Folsom-Placerville Rail Trail
Project

DRAtrT - Not oficialuntil approued fui the Ciry Coancil. Page 26

06/14/2022 Item No.4.



Book 76 Page252
Folsom City Council

May 24,2022

10. Resolution No. 10856 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute a

Subdivision lmprovement Agreement and Accept Offers of Dedication for the Mangini
Ranch Phase 3 Village No. 1 Subdivision, and Approval of the Final Map for the Mangini
Ranch Phase 3 Village No. 1 Subdivision

1 1 . Resolution No. 10857 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute a

Subdivision lmprovement Agreement and Accept Offers of Dedication for the Mangini
Ranch Phase 3 Village No. 4 Subdivision, and Approval of the Final Map for the Mangini
Ranch Phase 3 Village No. 4 Subdivision

12. Resolution No. 10858 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute a

Subdivision lmprovement Agreement and Accept Offers of Dedication for the Mangini
Ranch Phase 3 Village No. 2 & 3 Subdivision, and Approval of the Final Map for the
Mangini Ranch Phase 3 Village No. 2 & 3 Subdivision

13. Resolution No. 10859 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute a Contract
with MCM Roofing lnc. for the Folsom City Hall and Folsom Community Center Roof
Repair Project

14. Resolution No. 10860 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute a

Construction Agreement with Cooper Oates Air Conditioning for the Folsom City Hall
Boiler and HVAC Replacement Design-Build Project (amended)

Motion by Councilmember Mike Kozlowskisecond by Vice Mayor Rosario Rodriguez, to
approve Gonsent Calendar items 3, 6-9, 13, and items 5 and 14 as amended.

Motion carried with the following roll call vote:

AYES: Gouncilmember(s): Ghalamcherla, Kozlowski, Rodriguez, Aquino, Howell
NOES: Councilmember(s): None
ABSENT: Gouncilmember(s): None
ABSTAIN: Gouncilmember(s): None

CONSENT LENDAR ITEM PULLED FO R COMMENT:

4. Ordinance No. 1327 - An Uncodified Ordinance to Amend the Zoning Designation for a
7.24-acre Parcel (Lot 1) from M-L PD to R-4 PD and to Amend the Zoning Designation
for a 4.68-acre Parcel (Lot 6) from BP PD to R-4 PD for the Folsom Corporate Center
Apartments Project (Second Reading and Adoption)

Councilmember Sarah Aquino explained that she pulled this item to recuse herself due to a
potential conflict of interest.

Motion by Vice Mayor Rosario Rodriguez second by Councilmember YK Ghalamcherla, to
conduct second reading and adopt Ordinance No. 1327.

Motion carried with the following roll call vote:

AYES: Gouncilmember(s): Ghalamcherla, Kozlowski, Rodriguez, Howell

DRAFT - Not ffidal until approued b1 the Citlt Coundl.
Page 27

06/14/2022 Item No.4.



Book 76 Page 253
Folsom City Council

May 24,2022

NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:

Councilmember(s): None
Councilmember(s): Aquino (recused)
Gouncilmember(s): None

PUBLIG HEARING:

15. Resolution No. 10861 - A Resolution Adopting the City Manager's Fiscal Year 2022-23
Operating and Capital Budgets for the City of Folsom, the Successor Agency, the Folsom
Public Financing Authority, and the Folsom Ranch Financing Authority

CFO/Finance Director Stacey Tamagni made a presentation and responded to questions from
the City Council. Police Chief Rick Hillman and Fire Chief Ken Cusano responded to additional
questions from the City Council.

Mayor Kerri Howell opened the public hearing.

The following speaker addressed the City Council:
. Judi Alexander regarding budgeting funds for the homeless

There being no further speakers, the public hearing was closed.

The City Council discussed the item and asked questions. CFO/Finance Director Stacey
Tamagni and City Manager Elaine Andersen responded.

Councilmember YK Chalamcherla expressed concern regarding the Fire Department's overtime
budget and recommended using the amount of estimated overtime for additional fire personnel.

After more discussion the City Council agreed to continue the item to the June 14 City Council
meeting.

Motion by Gouncilmember YK Ghalamcherla second by Vice Mayor Sarah Aquino, to
continue the item to the June 14,2022 Gity Gouncil meeting.

There was more discussion regarding the Fire Department overtime budget and hiring additional
personnel.

Motion carried with the following roll callvote:

AYES: Gouncilmember(s): Ghalamcherla, Kozlowski, Rodriguez, Aquino, Howell
NOES: Gouncilmember(s): None
ABSENT: Gouncilmember(s): None
ABSTAIN: Gouncilmember(s): None

DR4FT -Not ffidal until approued fut the Ci4t Coundl. Page 28

06/14/2022 Item No.4.



Book76 Page254
Folsom City Council

May 24,2022

CONVENE JOINT MEETING

JOINT CITY COUNCIL AGENDA
JOINT CITY COUNCIL / FOLSOM REDEVELOPMENT SUCCESSOR AGENCY / FOLSOM
PUBLIC FINANCING AUTHORITY / FOLSOM RANCH FINANCING AUTHORITY / SOUTH

OF 50 PARKING AUTHORITY MEETING

ROLL GALL:

Councilmembers Present: YK Chalamcherla, Councilmember
Mike Kozlowski, Councilmember
Rosario Rodriguez, Vice Mayor
Sarah Aquino, Councilmember
Kerri Howell, Mayor

Councilmembers Absent None

Participating Staff: City Manager Elaine Andersen
City Attorney Steven Wang
City Clerk Christa Freemantle

GONSENT CALENDAR:

16. Approval of the March 22, 2022 Joint City Council / Redevelopment Successor Agency /
Public Financing Authority / Folsom South of 50 Parking Authority / Folsom Ranch
Financing Authority Meeting M inutes

17. Receive and File the City of Folsom, the Folsom Redevelopment Successor Agency, the
Folsom Public Financing Authority, the Folsom Ranch Financing Authority, and the South
of 50 Parking Authority Monthly lnvestment Reports for the Month of March 2022

Motion by Councilmember Mike Kozlowski, second by Vice Mayor Rosario Rodriguez to
approve the Consent Calendar.

Motion carried with the following roll call vote:

AYES: Gouncil/Board Member(s): Ghalamcherla, Kozlowski, Rodriguez, Aquino,
Howell

NOES: Gouncil/Board Member(s): None
ABSENT: Council/BoardMember(s): None
ABSTAIN: Gouncil/Board Member(s): None

ADJOURNMENT

There being no further business to come before the joint City Council / Redevelopment
Successor Agency / Public Financing Authority / Folsom South of 50 Parking Authority / Folsom
Ranch Financing Authority, the meeting was adjourned to the regular City Council meeting at

8:40 pm.

DRAI*T - Not ffidal anti/ approued b1t the Ci4t Coundl.
Page 29

06/14/2022 Item No.4.



Book 76 Page 255
Folsom City Council

May 24,2022

CITY MANAGER REPORTS:

City Manager Elaine Andersen announced that the City is conducting public outreach for input
regarding the future funding gap. She also mentioned the City's emergency order in effect for
high fire risk open spaces which are closed to the public; compost available to residents free of
charge and the opening of Aquatic Center summer season on May 28th.

CITY COUNCIL COMMENTS:

Vice Mayor Rosario Rodriguez spoke of the upcoming Chamber of Commerce forum regarding
business climate and other topics that directly impact our community. She sent condolences to
the families of the shooting in Uvalde, Texas.

Councilmember YK Chalamcherla stated that he is participating on the panel to hire a new
Cable Commission director. He commented regarding the recent Public Works Day and
thanked staff and spoke of attending the CAPS volunteer reception and thanked the volunteers.
Lastly, he commented regarding meeting with residents in American River Canyon area to
discuss water restrictions.

Councilmember Mike Kozlowski shared an update of topics at the recent SACOG board
meeting. He mentioned the NorCal Special Olympics held at Vista Del Lago High School

Councilmember Sarah Aquino requested the following agenda items come to future City Council
meetings which all relate to the Folsom Municipal Code: appeals, garage sale regulations and
the sidewalk vendor ordinance. She congratulated all the high school graduates.

Mayor Kerri Howell encouraged everyone to slow down and drive safely. She announced the
upcoming JPA Connector meeting Friday and gave a Regional Transit board update. She
wished everyone a great and safe Memorial Day weekend.

ADJOURNMENT

There being no further business to come before the Folsom City Council, Mayor Kerri Howell
adjourned the meeting at 8:53 pm.

SUBMITTED BY

Christa Freemantle, City Clerk
ATTEST:

Kerri Howell, Mayor

DRAFT - Not ffidal until approued fui the Citl Council.
Page 30

06/14/2022 Item No.4.



a. iiir,lir! r r i':.'i

Folsom City Council
Staff Re ort

RECOMMENDATION / CITY COUNCIL ACTION

Staff recommends that the Folsom City Council adopt Resolution No. 10862 - A Resolution

Calling and Giving Notice of the Holding of a General Municipal Election to be Held on

Tuesday, November 8,z}2z,Requesting the Board of Supervisors of the County of
Sacramento Consolidate the General Municipal Election with the Statewide General

Election, and Establishing Policies for Candidates' Statements.

BACKGROUND:

The term of office for three City Council Members (Council Members Sarah Aquino, Kerri

Howe||, and Mike Kozlowski) who were elected as at-large Councilmembers in 2018 will
expire in Novemb er 2022. The term of office for two City Council Members (Council

Members YK Chalamcherla and Rosario Rodriguez) who were elected as at-large

Councilmembers in2020 will expire in November 2024.

The City of Folsom has recently completed the transition to by-district elections, meaning

that Councilmembers will no longer be elected at-large by all City residents. Instead,

Councilmembers will be elected from five City Council Districts. In the November 2022

I

MEETING DATE: 0611412022

AGENDA SECTION: Consent Calendar

SUBJECT: Resolution No. 10862 - A Resolution Calling and Giving Notice

of the Holding of a General Municipal Election to be Held on

Tuesday, November 8,2022, Requesting the Board of
Supervisors of the County of Sacramento Consolidate the

General Municipal Election with the Statewide General Election,

and Establishing Policies for Candidates' Statements

FROM: City Clerk's Department

Page 31

06/14/2022 Item No.5.



election, Councilmembers will be elected from Districts 1, 3, and 5. In the November 2024

election, Councilmembers will be elected from Districts2 and 4.

Candidates.for City Council seats may file a candidate statement which is included in the

sample ballot mailed to voters. The candidate statement is a brief description of the
candidate, and Elections Code establishes certain legal parameters for the statement's form
and content.

POLICY/RULE:

Pursuant to Folsom Municipal Code Section 2.40.010, the date of the General Municipal
Election shall be the same date as the Statewide General Election in even numbered years.

Elections Code Section 10400 establishes that, whenever two elections are to be held on the

same day, they may be consolidated. In addition, Elections Code Section 10403 sets forth
the requirement that jurisdictions file a resolution requesting consolidation with the local

county board of supervisors.

Folsom Charter Section 2.01 establishes that City Council members shall be elected to four-
year, staggered terms.

Elections Code Section 13307 provides that the governing body of any local agency may

adopt regulations pertaining to the materials prepared by any candidate, including costs of the

candidate's statement. The candidate's statement fee, which is paid for by the candidates, is

set by the Sacramento County Registrar of Voters prior to the election, and County elections

staff have advised this fee will be set once the ballot printer provides printing costs.

F'INANCIAL IMPACT:

The Sacramento County Registrar of Voters has estimated the election cost at approximately

$51,000. Funds have been included in the proposed FY 2022123 budget to cover this cost.

ATTACHMENT

Resolution No. I 0862 - A Resolution Calling and Giving Notice of the Holding of a General

Municipal Election to be Held on Tuesday, November 8,2022, Requesting the Board of
Supervisors of the County of Sacramento Consolidate the General Municipal Election with
the Statewide General Election, and Establishing Policies for Candidates' Statements

Submitted,

2

Christa Freemantle, City Clerk

Page 32

06/14/2022 Item No.5.



RE,SOLUTION NO. 10862

A RESOLUTION CALLING AI\D GIVING NOTICE OF THE HOLDING OF A
GENERAL MUNICIPAL ELECTION TO BE HELD ON TUESDAY, NOVEMBER 8,2022,
REQUESTING THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE COUNTY OF SACRAMENTO

CONSOLIDATE THE GENERAL MUNICIPAL ELECTION WITH THE
STATEWIDE GENERAL ELECTION, AND

ESTABLISHING POLICIES FOR CANDIDATES' STATEMENTS

WHEREAS, an election will be held within the City of Folsom on November 8,2022,

for the purpose of electing three City Council members; and

WHEREAS, a Statewide General Election will be held within the County of Sacramento

on the same day; and

WHEREAS, Elections Code Section 10403 requires jurisdictions to file with the Board

of Supervisors, and a copy with the Registrar of Voters, a resolution requesting consolidation

with a statewide election; and

WHEREAS, Section 13307 of the Elections Code of the State of California provides that

the governing body of any local agency adopt regulations pertaining to materials prepared by any

candidate for a municipal election, including costs of the candidate's statement:

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED as follows:

SECTION 1. The Folsom City Council hereby requests that the Sauamento County

Board of Supervisors consolidate the November 8,2022, General Municipal Election with the

Statewide Election to be held on that same date; and

SECTION 2. Thateach candidate for elective office to be voted for at the General

Municipal Election to be held in the City of Folsom onNovember 8,2022, may prepare a

candidate's statement on an appropriate form provided by the City Clerk. The statement may

include the name, age, and occupation of the candidate and a brief description of not more than

two hundred (200) words of the candidate's qualifications, as expressed by the candidate. The

statement shall not include any party affiliation of the candidate, nor membership or activity in
partisan political organizations, The statements shall be filed in with the City Clerk at the time

ihe candidate's nomination papers are filed. The statements may be withdrawn, but not changed,

during the period for filing nomination papers and until 5:00 P.M. the next working day after the

close of the nomination period. The Sacramento County Voter Registration and Elections

Department will set the cost of the candidate's statement prior to the election; this fee will be

paid to the City of Folsom by the candidate at the time the nomination papers and candidate's

statement are filed; and

SECTION 3. That the City of Folsom agrees to reimburse the Registrar of Voters for

actual costs accrued for each election, such costs to be calculated by the proration method set

forth in the County's current Schedule of Fees and Charges'

Resolution No. 10862
Page I of2 Page 33

06/14/2022 Item No.5.



PASSED AND ADOPTED on this 14ft day of June 2022, by the following roll-call vote:

AYES: Councilmember(s):

NOES: Councilmember(s):

ABSENT: Councilmember(s):

ABSTAIN: Councilmember(s):

Kerri M. Howell, MAYOR

ATTEST:

Christa Freemantle, CITY CLERK

ResolutionNo. 10862
Page2 of2 Page 34

06/14/2022 Item No.5.



Folsom City Council
Staff rt

RECOMMENDATION / CITY COUNCIL ACTION

The Environmental and Water Resources Department recommends the City Council pass and

adopt Resolution No. 10863 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute a
Regional Water Authority Biological Opinion Services and Support Program Agreement and

Appropriation of Funds.

BACKGROUND / ISSUE

In September 2021, the Bureau of Reclamation (Reclamation) indicated its intent to engage in
the reinitiation of consultation on the coordinated long-term operation (ROC on LTO) of the

Central Valley Project (CVP) and the State Water Project, pursuant to the federal Endangered

Species Act (ESA). Under the ESA, reinitiation requires the federal agencies to take an updated

look at the current and best available science and develop a new Biological Opinion (BiOp)

based on the best available data. This effort will result in the development of an Environmental
Impact Statement (EIS) and Record of Decision (ROD) pursuant to the National
Environmental Policy Act (I.{EPA), as well as a Biological Assessment (BA) that will support

BiOps issued by the National Marine Fisheries Service (NMFS) and the U.S. Fish and Wildlife
Service (USFWS).

Reclamation has indicated that it will complete a "proposed action," the main project
description for evaluation in a BiOp, by the end of 2022. In order for Reclamation to meet this

deadline, a description of the proposed action will be needed by June 2022, which will then be

1

MEETING DATE: 6lt4l202l

AGENDA SECTION: Consent Calendar

SUBJECT: Resolution No. 10863 - A Resolution Authorizing the City
Manager to Execute a Regional Water Authority Biological
Opinion Services and Support Program Agreement and

Appropriation of Funds

FROM: Environmental and Water Resources Department

Page 35

06/14/2022 Item No.6.



technically evaluated until September 2022. Reclamation will then submit an initial draft
proposed action to NMFS and USFWS and will have some additional exchange of technical
information and refinement until December 2022.

The American River Division of the Central Valley Project (CVP) had actions that were
incorporated into the2019 BiOps and included important measures such as the Modified Flow
Management Standard and temperature management criteria. It is anticipated the federal
agencies will need to reevaluate all elements of the prior BiOps, including those on the
American River, as well as new or modified operations that were not included in the 2019
BiOps.

POLICY / RULE

In accordance with Chapter 236 of the Folsom Municigal Code. supplies, equipment, services,
and construction with a value of $66,141 or greater shall be awarded by City Council.

ANALYSIS

As part of the development of the BA and the Biops, the Water Infrastructure Improvements
for the Nation (WIIN) Act provides that water providers who contract for the delivery of water
with Reclamation be included in the development of a new BiOp. This engagement also
includes other enforceable arrangements, such as settlement agreements, with Reclamation for
the delivery of water. This includes:

. Having the opportunity to submit to and discuss information with U.S. Fish and
Wildlife Service and the National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration
(NOAA)for consideration in the development of a biological assessment

. Be informed of the schedule for preparing a biological assessment

. Be informed of the schedule for preparing a BiOp

. Receive a copy of any draft BiOp and have an opportunity to review and
comment on the BiOp

. Having the opportunity to confer with USFWS or NOAA and the applicant about
any reasonable and prudent alternatives (RPAs) prior to them being identified

. Be informed of how each component of the RPAs will contribute to conserving
species and the scientific justification supporting the RPAs. Further, be informed
as to why other proposed alternative actions that would have fewer adverse
economic and water supply effects were not adequate as an RPA.

It is anticipated that, given current stress CVP-wide due to extended drought conditions and a

changing climate, there will be enhanced pressure upon the American River Division, and
specifically Folsom Reservoir, to be akey source of waterto balance needs across an expansive
water supply system. Thus, it will be critical for water providers in the American River
Division to be alert to, and be ready to counter, any modifications that may occur in association
with the development of new BiOps that could cause water supply or fisheries-related impacts
to Folsom Reservoir or the American River. It will be critical for the region to have qualified

2 Page 36

06/14/2022 Item No.6.



technical resources with the capability to provide hydrologic modeling and temperattxe
modeling; analysis and synthesis of data; and qualified resources for timely and efficient
program management.

The most effective way to coordinate regionally on the BiOps is to pool resources in the
American River Division by having water providers who contract with Reclamation for the

delivery of water engage in a subscription program to fund technical and program management

support. The Biological Opinion Services and Support (BOSS) program would provide
funding to legal support staff, who would contract with needed technical resources. Further,

the agreement would fund the Regional Water Authority (RWA) Manager of Strategic Affairs
for program management of the BiOps for the region. Estimating nine program participants,

the total cost per entity would be $95,750.

The RWA and the Participants desire to work collaboratively to ensure that information
provided in support of the American River region's operations are carried out by
qualified technical support staff and that all interests from Participants are reflected

through a coordinated effort, called the Biological Opinion Services and Support

(BOSS) Program ("Program"). The Program will provide the following:

o A coordinated effort to timely respond to information requests from
Participants, Reclamation, or other interested parties.

o Consolidation and rectification of Participant comments on key documents

used to support the BiOps.
o Attendance al meetings related to the development of regulatory

documents to support the BiOps and forthcoming ROD.
o Preparation and facilitation ofcorrespondence to appropriate parties.

o Conducing modeling for hydrologic,habitat, and temperature conditions.

. Analysis and synthesis of technical work.
o Establishment and implementation of a water provider technical team

(WPTT) to review and discuss results from various analyses.

o Advocacy of American River water provider needs with Reclamation,

California Department of Water Resources, USFWS, NMFS, California
Department of Fish and Wildlife, or other entities to ensure local interests

are being represented

r Ensuring activities occurring outside of the watershed are considered and

impacts to the American River watershed are disclosed appropriately.

. Legal support services as needed.

FINANCIAL IMPACT

The City's cost share for the Biological Opinion Services and Support Program is $95,750.
This program was not anticipated to be included in the FY 2021-22 Water Operating Fund
Budget. Staff is requesting an appropriation of $95,750 to be appropriated in the Water

J Page 37

06/14/2022 Item No.6.



Operating Fund (Fund 520) in Fiscal Year 2021-22 for participation in this progfttm. Funds are

available in the Water Operating Fund for this appropriation.

ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW

Execution of this agreement is not considered a project and therefore not subject to CEQA

ATT

1. Resolution No. 10863 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute a
Regional Water Authority Biological Opinion Services and Support Program
Agreement and Appropriation of Funds

2. Regional Water Authority Biological Opinion Services and Support Program
Agreement

3. Common Interest and Cost-Share Agreement for Coordinated Participation:
Reconsultation on the Biological Opinion for the Central Valley Project and Related
Matters

Submitted,

Marcus Yasutake, Director
ENVIRONMENTAL AND WATER RESOURCES DEPARTMENT

4
Page 38

06/14/2022 Item No.6.



ATTACHMENT 1

Page 39

06/14/2022 Item No.6.



RESOLUTION NO. 10863

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE A
REGIONAL WATER AUTHORITY BIOLOGICAL OPINION SERVICES AND

SUPPORT PROGRAM AGREEMENT AND APPROPRIATION OF FUNDS

WHEREAS, the City is part of the American River Division of the Central Valley Project
(CVP) and holds a contract for the delivery of water from the CVP; and

WIIEREAS, the American fuver CVP Contractors are public water agencies who desire

to cooperate, coordinate efforts and share costs in order to collectively participate 1n th9
reconsultation of the Biological Opinion for the Coordinated Long-term Operation of the Central
Valley Project and the State Water Project; and

WHEREAS' the Regional Water Authority has established the Biological Opinion
Services and Support (BOSS) Program pursuant to which individual RWA members can agree to
pay certain sumi in return for RWA providing certain project services; and

WHEREAS, an additional appropriation of funds in the amount of $95,750 is needed for
this agreement and sufficient funds are available in the Water Operating Fund (Fund 520) in Fiscal

Y en 2021 -22 for this appropriation; and

WHEREAS, the agreement will be in a form acceptable to the City Attorney:

NOW, THEREFORE' BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Folsom
Authorizes the City Manager City Manager to Execute a Regional Water Authqrllf Biological
Opinion Services ana Suppbrt Program Agreement for a not to exceed fee of $95,750.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Finance Director is authorized to appropriate

$95,750 for this agreement. The additional appropriation will be from the Water Operating Fund

(Fund 520) inthe amount of $95,750.

pASSED AND ADOPTED this 14th day of June 2022,by the following roll-call vote:

AYES: Councilmember(s)

NOES: Councilmember(s):

ABSENT: Councilmember(s)

ABSTAIN: Councilmember(s):

ATTEST:

Resolution No. 10863

Page I of2

Kerri M. Howell, MAYOR

Page 40

06/14/2022 Item No.6.



Christa Freemantle, CITY CLERK

Resolution No. 10863

Page2 of2 Page 41

06/14/2022 Item No.6.



ATTACHMENT 2

Page 42

06/14/2022 Item No.6.



REGIONAL WATER AUTHORITY
PROGRAM AGREEMENT

BIOLOGICAL OPIONION SERVICES AND SUPPORT

This Agreement is made and entered into as of the 

-th 
day of 20-, by and

between the Regional Water Authority ("RWA"), a joint exercise of powers authority formed

under California Government Code section 6500, and following, and the Members and Contracting

Entities of RWA listed in Exhibit 1 to this Agreement, upon their execution of this Agreement
(who are collectively referred to in this Agreement as "Participants"), to provide for carrying out

a project or program that is within the authorized purposes of RWA, and sharing in the cost and

benefits by the Participants.

RECITALS

A. RWA is a joint powers authority, formed to serve and represent regional water supply

interests and to assist its members in protecting and enhancing the reliability, availability,
affordability and quality of water resources.

B. The joint powers agreement ("RWA JPA") pursuant to which RWA was formed and

operates, and as was amended on October 8,2013, authorizes RWA to enter into a "Project or
Program Agreement," which is defined in the RWA JPA as an agreement between RWA and two

or more of its Members or Contracting Entities to provide for carrying out a project or program

that is within the authorized purposes of RWA and sharing in the cost and benefits by the parties

to the Project or Program Agreement.

C. Article 21 of the RWA JPA states: "The Regional Authority's projects are intended to

facilitate and coordinate the development, design, construction, rehabilitation, acquisition or
financing of water-related facilities (including sharing in the cost of federal, State or local projects)

on behalf of Members and/or Contracting Entities. The Regional Authority may undertake the

development, design, construction, rehabilitation, acquisition or funding of all or any portion of
such projects on behalf of Members andlor Contracting Entities in the manner and to the extent

authorized by such Members and/or Contracting Entities as provided in this Agreement, but shall

not accomplish these functions, nor acquire or own water-related facilities in its ownname."

D. Article 22 of the RWA JPA states: "Prior to undertaking a project or program, the

Members andlor Contracting Entities who elect to participate in a project or program shall enter

into a Project or Program Agreement. Thereafter, all assets, benefits and obligations attributable

to the project shall be assets, benefits and obligations ofthose Members and/or Contracting Entities
that have entered into the Project or Program Agreement. Any debts, liabilities, obligations or
indebtedness incurred by the Regional Authority in regard to a particular project or program,

including startup costs advanced by the Regional Authority, shall be obligations of the

participating Members and/or Contracting Entities, and shall not be the debts, liabilities,
obligations and indebtedness of those Members and/or Contracting Entities who have not executed

the Project or Program Agreement."

Page 43

06/14/2022 Item No.6.



E. RWA and the Participants desire to carry out a program as more fully described below
and share in the costs and benefits of the program, as a Project or Program Agreement as provided

for in Articles 2l and22 of the RWA JPA.

F. The Bureau of Reclamation, responsible for the operation of Central Valley Project

(CVP) facilities, such as Folsom Reservoir on the American River, has started the reinitiation of
consultation on the coordinate long-term operation (ROC on LTO) of the CVP and the State Water

Project, pursuant to the federal Endangered Species Act. This effort will result in the development

of an Environmental Impact Statement (EIS) and Record of Decision (ROD) pursuant to the

National Environmental Policy Act (NEPA), as well as a Biological Assessment (BA) that will
support Biological Opinions (BiOps) issued by the National Marine Fisheries Service (NMFS) and

the U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service.

G. As part of the development of the BA and the BiOps, the Water Infrastructure

Improvements for the Nation (WIIN) Act provides that water providers who contract for the

delivery of water with Reclamation be included in the development of a new BiOp. This
engagement also includes other enforceable arrangements, such as settlement agreements, with
Reclamation for the delivery of water. This includes:

Having the opportunity to submit to and discuss information with U.S. Fish and Wildlife
Service (USFWS) and the National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration (NOAA)
for consideration in the development of a biological assessment;

Be informed of the schedule for preparing a biological assessment;

Be informed of the schedule for preparing a BiOp;
Receive a copy of any draft BiOp and have an opportunity to review and

comment on the BiOp;
Having the opportunity to confer with USFWS or NOAA and the applicant about any

reasonable and prudent alternatives (RPAs) prior to them being identified; and,

Be informed of how each component of the RPAs will contribute to conserving
species and the scientific justification supporting the RPAs. Further, be informed
as to why other proposed alternative actions that would have fewer adverse

economic and water supply effects were not adequate as an RPA.

H. Participants to this Program all contract or have agreements for the delivery of water

with Reclamation and have a vested need to ensure that their interests are protected throughout the

BiOp development process.

In consideration of the promises, terms, conditions and covenants contained herein, the

parties to this Agreement hereby agree as follows:

1. Recitals Incorporated. The foregoing recitals are hereby incorporated byreference.

2. Defined Terms. Terms defined in the RWA JPA will have the same meaning in this

Agreement.

o

a

o

a

O

o

Page 44

06/14/2022 Item No.6.



3. Description of the Program. The RWA and the Participants desire to work
collaboratively to ensure that information provided in support of the American River region's

operations are carried out by qualified technical support staff and that all interests from

Participants are reflected through a coordinated effort, called the Biological Opinion Services

and Support (BOSS) Program ("Program"). The Program will provide the following:

o A coordinated effort to timely respond to information requests from Participants,

Reclamation, or other interested parties.

o Consolidation and rectification of Participant comments on key documents used

to support the BiOps, including: white papers, technical documentation,

development of alternatives, development of a Proposed Action (PA) for the BA,
coordination of EIS scoping comments, Draft and Final EIS comments, the Draft
Biops, etc.

o Attendance at meetings related to the development of regulatory documents to

support the BiOps and forthcoming ROD.
o Preparation and facilitation ofcorrespondence to appropriate parties.

o Conducing modeling for hydrologic,habitat, and temperature conditions.

. Analysis and synthesis of technical work.
o Establishment and implementation of a water provider technical team (WPTT) to

review and discuss results from various analyses.

. Coordination between the WPTT and the Water Forum to disseminate

information, as needed, and ensure a common understanding of any necessary

information.
o Advocacy of American River water provider needs with Reclamation, California

Department of Water Resources, USFWS, NMFS, California Department of Fish

and Wildlife, or other entities to ensure local interests are being represented.

o Ensuring activities occurring outside of the watershed, such as those in-Delta or

in other CVP divisions, are considered and impacts to the American River

watershed are disclosed appropriately.
. Legal support services as needed.

4. Program Committee. The Participants hereby form a Program Committee consisting

of one representative (and altemates) designated by each Participant. The Program Committee will
meet as necessary from time to time to administer and implement this Agreement on behalf ofthe
Participants. The Program Committee will appoint a Chair and Vice-Chair from among its

members. A majority of the total members of the Program Committee will constitute a quonrm.

Each member of the Program Committee will have one vote, either by its representative or an

alternate. To proceed with a vote to take action, a quorum must be present at a meeting, with a
majority of the number present required for an affirmative vote. In no event shall the composition
of the Program Committee be such that the membership of the Program Committee constitutes a

quonrm of any RWA legislative body.

5. Program Staffing and Resources. RWA will utilize existing staff to implement the

Page 45

06/14/2022 Item No.6.



program, primarily the Manager of Strategic Affairs.

6. Work Products. Participants shall have full access to the work products of the
Program, which will be provided upon execution of each member agency of a nondisclosure
agreement.

7. Sharing in Program Costs and Benefits. The assessments for each Participant are

further described and attached hereto as Exhibit 2 ("Financing Plan"). Each of the Participants
shall pay the assessments set forth on Exhibit 2 atthe time of entering the Program and pay such

other assessments as are adopted by the Program Committee. In accordance with the provisions of
Articles 2l and22 of the RWA JPA, any debts, liabilities, obligations or indebtednessincurred by
RWA in regard to the Program will be the obligations of the Participants, and will not be the debts,

liabilities, obligations and indebtedness of those Members andlor Contracting Entities who have

not executed this Agreement. The total cost for the Program is estimated as $861,750. The
breakdown of these costs is to be as follows:

Approximately 45Yo of RWA staff time over the next year with overhead and expenses,

beginning at the time of execution of this Agreement: $141,750.
Costs for technical consultants, with contracts to be executed by Bartkiewicz, Kronick,
and Shanahan and Placer County Water Agency General Counsel: $700,000.
Legal support services provided by Bartkiewicz, Kronick, and Shanahan for needed

legal review and support: $20,000.

Future costs and allocations will bedetermined through a Work Plan approved by the Program
Committee.

8. Role of RWA. The RWA will (a) ensure that the interests of Members and Contracting
Entities of RWA who do not participate in this Program are not adversely affected in performing
this Agreement, (b) provide information to the Participants on the status of implementation of the
Program, (c) assist the Program Committee in carrying out its activities under this Agreement,
(d) secure consultant support services through a competitive selection process as identified in
RWA Policy 300.2, where applicable; and (e) manage consultant support services in completion
of the Program.

9. Authorization to Proceed with the Program. The Biological Opinion Support and

Services Program is authorized to proceed upon the commitment of $850,000 to fund staff and

technical consulting work. Upon execution of this Agreement, the Participants agree to fund their
portion of the Program costs in an amount and manner as described in Exhibit 3 ("Financing Plan")
to this Agreement.

10. Term. This Agreement will remain in effect for so long as any obligations under this
Agreement and/or obligations from other sources of funding secured remain outstanding.

11. Withdrawal. A Participant may withdraw from this Agreement without requiring
termination of this Agreement, effective upon ninety days' notice to RWA and the other Participants,

a

a

o

Page 46

06/14/2022 Item No.6.



provided that, the withdrawing Participant will remain responsible for any indebtedness incuned by
the Program and allocated to the Participant under this Agreement prior to the effective date of
withdrawal. If any surplus funds remain after the withdrawing Participant has met all of its financial
obligations under this Agreement, then such funds will be returned to the withdrawing Participant in
proportion to the total contribution made by each Participant.

12. Amendments. This Agreement maybe amended from time to time with the approval

of all current Participants and RWA.

13. Unspent Funds. In the event that RWA has remaining funds left at the conclusion of
the work completed through agreements with BKS and Placer County Water Agency, then those

funds shall be distributed back equally to BOSS Participants.

14. Privileges and Immunities. All of the privileges and immunities from liability;
exemptions from laws, ordinances and rules; and all pension, relief, disability, worker's
compensation and other benefits that apply to the activity of officers, agents or employees of RWA
or the Participants when performing their respective functions for those agencies will, to the extent
permitted by law, apply to them to the same degree and extent while engaged in the performance

of any of the functions and other duties under this Agreement. It is further understood and agreed

by RWA and the Participants that, notwithstanding anything contained herein, the employees of
RWA and of each Participant shall continue to be entirely and exclusively under the direction,
supervision and control of the employing party.

15. No Third-Party Beneficiary. RWA and the Participants understand and agree that

this Agreement creates rights and obligations solely between RWA and the Participants and is not
intended to benefit any other party. No provision of this Agreement shall in any way inure to the

benefit of any third person so as to constitute any such third person as a third-party beneficiary of
this Agreement or any of its items of conditions, or otherwise give rise to any cause of action in
any person not aparty hereto.

16. Liabilities. With respect to this Agreement, RWA and the Participants expressly agree

that the debts, liabilities and obligations of RWA and of each Participant shall remain the debts,

liabilities and obligations of that party alone and shall not be the debts, liabilities and obligations
of any other party to this Agreement, except as may be otherwise set forth herein or in an

amendment to this Agreement.

L7. Audits and Accounting. A11 funds provided under this Agreement shall be separately

accounted for and maintained, with books and records of such funding open to inspection by the

Participants. Funding under this Agreement shall be subject to and consistent with the audit and

accounting procedures set forth in Articles 27 and 28 of the RWA JPA.

18. General Provisions. Any notice to be given under this Agreement shall be madeby:
(a) depositing in any United States Post Office, postage prepaid, and shall be deemed received at

the expiration of 72 hours after its deposit; (b) transmission by facsimile copy; (c) transmission by
electronic mail; or (d) personal delivery. This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State

of California. The contact information for each Participant with respect to this section of the

Page 47

06/14/2022 Item No.6.



Agreement is set forth in Exhibit 3 ("Notice Information"). This Agreement may be executed by
the parties in counterpart and by facsimile or PDF signatures, each of which when executed and

delivered shall be an original and all of which together will constitute one and the same document.

19. Signatories' Authority. The signatories to this Agreement represent that they have

authority to execute this Agreement and to bind the Participant on whose behalf they executeit.

The foregoing Biological Opinion Services and Support Agreement is hereby agreed to by
RWA and the Participants.

Dated: 2022

Marcus Yasutake
City of Folsom

Jim Peifer
Executive Director
Regional Water Authority

Dan York
Board Chair
Regional Water Authority

Andy Fecko
Placer County Water Agency

Michael Peterson
Sacramento County Water Agency

Ansel Lundberg
Sacramento Municipal Utility District

Dan York
Sacramento Suburban Water District

Sean Bigley
City of Roseville

Bill Busath
City of Sacramento

Jim Abercrombie
El Dorado Irrigation District

Ken Payne
El Dorado Water Agency

Page 48

06/14/2022 Item No.6.



List of Aqreement Exhibits

Exhibit 1 - Program Participants
Exhibit 2 - Financing Plan
Exhibit 3 - Notice Information

Page 49

06/14/2022 Item No.6.



EXHIBIT 1

PROGRAM PARTICIPANTS

REGIONAL WATER AUTHORITY

BIOLOGICAL OPINION SERVICES AND SUPPORT PROGRAM

Agency (Proposed)

City of Folsom
City of Roseville
City of Sacramento
El Dorado Irrigation District
El Dorado Water Agency
Placer County Water Agency
Sacramento County Water Agency
Sacramento Municipal Utility District
Sacramento Suburban Water District

Page 50

06/14/2022 Item No.6.



EXHIBIT 2

FINANCING PLAN

REGIONAL WATER AUTHORITY

BIOLOGICAL OPINION SERVICES AND SUPPORT PROGRAM

The fee for each Participant is shown in the table below. A Participant's fee will not be increased

without the approval of that Participant.

Proposed Fee Table

Agency Total Fee

City of Folsom $95,750

City of Roseville $95,750

City of Sacramento $95,750

El Dorado Irigation District $95,750

El Dorado Water Agency $95,750

Placer County Water Agency $95,750

Sacramento County Water Agency $95,750

Sacramento Municipal Utility District $95,750

Sacramento Suburban Water District $95,750

Total $861,750

Page 51

06/14/2022 Item No.6.



EXHIBIT 3

NOTICE INFORMATION

REGIONAL WATER AUTHORITY

BIOLOGICAL OPINION SERVICES AND SUPPORT PROGRAM

City of Folsom
Attn: Marcus Yasutake
50 Natoma Street
Folsom, CA 95630
Phone: (916) 461-6161
Email : mvasutake@folsom.ca.us

City of Roseville
Attn: Sean Bigley
2005 Hilltop Circle
Roseville, CA95747
Phone: (916)774-5513
Email: ca.us

City of Sacramento
Attn: Bill Busath
1395 35th Avenue
Sacramento, CA 95822
Phone: (916) 808-1434
Email : bbusath@citvofsacramento.org

El Dorado Irrigation District
Attn: Jim Abercrombie
280 Mosquito Road
Placerville, CA 95667
Phone: (530)622-4513
Email : j imabercrombie@eid.org

El Dorado Water Agency
Attn: Ken Payne
4330 Golden Center Drive, Suite C
Placerville, CA 95667
Phone: (530) 672-6721
Email: ken.payne@edcgov.us

Page 52

06/14/2022 Item No.6.



Placer County Water Agency
Attn: Andy Fecko
144 FergusonRoad
Auburn, CA 95603
Phone: (530)823-4965
Email : afecko@pcwa.net

Sacramento County Water Agency
Attn: Kerry Schmitz
827 7th Street, Room 301

Sacramento, CA 95814
Phone: (916)874-4681
Email: schmitzk@SacCountv.NET

Sacramento Suburban Water District
Attn: Dan York
3701 Marconi #100
Sacramento, CA 95821
Phone: (916) 679-3973
Email: dvork@sswd.org

Sacramento Municipal Utility District
Attn: Ansel Lundberg
6301 S Street
Mail Stop A-404
Sacramento, CA 95817 -1899
Phone: (916)732-6919
Email : ansel.lundberg@smud. ore

Regional Water Authority
Attn: James Peifer
5620 Birdcage Street, Suite 180

citrus Heights, cA 95610
Phone: (916) 967-7692
Email : i peifer@rwah2o. org

Page 53

06/14/2022 Item No.6.



ATTACHMENT 3

Page 54

06/14/2022 Item No.6.



COMMON INTEREST and COST-SHARE AGREEMENT

for COORDINATED PARTICIPATION :

RECONSULTATION ON THE BIOLOGICAL OPINION FOR THE

CENTRAL VALLEY PROJECT AIID RELATED MATTERS

This Common Interest and Cost-Share Agreement (Agreement) is entered into by and

among the City of Folsom, City of Roseville, City of Sacramento, El Dorado Inigation

District, El Dorado Water Agency, Placer County Water Agency, Regional Water Authority,

Sacramento County Water Agency, Sacramento Suburban Water District, and Sacramento

Municipal Utilities District and made effective on the date the last of the aforementioned

parties signs this Agreement.

RECITALS

A. The City of Folsom, City of Roseville, City of Sacramento, El Dorado

Irrigation District, El Dorado Water Agency, Placer County Water Agency, Sacramento

County Water Agency, Sacramento Suburban Water District, and the Sacramento Municipal

Utilities District (collectively the "American River CVP Contractors") are public agencies who

hold contrtacts for the delivery of water from the Central Valley Project (CVP) and who desire

to cooperate, coordinate efforts and share costs in order to collectively participate in the

reconsultation of the Biological Opinion for the Coordinated Long-term Operation of the

Central Valley Project and the State Water Project under Section 7 of the Endangered Species

Act (BiOp). The Parties desire to provide the technical basis to enable their counsel to provide

informed legal advice to the respective Parties and to enable the Parties to identify and pursue

appropriate approaches to protect American River water supplies and interests of the American

River CVP Contractors, by jointly pursuing technical work to, among other things, provide

comments as part of the BiOp reconsultation and otherwise participate in the BiOp

reconsultation process. The Parties share a common interest in achieving all of the above.

B. The Regional Water Authority ("RWA") is a joint powers authority formed for

the purposes, among others, of serving and representing American River regional water supply

interests in protecting and enhancing the reliability, availability, affordability, and quality of

water resources in the American River region.

C. Through this Agreement, the American River CVP Contractors and RWA

desire to: (i) acknowledge and affirm their common interest to cooperate and coordinate efforts

I

Page 55

06/14/2022 Item No.6.



to protect American River water supplies and other common interests as part of the BiOp

reconsultation process; (ii) establish cost-sharing arrangements for related consultant work and

expenses; and (iii) provide for the management of the cooperative and coordinated effort

contemplated by this Agreement.

D. The American River CVP Contractors and RWA desire, based on their

common interests, to cooperate, coordinate, and share information related to the BiOp

reconsultation process, while continuing to preserve, to the fullest extent possible, the

protections of the attorney-client privilege, work product privilege, common-interest doctrine,

deliberative process privilege, executive privilege, or any other privilege or protection existing

under state or federal law.

AGREEMENT

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the above recitals, and the mutual covenants

and conditions contained herein, the American River CVP Contractors and RWA agree as

follows:

1. Manaeement of Coordinated Effort. The American River CVP Contractors desire to

have RWA serve as the project manager for this coordinated effort. RWA agrees to act as the

project manager for this coordinated effort, provided that RWA is reimbursed for its cost in

acting as project manager. All costs for RWA's role as project manager will be funded through

RWA's Biological Opinion Services and Support (BOSS) Program. As provided in Paragraph

2(a), allAmerican River CVP Contractors participating in this coordinated effort must also be

a party to Biological Opinion Services and Support (BOSS) Program Agreement.

2. Cost-Sharins.

(a) Cost Sharing for RWA's Project Management Services. RWA has established

the Biological Opinion Services and Support (BOSS) Program pursuant to which individual

RWA members can agree to pay certain sums in return for RWA providing certain project

services. At all times that an American River CVP Contractor is participating in the

coordinated efforts contemplated by this Agreement, that American River CVP Contractor

shall also be a party to the Biological Opinion Services and Support (BOSS) Program

Agreement. In the event an American River CVP Contractor fails or ceases to be a party to the

Biological Opinion Services and Support (BOSS) Program Agreement, that American River

-2-

Page 56

06/14/2022 Item No.6.



CVP Contractor will be deemed to have withdrawn from this Agreement pursuant to Paragraph

5.

(b) Cost Sharing for Consultant Work. The American River CVP Contractors

desire to share in the costs of consultant work that will be required as part of the Parties'

activities related to the BiOp reconsultation process. The total obligation of the American

River CVP Contractors to fund the consultants' work on matters contemplated by this

Agreement shall not exceed $IAMOIJNT] without written amendment to this Agreement. The

American River CVP Contractors' respective percentage shares of the costs and fees for

consultant work under this Agreement are set forth in Exhibit A to this Agreement. RWA

shall not be responsible for any consultant costs under this Agreement.

3. Steering Committee: Retention and Direction of Consultants.

(a) Steering Committee. The American River CVP Contractors will each

appoint a representative to a Steering Committee, which will make decisions for the American

River CVP Contractors concerning work by consultants under this Agreement and provide

direction to RWA in managing the coordinated effort. The Steering Committee will also make

decisions on matters related to executing strategy and policy matters. The Steering Committee

generally will meet at least once a month during this Agreement's term. Unless specifically

provided otherwise herein, an affirmative vote by 213 of all members of the Steering Committee

shall be required for all decisions contemplated by this Agreement. The Steering Committee

may vote by e-mail provided that all Steering Committee members are included in the

circulation list for those e-mails.

(b) Retention. Direction and Compensation of Consultants. The American River

CVP Contractors will jointly authorize one or more of the American River CVP Contractors'

legal counsel to retain consultants to perform scopes of work as approved by the Steering

Committee, subject to applicable law for the confidentiality and protection of the work

performed and work products produced by consultants. Retention of a consultant under this

Agreement by an American River CVP Contractor or its counsel will not prevent that

consultant from performing work for another American River CVP Contractor or RWA on

matters not included in scopes of work authorized under this Agreement. The American River

CVP Contractors, and not their legal counsel, collectively will be responsible for compensating

-J-

Page 57

06/14/2022 Item No.6.



consultants retained under this Agreement according to their respective shares as set forth in

Exhibit A.

(c) Management of Consultants' Work. RWA will manage all work by consultants

under the direction of the Steering Commiffee. RWA will ensure that its communications with

consultants comply with this Agreement's confidentiality arrangements. Provided that RWA's

manager of the Biological Opinion Services and Support (BOSS) Program and all American

River CVP Contractors' legal counsel are included on the relevant communications, Steering

Committee members may have direct contact with consultants and consultants may circulate

information and drafts directly to Steering Committee members.

4. Cost-Sharing Upon Addition of Parties. A new American River CVP Contractor may

be added to this Agreement with: (i) approval by all members of the Steering Committee, and

(ii) a written commitment by the new American River CVP Contractor to pay its

proportionate share of all of the consultants' costs and fees incurred for the applicable scope

or scopes of work by consultants, including work already performed under the applicable

scope or scopes of work. Upon the addition of a new American River CVP Contractor to the

Agreement, that new American River CVP Contractor's share, and the shares of the pre-

existing American River CVP Contractors, of any costs and fees incurred in relation to the

applicable scope or scopes of work will be as determined by the Steering Committee prior to

the new American River CVP Contractor's admission into this Agreement'

5. Withdrawal. Removal. and Cost-Sharing.

(a) Withdrawal. Any American River CVP Contractor may withdraw from this

Agreement at any time; provided, however, in the event that an American River CVP

Contractor withdraws after the Steering Committee has authorized consultants to proceed

with certain scopes of work and related task orders, the withdrawing American River CVP

Contractor shall remain obligated for payment of its proportionate share of the costs for such

authorized work completed as of the date of the American River CVP Contractor's

withdrawal. Written notice of withdrawal shall be sent to all members of the Steering

Commiffee. A withdrawing American River CVP Contractor shall not receive any Joint

Defense Materials (as defined in Section 8) produced after the date of its written notice of

withdrawal, whether or not those Joint Defense Materials reflect consultant work performed

before the date of that written notice of withdrawal.

-4-

Page 58

06/14/2022 Item No.6.



(b) Removal. An American River CVP Contractor may be removed from this

Agreement at any time by a three-fourths (3/a) vote of the remaining American River CVP

Contractors; provided, however, in the event that an American River CVP Contractor is

removed from this Agreement after the Steering Committee has authorized consultants to

proceed with certain scopes of work and related task orders, the removed American River

CVP Contractor shall remain obligated for payment of its proportionate share of the costs for

such authorized work completed as of the date of the American River CVP Contractor's

removal. A removed American River CVP Contractor shall not receive any Joint Defense

Materials (as defined in Section 8) produced after the date of its removal, whether or not

those Joint Defense Materials reflect consultant work performed before the date of that

removal.

6. Term. This Agreement shall remain in effect until either of the following events

occurs: (a) a majority of the Parties withdraw from the Agreement; or (b) the Steering

Committee votes, by a two-thirds majority, to terminate this Agreement.

7. Billing Procedures. For all approved scopes of work by consultants under this

Agreement, RWA will have the responsibility for collecting and managing each American

River CVP Contractor's contribution of funds to pay for that work; processing invoices

submiffed by the consultants pursuant to the approved scopes of work and budgets; preparing

invoices to the American River CVP Contractors based on the shares specified in Exhibit A

or any future cost-sharing allocation approved by the American River CVP Contractors; and

for maintaining an accurate accounting of this administration of funds. The American River

CVP Contractors will make payments on invoices presented by RWA within 30 days of the

date of the specific invoice.

8. PrivilegedandConfidentialCommunications.

(a) For purposes of this Agreement, "Joint Defense Materials" includes, but is

not limited to, all communications (including communications related to the above-

referenced proceedings made prior to the execution of this Agreement), factual materials,

mental impressions, legal analyses, theories or strategies, memoranda, reports, notes, emails

or any other communications or documents that are protected from disclosure by the

attorney-client privilege, work product privilege, deliberative process privilege, executive

privilege, common-interest doctrine joint prosecution/defense doctrine, privileges regarding

-5-

Page 59

06/14/2022 Item No.6.



mediation or settlement communications, or any other privilege or protection existing under

state or federal law, and that are exchanged among the American River CVP Contractors,

RWA, and/or their respective counsel in connection with their cooperative efforts related to

the maffers described in this Agreement's recitals.

(b) The American River CVP Contractors and RWA will maintain as confidential

all Joint Defense Materials. Disclosure of Joint Defense Materials shall be limited to the

American River CVP Contractors and their employees and contractors as well as any counsel

and consultants retained by the American River CVP Contractors, or on behalf of the

American River CVP Contractors, for the purpose of maintaining a joint defense with respect

to the matters described in this Agreement's recitals. RWA, as a public entity separate from

its members, shall maintain as confidential all Joint Defense Materials within RWA as a

separate public entity. Joint Defense Materials shall not be made available to RWA members

that are not party to this Agreement.

(c) Any Joint Defense Materials shared or transmitted by or between American

River CVP Contractors andlor RWA should be clearly designated with the label

"CONFIDENTIAL: JOINT DEFENSE MATERIALS" or a substantially similar label

referencing "joint defense." However, the failure to include such designation shall not

preclude such materials from being afforded the protections of this Agreement, and shall not

be construed to constitute a waiver of any privilege or other protection.

(d) Each American River CVP Contractor and RWA shall take all appropriate

measures to ensure that any person who is granted access to Joint Defense Materials is

familiar with the terms of this Agreement and complies with those terms.

(e) Except where required by the order of a court of competent jurisdiction, or by

the prior written consent of the remaining American River CVP Contractors, neither an

American River CVP Contractor nor RWA will disclose to non-Parties any Joint Defense

Materials that it has received from another American River CVP Contractor or RWA.

(0 Each American River CVP Contractor and/or RWA shall notify the party that

generated any Joint Defense Materials and all remaining American River CVP Contractors of

any request to disclose the Joint Defense Materials to any non-Party (whether pursuant to the

California Public Records Act or other authority), or of any proceeding before any court,

-6-

Page 60

06/14/2022 Item No.6.



administrative agency, or tribunal to compel the disclosure of such Joint Defense Materials,

as soon as practicable after receipt of such request or the initiation of such proceeding. If an

American River CVP Contractor or RWA becomes subject to any judicial or administrative

order to compel release of Joint Defense Materials, that American River CVP Contractor or

RWA shall promptly notifu the party that generated the materials and all remaining American

River CVP Contractors. The purpose of these notifications is to provide the party that

generated the Joint Defense Materials or any remaining American River CVP Contractor an

opportunity to take such steps as they may deem appropriate to protect the Joint Defense

Materials.

(g) The sharing of Joint Defense Materials among the American River CVP

Contractors and/or RWA is not intended to and will not constitute a waiver of any privilege

or other protection of confidentiality, including but not limited to the attorney-client

privilege, work product privilege, common-interest doctrine, deliberative process privilege,

executive privilege, privileges relating to mediation or settlement communications, or any

other privilege or protection existing under state or federal law.

(h) Execution of this Agreement constitutes the mutual agreement of the

American River CVP Contractors and RWA that any sharing of Joint Defense Materials

among themselves is, pursuant to Evidence Code section9l2, subdivision (d), and other

applicable authorities, reasonably necessary for the accomplishment of the American River

CVP Contractors' and RWA's common purposes as described in this Agreement. Any

sharing of Joint Defense Materials among the American River CVP Contractors and/or RWA

is in reliance on this Agreement and the protections that arise from the parties' common

interests related to the matters described in Recital B to this Agreement.

(i) If an American River CVP Contractor or RWA withdraws from this

Agreement, the provisions of this Agreement shall continue to apply to the Joint Defense

Materials that the party received or sent during the time period when that party was a party to

this Agreement, including without limitation the duty to maintain those materials'

confidentiality under Section 8(b).

C) If this Agreement is terminated for any reason, the Joint Defense Materials

shared pursuant to this Agreement shall remain subject to all privileges cited herein and any

other applicable confidentiality protections.

1

Page 61

06/14/2022 Item No.6.



9. Attorney-Client Relatiotshtps. The American River CVP Contractors and RWA are

represented by their respective legal counsel in connection with the above-referenced

proceedings. A party's legal counsel will not have an attorney-client relationship with any

other party to this Agreement as a result of that legal counsel's participation in discussions

and actions related to the parties' cooperative efforts on the above-described proceedings.

Similarly, no legal counsel will have a duty of loyalty or confidentiality to any other

American River CVP Contractor or RWA other than that legal counsel's specific client(s),

and consequently, no American River CVP Contractor may seek to disqualify the legal

counsel for another American River CVP Contractor as a result of the legal counsel's

participation in discussions and actions related to the parties' cooperative efforts under this

Agreement.

10. Representations. The individuals signing this Agreement in a representative capacity

warrant that they have the authority to do so on behalf of the entity or entities they represent,

and further agree that as representatives ofthe entity or entities that they respectively

represent, they themselves are bound by all terms of this Agreement.

1 1. Entire Agreement. This Agreement and any later-approved amendments or exhibits

constitute the entire agreement of the parties with respect to the subject matter of this

Agreement and supersede any prior oral or written agreement, understanding, or

representation relating to the subject matter of this Agreement.

12. Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in counterparts, each of which shall

be deemed an original irrespective of the date of the execution, and said executed

counterparts shall together constitute one and the same Agreement. Further, facsimile or

.PDF copies of signatures shall be as effective as original signatures for evidencing execution

of this Agreement. To ensure that each party has a full copy of this Agreement, upon a

party's initial execution of this Agreement, that pafi shall transmit a copy of its signature to

its legal counsel, who shall transmit copies of that copy to all other legal counsel under this

Agreement.

1 3. Notices. All notices and other communications required to be given to a party under

the terms of this Agreement (a) shall be in writing; (b) shall be personally delivered, sent via

first class mail, or transmitted by facsimile or email with confirmation of receipt; and (c)

shall be directed to such party at the address, facsimile number or email address specified

8-

Page 62

06/14/2022 Item No.6.



below, or at such other address, facsimile number or email address as such party may

hereafter designate by notiee in acoordance with this Section.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have executed this Common Interest and Cost-

Share Agreement for Coordinated Participation: Reconsultation on Biological Opinion for the

Central Valley Project and Related Matters.

EXHIBT A

Cost

Percent\American River CVP Contn@ \
L7,LLA/O\City of Folsom |t \

lK.11%City of Roseville

W.1%City of Sacramento Lv
LL.LIOAEl Dorado lrrigation District tr\ \,
IL.LLo/oEl Dorado Water Agecny \\- \
11-.Ll/oPlacerCountywat@. \ ^1J\ 

!
Sacramentocou@aterac\$ V ! LL,LL%

tL,LL%sacramento suburblSler oj@l- \ ISa Lt.tto/6

-9-

Page 63

06/14/2022 Item No.6.



This page is intentionally left blank.

Page 64

06/14/2022 Item No.6.



i l;-i,'-rtll:\'f
ai.::;tr,!1.(a .. ;.r,t. 

'j

Folsom City Council
Staff R ort

RECOMMENDATION / CITY COUNCIL ACTION

The Environmental and Water Resources Department recoflrmends the City Council pass and

adopt Resolution No. 10864 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute an

Agreement with E Source Companies, LLC to Complete the City of Folsom's Water Loss

Control Program and Appropriation of Funds.

BACKGROUND / ISSUE

The Environmental and Water Resources (EWR) Department is requesting that E Source

Companies,LLC provide professional services to complete the City's Water Loss Control

Program. The City's water distribution system consists of approximately 400 miles of water

pipes and is comprised of transmission mains, distribution mains, service lateral connections

(approximately 23,000), blow-offs, fire hydrants, backflow preventors, valves, and other

appurtenances. The City's water pipes range in size from l-inch service lines to 24-inch
transmission mains.

The Water Loss Control Program will include a review of previous water audits completed by

the City, source meter accuracy testing, billing data assessment, meter accuracy testing

recommendations, an analysis of real and apparent losses for the City, the appropriate leak

detection survey frequency, and an analysis of Senate Bill 555 water loss standards relative to

the City's real and apparent losses and input values to the State Economic Water Loss Model.

1

MEETING DATE: 611412022

AGENDA SECTION: Consent Calendar

SUBJECT: Resolution No. 10864 - A Resolution Authorizing the City
Manager to Execute an Agreement with E Source Companies,

LLC to Complete the City of Folsom's Water Loss Control
Program and Appropriation of Funds

FROM: Environmental and Water Resources Department

Page 65

06/14/2022 Item No.7.



This will also include support to calculate revised proposed standards for the City to submit to

the State for approval.

The City issued a Request for Proposals (RFP) to provide professional services to complete

the City's Water Loss Control Program. Upon evaluation of qualifications, experience, cost,

and overall best value, City staff recommends authorizing the City Manager to execute an

agreement with E Source Companies, LLC to complete the Crty's Water Loss Control

Program.

POLICY / RULE

In accordance with Chapter 2.36 of the Folsom Municipal Code. supplies, equipment, services,

and construction with a value of $66,141 or greater shall be awarded by Ctty Council.

ANALYSIS

The City issued the RFP on February 28, 2022 for the Water Loss Control Program and

received three proposals. EWR staff evaluated the proposals based on the consultant's

understanding of the background and requirements of the project, relevant project experience,

the qualifications and experience of the consultant's team, and proposal costs. Proposal costs

were submified under a separate sealed envelope and were not opened until after the evaluation

was completed based on qualifications and experience of the project team. The proposals

consisted of the following tasks:
o Program Management
o Meter data assessment and gap analysis
o Water audit reviews
o Volumetric source and production meter testing
o Customer meter testing assessment and development
o Rel and apparent loss component analysis
o Senate Bil1555 support and standards response

o Final report

During the review of the submitted proposals, EWR staff identified E Source Companies,LLC
as having the relevant project experience and qualifications and would provide the best value

to the City. Table 1 below outlines the scoring prior to including the project costs. The

evaluation criteria included the consultant's project understanding and approach, qualifications
and experience, and project team. The maximum number of points that could be eamed based

on the evaluation criteria (not including costs) was 75 points.

Table I. Consultant scoring prior to reviewing the costs of the proposals

2

60 347 56.859 52 58 55M.E. Simpson 57

50 362 60.363 69 57 55E Source 68

356 s9.350 53 48 63Black & Veatch 64 68

Page 66

06/14/2022 Item No.7.



After reviewing the proposals based on consultant's project understanding and approach,

qualifications and experience, ffid project team, EWR staff reviewed total project costs.

Proposal costs from each consultant were required to be submitted under a separate sealed

envelope. Table 2 shows the companies that submitted proposals, their fees, and total hours to

complete the project.

Table 2. Consultant proiect costs and hours associated with the RFP.

Based on the consultant's understanding of the background and requirements of the project,

relevant project experience, the qualifications and experience of the consultant's team, their,
proposal costs, and overall best value to the City, EWR staff proposes using E Source

Companies , LLC for these services for a not-to-exceed amount of $143,320. Table 3 below

shows the final scores with the inclusion of project costs.

Table 3. Consultant overall scoring including proiect costs.

FINANCIAL IMPACT

The Environmental and Water Resources Department recommends that the contract be

awarded to E Source Companies, LLC for a not-to-exceed amount $143,320. EWR staff is
requesting an appropriation of $143,320 to be appropriated in the Fiscal Year 2021-22 Water

Operating Fund (Fund 520) budget . Funds are available in the Water Operating Fund for this

appropriation.

ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW

This project is categorically exempt from environmental review under the California
Environmental Quality Act as noted in Title 14 - California Code of Regulations, Chapter 3 -

Guidelines for Implementation of the California Environmental Quality Act, Article 19 -

Categorical Exemptions, Section 15301 - Existing Facilities.

ATTACHMENT

ResolutionNo. 10864 - A Resolution Authorizingthe City Manager to Execute an Agreement

with E Source Companies ,LLCto Complete the City of Folsom's Water Loss Control Program

and Appropriation of Funds

a)

638S154,930M.E. Simpson
776S143,320E Source
880s199,500Black & Veatch

76.2 8t.2 468.2 78.O80.2 73.2 79.2M.E. Simpson 78.2

75 512 85.388 94 82 80E-Source 93

79.5 455 75.876.5 69.s 64.5Black & Veatch 80.s 84.5

Page 67

06/14/2022 Item No.7.



Submitted,

Marcus Yasutake, Director
ENVIRONMENTAL AND WATER RESOURCES DEPARTMENT

4
Page 68

06/14/2022 Item No.7.



RE,SOLUTION NO. I.0864

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE AN
AGREEMENT WITH E SOURCE COMPANIES, LLC TO COMPLETE

THE CITY OF FOLSOM'S WATER LOSS CONTROL PROGRAM
AND APPROPRIATION OF FUNDS

WHEREAS, this project consists of completing a water loss control program; and

WHEREAS, the Environmental and Water Resources Department issued a Request for
Proposals on February 28,2022 for this project; and

WHEREAS, E Source Companies, LLC by reason of their past experience, abilities for
performing these types of services, and overall best value for these services, is qualified to
perform the required water loss control program; and

WHEREAS, an additional appropriation of funds in the amount of $143,320 is needed

for this agreement of $143,320 and sufficient funds are available in the Water Operating Fund

(Fund 520) for this appropriation; and

WHEREAS, the agreement will be in a form acceptable to the City Attorney:

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Folsom

authorizes the City Manager to execute an agreement with E Source Companies, LLC for the

City of Folsom's Water Loss Control Program and Appropriation of Funds; and,

BE IT F'URTHER RESOLVED that the Finance Director is authorized to appropriate

$143,320 for this agreement. The appropriation will be from the Water Operating Fund (Fund

520) in the amount of $143,320.

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 14ft day of June,2022, by the following roll-call vote:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:

Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):

Keni M. Howell, MAYOR

ATTEST

Christa Freemantle, CITY CLERK

Resolution No. 10864
Page I of I Page 69

06/14/2022 Item No.7.



This page is intentionally lefr blank.

Page 70

06/14/2022 Item No.7.



Folsom City Council
Staff Re rt

RECOMMENDATION / CITY COLINCIL ACTION

The Fire Department recommends that the City Council pass and approve Resolution

No.10865 - A Resolution Authorizing Public Fireworks Displays during the Annual Folsom

Pro Rodeo Activities on July 1, July 2, and July 3,2022.

BACKGROUND / ISSUE

The annual Folsom Pro Rodeo is scheduled for July 1, July 2, and July 3, 2022, at Rodeo Park,

with a proximate firework display each night.

The Fire Department is coordinating the safety requirements for these fireworks displays with
the Greater Folsom Partnership and the California State Fire Marshal's Office. The licensed

firm of Fireworks & Stage FX America has been secured by the Greater Folsom Partnership

to operate these fireworks displays.

POLICY / RULE

Section 9.36.020 of the Folsom Municipal Code states that public displays of fireworks may

only be held when authorized by resolution of the City Council, after recommendation of the

Fire Chief, and when under the supervision of a licensed pyrotechnic operator.

1

MEETING DATE: 6lt4/2022

AGENDA SECTION: Consent Calendar

SUBJECT: Resolution No. 10865 - A Resolution Authorizing Public
Fireworks Displays During the Annual Folsom Pro Rodeo
Activities

FROM: Fire Department

Page 71

06/14/2022 Item No.8.



ANALYSIS

A public display of fireworks is proposed by the sponsor of the event to be fired each night at

the conclusion of the rodeo. Staff has reviewed all safety issues relative to public fireworks
display and is working with the Greater Folsom Partnership and Fireworks & Stage FX
America to mitigate any potential issues. Staff believes that these mitigation measures will
reasonably satisff the safety concerns.

FINAI\CIAL IMPACT

There is no fiscal impact as the overtime staff costs for the required fire safety officer standby

each night will be paid by the Greater Folsom Partnership.

ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW

There are no foreseeable environmental impacts.

ATTACHMENTS

1. Resolution No. 10865 - A Resolution Authorizing Public Fireworks Displays during the

Annual Folsom Pro Rodeo Activities

2. Fire Department Permit Application from Fireworks & Stage FX America

Submitted,

Ken Cusano, Fire Chief

)

Page 72

06/14/2022 Item No.8.



ATTACHMENT 1

Page 73

06/14/2022 Item No.8.



RESOLUTION NO. 10865

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING PUBLIC FIREWORKS DISPLAYS
DURING THE ANNUAL PRO RODEO ACTIVITIES

WHEREAS' on the evenings of July 1, July 2, and July 3, 2022, the Folsom Chamber of
Commerce will be sponsoring the annual Folsom Pro Rodeo at the Dan Russell Arena; and

WHEREAS, Folsom Municipal Code Section 9.36.020 authorizes the public display of
fireworks; and

WHEREAS, the City of Folsom wishes to support the festivities of our nation's

independence, as well as family-oriented activities within the community,

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council authorizes this public

display of fireworks to celebrate this special occasion, with the recommendation of the Fire Chief,

and under the supervision oflicensed pyrotechnic operators.

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 14ft day of June 2022,by the following roll-call vote:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:

Council Member(s):
Council Member(s):
Council Member(s):
Council Member(s):

Kerri M. Howell, MAYOR

ATTEST:

Christa Freemantle, CITY CLERK

Resolution No. 10865

Page I of I Page 74

06/14/2022 Item No.8.



ATTACHMENT 2

Page 75

06/14/2022 Item No.8.



FOLSOM
FIREDBPARTMENT

S35 Glenn Drive Folsom, CA gS6go
Office (g$) q6v63oo Fax (g16) g8+-Zo8t

wwwrfolsotn.ca.us
F (}LS(}nd

FIRE SAFETY OFFICER SERVICE AGREEMENT
!'ircrorks E Stage El( AncriceAPPLICA}.IT:

TA)( rD/SS#:

ADDRESS:

45-533{907

PO Box {88 Lakeaide, CA 920{0

TELEPHONE:
519-938-8277

It has determined bythe Fire Chief, in accordance with City of Folsom Municipal Codg lhapter 8.36 (Folsom

Fire Code S roZ.8) that provision must be made for Fire Safety Officer Services at the following event/activity:

Date(s) Start Time Finish Time Total Hours

7/L-114 6:00pm L0:00pn {.0

LOCATION OF EVENT: Folcom Rodso

TYPEOFEVENT: Pyrotochnics for Folson Rodco

The Fire Chief hereby agrees to furnish, and Applicant hereby agrees to accept and pay for, the requisite Fire
Safety Officer Services subject to the following terms and conditions:

1. Theevent/activitywillrequireapproximately 1z noursofserviceby 1 FireSafetyOfEcer(s),
to be provided at an hourly rate of $94.to per houri

2. In the event additional hours of Fire Safety Officer services are required by the length and/or nature of
the event/activity, such additional servicei shall be provided by the Fire Department at the same hourly
rate(s) as aforesaid;

g. The Folsom Fire Department shall bill by invoice for the aforesaid services by invoice;

The Applicant shall remit the full sum due and owing within thirfy (go) da;a of the date of the invoice.

ilulia Androwc, Officc 512s12022

of (If authorized representatiue, give title) Date

Signature of Fire Department Representative (include title) Date

Working Together to Provide Superior Services in a Safe, Thorough, and Efficient Manner

Page 76

06/14/2022 Item No.8.



FOLSOM
FIRE DEPARTMENT

53S Glenn Drive Folsom, CA 9563o
Office (g16) +6t-63oo Fax (g16) gB+-ZoBt

www.folsotn.ca.us
]FO]LS(DN4T

FIRE DEPARTMENT PERMIT APPLICATION
OPERATIONAL PERMIT

ctaY of

BUSINESS NAME (Print) Fireworkg & SEage Fx Anerica

ADDRESS PO Box 488 Lakeside, CA 92040

APPLICANT NAME Ju1ie Andrews

BILLINGADDRESS (IF
DIFFERENT)

TELEPHONE NUMBER 619 -938-8277

E-MATL o f f ice@f ireworkgameri ca. colt

ASTIVITY DESCRIPTION Pyrotechnics for Fo1eon Rodeo

A property owner or owner's authorized agent who intends to conduct an operation or business, or install or
modify systems and equipment that are regulated by the California Fire Code, or to cause any such work to be

performed, shall first make application to the fire code official and obtain the required permit. (CFC roS)

Conditions of Permit

The conditions, surroundings, and arrangements for the operation(s) or activities subject to this permit shall be

in accordance with all applicable regulations. The premises shall be subject to periodic inspection by the City of
Folsom to ensure compliance with the applicable regulations and any condition(s) imposed. The permit is

subject to revocation for failure to comply with those regulations and any specific conditions that are in effect at

the time of inspection.

In obtaining a fire department permit the applicant understands and acknowledges that Folsom Fire Department

has the right to enter and inspect that for which the permit is issued for compliance within the rules and

regulations enforced by the City of Folsom. The applicant acknowledges that right and agrees to pay all costs

incurred by the City of Folsom in securing any judicial writ or inspection warrant to fulfill that right wherein the

applicant fails to give consent for inspection.

Application is made to Folsom Fire Department for inspection and approval of the described operation or
activity, which will conform to all applicable standards. No operation or activity requiring a permit will be

performed until a Fire Department permit is received. It is understood that working without approved plans and

a permit will result in delays and additional fees.

Working Together to Provide Superior Services in a Safe, Thorough, and Efficient Manner

Page 77

06/14/2022 Item No.8.



Page z of z

FIRE CODE PERMIT FEES (To operate, conduct, perform, store, or use the following):

" Includes initial fire and life safety inspection and one re-inspection.

** In addition to fire and life safety inspection(s), these processes may also require a construction plan review. Plan review fees are based

on the project's valuation or on third-party plan review costs; whichever is higher.

TOTAL FEE(S) DUE $

MAKE CIIECKS PAYABLE TO :

PAYMENT RECEIWD:
USE ONLY)
CHECKNUMBER

PERMIT NUMBER

CITYOFFOI,SOM
FOISOM FIRE DEPARTMENT
ACSIS RECEIVABLE
535 GLENN DRIVE
FOLSOM, CA95630

Click here to Submit by Email

(Attach this fom and any
plans to the email)

Operational Permits" ($r85 each) (Check One or More)
Activities in Hazardous Fire Areas or Gas-fueledVehicles or Equip in Bldgs.

Aerosol Products Storage/Handling (LP) Gas Storage and Use**

Amusement Buildings Magnesium

Aviation Facilities Miscellaneous Combustible Storage (z5oo+ sq. ft .)

Carbon Dioxide Systems (roo+ pounds) Mobile Fueling of Hydrogen-Fueled Vehicles

Carnivals and Fairs Mo Food Preparation Vehicles

Cellulose Nitrate Film Motion Picture Filming

Christmas Tree Lots Motor Vehicle Fuel Dispensing Facilities

Combustible Dust-Producing Operations Open Burning

Combustible Fiber Storage/ Handling Open Flames and Torches

Compressed Gases Storage/Handling"" Open Flames and Candles

Covered and Open Mall Buildings Organic Coatings

Cryogenic Fluids Storage/ Handling"" Places of or more people)

Cutting & Welding Production Facilities (Live Audiences)

Dry Cleaning x Pyrotechnics / Special Effects Material

Exhibits and Trade Shows Pyroxylin Plastics Storage/Handling

Explosives Storage/Handling Refrigeration Equipment Storage/Handling

Fire Hydrants and Valves (Including private) Repair Garages

Flam. /Comb. Liquids Storage and Pipelines"" Rooftop Heliports

Floor Finishing (35o+ sq.ft.) Spralng or Dipping*"

Fruit & Crop Ripening Storage of Scrap Tires and Tire Byproducts

Fumigation/ Insecticidal Fo gging Temporary Membrane Structures and Tents**

Hazardous Materials Storage/Handling"" Tire Rebuilding Plants

Hazardous Production Material (HPM) Facilities Waste Handling

High Piled Combustible Storage (5oo+ sq. ft.)"" Wood Products Storage/Handling

Hot Work Operations Expedited Service Fees (r.5 X Regular Fee)

Industrial Ovens** Technical Assistance / Third Party (Actual Cost)

Lumber Yards and Woodworking Plants Re-Inspection (z"it and subsequent) $zz8 each

Working Together to Provide Superior Services in a Safe, Thorough and Efficient Manner.
Page 78

06/14/2022 Item No.8.



Application for Permit for a
Public Display of Pyrotechnics

ffi P. O. Box 488
Lakeside, CA 92040-0488
(619) 9384277
Fax (619) 938-8273

& St.!c tX
i\me-erieE

Authoritv havi ng J u risdiction :

Lauren Ono
Folsom Fire Department
48 Natoma Street
Folstom, CA 95630

22165 Glient:
Folsom Chamber of Commerce
Attn: Libby Siino
200 Wool Street
Folsom, CA 95630

Fireworks & Stage FX America, lnc. on behalf of the Sponsor Listed Above requests a permit to

conduct a public display of fireworks in accordance with Federal, State and Local Laws and Ordinances.

Date(s): 71112022 71212022,71312022 Site lnformation:

Time/Leng th: 9:45PM Folsom Rodeo Arena
See Plot Map
200 WoolStreet
Folsom, CA 95630

Pyrotechn ic Brandon Waits 2936-02

Brandon Cell 91 6-802-4482

Email: bfwaits@qmail.com

Proof of current General Liability lnsurance and Workers Compensation lnsurance is attached,

A detailed diagram of the proposed firing site is attached. Office contact: Julie Andrews

Description of Display: (619) 938'8277' Fax (619) 938-8273

Folsom Chamber of Commerce on 71112022 in Folsom, CA.

Fireworks fired Electrically, in Racks.

Ground Level Pyrotechnics (0 - 50 Foot typical Altitude):

Low Level Pyrotechnics (51 - 125 foot typical altitude):
Devices - 60;
Bombardments - 26;

Aerial Pyrotechnics (>125 foot typical altitude):

PERMISSION TO CONDUCT A PUBLIC DISPLAY OF PYROTECHNICS AS SPECIFIED HEREIN

Operator(s)
and License
Number:

(where required)

IS HEREBY:

(Operator Name) (License No.)

and assistants.

PERMITTED DENIED
Circle Appropriate Signature of Permitting Authority

Fireworks & Stage FX Permit Reference No. 22165

Title

Date

PrintedPage 79

06/14/2022 Item No.8.



Application for Permit for a
Public Display of Pyrotechnics

Sk, P. o. Box488

"iffi*fff." 
Lakeside, cA 92040-0488

TJ h-;;=- (619) 938-8277
i\m-fieA Fax (619) e38-8273

Authority having J urisdiction :

Lauren Ono
Folsom Fire Department
48 Natoma Street
Folstom, CA 95630

Glient:
Folsom Chamber of Commerce
Attn: Libby Siino
200 Wool Street
Folsom, CA 95630

olsom Rodeo Arena
Plot Map

00 WoolStreet
olsom, CA 95630

Signature of Permitting Authority

22166

Fireworks & Stage FX America, lnc. on behalf of the Sponsor Listed Above requests a permit to

conduct a public display of fireworks in accordance with Federal, State and Local Laws and Ordinances

Date(s):

Time/Length:

Operator(s)
and License
Number:

(where required)

IS HEREBY

9:45PM

7t212022 71112022 71312022 Site lnformation:

Pyrotec hnic Brandon Waits 2936-02
(Operator Name)

and assistants

(License No.)

Brandon Cell: 91 6-802-4482

Email: bfwaits@qmail. com

Proof of current General Liability lnsurance and Workers Compensation lnsurance is attached'

A detailed diagram of the proposed firing site is attached. Office contact: Julie Andrews

Description of Display: (619) 938'8277' Fax (619) 938-8273

Folsom Chamber of Commerce on 71212022 in Folsom, CA.

Fireworks fired Electrically, in Racks.

Ground Level Pyrotechnics (0 - 50 Foot typicalAltitude):

Low Level Pyrotechnics (51 - 125 foot typical altitude):
Devices - 60;

Bombardments - 26;

Aerial Pyrotechnics (>125 foot typical altitude):

PERMISSION TO CONDUCT A PUBLIC DISPLAY OF PYROTECHNICS AS SPECIFIED HEREIN

PERMITTED DENIED
Circle ApproPriate

Fireworks & Stage FX Permit Reference No. 22166

Title

Date

PrintedPage 80

06/14/2022 Item No.8.



Application for Permit for a
Public Display of Pyrotechnics

ffi P. O. Box 488
Lakeside, CA 92040-0488
(619) 938€277
Fax (619) 938-8273

& St.!r FX

?\me-erieE

Authoritv having Jurisdiction :

Lauren Ono
Folsom Fire Department
48 Natoma Street
Folstom, CA 95630

22167 Client:
Folsom Chamber of Commerce
Attn: Libby Siino
200 Wool Street
Folsom, CA 95630

Fireworks & Stage FX America, lnc. on behalf of the Sponsor Listed Above requests a permit to

conduct a public display of fireworks in accordance with Federal, State and Local Laws and Ordinances

Date(s): 7t3t2022 71112022 71212022 Site lnformation:

Time/Length : 9:45PM olsom Rodeo Arena
ee Plot Map

WoolStreet
olsom, CA 95630

Pyrotech nic Brandon Waits 2936-02

Brand on Cel| 91 6-802'4482

Email : bfwaits@qmail. com

Proof of current General Liability lnsurance and Workers Compensation lnsurance is attached.

A detailed diagram of the proposed firing site is attached. Office contact: Julie Andrews

Description of Display: (619) 938'8277 ' 
Fax (619) 938'8273

Folsom Chamber of Commerce on 71312022 in Folsom, CA.

Fireworks fired Electrically, in Racks.

Ground Level Pyrotechnics (0 - 50 Foot typical Altitude):

Low Level Pyrotechnics (51 - 125 foot typical altitude):
Devices'60;
Bombardments - 26;

Aerial Pyrotechnics (>125 foot typical altitude):

PERMISSION TO CONDUCT A PUBLIC DISPLAY OF PYROTECHNICS AS SPECIFIED HEREIN

Operator(s)
and License
Number:

(where required)

IS HEREBY:

(Operator Name) (License No.)

and assistants.

PERMITTED DENIED
Circle Appropriate Signature of Permitting Authority

Fireworks & Stage FX Permit Reference No. 22167

Title

Date

PrintedPage 81

06/14/2022 Item No.8.



WIND NORTH

Page 82

06/14/2022 Item No.8.



CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE
DATE (MM'DD/YYYY)

5t1612022

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFE RS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS

CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES

BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSU]NG INSURER(S}, AUTHORIZED

REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

tfVlponTnNt: tf ttre certiticate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must be endors6d. lf SUBROGATION lS WAIVED, subject to

the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on this certificate does not confer rights to the

certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).
PRODUCER

The Partners Group Ltd
11225 SE 6th St., Suite 110
Bellevue WA 98004

INSURER{S} AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC #

tNsuRER A , Everest lndemnitv lnsurance co 10851

INSURED

Fireworks and Stage FX America, lnc.
Fireworks and Stage FX America, LLC
PO Box 488
Lakeside CA 92040-0488

't4567
|NSTJRER B: Everest Denali lnsurance company 16044

rNsuRER c: AXIS Surplus Lines lnsurance Company 26620

tNsuRER D: Arch specialty lnsurance company 21199

INSIIRFR F :

INSTIRER F :

CERTIF MBER:133091620 REVISION NUMBER:

TH IS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLI CIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSU ED TO TH E INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLI CY PERI OD

INDICATED, NOTWTHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT TERM OR coNDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTH ER DOCUMENT WTH RESPECT TO WHICH TH ts

CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED

EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.
HEREIN s SU BJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,

INSR
ITF WPE OF INSURANCE POLICY NUMBER

PqLIUY EFF POLICY EXP
IMM'DD/YYYYI LIMITS

GENERAL LIABILITY

X COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY

CLAIIVS-MADE OCCUR

GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT PER:

LOCX

X

Y s18M102461221 2t11t2022 2t11D023 EACH OCCURRENCE $ 1.000.000

$ 500.000

MED EXP (Anv one oerson) $ Excluded

s 1 000 000PERSONAL & ADV INJURY

GENERAL AGGREGATE $ 2.000.000

PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG $ 2.000.000

$

B AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY

X ANY AUTO
ALL OVVNED
AUTOS

SCHEDULED
AUTOS
NON.OWNED
AUTOSX HIRED AUTOS X

X X

st8cAo0278221 2111t2022 2t11t2023 $ ,t 000 000

BODILY INJURY (Per pereon) $

BODILY INJURY (Per a@ident) $

$

$

c UMBRELLA LIAB

EXCESS LIAB

X OCCUR

CLAIMS-MADE

P001 000739376001 2111t2022 211'U2023 EACH OCCURRENCE $ 4,000,000

X AGGREGATE $ 4,000,000

DFD RETENTION $ $

WORKERS COMPENSATION
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY
ANY PROPRIETOFYPARTNER/EXECUTIVE
OFFICER/MEIUBER EXCLUDED?
(Mandatory in NHI
lf yes, describe under
NFSCRIPTION OF OPFRATIONS beIOw

fi N/A

I WCSTATU- I

I Topv I tiflTq I

O TH.
ED

E.L. EACH ACCIDENT $

E.L- DISEASE. EA EMPLOYEE $

E.L, DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT s

u
B

Ex6ss Liability - Occurence
Hked Auto Phys Dmg.
- $86,000

uxP10481 1 300
st8cA00278221

2111t2022
2t11t2022

2t11t2023
2t1112023

Each Occ/Aggregate $5,000,000

DESCRtpTtONOFOpERAT|ONS/LOCAT|ONStVEH|CLES (AftachACORDl0l,Additlonal Remarksschedule,if morcspaceisEqulred)

ini fof f o"ring are Additionalinsureo on Generai Lianitity as their interest may appear as respects to operations performed by or on behalf of the Named

lnsured, as required by written contract:
Citv of Folsom. Folsom Cnafrbei oi Commerce, Dan Russel Arena, Folsom Fire Department; its officers, agents, employees, and servanls when acting in their
Jmtiii tii,*iti ii'iuiir. in'J orty ticensed opeiator requiied by taw to supervise anb discharge the public show, acting elither as. an employee of the insured or
it in ino5perifent coniractorint tne stiie ,iiciiifornii, its of{cers, agerits, employees, and-servarits are included as additional insureds per wrifen contract.

Show Date: 7 l'1, 7 12, 7 1312022
Show Location: Folsom Rodeo Arena

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

@ 1988-2010 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

Folsom Chamber of Commerce
200 Wool Street
Folsom CA 95630

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOllCE WILL BE DELIVERED IN

ACCORDANCE I'UITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE
I-.i.4
I

ACORD 25 {2010/05) The AGORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD

Page 83

06/14/2022 Item No.8.



DATE (MM/DD/YYYY}

0211t2022

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATI
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY

ON ONLYAND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS

AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES

BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED

REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER'

DDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.

lf suBRoGATloN ls wAlvED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on

this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

PROOUCER

The Partners Group Ltd

11 225 SE 6th St.

Suite 110

Bellevue wA 98004

Janet Nau

llJPlll ,,.,. (877) 45s-5640 (425) 455-6727

jnau@tpgrp.com

INSURER(SI AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC #

tNsuRERA: Everest lndemnity lnsurance Co 1 0851

INSURED

Fireworks and Stage FX America, lnc.,

Fireworks and Stage FX America, LLC

PO Box 488

Lakeside cA 92040-0488

tNsuRER B: Everest Denali lnsurance Company '16044

tNsuRERc r AXIS Surplus Lines lnsurance Company 26620

tNsuRER D: Everest lndemnity lnsurance Co 1 0851

INSURER E :

INSIIPFR F.

COVERAGES

CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSU RANCE

CERTIFICATENUMBER: 22-23 NUMBER:

O 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

INDICATED. NOTWTHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WTH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS

CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES OESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,

EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHO\^/N MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS,

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD

LIMITSPOLICY EFF
(MM/DD/YYYYItNan POLICY NUMBERITR

INSK
TYPE OF INSURANCE

EACH OCCI.JRRENCE $ 1,000,000

c 100,000DAMAGE IO RIN I ED
PRFMISFS lF, o.curencel

s Excluded
MED EXP (Anv one Derson)

$ 1,000,000
PERSONAL &ADV INJURY

GFNFRAL AGGREGATE $ 2,000,000

PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG $ 2,000,000

0211112023

$

0211112022st8ML02461 221A

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY

.LA'M.-MADE f,l o""r*

OTHER:

!F3; l-1.o"
GEN'LAGGREGATE

POLICY

$ 1,000,000

$BODILY INJURY (Per person)

$BODILY INJURY (Per accident)

$

o

0211112022 0211112023st8cA00278221B

ANYAUTO

OWNED
AUTOS ONLY
HIRED
AUTOS ONLY

SCHEDULEO
AUTOS
NON.O\ANED
AUTOS ONLY

AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY

EACH OCCURRENCE $ 4,000,000xx
c 4,000,000AGGREGATE

UMBRELLA LIAB

EXCESS LIAB

OCCUR

CLAIMS-MADE

s

02/1112022 0211t2023P-001 -000793760-01c
NFD RETENTION $

PER OIH.
Ftr

F I FACHACCIDENT $

EL DISEASE-EAEMPLOYEE

$E.L. DISEASE. POLICY LIMIT

N/A

WORKERS COMPENSATION
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY
ANY PROPRI ETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE
OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED?
(Mandatory in NH)
lf yes, describe under
DEscRlPTloN oF OPERATIoNS below

o2t'11t2023

Each Occurrence

Aggregate

5,000,000

5,000,0000211t2022TBDD
Excess Liability - Per Occurrence

DESCRtpTtON OF OPERATTONS / LOCATTONS / VEHTCLES (ACORO lOl, Additional Remarks schedule, may be attached if moG space is required)

Evidence of lnsurance
The duly licensed pyrotechnic operator required by law to supervise and discharge the public display, The State of California, its officers, agents, employees

and servants when acting in their official capacity as such.

Office of the State Fire Marshal

Po Box944246

Sacramento cA 94244-2460

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE

THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN

ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS,

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

ACORD 25 (2016/03) The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD

Page 84

06/14/2022 Item No.8.



--ACORD"
FIRE&ST-OI

CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE
DATE (MM/DD/YYYY)

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLYAN
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTE

BELOW THIS GERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A

D CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
ND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BYTHEPOLICIES
CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED

REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER'

IMPORTANT: lf the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.

lf SUBROGATION lS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies
such endorsement(sl.

may require an endorsement' A statement on

this certificate does not confer rights to the certilicate holder in lieu of

PRODUCER

Whiteboard Risk & Insurance Solutions, LLC
8787 Complex Drive Ste 202
San Diego, CA92123

fi?$I+"t John Tillery

223-1170 223-1170

rNsuRERA,state compensation lns Fund 35076

INSURED

Fireworks & Stage FX America, LLC
DBA Fireworks America
P.O. Box 488
Lakeside, CA S2040

INSURER B :

INSI IRFR C .

INSI IRFR D :

INSIIRER E :

INSURER F :

THAT
DICATE

FORABOVE POLITHE PERICY ODBEENHAVE DISSUE THETO NSUR NAMEDEDOF RANCEINSU BELOWLISTEDESISTHIS CERTIFYTO POLtCtTHE
THISWHICHDOCUMENTOTHER TOWTH RESPECTOR OFCONDITION CONTRACTANY ORRANY REMEQUI ENT TERMSTANNOTWTH DINGIN D

ALLTO ETHTHBY E DESCRIBEDPOLICIES REINHE SUBJECT TERMS,ISTH AFFORDEDINSURANCEFICATEERTI BEMAY SSUED MAYOR PERTAIN,c
LAIMS.HAMAY BEENVE BY PAIDREDUCEDPOSUCH Ltc LIES. SMITS O\iryNHANDEXCLUSIONS OFCONDITIONS

LIMITSPOLICY NUMBERTYPE OF INSURANCE

&

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY

L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES

'o.'." l-1588; E

CLAIIVS-MADE OCCUR

PER:

LOC

NGLE Lll\,llT
AUTOMOBILE LIABILIW

ANY AUTO
OWNED
AUTOS ONLY
HIRED
AUTOS ONLY

SCHEDULED
AUTOS
NON-OWNED
AUTOS ONLY

UMBRELLA LIAB

EXCESS LIAB

OCCUR

CLAIMS-MADE

DED RETENTION $

X

1,000,000

1

6t112021 6t1t2022
N/A

WORKERS COMPENSATION
AND EMPLOYERS'LIABIUry
ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTN EFYEXECUTIVE
OFFICER/MEI/lBER EXCLUDED?
(Mandatory in NH)

describe underlf

16t1t2022

oFopERAT|ONS/LOCATTONS/VEHtCLES (ACORDl0l,AdditionalRemarkssGhedule,maybeaftachedifmorespaceisrequired)
of lnsurance,

Proof of lnsurance

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE

THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

z .,7 *./ )
,2"-- 7naZ.-

@ 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved'ACORD 25 (2016/03)
The AGORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD

Page 85

06/14/2022 Item No.8.



--,ACORD"9-

FIRE&ST.O1

CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE
DATE (MM/DD/YYYY}

5t31t2022

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLYANDCONFERSNORIGHTSUPONTHECERTIFICATEHOLOER'THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE GOVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES

BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED

REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

tMpoRTANT: lf the certificate hotder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the poticy(ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.

and itionscond theof certaints theto terms policy,BROGATION WAIVED,lf SU subject
lieutn of uchto certificatethe holderhtscertificatethis notdoes confer

may require an endorcement. A statement on

hn Tille
223-1170223-1170Risk & lnsurance Solutions, LLG

8787 Complex Drive Ste 202
San Diego, CA92123

PRODUCER

Fireworks & Stage FX America, LLG
DBA Fireworks America
P.O. Box 488
Lakeside, CA 92040

INSURED

PERIODNAMEDD FORABOVE POLICYTH EHAVEBELOW NBEE TOISSUED INSURETHELISTEDOF INSURANCErsTH TOrs THACERTIFY THET CIESPOLI
WHTO THrcHOR DOCUOTHER ENTM RESPECTWTHORTERM OFCONDITION CONTRACTANYING REQUIREMENTANYNOTWTHSTANDTED-INDICA

EDB NHEREI S ECTSUBJ ALLTO TERMS,THEBYAFFORDED POLITHE DESCRIctEsMA EE INSURANCTHFICERTI MAYCATE ISSUEDBE OR PERTAIN,
BY DPAI MS.CLAIHAVEMAY REDUCEDBEENOF POLTCISUCH LIES. TSMI SHOWNANEXCLUSIONS CONDITIONSD

LIMITSPOLICY NUMBERTYPE OF INSURANCE

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY

LIMIT PER:

LOCTPRO.
JECT

CLAIMS-MADE OCCUR

AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY

ANY AUTO
O\^/NED
AUTOS ONLY
HIRED
AUTOS ONLY

SCHEDULED
AUTOS
NON-OWNED
AUTOS ONLY

OCCUR

CLAIMS-MADE

UMBRELLA LIAB

EXCESS LIAB

DED RETENTION

X
1

1

6t1t2022 6t1t2023
N/A

WORKERS COMPENSATION
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY

ANY PROPRI ETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE
OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED?
(Mandatory in NH)

describe und€rtf

t2022

DESCR|pTtON OF OPERATTONS / LOCATTONS /VEHtCLES (ACORD 101, Additional Remarks schedule, may be attached if more space is required)

of lnsurance.

Proof of lnsurance.

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE

THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

.y-/\
/' ,/1- *// ,/

//4__ ( -t-Lv/ -

@ 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.ACORD 2s (2016/03)
The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD

Page 86

06/14/2022 Item No.8.



STATE

FUND
COMPENSATION
INSURA\CE

ENDORSEMENT AGREEMENT

9IAIVER OF SUBROGATI
BLANKET

EFFECTM JUNE l, 2022 AT
AND EXPIRING JUNE I,

12.0r A.M.
2023 AT 12.0L A.M.

BROKER COPY
REP 04
9080254-22
RENETIAL
SP
3-51-r2-0 3
PAGE I. OF IHOME OFFICE

SAN FBANCISCO

ALLEFFECTIVE DATESARE
AT 12:01 AM PACIFIC
STANOARD TIME OR THE
TIME INDICATED AT
PACIFIC STANDARD TIME

FIRE9IORKS AI{ERICA
PO BOX 488
LAKESIDE, CA 92040

WE HAVE THE RIGHT TO RECOVER OUR PAY}IENTS FROM ANYONE

LIABLE FOR AN INJURY COVERED BY THIS POLICY. WE 9IILL
NOT ENFORCE OUR RIGHT AGAINST THE PERSON OR

ORGANIZATION NAMED IN THE SCHEDULE.

THIS AGREEI{ENT APPLIES ONLY TO THE EXTENT THAT YOU

PERFORH }JORK UNDER A WRITTEN CONTRACT THAT REQUIRES YOU

TO OBTAIN THIS AGREEMENT FRO}I US.

THE ADDITIONAL PREI{IUI.T FOR THIS ENDORSEMENT SHALL BE

2.007. OF THE TOTAL POLICY PREMIUil.

SCHEDULE

PERSON OR ORGANIZATION JOB DESCRIPTION

2572

ANY PERSON OR ORGANIZATION
FOR TJHO}{ THE NAMED INSURED

HAS AGREED BY WRITTEN
CONTRACT TO FURNISH THIS

WAIVER

BLANKET WAIVER OF

SUBROGATION

NOTHING IN THIS ENDORSEMENT CONTAINED SHALL BE HELD TO VARY, ALTER, WAIVE

oR EXTEND ANY OF THE TERMS, CONDITIONS, AGBEEMENTS, OR LIMITATIONS OF THIS

POLICY OTHER THAN AS STATED. NOTHING ELSEWHERE !N THIS POLICY SHALL BE

HELD TO VARY, ALTER, WAIVE OR LIMIT THE TEBMS, CONDITIONS, AGREEMENTS OR

LIMITATIONS OF THIS ENDORSEMENT,

COUNTERSIGNED AND ISSUED AT SAN FRANCISCO: MAY,,/,6*e/4
AUTHoRTzED RepReserurMve

/o-,-- J/;-*
sctF FoFM 10217 (REV.7-2014)

26, 2022

PRESIDENT AND CEO
OLD DP 2'I7Page 87

06/14/2022 Item No.8.



FIREWORKS LICENSE

Public Display - General

LICENSE NUMBER: GPD-0528

F'RE FOR

Licensee : FIREWORKS & STAGE FX AMERICA' LLC

12485CA 67 lssue Date : 0511212022

LAKESIDE, CA,92040-0488 Expiration Date : AOB012023

619-938-9277

The public Display - General Fireworks License is issued to the above Licensee by the California office of the

State Fire Marshal and maybe revoked or suspended for errors or for providing incorrect information provided

by the applicant or 
"o*prny 

representatives. This license does not serve as or provide any warranties or

glaranties of continued licensure and is subject to investigation.

Display Address

VARIOUS

Display lnformation:

CitY

VARIOUS

zip

00000

County

USA

#-unt (,,v
/

ir/
.t :''-\",

'I

lssued BY Vikkie Franklin
Fire Engineering License Manager

Fire Engineering and lnvestigations Division

Reviewed and APProved BY Caleb Phi llips
Program Coordinator

Fire Engineering and lnvestigations Division

OFFICE OF THE STATE FIRE MARSHAL

please visit calfire.govmotus.org for more information on licensing and permitting with CAL FIRE

Page 1 of 2

Page 88

06/14/2022 Item No.8.



FIREWORKS LICENSE

Wholesaler

LICENSE NUMBER: W-1132

FORF'RE

Licensee : FTREWORKS & STAGE FX AMERTCA

12485 CA 67

LAKESIDE, CA,92040

na

lssue Date :0510212O22

Expiration Date : 0O13012023

The Wholesaler Fireworks License is issued to the above Licensee by the California Office of the State Fire
Marshal and maybe revoked or suspended for errors or for providing incorrect information provided by the
applicant or company representatives. This license does not serve as or provide any warranties or guarantees
of continued licensure and is subject to investigation.

M.w,tl,n,
!t_.i'

lssued By Vikkie Franklin
Fire Engineering License Manager

Fire Engineering and lnvestigations Division

Reviewed and Approved By Caleb Phillips
Program Coordinator

Fire Engineering and lnvestigations Division

OFFICE OF THE STATE FIRE MARSHAL

please visit calfire.govmotus.org for more information on licensing and permitting with CAL FIRE

Page 1 of 1

Page 89

06/14/2022 Item No.8.



FIREWORKS LICENSE

lmporter/Exporter

LICENSE NUMBER: llE-1 129

FOR
I ntr5

F'RE

Licensee : FIREWORKS & STAGE FX AMERICA, LLC

12485 CA 67

LAKESIDE, CA, 92040-O4BB

61 9-938-8277

lssue Date

Expiration Date

05t0212022

0613012023

The lmporter/Exporter Fireworks License is issued to the above Licensee by the California Office of the State
Fire Marshal and maybe revoked or suspended for errors or for providing incorrect information provided by the
applicant or company representatives. This license does not serve as or provide any warranties or guarantees
of continued licensure and is subject lo investigation.

{/'tan*4,n,
,tL{

lssued By Vikkie Franklin
Fire Engineering License Manager

Fire Engineering and lnvestigations Division

Reviewed and Approved By Caleb Phillips
Program Coordinator

Fire Engineering and lnvestigations Division

OFFICE OF THE STATE FIRE MARSHAL

Please visit calfire.govmotus.org for more information on licensing and permitting with CAL FIRE

Page 1 of 1

Page 90

06/14/2022 Item No.8.



:,i +i,:-liii\:l

Folsom City Council
Staff Re rt

RECOMMENDATION / COUNCIL ACTION

Staff recommends that the City Council move to adopt:

Resolution No. 10866 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute a Subdivision
Improvement Agreement and Accept Offers of Dedication for the Toll Brothers at Folsom
Ranch Phase lE Subdivision, and Approval of the Final Map for the Toll Brothers at Folsom
Ranch Phase lE Subdivision

BACKGROUND / ISSUE

The Vesting Tentative Subdivision Map (VTSM) for the Toll Brothers at Folsom Ranch Phase

lE Subdivision was approved by the City Council on March 10,2020.

The action for consideration by the City Council is the approval of the Final Map and

Subdivision Improvement Agreement for the Toll Brothers at Folsom Ranch Phase lE
Subdivision. The Final Map for the Toll Brothers at Folsom Ranch Phase lE Subdivision will
create a total of 116 single-family high density (SFHD) residential lots and 41 multi-family
low density (MLD) residential lots. With the approval of the Final Map, the subdivision
process for this phase will be complete.

1

MEETING DATE: 6n412022

AGENDA SECTION: Consent Calendar

SUBJECT: Resolution No. 10866 - A Resolution Authorizing the City
Manager to Execute a Subdivision Improvement Agreement and
Accept Offers of Dedication for the Toll Brothers at Folsom
Ranch Phase lE Subdivision, and Approval of the Final Map for
the Toll Brothers at Folsom Ranch Phase lE Subdivision

FROM: Community Development Department

Page 91

06/14/2022 Item No.9.



MANGINI PARKWAY

)

-':.--}..,

-t-.!. 
| 

-\-

F
H
rI]
&Fa
F]
F]r!

ca
Fa
14

PHASE lE

tklntl l[t\d[U 1'.
rqarl Br. nttE str. !1.rtr4tr.alt

xrilEl At t{xx4tl!.rqtr
n41t':

Itsidr4 jr
t,r$l

1,1 r.;

nra{ lLMl

l.

+
l--tr...H

The Toll Brothers at Folsom Ranch Phase 1E Subdivision is located on the north side of White
Rock Road, west of East Bidwell Street, south of Mangini Parkway and east of the future Toll
Brothers at Folsom Ranch Phase 2 subdivision in the Folsom Plan Area (FPA) (see above).

POLICY / RULE

The Subdivision Map Act of the State of California and the City's Subdivision Ordinance
require that the City Council approve Final Maps and Subdivision Improvement Agreements.

2
Page 92

06/14/2022 Item No.9.



ANALYSIS

The Final Map and conditions of approval for the Toll Brothers at Folsom Ranch Phase lE
Subdivision have been reviewed by the Community Development Department and other City
departments. The Final Map has been found to be in substantial compliance with the approved

Vesting Tentative Subdivision Map, and all conditions pertaining to the map have been

satisfied.

Attached is a table which includes the conditions of approval for the Toll Brothers at Folsom

Ranch Phase lE Vesting Tentative Subdivision Map. The tables include information

concerning when the condition is required to be satisfied (e.g. at Final Map, building permit,

etc.), which City department is responsible to verifu that it has been satisfied, and comments

or an explanation on how the condition was satisfied. This subdivision is consistent with the

Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan (FPASP) in regards to zoning and unit count.

ENVIRO REVIEW

An Addendum to the Folsom Plan Area Environmental Impact Report was previously

approved for the Toll Brothers at Folsom Ranch Phase lD Subdivision (PN l9-091) on March

10,2020 in accordance with the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA). The project

is consistent with this Addendum to the Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan EIR/EIS, and all
mitigation measures have been applied as conditions of approval for this project. In addition,

none of the conditions described in Section21166 of the Public Resources Code or Section

15162 of the CEQA Guidelines calling for the preparation of a subsequent EIR have

occurred. Therefore, no additional environmental review is required under CEQA.

L Resolution No. 10866 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute a
Subdivision Improvement Agreement and Accept Offers of Dedication for the Toll
Brothers at Folsom Ranch Phase lE Subdivision, and Approval of the Final Map for the

Toll Brothers at Folsom Ranch Phase lE Subdivision

2. Toll Brothers at Folsom Ranch Phase lE Subdivision Improvement Agreement

3. Toll Brothers at Folsom Ranch Phase lE Subdivision Final Map

4. Toll Brothers at Folsom Ranch Phase lE Vesting Tentative Subdivision Map

5. Table of Conditions of Approval for the Toll Brothers at Folsom Ranch Phase lE Vesting
Tentative Subdivision Map

Submitted

a
J

Page 93

06/14/2022 Item No.9.



PAM JOHNS, Community Development Director

4
Page 94

06/14/2022 Item No.9.



ATTACHMENT I

Resolution No. 10866 - A Resolution Authorizingthe
City Manager to Execute a Subdivision Improvement
Agreement and Accept Offers of Dedication for the

To11 Brothers at Folsom Ranch Phase lE Subdivision,
and Approval of the Final Map for the Toll Brothers at

Folsom Ranch Phase lE Subdivision

Page 95

06/14/2022 Item No.9.



RESOLUTION NO. 10866

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE
A SUBDIVISION IMPROVEMENT AGREEMENT AND

ACCEPT OFFERS OF DEDICATION FOR THE
TOLL BROTHERS AT FOLSOM RANCH PHASE lE SUBDIVISIONO AND

APPROVAL OF'THE FINAL MAP F'OR THE
TOLL BROTHERS AT F'OLSOM RANCH PHASE 1E SUBDIVISION

WHEREAS, the Final Map for the Toll Brothers at Folsom Ranch Phase lE subdivision
has been reviewed and approved by the City Engineer as complying with the approved or conditionally
approved Vesting Tentative Subdivision Map for the subdivision; and,

WHEREAS, the City Council has reviewed the Final Map for the Toll Brothers at Folsom
Ranch Phase lE subdivision; and,

WHEREAS, the City Council agrees to accept, subject to improvement, any and all offers
of dedication as shown on the Final Map for the Toll Brothers at Folsom Ranch Phase 1E subdivision.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Folsom
that the Final Map for the Toll Brothers at Folsom Ranch Phase lE subdivision is hereby approved;
and

BE IT F'URTHER RESOLVED that the City Manager is hereby authorized to execute

the Subdivision Improvement Agreement with Toll West, Inc. which will do business in California as

Toll Brothers West, Inc. in a form acceptable to the City Attorney and accept the offers of dedication
for the Toll Brothers at Folsom Ranch Phase lE subdivision.

PASSED AI\D ADOPTED this 14th day of June 2022, by the following roll-call vote

AYES: Council Member(s)

Council Member(s)

Council Member(s)

Council Member(s)

NOES:

Keni M. Howell, MAYOR
ATTEST:

Christa Freemantle, CITY CLERK

Resolution No. 10866
Page I of I

ABSENT:

ABSTAIN:

Page 96

06/14/2022 Item No.9.



ATTACHMENT 2

Toll Brothers at Folsom Ranch Phase lE Subdivision
Improvement Agreement

Page 97

06/14/2022 Item No.9.



No Fee Document Pursuant to Government
Code Section 6103.

RECORDING REOUESTED BY:

City of Folsom

WHEN RECORDED MAIL TO:

NAME

MAILING ADDRESS

CITY, STATE, ZIP CODE

City of Folsom
Cify Clerk
50 Natoma Street
Folsom, CA 95630

SPACE ABOVE THIS LINE RESERVED FOR RECORDER'S USE

CITY OF FOLSOM

SUBDIVISION IMPROVEMENT AGREEMENT

This Agreement is made and entered into this day of 2022,by and

between the City of Folsom, hereinafter referred to as "City", and Toll Westo Inc. which will do
business in California as Toll Brothers West, Inc., a Delaware Corporation hereinafter referred to
as "Subdivider".

RECITALS

A. Subdivider has presented to the City a certain Final Map of a proposed subdivision of land
located within the corporate limits of the City that has been prepared in accordance with the
Subdivision Map Act of the State of California, the subdivision ordinances of the City, and the
Tentative Subdivision Map, if any, of the subdivision previously approved by the City Council
of the City.

The proposed subdivision of land is commonly known and described as Toll Brothers at
Folsom Ranch Phase lE Subdivision and is herein referred to as the "subdivision".

Subdivider has requested apptoval of the Final Map prior to the construction and completion of
the public improvements (as shown on the approved improvement plans and listed in Exhibit
A), including, but not limited to streets, highways, public ways, sidewalks, curbs, gutters,

bikeways, storm drainage facilities, sanitary sewer facilities, domestic water facilities, public
utility facilities, landscaping, public lighting facilities, park or recreational improvements and

appurtenances thereto, in or required by the Subdivision Map Act, the subdivision ordinances

of the City, the Tentative Subdivision Map and development agreement, if any, approved by
the City. The foregoing improvements, more specifically listed on Exhibit A attached hereto,

are hereinafter referred to as "the required improvements",

B

C

1

Page 98

06/14/2022 Item No.9.



D City Council has required as a condition precedent to the approval of the Final Map, the

Subdivider first enters into and executes this subdivision improvement agreement with the City

NOW, THEREFORE, the parties agree as follows:

1.

5

Perl'tr ol'Work. Subdivider agrees to fumish, construct, and install at his own

Improvement security in the sum of FIVE MILLION ONE HUNDRED
FORTY-SIX THOUSAND FORTY-THREE AND OO/1OO DOLLARS
($5,146,043.00), which sum is equal to one hundred percent of the total
estimated cost of constructing the required improvements and the cost of any

other obligation to be performed by Subdivider under this Agreement,

conditioned upon the faithful performance of this Agreement; and

Separate improvement security in the sum of FIVE MILLION ONE
HUNDRED FORTY-SIX THOUSAND FORTY-THREE AND OO/1OO

DOLLARS ($5,146,043.00), which sum is equal to one hundred percent of the

2

2

J

expense the required improvements as shown on the approved plans and specifications

of the subdivision, a copy of which is on file in the Community Development

Department, and is incorporated herein by reference, along with any changes or
modifications as may be required by the City Engineer due to errors, omissions,

changes in conditions, or changes in facilities as required by the City Engineer. The

approved plans and specifications of the required improvements may be modified by the

Subdivider as the development progresses, provided that any modification is approved

in writing by the City Engineer. The total estimated cost of the required improvements,

as shown on Exhibit A, is FIVE MILLION ONE HUNDRED FORTY-SIX
THOUSAND FORTY-THREE AND 00/100 DOLLARS ($5,146,043.00).

Work: Satisthction of City Enrrineer. All of the work on the required improvements is

to be done at the places, of the materials, and in the manner and at the grades, all as

shown upon the approved plans and specifications and as required by the City's
Improvement Standards and Standard Construction Specifications and any applicable

City ordinances or state and federal laws, and to the satisfaction of the City Engineer.

Work: "l'inre lor (loru]lrgrlger:rerrt and Performancc. Work on the required

improvements shall be completed by the Subdivider on or before twelve (12) months

from the date of this Agreement. At least fifteen (i 5) calendar days prior to the

commencement of such work, the Subdivider shall notifu the City Engineer in writing
of the date fixed by Subdivider for commencement of the work.

4. Time of Essence: Bxtension.

a. Time is of the essence of this Agreement. The date for completion of the work
of construction may not be extended, except as provided in Section 16.36.110 of
the Folsom Municipal Code.

Inrprovement Security. Concurrently with the execution of this Agreement, the

Subdivider shall furnish the City:

a.

b.

Page 99

06/14/2022 Item No.9.



c

d

estimated cost of constructing the required improvements, securing payment to
the contractor, subcontractor and to persons furnishing labor, materials, or
equipment to them for the construction of the required improvements.

The Subdivider shall deposit with the City THREE THOUSAND AND
NO/100 DOLLARS ($3,000.00) for the Final Map. The deposit may be used at

the discretion of the City to comect deficiencies and conditions caused by the
Subdivider, contractor, or subcontractors that may arise during or after the

constmction of the subdivision.

The estimated total cost of required improvements includes a ten percent (i0%)
construction cost contingency, the cost of the installation of survey monuments

in the Subdivision to guarantee and secure the placement of such monuments as

provided by Section 66496 of the Government Code of the State of California,
and an estimated utility cost in addition to ensure installation of public utilities.
In lieu of providing the estimate of total utility costs, the Subdivider may

submit, in a form acceptable to the City Engineer, certification from the utility
companies that adequate security has been deposited to ensure installation.

Plan Checkine and Inspectien liegs. The Subdivider shall pay to the City fees for the

checking, filing, and processing of improvement plans and specifications, and for
inspecting the construction of the required improvements in the amounts and at the

times established by the City.

Indemnification and Hold Harmless. The Subdivider shall indemnify, protect, defend,

save and hold the City harmless from any and all claims or causes of action for death or

injury to persons, or damage to property resulting from intentional or negligent acts,

effors, or omissions of Subdivider or Subdivider's officerso employees, volunteers, and

agents during performance of this Agreement, or in connection with Subdivider's work,
or from any violation of any federal, state, or municipal law or ordinance, to the extent

caused, in whole or in part, by the willful misconduct, negligent acts, or omissions of
Subdivider or its ernployees, subcontractors, or agents, or by the quality or character of
Subdivider's work. lt is understood that the duty of Subdivider to indemnify and hold

harmless includes the duty to defend as set forth in Section 2778 of the California Civil
Code. Acceptance by City of insurance certificates and endorsements required under

this Agreement does not relieve Subdivider fiom liability under this indemnification
and hold harmless clause. This indemnification and hold harmless clause shall apply to

any damages or claims fbr damages whether or not such insurance policies shall have

been determined to apply, and shall further survive the expiration or termination of this

Agreement. By execution of this Agreement, Subdivider acknowledges and agrees to

the provisions of this Section and that it is a material element of consideration.

Subdivider shall, at his own cost and expense, defend any and all actions, suits, or legal

proceedings that may be brought or instituted against the City, its officers and

employees, on any such claim or demand, and pay or satisff any judgement that may be

rendered against the City in any such actions, suits or legal proceedings, or result

thereof.

6.

7

J

Page 100

06/14/2022 Item No.9.



8 Insurance. Subdivider and any contractors hired by Subdividerto perform any ofthe
Required Improvements shall, at their expense, rnaintain in effect for the duration of
this Agreement or until the required improvements are accepted by the City, whichever

first occurs, not less than the following coverage and limits of insurance, which shall be

maintained with insurers and under forms of policy satisfactory to the City. The

maintenance by Subdivider and it contractors of the following coverage and limits of
insurance is a material element of this Agreement. The failure of Subdivider or any of
its contractors to maintain or renew coverage or to provide evidence of renewal may be

treated by the City as a material breach of this Agreement.

a. Minimum Limits of Insurance, Subdivider shall maintain limits not less than

Comprehensive General Liability: $1,000,000 combined single limit per

occunence fbr bodily injury, personal injury and property damagc.

Automobile Liability: $1,000,000 combined single limit per accident for
bodily injury, personal injury and property damage.

Worker's Compensation and Employers Liability: Worker's
Compensation limits as required by the Labor Code of the State of
California and Employers Liability limits of $1,000,000 per accident.

2.

a
J

b. Deductibles and S-9lf--Insured Retentionq. Any deductibles or self-insured

retentions shall be declared to and approved by the City. At the option of the

City, either: the insurer shall reduce or eliminate such deductibles or self-insured
retentions as respects to a bond guaranteeing payment of losses and related
investigations, claim administration and defense expenses.

Other Insurance Provisions. The policies are to contain, or be endorsed to

contain, the following provisions:

1. General Liability and Automobile Liability Coverages

A The City, its officers, officials, employees and volunteers are to

be covered as insureds as respects: liability arising out of
activities performed by or on behalf of the Subdivider; products

and completed operations of the Subdivider; premises owned,
leased or used by the Subdivider; or automobiles owned, leased,

hired or borrowed by the Subdivider. The coverage shall contain
no special limitations on the scope of protection afforded to the

City, its officets, officials, employees or volunteers.

The Subdivider's insu{ance coverage shall be primary insurance

as respects the City, its officers, officials, employees and

volunteers. Any insurance of self-insurance maintained by the

City, its officials, employees or volunteers shall be excess of the

Subdivider's insurance and shall not contribute with it.

4

c

B

Page 101

06/14/2022 Item No.9.



Any failure to comply with reporting provisions of the policies
shall not alfect coverage provided to the City, its ofticers,
officials, employees or volunteers.

D The Subdivider's insurance shall apply separately to each insured
against whom claim is made or suit is brought, except with
respect to the limits of the insurer's liability.

2 Worker's Compensation and Employers Liability Coverage. The insurer
shall agree to waive all rights or subrogation against the City, its officers,
oflicials, employees and volunteers for losses arising from work
performed by Subdivider for the City.

All Coverages. Each insurance policy required by this clause shall be

endorsed to state that coverage shall not be suspended, voided or
cancelled by either party, reduced in coverage or in limits except after
thirty (30) days prior written notice by certified mail, return receipt
requested, has been given to the City.

Acceptability of Insurers. Insurance is to be placed with insurers with a Best's
rating of not less than A: VII.

Verit'igrtLion of Coveragc. Concurrently with the execution of this Agreement,
the Subdivider shall furnish the City with original endorsements affecting
coverage required by this clause. The endorsements for each insurance policy
are to be signed by a person authorized by that insurer to bind coverage on its
behalf. The City reserves the right to require complete, certified copies of all
required insurance policies at any time.

Title to Improvements. Title to and ownership of the required public improvements
constructed under this Agreement by Subdivider shall vest absolutely in the City upon
completion and written acceptance of such improvements by the City Engineer. The City
Engineer shall not accept the required improvements unless Subdivider certifies that such
improvements have been constructed in conformity with the approved plans and specifications,
approved modifications, if any, the approved Final Map, City Improvement Standards and

Standard Construction Specifications, any applicable City Ordinances or State and Federal laws
and after 35 days from the date of filing of a Notice of Completion.

Warranty Security. Prior to acceptance of the required improvements by the City Engineer, the

Subdivider shall provide security in the amount and in the form as required by the City
Engineer to guarantee the improvements against any defective work or labor done or defective
materials used in the performance of thc required improvements (Warranty Security)
throughout the wamanty security period which shall be the period of one year following
completion and written acceptance of the improvements (Wananty Security Period). The

amount of the Warranty Security shall not be less than 10 percent of the cost of the construction
of the improvements, including the cash deposit required in paragraph 5C of this agreemento

which shall be retained for the Warranty Security Pcriod.

5

C.

-l

d

e.

9

10

Page 102

06/14/2022 Item No.9.



11

12.

13

t4

Repair or Recpnstruction o1'Defective Work or Matetiltls. If, within the Warranty Security

Period or the applicable statute of limitations, whichever is longer, any improvement or part of
any improvement furnished and/or installed or constructed by Subdivider or any of the work
done under this Agreernent fails to fulfill any of the requirements of the Agreement or the

specifications ret'erred to herein as determined by the City, Subdivider shall without delay and

without any cost to the City, repair, replace, or reconstruct any defective or otherwise

unsatisfactory part or parts of the required improvements. If the Subdivider fails to aot

promptly or in accordance with this requirement, or if the exigencies of the situation require

repairs or replacements to be made before the Subdivider can be notified, then the City may, at

its option, make the necessary repairs or replacements ot perform the necessary work, and

Subdivider shall pay to City the actual cost of such repairs plus tifteen percent (15%) within
thirty (30) days of the date of billing for such work by City. The parties further understand and

agree that the Warranty Security furnished pursuant to paragraph l0 of this Agreement shall

guarantee and secure the faithful performance and payment of the provisions of this paragraph

during the Warranty Security Period.

Subdivider Not Aqent ol'Clity. Neither Subdivider nor any of Subdivider's agents or
contractors are or shall be considered to be agents of City in connection with the performance

of Subdivider''s obligations under this Agreement'

NqJice of Breach and Default. If Subdivider refuses or fails to prosecute the work, or any part

thereof, with such diligence as will ensure its cornpletion within the time specified, or any

extension thereof, or fails to complete the work within such time, or if Subdivider should be

adjudged a bankruptcy, or Subdivider should make a general assignment for the benefit of his

creditors, or if a receiver should be appointed in the event of Subdivider's insolvency, or if
Subdivider or any of Subdivider's contractors, subcontractors, agents or employees should

violate any of the provisions of this Agreement and the City may, but is under no obligation to,

serve written notice upon Subdivider and Subdivider's surety, if any, of breach of this

Agreement, or of any portion thereof.

Blgaqlr of Agreement: Per -brrnance By Surqty or Citv. In the event of any such notice,

Subdivider's surety, if any, shall have the duty to take over and complete the work and the

required improvements; provided, however, that if the surety within fifteen (15) days after the

serving of such notice of breach upon it does not give the City written notice of its intention to

take over the performance thereof within fifteen (15) days after notice to the City of such

election, then the City may take over the work and prosecute the same to completion by

contract, or by any other method the City may deem advisable, for the account and at the

expense of the Subdivider, and the Subdivider's surety shall be liable to City for any excess

costs of damages incurred by the City;and in such event, the City, without liability for so

doing, may take possession of and utilize in completing the work, such materials, appliances,

plant or other property belonging to Subdivider as may be on the site of the work and necessary

therefor,

If the form of improvement security is other than a bond, then the City, after giving notice of
breach of the Agreement, may proceed to collect against the improvement security in the

manner provided by law and by the terms of the security instrument.

6

Page 103

06/14/2022 Item No.9.



l5 Notices. All notices required under this Agreement shall be in writing, and delivered in person
or sent by registered or certified mail, postage prepaid.

Notices required to be given to City shall be addressed as follows:

City of Folsom
Community Development Department

50 Natoma Street
Folsomo CA 95630

ATTN: Cify Engineer

Notices required to be given to Subdivider shall be addressed as follows:

Toll West,Inc. which will do business in California as Toll Brothers West,Inc., a

Delaware Corporation
2330 East Bidwell Street, Suite 20L

Folsomn CA 95630
ATTN; Greg Van Dam, Vice President - Land Dcvelopment

Notices required to be given surety, if any, of Subdivider shall be addressed as follows

Any party of the surety may change such address by notice in writing to the other party and

thereafter notices shall be addressed and transmitted to the new address.

16. Attorne),'s Fees. In the event any legal action is brought to enforce or interpret this Agreement,
the prevailing parfy shall be entitled to an award of reasonable attorney's fees, in addition to
any other relief to which he may be entitled.

17. Assignment. This Agreement shall bind and inure to the benefit of the assigns, successors in
interest, heirs, executors, and administrators of the parties, and the parties agree that the City
may cause a copy of this Agreement to be recorded in the Sacramento County Recorder's
Office.

7

Page 104

06/14/2022 Item No.9.



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement as follows:

SUBDIVIDER

Toll West,Inc. which will do business in California as Toll Brothers Westr Inc.,
A Delaware Corporation

BY BY:

Print Name: Print Name:

Title: Title

DATE DATE:

CITY OF FOLSOM, a Municipal Corporation

DATE
Elaine Andersen
CITY MANAGER

ATTEST:

DATE
Christa Freemantle
CITY CLERK

APPROVED AS TO CONTENT:

DATE
Pam.lohns
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DIRECTOR

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Steven Wang
CITY ATTORNEY

DATE

NOTICE: SIGNATURE(S) ON BEHALF OF ..SUBDIVIDER,'MUST BE NOTARIZED
Certificate of Acknowledgement pursuant to Civil Code, Section 1189, must be attached.

SUBDIVISION AGREEMENT - Toll Brothers at Folsom Ranch Phase lE Subdivision

8

Page 105

06/14/2022 Item No.9.



Slte Preparation

Sanltary Sewer System

Storm Draln System

Potable Water Dlstribution System

Concrete

Streetwork

Mlscellaneous

Street Lights & Joint Trench

Landscaping

Contlngency (10%)

EXHIBITA

FOLSOM PLAN AREA
Bond Estimote Summory

for
Toll Erothers Phase 7E

May9,2Q22

lmprovement Plans for Toll Brothers Phase lE

Total

s 27,500.00

s eos,oo9.00 s

$ 02a,543.7s S

s 620,540.00 $

I +00,635.00 S

$ 023,535.45 $

s L3,760,00 s

Cost to Complete

27,500.00

505,009.00

628,543.7s

620,540.00

450,635.00

623.s35.45

13.760.00

S1, s75.240.00 s 1,575,240.00

s 122,460.00 s t22.460.00

s 467,820.00 $ 467,820.00

35r74

Grand Total Cost of lmProvements $ s,1cs,o4?.20 $ 5,t46,O43.20

Page 106

06/14/2022 Item No.9.



Cost of lmprovements
ITEM

NO. QUANTITY UNIT DESCRIPTION

Slte Pr€prtatlon and Earthwork

l, 27.5 AC Eroslon control

Sanltary Sewer System

UNIT PRICE

s 1,000.00

Subtotal Slte Pleparatlon

AMoUNT % Complete cost to complete

l_,_4l!!qqq*..--0'6 . l- 27,s00'00.

AdJust SanltarY sewer Manhole Rlm

48" standard Sanltary sewer Manhole

4" Sanltary Sewer Servlce

6" Ssnltary Sewer, PVC sOR 26

8" sanltary sewer, PVc 50R 26

s 27,s00.00 S z7,soo.oo

!00.0c

4.500.00 $ 108,000,fiJ Oyo I 108.000.fi0

0t6

60.00 OYt

500.00 $ 50{r.tXt (}tl' $
L,

2.
?

4,

1

z4

146

r,263
3,939

EA

EA

EA

LF

LF

s

$

$ 1,ooo.oo

$
s

$

$ 70.00-

subtotal SanitarY Sewer System t606,009.1,0 s 606,009.00

Storm Draln System

1. 1,313

2. 359

3. 805

4, 7141
5. 462

5. 236

7. Z!4

LL7
9, 10

10. 2

11. 1

72. 77

13. 7

14. 22

5871
1,200

37

40,692

7,040

LF 12" sto.m Draln, RCP cL lll

LF 15" Storm Dreln, RCPCLIII

LF 18" storm Dtaln, RCP CL lll

[F 24" sto.m Draln, RCP Cl lll

[F 30" Storm Dtaln, RCP cL lll

tF 36" Storm Draln, RcP cLlll
[F 42" Storm Draln, RCP CL lll

EA 48" Standatd Storm Draln Manhole

EA 60"standardStotmDraln Manhole

EA 72"StandardStormDralnManhole
EA 96" Storm Draln Manhole

EA Type GoL-7 lon-Gradel Dralnage lnlet

EA Type GOL-lo (on-Gradel oralnage lnlet

EA Modifled Type'B'Dralnage lnlet

_$ 4,!qq4q_ 5 70,5flJ.0t!

5
.l -_ 45,0!

55.00

I
I -,m:0!*65.00

70.00

5 80.00

$ ._. e0.00

s 5.000,00

..., 7,m0.00
9.000.00

745,55

)

.60 o%

OYo

$ 14.500.00 $ o%

o96 5

s 7,500.00

".$- , 3,!-90.00

o%

o%

I 7,500.00

Polable Wet€r Olstrlbutlon System

77 77

Subtotal Storm Draln System s628,543,7s $628,54€.7s

55.00

s 70.00

. 5 _, 1,000.00

s 2,000-00 $ 36,000.00 o% S 35,0r10.00

LF

LF

EA

EA

EA

EA

EA

EA

EA

4,066

L,713

144

18

7

2

5

73

2

8" Water Maln, PVC c900 CL 235

12'' Water Main, PVC c900 CL 235

1" water Servlce

8" Gate valve

12" Eutterfly Valve

4" Blow-off Valve & Box

Remove Blow'Otfvalve & Connect

Flre HVdrant Assembly (5" tead &

2" Alr & Vacuum Release valve

s 2,s00.00

S z,soo.oo

$ soo.oo

3.500.00

s 20,00

!i 20.00

15.m

$ _ s.00

s s,00

$ 5,000,00 0% s il9949-

s1.

2.

3,

4.

5,

6.

7.

8.

9.

0%

$o% L7

7 0y" Is

Subtotal Potable Water 0lstrlbutlon System

Concrete 0*
L.

2.

3,

4.

5.

tF TYPe 1 Rolled Curb & Gutter

LF T},Pe 2 Vertlcal Curb & Gutter

LF Type 5 Medlan Curb

5F Sldewalk(6" Pccl

sF seperated Sldewalk(6" PCC)

t: 0% 5 24,000.m

Subtotal Concrete

P:V954LWEST\Admln\Estlmates\sld'Bond Estlmates\Ts PHlE-Bond Estlmate 'xlrxPage 107

06/14/2022 Item No.9.



stre6twork
Ton Asphalt concrete (TYPe 'B')

Ton A8g.egate Base lclass 2]

LF 12" Whlte Strlpe Llmlt Llne (Stop Unel

LF 6" Pavementstrlplng

sF Pavement Marklngs

EA StopSlgn lRl-Ll on Post

EA streetNameSlsnon Post

LF Street Balrlcade

LF Sldewalk Barrlcade

LF 4" PVC (ScH 80) lrrlgatlon Sleeves

LF 5" PVc (scH 80| lrtlgatlon Sleeves

LoT JolntTrench Excavatlon & BacKlll

LF lolnt Trench lxcavatlon & Backflll

EA LEO Street tlght (lncludlng Condult,

Wlrlng and APPurtenances

Subtotal Street Llghts & Jolnt Trench

$ ).rr!!400.0n .. tJL - $- zsn,a00.t!t..

I lrx,r.84o.oo 016 - $ ryrrylq
g :t6t.UO o/o 5 36f ,0O

S _ 8i149_ 861.00,

s 4,612.45 016 $ 4,61?.45

-_--

I {r.o0o.00 Ot6 5 6,000,00

o%

{ 80.00
1,

I

4,

5,

6,

8.

9.

3,70s

15,042

tat
861

926

74

54

16

-$ - _ 20.qq

. s *,?,00 .

_s *_ __,1,00s s,00

Mlicellaneous

1. 608

7. 232

Street Llght3 & Jolnt T.ench

Landscaplng

I 12,746

_$_ _--{94q-
$ .. _- soo.oo

$, 60.00

S r!.oo

subtotal Streetwork

i _. 1s.go_

$ 2.0.00

Subtotal Miscellaneous

$ -_.8*g-oq!q-
- 5 180.00 -

-t -. -Ll.goq'gS-
s 348,000.00 ord

_ S623,s3s.45

s13,760.00

5 1,r52,00i1.00 m( S 1,r5l,fixJ'otl

3 7s.240.00 ot6 S 75,240.00

s 348,000.00

$ l,szs,e,lo.oo S 1,57s,240,00

. $13,760,00

1

z

3

r44
418

30

$ 10,00 I 122,460.00 o% ssF Landscape & lrrlgalion

Subtotal LandscaPlng

TotEl PhasE 1E

ContlngencY

Total Eond Estlmste

Summarv Phase 1E

Slt€ Preparatlon & Earthwotk

Sanltary Sewer

sto.m Draln

Potrble w8le.

Con€rete

Streetwork

Mlscellaneous

Street Llghts & Jolnt Trench

Ldndscaplng

ContlngenEY

TOTATS

$ 122,46Q-oq

S 4,678,223'20

trglrf:--{q..ctq!g-

I t!!6,!41!0

Total Cost

$ 27,500,00

$ 6o6,ooe.oo

$ q4,s43jzl

$ 6r0,s40.00

S r5o,6ls.oo

s 623,53s.45

s 13,760,00

$ 1,5:t3!9f9.
$ 122,450.00

$ 462,820.00

( 727-.460.00

I 4,6tfl,'?7A,?.0

$ {67,820.00

$ 5,146,013.20

Cost to ComPlete

I 27,500,00

$ 606,009,00

S 628,513.75

s 6205fit.00

$ qoo,egs.oo

623,535.45

$ 13,760.00

l_ l,szs,zco.oo

S 12al050.00

S 467,820.00

$

400.00

P:V964LWE5I\Admln\Estlmates\Bld-Bond EstlmalesvB PHlE-Bond EsUmate 'xlsx

$ 5,146,043.20 s 5,1{6,0{i}.20

Page 108

06/14/2022 Item No.9.



BOND #
PREMIUM:

PERFORMANCE BOND
for

Subdivision Improvement Agreement

WHEREAS, The City Council of the City of Folsom, a Municipal Corporation in the State of
Califbrnia, and Toll West,Inc. which will do business in California as Toll Brothers West,Inc., a

Delaware Corporation, (hereinafter designated as "Principal") have entered into an agreement where

by principal agrees to install and complete ceftain designated public improvements, which said

agreement, dated 2022, and identified as the Toll Brothers at Folsom Ranch Phase IE
Subdivision Improvement Agreement is hereby referred to and made a part hcreof; and,

WHEREAS, Said Principal is required under the terms of said agreement to furnish a bond for
the fhithful performance of said agreement;

NOW THEREFORE, We, the principal, and

*f","dt"*th.ctf if :fJ;'"I;i:;*':?;l{,$'ffi'i"i"'H*Hffiff s"llT'il6h+"i:f#"'
THOUSAND FORTY-THR"EE AND 00/100 DOLLARS ($5,146,043.00), lawful money of the

United States, for the payment of which sum well and truly to be made, we bind ourselves, our heirs,

successors. executors, and administrators, jointly and severally firmly by these presents.

The condition of this obligation is such that if the above bounded principal, its heirs, executors,

administrators, successors or assigns, shall in all things stand to and abide by, and well and truly keep

and perform the covenants, conditions, and provisions in the said agreement and any alteration thereof

made as therein provided, on its part, to be kept and performed at the time and in the manner therein

specified, and in all respects according to their true intent and meaning, and shall indemnifi and save

harmless the City, its officers, agents, and ernployees, as therein stipulated, then this obligation shall

become null and void; otherwise it shall be and remain in full force and effect.

As a part of the obligation secured hereby and in addition to the face amount specified therefor,

there shall be included costs and reasonable expenses and fees, including reasonable attomey's fees,

incurred by City in successful enforcing such obligation, all to be taxed as costs and included in any

judgment rendered.

The surety hereby stipulates and agrees that no change, extension of time, alteration or addition

to the terms of the agreement or to the work to be performed thereunder or the specifications

accompanying the same shall in any way affect its obligations on this bond, and it does hereby waive

notice of any such change, extension of time, alteration or addition to the terms of the agreement or to

the work or to the specifications.

Page 109

06/14/2022 Item No.9.



IN MTNESS WHEREOF, this instrument has been duly executed by the principal and surety
' ,2022

(PRINCIPAL)

BY
(PRINCIPAL)

BY
(sURETY)

(ADDRESS)

(CITY, STATE, ZIP)

(TELEPHONE)

APPROVED AS TO FORM

CITY ATTORNEY

BY

Page 110

06/14/2022 Item No.9.



BOND #
PREMIUM

I.ABOR & MA]'IRIAI"S BONI)
for

Subdivision Improvement Agreement

WHEREAS, The City Council of the City of Folsom, a Municipal Corporation of the State of
California, and Toll West,Inc. which will do business in California as Toll Brothers West,Inc., a
Delaware Corporation (hereinafter designated as "Principal"), have entered into an agreement

whereby principal agrees to install and cornplete cefiain designated public improvements, which said

agreement, dated 2022, and identified as the Toll Brothers at Folsom Ranch Phase LE

Subdivision Improvement Agreement is hereby referred to and made a part hereof; and,

WI{EREAS, under the terms of said agreement, principal is required before entering upon the
performance of the work, to file a good and sufficient payment bond with the City of Folsom to secure

the claims to which reference is made in Title 15 (commencing with Section 3082) of Part 4 of
Division 3 of the Civil Code of the State of California;

NOW THEREFORE, said principal and the undersigned as corporate srrety, are held firmly
bound unto the City of Folsom and all contractors, subcoritractors, laborers, materialmen and other
persons employed in the performance of the aforesaid agreement and referred to in the aforesaid Code

of Civil Procedure, in the sum of FIVE MILLION ONE HUNDRED FORTY-SIX THOUSAND
FORTY-THREE AND 001100 DOLLARS ($5,146,043.00) for materials furnished or labor thereon

of any kind, or for amounts due under the Unemployment Insurance Act with respect to such work or
labor, that said surety will pay the same in an amount not exceeding the amount hereinabove set forth,
and also in case suit is brought upon this bond, will pay, in addition to the face amount thereof, cost

and reasonable expenses and fees, including reasonable attorney's fees, inoured by City in
successfully enforcing such obligation, to be awarded and fixed by the court, and to be taxed as costs

and to be included in the judgment therein rendered.

It is hereby expressly stipulated and agreed that this bond shall inure to the benefit ofany and

all persona, companies and corporations entitled to file claims under'fitle 15 (commencing with
Section 3082) of Part 4 of Division 3 of the Civil Code, so as to give a right of action to them or their
assigns in any suit brought upon this bond.

Should the condition of this bond be fully performed, then this obligation shall become null and

void, otherwise it shall be and remain in tirll force and effect.

The surety hereby stipulates and agrees that no change, extension of time, alteration, or

addition to the terms of said agreement or the specifications accompanying the same shall in any

manner affect its obligations on this bond, and it does hereby waive notice of any such change,

extension, alteration, or addition.

Page 111

06/14/2022 Item No.9.



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this instrument has been duly executed by the principal and surety

above namgd, on ,2022.

BY
(PRINCIPAL)

(PRINCIPAL)

BY
(suRETY)

(ADDRESS)

(CITY, STATE, ZIP)

(TELEPHONE)

APPROVED AS TO FORM

CITY ATTORNEY

BY

Page 112

06/14/2022 Item No.9.



ATTACHMENT 3

Toll Brothers at Folsom Ranch Phase lE Subdivision
Final Map

Page 113

06/14/2022 Item No.9.



OWNER'S STATEMENT CITY ENGINEER'S STATEMENT

BE UNDERSIGNED DOES HEREBY STATE frATWEARE THE ONLY PARTIES HAVINCAW RECORO TME
IMEREST IN THE RAL PROPERN NCLIDED WfrIN THE BOUNDARIES OF THIS FINAL ffiP OF
TOLL BROTHERS AT FOLSOM RANCH - PHASE 1E" AND DO HEREBY OECLARE THE CONSENT FROM NO

OTHER PERSON IS NECES$RY, AND W CONS€NT TO frE PREPAMTION AND RECORDATION OF THIS

I HEREBY STATE THAT I HAVE MMINED THIS FINAL MAP OF 'TOLL BROTHERS AT FOLSOM RANCH -
PHASE lE'AND FIND IT TO BE SUBSTANThLLY THE SAME AS IHE ]ENTATIVE MP APPROVED BY THE

Cfi COUNCIL OF THE CIry OF FOLSOM, AND THAT ALL PROVISIONS OFTHE SUBDIVISION MAP ACT AND
ALLAPPLICABLE CIry ORDINANCES HAVE BEEN COM4IEDWM.

WE DO HEREBY DEDICATE FOR SPECIFIC PURPOSES THE FOLLWNG|

1. A PUSLIC EASEMENT FOR THE INSTALUNON AND MINTENANCE OF DMIN, GAS, SEWER AND
WATER PIPESAND FOR UNDERGROUNDWIR€S AND CONDUITS FOR ELECTRICAL, TELflISION ANO

COMMUNICATIONS SERVICES, IOGETHER WITH ANY AND ALL APPURTENANCES PERTAINING

NERflO ON, OVER, UNDER AND ACROSS LOTS E, AK, AL, AM, AN AND THOSE STRIPS OF UND
SHOWN HEREON AND DESIGMED "PIBLIC UTILfr EASEMENT'lP,U.E.).

2. A PUBLIC EASEMENT FOR PEDESNhNACCESS ON, OVERAND ACROSS THOSE STRIPS OF UND
SHOWN HEREON AND DESIGNAED ?ED€SNAN ACCESS EASEMEtr (P3.E.).

STEVEN R, KRAHN. RCE49291
CIfrENGINEER
ctry oF FoLsoM
LICENSE EXPIRES: 09/30/2022

3, A PUBLIC SSEMENT AND RIGHT OF WAY FOR frE INSTALLAION. REPAIR, REMOVAL OR
REPUCEMENT OF UNDSCAPING TOGETHER WIfr AW AND ALL APPURTENANCES PERTAINING
TAERETO ON, OVER. UNOER, ACROSS ANO ABOVE THOSE STRIPS OF SNOS SHOWN HEREON
AND DESIGNATEO'SNDSCAPE EASEMENT" (1,E.),

4, AN EASEMEM FOR INGRE$ANO EGRESS FOR SUPPORTAND USE 8Y UW ENFORCEMENT, FIRE
PROTECTION WELFARE AND OffER PUSLIC AGENCIES, THEIR VEHICLES AND PERSONNEL OVER
LOT E SHOWN NEREON AND DESIGNATED "EMERGENCYVEHICLE ACCESS ASEMENI" (E,V.A.).

DATE] _

CITY SURVEYOR'S STATEMENT

I HEREBY STATE THAT I HAVE EXAMINED ffIS FIML MAP OF TOU BRONERS AT FOLSOM RANCH

PHASElEANDIAMSATISFIEDTHATSAIDMPISTECHNICALLYCORRECT.

5. A PUBLrc ASEMENT FOR CONSNUCTION AND ffiINTAINING CENTMLEED MAIL DELIVERY BOXES,
PEOESTALS ANO SUBS TOGETHER WTH ANY AND ALL APPURTEMNCES PERTAINING THERETO
INCLUDING PEDESTRhN ACCESS FOR DELIVERY ANO RECEIPT OF MAIL ON. OVER AND ACROSS
STRIPS OF UNO FVE (5) FEEI IN WDTH CONTiGUOUS AND OUTSIOE THE PROPERry LNE
OFLOTE(PRIVATE ROAD),

VICINITY MAP
N.T.S

NOTARY'S ACKNOWLEDGMENT
GERALDA.YOUNG, L,S. 3S2
CIry SURVEYOR

IDENTIW OF THE INDIVIOUAL WHO SIGNED THE MUMENT TO WHICH THIS CERNFrcATE IS
ANACHED, AND NOT THE TRUTHFULNESS, ACCUMCY OR

DAE:_

CITY CLERK'S STATEMENTTOLLWEST INC, WHICH WILL DO BUSINESS IN CALIFORNIA
STATE OF CALIFORNh

COUNW OFAS TOLL BROTHERS WEST INC.,
A OELAWARE CORPOMTION I HEREBY SIAE THATruE CIry COUNCILOFBE CIry OF FOLSOM HASAPPROVED THIS FINAL MAP OF

,TOLL BROTHERS AT FOISOM MNCH - PffiSE 1E', AND AAS ACCEPTED, ON BEHALF OF THE PUBLIC,
SUBJECT TO IMPROVEMENTS ALL RIGHT$OF-WAY AND EASEMENTS OFFEREO HEREON FOR

OEDI*IION IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE TERMS OF TMT OFFER ANO HAS APPROVED THE

ABANDONMENT OF THEEASEMENTS LISTED HEREON,NAME]
TITLE

DATE

ON- BEFORE ME,-, A NOTARY PUBLIC

PERSONI LLY ADPEAqED 

-

WHO PROVED TO ME ON THE BASIS OF SATISFACTORY WIDENCE TO BE THE PERSON(S) WHOSE

NAME(S) IS/ARE SUBSCRIBED TO THE WITHIN INSTRUMENT AND AC(NOWLEDGED TO ME THAT

HE/SHffiil EXECUGD TNE SAME IN AS/H€ilHEIR AWHORIZED CAPACIfl(ES), AND TilT BY
HPHERMflR SrcMruRE(S) ON THE NSNUMENTTHE PERSON(S), OR THE ENTN UrcN BEHALF OF

WHICH THE PERSON(S)ACTED, SECUED THE INSTRUMENI

NAME'
IITLE:

DATE I CERTIfl UNDER PENALW OF PERJURY UNDER THE UWS OF THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA THATTHE
FOREGOING PAMGMPH IS NUEAND CORRECT.

CHRISTA FREEMANTLE
CIryCLERK

WNESS W HAND AND OFFICIAI S4L.

SURVEYOR'S STATEMENT
THIS MP WAS PREPARED BY ME OR UNBER MY DIRECTION AND S MSED UPil A FIELD SURVry N
CONFORMNCE WA fE REOUIREMENIS OF NE SUBDVISION MP ACT AND LMAL ORDINANCE AT
THE REOUEST OFTOLLWEST INC. WHICH WLL DO BUSINESS IN SLIFORNA AS TOLL BROTHERS WESI
INC,. A DEUWARE CORPORAT€N IN APRIL 2021 , I HEREry STATE THAT frIS FINAL MAP SUBSTANThIY
coNFoRMs To THE coNDmoMLLY APPRoVED IENTATIVE MAP| THAT THE MoNUMENTS WLL BE OF THE

CilMCT€RANDWILL OCCUPY THE POSITIONSAS INDICATED AND WLL SE SET BY DECEMSER 31,2024,
AND THATSAID MONUMENTS WILL BE SUtrICIENTTO ENABLETHE SURVEY TO BE RETRACEO.

SIGNATURE PRINTEDMME

MY PR|NC|PAL PUCE OF BUSINESS lS_COUNry

RECORDER'S STATEMENT

wcoMMrssrs COMMISSION NUMBERI

FILED TH|S.'....''..'.'..._ DAy OF _ 2V2, AT _.M. tN BOOK OF MPS,
AT PAGE 

- 

AI IHE REOUEST OF MCMY & SOMPS CIVIL ENGINEERS INC. NTLE TO THE UNO
INCLUOED IN BIS FINAL MAP BEING WSTED AS PER CERNFISTE NO. ON

FIIE IN BISOFFICE.

NOTARY'S ACKNOWLEDGMENT

A NOIARY PUBTIC OR OTHER OFFICER COMPLETING THIS CERTIFICAE VERIFIES ONLY THE
IOENTfr OF THE INDIVIDUAL WHO SIGNED THE DOCUMENT TO WHICH THIS CERNflCATE 15

AfrACHED. AND NOT THE TRUTHFULNESS, ACCUMCY OR VALIDIW OF NAT MUMENT,

DOCUMENTNO.:_
MACXAY &SOMPS CVILENGINEERS, INC,

DONNAALLRED
SACMMENIO C@NW RECORDER

STATE OF *LIFORNh

FOR REVIEW ONLY STATE OFCAIIFORNA FEE: $_

PAULFERGUSON JR.,N592S
ilPIMTION OATEi MARCH 31, 424

c@Nfl oF_

ON- BEFORE NOTARY PU8lIC

DrE______jfi@__ PERSONALLYAPPEARED-
wHo pRoED ro ME oN ne mss or srrsrnEi6FiEi6Ei6ET6-ETETEn-66=
NAMEIS) IgARE SUBSCRIBED TO THE WNN INSTRUMENT ANO ACKNOWLEDGED TO ME TMT
HASHtrHEY UECUTED flE SME IN HISEMHEIR AfHORIZED CAPACIfl(ES), ANO THAT BY
HIS/HERMAR SIGNATURE(S) ON THE INSTRUMENT THE PERSON(S) OR THE ENTIry UPON AEAALF OF
WHICH THE PERSON(S) ACTED, qECITED THE INSTRUMENT,

ICERTIryUNDERPENALryOFPERJURYUNDERTHEUWSOFIHESTATEOFMLIFORNIATNATTHE
FOREGOING PAMGRAPH IS TRUE AND CORRECT,

WMESS W MNDAND OFFICIALSSL

ffi

My pRtNctPAL pucE oF BUSTNESS tS_COUNil

W COMMISSION EXPIRES|_W COMMISSION NUMSER

F|NAL MAP (PN 19-091)

TOLL BROTHERS AT FOLSOM
RANCH PFL{SE 1E

A SUBOIVISION OF LO] 1E OF IHAT CERTAIN FINAL MAP TtrLED 'TOLL BROTHERS AT FOLSOM RANCH
PtsASE 18 & 1C'FILED Fffi RECORD SEMMSER 13, 2021 IN BOOK 431 OF MPS, AT PAG€ ].
SACRAMENTO COUNfr RECORDS. BEING IN SECNON 20, TOWNSHIP 9 NORH, RANGE 8 SST, MOUNT

DIABLO MERIDAN

CITY OF FOLSOM . SACRAiiIENTO COUNTY . CALIFORNIA,

NAVD88 BENCHMARK-CIry OF FOLSOM

SENCHMARK'77' ELEVAION:38o.2E NAVDEB

BRASS DISK STAMPEO 'CIW OF FOLSOM BM 7?' ON TtsE NORTHMST CORNER OF A CONCRETE
DMINAGE SNUCruRE. LOCATION OF SITE ISAPPROXIMAELY 1SO FEET SOUTH OFTHE IffiRSECTION
OF MANGINI FARMAY AND E, BIWELL STREET ON THE AST SIDE OF E. SIOWELL SNEET.
APPROXIMATE UTITUOET N38O 37' 30.01' LoNGITUDE: W 1 21 D 0S 49.04'

ELWATION OF380.28WAS ESTABLISHED BYA DIFFERENTIAL LWELCIRCUITFROMCOUW SENCHMARK
UO1+O@ STAMPED'KA56'IN FEBRUARY2Ol4 BY MACKAY AND SOMPS CVIL ENGINEERS. INC.

JUNE 2022

SHEET.I OF 9

18

SEE SHEET 2 FOR TRUSTEE'S STATEIVIENT AND ACKNOWLEDGMENT
nACKTY&$0mPS
Silffi PWRS SBM

.cA6dr (916)r!r39

Page 114

06/14/2022 Item No.9.



TRUSTEE'S STATEMENT

NAME:

TITLE:

NOTARY'S ACKNOWLEDGMENT

NOTES

FIRST AMERIqN NTLE COMPANY, AS TRUSEE UNDER DEED OF TRUST AND ASSIGNMENT OF RENTS
WIfr FIXTURE FILING, RECORDED AUGUST 24, 2020, AS OOCUMENT NUMBER 2O2OOE24O69O AND
AMENDED BY DOCIMENT NUMBER20210122@6, RECORDED JANUARY 22,2021, OFFICIAL RECORDS.
HEREBY CONSENTS TO THE RECORDAION OF THIS MAP AND THE SUBDVISION OF THE UNDS SHOWN
HEREON.

17.1. ALI CURVE DIMENSIONS ARE RADIUS, DELTA AND ARC LENGTH. ALL OISTANCES SHOW ARE
GROUNO DISTANCESANO ARE IN FEETAND DECIMALS THEREOF. DUE TO ROUNDING THE SUM OF

frE LANO OESCRIBEO HEREIN LIESWITHIN THE BOUNDARY OFTHECIry OF FOLSOM, COMMUNIry
FACILITIES OISTR|CT NO. 18 (FOLSW PUN AREA - W|OE TMPROVEMENTS ANo SERVTCES), AS
DISCLOSED il THAT CERTAIN ASSESSMENT MAP RECORDED DECEMBER 9, 2015, AS
(8OOK) 201 s1 2@ {PAGE) 427 AND rS SUBJECT TO ANY FUTURE ASSE$MENT BEREOF.
. D@UMENT(S) DECURING MODIFICATIONS THEREOF RECORDED NOVEMBER ]6, 2018 AS

8O0K20181116. PAGE q65 0F OFF|CIAL RECORoS.

THE UND DESCRIBED HEREIN LIES WTHIN THE EOUNOARY OFTHE CIfr OF FOLSOM COMMINIfr
FACtLtTtES D6nCT NO 23 (FOLSOM RANCH) TMPRWEMENTAREA NO.3, RECOROEDJUNE 8 2020
AS (B@K) 20206@ (PAGE) 1611 AS O|SCLOSED BY THAT CERTATN A$ESSMENT MAP (BOOK)130
oF MAPSAT (PAGE)27 RECORDED APRTL 20,2020 OF OFF|ChL RECORDS.
. OOCUMENT(S) DECURING MOOIFISTIONS THEREOF RECORDED DECEMBER 4, 2021 AS

BOOK rc21120, PAGE 0572 OFOFFICIAL RECORDS.

THE UND DESCRIBED HEREIN LIES WITHIN THE BOUNOARY OFTHE CIil OF FOLSOM COMMUMry
FACtLtTtES D|STR|CT NO. 23 (FOLSOM RANCH) TMPROVEMENT AR4 NO. 7, RECORDED OECEMBER
20,2021 AS BOOX 20211220, PAGE0571 0FOFFICTALRECORDS.

20. PROPERfl SUSJECT TO FOLSOM CORDOVA UNIFIED SCH@L DISTRICT SCHOOL FACILtrIES
IMPROVEMENT D]STRICT NO. 3PER 2@60707O.R, 0652,

21. ffE UND LIES WITts ftE BOUNDARIES OF PROPOSED SCHOOL FACILITIES IMPROVEMENT
D|5TRICTNO.2.

A NOTARY PUBLIC OR OTHER OFflCER COMPLETING THIS CERNFrcAE WRIFIES ONLYTHE IDENTfl
OF IHE INDIVIDIAL WHO SIGNED ftE DOCUMENT TO WHICH THIS CERTIFICATE IS AfrACHED. AND
NOT THE TRUTN FULNESS ACCUMCY OR VALIDIil OF THAT DOCUMENT,

STAE OF *LIFORNA

COUNfr OF

THIS FINAL MAP CONTAINS S,213+ ACRES GROSS CONSISTING OF 147 RESIDENTIAL LOTS
ANDoLETTERED LOTS. THE RESIOENTIAL LOTS ARE NUMSEREO WB THE FOLLOWING
SEOUENCEST 297 -43. nE LEnEREO LOISARE: E, L, AM, AN, AL ANo AK.

"GEOTE*NICAL ENGINEERING STUDY - UPDATE FOR REGENCY AT FOLSOM RANCH"
(PROJECTNO.E17053.@2) WAS PREPARED BY YOUNGoAHL CONSULING GROUP, tNC tN MAy,
2019. AND IS AVAIUBLE FOR PUBLIC INSPECTION AT THE CN OF FOLSOM COMMUNIfl
DSELOPMENT DEPARTMFNI

4. ALL FRONT LOT CORNERS WILL BE SET WITH A 1" DIAMETER BRASS DISC STAMPED "LS 9265' ON
THE SIOEWALK WITH A ] ,OO FOOT OFFSfl ON BE SIDE PROPERN LINE €XTENDED. {SEE DETATLS
HEREON).

5, RAR CORNERS WLL BE SETAS FOLLOWS (UNLESS SHflN OTHERWSE)
5.1- FOR LOTS S0, 301, 310, 311, 341 - 382, 387 - €5, 408 - 424, 44 - €9 AND COMMON LTNES OF

31ffi 1 7, 38236?3843S, S6/3A7re2, 4071408 ANO 42q425 W|LL 8E SET Wm A 18. REilR AND
PUSTIC CAP STAMPED'LS 9265",

s.2- FOR LOIS 297, 296, 3@ - 308, 318 - 328, 330 - g0 AND COMMON LTNES OF 299/300, S2/303,
3@810. 312313, 314, 314/315 317t318,32ilX29,426t127,4Al41 AND 4243 W|LL BE Sfl WB
A 4.OO FOOT OFFSET ON THE SIDE LOT LINE WITH A 

'gREBAR 
AND PUSTIC CAP STAMPED

'LS 926y (SEE DETATLTHTS SHEil).
53. FOR LOTS 315, 316, 34 ANO COMMON L|NE OF 38488?386, 407t425, 426t41 AND

QTI42AAgINWHICH FAIL WTHIN A MASONRY SOUNO/Rfl&NING WALL, WLL BE SETWff
A 3/4' BMSS TAG STAMPED 'LS 926Y TO TNE FACE OF WALL 2.OO FOOT ABOVE GROUND OR
ON TOP OF THE WALL.

6, LOI E (PRVATE ROAD) SHOWN HEREON SflALL BE GRANTEO IN FEE SIMPLE TOTHE REGENCY AT
FOLSOM MNCH OWNERS ASS@hNON FILED WTH SECRSARY OF STATE, STATE OF
cALtFORNtA ON 242021, FtLtNG # 46S707) AS A PRTVATE ROAD Fm THE BENEFTT ANO GENEML
USEOFTHE LOTSSHOWN HEREON.

7- LOTS AM, AN, AL. AND AK SHOWN HEREON SHALL BE GMMD IN FEE SIMPLE TO TE REGENCY
AT FOLSOM RANCH OWNERS ASSOCIATION AS COMMON AREAS FOR UNDSCAPINGAND FOR THE
BENEFITAND GENEML USE OF THE LOIS SHWN HEREON.

8, LOTL ISAN OPE\ SPACE LOTANDWLL BE DEEDED I\ FEETOTHE CIryOF FOLSOU SY SEPARATE
DOCUMENT AND SU&ECT TO THE PRIVATE ROAD EASEMENT (P,R,E.) SHOWN HEREON. THE
PRVATE ROAD EASEMENT (P.R,E.) SHOWN ON LOT L IS APPURTENANT TO PARCEL 28, PER
DN 202111241370, SHOWN tsEREONANDWILLSE MAINIAINED BYTHE REGENCYAT FOLSOM RANCH
OWNERS ASSOCIATION,

9. A PRIVATE PEDESNhN ACCESS EASEMENT FOR THE SENEFIT AND GENEML USE OF THE
MEMAERS OF THE REGENCY AT FOLSOM RANCH OWNERS ASSOCIATION ON. OVER AND ACROSS
BOSE SRIPS OF SND SHOWN HEREON AND OESIGNATED 'PRVAE PEDESTRIAN
ACCESS' (P.P.A.).

10. THIS MAP IS A PORTION OF THE VESTING TEMATIVE MAP SUBDVISION, TOLL BROTHERS AT
FOLSOM RANCH RESOLUTION NO. 1O4O PASSED ANO ADOPTED 8Y THE CIfl COUNCIL CIry OF
FOLSOM, MRCH 10,2020.

INOIVIDUAL DIMENSIONS MAY NOT EOUAL THE OVEMLL DIMENSION.

AUGUST 24, 2020, AS TNSTRUMENT NO. 202m8240893 0F OFF|C|AL RECORDS.

LOT L SHOWN HEREON IS SUBJECT TO frE PHASE 1 - REGENCY AT FESOM RANCH FUEL
MODIFICATION PLAN, PREPARED BY MCKAY AND SOMPS, ON FILE IN THE CIfr OF FOLSOM
COMMUNIry DEWLOPMENT OEPARTMENT.

AW ASEMENT FOR WATER COURSE OVER ffAT PORTION OF THE UND LYING WTHN ALDER
CREEK. TGETHER WTN ANY RIGBTS IN FAVOR OF THE PUBLIC FOR FISHING ANO RECREATION
PIRPOSES OVER THE PORTION OF THE LAND TUT IS PRESEMY COWREO BY WATER
DISCLOSEDONASSESSORPSTB@K72PAGE6.

PROPERfr SUBJECT TO THE TERMS AND PROVISIONS CONTAINED IN THE DOCUMENT ENTNED
'AGREEMENT AFFECTING REAL PROPERry (INCLUSIONARY HOUSING AGREEMENT)' PER
DN.202r@02615.

2.

3.

18_

DATE

19.

ON- BEFORE A NOTARY PUBIIC

22.

23.

24,

25.

PERSONALLY APPSRED 

-

wHo PRovEoro ME oNTilE sS6 oF@
IgARE SUSCRIBED TO THE WITHIN INSTRUMENT AND ACKNOWEDGED TO ME THAT HSHEtrHry
EXECUTED GE SAME IN HIS/HERMEIR AUTHORIZED CAPACIil(IES), AND THAT BY HI9HERtrHEIR
SIGMTURE(S) ON ffE INSTRUMENT THE PERSON(S), OR THE ENTN UPON BEHALF OF WHICH THE
PERSON(S) ACTEO, EXECUTED THE INSTRUMENT,

I CERNfl UNDER PENALry OF PERJURY UNDER THE LAWS OFTHE STATE OF CALIFORNIATHAT THE
FOREGOING PARAGRAPH IS RUE AND CORRECT.

WITNESS MY HANDAND OFFICIAL SAL

SIGNATURE PRINTED NAME

W PRINCIPAL PUCE OF BUS1NESS IS COUNfr

WCOMMISSION EXPIRES _ MYCOMMISSION NUMBER: _
I FCtrNn

SECTIONCORNER AS NOTED

1/4 SECTION CORNER AS NOTED

CENER OF SECTION AS NOTED

STANDARD CIfr OF FOLSOM MONUMENTWELL STAMPED ''LS 9174 TO BE SET PER (4)

3/4'|RON PTPEWTH COPPER DiSK STAMPED'1S9171^TO BESETPER (4)

3/4'BRASSTAGSTAMPED"LS9171'TOBESfl PER(4)

5/E REBAR WtrH PUSTIC CAP STAMPED'LS 57@ TO BE SET PER (3)

5/8',REEARWTH PUSTC CAP STAMPED"LS9l7l'TO BE SETpER (4)

SET STANDARD CIry OF FOLSOM MONUM€NT WELL STAMPED "LS 9265'

PIRSUANTTOSECTION 664}(G) OFTHE SUBDIVISION ACTTHE FILiNG OFTHIS FINAL MAPSHALL
CqSTTE ABANDONMENT OF THE SSEMENT LISTED BELOW NOT SHWN HEREON:

4.18.5'WDEANDl2.SWIDEPUALrcUTLIflASEMENT(P-U.E.)WTHINLOT1EPER431B.M,1.

o
E
o
o
x
t
g

o
g
tr

o
B.M.

gNDY

ctr
o.c.R.

DN

E.VA.
H,O,A.
LO.O.

!.E.
(oA)

P.R.E.

P.U.E.

{R)

s.F,
s.s.E_

11.

12.

PROPERry SUBJECT TO COVENANTS. CONDITIONS AND RESTRICTIONS AS CONTAINED IN IHE
DEED FROM CATHERINE HOLTHOUSE MNGINI AND ABERT D. MANGINI (WHO ACOUIREO TITLE AS
ALBERT D, MANAGIND, WFE AND BUSSAND, RECORDED SEPTEMBER 12, 2002, (SOOK) 2OO&912
(PAGE) 282, OFFICIAL RECORDS ANO RE{ECORDED MY 9, 2007, (BOOK) 20070S9 {PAGE) 525,
OFFICAIRECORDS.

BASIS OF BFARINGS

REAR LOT LINE

5/8

s

REAR LOT CORNER
ilPICAL4'OFFSil

JUNE 2022

SHEET 2 OF 9

PROPERry SUBJECT TO THE TERMS AND PROVISIONS CONTAINED IN THE DMUMENT EMTLED
"FIRS'AMENDEDAND RESTATEO TIER 1 DEVEIOPMENTAGREEMENT RECOROEOJILY 15,2014AS

SET3/4'IRON PIPEWTH PLASTIC PLUG STAMPED'LS 92S"

SET 5/A' REEAR WTH PUSIC CAP STAMPED "LS 9265'

Sfl 3/4' BilSS TAG STAMPED 'LS 9265^

DIMENSION POINT

RECORO OATA PER REFERENCE
ACRES

BOOKOFMAPS

BOUNDARY

CENTERLINE

DECURANON OF COWENTS AND RESTRICTIONS

DOCUMENTNUMBER, O.R.

EMERGENCY VEHICLE ACCESS EASEMENT
HOMEMNERSASSOCATION
IRRWOCABLE OFFER OF DEDI*NON
UNDSCAPE EASEMENT

OVERALL

OFFIChL RECORDS OF SACRAMENTO COUNry
PEDESTRhN ACCESS EASEMENT

PRoPERTLNE (t
PARCELMAP

PRIVA-E DEOES?RIAN ACCESS (SEE NOIE 9)
DRIVA'E qOADWAV ASEME\T ISEE NOE 1OI

PUBLIC frILP EASEMENT

PRIVATE ROAD

RADIAL BEARI\G

RECORDOFSURVEY

RIGHT.OF.WAY

SOJARE FEEi
SNTARY SEWER ASEMENT

BOOK 20I40715, PAGE 426 OF OFFICAL RECORDS.
. OOCUUENT(S) OECURING MODIFCATIONS THEREOF RECORDED JANUARY 29, 2016 AS BOO(

201 601 29. PAGE 0381 0F OFECTAL RECORDS.
. rcCUUENI(S) DECURING MODIflCATIONS THEREOF RECORDEO JANUARY29, 2015 AS BOOK

20160 I 29. PAGE 0382 OF OFFICIAL RECORDS.
. D@UMENT(S) DECURING MODIFICATIONS THEREOF RECOROED OCTOBER 6, 2O2O AS 8OO(

4201M. PAGE 13I1 OF OFFICIAL RECORDS.
. ,PARML ASSIGNMENT AND ASSUMMON AGREEMENT RELATIVE TO THE FOLSOM SPECIFIC

PUN AMENDED AND RESTATED TIER 1 DryELOPMENT AGRE€MENT' RECORDED
THE BASIS OF EEARINGS FOR NE MP IS THE
SSTHWESTERLY LINE OF LOT 1E AS SHOWN ON THAT
CERTAIN FINAL MAP NTED 'TOLL BROTHERS AT FOLSOM
RANCH PHASE 18 & 1C'FILEO FOR RECORD ON
SEPTEMBER 13.2021 IN BOOK 431 OF MAPS, AT PAGE 1,
SACRAMENTO COUNft RECORDS AND HAVING A BEARING
OF NORB 43'02'29' WEST BEruEEN THE FOUND
MONUMENTS SHOWN HEREON.

REFERENCES
{1) 431 B.M. 1 (TBPHASElB&lC)

12) 4368.M.7(TBPHASElD)
(3) 236P.M.10
(4) ON 202204110367(CERTIF|CATEOF

CORRECTION)

SHEETINDEX NUMBER

BOUNDARY

LOI LINE

LOT LINE & RIGHT OF WAY
EXISTNG RIGHT-OF-WAY
CENTER LINE

ilSEMENTLINE
SECTION UNE
ADJACENT PROPERilLINE
MUNICIPALLIMITS

13, PROPERry SUBJECTTOTHETERMS, CONDfiONS. PROVISIONSAND SNPUUTIONSAS CONTAINED
IN THE AGREEMENT ENTNLED 'WATER SUPPIY AND FACILtrIES FINANCING PUN AND
AGREEMENT, BYAND 8EM€EN THE CIfl OF FOLSOM, AND FOLSOM RAL ESTATE SOUTH, LLC, ET
AL, RECORDEDJANIARY 24,2013, (BOOK) 20130124IPAGE) 1382, OFFICIAL RECORDS;AMENDMENI
IO fiE WATER SUPPIY AND FACILITIES FINANCING PBN AND AGREEMENT. RECORDED JUNE 3,
2014, BOOK 20140603 PAGE 959, oFFICAL RECORDS| ANo AMENDMENT TO THE WATER SUPPLY
AND FACILITIES FINANCING PSN AND AGREEMENI RECORDED JUNE 3,2014, Bq 20140603,
PAGE 960. OFFIChL RECORDS.

14. THE UND DESCRIBED HEREIN LIES WTHN THE BOUNDARY OF THE CW OF FOLSOM CSMUNIW
FAC|LIT|ES D|STR|CT 201!1 (WATER FACTL|T|ES & SUPPLY) AS DTSCLOSED By THAT CERTATN
A$ESSI4ENT MAP RECORDEo DECEMBER 30,2013, N (BOd) 20121230 (PAGE) 3]1, AND tS
SUSJECT TO ANY FUTURE ASSESSMENT THEREOF.

15, PROPERW SUEJECT TO AN SSEMENT OVER SAID UND FOR AVISNON AND INCIDENTAL
PURrcSES, S GMNTED IO IHE COUNTY OF SACMMENTO ANO THE CIry OF FqSOM, IN DEED
RECORDEDJULY15,2014, (BOOK)rc140715(PAGE)427 OFF|C|ALRECORDS.

16. THE BND DESCRISED HEREIN LIES WITHIN frE SOUNDARY OF THE CIry OF FOLSd COMMINIry
FACtLtTtES D|STR|CT NO.17 (WLLOW H|LL PTPELTNE), AS DTSCLOSED By THAT CERTATN
ASSESSMENT MP, RECORDED FEBRUARY 24, 2015, AS (8OOK) 201$224 (PAGE) 424, AND tS
SUBJECTTOANY FWRE ASSESSMENT THEREOF.

A SUBDIVISION OF LOT 1E OF THAT CERTAIN FINAL MP TITLED'TOLL BROTHERS AT FOLSOM RANCH
PHASE 18 & IC" FILED FOR RECORD SEPEMBER 13, 2021 IN BOOK €1 OF MAPS. AT PAGE 1,

SACRAMEMO COUNry RECORDS. BEING IN SECTION 20. TOWNSHIP 9 NORTH, RANGE 8 SST. MOUNT
DIABLOM€RIDIAN

FINAL MAP (PN 19-091)

TOLL BROTHERS AT FOLSOM
RANCH PHASE 1E

CITYOF FOLSOIVI . SACRAMENTO COUNTY . CALIFORNIA

mACnY&$omPS
dcrxffi PwNEs sffim

I'DIA.BRASS DISK(frP)

orl\l

FRONT LOT CORNER - ATTACHED SIDEWALK
TYPICAL 1'OFFSET

=l-
G tt
H It
E ler 

l6

5

Page 115

06/14/2022 Item No.9.



27.9f,(1)

L=82"57'22
L=28.s'(1)

--7220
il P.P.A.(1) I

232

231 TOLL BROTHERS
AT FOLSOM RANCH
PHASE 18 & lC

431 BM 1

TOLL BROTHERS

AT FOLSO]V RANCH

PHASE 1 D

436 B.M. 1 162.'l

// PARCEL 28
DN 202111241370

& DN 202111241369
(PARCEL 2A - 2i6 P.M. r0)

Curue Table

Lenglh

28.42'

45.19'

30.02'

24.44'

31.42'

Ddb

82'33!6',

34539^

86'00'00'

1'S1t

90'00 00"

20.00

794.00'

20.00

706.00'

20.00

c1 (r)

c2 (1)

ca(1)

c4(1)

cs(1)

194

I
253

.230I T16

1t4

109I
228

229

214

I
I

I
?5ln'l'=1$' sEEDETATL'3A"

ON THIS SHEET
TOLL BROTHERS AT FOLSOM RANCH

PHASE 18 & 1C

4J1 B.M.1 253

'u 
i' 178 179

161

160
77 J

2
f

t.
!o' r_i

Line Table

4.00

20.12

19.92'

31.20

49.89'

51.63'

6.15',

4.00'

51.09',

B€.inE

N06'451 3"E (R)

N0047 25W

N0017 ?5W

N22'S!9W

N80'$'fl'E

N24'0854

N43'*r6W (R)

N42"4 05'E

N47a 3',55v (Rl

N42'@ 12W

Lr (1)

L2 \1)

L3 (1)

L4 (1)

s (1)

L6 (1)

L7 (1)

L8 (1)

L9 (1)

110 (1)

\ r73
114

175

171
172

Line Table

Lengih

49.27'

49.03'

50.00'

75.00

46r9'

170.00'

4.33

10030'

4.71

34.50

&ainq

N38'00'32'W

N32'5320'W

NS'37'55'W

N49'27'24"W

N30'37'5flW

N23"3615W

N30"3755W

N82'51ro',W

N59"22'6'E

Lr r (1)

112 (1)

Lr3 (1)

114 (1)

115 (r)

116 (1J

117 (11

118 (1)

L1e o
a0 \2)

t\ 227 200 zot ! zoz
L=78.$'(1)( 226

I
225

224

BAS\S

142I
11i p/'l

223

222

221

FOLSOMLMTS
20120131 0.R.885

L

259

A',,

260

\266

265

ro1
' 98.32'(1)

147.82'(1\

41.s11)

264

,r',.0.0."ar--{
20170329 0.R 0527 

\
PARCEL 14

236 P.M. 10

,l
N28'1442"W

D3 RIGHT OF WAY

'... l- -

R=20,00'

L=31.42'(1)

1.411)

LOT E

0 60 120 240

--:SCALE: 1"=120'

I

i

* ,.o.0. oar-l
20170329 0.R0527

+
F|NAL MAP (PN 19-091)

TOLL BROTHERS AT FOLSOM
RANCH PHASE iE,

A SUBDIVISION OF LOT IE OF THAT CERTAIN FINAL MAP ITLED 'TOLL BROTHERS A1 FOLSOM RANCH
PHASE IB & lC" FITED FOR RECORD SEPEMBER 13, 2O2I IN BOOK 431 OF MPS. AT PAGE 1.

SACRAMENTO COUNfr RECORDS. BEING IN SECTION 20, TOWNSHIP 9 NORIN, RANGE 8 AST. MOUNT
DIASLO MERIDhN

CITYOFFOLSOM . SACRAMENTOCOUNTY . CALIFORNIA

mmnY&somPs JUNE 2022

SHEET 3 OF 9AGNC$ PUiNES $Mffi
1o6ft.bdRq'otu sdbrs RdaB cae$73 pEr/'rs

372

I

I

DETAIL'3B"
SCALE 1'= 60'

SEE SHEET 2 FOR NOTES, BASIS OF BEARINGS, LEGEND AND REFERENCES

341 ll-J--A;-
339342

338343

337344

336345

346

9
347

348

332g9

331

330

350

110 It[e
rr r l$i;

351

17r
112IJ

360

3$

355

354

353

352

115

36'l

359

358

357

362
180

!i

364

425424

$
stz"

\
r

310

303

=
=g

u
o
U
U
Fo

a

o
FUUE
F

I

=I
I
UEo
I

435

434

436

0., (-r-)

LOT E (PRVATE RD)

LOT E

LOTE
RIVE

?

IA

Fox(o-

LO7

G

oz
Uo
Ut

t&

tol

I

T
/'l

I
LOT L

I
J._

tl
--7

LOT

70.5AnB(1)

LotL---

Page 116

06/14/2022 Item No.9.



_//
1)

SEE SHEET 2 FOR NOTES, BASIS OF BEARINGS, LEGEND AND REFERENCES
2J6 P.M. 10

56'IOD PER
2017038 0.R0527L- I

TOLL BROIHERS
AT FOLSOM RANCH

PHASE 18 & 1C
431 B.M. l

Line Table

tengb

24.V'

4io

Beann9

N67'EJ 1'E

NS"1513"E(R)

L1

u(1)

CENTERLINE
ALDERCREEK

OPEN SPACE

o.4,(,

-(

ALDERCREEK

^^sj6$ SEE SHEET 3
Curue Table

Lenglh

79.07'

Dela

15'6!5'

5'&06'

300.m'

300.00

c1

c?

261

I

\
VD.c.R.Pffi

0N201912171594

TOLL BROTHERS
AT FOLSOM RANCH
PHASE IB & 1C

431 8.M.1

LOT L
9.$84C

a"

1

a' 224
22'

-q-

219

I

I

22

218

217
PARCEL 28

DN 24211124137A
& DN 2021r1241J69

(PARCEL 2A - 236 P.M. 10)

N
216

8-\

t22

':
400

!

!

{

387
^d

.y

+

/
F|NAL MAP (PN 19-091)

TOLL BROTHERS AT FOLSO
RANCH PHASE 1E

I

M
A SUEDIVISION OF LOT 1E OF T4T CERTAIN FIML MAP TITLED TOLL BROflERS AT FOTSOM RANCH
PUSE 18 & 1C'FIIED FOR RECORD SEPTEMEER 13, 2021 IN BOOK 431 OF MPS, AT PAGE 1,

SACMMENIO COUNfl RECORDS. SEING IN SECTTON 20, TOWNSHIP 9 NORB, RANGE 8 4ST, MOUNT
DIABLOMERIDAN

CITYOFFOLSOM . SACRAMENTOCOUNTY o CALIFORNIA

mACltY&somPs
ilGrNffi P4Xft SUffiOBilAturdrR4hr su6rsRds,il$6ft €r6)r!tre

JUNE2022

SHEET 4 OF 9

304

0204080

-

SGLE: 1"=40'

J834t2z
I 382

SEE SHEET 6

SHEET4 OF 9

401
5,773SF

406 18.5'

8,W SF

1tP,U.E,

19.9211)

404
6.630 SF

I
I

{

303
4,S3SF

125 P.U.E.-J

I
a=2'0359 i

Page 117

06/14/2022 Item No.9.



217

21 6

401

215

.s TOLL BROTHERS
AT FOLSOM RANCH
PHASE ]B & ]C

431 B.M. l214

386

\ 213

212

382

211

210
12.5'P.U.E.(1)w

381

)-

380 ,/^ -
,o a"/

1/

,!{
% // 195

o378

/ 196

0204080

--:SCALE:1"=4O'377 27', ,'
,t/i
d"-Y,'

/'-r\""
197

P.U.E.(1)

316

F|NAL MAP (PN 19-091)

TOLL BROTHERS AT FOLSOM
RANCH PHASE 1E

A SUBOIVISION OF LOT 1E OF THAT CERTAIN FINAL UP TNEO 'TOLL EROTHERS AT FOLSOM RANCH

PHASE 18 & lC'FIL€D FOR RECORD SEPEMBER 13, 2021 IN BOOK 41 OF MM. AT PAGE I,
SCMMEMO COUNil RECORDS. BEING IN SECTPN 20, TOMSHIP 9 NORfr, MNGE E ilST, MruNT

DIABLO MERIDIAN

CITYOFFOLSOM . SACRAMENTOCOUNTY o CALIFORNIA

/"-i.,-

198 TOLL BROTHERS

193
AT FOLSOM RANCH

PHASE 18 & ]C
12.s P.U.€.(1)!/ 4Jr 8.M.1

/ ,q,

JUNE 2022

SHEET 5 OF 9

393
8,675SF

12.5'p.u.E.-y

7,4125F

).
125 P-U-E.

391
5,391 SF

12.5 P.U.E.

400
q7S SF

389
6 181 SF

388
6,32 SF

SEE SHEET 2 FOR NOTES, BASIS OF BEARINGS, LEGEND AND REFERENCES

i or,
199

mACfrY&s0msqcils uixEre sffiffi
d9F3 pt)t!r1s

Page 118

06/14/2022 Item No.9.



305
4,7SSF

312
5,4SSF

308
6,561 SF

378
5,245 SF

(.12.5'P.U.E.

380
4,8m SF

383
7,590SF

L=27_54'/

412
8554SF

413
9,792SF

a

416
6,559SF

420
9,057SF

418
8,551 SF

l--12.5 P.u.E.

I

SEE SHEET 4tt
il
:1l',|\
I orr"o^,*r, I
i 

-CENERL|NE 
oF /

I 
ALDER CREEK 

//
t/
1/|,,

JoJ 12.5'P.u.E.--/

JI 22'
22' F|NAL MAP (PN 1e-091)

TOLL BROTHERS AT FOLSOM
RANCH PHASE 1E

A SUEDIVISION OF LOT 1E OF THAT CERTAIN FIN{ MP TITLEO'TOLL SROTHERS AT FOLSOM RANCH
PHASE 18 & lC^ FILED FOR RECORD SEPEMBER 13, 2021 IN BOOK €1 OF MAPS, AT PAGE 1,

$CRAMENTO COUNfl RECORDS. BEING IN SECTION 20. TOWNSHIP 9 NORTH, RANGE 8 SST, MOUNT
DIABLOMERIDIAN

CITY OF FOLSOM . SACRAMENTO COUNTY r CALIFORNIA

ntcnY&s0mPs
il@Ere PW@ $Rwffi.qsm €Qtlre

JUNE 2022

., SHEET 6 OF 9

l*12.s'P.U.E.
/ 3a+

386

387

I
,5
lsi

22

,v

r12.5 P.U.E.

--@- 
-

/

;v 388

? 

389

a
Curye Table

Lenglh

12,79

&Xa

24',X37',30.00c1

Line Table

12.63

Beain!

N01'37'52',WL1

393

0204080:-:
SCALE:1"=40'

TOLL BROTHERS
AT FOISOM RANCH
PHASE 18 & 1C

431 B.M. l

2A,

'\B,"Arlii,"*,

/
/*o

/a
/F
/s

/,*

t90

I

I

\
LOT L

9.368ilC
OPEN SPACE

391

l

193

192

.P
I

./

Il

i,
!I

t\

I

I

.* ) !=13 8r
'vx.'i*,

i
I

I

i

l

I

I
2?

i

t

PARCEL 28
DN 2021r124r370

& DN 2021 r t241369
(PARCEL 2A - 2J6 P.M. 10)

\, \, 
APPR.'TMATE

\/<,lfllFtiltE'?'
\

191

190

189

12.s P.u.E.--l
"l422

313 \zz

\
409

SEE SHEET 7

F12.5 P.U.E.
22'

373

SEE SHEET 2 FOR NOTES, BASIS OF BEARINGS, LEGEND AND REFERENCES SHEET6 OF 9

Page 119

06/14/2022 Item No.9.



I
!
I

a 421

,a:2]:5!'!5-

SEE SHEET 6

410

37422'f
I

189U?

i\

31)
\1186.14(1XOA) 2'

PER

190

J67

TOLL BROTHERS
AT FOLSOM RANCH

PHASE 18 & lC
431 B.M.1

APPROXIMATE
CENTERLINE OF
ALDER CREEK

LOT L
9.368$C

\ oPEN SPACE

2A191217159

D.C.R.PER
DN20191217159

PARCEL 28

-\

i\

PI

li
Fl

d

)
+

DN 20211124',rJ70
& DN 2021 1 1241369

,/t

\

(PARCEL 2A - 2J6 P,M, 10)

o

72

i\
ts\I

318

B-A

22
22

i

I

I

!

L
AY 188

- _Ics?c€s$!c_:
tttt

r87

TOLI BROTHERS
AT FOLSOM RANCH

PHASE ]D
436 B.M.7I

I

I

I

I

i

22

Line Table

Leigh

6.15'

Beadng

N42'46!vEL1

186

185

LOT L
9368rAC

OPEN SPACE

,l \o.c.R.eER
I DN 201912171594

z2

LOT E

P.U.E./EJ.A,
12' j

144

428

APPROXIMATE
CENERLINEOF
ALDERCREEK

39.7411)

322.26(1XOA)

?1

MAP (PN 19-091)

TOLL BROTHERS AT FOLSOM
RANCH PI{ASE 1E429

43S

A SUBDIVISION OF LOT 1E OF fiAT CERTAIN FINAL MAP TITLED 'TOLL BROTHERS AT FOSOM RANCH

PHASE 18 & 1C' FtrED FOR RECSD SEMMEER 13, 2021 IN BOOK 431 OF MPS, AT PAGE 1,

SACRAMENTO COUNfl RECORDS- EEING IN SECNON 20, TOMSHP 9 NOffi, RANGE E SST, MOUNT

DAELOMERIDAN

CITY OF FOLSOM . SACRAMENTO COUNTY . CALIFORNIA
430

SEE SHEET 8

SEE SHEET 2 FOR NOTES, BASIS OF BEARINGS, LEGEND AND REFERENCES

MAGIAY&SONPS
ilGITffi PWEF sffiG
i0?5(:t!.M&.oh s&ft.R0*.ils73 (96)tlre

JUNE 2022

SHEET 7 OF 9

408
5,S3SF

6z

s
2

409
6,g9SF

l=14.95
d.3.25S'R:250.00,

g17 12,5'

7,314SF

370
5,?80 5F

\-,r.u'".u.a.

L=2a.4(1)

371
5,4SSF

443
7,0705F

)

14' \

M2 12.5'P.U.E--\
6,612SF \

426
8 745 SF

,(t"'"t'

Page 120

06/14/2022 Item No.9.



324
7,236SF

L-11.69'

320
5,162SF

I

12.5P.U.E.--l

437
5,955 SF

: 5.953 sF

12.5'P.U.E.

___ r__
R=272.04'

432
6,816SF

365
5,805SF

\-rr.u r.u.r.

366
6,gsF

REGENCY PARKWAY

2?
186

185

2? J69
SEE SHEET 712.5P.U.E.V

443 \..------)
441 /A-tz.rp.u.e.

427 IRON OAK COU
(PRVATE ROAD)

RT

12.5', P.U.E.--J

I w-
184

r{1) 2? LOT E
5.7464C

P.U.E]E.V,A.

444 It

183

o
\

TOLL BROTHERS
AT FOLSOM RANCH

PHASE 1D
4J6 B.M.7

.t o
182

181

4

t
I

I
t-,

iF

tg

I

I

I

F
180

12.s P.U.E.(?)--1
u
E.o
Yt
d

a

k
&
I

LOT L
9.3684C

OPEN SPACE

i\

[\
gi

-t

60

PARCEL 28
aN 242111241374

& DN )O?111241369
22' 22'n

(PARCEL 2A - 2J6 P.M. r0)

GREY HA]A/-K-
APPROXIMATE
CENTERLINEOF
ALDER CREEK

R=250.@'

L-16.32' 215.04 201.S'
R:228.m'

GREY) __t _12.5 P.U.E.--]

I325 2', J53 J55 J56 J57 358
PUE

360352

/ :sr
L-i2.5'P.u.E.

11J 114

3
SEE SHEET 9

., F|NAL MAP (PN 19-091)
o

Curye Table

Lenglh

23.36'

Deb

26"45'59.50.@'c1

Line Table

Lenglh

3001

26 1n

Bearing

N07"5552"€

N01"46',4aEL2

/

TOLL BROTHERS AT FOLSOM
RANCH PFIASE 1E

A SUBDIVISION OF LOT 1E OF THAT CERTAIN FIM! MP TITLEO'TOLL SROTHERS AT FOLSOM RANCH
PHASE 18 & 1C" FILED FOR RECORO SEPEMBER 13, 2021 IN BOOK €1 OF MAPs. AT PAGE I,
SACRAMENTO COUNfl RECORDS. BEING IN SECTPN 20, TOWNSHIP 9 NORTH, RANGE 8 gS, M@NT

DIABLOMERI9IAN

CITY OF FOLSOM . SACRAMENTO COUNTY . CALIFORNIA0244080_:
nACI(AY&s0mPS JUNE 2022

SHEET 8 OF 9SEE SHEET 2 FOR NOTES, BASIS OF BEARINGS, LEGEND AND REFERENCES

SCALE: l"=4O'
EN@E$ PNN$ SWNqsm g0tlirse

Page 121

06/14/2022 Item No.9.



EU
Uo

zV
E
I

341
3,840SF

340
4,300sF

360
4,320 SF

J61

339
43mSF

u2
3 520 SF

359
3,960 SF

362

125'P.U.E.

__l____

338
4,300 sF

358
3,960 SF

343
3,520SF

4,500 sF

-I
12.9 P.U-E

357
3,S0 SF

344
3,il0sF

36J

345
3,520 SF

336
4,5@ SF

e 356
5i 3,$0 SF

20r.50'

22

355
3,S0 SF

346
3.520 SF

12.5 P.U.E-

__t___

-r---
12.5 P.U.E.

335
4,500 sF

435

354
3.S0SF

347
3,520SF

334
4,5@SF

4J3

12.s P.U.E.

___t__

SEE SHEI

434

353
3,S0 SF

348
3,520SF

333
4,500 sF

349
3,520SF

3,S0SF

332
4,500 sF4,500 sF

?l!!8-L=16.32

R-228.@'
GREY

L=14.09'

351
5,290 SF

L-rz.s p.u.e.
I

L:17n8'

432
R=272.00

350
6,68SF

'E

330
7,848SF

Arz.s'p.u.E.

325
7,27ASF

326
7,145SF

327
5,S0SF

328
5,000sF

329
7,029SF

12.5'P.U.E.Y

3222611XOA)

1

1l

I

PARCEL 28

I

324

tz.s p.u.e.-_l

DN 202r 1 r24rJ70
& DN 2021il241J69

(PARCEL 2A - 236 P.M. 10)

6l

i/
22'

113

E/
APPROXME /
CENERIINEOF /
ALDERCREEK /

/ LOTL
/ 9.3S4C
/ OPEN SPACE

T
--o

6
-
z

at.

o

O

o
D.C.R. PER--'----!/
DN 20191217159 /

/
/

/
/

/
/

22,

R L=7'M4O' L-23.2 EAGLE VIEW WAY
(PRVAE ROAD)

EAGLEf;
,
I

7.6711)
s

A.11'57'39 1=4E.43

12.s'P.U.E.(2)

v.

"1.Y,sh 1

12,5P,U.E.
/P.A.L/L.E.

2? 4

___r____
LoT 0 - 431 B.M. 1

ROCK ROAD
&M(1)

.\ SACRAMENTO COUNTY

FUTURE 2OO' SOUIHEAST
CONNECTOR SEGMENT
03 RIGHT OF WAY

\- .\
FTNAL MAP (PN 19-091)

TOLL BROTHERS AT FOLSOM
RANCH PHASE 1E

A SUBDIVISION OF LOT 1E OF THAT CERTAIN FINAL MAP TTLED 'TOLL BRONERS AT FOLSOM RANCH

PHASE 19 & 1C" FIIED FOR RECORD SEPEMBER 13. 2O2I IN BOOK €1 OF MAPS, AT PAGE 1,

SACRAMENTO COUNfl RECORDS. BEING IN SECNON 20, TOWNSHIP 9 NORTH, RANGE 8 SST, MOUNT

DIASLO MERIDhN

Clry OF FOLSOM . SACRAMENTO COUNTY . CALIFORNIA

..'ffi .T,g'L?&Hsd?,,sJAu,

JUNE 2022

SHEET 9 OF 9
- - - .-sEE SHEET 2 FOR NOTES, BASIS OF BEARINGS, LEGEND AND REFERENCES

#*,"=oo- nACnY&somPS
il"Jff*,-:H!im.^,#ffi

Page 122

06/14/2022 Item No.9.



ATTACHMENT 4

Toll Brothers at Folsom Ranch Phase lE Tentative
Subdivision Map

Page 123

06/14/2022 Item No.9.



ft
iliilr!

t,

.lr"rL
ar.g

VICINITY MAII

^ ,.--.,-,,

i,,i

TENTANVE MAP INrcRMA1ION

ra,.*

I
lr
rl

i

RANCII

\ '/
l-l,L I IF.:r_;_fi

.zA, " 
*

NOTS

REOENC\' A7 EOLSO$ RANCil
PIIASE?

ti-Llu=Jt-,uiil-t
ffi

.@

l', r :t lr rr

'i

rts
'4.E .

; l'1"r:1.:
COVER SHEET

VESTINC TENTATIVE SUBDIVISION MAP
L- L1lr : J # To11 Brothers at Folsom Ranch

Fotun, Calit nia Rrvid: F.!q, 5, 2o?0

nAcKAY&SonPs ttrliil

ll.r+ll

lN s"*
,A -*

Page 124

06/14/2022 Item No.9.



ATTACHMENT 5

Table of Conditions of Approval for the Toll Brothers
at Folsom Ranch Phase lE Vesting Tentative

Subdivision Map

Page 125

06/14/2022 Item No.9.



CoNDTTIONS OF APPROVAL FOR Tm TOLL BROTIIERS AT FOLSOM RANCH PROJECT (PN 19-091)
WEST OF EAST BIDWELL ROAD, NORTII OF WHITE ROCK ROAD, EAST OF OAK AVENUE PARKWAY, AND

SOUTH OF MANGINI PARKWAY
GPA. SPA. DA AMENDMENTS. SLVTSM. PD PERMIT. AIID INCLUSIONARY IIOIISING PLAN

Condition
Satisfied?

Yes

Comments

The Community Development
Department has reviewed and
approved the improvement plans and
the final map for the project. The
approved improvement plans are in
substantial compliance with the
preliminary grading and drainage
plans, the preliminary site and utility
plans, the tree preservation/removal
plans, the preliminary landscape plans
and the community design guidelines.

The final map for this subdivision is in
substantial compliance with the
approved Vesting Tentative
Subdivision Map.

Responsible
Denartment

CD (PXE)

When
Required

G, I,M,B

Condition of Approval

Fin al D ev e lopment P I an s
The owner/applicant shall submit final site development plans to the Community Development
Department that shall substantially conform to the exhibits referenced below:

l. General Plan/Specific Plan Amendment Exhibit, dated larlu,dry 24,2020
2. Illustrative Master Plan Exhibit, dated January 24,2020
3. Small-Lot Vesting Tentative Subdivision Maps, dated February 5,2020
4. Backbone Infrastructure Exhibit, dated February 5,2020
5. Conceptual Phasing Exhibit, daled January 24, 2020
6. Prelimrnary Grading and Drainage Plan, dated Februwy 5,2020
7. Preliminary Utility Plan, dated February 5,2020
8. Preliminary Tree Preservation/Removal Plan, dated February 5,2020
9. Preliminary Landscape Plan and Details, dated January 24,2020
I 0. Wall and Fence Exhibit and Details, dated January 24, 2020
I l. Local Road Section Exhibit, dated January 24,2020
12- Trail System Modification Exhibit, dated January 24,2020
13. Walkability Exhibit, dated Janaary 24,2020
14. Trailhead and Signage Exhibit, dated Janmry 24,2020
1 5. Dog Park Exlribit, dated.IaNary 24,2020
16. Model Home Complex Exhibit, dated January 24,2020
17. Product Mix Exhibit, dated Jansary 24,2020
18. Streetscene Exhibit, dated August 30,2019
19. Building Elevations and FloorPlans, dated August30, 2019
20. Residential Design Details, dated August 30. 2019
2 1. Color and Materials Board, dated August 30, 201 9
22. Inclusionary Housing Plan, dated March 7,2019

The General PIan Amendment, Specific Plan Amendment, Development Agreement Amendments,
Planned Development Permit, Design Review, and Inclusionary Housing Plan are approved for the
development of a 804-unit single-family residentral subdivrsion (Toll Brothers at Folsom Ranch).
Implementation ofthe project shall be consistent with the above referenced items and these conditions of
aooroval.

Mitigation
Measure

#

1

Resolution No. 1 0670
Page I of '140

Page 126

06/14/2022 Item No.9.



CONDITIONS OF A?PROVAL FOR THE TOLL BROTEERS AT FOLSOM RANCH PROJECT (PN 19-091)
WEST OF EASTBIDWELL ROAD, NORTH OFWHITEROCKROAD, EAST OF OAK AVEIIT"IEPARKWAY, ANI)

SOUTH OF MANGIhII PARI(WAY
GPA. SPA. DA AMENDMENTS, SLVTSM, PD PERNIIT, AI{D INCLUSTONARY HOUSING PLAN

Condition
Satisfied?

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Comments

Improvement plans for East Bidwell
Street, Mangini Parkway, Regency
Parkway and the subdivision have
been approved by the City and these

improvements are currently under
constructron.

The small-lot vesting tentative
subdivision map for the Toll Brothers
at Folsom Ranch Phase lE, subdivision
was approved by the City Council on
March 10, 2020.

The smallJot vesting tentative
subdivision map for the Toll Brothers
at Folsom Ranch Phase I E subdivision
was approved by the City Council on
March 10.2020.
The Community Development
Department has reviewed and
approved the improvement plans for
the both the required on-site and off-
site improvements for the Phase lE
subdivision.

Responsible
Deoartment

CD (PXE)

cD (P)

cD (E)

CD (PXE)(B)
PW, PR, FD,

PT)

When
Required

G, I

M

M

OG

Condition of Approval

PIan Submittal
All civil engineering, improvement, and landscape and irrigation plans, shall be submitted to

the Community Development Department lbr review and approval to ensure conformance with
this approval and with relevant codes, policies, standards and other requirements ofthe City of
Folsom.

Validity
This approval of the Small-Lot Vesting Tentative Subdivision Map shall be valid for a period of
twenty four months pursuant to Section 16.16. I l0A of the Folsom Municipal Code and the

Subdivision Map Act. The term of the approved Inclusionary Housing Agreement shall track

the term of the Small-Lot Vesting Tentative Subdivision Map, as may be extended from time to
time pusuant to Section 16.16.110.A and 16.16.120 of the Folsom Municipal Code and the

Subdivision Man Act.
FMC Compliance
The Small-Lot Final Map shall comply with the Folsom Municipal Code and the Subdivision
Map Act.

Development Rights
The approval of this Small-Lot Vesting Tentative Subdivrsron Map conveys the right to

develop. As noted in these conditions of approval for the Small-Lot Vesting Tentative
Subdivision Map, the City has identified improvements necessary to develop the subject
parcels. These improvements include on and off-site roadways, water, sewer, storm drainage,

landscaping. sound-walls, and other improvements.

Mitigation
Measure

#

2.

J

4.

5

Resolution No. 10670

Page 2 of 140

Page 127

06/14/2022 Item No.9.



CoNDTTIONS OF APPROVAL FOR Tm TOLL BROTEERS AT FOLSOM RANCA PROJECT (PN 19-091)
WEST OFEASTBTDWELL ROAD,NORTH OFWHITEROCKROAD, EAST OF OAKAVENTIE PARKWAY, AND

SOUTE OF' MANGINI PARKWAY
GPA. SPA. DA AMENDMENTS. SLVTSM. PD PERMIT. AIID INCLUSIONARY IIOUSING PLAN

Condition
Satisfied?

Yes

Yes

Comments

The final map for the Phase lE
subdivision includes all required public
right-of-way and public utility
easements necessary to serve all lots in
the subdivision. The public right-of-
way and public utility easements are

shown on the final map. The
residential streets serving the lots in
this subdivision are private and are

shown on the final map.
The required street names are shown
on the linal map lbr the subdivision.

Responsible
Denartment

cD (E)(P)

cD (EXP)

When
Reouired

M

M

Condition of Approval

Public Right of Way Dedication
As provided for in the First Amended and Restated Development Agreement (ARDA) and the
Amendments No. I and 2 thereto, and any approved amendments thereafter, the
owner/applicant shall dedicate all public rights-of-way and corresponding public utility
easements such that public access is provided to each and every lot within the traditional home
portion ofthe Toll Brothers at Folsom Ranch project as shown on the Small-Lot Vesting
Tentative Subdivision Map (Lots l-214). In addition, public utility easements shall be provided
for public utilities within private streets to the satisfaction of the Community Development
Department.

Street Names
The street names identified below shall be used for the Final Small-Lot Maps:
Avazedo, Black Sage, Blue Oak, Blue Sky, Boulder Creek, Bridgeview, Brookview, Clearview,
Clubhouse, Cold Creek, Copperwood, Coyote Ridge, Creekwood, Cresfview, Dalea, Dawn
Light, Deer Park, Eagle View, Edgewood, Emerald Glen, Fallen Leaf, Fountain Heights, Fox
Hollow, Gateway, Glenbrook, Glenridge, Goldenrod, Granite Point, Grey Hawk, Gully,
Heather Glen, Heritage Oaks, Iron Oak, Japanese Maple, Knollbrook, Lone Tree, Longview,
Manzanita, Maple, Meadow Crest, Midway, Monument, Nettle, Oak Bridge, Oakridge, Olive
Orchard, Pacific Wren, Panoram4 Paradise, Patin4 Pinyon Pine, Quail Run, Rainbow Ridge,
Ravine, Redtail, Regency Parkway, Rrmrock, Robinwood, Rock Ridge, Rocky Creek, Rocky
Point, Sagewood, Salvia, Scenic, Skymeadow, Skyway, Springcreek, Starling, Sundown, Sunny
Oaks, Sunnyview, Sweetrvater, Timber, Upland, Vale, Valley View, White Cedar, Wildwood.

Mitigation
Measure

#

6

7

Resolution No. 10670
Page3ofl40

Page 128

06/14/2022 Item No.9.



CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL FORTM TOLL BROTEERS AT RANCH PROJECT (PN 19-091)

WEST OF EAST BIDWELL ROAD, NORTH OF WHITE ROCK ROAD, EAST OF OAK AVENTM PARKWAY, AND
SOUTH OF MANGIM PARKWAY

GPA, SPA, DA AMENDMENTS, SLVTSM,PDPERMIT, AI\ID rN.'f TTCINNAITV HOTISING PLAN
Condition
Satisfied?

Yes

Yes

Comments

The City standard subdivision
improvement agreement includes
language that satisties this condition.
The subdivision improvement
agreement will be executed by the City
Manager upon approval by the City
Council.

The owner/applicant complied with al1

applicable mitigation measures fiom
the FPASP FEIR/EIS and other
approved environmental documents
prior to the issuance of a grading
permit. Additionally. construction
inspection and monitoring is being
conducted throughout construction by
the City and/or its Consultants.

Responsible
Deoartment

CD (PXEXB)
PW, PR, FD,

PD

CD

When
Required

OG

OG

Condition of Approval

Indemnity for City
The owner/applicant shall protect, defend, indemnifli, and hold harmless the City and its agents

olficers and employees from any claim, action or proceeding against the City or its agents,

officers or employees to attack, set aside, void, or annul any approval by the City or any ofits
agencies, departments, commissions, agents, officers, employees, or legislative body
concerning the project, which claim, action or proceedlng is brought within the time period
provided therefore tn Government Code Section 66499.37 or other applicable statutes of
limitation. The City will promptly notifu the owner/applicant of any such claim, action or
proceeding, and will cooperate fu1ly in the defense. If the City should fail to cooperate fully in
the defense, the owner owner/applicant shall not thereafter be responsible to defend, indemniff
and hold harmless the City or its agents, officers, and employees, pursuant to this condition.
The City may, within its unlimited discretion, participate in the defense of any such claim,
action or proceeding ifboth ofthe following occur:

o

The City bears its own attomey's fees and costs; and

The City defends the claim, action or proceeding in good faith

The owner/applicant shall not be required to pay or perform any settlement ofsuch claim,
action or proceeding unless the settlement is approved by the owner/applicant. The

owner/applicant's obligations under this condition shall apply regardless ofwhether a Final
Map is ultimately recorded with respect to this project.

Small-Lot Vesting Tentative Subdivision Map
The Small-Lot Vesting Tentative Subdivision map is expressly conditioned upon compliance
with all environmental mitigation measures identifled in the Folsom Plan Area Specific PIan
(FEIR/EIS) as amended by the Toll Brothers at Folsom Ranch CEQA Addendum dated

February-2020 (Attachment 31 to the stafTreport)

Mitigation
Measure

#

8.

I

Resolution No. 10670
Page4ofl40

Page 129

06/14/2022 Item No.9.



CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL FOR TEE TOLL BROTHERS AT FOLSOM RANCH PROJECT (PN T9-091)
WEST OFEASTBIDWELL ROAD, NORTII OF'WHITEROCKROAD, EAST OT OAKAI'ENTIE PARKWAY,ANI)

SOUTII OF MANGINI PARI(WAY
GPA. SPA. DA AMEI\DMENTS. SLVTSM, PD PERMIT, AND INCLUSIONARY HOUSING PLATI

Condition
Satisfied?

Yes

Yes

Comments

The Community Development
Department has reviewed the
subdivision and verified that it is in
compliance u'ith Amendment No. I

and No. 2 to the First Amended and
Restated Tier 1 Development
Agreement.

The owner/applicant has funded and
participated in a MMRP reporting
program performed by the City's
consultant (Helix) and/or City staff.

Responsible
Department

cD (E)

cD (P)

When
Required

M

OG

Condition of Approval

ARDA and Amendments
The owner/applicant shall comply with all provisions of Amendments No. 1 and 2 to the First
Amended and Restated Tier 1 Development Agreement and any approved amendments
thereafter by and between the City and the owner/applicant ofthe project including but not
limited to Amendment No. 2 to the First Amended and Restated Tier I Development
Agreement by and between the City of Folsom and Easton Valley Holdings, LLC, Amendment
No 2 to the First Amended and Restated Tier I Development Agreement by and between the

City of Folsom and West Scott Road, LLClToll West Coast, LLC, Amendment No. 2 to the

First Amended and Restated Tier 1 Development Agreement by and betrveen the City of
Folsom and Oak Avenue Holdings, LLC, and Amendment No. 3 to the First Amended and

Restated Tier I Development Agreement by and between the City of Folsom and Folsom Real

Estate South. LLClToll West Coast. LLC.
Miligation Monitoring
The owner/applicant shall participate in a mitigation monitoring and reporting program
pursuanttoCityCouncil ResolutionNo.2634andPublicResourcesCode2l08l.6. The
mitigation monitoring and reporting measures identified in the Folsom Plan fuea Specific Plan

FEIR/EIS and the Toll Brothers at Folsom Ranch Addendum to the FPASP EIR/EIS have been

incorporated into these conditions ofapproval in order to mitigate or avoid significant effects

on the environment. These mitigation monitoring and reporting measures are identified in the

mitigation measure column. Applicant shall fund on a Time and Materials basis all mitigation
monitoring (e.g., staff and consultant time).

Mitigation
Measure

#

t0

11

Resolution No. 10670
Page5ofl40

Page 130

06/14/2022 Item No.9.



CONDITIONS OF A}PROVAL FOR THE TOLL BROTHERS AT FOLSOM RANCH PROJECT (PN 19-091)
WESTOF'EASTBMWELL ROAD, NORTII OTWHITEROCKROAD, EAST OF'OAKAVENUE PARKWAY, AND

SOUTH OF MANGIM PARKWAY
GPA, SPA, DA AMENDMENTS, SLVTSM, PD PERMIT, AND INCLUSIONARY EOUSING PLAN

Condition
Satisfied?

Yes

Yes

Yes

Comments

The owner/applicant provided onsite
security during construction and has

incorporated line of sight guidelines
into Iandscaping plans at intersections
which have been reviewed and
approved by the City.

The owner/applicant has paid all
curent taxes and fees associated with
this subdivision.

The owner/applicant has paid all taxes
and fees associated with this
subdivision and filed a tar segregation
request for applicable taxes.

Responsible
Department

POLICE/SECURJTY REQUIREMENT

PD

DEVELOPMENT COSTS AND FEE REQUIREMENTS

cD (PXE)

cD (E)

When
Required

G,I, B

M

M

Condition of Approval

The owner/applicant shall consult with the Police Department in order to incorporate all
reasonable crime prevention measures. The following security/safety measures shall be

considered.

a A security guard on-duty at all times at the site or a six-foot security fence shall be

constructed around the perimeter of construction areas.

Security measures for the safety ofall construction equipment and unit appliances.a

Landscaping shall not cover exterior doors or windows, block line-otsight at intersections
or screen overhead lighting.

Taxes and Fees
The owner/applicant shall pay all applicable taxes, fees and charges for the project at the rate
and amount required by the Public Facilities Financing Plan and Amendment No. I to the
Amended and Restated Tier I Develooment Asreement.
Assessments
Ifapplicable, the owner/applicant shall pay offany existing assessments against the property, or
file necessary segregation request and pay applicable fees-

Mitigation
Measures

#

12.

l3

14.

Resolution No. 10670

Page6ofl40

Page 131

06/14/2022 Item No.9.



CoNDTTIONS OF APPROVAL ['OR TlrF TOLL BROTHERS AT FOLSOM RANCH PROJECT (PN 19-09r)
WEST OF EASTBIDWELL ROAD, NORTIIOFWHITEROCKROAD, EAST OF'OAKAVENUE PARKWAY,AND

SOUTH OF MANGINI PARI(WAY
GPA" SPA. DA AMENDMENTS. SLVTSM, PD PERMIT, AND INCLUSIONARY HOUSING PLAN

Condition
Satisfied?

Condition
will be

satisfied
prior to
issuance ofa
building
permit.

Yes

Comments

The Owner/Applicant shall pay all
required City fees and Folsom Plan
Area wide fees prior to issuance of
building permits.

The City has not yet utilized any
outside services for any type oflegal
issues for this subdivision. Ifat any
time during the development of this
subdivision, any outside legal services
were necessary, the owner/applicant
would be required to comply with this
condition.

Responsible
Denartment

cD (P), PW,
PK

CD (PXE)

When
Required

B

OG

Condition of Approval

FPASP Development Impact Fees
The owner/applicant shall be subject to all Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan Area development
impact fbes in place at the time ofapproval or subsequently adopted consistent with the Public
Facilities Financing Plan (PFFP), Development Agreement and amendments thereto, unless

exempt by previous agreement. The owner/applicant shall be subject to all applicable Folsom
Plan Area plan-wide development impact fees in effect at such time that a building permit is

issued. These fbes may include, but are not limited to, the Folsom Plan Area Speoific PIan Fee,

Specific Plan Infiastructure Fee (SPIF), Solid Waste Fee, Corporation Yard Fee, Transportation
Management Fee, Transit Fee, Highu'ay 50 Interchange Fee, General Park Equipment Fee,

Housing Trust Fee, etc.

Any protest to such for all t'ees, dedications, reservations or other exactions imposed on this
project will begin on the date of final approval (March I 0, 2020). or otherwise shall be

governed by the terms of Amendments No. I and 2 to ARDA. The fees shall be calculated at

the t-ee rate set lbrth in the PFFP and the ARDA.
Legal Counsel
The City, at its sole discretion, may utilize the services ofoutside legal counsel to assist in the
implementatron of this project, including, but not limited to, drafting, reviewing and/or revising
agreements and/or other documentation lbr the project. If the City utilizes the services of such
outside legal counsel, the City shall provide notice to the owner/applicant ofthe outside counsel

selected, the scope ofwork and hourly rates, and the owner/applicant shall reimburse the City
for all outside legal fees and costs incurred and documented by the City for such services. The
owner/applicant may be required, at the sole discretion of the City Attomey, to submit a deposit
to the City fbr these services prior to initiation of the services. The owner/applicant shall be
responsible for reimbursement to the City for the services regardless ofwhether a deposit is

required.

Mitigation
Measures

#

15.

16.

Resolution No. 10670
Page 7 of 140

Page 132

06/14/2022 Item No.9.



CONDITIONS OF FOR THE TOLL BROTmRS AT FOLSOM RANCH PROJECT (PN 19-091)
WEST OF EAST BIDWELL ROAD, NORTIIOFWHITE ROCKROAD,EAST OF OAKAVENUE PARI(WAY, AND

SOUTH OF MANGIM PARI(WAY
GPA. SPA, DA AMEIIDMENTS, SLVTSM, PD PERMIT, AND INCLUSIONARY HOUSING PLAI\

Condition
Satisfied?

Yes

Yes

Yes

Comments

The City has provided notice to the
owner/applicant fbr various
Consultants performing services for
the development of this subdivision.
The City has collected deposits in
advance of such work for construction
inspection related services for this
subdivision.

The Community Development
Department has verified that the
proposed walls and fences for the
subdivision are in compliance with the
Folsom Ranch Central Design
Guidelines.
The owner/applicant is currently
constructing the on-site and off'-site
public and private improvements for
the Phase lE subdivision. The public
and private improvements will serve
all ofthe lots in the subdivision. The
Phase 1E subdivision is a phased
portion ofthe 593 age-restricted
dwelling units whrch are included in
the approved Regency Phase 1 vesting
tentative subdivision map. The
tentative subdivision map for the
Phase 2 portion ofthe age-restricted
Regency project has been approved by
the CiW Council.

Responsible
Deoartment

CD (PXE)

GRADING PERMIT REQIIIREMENTS

cD (PXE)

cD(E), PW
FD

When
Reouired

G, I,M,B

G,I, B

B

Condition of Approval

Consultant Sewices
Ifthe City utilizes the services ofconsultants to prepare special studres or provide specialized

design review or inspection services for the project, the City shall provide notice to the

owner/applicant ofthe outside consultant selected, the scope ofwork and hourly rates, and the

owner/applicant shall reimburse the City for actual costs incurred and documented in utilizing
these services, including administrative costs for City personnel. A deposit for these services

shall be provided prior to initiating review of the Grading Plan, Final Map, improvement plans,

or besinnins insnection. whichever is aoolicable.

Walls/Fences/Gates
The final location, design, height, materials, and colors ofthe walls, fences, and gates shall

consistent with the submitted Wall and Fence Exhibit and Details, dated January 24,2020
subject to review and approval by the Community Development Department to ensure

consistency with the Folsom Ranch Central District Design Guidelines.

Ro adw ay I mp rovement Phasing
The owner/applicant shall construct the following improvements as shown on the Small-Lot
Vesting Tentative Subdivision Map with each applicable phase. Roadways shall be to the

ultimate horizontal and vertical alignment unless otherwise noted.

For the purposes ofthese conditions, phasing ofthe prqect is defined per Figure ES-6 ofthe
Transportation Impact Analysis dated November 20,2019 (Attachment 31 to the stafTreport)
and the tbllowing:

Phase 1 consists ofthe first 305 age-restricted dwelling units within Regency Phase l, all
located on the eastem portion ofthe Project site and labeled as "2021" on Figure ES-6 of
the Transportation Impact Analysis dated November 20, 2019 (Attachment 3l to the staff
report). Phase 1 also includes an additional 45 model home units that would be used for
sales and marketing purposes initially. Conditions ofapproval for Phase 1 shall be met

before issuance ofthe first buildine permit.

a

Mitigation
Measures

#

17

18

19.

Resolution No. 10670

Page8ofl40

Page 133

06/14/2022 Item No.9.



CoNDITIONS OF APPROVAL rOR TffE TOLL BROTEERS AT FOLSOM RANCH PROJECT (PN 19-091)
WEST OF EASTBIDWELL ROAD,NORTH OT'WHITEROCKROAD,EAST OF'OAKAVENTTE PARKWAY, AND

SOUTH OT' MANGINI PARKWAY
GPA. SPA. DA AMEI\DMENTS. SLVTSM. PD PERMIT. AND INCLUSIONARY HOUSING PLAN

Condition
Satisfied?

CommentsResponsible
I)enartment

When
Required

Condition of Approval

a Phase 2 consists ofthe next 377 dwelling units (240 age-restricted dwelling units located
within Regency Phase I on the eastern portion ofthe Project site, and 137 Traditional
Subdivision units located on the western portion ofthe project site.) These units are labeled
as"2022" on Figure ES-6 ofthe Transportation Impact Analysis dated November 20,2019
(Attachment 3 I to the staffreport). Conditions ofapproval for Phase 2 shall be met before
issuance of the 306th Regency Phase I building permit (excludes 45 model home units) or
the first building permit for the Traditional Subdivision within the project site.

a Phase 3 consists of the remaining 543 dwelling units (466 age-restricted dwelling units
within Regency Phase I and 2 phts 77 Traditional Subdivision units) These units are labeled
as"2023" and2024 on Figure ES-6 ofthe Transportation Impact Analysis dated November
20,2019 (Attachment 3 I to the staffreport). Conditions of approval for Phase 3 shall be

met before issuance ofthe 546e age restricted building permit fbr Regency Phase liPhase 2
or the 138th building permit for the Traditional Subdivision within the Project site.

The following conditions defined the roadway improvements which shall be installed for each
as described above.

Mitigation
Measures

#

Resolution No. 1 0670
Page 9 of 140

Page 134

06/14/2022 Item No.9.



The
condition
will be

satisfied
prior to
issuance ofa
building
permit.

The Community Development
Department has reviewed and
approved the improvement plans for
the subdivision. The owner/applicant
is currently constructing the on-site
and off-site public and private
improvements for the Phase lE
subdivision. The public and private
improvements will serve all of the lots
in the subdivision. The Phase 1E

subdivision is a phased portion of the
593 age-reshicted dwelling units
which are included in the approved
Regency Phase I vesting tentative
subdivision map. The tentative
subdivision map Phase 2 portion ofthe
age-restricted Regency project has

been approved by the City Council.
The vesting tentative subdivision map
for Phase 3 was approved by the City
Council but has not yet moved forward
into development at this time.

cD (E), PW,
FD

B

Phasing of Roadways

Roadway construction shall be phased as described in the Transportation Impact Analysis and
as shown on Figure ES-6 of the Transportation Impact Analysis dated November 20,2019
(Attachment 3 I to the staffreport). Changes in the timing and/or progression of construction of
homes may result in a change in the timing and/or sequencing of roadway construction subject
to review and approval by the Community Development Department.

Phase I
r Construct Mangini Parkway from East Bidwell Street to Driveway #4 located on the south

side of Mangini Parkway as a twoJane roadway prior to issuance of the first building
permit in Regency Phase L

r Construct Regency Parkway as a twoJane roadway from East Bidwell Street to Street F.
o Construct Mangini Parkway,/Driveway #4 intersection, East Bidwell Street/Regency

Parkway intersection, and intemal project roads as required to access to new homes.

Phase 2
o Construct Mangini Parkway from Driveway #4 to Oak Avenue Parkway as a two-lane

roadway prior to issuance of the first Traditional Subdivision building permit within the
project.

o Construct Oak Avenue Parkway from Mangini Parkway to Driveway #l prior to issuance of
the first Traditional Subdivision building permit within the prolect.

. Construct Oak Avenue Parkway from Driveway #l to White Rock Road as an EVA access
prior to issuance of the first Traditional Subdivision building permit within the Project.

. Construct Oak Avenue Parkway/Driveway #l intersection, Mangini Parkway Driveway #2
intersection, Mangini Parkway Driveway #4 intersection, and internal project roads as

required to access new homes.
o Construct Regency Parkway as a twolane roadway from Street F to planned bridge over

creek at the westem ofthe Phase 2 active adult homes.

Phase 3

. Construct Oak Avenue Parkway from Driveway #1 to White Rock Road as a fwo-lane
roadway prior to issuance of the l38th Traditional Subdivision building permit within the
project.

20.

Resolution No. 10670
Page l0of140

Page 135

06/14/2022 Item No.9.



Condition
will he

satisfied
prior to
issuance of
the first
building
permit.

Condition
Satisfied?

Condition
will be

satisfied
prior to
issuance of
the first
building
oermit.

The Community Development
Department has reviewed and
approved the public and private
improvement plans for the subdivision
and verified that these improvements
are consistent with the approved
Transportation Impact Study. These
required improvements are included in
the approved plans for this roadway
section and are currently under
construction.

Comments

The Community Development
Deparhnent has reviewed and
approved the public and private
improvement plans for the subdivision
and verified that these improvements
are consistent with the approved
Transportation lmpact Study.

cD (E), PW,
FD

cD (E), Pw,
FD

Responsible
Department

B

B

When
Required

Construct Regency Parkway from prior terminus to Mangini Parkway prior to issuance of
the 546th Regency Phase I building permit within the project.

All driveway intersections and the Oak Avenue Parkway/Mangini Parkway intersection shall be

constructed as the corresponding portions ofthose roads are built.

a

Phasing of Improvements to Specific Intercections

Improvements to specrfic intersections identified in the November 20,2019, Transportation
Impact Study (Attachment 31 to staff report) shall be constructed as follows in Condition Nos.

Mangini Parkway (Segment I)

Construct Mangini Parkway from East Bidwell Street westerly to Driveway #4 ("Street C") as a

hvolane roadway prior to issuance of the first Regency Phase 1 build-ing permit.

Timing: Prior to issuance of the first Regency Phase I building permit.

Condition of ApprovalMitigation
Measures

22.

WEST OF EAST BIDWELL ROAD, NORTE OFWEITEROCKROAD, EAST OF OAKAVENIIE PARKlryAY,AND
SOUTE OF MANGIM PARI(WAY

AND INCLPDDASPGP

CONDITIONS OF APPROVALFORTEE TOLLBROTMRS AT PROJECT (PN 19{91)

PLAI\SL

#

2l

Resolution No. 10670

Page 11 of140

Page 136

06/14/2022 Item No.9.



CONDITIONS OF AIPROVAL FOR THE TOLL BROTEERS AT FOLSOM RANCH PROJECT (pN 19-09r)
WEST OFEASTBIDWELL ROAD, NORTEOFWHITEROCKROAD, EAST OF'OAKAITENUE PARKWAY,AND

SOUTE OF MANGIM PARI(WAY
GPA, SPA, DA AMEI\IDMENTS, SLVTSM, PD PERMIT, AND INCLUSIONARY HOUSING PLAN

Condition
Satisfied?

Condition
will be

satisfied
prior to
issuance of
the first
building
permit in
Phase 3

Condition
will be

satisfied
prior to
issuance of
the first
building
permit.

Condition
will be
satisfied
prior to
issuance of
the 306th
building
permit.

Comments

This condition will be satisfied prior to
issuance of the first building permit in
the Phase 3 portion (Traditional Lots)
ofthe Toll Brothers at Folsom Ranch

The Community Development
Department has reviewed
and.approved the public and private
improvement plans for the subdivision
and verified that these improvements
are consistent with the approved
Transportation Impact Study These
required improvements are included in
the approved plans for this roadway
section and are currently under
construction.
This condition will be satisfied prior to
issuance of the 3061h building permit in
the Toll Brothers at Folsom Ranch
Regency project.

Responsible
Department

cD (E), Pw,
FD

cD (E), PW
FI)

cD (E), Pw,
FD

When
Required

B

B

.B

Condition of Approval

Mangini Parkway (Segment 2)

Construct Mangini Parkway fiom Driveway #4 ("Street C") to Oak Avenue Parkway as a two-
lane roadway prior to issuance of the first Traditional Subdivision building permit within the
project.

Timing: Prior to issuance of the first Traditional Subdivision building permit.

Regency Parkway (Segment I)

Construct Regency Parkway as a twolane roadway liom East Bidwell Street to Street F

Timing: Prior to issuance of the first Regency Phase I building permit.

Regency Parkway (Segment 2)

Construct Regency Parkway as a two-lane roadway from Street F to the planned bridge over
creek at the western edge ofthe Regency Phase 1 Small-Lot Vesting Tentative Subdivision
Map.

Timing: Prior to issuance of 3066 Regency Phase I building permit.

Mitigation
Measures

#

23

24.

25

Resolution No 10670

Page12ofl40

Page 137

06/14/2022 Item No.9.



CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL FOR IIIE TOLL BROTMRS AT FOLSOM RANCH PROJECT (PN 19491)
WEST OF EASTBIDWELL ROAD, NORTII OFWHITEROCKROAD, EAST OF OAKAYENTIE PARKWAY, AND

SOIJ'TH OF MANGIM PARI(WAY
GPA. SPA, DA AMENDMENTS, SLVTSM, PD PERMIT, AND INCLUSIONARY IIOUSING PLAII

Condition
Satisfied?

This
condition
will be

satisfied
prior to
issuance of
the 546s
building
permit

Condition
will be

satisfied
prior to
issuance of
the first
building
permit in
Phase 3

Condition
will be

satisfied
prior to
issuance of
the first
building
permit in
Phase 3

Comments

This condition will be satisfied prior to
issuance of the 5461h burlding permit in
the Phase 2 portion ofthe Toll
Brothers at Folsom Ranch Regency
project. The Phase 1 portion ofthe
Regency project consists of 593

dwelling units, The VTSM for the
Phase 2 portion ofthe Regency project
has been approved by the City
Council.
This condition will be satisfied with
the future development of the Phase 3

portion ofthe Toll Brothers at Folsom
Ranch project (Traditional
Subdivision)

This condition will be satisfied with
the future development of the Phase 3

portion ofthe Toll Brothers at Folsom
Ranch project (Traditional
Subdivision)

Responsible
Department

cD (E), PW,
FD

cD (E), PW
FD

cD (E), PW,
FD

When
Required

B

B

B

Condition of Approval

Regency Parkway (Segment 3)

Construct Regency Parkway as a twolane roadway liom the eastern edge ofthe planned bridge
over the creek bisecting the project site to Mangini Parkway.

Timing: Prior to issuance of the first Regency Phase 2 building permit (546th overall Regency

Phase l/2 building permit excluding the 45 model home building permits).

Oak Avenue Parkway (Segment 1)

Construct Oak Avenue Parkway as a twolane roadway from Mangini Parkway to Driveway I

Timing: Prior to issuance of the first Traditional Subdivision building permit.

Oak Avenue Parkway (Segment 2)

Construct Oak Avenue Parkway as an EVA from Driveway 1 to White Rock Road.

Timing: Prior to issuance of the first Traditional Subdivision building petmit.

Mitigation
Measures

#

26.

27

28

Resolution No. 10670

Pagel3of'140

Page 138

06/14/2022 Item No.9.



CoNDITIONS OF APPROVAI FOR Tm TOLL BROTmRS AT FOLSOM RANCH PROJECT (PN 19-09r)
WEST OF EAST BIDWELL ROAD, NORTII OF' WHITf, ROCK ROAD, EAST OF OAK AVENIE PARI(WAY, ANI)

SOUTE OF' MANGINI PARI(WAY
GPA. SPA. DAAMENDMENTS. SLVTSM. PDPERMIT. AND INCLUSIONARYHOUSING PLAN

Condition
Satisfied?

Condition
will be

satisfied
prior to
issuance of
the 138th

building
permit in
Phase 3

Condition
will be

satisfied
prior to
issuance of
the first
building
permit in
Phase 3

Comments

This condition will be satisfied with
the futwe development of the Phase 3

portion ofthe Toll Brothers at Folsom
Ranch project (Traditional
Subdivision).

This condition will be satisfied with
the futwe development of the Phase 3

portron ofthe Toll Brothers at Folsom
Ranch project (Traditional
Subdivision).

Responsible
Department

cD (E), PW,
FD

cD (E), Pw,
FD

When
Required

B

B

Condition of Approval

Oak Avenue Parkway (Segment 2)

Construct Oak Avenue Parkway as a twoJane roadway from Driveway I to White Rock Road.

Timing: Prior to issuance of the l38rh Traditional Subdivision building permit.

Oak Avenue Parkway/Driveway I (Stage I)

Construct Driveway as shown in (Figure 43 of the November 20,2019 Transportation Impact
Study):

Northbound: Oak Ave Parkway shall be barricaded south ofDriveway I and configured as

an EVA;
Southbound: one shared through-left lane;

Westbound: one shared lane;

Control: side-street-stop-control.

Timing: Prior to issuance of t'rrst Traditional Subdivision building permit.

Mitigation
Measures

#

29

30.

Resolution No. 10670
Page l4 of 140

Page 139

06/14/2022 Item No.9.



CoNDITTONS OF AIPROVAL FOR Tm TOLL BROTmRS AT FOLSOM RANCH PROJECT (PN 19-091)
WEST OF EASTBIDWELL ROAD, NORTE OFWHITEROCKROAD,EAST OF OAKA1IENTIE PARKWAY, AND

SOUTH OF MANGIM PARKWAY
GPA, SPA, DA AMENDMENTS, SLVTSM, PD PERMIT, A}\D TNflI TTSIrINAR\/ ITNITSING PT,AN

Condition
Satisfied?

Condition
will be

satisfied
prior to
issuance of
the 138th

building
permit in
Phase 3

Condition
will be

satisfied
prior to
issuance of
the first
building
permit in
Phase 3

Comments

This condition will be satisfied with
the future development of the Phase 3

portion ofthe Toll Brothers at Folsom
Ranch project (Traditional
Subdivision).

This condition will be satisfied with
the future development ofthe Phase 3

portion ofthe Toll Brothers at Folsom
Ranch project (Traditional
Subdivision).

Responsible
Department

cD (E), PW,
FD

cD (E), PW,
FD

When
Required

B

B

Condition of Approval

Oak Avenue Parkway/Driveway I (Stage 2)

Construct driveway as shown in (Figure 44 of the November 20,2019 Transportation Impact
Study):

. Northbound: one shared through-right lane with a 150' right turn taper;

. Southbound: one shared throughJeft lane;

. Westbound: one shared lane;
r Control: side-street-stop-control.

Timing: Prior to issuance of l38th Traditional Subdivision building permit.

Oak Avenue Parkway/Driveway I (Cumulative Right-of-Way)

Applicant shall dedicate righrof-way to City of Folsom for fuhle construction of the ultimate
Driveway 1 intersection (Figure 45 of the November 20,2019 Transportation Impact Study):

o Northbound: one left-turn lane with 150' pocket plus 60'taper, one through, and one shared

through-right lane with a I 50' right turn taper;
. Southbound: one left-turn lane with 150'pocket plus 60'taper, one through, and one shared

through-right lane with a 150 right turn taper;
o Westbound: one shared lane;
r Eastbound: one shared lane;
o Control: side-street-stop-control.

Timing: Prior to issuance of first Traditional Subdivision building permit.

Mitigation
Measures

#

3l

32.

Resolution No. 10670
Page I5of140

Page 140

06/14/2022 Item No.9.



CONDITIONS OF APPROVAI FOR THE TOLL BROTITFRS AT FOLSOM RANCH PROJECT (PN 19-O9T)
WEST OFEASTBIDWELL ROAD, NORTEOFWHITE ROCKROAD,EAST OF OAK AVENTM PARKWAY,AND

SOUTE OF MANGIM PARKWAY
GPA. SPA. DAAMENDMENTS. SLWSM. PDPERMIT. AND INCLUSIONARYHOUSING PLAII

Condition
Satisfied?

Condition
will be
satisfied
prior to
issuance of
the first
building
permit in
Phase 3

This
condition
will be

satisfied
prior to
issuance of
the 546th

building
permit in
Phase 2

Comments

This condition will be satisfied with
the luture development ofthe Phase 3
portion ofthe Toll Brothers at Folsom
Ranch project (Traditional
Subdivision).

This condition will be satisfied prior to
issuance of the 546'h building permit in
the Phase 2 portion ofthe Toll
Brothers at Folsom Ranch Regency
project. The Phase 1 portion ofthe
Regency project consists of593
dwelling units, The VTSM for the
Phase 2 portion ofthe Regency project
has been approved by the City
Council.

Responsible
Department

cD (E), PW,
FD

cD (E), PW
FD

When
Required

B

B

Condition of Approval

Mangini Par kw ay/Drivew ay 2

Construct driveway as shown in (Figure 46 of the November 20,2019 Transportation Impact
Study):

. Northbound: one shared lane;
o Westbound: one through lane and one left turn lane in a 60' pocket with 60'taper;
r Eastbound: one through lane and one right turn lane in a 150' pocket with 60'taper;
r Control: side-street-stop-control.

Timing: Prior to issuance of first Traditional Subdivision building permit.

Mangini Parleway/Regency Parkway (Driveway 3)

Construct driveway as shown in (Figure 47 of the November 20,2019 Transportation Impact
Study):

. Northbound: one shared lane;
o Westbound: one through lane and one left tum lane in a 60' pocket with 60'taper;
. Eastbound: one through lane and one right tum lane in a 150' pocket with 60'taper;
. Control: side-street-stop-control.

Timing: Prior to issuance of the first Regency Phase 2 building permit (5461h overall Regency
Phase l/2 building permit excluding the 45 model home building permits).

Mitigation
Measures

#

JJ

34

Resolution No. 10670
Page l6 of 140

Page 141

06/14/2022 Item No.9.



CONDITIONS OF APPROVAI, FOR THE TOLL BROTEERS AT FOLSOM RANCH PROJECT (PN 19.091)
WEST OF EASTBIDWELL ROAD, NORTH OFWHITEROCKROAD,EAST OFOAKAVENTIE PARI(WAY,ANI)

SOTITE OF MANGIM PARI(WAY
GPA, SPA, DAAMENDMENTS, SLVTSM, PD PERMIT,AND HOIISINGPLAN

Condition
Satisfied?

Condition
will be
satisfied
prior to
issuance of
the first
building
permit.

This
condition
will be

satisfied
prior to
issuance of
the 3061h

building
permit in
Phase I

Comments

The Community Development
Department has reviewed and
approved the public and private
improvement plans for the subdivision
and verified that these improvements
are consistent with the approved
Transportation Impact Study. These

required improvements are included in
the approved plans for this intersection

and are curently under construction.

This condition will be satisfied prior to
issuance ofthe 306s production
building permit in the Toll Brothers at
Folsom Ranch Regency project. The
Phase I portion ofthe Regency project
consists of 593 dwelling units.

Responsible
Department

cD (E), PW,
FD

cD (E), Pw,
FD

When
Required

B

B

Condition of Approval

Mang ini P ar kw ay/D riv ew ay 4

Construct driveway as shown in (Figure 48 of the November 20,2019 Transportation Impact
Study):

. Northbound: one shared lane;

. Westbound: one through lane and one left tum lane in a 60' pocket with 60'taper;
r Eastbound: one through lane and one right turn lane in a 150' pocket with 60'taper;
o Control: side-street-stop-control.

Timing: Prior to issuance of first Regency Phase I building permit.

Mangini Parkway/Driveway 5 (Stage 1)

Construct driveway as shown in (Figure 49 of the November 20,2019 Transportation Impact
Study):

Northbound: one shared lane;
Westbound: one shared throughJeft tum lane;

Eastbound: one shared through-right turn lane;

Control : side-street-stop-control.

Timing: Prior to issuance of 3066 Regency Phase I building permit (excludes 45 model home

unit building permits).

Mitigation
Measures

#

35.

36.

Resolution No. 1 0670
Page l7 of 140

Page 142

06/14/2022 Item No.9.



CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL FOR TEE TOLL BROTHERS AT FOLSOM RANCH PROJECT (PN 19.091)
WEST OF EASTBIDWELL ROAD, NORTH OFWHITEROCKROAD,EAST OF OAKAVENTjE PARI(WAY,AND

SOUTH OF MANGII\I PARI(WAY
GPA, SPA. DA AMENDMENTS, SLVTSM, PD PERMIT, AND INCLUSIONARY IIOUSING PLAN

Condition
Satisfied?

This
condition
will be

satisfied
prior to
issuance of
the 306th

building
permit in
Phase I

Condition
will be

satisfied
prior to
issuance of
the first
building
permit in
Phase 1.

Comments

This condition will be satisfied prior to
issuance of the 306th building permit in
the Toll Brothers at Folsom Ranch
Regency project. The Phase I portion
ofthe Regency project consists of593
dwelling units.

The Community Development
Department has reviewed and
approved the public and private
improvement plans for the subdivision
and verified that these improvements
are consistent with the approved
Transportation Impact Study. These
required improvements are included in
the approved plans for this intersection
and are currently under construction.

Responsible
Department

cD (E), PW,
FD

cD (E), PW
FD

When
Required

B

B

Condition of Approval

Mangini Parkway/Driveway 5 Rig ht-of-Way

Applicant shall dedicate right-of-way to City of Folsom for future construction of the ultimate
Mangini Parkway/Driveway 5 intersection (Figwe 50 of the November 20, 2019 Transportation
Impact Study):

r Northbound: one shared lane:
e Southbound: one right turn lane in a 150' pocket plus 60' taper and one shared throughJeft

lane,
r Westbound: one through-right lane and one left turn lane in a 60' pocket with 60'taper;
r Eastbound: one through-right lane and one left turn lane in a 60' pocket with 60'taper;
. Control: side-street-stop-control.

Timing: Prior to issuance of 3061h Regency Phase I building permit (excludes 45 model home

unit building permits).

East Bidwell Street/Regency Parkway (Driveway 6) Stage I

Construct driveway as follou,s:

. Northbound: one through lane and one left hrn lane in a 150' pocket with 60' taper;

. Southbound: one through lane and one right tum lane in a 150' pocket with 60'taper;
o Eastbound: one shared lane,
. Westbound departure: two lanes separated by a median fbr two access gates shall be subject

to City Engineers prior approval.
o Control: side-street-stop-control.

Timing: Prior to issuance of first Regency Phase I building permit.

Mitigation
Measures

#

37

38.

Resolution No. 10670
Pagel8of'140

Page 143

06/14/2022 Item No.9.



CONDITIONS OF A?PROVAL FOR THT TOLL BROTIIERS AT FOLSOM RANCH PROJECT (PN 19.091)
WESTOF EASTBIDWELL ROAD, NORTII OFWHITEROCKROAD, EAST OF OAKAVENUE PARKWAY,AND

SOUTE OF MANGIM PARKWAY
GPA. SPA. DA AMENDMENTS. SLVTSM, PD PERMIT, AND INCLUSIONARY EOUSING PLAN

Condition
Satisfied?

This
condition
will be
satisfied
prior to
issuance of
the 546th

building
permit in
Phase 2

Comments

This condition will be satisfied prior to
issuance of the 5461h building permit in
the Phase 2 portion ofthe Toll
Brothers at Folsom Ranch Regency
project, The Phase I portion ofthe
Regency project consists of 593

dwelling units, The VTSM for the
Phase 2 portion ofthe Regency project
has been approved by the City
Council.

Responsible
Denartment

cD (E), PW,
FD

When
Reouired

B

Condition of Approval

East Bidwell Street/Regency Parkway (Driveway 6)

Modifu driveway as shown in (Figure 51 of the November 20,2019, Transportation Impact
Study), unless intersection has been signalized:

o Northbound: one through lane and one left tum lane in a 150'pocket with 60'taper;
. Southbound: one through lane and one right turn lane in a 150' pocket with 60'taper;
. Eastbound: one shared lane, plus a 300' northbound acceleration lane on East Bidwell Street

to receive left-turns from Regency Parkway (a second NB lane on East Bidwell Street

starting from Regency Parkway is equivalent to the 300' acceleration lane);
. Westbound deparhle: trrro Ianes separated by a median fbr turo access gates shall be subject

to City Engineers prior approval.
r Control: side-street-stop-control.

Timing: Prior to issuance of the first Regency Phase 2 building permit (546th overall Regency
Phase l/2 building permit excluding the 45 model home building permits).

Mitigation
Measures

#

39.

Resolution No. 10670

Pagel9ofl40

Page 144

06/14/2022 Item No.9.



CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL FOR THE TOLL BROTHERS AT FOLSOM RANCH PROJECT (PN 19-091)
WEST OFEASTBIDWELL ROAD, NORTH OFWtrTEROCKROAD, EAST OF OAKAVENTIE PARKWAY, AND

SOI.rTE OF MANGIM PARJ(WAY
GPA, SPA, DA AMENDMENTS, SLVTSM, PD PERMIT, AND INCLUSIONARY IIrTTSTN/: PLAN

Condition
Satisfied?

Yes

Comments

The final map for the subdivtston
includes the required right+f-way for
the Mangini Parkway,/Regency
Parkway intersectron. The right-of-
way dedication is shown on the final
map.

Responsible
Department

cD (E), Pw,
FD

When
Required

B

Condition of Approval

Mangini Parla,rtay/Regency Parkway (Driveway 6) Right-of-Way

The owner/applicant shall dedicate right-of'-way to City of Folsom for future construction of the

ultimate Mangini Parkway/Driveway 6 intersection (Figure 52 of the November 20,2019,
Transportation Impact Study) :

o Northbound: one left tum lane in a 150' pocket with 60' taper, two through lanes, and a
right turn lane in a 1 50' pocket with 60' taper;

Southbound: one right turn lane in a 1 50' pocket with 60' taper, two through lanes, and two
left tum lanes in a 250' pocket with 120'taper. (i.[ote that the FPASP assumed a single

southbound left turn lane.);

Westbound: one shared left-through-right lane, and one right tum lane;

Westbound departure: two lanes separated by a median for tr,vo access gates shall be subject
to City Engineers approval.

Eastbound: one shared lane

a

a

Timing: Prior to issuance of first Regency Phase I building permit

Mitigation
Measures

#

40

Resolution No. 1 0670
Page 20 of I 40

Page 145

06/14/2022 Item No.9.



corlDrTroNs oF AIPRoVAL FoR Tm ToLL BROTTmRS AT FOLSOM RANCH PROJECT (pN 19-091)
WEST OFEASTBIDWELL ROAD, NORTE OFWHITE ROCKROAD,EAST OF OAKAVENUE PARKWAYNAND

SOIITH OF MANGIM PARI(WAY
GPA, SPA. DA AMENDMENTS. SLVTSM. PD PERMIT. AND INCLUSIONARY HOUSING PLAN

Condition
Satisfied?

Condition
will be
satisfied
prior to
issuance of a

building
permit.

Comments

The required stop control for the
various street intersections are shown
on the approved plans for the
subdivision. The Communify
Development Department will verif
compliance with this condition prior to
building permit issuance.

Responsible
Denartment

cD (E), PW
FD

When
Reouired

B

Condition of Approval

Phase 1 Internal Stop Control

Stop Control shall be installed at the following five locations within the Regency Phase I
portion ofthe Toll Brothers at Folsom Ranch project:

o Regency ParkwayiStreet A (two-way-stop-control). Stop on A, no control on Regency
. Regency Parkway/Street D (two-way-stop-control). Stop on D, no control on Regency
o RegencyParkway/StreetE(all-way-stop-control).
r Regency Parkway/Street F (two-way-stop-control). Stop on F, no control on Regency.
. Street DiStreet S (all-way-stop-control).

Roundabouts may replace stop conhol at internal intersections with authorization from the City
Engineer. Location ofStop Control is shown in Figure 24, page 73 ofthe November 20,2019,
Transportation Impact Srudy.

Timing: prior to issuance of the first Regency Phase I building permit.

Mitigation
Measures

#

41

Resolution No. 1 0670
Page2l of 140

Page 146

06/14/2022 Item No.9.



CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL FOR THE TOLL BROTMRS AT FOLSOM RANCE PROJECT (PN 1949T)
WESTOF EASTBIDWELL ROAD, NORTII OFWEITEROCKROAD, EAST OF'OAKAVENI]EPARK\ryAY, AND

SOUTE OT' MANGIM PARKWAY
GPA, SPA, DA AMENDMENTS, SLVTSM, PD PERII{IT, AI\D INCLUSIONARY TTfITTSIN(: PI,AN

Condition
Satisfied?

Condition
will be

satisfied
prior to
issuance of
the 306s
building
permit in
Phase l.

Condition
will be

satisfied
prior to
issuance of
the first
building
permit in
Phase 3.

Comments

The required stop control for the
various street intersections is shown on
the approved plans for the subdivision.
The Community Development
Department will verif,i compliance
with this condition prior to issuance of
the 306th building permit in Phase L

The required stop control for the
various street intersections will be

shown on the approved plans for the
future Phase 3 subdivision (Traditional
Subdivision). The Community
Development Department will verifu
compliance with this condition prior to
building permit issuance in Phase 3.

Responsible
Denartment

cD (E), Pw,
FD

cD (E), PW
FD

When
Required

B

B

Condition of Approval

Phase I Internal Stop Control (Regency Phase 1)

Stop Control shall be installed at the lbllowing locations within the Regency Phase I portion of
the Toll Brothers at Folsom Ranch project:

a Regency Parkway/Street G (two-way-stop-control). Stop on G, no control on Regency

Regency Parkway/Street H (two-way-stop-contro1. Stop on H, no control on Regency.o

Roundabouts may replace stop control at internal intersections with authorization from the City
Engineer. Location ofStop Control is shown in Figure 24,Page 73 ofthe November 20,2019,
Transportation lmpact Snrdy.

Timing: prior to issuance of the 306e Regency Phase 1 buildrng permit (excludes 45 model
home unit building permits).

Phase 2 Internal Stop Control (Traditional Subdivision)

Stop Control shall be installed at the following locations

r Street TA./Street TC (two-way-stop-control). Stop on TC, no control on TA.
r Street TA./Street TG (two-way-stop-control). Stop on TG, no control on TA.
o Street TB/Street TC (trvo-way-stop-control). Stop on TC, no control on TB.

Roundabouts may replace stop control at internal intersections with authorization fiom the City
Engineer. Location of Stop Control is shown in preceding Figure 25, page 74.

Timing: prior to issuance of the tlrst Traditional Subdivision building permit.

Mitigation
Measures

#

42.

43

Resolution No. 10670

Page22 of '140

Page 147

06/14/2022 Item No.9.



Condition
Satisfieil?

Condition
willbe
satisfied
pnor to
issrmnce of
the 5466
builtling
perrnit in
Phase 2.

Comments

The required stop control for the
various sfieet intersections will be
shown on the approvod plar-rs for the
futrue Phase 2 subdivision. The
Commuqity Development Departnent
will verify complianee with this
qondifion priorto building permit
issuanc,e in Phase 2.

Responsibh
Department

cD(E),PW,
FD

\ilhen
Required

B

Condition of Approval

Regenq Phuse 2 Intefial Stop Csntrol

Stop Contol strall be installed at any internal ftsgensy Phaso 2 interseaions with four (or more)
Iegs as directed by the City Engineer- Roundabouts may replace stop contol at itrtemal
intersections with authorization from the City Engineer.

Timrng: Priot to issuance of the fust Regency Phase 2 building permit (546ft overall Regency
Phase 1/2 building peuuit excluding the 45 model home building permits).

Mitigation
Measures

#

u,

ResplutionNo. 10670
Page 23 of 140

Page 148

06/14/2022 Item No.9.



Condition
Satisfied?

Condition
will be

satisfied
prior to
issuance of
the l38th
building
permit in
Phase 3.

Comments

This condition will be satisfied with
the development ofthe Phase 3 portion
(Traditional Subdivision) of the Toll
Brothers at Folsom Ranch project.

Responsible
Department

cD (E), Pw,
FD

When
Required

B

Condition of Approval

Implement either (A) or (B) below:

(A) The Capital Southeast Connector Joint Powers Authority (JPA) has programmed to realign
this portion of White Rock Road and building a partial signal to accommodate anticipated U-
Turns. Expand or construct a signalized intersection as fbllows:

. SB: A single shared lane for left and right turns.
r EB: A through lane and a leftAj-turn in 300' pocket plus taper.
r WB: A through lane and a right-turn in 300' pocket plus taper
e Signalize with protected phasing for left turns and U-tums.
. Geometric design shall be consistent with Capital Southeast Connector Joint Powers

Authority adopted standards.

(B) Channelize the intersection on the existing White Rock Road alignment to restrict turning
movements to westbound right turns and southbound right tums. The westbound right turn
requires a 365' deceleration lane, and the southbound right turn requires a 960' acceleration lane

(Figure 53 of the November 20"2019, Transportation Impact Study).

Timing: Prior to opening the segment of Oak Avenue Parkway between Driveway 1 and White
Rock Road, or prior to issuance of the l38th Traditional Subdivision building permit, whichever
occurs first.

OR

Oak Ave Parkway/White Rock Rd

Mitigation
Measures

WDST OFEAST BIDWELL ROAD, NORTHOFWHITEROCKROAD,EAST OF OAK A\ryNUE PARKWAY,AND
SOU-TH OF MANGIM PARKWAY

FOR TEE TOLL BROTIIERS AT FOLSOM RANCH PROJECT (PN 19.091)CONDITIONS OF

PLANPD ANDSP

#

45

Resolution No. 10670

Page 24 of 140

Page 149

06/14/2022 Item No.9.



CoNDITIONS OF APPROVAL FOR Tm TOLL BROTHERS AT FOLSOM RANCH PROJECT (PN 19-09r)
WEST OF EAST BIDWELL ROAD, NORTH OF WIIITE ROCK ROAD, EAST OF OAK AVENTIE PARI(WAY, Al\'D

SOI.ITE OF MANGIM PARKWAY
GPA. SPA. DA AMENDMENTS. SLVTSM. PD PERMIT. AND INCLUSIONARY IIOUSING PLAI\I

Condition
Satisfied?

Condition
will be

satisfied
prior to
issuance ofa
building
permit.

Comments

The Capital Southeast Connector -JPA
has executed a construction contract
with Goodfellow Brothers, Inc. to
construct the Capital Southeast
Connector fiom Prairie City Road to
East Bidwell Street. The construction
contract was executed in December of
2020. Grading and construction
commenced in April 2021. The project
will include the relocation and
signalization of the existing White
Rock Road,{East Bidwell Street
intersection. The project is expected to
be complete in the Spring of 2022.The
owner/applicant will pay the
Sacramento County Transportation
Development Fee prior to issuance of
all building permits in the subdivision.

Responsible
Denartment

cD (E), PW,
FD

When
Reouired

B

Condition of Approval

East Bidwell SL,4Ahile Rock Road

Signalize the existing White Rock Rd/East Bidwell Street intersection implementing either (A)
or (B) below:

(A) The Capital Southeast Connector Joint Powers Authority (JPA) project has programmed
to relocate and signalize the East Bidwell StreetAVhite Rock Road intersection as shown in the
October 2017 geometric conceptual drawing, or equivalent improvements (i.e., three
southbound approach lanes, four eastbound approach lanes, and three westbound approach
lanes). Figure 54 of the November 20,2019, Transportation Impact Study provides a conceptual
intersection layout for this mitigation. Under option A, fair share is defined as the Toll Brothers
at Folsom Ranch Project's responsibility to the Sacramento County Transportation
Development Fee. The Applicant is required to pay the Sacramento County Transportation
Development Fee. Optron A can be considered to be implemented once the JPA has let
contracts for construction of the new intersection. This will ensure that the mitigation rs
constructed before project traffic adds 5 or more seconds ofdelay to the intersection.

OR

(B) Signalize the existing East Bidwell Street/White Rock Road intersection with the
existing geometry. Figure 55 of the November 20,2019, Transportation Impact Sh.rdy provides
a conceptual intersection layout fbr this mitigation.

Timing: Prior to issuance of the first Regency Phase 1 building permit.

Mitigation
Measures

#

46

Resolution No. 10670
Page 25 of 140

Page 150

06/14/2022 Item No.9.



coNDrTroNs oF AppRovAL FoR THE TOLL BROTmRS AT FOLSOM RANCH PROJECT (PN 1949r)
WESTOF EAST BIDWELL ROAD, NORTH OFWHITEROCKROAD, EASTOF OAKAYENIIE PARKWAY, AND

SOT.]"IH OF MANGIM PARKWAY
GPA, SPA, DA AMENDMENTS, SLVTSM, PD PERMIT, AND INCLUSIONARY HOUSING PLAN

Condition
Satislied?

Condition
will be

satisfied
prior to
issuance of a

building
permit in the
subdivision.

Condition
will be
satisfied
prior to
issuance of
the 546ih

building
permit in the
Regency
project.

Comments

The Community Development
Department has reviewed and
approved the improvement plans fbr
the construction ofthese required
improvements including the plans for
the modification to the existing traffic
signal. These improvements are

currently under conslruction.

This condition of approval will be
satistied during the development of the
future Phase 2 portion (Regency Phase

2) ofthe Toll Brothers at Folsom
Ranch project. The vesting tenlative
subdivision map for the Phase 2

(Regency) portion ofthe project has

been approved by the City Council.

Responsible
Denartment

cD (E), PW,
FD

cD (E), Pw,
FD

When
Reouired

B

B

Condition of Approval

East Bidwell St/Mangini Pkwy

Signalize the intersection with the following geometry @igwe 56 of the November 20,2019,
Transportation Impact Study) :

r NB: One left-turn lane in a 200' pocket with 60' taper, one through lane, and one right-turn
Iane in a 150' pocket with a 60' taper;

o SB: One left-turn lane in a 200' pocket with 60' taper, one through lane, and one right-turn
lane in a 150'pocket with 60'taper;

. EB and WB: One left-turn lane in a 200' pocket with 60' taper, one through lane, and one

right-tum lane in a 200'pocket with 60'taper.

Timing: prior to issuance of first Regency Phase I building permit.

East Bidwell St/Mtngini Pkwy

Expand the intersection and update signal configuration as follows (Figure 57 ofthe November
20, 2019 Transportation Impact Study):

e NB: One left-turn lane in a 200' pocket with 60' taper, two tfuough lanes, and one right-turn
lane in a 150' pocket with a 60' taper (the second through lane should be developed 300'
south of the intersection);

r SB: One left-tum lane in a 200' pocket with 60' taper, one tkough lane, and one right-tum
lane in a l50'pocket with 60'taper;

o EB and WB: One left-tum lane in a 200' pocket with 60' taper, one tkough lane, and one

right-tum lane in a 2O0'pocket with 60'taper.

Timing: Prior to issuance ofthe first Regency Phase 2 building permit (546n overall Regency

Phase li2 building permit excludingthe 45 model home building permits).

Mitigation
Measures

#

47

48

ResolutionNo. I0670
Page 26 of 140

Page 151

06/14/2022 Item No.9.



CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL FOR Tm TOLL BROTmRS AT FOLSOM RANCE PROJECT (PN 19-091)
WEST OFEAST BIDWELL ROAD, NORTH OFWHITEROCKROAD, EAST OT'OAKAllf,NTIE PARKlryAY, AND

SOUTU OF MANGIM PARKWAY
GPA. SPA. DA AMEIIDMENTS. SLVTSM. PD PERMIT, AI\[D INCLUSIONARY EOUSING PLAII

Condition
Satisfied?

Condition
will be

satisfied
prior to
issuance ofa
building
permit in the
subdivision.

Condition
will be

satisfied
prior to
issuance of
the 546th

building
permit in
Phase 2 of
the Regency
project.

Comments

The Community Development
Department has approved the plans for
the reconstructron and signalization of
the East Bidwell Street/Alder Creek
Parkway intersection in accordance
with this condition.

The owner/applicant will be required
to submit grading and improvement
plans to the Community Development
Department for review and approval to
construct these required
improvements. The required
improvements will have to be

constructed and accepted by the City
prior to issuance ofthe 546m building
permit in the Regency Phase 2 portion
ofthe project.

Responsible
Department

cD (E), PW,
FD

cD (E), PW
FD

When
Required

B

B

Condition of Approval

East Bidwell St/Alder Creek Parkway

Reconstruct and signalize the East Bidwell SVAlder Creek Parkway intersection as shown tn
Figwe 58 of the November 20,2019, Transportation Impact Study:

. NB Approach: One U-turn lane in a I 50' pocket with a 60' taper, one through lane, and one
right tum lane in a 150' pocket plus 60'taper.

. SB Approach: One left tum lane in a 200' pocket plus 60' taper, and one through lane.

e WB Approach: One right turn lane, plus one left-turn lane in a 200' pocket plus 60' taper.

Timing: Prior to issuance of the first Regency Phase I building permit.

East Bidwell St/AIder Creek Parkway

Reconstruct and modif' signal at the East Bidwell St/Alder Creek Parkway intersection as

shown in Figure 59 of the November 20,2019, Transportation Impact Study:

a

a

a

NB Approach: One U-turn lane in a 150' pocket with a 60' taper, two through lanes, and
one right turn lane in a 150' pocket plus 60' taper.

SB Approach: One left turn lane in a240' pocket plus 60' taper, and two through lanes. The
second SB through lane can be dropped south of Old Ranch Way, the estimated taper for
merging the two southbound lanes into one should be 660 feet long based on a 55 mph
design speed and 12-foot lane width.
WB Approach: One right turn lane, plus one left-turn lane in a 200' pocket plus 60' taper.

Timing: Prior to issuance ofthe first Regency Phase 2 building permit (5461h overall Regency
Phase 712 building permit excludingthe 45 model home building permits).

Mitigation
Measures

#

49

50.

Resolution No. 10670
Page 27 of 140

Page 152

06/14/2022 Item No.9.



CONDITIONS OF FOR fl{n TOLL BROTmRS AT FOLSOM RANCH PROJECT (PN 19-091)
WEST OFEASTBIDWELL ROAD, NORTH OFWHITE ROCKROAD,EAST OF OAKAVENIM PARI(WAY, AND

SOUTH OF MANGIM PARKWAY
GPA. SPA, DA AMEN'DMENTS, SLWSM, PD PERMIT, AND INCLUSIONARY IIOUSING PLAI\

Condition
Satisfred?

Yes

Condition
will be

satisfied
prior to
issuance of
the 546th
building
permit in
Phase 2 of
the Regency
project.

Comments

The required improvements in this
condition have been completed and
accepted by the City. These
improvements were constructed as part
of the off-site improvements for the
Mangini Ranch Phase 2, Village No. 7

subdivision.

The owner/applicant will be required
to submit grading and improvement
plans to the Community Development
Department for review and approval to
construct these required
improvements. The required
improvements will have to be

constructed and accepted by the City
prior to issuance ofthe 546t building
permit in the Regency Phase 2 portion
of the prqect.

Responsible
Deoartment

cD (E), PW,
FD

cD (E), PW,
FD

When
Reouired

B

B

Condition of Approval

East Bidwell St/Savannah Parkway

Reconstruct the East Bidwell St/Savannah Pkwy intersection with the following geometry

(Figure 60 ofthe November 20,2019, Transportation Impact Study):

. NB Approach: One shared through-right lane with a 150' taper;

. SB Approach: One left twn lane in a 150' pocket plus 60' taper, and one through lane;
r WB Approach: One left tum lane in a 60' pocket plus 60' taper, and one through lane;
r SB deparfure: Construct a southbound receiving and acceleration lane for westbound left

turn traffic. The acceleration lane shall be in a 300' pocket plus an appropriate taper.

Timing: Prior to issuance of the first Regency Phase I building permit.

East Bidwell St/Savannah Pa*way

Reconstruct the East Bidwell St/Savannah Pkwy intersection with the following geometry

(Figure 6l of the November 20,2019, Transportation Impact Study):

. NB Approach: One through lane and one shared through-right lane with a I 50' taper;

. SB Approach: One left turn lane in a 150' pocket plus 60' taper, and one tkough lane;

. WB Approach: One left tum lane in a 60' pocket plus 60' taper, and one through lane;

. SB departure: Construct a southbound receiving and acceleration lane fbr westbound left
tum traffic. The acceleration lane shall be in a 300' pocket plus an appropriate taper.

Timing: Prior to issuance ofthe first Regency Phase 2 building permit (546th overall Regency

Phase l/2 building permit excluding the 45 model home building permits).

Mitigation
Measures

#

51

52.

Resolution No. 10670
Page 28 of I 40

Page 153

06/14/2022 Item No.9.



CONDITIONS OF APPROVAI FOR TIIE TOLL BROTMRS AT FOLSOM RANCH PROJECT (PN 19-091)
WEST OFEASTBIDWELL ROAD, NORTH OFWHITEROCKROAD, EAST OF OAK AVEI\IM PARI(WAY, AND

SOUTH OF MANGINI PARKWAY
GPA. SPA. DA AMENDMENTS, SLVTSM. PD PERMIT. AND INCLUSIONARY IIOUSTNG PLAN

Condition
Safisfied?

Yes

Yes

Yes

Comments

The Community Development
Department has reviewed and
approved the phasing plan for Phase I
ofthe Toll Brothers at Folsom Ranch
Regency project. The City Engineer
has approved the phasing plan to
verifli that the proposed roadway and
infrastructure is appropriate for each
phase.

The owner/applicant has provided
copies of fully executed rights-of-entry
fiom privately owned parcels that
adjoin the Toll Brothers at Folsom
Ranch project. The fully executed
rights-of-entry are on file with the
Community Development Department.

During the course ofgrading and
construction for the subdivision no

mine shafts or tunnels were located or
discovered.

Responsible
Department

cD (E), PW,
FD

CD (E)

CD (E)

When
Required

G, I,M

G, I

G

Condition of Approval

Utility I nfr astr uctu r e

Utilities shall be constructed concurrent with the roadway phasing, as deemed appropriate
and necessary to support the particular phase by the City Engineer.

a

a A particular development phase may be developed into sub-phases in which the roadway
and utility phasing may change. Ifsub-phasing is proposed, the Cify Engineer shall
determine what roadway and utility improvements are appropriate and necessary to serve

the sub-phase.

Off-site improvements / Rights of Entry
For any improvements constructed on private property that are not under the ownership or
control of the owner/applicant, all rights-ot--entry, and if necessary, a permanent easement shall
be obtained and provided to the City. All rights of entry, construction easements, either
permanent or temporary and other easements shall be obtained as set forth in Amendments No.
1 and 2 to ARDA, which shall be fully executed by all affected parties and shall be recorded
with the Sacramento County Recorder, where applicable, prior to approval ofgrading and,/or

improvement olans.
Mine Shaft Remediation
The owner/applicant shall locate and remediate all antiquated mine shafts, drifts, open cuts,
tunnels, and water conveyance or impoundment structures existing on the project site, with
specific recommendations fbr the sealing, filling, or removal of each that meet all applicable
health, safety and engineering standards. Recommendations shall be prepared by an
appropriately licensed engineer or geologist. All remedial plans shall be reviewed and approved
bv the Citv orior to aooroval oferadine olans.

Mitigation
Measures

#

53

54

55.

Resolution No. 1 0670
Page 29 of 140

Page 154

06/14/2022 Item No.9.



CONDITIONS OFAPPROVAL FORTHE TOLL BROTMRS AT FOLSOMRANCH PROJECT (PN 19.091)
WEST OF'EASTBIDWELL ROAD, NORTHOFWHITEROCKROAD, EAST OF OAKAVEIII,IE PARI(WAY, AN'D

SOUTfl OT MANGIM PARJ(WAY
GPA. SPA. DA AMEIIDMENTS. SLVTSM. PD PERMIT. AND INCLUSIONARY HOUSING PLAN

Condition
Satisfied?

Yes

Yes

Yes

Comments

The Community Development
Department has reviewed and
approved and will review and approve
all proposed traffic control plans

necessary to construct the requrred
subdivision improvements. Grading
and construction of the subdivision
improvements commenced in August
of 2020 and will continue through to
the second quuter of2022.

The owner/applicant has obtained all
required State and Federal permits and
copies are available from the
Community Development Department.
The owner/applicant has obtained all
required State and Federal permits
including Section 401 water quality
certification and copies are available
liom the Community Development
Deoartment.

Responsible
Department

cD (E)

CD (PXE)

cD (E)

When
Required

G

G,I

G

Condition of Approval

Prepare TrafJic Control Plan.
Prior to construction, a Traffic Control Plan lbr roadways and intersections affected by
construction shall be prepared by the owner/applicant. The Traftic Control Plan prepared by the
owner/applicant shall, at minimum, include the lbllowing measures:

a

a

a

a

a

Maintaining the maximum amount of travel lane capacity during non-construction periods,
possible, and advanced notice to drivers through the provision ofconstruction signage.

Marntaining alternate one-way traffic flow past the lay down area and site access when
feasible.
Heavy trucks and other construction transport vehicles shall avoid the busiest commute
hours (7 a.m. to 8 a.m. and 5 p.m. to 6 p.m. on weekdays).

A minimum 72-hotr advance notice ofaccess restrictions for residents, businesses, and
local emergency response agencies. This shall include the identification ofalternative routes
and detours to enable for the avoidance ofthe immediate construction zone.

A phone number and City contact for inquiries about the schedule ofthe construction
throughout the construction period. This infbrmation will be posted in a local newspaper,
via the Citv's web site. or at CiW Hall and will be updated on a monthly basis.

State and Federal Permits
The owner/applicant shall obtain all required State and Federal permits and provide evidence
that sard permits have been obtained, or that the permit is not required, subject to staffreview
prior to aoproval ofanv srading or improvement plan.

llater Qu ality C ertification
A water quality certification pursuant to Section 401 of the Clean Water Act is required before
issuance ofthe record ofdecision and before issuance ofthe Section 404 permit. Before
construction in any areas containing wetland features, the owner/applicant shall obtain water
quality certification fbr the pro-ject. Any measures required as part ofthe issuance ofwater
oualitv certification shall be imolemented Dursuant to the Dermit conditions.

Mitigation
Measures

#

56

57

58

Resolution No. 10670
Page 30 of I 40

Page 155

06/14/2022 Item No.9.



coNDrTroNs oF AIPRoVAL FOR Tm TOLL BROTruRS AT FOLSOM RANCIT PROJECT (PN 19{91)
WEST OF EASTBIDWELL ROAD, NORTH OFWHITEROCKROAD, EAST OF OAKAVENTIEPARKWAY, AND

SOTITH OF MANGINI PARKWAY
GPA. SPA. DA AMENI}MENTS. SLVTSM. PD PERMIT. AND INCLUSIONARY IIOUSING PLAI\

Condition
Satisfied?

Yes

Yes

Yes

Comments

The owner/applicant retained a

geotechnical engineer and
implemented recommendations for this
mitigation measure. A geotechnical

report outlining these

recommendations is available from
Communitv Develooment DeDartment.

The owner/applicant submitted
improvement plans for all
infrastructure improvements required
to serve this subdivision. The City
Engineer has reviewed and approved
all required improvement plans to
serve this subdivision. Copies ofthe
improvement plans are available fiom
the Community Development
DeDartment.
The owner/applicant submitted
improvement plans in accordance with
the City's Standard Specifi cations.

Responsible
Department

cD (E) PW

IMPROVEMENT PLAN REQUIREMENTS

cD (E)

CD (PXE)

When
Required

G

M

I

Condition of Approval

Landslide /S lope Failure
The owner/applicant shall retain an appropriately licensed engineer during the grading activities
to identily existing landslides and potential slope t'ailure hazards. The said engineer shall be

notified a minimum of two days prior to any site clearing or grading to facilitate meetings with
the grading contractor in the field.

Improvement Plans
The improvement plans fbr the required public and private subdivision improvements necessary

to serve any and all phases of development shall be reviewed and approved by the Community
Development Department prior to approval of a Final Map.

Standard Constru ction Specificatio ns and Details
Public and private improvements, including roadways, curbs, gutters, sidewalks, bicycle lanes

and trarls, streetlights, underground infrastructure and all other improvements shall be provided
in accordance with the latest edition ofthe City ofFolsom Standard Construction Soectfications
and Details andthe Desisn and Procedures Manual and Implor)eryLel4;tarydqds.

Mitigation
Measures

#

59

60

61

Resolution No. 10670

Page3l ofl40

Page 156

06/14/2022 Item No.9.



CONDITIONS OF A}PROVAL FOR THE TOLL BROTIIERS AT FOLSOM RANCH PROJECT CN 19-091)
WESTOFEASTBIDWELL ROAD, NORTH OT'WHITE ROCKROAD, EAST OF OAKAI'ENT.]E PARKWAY,AI\ID

SOI]-TH OF MANGIM PARI(WAY
GPA. SPA. DA AMEIIDMEI.{TS. SLWSM. PD PERMIT, AND INCLUSIONARY HOUSING PLAI\

Condition
Satisfied?

Yes

Comments

The owner/applicant has installed all
sewer and water infrastructure within
the street right ofway, The outtall
sewer line has been installed within
easements or planned right ofway
within future streets.

Responsible
Department

cD (E)

When
Required

I

Condition of Approval

Water and Sewer Infmstructure
All City-owned water and sewer infrastructure shall be placed within the street right of way. In
the event that a City-maintained public water or sewer main needs to be placed in an area other
than the public right ofway, such as through an open space conidor, landscaped area, etc., the
following criteria must be met;

The owner/applicant shall provide public sewer and water main easements

An access road shall be designed and constructed to allow for the operations, maintenance
and replacement of the public water or sewer line by the City along the entire water and/or
sewer line alignment. However, no access road is required within the hvo pedestrian paseos

(Lot BI and BJ) as shown on the Small-Lot Vesting Tentative Subdivision Map)
In no case shall a City-maintained public water or public sewer line be placed on private
residential property.
The domestic water and inigation system owned and maintained by the City shall be

seoaratelv metered oer Citv of Folsom Standard Construction Specifications and Details.

a

a

a

Mitigation
Measures

#

62

Resolution No. 10670
Page 32 of 140

Page 157

06/14/2022 Item No.9.



CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL FOR THE TOLL BROTIIERS AT FOLSOM RANCH PROJECT (PN 19-091)
WEST OFEASTBIDWTLL ROAD, NORTE OFWHITE ROCKROAD,EAST OF OAKAVENUE PARKWAV,AND

SOUTII OF MANGIM PARKWAY
GPA. SPA. DA AMENDMENTS. SLVTSM. PD PERMIT, AND INCLUSIONARY HOUSING PLAN

Condition
Satisfied?

Yes

Yes

Comments

The owner/applicant submitted a
Lighting Plan for all roadways and this
subdivision in accordance with the
Design Guidelines and City Standards
for Street Lighting. A copy of the
lighting plans are available from the
Community Development Department.

The owner/applicant has coordinated
with all various utility agencies. All
required utility easements are shown
on the final map for this subdivision.

Responsible
Department

CD (P)

cD (P)(E)

When
Required

I

M

Condition of Approval

Lighting Plan
The owner/applicant of all project phases shall submit a lighting plan for the project to the

Community Development Department. The lighting plan shall be consistent with the Folsom
Ranch Central District Design Guidelines:

a

a

Shield or screen lighting fixtures to direct the light downward and prevent light spill on
adjacent properties;

Place and shield or screen flood and area lighting needed for construction activities,
nighttime sporting activities, and/or security so as not to disturb adjacent residential areas

and passing motorists;
For public lighting in residential neighborhoods, prohibit the use oflight fixtures that are of
unusually high intensity or that blink or flash;

Use appropriate building materials (such as low-glare g1ass, low-glare building glaze or
finish, neutral, earth toned colored paint and roofing materials), shielded or screened
lighting, and appropriate signage in the officeicommercial areas to prevent light and glare

fiom adversely afl'ecting motorists on nearby roadways; and

Design exterior on-site lighting as an integral part ofthe building and landscaping design in
the Specific Plan Area. Lighting fixtures shall be architecturally consistent wlth the overall
site design. Lights used on signage should be directed to light only the sign face with no
ofT-site slare.

Utility Coordination
The owner/applicant shall coordinate the planning, development and completion ofthis project
with the various utility agencies (i.e., SMUD, PG&E, etc.). The owner/applicant shall provide
the Citv u.ith written confirmation of oublic utilitv service orior to aooroval of all final maos.

Mitigation
Measures

#

63

64

Resolution No. 10670
Page 33 of I 40

Page 158

06/14/2022 Item No.9.



coNDrTroNs oF AlPRovAr FoR Tm ToLL BROTITERS AT FOLSOM RANCH PROJECT (PN 19-091)
WEST OFEASTBIDWELL ROAD, NORTH Of,'WIIITE ROCKROAD,EAST OF OAKAVENT]E PARKWAY,AND

SOUTH OF MANGII\I PARKWAY
GPA, SPA, DA AMENDMENTS. SLVTSM, PD PERMIT, AND INCLUSIONARY HOUSING PLAII

Condition
Satisfied?

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Comments

The owner/applicant has reconstructed
a portion of East Bidwell Street to the
satisfaction of the Community
Development Department. There is a

general note on the approved
improvements plans requiring
compliance with this condition.

All proposed utility service to the lots
in this subdivision have been placed
underground.

The Owner/applicant has completed
the infrastructure allowing for the
water meter fixed nefwork system.
Meters will be fumished and installed
during home construction for each
individual metered connection.
The approved improvement plans for
this subdivision include vertical
concrete curb in compliance with this
condition.

Responsible
Department

CD (E)

CD (E)

CD (E), EWR

CD (PXB)

When
Required

I, OG

M

I

I

Condition of Approval

Replacing HaT,ardous Facilities
The owner/applicant shall be responsible fbr replacing any and all damaged or hazardous public
sidewalk, curb and gutter, and.ior bicycle trail facilities along the site fiontage and/or
boundaries, including pre-existing conditions and construction damage, to the satisfaction ofthe
Community Development Department.

Future Utility Lines
All future utility lines lower than 69 KV that are to be built within the project shall be placed
underground within and along the perimeter of the project at the developer's cost. The
owner/applicant shall dedicate to SMLID all necessary underground easements fbr the electrical
facilities that will be necessary to service development ofthe proiect.

Water Meter Fixed Network System
The owner owner/applicant shall pay for, firnish and install all infrastructure associated with
the water meter fixed network system for any Cify-owned and maintained water meter within
the project.

Vertical Curb
All curbs located adjacent to landscaping, whether natural or manicured, and where parking is

allowed shall be vertical.

Mitigation
Measures

#

65

66

67

68

Resolution No. I0670
Page 34 of I 40

Page 159

06/14/2022 Item No.9.



Conilition
Safislied?

Yes

Comments

All Class II bike lanes have beEn

oonstructed in accordance with the
Speeific PIa4 Design Guidelines and

City standards.

cD (EXP)

Respousible
Denartment

When
Reouired

I

Condition ofApproval

Cluss II Bike Lans
All Class II bike lames shall bo striped, and the legends painted to the satisfaction ofthe
Community Developrnent D€partrnent. No parking shall be permitted within the Class II bike
lanes.

Mitigation
Measures

#

69.

Rosolution No. 1067O

Page 35 of 140

Page 160

06/14/2022 Item No.9.



Yes

Condition
will be

satisfied
prior to
issuance ofa
building
permit the
various phase

of
development.

The approved landscape plans for East
Bidwell Street, Mangini Parkway and
White Rock Road include the required
sound walls wrth the required
heights.along all ofthese public streets
in accordance with the
recommendations of the noted
acoustical study.

The Community Development
Department will review and approve
all site plans for each and every lot in
the subdivision to verifu compliance
with this condition.CD (EXP)I,O

Noise Barriers
Based on the Environmental Noise Assessment (the "2019 Noise Assessment") prepared by
Bollard Acoustical Consultants on November 24,2019, the following measures shall be
implemented to the satisfaction of the Community Development Department:

r 6-foot-tall solid noise barriers, relative to backyard elevations, shall be constructed along all
residential property boundaries adjacent to East Bidwell Street, Mangini Parkway, and Oak
Avenue Parkway prior to occupancy ofany residences adjacent to the aforementioned
streets.

. For the proposed Traditional Subdivision portion of the project located at the northeast
corner of White Rock Road and Oak Avenue Parkway , a 7-foot-tall solid noise barrier,
relative to backyard elevations, shall be constructed along all property boundaries adjacent
to White Rock Road prior to occupancy of any residences adjacent to White Rock Road.

o For the proposed Regency Phase I and Phase 2 portions ofthe project (which are located at
the northwest corner of the intersection of White Rock Road and East Bidwell Street and
north of White Rock Road in the central portion of the Toll Brothers at Folsom Ranch
project site), an 8-foot-tall solid noise barrier, relative to backyard elevations, shall be
constructed along all residential property boundaries adjacent to White Rock Road.

r Suitable materials for the traffic noise barriers include masonry and precast concrete panels.
The overall barrier height may be achieved by utilizing a barier and earthen berm
combination. Other materials may be acceptable but shall be reviewed by an acoustical
consultant and approved by the Community Development Department prior to use.

o Mechanical ventilation (air conditioning) shall be provided for all residences inthis
development to allow the occupants to close doors and windows as desired to achieve
compliance with the applicable interior noise level criteria.

For the first row ofhomes located within the Traditional Subdivision portion ofthe project
located along White Rock Road, the west-, south-, and east-facing second-floor building
facades shall marntain minimum window assembly STC ratings of 34.

a

70

Resolution No. 10670
Page 36 of 140

Page 161

06/14/2022 Item No.9.



CONDITIONS OF A?PROVAL FOR THE BROTHERS AT FOLSOM RANCH PROJECT (PN 19-091)

WEST OFEASTBIDWELL ROAD, NORTH OFWHITEROCKROAD,EAST OF OAKAVf,NTIE PARI(WAY, AND
SOUTH OF MANGIM PARI(WAY

GPA, SPA, DA PDPERMIT Al\'D INCLUSIONARY HOUSING
Condition
Satisfied?

Yes

Comments

The Owner/applicant has provided
updated Master Plans lbr approval
prior to the issuance of a grading
permit. Copies of the Master Plans are

available from the Community
Development Department. The storm
drainage system for the subdivision
provides for no net increase in run-off
under post development conditions.

Responsible
Denartment

CD(E), EWR,
PW

When
Reouired

G, I

Condition of Approval

Master Plan Updates
The City has approved the Folsom Plan Area Storm Drainage Master Plan, Wastewater Master
Plan, and Water Master Plan. The owner/applicant shall submit complete updates to the

approved master plans, ifapplicable, for the proposed changes to the master plans as aresult of
the proposed project. The updates to the master plans for the proposed project shall be reviewed
and approved by the City prior to approval ofgrading and/or improvement plans.

The plans shall be accompanied by engineering studies supporting the sizing, location, and

timing of the proposed facilities. Improvements shall be constructed in phases as the protect

develops in accordance with the approved master plans, including any necessary off-site
improvements to support development ofa particular phase or phases, subject to prior approval

by the City. Off-site improvements may include roadways to provide secondary access, water
transmission lines or distribution facilities to provide a looped water system, sewer trunk mains

and lift stations, water quality facilities, non-potable water pipelines and infrastructure, and

drainage facilities including on or off-site detention. No changes in infrastructure from that
shown on the approved master plan shall be permitted unless and until the applicable master

plan has been revised and approved by the City. Final lot configurations may need to be

modified to accommodate the improvements identified in these studies to the satisfaction of the

City

The owner/applicant shall provide sanitary sewer, water and storm drainage improvements with
corresponding easements, as necessary, in accordance with these studies and the latest edition of
the City of Folsom SlandardConstruction Specifications and Details. andthe Design and
Procedures Manual and Imnrovement Standards.

The storm drainage design shall provide for no net increase in run-offunder post-development

conditions.

Mitigation
Measures

#

7l

Resolution No. 1 0670
Page 37 of '140

Page 162

06/14/2022 Item No.9.



CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL FOR THE TOI-L BROTMRS AT FOLSOM RANCH PROJECT (PN 19.091)
WEST OFEAST BIDWELL ROAD, NORTH OT'WHITEROCKROAD, EAST OF'OAKAVANUE PARKWAY, AIil)

SOUTE OF MANGINI PARKWAY
GPA, SPA, DA AMENDMENTS, SLVTSM, PD PERMIT, AND INCLUSIONARY IIOUSING PLAN

Condition
Satisfied?

Yes

Comments

The Owner/applicant has received a
NPDES permit fiom the State
Regional Water Quality Control Board
(SRWQCB) The NDES Permit
requires the implementation of BMP's,
monitoring and reporting for
stormwater runoff. The NPDES
Permit includes a Storm Water
Pollution Prevention Plan (SWPPP),

which outlines monitoring standards,
frequency and baseline modeling. The
Owner/applicant has submitted
monthly reports to the City and
SRWQCB.

Responsible
Denartment

cD (E)

When
Reouired

G, I

Condition of Approval

B est M an ag ement P rilctices
The storm drain improvement plans shall provide for "Best Management Practices" that meet
the requirements ofthe water quality standards ofthe City's National Pollutant Discharge
Elimination System Permit issued by the State Regional Water Quality Control Board.

In addition to compliance with City ordinances, the owneriapplicant shall prepare a Stormwater
Pollution Prevention Plan (SWPPP), and implement Best Management Practices (BMPs) that

comply with the General Construction Stormwater Permit from the Central Valley RWQCB, to
reduce water quality effects during construction. Detailed information about the SWPPP and
BMPs are provided in Chapter 3A.9, "Hydrology and Water Quality."

Each proposed project development shall result in no net change to peak flows into Alder Creek
and associated tributaries, or to Buffalo Creek, Carson Creek, and Coyote Creek. The
owner/applicant shall establish a baseline ofconditions for drainage on-site. The baseline-flow
conditions shall be established for 2-, 5-, and 100-year storm events. These baseline conditions
shall be used to develop monitoring standards for the stormwater system on the Specific Plan
Area. The baseline conditions, monitoring standards, and a monitoring program shall be

submifted to USACE and the City for their approval. Water quality and detention basins shall be

designed and constructed to ensure that the performance standards, which are described in
Chapter 3A.9, "Hydrology and Water Quality," are met and shall be designed as off-stream
detention basins.

Discharge sites into Alder Creek and associated tributaries, as well as tributaries to Carson
Creek, Coyote Creek, and Butfalo Creek, shall be monitored to ensure that pre-project
conditions are being met. Corrective measures shall be implemented as necessary. The
mitigation measures will be satisfied when the monitoring standards are met for 5 consecutive
years without undertaking conective measures to meet the performance standard.

Mitigation
Measures

#

72.

Resolution No. 10670
Page 38 of 140

Page 163

06/14/2022 Item No.9.



CONDITIONS OF A}PROVAI FOR THE TOLL BROTRTRS AT FOLSOM RANCH PROJECT (PN 19-091)
WEST OF EASTBIDWELL ROAD, NORTII OFWHTTEROCKROAD,EAST OF OAK AI'ENUE PARI(WAY, ANI)

SOTITH OF MANGINI PARI(WAY
GPA, SPA, DA AMENDMENTS, SLVTSM, PD PERMIT, AND INCLUSIONARY HOUSING PLAN

Condition
Satisfied?

Yes

Yes

Comments

The owner/applicant has complied
with this provision and completed
periodic on-site cleaning and sweeping
ofthe proiect site.

The Community Development
Department, the Fire Department and
the Parks & Recreation Department

have reviewed and approved the Fuel
Modification Plan (FMP) for the

subdivision. The fuel modiftcation
easement, where applicable, is shown
on the final map for this subdivision.

Responsible
Department

cD (E)

FIRE DEPT REQTIIREMENTS

cD (P). FD

When
Required

OG

M,B

Condition of Approval

Litter Control
During Construction, the owner/applicant shall be responsible tbr litter control and sweeping of
all paved surfaces in accordance with City standards. All on-site storm drains shall be cleaned
immediatelv befbre the commencement of the rainy season (October l5).

Prepare fuel modiJication plan (FMP).
The owner/applicant shall submit a Fuel Modification Plan consistent with the FPA Open Space

Management Plan to the City for review and approval by the City. Final approval of the plan

shall occur prior to the issuance of a building permit for any new construction. A Fuel
Modification Plan shall consist of a set of scaled plans showing fuel modrfication zones

indicated with applicable assessment notes, a detailed landscape plan and an irrigation plan. A
fuel modification plan submitted for approval shall be prepared by one of the following: a

California state licensed landscape architect, or state licensed landscape contractor, or a
landscape designed, or an individual with expertise acceptable to the Fire Code Official.

Notitication of fuel modification requirements are to be made upon sale to new property owners.

Proposed changes to the approved Fuel Modification Plan shall be submitted to the City for
approval prior to implementation.

The owner/applicant shall dedicate a 30-foot-wide fuel modification easement(s) for all

residential properties located adjacent to open space areas within the development. The

owner/applicant shall dedicate easements, if applicable, for the required fuel modification
bufl'er. The fuel modification easement(s) shall be shown on the Final Map. The

owner/applicant shall be responsible for the maintenance ofthe fuel modification areas until
such time that the City takes ownership ofthe open space areas that are to be deeded to the City
within the project site.

Mitigation
Measures

#

73

74

Resolution No. 10670
Page 39 of I 40

Page 164

06/14/2022 Item No.9.



CoNDITTONS OF APPROVAL FOR Tm TOLL BROTIIERS AT FOLSOM RANCH PROJf,CT (PN 19-091)
WEST OF EASTBIDWELL ROAD, NORTII OFWHITEROCKROAD, DAST OF OAKAVENUE PARKWAY,AND

SOUTS OF MANGINI PARKWAY
GPA. SPA. DA AMENDMENTS. SLVTSM. PD PERMTT. AND INCLUSIONARY HOUSING PLAI\

Condition
Satisfied?

Yes

Comments

The owner/applicant has designed and
received approval for all weather
access improvements and fire hydrants
for this subdivision. Permits for
vertical construction will not be issued
prior to these improvements being
completed. As ofMay 1,2022,the
City has issued approximately 1300

Certificates of Occupancy in the
Folsom Plan Area.

Responsible
Department

cD (P), FD

When
Required

G, I,M,B

Condition of Approval

All-Weather Access and Fire Hydrants
The owner/applicant shall provide all-weather access and fire hydrants before combustible
materials are allowed on any project site or other approved alternative method as approved by
the Fire Department. All-weather emergency access roads and fire hydrants (tested and flushed)
shall be provided before combustible material or vertical construction is allowed on any project
site or other approved alternative method as approved by the Fire Department. (All-weather
access is defined as six inches ofcompacted aggregate base from May I to September 30 and
two inches asphalt concrete over six inches aggregate base from October to April 30). The
building shall have illuminated addresses visible from the street or drive fronting the property.
Size and location ofaddress identification shall be reviewed and approved by the Fire
Department.
. Residential Fire-Flow with Automatic Fire Sprinkler System: The required fire-f'low lbr the

proposed residential portion ofthe project is determined to be 875 GPM for one hour.
. All public streets shall meet City ofFolsom Street Standards.
o The maximum length ofany dead-end street shall not exceed 500 feet in accordance with the

Folsom Fire Code (unless approved by the Fire Department).
. All-weather emergency access roads and t'ire hydrants (tested and flushed) shall be provided

before combustible material storage or vertical construction is allowed. All-weather access is

defined as 6" of compacted AB from May 1 to September 30 and 2"AC over 6" AB liom
October I to April 30

. The first Fire Station planned for the Folsom Plan Area may be required to be completed
and operational at the time that the theshold of 1,500 occupied homes within the Folsom
Plan Area is met.

Mitigation
Measures

#

75

Resolution No. I 0670
Page 40 of I 40

Page 165

06/14/2022 Item No.9.



Conditlon
Satisfted?

CommentsResponsible
Derrrtrnent

Whsn
Required

Condition ofApprovalMitigafion
Measure

#

LANDSCAPE/TREE PRESERVATION

ResolutionNo. 10670
Page 41 of 140

Page 166

06/14/2022 Item No.9.



CoNDTTIONS OF APPROVAL FOR THE TOLL BROTIIERS AT FOLSOM RANCH PROJECT (PN 19-091)
Wf,ST OFEAST BIDWf,LL ROAD, NORTH OFWHITEROCKROAD,EAST OF OAKAVENT'E PARI(WAY, AND

SOUTE OF MANGIM PARI(WAY
GPA. SPA. DA AMENDMENTS. SLVTSM, PD PERMIT. AND INCLUSIONARY HOTISING PLAN

Condition
Satisfied?

Yes

Comments

The owner/applicant obtained a Tree
Permit from the Community
Development Department for the
removal ofprotected oak trees that
were impacted by the grading and
construction ofPhase I ofthe Toll
Brothers at Folsom Ranch project.

The Tree Permit was approved prior
to cornrnencement ofgrading and
construction in the Summer of 2020.
The owner/applicant paid rnJieu
fees for the removal of some trees,

the City approved a Tree
Replacement Plan for another
portion of the tree that were removed
and preserved existing oak trees in
El Dorado Counry for the remaining
mitigation for the total number of
protected trees in accordance with
this condition.

The Conservation Easements within
the Phase 1 portion ofthe
subdivision were fenced offaround
their boundaries in advance ofthe
commencement of grading and
construction and the City verified
compliance by inspecting the fence
in advance of eradine.

Responsible
Deoartment

cD (P)(E)

When
Required

G, I

Condition of Approval

The owneriapplicant shall obtain a tree removal permit, mitigate for removal of protected and
heritage trees in accordance with Chapter 12.16 of the City of Folsom Municipal Code for Tree
Preservation, and minimize indirect impacts to trees to be preserved. This shall include the
following:

A Tree Permit Application containing an application fbrm, justification statement, site map,
preservation program, and arborist's report shall be submitted to the City ofFolsom by the
owner/applicant for issuance of a Tree Permit prior to commencement of any grading or site
improvement activities.

a

a A Mitigation Plan shall be prepared by the owner/applicant to mitigate for the removal of
the protected Canopy Oak Trees and Isolated Oak Trees withln the development site. The
Mitigation Plan for the Isolated Oak Trees shall consist of replacement trees and,/or payment
of"In-Lieu" fees on a diameter inch bases consistent with 10-14, 10-15 ofthe FPASP.
Replacement trees may be located within the boundaries of the development parcel, a

natural parkway, landscape corridor or passive or preserve open space zone, preferably
within the Folsom Plan Area. The Mitigation Plan for the Isolated Oak Trees shall be

subject to review and approval by the City. The Mitigation Plan for the Canopy Oak Trees
shall be consistent with the mitigation requirements established by the Folsom PIan Area
Specific Plan.

The Conservation Areas shall be fenced prior to construction. In addition, oak trees to be
preserved within the Passive Recreation Open Spaces shall be fenced with high-visibility
l-encing prior to starting construction. The fencing shall be installed outside the tree
preservation zone ofoak trees, and shall sunound the entirety ofthe tree preservation zone
area. Parking of vehicles, equipment, or storage of materials is prohibited within the Tree
Protection Zone ofProtected Trees at all times. Signs shall be posted on exclusion fencing
stating that the enclosed trees are to be preserved. Signs shall state the penalty for damage
to, or removal of, the protected tree.

Mitigation
Measure

#

76

Resolution No. 10670
Page 42 of 140

Page 167

06/14/2022 Item No.9.



CONDITIONS OF APPROVAI FOR TEE TOLL BROTEERS AT FOLSOM RANCH PROJECT (PN 19-091)
WESTOF EASTBIDWELL ROAD, NORTH OFWHITEROCKROAD, EASTOS'OAKAVENTIE PARI(WAY, AND

SOUT"E OF MANGTM PARI(WAY
GPA, SPA, DA AMENDMENTS, SLVTSM, PD PERMIT, AND INCLUSIONARY HOTISING PLAN

Condition
Satisfied?

Yes

Comments

The owner/applicant has retained an

ISA certified project arborist. The
project arborist was on-site during
the removal of all protected oak trees

and was present during grading
within the tree protection zone
(TPZ) of those tree that were to be
preserved. All ofthe preserved trees

were identifi ed, tagged and TPZ
fencing was placed around them
prior to commencement of grading
in Ausust of 2020.

Responsible
Department

CD (PXE)

When
Required

G

Condition of Approval

The owner/applicant shall retain an ISA certified project arbonst lbr implementation ofthe
project. The project arborist shall be responsible tbr overseeing onsite tree removal and tree
preservation. Oak trees located adjacent to construction areas that may be indirectly
impacted due to work within or near the Tree Protection Zone shall be identified and tagged
by the project arborist during construction activities. The indirectly impacted trees shall be

monitored by the prolect arborist for five years in accordance with the Conceptual Oak Plan
and FPASP EIRi€IS Mitigation Measwe 3,4.3-5. Trees that appear to be dead or dying
within five years of project implementation will be replaced as per the requirements of this
Plan.

Mitigation
Measure

#

77

Resolution No. 10670
Page 43 of I 40

Page 168

06/14/2022 Item No.9.



oF APPROVAL FOR THE TOLL BROTnERS AT FOLSOM RANCE PROJECT (PN 19-09r)
WEST OF EASTBIDWELL ROAD, NORTH OFWHITEROCKROAD, EAST OF OAKAvENtM PARI(WAY, AND

SOUTHOFMANGIMPARKWAY
GPA, SPA, DA AMENDMENTS, SLVTSM, PD PERMIT, A}[D INCLUSIONARY IIOTISING

Condition
Satisfied?

Condition will
be satisfied
prior to
issuance of a

building permit
in the
subdivision.

Yes

Comments

The Community Development
Department is cunently reviewing
the landscape and streetscape plans

for this subdivision. Prior to plan
approval, the Community
Development Department will
review the plans for compliance with
this condition

The landscape and irrigation
improvements for all open space
parcels in the subdivision will be

constructed upon completion of the
roads and lots that adioin them.

Responsible
Deoartment

cD (PXE)

cD (P)

When
Reouired

B

I, OG

Condition of Approval

Landscaping Plans
Final landscape plans and specifications shall be prepared by a registered landscape architect
and approved by the City prior to the approval ofthe first building permit. Said plans shall
include all on-site landscape specifications and details including a tree planting exhibit
demonstrating sufficient diversity and appropriate species selection to the satisfaction ofthe
Community Development Department. The tree exhibit shall include all street trees, accent
trees, parking lot shading trees, and mitigation trees proposed wrthin the development. Sard

plans shall comply with all State and local rules, regulations, Governor's declarations and
restrictions pertaining to water conservation and outdoor landscaping.

Landscaping shall meet shade requirements as outlined in the Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan
where applicable. The landscape plans shall comply and implement water efficient requirements

as adopted by the State of Califbrnia (Assembly Bill 1881) (State Model Water Efficient
Landscape Ordinance) until such tirne the City of Folsom adopts its ou.n Water Efficient
Landscape Ordinance at which time the ouner/applicant shall comply with any new ordinance.
Shade and ornamental trees shall be maintained according to the most current American National
Standards for Tree Care Operations (ANSI A-300) by qualified tree care professionals. Tree

topping for height reduction, view protection, light clearance or any other purpose shall not be

allowed. Specialty-style pruning, such as pollarding, shall be specified within the approved

landscape plans and shall be implemented during a 5-year establishment and training period. The

owner/applicant shall comply with city-wide landscape rules or regulations on water usage.

Owner/applicant shall comply with any state or local rules and regulations relating to landscape
water usage and landscaping requirements necessitated to mitigate fbr drought conditions on all
landscaoins in the Toll Brothers oroiect.
Right of Way Landscaping
Landscaping along all road rights ofway and in public open space lots shall be installed when
the adjoining road or lots are constructed.

Mitigation
Measure

#

78

79

Resolution No. 10670
Page 44 of I 40

Page 169

06/14/2022 Item No.9.



CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL FOR THE TOLL BROTHERS AT FOLSOM RANCE PROJECT (PN 19.091)
WEST OF EAST BIDWELL ROAD,NORTH OFWHITf,ROCKROAD, EAST OF OAK AVENUEPARKWAY, A]\ID

SOUTH OF MANGINI PARI(WAY
GPA. SPA, DA AMENDMENTS, SLVTSM, PD PERMIT, AND INCLUSIONARY HOUSING PLAII

Condition
Satisfied?

Yes

Yes

Comments

The required subdivision
improvement agreement is included
as part ofthe City staffreport
accompanyrng the final map for City
Council approval. The resolution
approving the final map for this
subdivision includes a statement
authorizing the City Manager to
execute the subdivision improvement
agreement for the subdivision along
with approval of the final map.
The owner/applicant has executed an

Inclusionary Housing Agreement
with the City. The agreement allows
the owner/applicant to provide an in-
lieu fee assigned to each building
permit in the subdivision. The inlieu
housing fee will be paid at the time
of buildine oermit issuance.

Responsible
Denartment

MAP REQUIREMENTS

CD (E)

CD (PXE)

When
Required

M

M

Condition of Approval

S u bdivision Improvement Agreemenl
Prior to the approval of any Final Map, the owner/applicant shall enter into a subdivision
improvement agreement with the City, identifuing all required improvements, if any, to be

constructed with each proposed phase of development. The owner/applicant shall provide
security acceptable to the City. guaranteeing construction ofthe improvements.

The Final Inclusionary Housing Plan
The Final Inclusionary Housing Plan shall be approved by the City Council, and the
Inclusionary Housing Agreement approved by the City Attorney shall be executed prior to
recordation of the first Small-Lot Final Map for the Toll Brothers at Folsom Ranch project.

Mitigation
Measures

#

80.

8l

Resolution No. 10670
Page 45 of I 40

Page 170

06/14/2022 Item No.9.



YesThe Community Development
Department has reviewed the
subdivisions CC & R's and verified
that all required disclosures in this
condition of approval are included.

cD (P) PKM

Department of Real Estale Public Report
The owner/applicant shall disclose to the homebuyers in the Department ofReal Estate Public
Report and the CC&R's for the Toll Brothers at Folsom Ranch project the following items:

I ) Future public parks and public schools are located in relatively close proximity to the
proposed subdivision, and that the public parks may include facilities (basketball courts,
a baseball field, softball fields, soccer fields, and playground equipment) that may
generate noise impacts during various times, including but not limited to evening and
nighttime hours. The owneriapplicant shall also disclose that the existing public parks

include nighttime sports lighting that may generate lighting impacts during evening and
nighttime hours.

2) The soil in the subdivision may contain naturally occuning asbestos and naturally
occurring arsenic.

3) The collecting, digging, or removal of any stone, artifact, or other prehistoric or historic
object located in public or open space areas, and the disturbance of any archaeological
site or historic property, is prohibited.

4) The project site is located within close proximity to the Mather Airport flight path and
that overflight noise may be present at various times.

5) Thatallpropertieslocatedwithinonemileofanon-oroff-siteareazonedorusedfor
agriculhral use (including livestock grazing) shall be accompanied by written
disclosure from the transferor, in a form approved by the City ofFolsom, advising any
transferee of the potential adverse odor impacts from surrormding agricultural
operations which disclosure shall direct the transferee to contact the County of
Sacramento conceming any such property within the Cormty zoned for agricultural uses

within one mile of the subject property being transferred.

6) The project site is located adjacent to the future JPA Connector which may generate

noise impacts during various times including but not limited to evening and nightttme
hours.

82.

Resolution No. 10670
Page 46 of 140

Page 171

06/14/2022 Item No.9.



CoNDITIONS OF APPROVAL F',OR TI{E TOLL BROTHERS AT FOLSOM RANCH PROJECT (PN 19-091)
WEST OF EAST BIDWELL ROAD, NORTII OFWHITI ROCK ROAD, EAST OF OAK AI'ENT'E PARKWAY, AI\D

SOUTH OF MANGIM PARI(WAY
GPA, SPA, DA AMEN]DMENTS, SLVTSM, PD PERMIT, AND INCLUSIONARY HOUSING PLAII

Condition
Safisfied?

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Comments

The owner/applicant has dedicated a

12.5' PIIE along all roadway utility
corridors as well as internal streets

within the subdivision. The public
utility easements are shown on the
final map.

The Community Development
Department has reviewed and
approved the phasing plan for Phase

1D ofthe Toll Brothers oroiect.
The owner/applicant provided all
necessary public utility easements,
grant deeds, offbrs ofdedication or
temporary construction easements

required to build all ofthe required
Backbone Infrastructure needed to
serve the subdivision. These were
recorded with Sacramento County
Recorder bv separate instrument.

The owner/applicant has installed
new benchmarks per the direction of
the City Engineer and the new
benchmarks have been placed in
compliance with this condition of
approval.

Responsible
Department

cD (E)

cD (E)

CD (E)

cD (E)

When
Required

M

M

M

M

Condition of Approval

Pu blic Utility Eas ements
The owner/applicant shall dedicate public utility easements for underground facilities on
properties adjacent to the public and private streets. A minimum oftwelve and one-half'-foot
(12.5') wide Public Utility Easements for underground facilities (i.e., SMLD, Pacific Gas and
Electric, cable television, telephone) shall be dedicated adjacent to all public and private street
rights-of'-way. The owner/applicant shall dedicate additional width to accommodate
extraordinary facilities as determined by the City. The width of the public utility easements

adjacent to public and private right ofway may be reduced with prior approval from public
utilitv comnanies.
Final Map Phasing
Should multiple Final Maps be filed by the owner/applicant, the phasing of maps shall be to the
satisfaction of the Community Development Department.

B ac k b o n e I nfr asttu ctur e
As provided for in the ARDA and the Amendment No. 1 thereto, the owner/applicant shall
provide fully executed grant deeds, legal descriptions, and plats for all necessary Infrastructure
to serve the project, including but not limited to lands, public rights ofway, public utility
easements, public water main easements, public sewer easements, irrevocable offers of
dedication and temporary construct'ion easements. All required easements as listed necessary
for the Infrastructure shall be reviewed and approved by the City and recorded with the
Sacramento Counfy Recorder pursuant to the timing requirements set forth in Section 3.8 of the
ARDA. and anv arnendments thereto.
New Permanent Benchmarks
The owner/applicant shall provide and establish newpermanent benchmarks on the (NAVD 88)
datum in vmious locations within the subdivision or at any other locations in the vicinity of the
project/subdivision as directed by the City Engineer. The type and specificatrons for the
permanent benchmarks shall be provided by the City. The new benchmarks shall be placed by
the owner/applicant within 6 months fiom the date of approval of the vesting tentative
subdivision mao.

Mitigation
Measures

#

83

84.

85.

86

Resolution No. 10670
Page 47 of 140

Page 172

06/14/2022 Item No.9.



CONDITIONS OF'APPROVAL FOR TEE TOLL BROTHERS AT FOLSOM RANCH PROJECT (PN 19-091)
WEST OF EASTBIDWELLROAD, NORTH OT'WIIITE ROCKROAD, EAST OF'OAKAVENUE PARI(WAY, AND

SOUTH OF MANGINI PARKWAY
GPA, SPA, DA AMEI\DMENTS, SLVTSM, PD PERMIT, AND INCLUSTONARY HOUSING PLAI\

Condition
Satisfied?

Yes

Condition will
be satisfied prior
to issuance of a

building permit.

Condition will
be satisfied prior
to issuance ofa
building permit.

Yes

Comments

The final map for this subdivision
includes the required easement for
the placement of centralized mail
delivery units. The USPS will
provide the owner/applicant with the
location of the mail delivery unit and
u,ill provide a concrete pad for the
placement is the specified location in
the subdivision.
The Community Development
Department shall verif, that the
owner/applicant has provided the
required recorded copy ofthe final
map to the CDD prior to building
permit issuance in the subdivision.
The Community Development
Department shall verif,i that the
owner/applicant has provided the
required recorded copy ofthe final
map to the FCUSD prior to building
permit issuance in the subdivision.
The owner/applicant has executed all
ofthe required Specific Plan
Infrastructure Fee

Credit/Reimbwsement Agreements
for the Phase I subdivision. The
executed agreements are on file with
the Community Development
Department.

Responsible
Department

CD (E)

cD (E)

cD (P),
FCUSD

cD (E)

When
Required

M

B

B

M

Condition of Approval

Centralized Mail Delivery Units
All Final Maps shall show easements or other mapped provisions for the placement of
centralized mail delivery units. The owner/applicant shall provide a concrete base for the
placementofanycentralizedmaildeliveryunit. Specificationsandlocationofsuchbaseshall
be determined pursuant to the applicable requirements ofthe U. S. Postal Service and the City
of Folsom Community Development Department, with due consideration for street light
location, traffic safety, security, and consumer convenience.

Recorded Final Map
Prior to the issuance ofbuilding permits, the owneriapplicant shall provide a digital copy ofthe
recorded Final Map (in AutoCAD format) to the Community Development Department. The

exception to thrs requirement are model homes; subject to approval of the Community
Development Department, building permits for model homes only may be issued prior to

recordins of the Final Map.
Recorded Final Map
Prior to issuance ofbuilding permits, the owneriapplicant shall provide the Folsom-Cordova
Unified School District with a copy of the recorded Final Map.

Credit Reimb u rs ement Ag ree ment
Prior to the recordation of the first Small-Lot Final Map, the owner/applicant and City shall
enter into a credit and reimbursement agreement for constructed improvements that are included
rn the Folsom Plan Area's Public Facilities Financing Plan.

Mitigation
Measures

#

87

88

89

90.

Resolution No. 1 0670
Page 48 of I 40

Page 173

06/14/2022 Item No.9.



Condition
Satisfied?

ComrnsntsResponsible
Derartrnent

When
Reouired

Condifpn of AppnralMitigation
Measures

#

ResohdionNo. 10670
Pag{' 49 of 140

Page 174

06/14/2022 Item No.9.



Condition will
be satisfied
prior to
issuance ofa
building permit.

The Community Development
Department will review and approve
all site and building plans in the
subdivision to verifu compliance
with this condition prior to building
permit issuance on all lots in the
subdivision.

cD (P) (B)B

The Regency Phase I portion ofthe Toll Brothers at Folsom Ranch project
(Lots 1-590 as shown on the Small-Lot Vesting Tentative Subdivision Map) shall comply with
the following architecture and design requirements:

L This approval is for five, one-story master plans in four architectural styles with three

color and material options each for the Regency portion ofthe Toll Brothers project.
The applicant shall submit building plans that comply with this approval and the

attached buildrng elevations dated August 30,2019.

2. The design, materials, and colors of the proposed Regency single-family and

tor.mhome residential units shall be consistent with the submitted building elevations,

materials samples, and color scheme to the satisfaction of the Community
Development Department.

3. The Community Development Department shall approve the individual lot permits to
assrre no duplication or repetition of the same house, same roofline, same elevation
style, side-by-side, or across the street from each other.

4. All mechanical equipment shall be ground-mounted and concealed from view of
public streets, neighboring properties and nearby higher buildings. For lots abutting
the open space areas, mechanlcal equipment shall be located out ofview from open

space areas.

5. Decorative light fixtures, consistent with the Folsom Ranch Central District Design
Guidelines and unique to each architectural design theme, shall be added to the front
building elevation of each Master Plan to the satisfaction of the Community
Development Department.

6. A minimum of one street shall be planted in the flont yard of each residential lot
within the subdivision. A minimum of two trees are required along the street-side of
all comer lots. All front yard inigation and landscaping shall be installed prior to a
Building Permit Final.

7. A maximum of 25oh of the townhome product located on interior lots shall been
permitted to have a side entrv at the primary entrance location to the residence.

91

Resolution No. 10670

Page 50 of 140

Page 175

06/14/2022 Item No.9.



CoNDITIONS OF APPROVAL FOR THE TOLL BROTHERS AT FOLSOM RANCH PROJECT (PN 19-091)
WEST OF EAST BIDWELL ROAD, NORTH OF WIIITE ROCKROAD, EAST OF' OAI( AVENUE PARKWAY, ANI)

SOT]-TE OF MANGIM PARKWAY
GPA. SPA. DA AMENDMENTS. SLVTSM. PD PERI{IT. AND INCLUSIONARY EOUSING PLAN

Condition
Satisfied?

Condition will
be satrsfied
prior to
issuance ofa
building permit
in Phase 2 or
Phase 3

Condition will
be satisfied
prior to
issuance ofa
building permit.

Comments

This condition will be required as

part ofthe Phase 2 or Phase 3

portion (Traditional Subdivision) of
the Toll Brothers at Folsom Ranch
project.

The Community Development
Department will review and approve
all site and building plans in the
subdivision to verif' compliance
with this condition prior to building
permit issuance on all lots in the
subdivision.

Responsible
Deoartment

CD (P) PR

cD (P) (E)

When
Reouired

B

B

Condition of Approval

Design Review Approval
Prior to issuance of a building permit for any residential unrts within the traditional
Subdivisions (Lots 1-214 as shoun on the Small-Lot Vesting Tentative Subdivision Map) and
Regency Phase 2 (421 unmappedresidential units) portions ofthe Toll Brothers at Folsom
Ranch project, the owner/applicant shall obtain Design Review and/or Planned Development
approval from the Planning Commission for all residences to be built within the
aforementioned portions ofthe project area. Ifthe architecture is not consistent with the
Folsom Ranch Central District Design Guidelines, the owner applicant may modiff the plans

or apply for a modification to the Design Guidelines to be reviewed by the Planning
Commission.

In addition, the final design ofthe clubhouse wrthin the Regency Phase I portion ofthe project
shall be subject to review and approval by the Planning Commission. If other clubhouse
structures are proposed with the Regency Phase 2 portion ofthe project or the traditional
Subdivision portion ofthe project, they will also be subject to review and approval by the

Commission.
M ec h anic al E quip ment S cr e ening
All mechanical equipment shall be concealed from view ofpublic and private streets,
neighboring properties and nearby higher buildings where practicable to the satisfaction ofthe
Communrty Development Department.

Mitigation
Measures

#

92

93

Resolution No. 1 0670
Page5l ofl40

Page 176

06/14/2022 Item No.9.



COI\DITIONS OF APPROVAL FOR THE TOLL BROTHERS AT FOLSOM RA|ICH PROJECT (PN 19-091)
WEST OF EAST BIDWELLROAD, NORTHOFWHITE ROCKROAD, EAST OF OAKAVENTIEPARI(WAY, ANI)

SOTITH O[' MANGIM PARI(WAY
GPA, SPA, DA AMET{DMENTS, SLVTSM, PD PERMIT AND INCLUSIONARY HOUSTNG PLA}[

Condition
Satisfied?

Yes

Yes

The creation of
the Phase 2

regency private
amenity lots
will be part of
the future Phase

2 subdivision.
Condition will
be satisfied
prior to
issuance ofthe
342'd building
oermit.
Condition will
be satisfied
prior to
issuance ofthe
590th building
permit.

Comments

The owner/applicant has modified
the FPASP Land Use Plan and Parks
Plan for the required park land
transfers and the modified plans are

on file wrth the Community
Development Department.

The tjnal map for this subdivision
includes the creation ofLot D (5
acres) and includes a note that Lot D
will be granted to the Regency HOA
by separate instrument. The other
lots in Phase 1 will be created with
future phased maps in the Regency
project.

The Community Development
Department will monitor the
progress of development ofthe
Regency age-restricted project to
verifu compliance with this
condition.
The Community Development
Department will monitor the
progress of development of the
Regency age-restricted project to
verifu compliance with this
condition.

Responsible
Deoartment

PARJG AND RECREATION REQUIREMENTS

cD (E) (P),
PR

cD (E) (P),
PR

cD (E) (P),
PR

cD (E) (P),
PR

When
Required

B

M, OG

B, OG

B, OG

Condition of Approval

The owner/applicant shall modifu the FPASP Land Use Plan and Parks Plan to identily the

relocated public park lands that are outside ofthe project area prior to issuance ofthe first
building permit for Regency Phase l. The relocated parklands shall include 8 acres adjacent to

the planned Local Park No. 4 (LP4) which is 2,3 acres in size, resulting in a 10.3-acre park site.

The remaining 2 acres shall be relocated adjacent to Local Park No. 2 (LP2) which is 1. I acres

in size, resulting in a 3. I -acre park site. Final parkland looation and size shall be approved by
the Parks and Recreation Director.
The owner/applicant shall provide 7.5-acres ofprivate recreation facilities within the
"Regency" Phase 1 Subdivision (Lot D: 5.0-acres)(Lot G: 0.5-acres)(Lot F: 0.5-acres)
and"TraditionalHomes"Subdivision[LotE:1.5-acres)portionsoftheproposedprojectas
shown on the Small Lot Vesting Tentative Subdivision Maps. The final size and location of
the private amenity within the "Regency" Phase 2 Subdivision as shown on the Toll Brothers

at Folsom Ranch Master Plan Exhibit will be determined with approval of the fuhue
entitlements associated wrth "Regency" Phase 2.

Prior to issuance of the last building permit (342nd buildrng permit) within Phase 1B of the

Regency Phase I Active-Adult Community as shown on the Conceptual Phasing Exhibit, dated

January 24,2020, the owner/applicant shall begin construction ofthe private amenity and
maintain continual progress until completion.

Prior to issuance ofthe last building permit (590th building permit) in Phase lC ofthe
Regency Phase I Active-Adult Community as shown on the Conceptual Phasing Exhibit, dated
January 24,2029, the owner/applicant shall begin construction ofthe two private dog-park
amenities and maintain continual progress until completion.

Mitigation
Measures

#

94.

95

96.

97

Resolution No. 10670

Page 52 of I 40

Page 177

06/14/2022 Item No.9.



CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL FOR THE TOLL BROTffERS AT FOLSOM RANCH PROJECT (PN 19-091)
WEST OF EASTBIDWELLROAD, NORTHOFWIIITE ROCKROAD, EAST OI'OAKAVENUEPARKWAY, ANI)

SOUTH OF MANGIM PARKWAY
GPA, SPA, DA AMENDMENTS, SLVTSM, PD PERMIT, AND INCLUSIONARY HOUSING PLAN

Condition
Satisfied?

Condition will
be satisfied
prior to
issuance ofthe
l37th building
permit in Phase
3

Condition will
be satisfied
prior to
issuance ofthe
last building
permit in Phase

I

Condition will
be satisfied
prior to City
acceptance of
Onen Soace

Condition will
be satisfied
prior to City
acceptance of
Open Space

Comments

The Community Development and
Parks Departments will monitor the
development ofthe project to verifu
compliance with this condition.

The Community Development and
Parks Departments will monitor the
development ofthe project to verify
compliance with this condition.

The Community Development and
Parks Departments will monitor the
development ofthe project to verifr
compliance with this condition.

The Community Development and
Parks Departments will monitor the
development ofthe project to verifu
compliance with this condition.

Responsible
Department

cD (E) (P),
PR

cD (E) (P),
PR

cD (E) (P),
PR

cD (E) (P),
PR

When
Required

B, OG

B

G,I, OG

G, I, OG

Condition of Approval

Prior to issuance of the l37th building permit within Traditional Subdivision portion of the Toll
Brothers at Folsom Ranch project, the owner/applicant shall begin construction ofthe private
amenity and maintain continual progress until completion.

Prior to the issuance ofthe last building permit within Regency Phase l, the owner/applicant
shall complete grading of the public trails on Lots H, I, J, and N, and the Class I trail parallel
to Mangini Parkway on Lots Q and R, as shown on the Toll Brothers Public Trails System
Modification Exhibit and Vesting Tentative Subdivision Map, dated January 24,2020

The owner/applicant shall include the maintenance of all graded subdivision trails and

completed Class I trail parallel to Mangini Parkway within the responsibility of the

development Homeowner's Association (HOA) until the Open Space is deeded to the City.
The City shall not incur any maintenance responsibility or expense as a result ofthese trails
until the transfer of Open Space ownership to the City is complete.

The owner/applicant shall include the maintenance of all private trail connections within the

responsibility of the development Homeowner's Association (HOA) in perpetuity. The City
shall not incur any maintenance responsibility or expense as a result ofthese private trail
connections to the public trails within the subdivision.

Mitigation
Measures

#

98

99

1 00.

l0t

Resolution No. 10670
Page 53 of I 40

Page 178

06/14/2022 Item No.9.



COI\DITIONS OF APPROVAL FOR THE TOLL BROTflERS AT FOLSOM RANCH PROJECT (PN 19-091)

WEST OF EAST BIDWELLROAD, NORTH OF'WHITE ROCKROAD, EAST OF OAK AVENT]EPARKWAY, AIID
SO[NE OF MANGIM PARKWAY

GPA. SPA. DA AMENDMENTS, SLVTSM, PD PERMIT, AND INCLUSIONARY HOUSING
Condition
Satisfied?

Condition will
be satisfied
prior to City
acceptance of
Open Space

Condition shall
be satisfied
prior to City
acceptance of
Parkland.

Yes

Yes

Comments

The Community Development and
Parks Departments will monitor the
development ofthe project to verifu
compliance with this condition.

The Community Development and
Parks Departments will monitor the
development ofthe project to verifu
compliance with this condition.

The owner/applicant has modified
the FPASP Land Use Plan and Parks
Plan for the required park land
transfers and the modified plans are

on file with the Community
Develooment Deoartment.

The Community Development
Department has reviewed and
approved the CC&R's for the
subdivision that include this
restriction and will monitor the
nrotect to ensure comDliance.

Responsible
Denartment

cD (E) (P),
PR

cD (E) (P),
PR

MISCELLANEOUS REQUIREMENTS

cD (E) (P),

PR

cD (E) (P)

When
Required

OG

G. I

B

OG

Condition of Approval

The owner/applicant shall include the maintenance of all 86.1-acres of Open Space (Measure

W Open Space) and fuel modification buffers, in accordance with the Folsom Plan Area Open

Space Master Plan, within the responsibility of the development Homeowner's Association
(HOA) until the Open Space is deeded to the City. The City shall not incur any maintenance

responsibility or expense as a result ofthis Open Space until the transfer of Open Space

ownership to the City is complete. In addition, the Open Space shall not be deeded to the City
until development on both srdes adjacent to the Open Space are complete and at such a time
the Citv is readv to take ownership.

Parkland dedications shall be calculated as net acreage.

The owner/applicant shall update the Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan to reflect all changes and

modifications to the General Plan Land Use and Specific Plan Land Use diagrams, tables, and

exhibits to reflect changes resulting liom the Toll Brothers at Folsom Ranch project prior to
issuance of the first building permit to the satisfaction of the Community Development
Department.

The Regency Phase I (Lots 1-590 as shown on the Small-Lot Vesting Tentative Subdivrsron

Map dated October l7 ,2019) and the Regency Phase 2 unmapped portions of the Toll Brothers

at Folsom Ranch project shall be limited to age-restricted (Age 55+) residential units.

Mitigation
Measures

#

102

103

I04

105.

Resolution No. 1 0670
Page 54 of 140

Page 179

06/14/2022 Item No.9.



APPROVAL ['OR TIIE TOLL BROTffERS AT FOLSOM PROJECT (PN 19-091)

WEST OF EASTBIDWELL ROAD, NORTE OFWHITEROCKROAD, EAST OF OAKAI'ENUE PARI(WAY, AND
SOUTH OF MANGIM PARKWAY

PDPERMIT AND PI.AN
Condition
Satisfied?

Yes

Yes

Comments

The Toll Brothers at Folsom Ranch

subdivision does not have any frontage

along US HWY 50 and therefore this
condition does not apply to the

subdivision.

The construction staging area fbr the

subdivision is not located near any

existing sensitive biological resources,

land uses or existing residences. The
construction area is shown on the plans

for the subdivision and the plans have

Mitigation Measures

Toll Brothers at Folsom Ranch Project Mitigation Monitoring Reporting Program (MMRP). Table I below describes the mitigation measwes from

the FPASP (May 2011) MMRP, as amended by the Revised Proposed Water Supply Facility Alternative (November 2012), Folsom South of U.S.

Highway 50 Backbone Infrastructure MitigatedNegative Declaration (December 2014),the Westland Eagle Specific Plan Amendment (September

20 1 5), and the Toll Brothers at Folsom Ranch Project.

Responsible
Agency

Aesthetics
City of Folsom
Community
Development
Department

City of Folsom
Community
Development
Department.

Timing

L Plans and

specifications:
before approval
of grading plans

and building
permits

2, Construction.
before the

approval of
occupancy
permits

associated with
residential and

commercial
units

3. Maintenance:
in perpetuity

Betbre approval
of grading plans

and during
construction for
all project
phases.

Mitigation Measures

Construct and Maintain a l,andscape Corridor Adjacent to U.S. 50. The protect applicant(s) for any

particular discretionary development application adjacent to U.S. 50 shall fund, construct, and maintain a

landscaped conidor within the SPA, south ofU.S. 50 This corridor shall be 50 feet wide, except that the

landscaped conidor width shall be reduced to 25 feet adjacent to the proposed regional mall. Landscaping

plans and specifications shall be approved by Caltrans and the City of Folsom, and constructed by the project

applicant(s) before the start ofearthmoving activities associated with residential or commercial units.

Landscaped areas would not be required within the preserved oak woodlands. As practicable, landscaping

shall primarily contain native and/or drought tolerant plants. Landscaped corridors shall be maintained in
perpetuity to the satisfaction of the City of Folsom.

Screen Construction Staging Areas. The project applicant(s) for any particular discretionary development

application shall locate staging and material storage areas as far away from sensitive biological resources and

sensitive land uses (e.g., residential areas, schools, parks) as feasible. Staging and material storage areas shall

be approved by the appropriate agency (identified below) before the approval of grading plans for all project

phases and shall be screened fiom adjacent occupied land uses in earlier development phases to the

maximum extent practicable. Screens may include, but are not limited to, the use of such visual barriers such

Mitigation
Number
(Source)

3A.l-1
(FPASP
ErR/ErS)

3A.1-4 (FPASP
EIRYEIS)

19.

#

t06
-1

106
-,

Resolution No. 10670
Page 55 of 140

Page 180

06/14/2022 Item No.9.



Yes

been approved by the Community
Development Department.

The Community Development
Department (CDD) has reviewed and

approved lighting plans for subdivision.
The plans are in compliance with the
condition of approval.

City of Folsom
Community
Development
Department

Before approval
of building
permits.

as berms or fences. The screen design shall be approved by the appropriate agency to further reduce visual

effects to the extent possible.

Mitigation fbr the off-site elements outside ofthe City of Folsom's jurisdictional boundaries shall be

developed by the project applicant($ of each applicable project phase in consultation with the affected

oversight agency(ies) (i.e., El Dorado and/or Sacramento Counties, and Caltrans) to reduce to the extent

feasible the visual effects ofconstruction activities on adjacent project land uses that have already been

developed.

Establish and Require Conformance to Lighting Standards and Prepare and Implement a Lighting
Plan.

To reduce impacts associated with light and glare, the City shall.

> Establish standards for on-site outdoor lighting to reduce high-intensity nighttime lighting and glare as

part ofthe Folsom Specific Plan design guidelines/standards. Consideration shall be given to design

features, namely directional shielding for street lighting, parking lot lighting, and other substantial light
sources, that would reduce effects of nighttime lighting. In addition, consideration shall be given to the

use of automatic shutoffs or motion sensors for lighting features to further reduce excess nighttime light.

> Use shielded or screened public lighting fixtures to prevent the light from shining offofthe surface

intended to be illuminated.

To reduce impacts associated with light and glare, the project applicant(s) of all project phases shall:

> Shield or screen lighting fixtures to direct the light downward and prevent light spill on adjacent

properties.

> Flood and area lighting needed for construction activities, nighttime sporting activities, and/or security

shall be screened or aimed no higher than 45 degrees above straight down (half-way between straight

down and straight to the side) when the source is visible from any off-site residential property or public

roadway.

> For public lighting in residential neighborhoods, prohibit the use oflight fixtures that are ofunusually
high intensity or brightness (e.g., harsh mercury vapor, low-pressure sodium, or fluorescent bulbs) or

that blink or flash.

> Use appropriate building materials (such as low-glare glass, low-glare building glaze or finish, neutral,

earth-toned colored paint and roofing materials), shielded or screened lighting, and appropriate signage

in the office/commercial areas to prevent light and glare from adversely affecting motorists on nearby

roadways.

> Design exterior on-site lighting as an integral part ofthe building and landscape design in the Folsom

Specific Plan area. Lighting fixtures shall be architecturally consistent with the overall site design.

3A.l-5 (FPASP
EIR/EIS)

106
-3

Resolution No. 10670

Page 56 of I 40

Page 181

06/14/2022 Item No.9.



YesThe City and its Environmental
Compliance Consultant (Helix) have

reviewed all MMRP conditions and

verified compliance with this Mitigation
Measure. Compliance was verified prior
to commencement of grading and

construction in the Summer of 2020. The
compliance table is on file with the City.

Air Quality
City of Folsom
Community
Development
Department

Before the

approval of all
grading plans

by the City and

throughout
project

construction,
where
applicable, for
all project
phases.

> Lighting ofoff-site facilities within the City ofFolsom shall be consistentwrth the City's General Plan

standards.

> Lighting ofthe off-site detenhon basin shall be consistent with Sacramento County General Plan

standards.

> Lighting ofthe two local roadway connections from Folsom Heights off-site into El Dorado Hills shall

be consistent with El Dorado County General Plan standards.

A lighting plan for all on- and off-site elements within the each agency's jurisdictional boundaries (specified

below) shall be submitted to the relevant jurisdictional agency for review and approval, whrch shall include
the above elements. The lighting plan may be submitted concurrently with other improvement plans, and

shall be submitted before the installation ofany lighting or the approval ofbuilding permits for each phase.

The project applicant(s) for any particular discretionary development application shall implement the
approved lighting plan.

Mitigation for the off-site elements outside of the City of Folsom's jurisdictional boundaries must be

coordinated by the project applicant(s) of each applicable project phase with the affected oversight
agency(ies) (i.e., El Dorado and/or Sacramento Counties).

Implement Measures to Control Air Pollutant Emissions Generated by Construction of On-Site
Elements. To reduce short-term construction emissions, the project applicant(s) for any particular

discretionary development application shall require their contractors to implement SMAQMD's list of Basic

Construction Emission Control Practices, Enhanced Fugitive PM Dust Control Practices, and Enhanced
Exhaust Control Practices (list below) in effect at the time individual portions of the site undergo
construction. In addition to SMAQMD+ecommended measures, constructlon operations shall comply with
all applicable SMAQMD rules and regulations.

Basic Construction Emission Control Practices

> Water all exposed surfaces two times daily. Exposed surfaces include, but are not limited to soil piles,

graded areas, unpaved parking areas, staging areas, and access roads.

> Cover or maintain at least two feet of free board space on haul trucks transporting soil, sand, or other

loose material on the site. Any haul trucks that would be traveling along freeways or major roadways

should be covered.

> Use wet power vacuum street sweepers to remove any visible trackout mud or dirt onto adjacent public

roads at least once a day. Use of dry power sweeping is prohibited.

> Limit vehicle speeds on unpaved roads to l5 miles per hour (mph).

34.2-la
(F',PASP

ErR/ErS)

106
-4

Resolution No. 10670
Page 57 of 140

Page 182

06/14/2022 Item No.9.



> All roadways, driveways, sidewalks, parkrng lots to be paved should be completed as soon as possible.

In addition, building pads should be laid as soon as possible after grading unless seeding or soil binders

are used.

> Minimize idling time either by shutting equipment off when not in use or reducing the time of idling to 5

minutes (as required by the state airbome toxics control measure [Title 13, Section 2485 ofthe
California Code of Regulationsl). Provide clear signage that posts this requirement for workers at the

entrances to the site.

> Maintain all construction equipment in proper working condition according to manufacturer's

specifications. The equipment must be checked by a certified mechanic and determine to be running in
proper condition before it is operated.

Enhanced Fugitive PM Dust Control Practices - Soil Disturbance Areas

> Water exposed soil with adequate frequency for continued moist soil. However, do not overwater to the

extent that sediment flows offthe site.

> Suspend excavation, grading, and/or demolition activity when wind speeds exceed 20 mph.

> Plant vegetative ground cover (fast-germinatrng native grass seed) in disturbed areas as soon as possible.

Water appropriately until vegetation is established.

Enhanced Fugitive PM Dust Control Practices - Unpaved Roads

> Install wheel washers for all exiting trucks, or wash off all trucks and equipment leaving the site.

> Treat site accesses to a distance of 100 feet from the paved road with a 6 to 12-inch layer ofwood chips,

mulch, or gravel to reduce generation of road dust and road dust carryout onto public roads.

> Post a publicly visible sign with the telephone number and person to contact at the construction site

regarding dust complaints. This person shall respond and take conective action within 48 hours. The
phone number of SMAQMD and the City contact person shall also be posted to ensure compliance.

Enhanced Exhaust Control Practices

> The project shall provide a plan, for approval by the City ofFolsom Community Development
Department and SMAQMD, demonstrating that the heary-duty (50 horsepower [hp] or more) off-road
vehicles to be used in the construction project, including owned, leased, and subcontractor vehicles, will
achieve a project wide fleet-average 20% NOX reduction and 45% particulate reduction compared to the

most cunent Califomia Air Resources Board (ARB) fleet average that exists at the time of construction.

Acceptable options for reducing emissions may include use of late-model engines, low-emission diesel
products, alternative fuels, engine retrofit technology, after-treatment products, and/or other options as

they become available. The prqect applicant(s) ofeach prqect phase or its representative shall submit to
the City of Folsom Community Development Department and SMAQMD a comprehensive inventory of all
off-road construction eouioment- eoual to or sreater than 50 hn- that would be used an assresate of 40 or

Resolution No. 10670
Page 58 of 140

Page 183

06/14/2022 Item No.9.



YesThe City and its Environmental

Compliance Consultant (Helix) have

reviewed all MMRP conditions and

verified compliance with this Mitigation
Measure. Compliance was verified prior
to commencement of grading and

construction in the Summer of 2020. The
compliance table is on file with the City.

The City of
Folsom
Community
Development
Department
shall not grant

any grading
permits to the

respective
project

applican(s)
until the

respective
project
applicant(s)

Befbre the

approval of all
grading plans
by the City and

throughout
project

construction for
all project
phases.

more hours during any portion of the construction prqect. The inventory shall include the horsepower

rating, engine production year, and projected hours ofuse for each piece of equipment. The inventory shall

be updated and submitted monthly tlroughout the duration ofthe project, except that an inventory shall not

be required for any 30-day period in which no construction activity occurs. At least 48 hours prior to the

use of heavy-duty off-road equipment, the project representative shall provide SMAQMD with the

anficipated construction timeline including start date, and name and phone number ofthe project manager

and on-site foreman. SMAQMD's Construcfion Mitigation Calculator can be used to identifu an equipment

fleet that achieves this reduction (SMAQMD 2007a). The project shall ensure that emissions from all off-
road diesel powered equipment used on the SPA do not exceed 40% opacity for more than thnee minutes in

any one how. Any equipment found to exceed 40 percent opacity (or Ringelmann 2.0) shall be repaired

immediately, and the City and Slvl,{QMD shall be notified within 48 hours of identification of
noncompliant equipment. A visual survey of all inoperation equrpment shall be made at least weekly, and

a monthly summary ofthe visual suwey results shall be submitted throughout the duratron ofthe project

except that the monthly summary shall not be required for any 30-day period in whrch no construction

activity occurs. The monthly summary shall include the quantity and type of vehicles surveyed as well as

the dates of each survey. SMAQMD staff and/or other officials may conduct periodic site inspections to

determine compliance. Nothtng in this mitigation measure shall supersede other SMAQMD or state rules or

regulations.

If at the iime of construction, SMAQMD has adopted a regulation or new guidance applicable to

construction emissions, compliance with the regulation or new guidance may completely or partially

replace this mitigation if it is equal to or more effective than the mitigation contained herein, and if
SMAQMD so permits,

Pay Off-site Mitigation Fee to SMAQMD to Off-Set NOx Emissions Generated by Construction of On-

Site Elements.

Implementation ofthe project or the other four other action alternatives would result in construction-

ge nerated NO1 emissions that excee6 ,1'r. 514I4QMD threshold of significance, even after implementation of
the SMAQMD Enhanced Exhaust Control Practices (listed in Mitigation Measure 3A.2-1a). Additionally,

Mitigation Measure 3A.4-1 (lmplement Additional Measures to Control Construction-Generated GHG

Emissions, pages 3A.4-14 to 1 5) has the potential to both reduce and increase NOx emissions, depending on

the types ofalternative fuels and engine types employed. Therefore, the project applicant(s) shall pay

SMAQMD an off-srte mitigation fee for implementation of any of the five action altematives for the purpose

of reducing NOx emissions to a less-than-significant level (i.e., less than 85 lb/day). All NOx emission

reductions and increases associated with GHG mitigation shall be added to or subtracted tiom the amount

above the construction threshold to determine off-site mitigation fees, when possible. The specific fee

amounts shall be calculated when the daily construction emissions can be more accurately determined: that

is, if the CityAJSACE select and certifu the EIfuEIS and approves the Proposed Project or one of the other

3A.2-1b
(FPASP
ErR/ErS)

106
-5

Resolution No. 10670
Page 59 of I 40

Page 184

06/14/2022 Item No.9.



Yes

Yes

The City and its Environmental
Compliance Consultant (Helix) have

reviewed all MMRP conditions and

verified compliance with this Miligation
Measure. Compliance was verified prior
to commencement of grading and

construction in the Summer of 2020. The
compliance table is on file with the City.

The City and its Environmental
Compliance Consultant (Helix) have

reviewed all MMRP conditions and

verified compliance with this Mitigation
Measure. Compliance was verified prior

have paid the
appropriate off-
site mitigation
fee to

SMAQMD

City of Folsom
Community
Development
Department

City of Folsom
Community
Development
Department

Belbre the

approval of all
grading plans

by the City.

Before issuance

of subdivision
maps or
improvement
plans.

four other action alternatives, the City and the applicants must establish the phasing by which development

would occur, and the applicants must develop a detailed construction schedule. Calculation of fees associated

with each project development phase shall be conducted by the project applicant(s) in consultation with
SMAQMD staffbefore the approval ofgrading plans by the City. The project applicant(s) for any particular

discrefionary development application shall pay into SMAQMD's off+ite construction mitigation fund to

further mitigate construction generated emissions of NOx that exceed SMAQMD's daily emission threshold

of 85 lb/day. The calculation of daily NOx emissions shall be based on the cost rate established by

SMAQMD at the time the calculation and payment are made. At the time of writing this EIR/EIS the cost

rate is $16,000 to reduce 1 ton of NOx plus a 5% administrative fee (SMAQMD 2008c). The determination

of the final mitigation fee shall be conducted in coordination with SMAQMD before any ground disturbance

occurs tbr any projecl phase. Based on information available at the time of writing this EIRJEIS, and

assuming that construction would be performed at a consistent rate over a 19-year period (ard averaging of
22 work days per month), it is estimated that the off-site construction mitigation fees would range from
$5 17,410 to $824,149, depending on which alternative is selected. Because the fee is based on the mass

quantity of emissions that exceed SMAQMD's daily threshold of significance of 85 lb/day, total fees would
be substantially greater if construction activity is more intense during some phases and less intense during

other phases of the l9-year build out period, and in any event, based on the actual cost rate applied by

SMAQMD (This fee is used by SI/L{QMD to purchase oil'-site emissions reductions. Such purchases are

made through SMAQMD's Hearry Duty Incentive Program, through which select owners of heaq'-duty
equipment in Sacramento County can repower or retrofit their old engines with cleaner engines or
technologies.)

Analyze and Disclose Projected PMro Emission Concentrations at Nearby Sensitive Receptors Resulting

from Construction of On-Site Elements. Prior to construction of each discretionary development entitlement

ofon-site land uses, the project applicant shall perform a project-level CEQA analysis (e.g., supporting

documentation for an exemption, negative declaration, or project-specific EIR) that includes detailed
dispersion modeling of construction-generated PMro to disclose what PMro concentrations would be at nearby

sensitive receptors. The dispersion modeling shall be performed in accordance with applicable SMAQMD
guidance that is in place at the time the analysis is performed. At the time of writing this EIRyEIS,

SMAQMD's most current and most detailed guidance fbr addressing construction-generated PMro emissions
is found in its Guide to Air Quality Assessment in Sacramento County (SMAQMD 2009a). The project-level

analysis shall incorporate detailed parameters ofthe construction equipment and activities, including the year

during which construction would be performed, as well as the proximity of potentially affected receptors,

including receptors proposed by the project that exist at the time the construction activity would occur.

Implement All Measures Prescribed by the Air Quality Mitigation Plan to Reduce Operational Air
Pollutant Emissions. To reduce operational emissions, the prqect applicant(s) for any particular discretionary

development application shall implement all measures prescribed in the SMAQMD-approved Folsom Plan Area

Specific Plan Air Quality Mitigation Plan (AQMP) (Tonence Planning 2008), a copy of which is included in
Appendix C2. The AQMP is intended to improve mobility, reduce vehicle miles traveled, and improve air

3A.2-lc
OPASP
EIR/ErS)

3A.2-2 (FPASP
ErR/ErS)

106
-6

106

Resolution No. 10670

Page 60 of 140

Page 185

06/14/2022 Item No.9.



Yes

Yes

to commencement of grading and

construction in the Summer of 2020. The

compliance table is on frle with the City.

The City and its Environmental
Compliance Consultant (Helix) have

reviewed all MMRP conditions and

verified compliance with this Mitigation
Measure. Compliance was verified prior
to commencement of grading and

construction in the Summer of 2020. The
compliance table is on file with the City.

The City and its Environmental
Compliance Consultant (Helix) have

reviewed all MMRP conditions and

veritied compliance with this Mitigation
Measure, Compliance was verified prior
to commencement of grading and

construction in the Summer 0f2020. The
compliance table is on file with the City.

City of Folsom
Community
Development
Department

City of Folsom
Community
Development
Department

Befbre the

approval ofall
grading plans

by the City and

throughout
project

construction,
where
applicable, for
all project
phases.

Before the

approval ofall
grading plans

by the

SMAQMD and

throughout
project

construction,
where
applicable, for
all project
phases.

quality as required by AB 32 and SB 375. The AQMP includes, among others, measures designed to provide

bicycle parktng at commercial land uses, an integrated pedestrian/bicycle path network, transit stops with
shelters, a prohibition agarnst the use the wood-burning fireplaces, energy star roofing materials, electric
lawnmowers provided to homeowners at no charge, and on-site transportation altematives to passenger vehicles
(including light rail) that provide connectivity with other local and regional alternative transportation networks.

Develop and Implement a Plan to Reduce Exposure of Sensitive Receptors to Construction-Generated
Toxic Air Contaminant Emissions, The project applicant(s) for any particular discretionary development

application shall develop a plan to reduce the exposure of sensitive receptors to TACs generated by project

construction activity associated with buildout of the selected altemative. Each plan shall be developed by the

project applicant(s) in consultation with SMAQMD. The plan shall be submitted to the City for review and

approval before the approval of any grading plans.

The plan may include such measures as scheduling activities when the residences are the least likely to be

occupied, requiring equipment to be shut offwhen not in use, and prohibiting heavy trucks from idling.

Applicable measures shall be included in all prqect plans and specifications for all project phases.

The implementation and enforcement of all measures identified in each plan shall be funded by the project

applicant(s) for the respective phase of development.

Implement Measures to Reduce Exposure of Sensitive Receptors to Operational Emissions of Toxic Air
Contaminants. The following measures shall be implemented to reduce exposure of sensitive receptors to

Toxic Air Contaminants.

> Proposed commercial and industrial land uses that have the potential to emit TACs or host TAC-
generating activity (e.g., loading docks) shall be located away from existing and proposed on-site

sensitive receptors such that they do not expose sensitive receptors to TAC emissions that exceed an

incremental increase of I 0 in I million for the cancer risk and/or a noncarcinogenic Hazard Index of 1.0.

> The multi-family residences planned across from the off-site corporation yard near the southwest corner

of the SPA shall be set back as far as possible from the boundary of the corporation yard and/or relocated

to another area.

> Where necessary to reduce exposure ofsensitive receptors to an incremental increase of l0 in 1 million
tbr the cancer risk and/or a noncarcinogenic Hazard Index of L0, proposed commercial and industrial

land uses that would host diesel trucks shall incorporate idle reduction strategies that reduce the main

propulsion engine idling time through alternative technologies such as, IdleAire, electrification of truck
parking, and alternative energy sources for TRUs, to allow diesel engines to be completely tumed off.

> Signs shall be posted in at all loading docks and truck loading areas which indicate that diesel-powered

delivery trucks must be shut off when not in use for longer than 5 minutes on the premises in order to
reduce idling emissions. This measure is consistent with the ATCM to Limit Diesel-Fueled Commercial

34.2-4a
(FPASP
ErR/ErS)

34,.2-4b
(FPASP
ErR/ErS)

r06
-8

106

-9

Resolution No. 1 0670
Page 6l of 140

Page 186

06/14/2022 Item No.9.



Yes

Yes

The owner/applicant obtained approval
for an Asbestos Dust Mitigation Plan
from the SMAQMD prior to
commencement of grading and

construction in the Summer of 2020. The
approved Asbestos Dust Mitigation Plan
is on file with the Community
Development Department.

The Crty and rts Envrronmental
Compliance Consultant (Helix) have

reviewed alI MMRP conditions and

verified compliance with this Mitigation
Measure. Compliance was verified prior
to commencement of grading and

construction in the Summer of 2020.

This subdivision is residential and is not
adjacent to any odorous land uses and is

City of Folsom
Community
Development
Department

City of Folsom
Community
Development
Department

Before the

approval ofall
grading plans

by the City and

throughout
project
construction,
where
applicable, for
all project
phases.

Before the

approval of
building
permits by the

City and

throughout
project
construction,
where

Motor Vehicle Idling, which was approved by the Califomia Office of Administrative Law in January

2005

> Implement the following additional guidelines, which are recommended in ARB's Land Use Handbook:

A Community Healtb Perspective (ARB 2005) and are considered to be advisory and not regulatory:

. Sensitive receptors, such as residential units and daycare centers, shall not be located in the same

building as dry-cleaning operations that use perchloroethylene. Dry-cleaning operations that use

perchloroethylene shall not be located within 300 feet of any sensitive receptor. A setback of 500 feet

shall be provided for operations with two or more machines.

. Large gasoline stations (defined as facilities with a throughput of 3.6 million gallons per year or greater)

and sensitive land uses shall not be sited within 300 feet of each other. Small gasoline-dispensing

facilities (less than 3.6 million gallons ofthroughput per year) and sensitive land uses shall not be sited

within 50 feet of each other.

Implement A Site Investigation to Determine the Presence ofNOA and, if necessary, Prepare and
Implement an Asbestos Dust Control Plan, A site investigation shall be performed to determine whether
and where NOA is present in the soil and rock on the SPA, The site investigation shall include the collection
of soil and rock samples by a qualified geologist. If the site investigation determines that NOA is present on

the SPA then the project applicant shall prepare an Asbestos Dust Control Plan for approval by SMAQMD as

required in Title 17, Section 93105 of the Catitbmia Code of Regulations, "Asbestos Airborne Toxic Control
Measure for Construction, Grading, Quarrying, and Surface Mining Operations." The Asbestos Dust Control
Plan shall specif, measures, such as periodic watering to reduce airborne dust and ceasing construction
during high winds. Measures in the Asbestos Dust Control Plan may include but shall not be limited to dust
control measures required by Mitigation Measure 3A.2-1a. The prqect applicant shall submit the plan to the

Folsom Community Development Department for review and SMAQMD for review and approval before
construction of the first project phase. SMAQMD approval ofthe plan must be received before any asbestos-

containing rock (serpentinite) can be disturbed. Upon approval of the Asbestos Dust Control Plan by
SMAQMD, the applicant shall ensure that construction contractors implement the terms of the plan

throughout the construction period.

Implement Measures to Control Exposure of Sensitive Receptors to Operational Odorous f,missions,
The project applicant(s) for any particular discretionary development application shall implement the

following measures:

> The odor-producing potential of land uses shall be considered when the exact type of facility that would
occupy areas zoned for commercial, industrial, or mixed-use land uses is determined. Facilities that have

the potential to emit objectionable odors shall be located as tar away as feasible iiom existing and

proposed sensitive receptors.

> The multi-family residences planned across from the off-site corporation yard near the southwest corner

of the SPA shall be set back as far as possible from the boundary ofthe corporation yard and/or relocated

34.2-s (FPASP
EIR/EIS)

3A.2-6 (FPASP
EIR/EIS)

106

-10

106
-11

Resolution No. 10670
Page 62 of 140

Page 187

06/14/2022 Item No.9.



Yes

not adjacent to the future Corporation
Yard.

The Owner/applicant has received a
NPDES permit from the State
Regional Water Quality Control
Board (SRWQCB). The NDES
Permit requires the implementation
of BMP's, monitoring and reporting
for stormwater runoff. The NPDES
Permit includes a Storm Water

Biological Resources

City of Folsom
Community
Development
Department

applicable, for
all project
phases.

Before approval
of improvement
and drainage
plans, and on an

ongoing basis

throughout and

after project
construction, as

to another area. (This measure is also required by Mitigation Measure 3A.2-4b to hmit exposure to TAC

emissions.)

> Before the approval of building permits, odor control devices shall be identified to mitigate the exposure

of receptors to objectionable odors if a potential odor-producing source is to occupy an area zoned for
commercial, industrial, or mixed-use land uses. The identified odor control devices shall be installed

before the issuance of cerhficates of occupancy for the potentially odor-producing use. The odor

producing potential of a source and control devices shall be determined in coordination with SMAQMD

and based on the number of complaints associated with existing sources of the same nature.

> The deeds to all properties located within the plan area that are within one mile ofan on- or off-site area

zoned or used for agricultural use (including livestock grazing) shall be accompanied by a written

disclosure from the transferor, in a form approved by the City ofFolsom, advising any transferee ofthe
potential adverse odor impacts from sunounding agriculhral operations, which disclosure shall direct

the transferee to contact the County of Sacramento concerning any such property wrthin the County

zoned for agricultural uses within one mile ofthe subject property being transferred.

> Truck loading docks and delivery areas shall be located as far away as t'easible from existing and

proposed sensitive receptors.

> Signs shall be posted at all loading docks and truck Ioading areas which indicate that diesel-powered

delivery trucks must be shut off when not in use for longer than 5 minutes on the premises in order to

reduce idling emissions. This measure is consistent with the ATCM to Limit Diesel-Fueled Commercial

Motor Vehicle Idling, which was approved by California's Office of Administrative Law in January

2005. (This measure is also required by Mitigation Measure 3A.2-4bto limit TAC emissions.)

> Proposed commercial and industrial land uses that have the potential to host diesel trucks shall

incorporate idle reduction strategies that reduce the main propulsion engine idling time through

alternative technologies such as, IdleAire, electrification of truck parking, and altemative energy sources

tbr TRUs, to allow diesel engines to be completely turned off. (This measure is also required by

Mitigation Measure 3A.2-4b to limit TAC emissions.)

Design Stormwater Drainage Plans and Erosion and Sediment Control Plans to Avoid and Minimize
Erosion and Runoff to All Wetlands and Other Waters That Are to Remain on the SPA and Use Low
Impact Development f,'eatures,

To minimize indirect effects on water quality and wetland hydrology, the project applicant(s) for any

particular discretionary development application shall include stormwater drainage plans and erosion and

sediment control plans in their improvement plans and shall submit these plans to the City Public Works
Department for review and approval. For off-site elements within Sacramento County or El Dorado County

iurisdiction (e.e.. off-site detention basin and off-site roadwav connections to El Dorado Hills), plans shall be

3A.3-1a
(FPASP
EIR/EIS)

106
-12

Resolution No. 1 0670
Page 63 of 140

Page 188

06/14/2022 Item No.9.



Pollution Prevention Plan (SWPPP),
which outlines monitoring standards,
frequency and baseline modeling.
The Owner/applicant has submitted
monthly reports to the City and
SRWQCB. There are no off-site
elements outside the City limits for
this subdivision.

required for all
project phases.

submitted to the appropriate county planning department. Before approval of these improvement plans, the

project applicant(s) for any particular discretionary development application shall obtain a NPDES MS4
Municipal Stormwater Permit and Grading Permit, comply with the City's Grading Ordinance and County

drainage and stormwater quality standards, and commit to implementing all measures in their drainage plans

and erosion and sediment control plans to avoid and minimize erosion and runoff into Alder Creek and all
wetlands and other waters that would remain on+ite. Detailed information about stormwater runoff standards

and relevant City and County regulation is provided in Chapter 3A.9, "Hydrology and Water Quality."

The project applicant(s) for any particular discretionary development entitlement shall implement stormwater
quality treatment controls consistent with the Stormwater Quality Design Manual for Sacramento and South
Placer Regions in etfect at the time the application is submitted. Appropriate runotT controls such as berms,

storm gates, off-stream detention basins, overflow collection areas, filtration systems, and sediment traps

shall be implemented to control siltation and the potential discharge ofpollutants. Development plans shall

incorporate Low Impact Development (LID) features, such as pervious strips, permeable pavements,

bioretention ponds, vegetated swales, disconnected rain gutter downspouts, and rain gardens, where
appropriate. Use of LID fealures is recommended by the EPA to minimize impacts on water quality,
hydrology, and stream geomorphology and is specified as a method for protecting water quality in the
proposed specific plan. In addition, free spanning bridge systems shall be used for all roadway crossrngs over

wetlands and other waters that are retained in the on-site open space. These bridge systems would maintain
the natural and restored channels of creeks, including the associated wetlands, and would be designed with
sufficient span width and depth to provide for wildlife movement along the creek corridors even during high-
flow or flood events, as specified in the 404 permit.

In addition to compliance with City ordinances, the project applicant(s) for any particular discretionary

development application shall prepare a Stormwater Pollution Prevention Plan (SWPPP), and implement
Best Management Practices (BMPs) that comply with the General Construction Stormwater Permit from the

Central Valley RWQCB, to ieduce water quality effects during construction. Detailed infbrmation about the
SWPPP and BMPs are provided in Chapter 3A.9, "Hydrology and Water Quality "

Each prqect development shall result in no net change to peak flows into Alder Creek and associated

tributaries, or to Buffalo Cree( Carson Creek, and Coyote Creek, The project applicant(s) shall establish a
baseline of conditions for drainage on-site. The baseline-flow conditions shall be established for 2-, 5-, and

I 00-year storm events. These baseline conditions shall be used to develop monitoring standards for the

stormwater system on the SPA. The baseline conditions, monitoring standards, and a monitoring program

shall be submitted to USACE and the City for their approval. Water quality and detention basins shall be

designed and constructed to ensure that the performance standards, which are described in Chapter 3A.9,
"Hydrology and Water Quality," are met and shall be designed as off-stream detention basins. Discharge sites

into Alder Creek and associated tributaries, as well as tributaries to Carson Creek, Coyote Creek, and Buffalo
Creek. shall be monitored to ensure that Dre-proiect conditions are being met. Corrective measures shall be

Resolution No. 10670

Page 64 of I 40

Page 189

06/14/2022 Item No.9.



YesThe City and its Environmental
Compliance Consultant (Helix) have

reviewed all MMRP conditions and

verified compliance with this Mitigation
Measure. Compliance was verified prior
to commencement of grading and

construction in the Summer of 2020. The

compliance table is on file wrth the City.

The Owner/applicant has received a

NPDES permit from the State Regional

Water Quality Control Board
(SRWQCB) The NDES Permit

requires the implementation of BMP's,
monitoring and reporting for stormwater
runoffl The NPDES Permit includes a

Storm Water Pollution Prevention Plan
(SWPPP). which outlines monitoring
standards, frequency and baseline

modeling. The Owner/applicant has

submrtted monthly reports to the City
and SRWQCB.

The owner/applicant has recorded
Declarations of Covenants &
Restrictions (DCR's) in compliance with
the requirements of the USACE permit.

The DCR's are shown on the final map.

City of Folsom
Community
Development
Department

Before the

approval of
gradrng or
improvement
plans or any
ground

disturbing
activities for
any project

development
phase

containing
wetland
feafures or other
waters of the

U.S. The MMP
must be

approved before
any impact on
wetlands can

occur.

Mitigation shall
be implemented
on an ongoing
basis

throughout and

after

implemented as necessary. The mitigalion measures will be satisfied when the monitoring standards are met

for 5 consecutive years wrthout undertaking corrective measures to meet the performance standard.

See FEIR/FEIS Appendix S showing that the detention basin in the northeast comer of the SPA has been

moved off stream.

Mitigation for the off-site elements outside of the City of Folsom's jurisdictional boundaries must be

coordinated by the project applicant(s) of each applicable project phase in consultation with the affected

oversight agency(ies) (i.e., El Dorado County for the roadway connections, Sacramento County for the

detention basin west ofPrairie City Road, and Caltrans for the U.S. 50 interchange improvements) such that

the performance standards described in Chapter 3A.9, "Hydrology and Water Quality," are met.

Secure Clean Water Act Section 404 Permit and Implement All Permit Conditions; Ensure No Net
Loss of Functions and Values of Wetlands, Other Waters of the fl.S., and Waters of the State,

Before the approval of grading and improvement plans and before any groundbreaking activity associated

with each distinct discretionary development entitlement, the project applicant(s) for any particular

discretionary development application requiring fill ofwetlands or other waters ofthe U.S. or waters ofthe
state shall obtain all necessary permits under Sections 401 and 404 of the CWA or the state's Porter-Cologne

Act for the respective phase. For each respective discretionary development entitlement, all permits,

regulatory approvals, and permit conditions for effects on wetland habitats shall be secured before

implementation ofany grading activities within 250 feet ofwaters ofthe U.S. or wetland habitats or lesser

distance deemed sufficiently protective by a qualified biologist with approval from USFWS, including waters

of the state, that potentially support Federally listed species The project applicant(s) shall commit to replace,

restore, or enhance on a "no net loss" basis (in accordance with USACE and the Central Valley RWQCB) the

acreage of all wetlands and other waters ofthe U.S. that would be removed, lost, and/or degraded with
implementation of project plans for that development increment. Wetland habitat shall be restored, enhanced,

and/or replaced at an ac{ea3e and location and by methods agreeable to USACE, the Cenhal Valley
RWQCB, and the City, as appropriate, depending on agency jurisdiction, and as determined during the

Section 401 and Section 404 permitting processes. As part ofthe Section 404 permitting process, a draft

wetland mitigation and monitoring plan (MMP) shall be developed for the project on behalfofthe project

applicant(s). Before any ground-disturbing activities in an area that would adversely aff'ect wetlands and

before engaging in mitigation activities associated with each discretionary development entitlement, the
project applicant(s) shall submit the draft wetland MMP to USACE, the Central Valley RWQCB,
Sacramento County, El Dorado County, and the City for review and approval ofthose portions ofthe plan

over which they have jurisdiction. The MMP would have to be finalized prior to impacting any wetlands.

Once the final MMP is approved and implemented, mitigation monitoring shall continue for a minimum of 5
years from completron of mitigation, or human intervention (including recontouring and grading), or until the

performance standards identified in the approved MMP have been met, whichever is longer.

As part of the MMP, the project applicant(s) shall prepare and submit plans for the creation of aquatic habitat

in order to adequatelv offset and reolace the aquatic functions and services that would be lost at the SPA,

3A.3-1b
(FPASP
EIR/ErS)

106
-13

Resolution No. 10670

Page 65 of 140

Page 190

06/14/2022 Item No.9.



constructlon, as

required.
account for the temporal loss ofhabitat, and contain an adequate margin of safety to reflect anticipated
success. Restoration of previously altered and degraded wetlands shall be a priority of the MMP for
offsetting losses of aquatic functions on the SPA because it is typically easier to achieve functional success in
restored wetlands than in those created from uplands. The MMP must demonstrate how the aquatic functions
and values that would be lost through project implementation will be replaced.

The habltat MMP for jurisdictional wetland features shall be consistent with USACE's and EPA's April 10,

2008 Final Rule for Compensatory Mitigation for Losses ofAquatic Resources (33 CFR Parts 325 and332
and 40 CFR Part 230) and USACE's October 26, 2010 Memorandum Re: Minimum Level of Documentation
Required for Permit Decisions. According to the Final Rule, mitigation banks should be given preference

over other types of mitigation because a lot ofthe risk and uncertainty regarding mitigation success is alleviated
by the fact that mitigation bank wetlands must be established and demonstrating functionality before credits can

be sold. The use of mitigation credits also alleviates temporal losses of wetland function while compensatory

wetlands are being established. Mitigation banks also tend to be on larger, more ecologically valuable parcels

and are subjected to more ngorous scientific study and planrung and implementation procedures than typic4l
permittee-responsible mitigation sites (USACE and EPA, 2008). Permittee-responsible on-site mitigation areas

can be exposed to long-term negative effects of sunounding development since they tend to be smaller and less

buffered than mitigation banks. The Final Rule also establishes a preference for a "watershed approach" in
selecting Iocations for compensatory mitigation prqect locations, that mitigation selectron must be "appropriate

and practicable" and that mitigation banls must address watershed needs based on criteria set forth in the Final

Rule. The watershed approach accomplishes this objective by expanding the informational and analytic basis of
mitigatron project site selection decisions and ensuring that both authorized impacts and mitigation are

considered on a watershed scale rather than only project by project. Thrs requires a degree offlexbility so that
district engineers can authorize mitigation projects that most effectrvely address the case-specific circumstances

and needs ofthe watershed, while remaining practicable for the permittee. The SPA includes portions ofthe
Alder Creelg Buffalo Creeh Coyote Cree( and Carson Creek Watersheds. The majority of the SPA is within
the Alder Creek Watershed. Alder Creek and Buffalo Creek are part of the Lower American Rrver Watershed.

Carson Creek and Coyote Creek are part of the Cosumnes fuver Watershed. Mitigation credits may be available
within the Cosumnes Watershed, but not within the American River Watershed and not within the sub-

watenheds ofthe SPA. Theretbre, aquatic habitats may need to be restored or created on the SPA and adjacent

off-site lands, preferably within the affected watersheds, in order to successfully replace lost functions at the

appropriate watershed scale where loss of function would occur. It is not likely feasible to provide

compensatory mitigatron for all aquatic resource impacts on site.

Therefore, a combination of on-site and offxite permittee-responsible mitigation and mitigation banking
would likely be necessary to achieve the no-net-loss standard.

The SPA is located within the service areas of several approved mitigation banks (e.g., Bryte Ranch, Clay
Station, Fitzgerald Ranch, and Twin City Mitigation Bank), The majority of compensatory mitigation for
wetland impacts is proposed to be accomplished at an agency approved mitigation bank or banks authorized
to sell credits to offset impacts in the SPA. The applicants' biolosical consultant. ECORP. has identified

Resolution No. 10670
Page 66 of i40

Page 191

06/14/2022 Item No.9.



availability of approximately 3 I vernal pool credits and 228 seasonal wetland credits at mitigation banks

whose service area includes the SPA. Additional credits may also be available from pending, but not yet
approved, mitigation banks. However, availability is subject to change and, as noted above, a combination of
mitigation bank credits and permittee-responsible on and off-site mitigation may be necessary to fully offset
project impacts on wetlands and other waters of the U. S. If USACE determines that the use of mitigation
bank credits is not sufficient mitigation to offset impacts within the SPA, the October 26, 2010 Memorandum
Re: Minimum Level of Documentation Required for Permit Decisions requires USACE to specifically
demonstrate why the use of bank credits is not acceptable to USACE in accordance with Section 33 CFR
332.3(a)(l )

Compensatory mitigation for losses of stream and intermittent drainage channels shall follow the Final Rule

Guidelines, which specifi that compensatory mitigation should be achieved through in-kind preservation,

restoration, or enhancement within the same watershed, subject to practicability considerations. The wetland
MMP shall address how to mitigate impacts on vernal pool, seasonal swale, seasonal wetland, seep, marsh,

pond, and intermittent and perennial stream habitat, and shall describe specific method(s) to be implemented
to avoid and/or mitigate any off*ite project-related impacts. The wetland compensation section of the habitat

MMP shall include the following.

> Compensatory mitigation sites and criteria fbr selecting these mitigation sites. in General, compensatory

mitigation sites should meet the following criteria, based on the Final Rule;

. located within the same watershed as the wetland or other waters that would be lost, as appropriate and

practicable;

. located in the most likely position to successfully replace wetland functions lost on the impact site

considering watershed-scale features such as aquatic habitat diversity, habitat connectivity, available

water sources and hydrologic relationships, land use trends, ecological benefits, and compahbility wlth
adjacent land uses, and the likelihood for success and sustainability;

> A complete assessment ofthe existing biological resources in both the on-site preservation areas and off-
site compensatory mitigation areas, including wetland functional assessment using the California Rapid
Assessment Method (CRAM) (Collins et al. 2008), or other appropriate wetland assessment protocol as

determined through consultation with USACE and the USFWS, to establish baseline conditions,

> Specific creation and restoration plans for each mitigation site;

> Use of CMM to compars compensatory wetlands to the baseline CRAM scores tiom wetlands in the

SPA. The compensatory wetland CRAM scores shall be compared against the highest quality wetland of
each type from the SPA,

> CRAM scores, or other wetland assessment protocol scores, from the compensatory wetlands shall be

compared against the highest quality wetland scores for each wetland type to document success of
compensatory wetlands in replacing the functions of the affected wetlands to be replaced;

Resolution No. 10670

Page 67 of 140

Page 192

06/14/2022 Item No.9.



> Monitoring protocol, including schedule and annual report requirements, and the following elements:

r ecological performance standards, based on the best available science, that can be assessed in a

practicable manner (e.g., performance standards proposed by Barbour et al. 2007). Performance

standards must be based on attributes that are objective and verifiable;

. assessmentsconductedannuallyfor5yearsafterconstructionorrestorationofcompensatorywetlands
to determine whether these areas are acquiring wetland functions and to plot the performance trajectory

of preserved, restored, or created wetlands over time.

. assessments results for compensatory wetlands shall also be compared against scores for reference

wetlands assessed in the same year;

i assessments analysis conducted annually for 5 years after any construction adjacent to wetlands

preserved on the SPA to determine whether these areas are retaining functions and values. Assessments

results for wetlands presewed on site shall also be compared against scores for reference wetlands

assessed in the same year,

. analysis ofassessments data, including assessment ofpotential stressors, to determine whether any

remedial activities may be necessary;

I conective measures ifperformance standards are not met;

. monitoring of plant communities as performance criteria (annual measure of success, during monitoring
period) and success criteria (indicative of achievement of mitigation habitat requirement at end of
monitoring period) for hydrologic function have become established and the creation site "matures"

over time;

. GIS analysis ofcompensatory wetlands to demonstrate actual acreage offunctioning wetland habitat;

' adaptive management measures to be applied ifperformance standards and acreage requirements are

not being met;

. responsible parties for monitoring and preparing reports; and

. responsible parties for receiving and reviewing reports and for verifuing success or prescribing

implementation or conective actions.

A final operatrons and management plan (OMP) for all on- and off-site permittee-sponsored wetland
preservation and mitigation areas shall be prepared and submitted to USACE and USFWS for review,

comment and preliminary approval prior to the issuance of any permits under Section 404 ofthe CWA. The
plan shall include detailed information on the habitats present within the preservation and mitigation areas,

the long-term management and monitoring ofthese habitats, legal protection for the preservation and

mitigation areas (e.g., conservation easement, declaration ofrestrictions), and funding mechanism

infbrmation (e.g., endowment). A final OMP for each discretionary development entitlement affecting

wetlands must be approved prior to construction.

Resolution No. 10670
Page 68 of 140

Page 193

06/14/2022 Item No.9.



YesThe City and its Environmental
Compliance Consultant (Helix) have

reviewed all MMRP conditions and

veritied compliance with this Mitigation
Measure. Compliance was verified prior
to commencement of grading and

construction in the Summer of 2020. The
compliance table is on file wrth the City.

California
Department of
Fish and Game

and City of
Folsom
Community
Development
Department.

Before the

approval of
grading and

improvement
plans, before
any ground

disturbing
activities, and

during project

construction as

applicable lbr
all project
phases.

USACE has determined that the project will require an individual permit. In its final stage and once approved
by USACE, the MMP for the project is expected to detail proposed wetland restoration, enlancement, and/or
replacement activities that would ensure no net loss of aquatic functions in the project vicinity. Approval and
implementation of the wetland MMP shall aim to fully mitigate all unavoidable impacts on jurisdictional
waters ofth€ U.S., includingjurisdictional wetlands. In addition to USACE approval, approval by the City,
Sacramento County, El Dorado County, and the Central Valley RWQCB, as appropriate depending on
agency jurisdiction, and as determined during the Section 401 and Section 404 permitting processes, will also

be required. Approvals from Sacramento County and El Dorado County shall be required for impacts
resulting from off-site project elements occuning in these counties, such as the off-site detention basin in
Sacramenlo County and the roadway connections into El Dorado County. To satisti the requirements ofthe
City and the Central Valley RWQCB, mitigation of impacts on the nonjurisdictional wetlands beyond the
jurisdiction of USACE shall be included in the same MMP. All mitigation requirements determined through
this process shall be implemented before grading plans are approved. The MMP shall be submitted to
USACE and approved prior to the issuance of any permits under Section 404 of the CWA. Water quality
certification pursuant to Section 401 ofthe CWA will be required before issuance ofa Section 404 permit.
Before construction in any areas containing wetland features, the project applicant(s) shall obtain water
quality certification for the prqect. Any measures required as part ofthe issuance of water quality
certillcation shall be implemented.

Mitigation for the off-site elements outside of the City of Folsom's jurisdictional boundaries must be

developed by the project applicant($ of each applicable project phase in consultation with the affected
oversight agency(ies) (i.e., Caltrans, El Dorado and/or Sacramento Counties).

Avoid Direct Loss 0f Swainson's Hawk and Other Raptor Nests. To mitigate impacts on Swainson's
hawk and other raptors (including burrowing owl), the project applicant(s) of all project phases shall retain a
qualified biologist to conduct preconstruction surv€ys and to identi! active nests on and within 0,5 mile of
the SPA and active burrows on the SPA. The surveys shall be conducted beibre the approval of grading
and/or improvement plans (as applicable) and no less than l4 days and no more than 30 days before the

beginning of construction for all project phases To the extent feasible, guidelines provided in Recommended
Timing and Methodolory for Swainson's Hawk Nesting Surveys in the Central Valley (Swainson's Hawk
Technical Advisory Committee 2000) shall be followed for surveys for Swainson's hawk. Ifno nests are
found, no further mitigation is required.

Ifactive nests are found, impacts on nesting Swainson's hawks and other raptors shall be avoided by
establishing appropriate buiTers around the nests. No project activity shall commence within the buffer area
until the young have fledged, the nest is no longer active, or until a qualified biologist has determined in
consultation wrth DFG that reducing the buffer would not result in nest abandonment. DFG guidelines
recommend implementation of 0.25- or 0.5-mile-wide buffers, but the size of the buffer may be adjusted if a
qualified biologist and the City, in consultation with DFG, determine that such an adiustment would not be

34.3-2a
(FPASP
ErR/f,rs)

106

-14

Resolution No 10670
Page 69 of 140

Page 194

06/14/2022 Item No.9.



YesThe City and its Environmental

Compliance Consultant (Helix) have

reviewed all MMRP conditions and

verified compliance with this Mitigation
Measure. Compliance was verified prior
to commencement of grading and

construction in the Summer of 2020. The
compliance table is on file with the City.

City of Folsom
Community
Development
Department

Before the

approval of
grading,
improvement,
or construction
plans and

before any
ground

disturbing
activity in any
project

development
phase that
would atTect

Swainson's
hawk foraging
habitat.

likely to adversely affect the nest. Monitoring of the nest by a qualified biologist during and after

construction activities will be required if the activity has potential to adversely affect the nest.

If active bunows are tbund, a mitigation plan shall be submitted to the City for review and approval before

any ground-disturbing activities.

The City shall consult with DFG. The mitigation plan may consist of installation of one-way doors on all

burrows to allow owls to exit, but not reenter, and construction of artificial bunows within the project

vicinity, as needed; however, bunow owl exclusions may only be used if a qualified biologist verifies that the

burrow does not contain eggs or dependent young. If active bunows contain eggs and/or young, no

construction shall occur within 50 feet of the bunow until young have fledged. Once it is confirmed that there

are no owls inside burrows, these bunows may be collapsed.

Mitigation for the off-site elements outside of the City of Folsom's jurisdictional boundaries must be

developed by the prqect applicant(s) of each applicable project phase in consultation with the affected

oversight agency(ies) (i.e,, El Dorado and/or Sacramento Counties, or Caltrans), such that the performance

criteria set forth in DFG's guidelines are determined to be met.

Mitigation Measure 3A.3-2b: Prepare and Implement a Swainson's Hawk Mitigation Plan.

To mitigate for the loss of Swainson's hawk foraging habitat, the project applicant(s) of all project phases shall
prepare and implement a Swainson's hawk mitigation plan including, but not limited to the requirements

described below.

Before the approval of grading and improvement plans or before any ground-disturbing activities, whichever

occurs first, the project applicant(s) shall preserve, to the satisfaction ofthe City or Sacramento County, as

appropriate depending on agency jurisdiction, suitable Swainson's hawk foraging habitat to ensure l: I
mitigation of habitat value for Swainson's hawk foraging habitat lost as a result of the project, as determined

by the City, or Sacramento County, after consultation with DFG and a qualified biologist,

The I : I habitat value shall be based on Swainson's hawk nesting distribution and an assessment of habitat
quality, availability, and use within the City's planning area, or Sacramento County jurisdiction. The

mitigation ratio shall be consistent with the 1994 DFG Swainson's Hawk Guidelines included in the Staff
Report Regarding Mitigation for Impacts to Swainson's Hawks (Buteo swainsoni) in the Central Valley of
Califomia, which call for the following mitigation ratios for loss of foraging habitat in these cate gories: I : I if
within I mile of an active nest site, 0.75:l if over I mile but less than 5 miles, and 0.5:l if over 5 miles but
less than l0 miles from an active nest site. Such mitigation shall be accomplished through credit purchase

from an established mitigation bank approved to sell Swainson's hawk fbraging habitat credits to mitigate
losses in the SPA, if avarlable, or through the transfer of fee title or perpetual conseryation easement. The

mitigation land shall be located within the known foraging area and within Sacramento County. The City, or
Sacramento County if outside City jurisdiction, after consultation with DFG, will determine the

appropriateness of the mitigation land.

3A.3-2b
(FPASP
EIR/EIS)

106

-15

Resolution No. 1 0670
Page 70 of I 40

Page 195

06/14/2022 Item No.9.



Before approval of such proposed mitigation, the City, or Sacramento County for the off-site detention basin,

shall consult with DFG regarding the appropriateness of the mitigation. If mitigation is accomplished through

conservation easement, then such an easement shall ensure the continued management ofthe land to maintain

Swainson's hawk foraging values, including but not limited to ongoing agricultural uses and the maintenance

of all existing water rights associated with the land. The conservation easement shall be recordable and shall
prohibit any activity that substantially impairs or diminishes the land's capacity as suitable Swainson's hawk
habitat.

The project applicant(s) shall transfer said Swainson's hawk mitigation land, through either conservation

easement or fee title, to a third parg, nonprofit conservation organization (Conservation Operator), with the

City and DFG named as third-party beneficiaries. The Conservation Operator shall be a qualified
conservation easement land manager that manages land as its primary tunction. Additionally, the

Conservation Operator shall be a tax-exempt nonprofit conservation organization that meets the criteria of
Civil Code Section 8 1 5 3(a) and shall be selected or approved by the City or County, after consultation with
DFO. The City, or County, after consultation with DFG and the Conservation Operator, shall approve the

content and form ofthe conservation easement, The City, or County, DFG, and the Conservation Operator

shall each have the power to enforce the terms of the conservation easement. The Conservation Operator

shall monitor the easement in perpetuity to assure compliance with the terms of the easement.

The project applicant(s), after consultation with the City, or County ofjurisdiction, DFG, and the

Conservation Operator, shall estabfish an endowment or some other financial mechanism thal is sufficient to
fund in perpetuity the operation, maintenance, management, and enforcement ofthe conservation easement.

If an endowment is used, either the endowment tunds shall be submitted to the City for impacts on lands

within the City's jurisdiction or Sacramento County for the off-site detention basin to be distributed to an

appropriate third-party nonprofit conservation agency, or they shall be submitted directly to the third-party
nonprofit conservation agency in exchange for an a$eement to manage and maintain the lands in perpetuity.

The Conservation Operator shall not sell, lease, or transfer any interest of any conservation easement or
mitigation land it acquires without prior written approval of the City and DFG. Mitigation lands established

or acquired for impacts incurred at the off+ite detention basin shall requrre approval from Sacramento

County prior to sale or transfer of mitigation lands or conservation easement.

if the Conservation Operator ceases to exist, the duty to hold, administer, manage, marntain, and enforce the

interest shall be transferred to another entity acceptable to the City and DFG, or Sacramento County and

DFG depending onjurisdiction ofthe affected habitat. The City Planning Department shall ensure that

mitigation habitat established for rmpacts on habitat within the City's planning area is properly established

and is functioning as habitat by reviewing regular monitoring reports prepared by the Conservation Operator
ofthe mitigation site(s). Monitoring ofthe mitigation site(s) shall continue for the first 10 years after

establishment of the easement and shall be funded through the endowment, or other appropriate funding
mechanism, established by the project applicant(s). Sacramento County shall review the monitoring reports
for impacts on habital at the off+ite detention basin.

Resolution No. 10670
Page 7l of 140

Page 196

06/14/2022 Item No.9.



Yes

Yes

The City and its Environmental
Compliance Consultant (Helix) have

reviewed all MMRP conditions and

verified compliance with this Mitigation
Measure. Compliance was verified prior
to commencement of grading and

construction in the Summer of 2020. The

compliance table is on file with the City.

The City and its Environmental
Compliance Consultant (Helix) have

reviewed all MMRP conditions and

verified compliance with this Mitigation
Measure. Compliance was verified prior
to commencement of grading and

construction in the Summer of 2020. The

compliance table is on file with the City.

City of Folsom
Community
Development
Department

City of Folsom
Community
Development
Department

Before the

approval of any
ground-

disturbing
activity within
500 feet of
suitable nesting
habitat as

applicable for
all project
phases.

Before the

approval ofany
ground-

disturbing
activity within
500 feet of
suitable nesting
habitat as

applicable for
all project
phases.

Mitigation for the off-site elemenls outside of the City of Folsom's jurisdictional boundaries must be

coordinated by the project applicant(s) of each applicable project phase with the affected oversight

agency(ies) (i.e., Sacramento County and Caltrans).

Avoid and Minimize Impacts to Tricolored Blackbird Nesting Colonies. To avoid and minimize impacts

to tricolored blackbird, the project applicant($ of all project phases shall conduct a preconstruction survey

for any project activity that would occur during the tricolored blackbird's nesting season (March l-August
3 I ). The preconstruction survey shall be conducted by a qualitied biologist before any activity occuning
within 500 feet of suitable nesting habitat, including freshwater marsh and areas of riparian scrub vegetation.

The survey shall be conducted within l4 days before project activity begins.

If no tricolored blackbird colony is present, no lurther mitigation is required. If a colony is found, the

qualified biologist shall establish a buffer around the nesting colony. No project activity shall commence

within the buffer area until a qualified biologist confirms that the colony is no longer active. The size ofthe
buffer shatl be determined in consultation with DFG. Buffer size is anticipated to range from 100 to 500 feet,

depending on the nature ofthe project activity, the extent of existing disturbance in the area, and other

relevant circumstances.

Mitigation for the off-site elements outside of the City of Folsom's jurisdictional boundaries (i.e., U. S. 50

interchange improvements) must be developed by the project applicant(s) of each applicable project phase in

consultation with the affected oversight agency(ies) (i.e., Calhans) and must be sufficient to achieve the

performance criteria described above.

Avoid and Minimize Impacts to Special-Status Bat Roosts. The project applicant of all project phases

containing potential bat roosting habitat shall retain a qualified biologist to conduct surveys for roosting bats.

Surveys shall be conducted in the fall to determine if the mine shaft is used as a hibernaculum and in spring

and/or summer to determine if it is used as a maternity or day roost. Surveys shall consist of evenlng

emergence surveys to note the presence or absence of bats and could consist of visual surveys at the time of
emergence. If evidence of bat use is observed, the number and species of bats using the roost shall be

determined. Bat detectors may be used to supplement survey efforts. If no bat roosts are found, then no

further study shall be required

If roosts of pallid bat or Townsend's big-eared bats are determined to be present and must be removed, the

bats shall be excluded from the roosting site. A mitigation program addressing compensation, exclusion

methods, and roost removal procedures shall be developed in consultation with DFG before implementation.

Exclusion methods may include use of one-way doors at roost entrances (bats may leave but not reenter), or

sealing roosl entrances when the site can be confirmed to contain no bats. Exclusion efforts may be restricted

during periods of sensitive activity (e.g., during hibernation or while females in matemity colonies are

nursing young). The loss of each roost (if any) will be replaced in consultation with DFG and may include

construction and installation of bat boxes suitable to the bat species and colony size excluded from the

orisinal roostins site. Roost reolacement will be imolemented before bats are excluded from the original

3A.3-2c
(FPASP
EIR/EIS)

3A.3-2d
(FPASP
ErR/EIS)

r06
-16

106
-17

Resolution No. 10670
Page 72 of 140

Page 197

06/14/2022 Item No.9.



YesThe City and its Environmental
Compliance Consultant (Helix) have

reviewed all MMRP conditions and

verified compliance with this Mitigation
Measure. Compliance was verified prior
to commencement of grading and

construction in the Summer of 2020. The
compliance table is on file with the City.

U.S. Army
Corps of
Engineers,
Sacramento
District; U.S.
Fish and

Wrldlife
Service; and

City of Folsom
Community
Development
Department

Befbre the

approval ofany
grading or
improvement
plans, before
any ground

disturbing
activities within
250 feet of said

habitat or lesser

distance
deemed

sufficiently
protective by a
qualified
biologist with
approval from
USFWS, and on

an ongoing
basis

throughout
construction as

applicable for
all project
phases as

required by the

mitigation plan,

BO, and/or
BMPs.

roost sites. Once the replacement roosts are constructed and it is confirmed that bats are not present in the

original roost site, the mine shaft may be removed.

Secure Take Authorization for F'ederally Listed Vernal Pool Invertebrates and Implement All Permit
Conditions. No project construction shall proceed in areas supporting potential habitat for Federally listed

vernal pool invertebrates, or within adequate buffer areas (250 feet or lesser distance deemed sufficiently
protective by a qualified biologist with approval from USFWS), until a biological opinion (BO) or Not
Likely to Adversely Atl'ect (NLAA) letter has been issued by USFWS and the project applicant($ for any

particular discretionary development entitlements affecting such areas have abided by conditions in the BO

(including conservation and minimization measures) intended to be completed before on-site construction.

Conservation and minimization measures shall include preparation of supporting documentation describing

methods to protect existing vemal pools during and atler project construction, a detailed monitoring plan, and

reporting requirements.

As described under Mitigation Measure 3A.3-la, an MMP shall be developed that describes details how loss

of vernal pool and other wetland habitats shall be offset, including details on creation of habitat, account for
the temporal loss of habitat, contain performance standards to ensure success, and outline remedial actions if
performance standards are not met.

The project applicant(s) for any particular discretionary development application potentially affecting vernal
pool habitat shall complete and implement a habitat MMP that will result in no net loss of acreage, function,
and value of affected vernal pool habitat. The final habitat MMP shall be consistent with guidance provided

in Programmatic Formal Endangered Species Act Consultation on Issuance of404 Permits for Projects with
Relatively Small Eft'ects on Listed Vernal Pool Crustaceans within the Jurisdiction ofthe Sacramento Field

Office, California (USFWS I 996) or shall provide an alternative approach that is acceptable to the City,
USACE, and USFWS and accomplishes no net loss of habitat acreage, function, and value.

The project applicant(s) for any particular discretionary development application "potentially affecting vernal
pool habitat" shall ensure that there is sufficient upland habitat within the target areas for creation and

restoration ofvemal pools and vernal pool complexes to provide ecosystem health. This standard shall be

accomplished by requiring the project applicant(s) for any discretionary development application affecting
vernal pool or seasonal wetland habitat to identi$ the extent of indirectly aff'ected vernal pool and seasonal

wetland habitat, either by identifiing all such habitat within 250 feet of project construction activities or by
providing an alternative technical evaluation. Ifa lesser distance is pursued, this distance shall be approved

by USFWS. The project applicant(s) shall preserve acreage of vernal pool habitat for each wetted acre of any

indirectly affected vernal pool habitat at a ratio approved by USFWS at the conclusion of the Section 7

consultation. This mitigation shall occur before the approval of any grading or improvement plans for any

project phase that would allow work within 250 feet of such habitat or lesser distance deemed sufficiently
protective by a qualified biologist with approval from USFWS, and before any ground disturbing activity
within 250 feet ofthe habitat or lesser distance deemed sufficiently protective by a qualified biologist with
annroval from IJSFWS. The nroiect aoolicant(s) will not be reouired to comolete this mitisation measure for

3A.3-2g
(FPASP
EIR/ErS)

106

-18

Resolution No. 10670

Page73 of 140

Page 198

06/14/2022 Item No.9.



YesThe City and its Environmental

Compliance Consultant (Helix) have

reviewed all MMRP conditions and

verified compliance with this Mitigation
Measure. Compliance was verified prior
to commencement of grading and

construction in the Summer of 2020. The

compliance table is on file with the City.

California
Department of
Fish and Game

and City of
Folsom
Community
Development
Department

Before the

approval of
grading or
improvement
plans or any

construction
activities
(including
clearing and
grubbing) that
atfect the bed

and bank or
riparian and

freshwater
marsh habitat
associated with
Alder Creek
and other on-
site or off-site
drainage
channels and

ponds.

direct or indirect impacts that have already been mitigated to the satisfaction of USFWS through another BO

or mitigation plan (i.e., if impacts on specific habitat acreage are mitigated by one project phase or element,

the project applicant(s) will not be required to mitigate for it again in another phase of the project).

A standard set of BMPs shall be applied to construction occurring in areas within 250 feet of off-site vernal

pool habitat, or within any lesser distance deemed adequate by a qualified biologist (with approval from

USFWS) to constitute a sufficient buffer from such habitat. Refer to Section 3A.9, "Hydrology and Water

Quality - Land" for the details of BMPs to be implemented.

Mitigation for the off-site elements outside of the City of Folsom's jurisdictional boundaries must be

developed by the project applicant(s) of each applicable project phase in consultation with the affected

oversight agency(ies) (i.e., El Dorado and/or Sacramento Counties, or Caltrans).

Mitigation Measure 3A,3-4a: Secure and Implement Section 1602 Streambed Alteration Agreement.

The project applicant(s) for any particular discretionary development application shall obtain a Section 1602

streambed alteration agreement from DFG for all construction activities that would occur in the bed and bank

of Alder Creek and other drainage channels and ponds on the SPA. As a condition of issuance ofthe
streambed alteration agreement, the project applicant(s) for any particular discretionary development

application affecting riparian habitat shall hire a qualified restoration ecologist to prepare a riparian habitat

MMP. The draft MMP shall describe specific method(s) to be implemented to avoid and/or compensate for

impacts on the stream channel of Alder Creek and other drainage channels within DFG jurisdiction, and the

bed and banks of the on-site ponds. Mitigation measures may include establishment or restoration of riparian

habitat within the project's open space areas along preserved stream conidors, riparian habitat restoration off-
site, or preservation and enhancement of existing riparian habitat either on or off the SPA. The compensation

habitat shall be similar in composition and structur€ to the habitat to be removed and shall be at ratios

adequate to offset the loss of riparian habitat functions and services at the SPA. The riparian habitat

compensation section of the habitat MMP shall include the following

> compensatory mitigation sites and criteria for selecting these mitigation sites;

> complete assessment ofthe existing biological resources in both the on-site and off-site preservation and

restoration areas;

> site-specific management procedures to benefit establishment and maintenance ofnative riparian plant

species, including black willow, arroyo willow, white alder, and Fremont cottonwood;

> a planting and irrigation program ifneeded for establishment ofnative riparian trees and shrubs at

strategic locations within each mitigation site (planting and irrigation may not be necessary if
preservation offunctioning riparian habitat is chosen as mitigation or ifrestoration can be accomplished

without irrigation or planting);

> in kind reference habitats for comparison with compensatory riparian habitats (using peribrmance and

success criteria) to document success;

3A.3-4a
(FPASP
EIR/f,IS)

106

-19

Resolution No. 1 0670
Page74of140

Page 199

06/14/2022 Item No.9.



YesThe City and its Environmental
Compliance Consultant (Helix) have

reviewed all MMRP conditions and

verified compliance with this Mitigation
Measure. Compliance was verified prior
to commencement of grading and

construction in the Summer of 2020. The
compliance table is on file with the City.

Cafifornia
Department of
Fish and Game,

and City of
Folsom
Community
Development
Department

Befbre approval
of grading or
improvement
plans or any

ground

disturbing
activities,
including
grubbing or
clearing, for
any project
phase.

> monitoring protocol, including schedule and annual report requirements (compensatory riparian habitats

shall be monitored for a minimum perrod of five years);

> ecological performance standards, based on the best available science and including specifications for
native riparian plant densities, species composition, amount of dead woody vegetation gaps and bare

ground, and survivorship; at a minimum, compensatory mitigation planting sites must achieve 80%

survival of planted riparian trees and shrubs by the end of the five-year maintenance and monitoring
period or dead and dying trees shall be replaced and monitoring continued until 80% survivorship is

achieved;

> corrective measures ifperformance standards are not met;

> responsible parties for monitonng and preparing reports; and

> responsible parties for receiving and reviewing reports and for verifying success or prescribing

implementation or conecltve actions.

Any conditions of issuance of the Streambed Alteration Agreement shall be implemented as part of project

construction activities that adversely atTect the bed and bank and riparian habitat associated with Alder Creek

and other drarnage channels and ponds that are within the project area that is subject to DFG jurisdiction. The

agreement shall be executed by the project applicant($ and DFG before the approval of any grading or
improvement plans or any construction activities in any project phase that could potentially affect the bed and

bank of Alder Creek and other on-site or off-site drainage channels under DFG jurisdiction and their
associated freshwater marsh and ripanan habitat.

Mitigation for the U.S. 50 interchange improvements must be coordinated by the project applicant(s) ofeach
applicable project phase with the Caltrans.

Conduct Surveys to ldentify and Map Valley Needlegrass Grassland; Implement Avoidance and
Minimization Measures or Compensatory Mitigation. The project applicant(s) of all project phases shall

retain a qualified botanist to conduct preconstruction surveys to determine ifvalley needlegrass grassland is
present on the SPA. This could be done concunently with any special+tafus plant surveys conducted on site

as special-status plant surveys are floristic in natwe, i.e. require that all species encountered be identified, and

require preparation of a plant community map. If valley needlegrass grassland is not found on the SPA, the

botanist shall document the findings in a letter report to the City of Folsom, and no further mitigation shall be

required. Valley needlegrass grassland was not found in any of the off-site project elements.

If valley needlegrass grassland is found on the SPA, the location and extent ofthe community shall be

mapped and the acreage of this community type, if any, that would be removed by project implementation

shall be calculated. The project applicant(s) for any particular discretionary development application
affecting valley needlegrass grassland shall consult with DFG and the City of Folsom to determine
appropriate mitigation for removal of valley needlegrass grassland resulting from project implementation.

Mitigation measures shall include one or more ofthe following components sufficient to achieve no net loss

of vallev needlegrass grassland acreage: establishment of valley needlegrass grassland within proiect's open

3A.3-4b
(FPASP
ErR/XrS)

r06
-20

Resolution No. 10670
Page 75 of I 40

Page 200

06/14/2022 Item No.9.



YesThe owner/applicant obtained a Tree
Permit from the Community
Development Department for the
removal of protected oak trees that
were impacted by the grading and
construction ofPhase 1 ofthe Toll
Brothers at Folsom Ranch project.

The Tree Permit was approved prior
to commencement of grading and
construction in the Summer of 2020.
The owner/applicant paid inJieu
fees for the removal of some trees,
the City approved a Tree
Replacement Plan for another
portion of the tree that were removed
and preserved existing oak trees in
EI Dorado County for the remaining
mitigation for the total number of
protected trees in accordance with
this condition.

The Conservation Easements within the

Phase I portion of the subdivision were

fenced off around their boundaries in
advance ofthe commencement of
grading and construction and the City
verified compliance by inspecting the

fence in advance of grading.

City of Folsom
Community
Development
Department

Before approval
of grading or
improvement
plans or any
ground

disturbing
activities,
including
grubbing or
clearing, for
any project
phase

containing
protected trees

or oak
woodland.

space areas cunently characterized by annual grassland, establishment of valley needlegrass grassland off-
site, or preservation and enhancement of existing valley needlegrass grassland either on or offthe SPA. The

applicant(s) shall compensate for any loss of valley needlegrass grassland resulting from project

implementation at a minimum I :l replacement ratio.

Conduct Tree Surveg Prepare and Implement an Oak Woodland Mitigation Plan, Replace Native Oak
Trees Removed, and Implement Measures to Avoid and Minimize Indirect Impacts on Oak Trees

Retained On Site, The project applicant(s) shall prepare an oak woodland mitigation and monitoring plan.

The project applicant(s) of all on- and off+ite project phases containing oak woodland habitat or individual
trees shall adhere to the requirements described below, which are consistent with those outlined in California
Public Resources Code 21083.4. Pursuantto Sacramento County General Plan policy, the acreage ofoak
woodland habitat for determining impacts and mitigation requirements was calculated as the oak tree canopy

area within stands of oak trees having greater than l0% cover plus a 30-foot-radius buffer measured from the

outer edge ofthe tree canopy. Oak trees located in areas greater than 30 feet from stands meeting the greater

than l0% tree canopy cover criterion were considered isolated trees and not part of the blue oak woodland

community. Mitigation for impacts on isolated oak trees is discussed separately below.

> Preserve approximately 399 acres ofexisting oak woodland habitat in the SPA (this acreage is based on

the extent of oak woodland habitat as determined from aerial photograph interpretation; however,

tbllowing completion of ground verification by a qualitied arborist, the actual amount of oak woodland

present within impact areas could be slightly greater or lesser than the amount calculated from aerial

photograph and, therefore, the amount preserved could also be slightly greater or lesser than 399 acres).

> Create 243 acres of oak woodland habitat in the SPA by planting a combination of blue oak acorns,

seedlings, and trees in the following SPA locations:

. Non-wooded areas that are adlacent to or contiguous with the existing oak woodland habitat.

. Preserve and passive open space zones tfuoughout the SPA.

. Open space areas that are adjacent to existing oak woodlands that will be impacted by project grading

(i.e. catch slopes).

. Other practical locations within the SPA in or adjacentto open space.

. Oak Woodlands Mitigation Planting Criteria

The tbllowing oak woodland mitigation planting criteria shall be used to create oak woodland habitat:

> A minimum of 55 planting sites per acre (with a total of 70 units, as defined below) will mitigate for one

acre of oak woodland impacts. A combination of acorns, seedlings, and various sizes of container trees

(#l container, #5 container, #l 5 container) or transplanted trees shall be incorporated into the planting

design. Mitigation acreage that is planted solely with larger oak trees (no acorns) shall have a minimum

of 35 planting sites per acre. The units are defined as follows:

3A.3-5 (FPASP
EIR/EIS)

r06
-21

Resolution No. 10670

Page76of140

Page 201

06/14/2022 Item No.9.



. One established acorn equals one unit (acorns will be over planted to maximize potential germination).

. One oak seedling equals one unit.

. One #1 container oak tree equals two units.

. One #5 container oaktree equals three units.

. One # 1 5 container oak tree equals four units.

' One 24-inch boxed oak tree equals six units.

. One transplanted oak tree equals four units per trunk diameter inch (dbh).

. Native non oak species characteristic of oak woodlands shall be included in the mitigation planting plan

to augment overall habitat values. Each non oak tree species shall represent unit values described above

for oak trees, but non oak species shall comprise no more than 10% ofthe mitigation plantings.

> Preserve and protect existing off-site oak woodland habitat. Existing, unprotected oak woodland habitat

within Sacramento and El Dorado Counties may be secured and placed under conservation easement in
lieu of onsite mitigation measures if necessary. The off+ite locations would be managed as oak

woodland habitat in perpetuity.

t Create oak woodlands off site. Plant a combination of blue oak acorns, seedlings, and trees at off-site
location(s), if needed to achieve the creation goal of243 acres of new blue oak woodland habitat. This

measure would only be needed if 243 acres of blue oak woodland could not be created in the SPA. Off-
site creation shall follow the same guidelines as outlined in the Mitigation Planting Criteria for onsite

creation. Off-site tree planting shall occur at sites within Sacramento County that should naturally

support blue oak woodland and shall be used to restore former blue oak woodland habitat that has been

degraded or removed through human activities. Restoration shall be designed to result in species

composition and densities similar to those in the SPA prior to project development. Planted areas shall

be placed under conservation easement and managed as oak woodland habitat in perpetuity.

> The oak woodland mitigation plan prepared by the project applicant(s) shall include a maintenance and

monitoring program for any replacement trees. The program shall include monitoring and reporting

requirements, schedule, and success criteria. Replacement oak trees shall be maintained and monitored

for a minimum of eight years from the date of planting and inigation shall be provided to planted trees

for the first five years after planting. Any replacement trees that die during the monitoring period shall

be replaced in sufficient numbers to achieve 80% survival rate for planted trees by the end of the eight-
year maintenance and monitoring period. Dead and dying trees shall be replaced and monitoring
continued until 80% survivorship is achieved. Security acceptable to the City and sufficient to cover

maintenance and monitoring costs for eight years shall be provided to the City Planning Department.

The security will be forfeited if the project applicant or designated responsible party fails to provide

maintenance and monitoring and meet the success criteria.

Resolution No. 10670

Page 77 of 140

Page 202

06/14/2022 Item No.9.



Isolated Oak Tree Mitigation

The project applicant(s) of all on-site project phases containing oak woodland habitat or isolated trees and the
ofl'-site Prairie City Road and Oak Avenue interchange improvements to U.S. 50; Rowberry Drive
Overcrossing; and the underground sewer force main shall develop a map depicting the tree canopy of all oak
trees in the survey area and identifi'ing the acreage oftree canopy that would be preserved and the acreage

that would be removed. A tree permit for removal of isolated oak trees (those not located within the

delineated boundary of oak woodland habitat) shall be obtained from the City Planning Director. As a

condition ofthe tree removal permit, project applicant(s) shall be required to develop a Planting and

Maintenance Agreement. The City's Tree Preservation Code requires compensatory mitigation and the City
and the prqect applicants have developed a plan, as set forth Section 10 of the Folsom Plan Area Specific
Plan (attached to this EIR/EIS as Appendix N) specitlcally to avoid and minimize adverse effects on isolated
oak trees from project development and to provide compensatory mitigation for removal of protected trees in
the SPA. In addition to the language contained in the Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan, the following elements
shall be included in a protected tree mitigation plan to be developed by the project applicants and agreed

upon by the City:

> Project applican(s) ofprojects containing isolated oak trees shall retain a certified arborist or registered
professional forester to perform a determinate survey of tree species, size (dbh), condition, and location
for all areas ofthe project site proposed for tree removal and encroachment of development. The

condition of individual trees shall be assessed according to the American Society of Consulting Arborists
rating system with the following added explanations:

. 5 = Excellent, No problems - tree has no structural problems, branches are properly spaced and tree

characteristics are nearly perfect for the species.

. 4: Good; No apparent problems -tree is in good condition and no apparent problems from visual
inspection. If potential structural or health problems are tended at this stage, future hazard can be

reduced and more serious health problems can be averted.

. 3 = Fair; Minor problems - There are some minor structrual or health problems that pose no immediate
danger. When the recommended actions in an arborist report are completed conectly the defect(s) can
be minimized or eliminated.

. 2 = Poor; Major problems - the tree is in poor condition, but the condition could be improved with
conect arboricultural work including, but not limited to: pruning, cabling, bracing, bolting, guying,

spraying, mistletoe removal, vertical mulching, and fertilization. If the recommended actions are

completed correctly, hazard can be reduced and the rating can be elevated to a 3. If no action is taken
the tree is considered a liability and should be removed.

. I : Hazardous or non conectable condition - the free is in extremely poor condition and in non-
reversible decline. This ratins is assisned to a tree that has structural and/or health nroblems that no

Resolution No. 1 0670
Page 78 of I 40

Page 203

06/14/2022 Item No.9.



amount of tree care work or effort can change. The issues may or may not be considered a dangerous

situation. The tree may also be infested with a disease or pest(s) that is non-controllable at this time and

is causing an unacceptable risk of spreading the disease or pests(s) to other trees.

. 0 = Dead - the tree has no significant signs of life (dead or very close to being dead).

Isolated Oak Tree Mitigation Planting Criteria

> The determination for whether an isolated tree shall be preserved, removed withoul compensation, or
removed with compensatory mitigatron shall be based on the condition and size ofthe tree as follows:

. Trees rated 0 or 1 may be removed with no mitigation.

. Trees rated 2 may be removed at 50% of the normal Folsom Municipal Code mitigation.

. Trees rated 3, 4, and/or 5 may be removed at the normal Folsom Municipal Code mitigation.

. Native isolated oaks measuring 24 inches or greater dbh for a single trunk or 40 inches or more for a

multi-trunked tree and rated a 3 to 5 shall be retained, unless retaining wall(s) higher than 4 feet tall
(from bottom of footing to the top of the wall) would be required to protect the tree($ from mass

grading ofthe SPA properties.

. Native oaks measuring between I 2 and 24 inches dbh and rated a 4 or 5 shall not be removed or

mitigated unless wall(s) higher than 4 feet tall (from bottom of footing to the top ofthe wall) would be

required to protect the tree(s) from mass grading of the SPA properties. Trees in this size class but rated

2 or 3 shall not be removed unless unreasonable costs to save the tree(s) (greater than the cost of
implementing the isolated oak tree mitigation planting criteria described here) would result.

. Native oaks measuring 5 inches or greater dbh but less than 12 inches dbh shall not be removed unless

unreasonable costs to save the tree(s) (greater than the cost of implementing the isolated oak tree

mitigation planting criteria described here) would result.

. Native oak trees measuring I inch or greater dbh but less than 5 inches dbh may be preserved to receive

a Small Tree Preservation Credit (STPC). Any tree that is to be considered for preservation credit shall

be evaluated, included in the arborist report, and shall have been found to be rated a 3, 4, or a 5, Credits

shall only be accepted if the tree protection zone (TPZ) (i e., the outer edge of the tree canopy drip line)
is protected with fencing in the exact manner that 5 inches dbh and greater trees are protected on a

construction site, and the spacing is equal to the proper tree spacing dictated by the Folsom Master Tree

List. STPC shall not count ifthey the tree is in a poor growing space due to its position within the TPZ

of another protected tree to be preserved- The City shall accept the preservation of nahve oak trees in
this size class as credit towards the total removed inches based on the following STPC criteria.

> Folsom Municipal Code requires one ofthe following be planted as compensation for each diameter inch
of protected tree removed:

Resolution No. 10670
Page 79 of 140

Page 204

06/14/2022 Item No.9.



YesThe City and its Envlronmental
Compliance Consultant (Helix) have

reviewed all MMRP conditions and

verified compliance with this Mitigation
Measure. Compliance was verified prior
to commencement of grading and

Crty of Folsom
Community
Development
Department

Before approval
of grading or
improvement
plans or any
ground

disturbing

. half of a 24-inch box tree;

r one #15 container tree;

. two #5 container trees; or

. $ 1 50 in-lieu payment or other fee set by City Council Resolution.

> The Planting and Maintenance Agreement shall include a planting plan, planting and inigation design

details, and a weaning schedule for the establishment period. The plan shall include a 5-year

establishment period for trees and 8 years for planted acorns with an annual monitoring report that

includes conections needed with proposed work plan, and notice of compliance within 90-days of annual

monitoring report. Security in an form acceptable to the City and sufficient to cover maintenance and

monitoring costs for eight years shall be provided to the City Planning Department. The security will be

forfeited if the project applicant or designated responsible party fails to fulfill the Planting and

Maintenance Agreement.

> To avoid and minimize indirect impacts on protected trees to remain on the SPA, the project applicant(s)

of all affected project phases shall install high visibrlity fencing outside the outer edge of the drip lines of
all trees to be retained on the SPA during project construction, The fencing may be installed around

groups or stands of trees or whole wooded areas bust must be installed so that the drip lines of all trees

are protected. Grading, trenching, equipment or materials storage, parking, paving, inigation, and

landscaping shall be prohibited within the fenced areas (i.e. drip lines of protected trees). If the activities
listed cannot be avoided within the drip line of a particular hee, that tree shall be counted as an affected

tree and compensatory mitigation shall be provided, or the tree in question shall be monitored for a
period offive years and replaced only ifthe tree app€ars to be dead or dying within five years ofproject
implementation.

Through a combination of the mltigation options presented above along with the proposed on-site
preservation of blue oak woodland habitat in the open space areas, the project applicant(s) can satis$ the

mitigation requirements for removal of trees protected under the Folsom Municipal Code while also

mitigating the impacts on oak woodland habitat, as determined through consultation with the Sacramento
County Planning Department (for County off-site impacts only) and/or the City of Folsom.

Mitigation for the U.S. 50 interchange improvements must be coordinated by the project applicant(s) ofeach
applicable project phase with Caltrans.

Conduct Environmental Awareness Training for Construction Employees.

Prior to beginning construction activities, the Project Applicant shall employ a qualified biologist to develop
and conduct environmental awareness training for construction employees. The training shall describe the

importance of onsite biological resources, including special-status wildlife habitats; potential nests of special-
status birds; and roosting habitat for special-status bats. The biologist shall also explain the importance of
other responsibilities related to the Drotection ofwildlit'e durine consfouction such as inspectins ooen trenches

ws-l
(Addendum)

106
-7',t

Resolution No. 10670
Page 80 of I 40

Page 205

06/14/2022 Item No.9.



Yes

Yes

construction in the Summer of 2020. The

compliance table is on file with the City.

The City and its Environmental
Compliance Consultant (Helix) have

reviewed all MMRP conditions and

verified compliance wrth this Mitigation
Measure. Compliance was verified prior
to commencement of grading and

construction in the Summer of 2020. The

compliance table is on file with the City.

The City and its Environmental
Compliance Consultant (Helix) have

reviewed all MMRP conditions and

verified compliance with this Mitigation
Measure. Compliance was verified prior
to commencement of grading and

construction in the Summer of 2020. The

compliance table is on file with the City.

California
Department of
Fish and Game,

and City of
Folsom
Community
Development
Department

California
Department of
Fish and Game,

and City of
Folsom
Community
Development
Department

activities,
including
grubbing or
clearing, for
any project
phase.

Before approval
of grading or
improvement
plans or any

ground
disturbing
activities,
including
grubbing or
clearing, within
suitable tadpole
habrtat.

Betbre approval
of grading or
improvement
plans or any
ground

disturbing
activities,
including
grubbing or
clearing, within
suitable
northwestern
pond turtle
habitat.

and looking under vehicles and machinery prior to moving them to ensure there are no lizards, snakes, small

mammals, or other wildlife that could become trapped, injured, or killed in construction areas or under

equipment.

The environmental awareness program shall be provided to all construction personnel to brief them on the

life history of special-status species in or adjacent to the project area, the need to avoid impacts on sensitive

biological resources, any terms and conditions required by State and federal agencies, and the penalties for
not complying with biological mitigation requirements. If new construction personnel are added to the

project, the contractor's superintendent shall ensure that the personnel receive the mandatory training before

starting work. An environmental awareness handout that describes and illustrates sensitive resources to be

avoided during project construction and identifies all relevant permit conditions shall be provided to each

person.

Conduct Preconstruction Western Spadefoot Survey.

The Project Applicant(s) shall retain a qualified biologist to conduct a preconstruction westem spadefoot

survey within 48 hours of the initiation of construction activity within suitable tadpole habitat (e.g., vernal

pools, seasonal wetlands, and drainages with standing water) for western spadefoot. If no western spadefoot

individuals are found during the preconstruction survey, the biologist shall document the findings in a letter

report to CDFW and the City, and no further mitigation shall be required. Ifwestem spadefoot individuals
are found, the qualified biologist shall consult with CDFW to determine appropriate avoidance measures.

Conduct Preconstruction Northwestern Pond Turtle Survey.

The Project Applicant(s) shall retain a qualified biologist to conduct a preconstruction northwestern pond

turtle survey within 48 hours ofthe initiation of construction activity within suitable habitat for northwestern

pond turtle. If no northwestern pond turtles are found during the preconstruction survey, the biologist shall

document the findings in a letter report to CDFW and the City, and no further mitigation shall be required. If
northwestern pond turtles are found, the qualified biologist shall capture and relocate the turtles to a suitable
preserved location in the vicinity of the project.

ws-2
(Addendum)

NWPT-1
(Addendum)

106
-i7

106

-24

Resolution No. 10670

Page 8l of 140

Page 206

06/14/2022 Item No.9.



Yes

Yes

Yes

The City and its Environmental
Compliance Consultant (Helix) have

reviewed all MMRP conditions and

verified compliance with this Mitigation
Measure. Compliance was verified prior
to commencement of grading and

construction in the Summer 0f2020. The
compliance table is on file with the City.

On June 10, 2019, the US Army Corps
of Engineers, in consultation with the

City, SHPO, the tribes and consulting
parties determined that the entire Toll
Brothers at Folsom Ranch Regency
project has satisfied its pre-construction

compliance requirements for cultural
resources and may proceed with
construction. All required compliance
Ietters are on file with the Community
Development Department.

On June 10, 2019, the US Army Corps
of Engineers, in consultation with the
City, SHPO, the tribes and consulting
parties determined that the entire Toll
Brothers at Folsom Ranch Regency
project has satisfied its pre-construction
compliance requirements for cultural
resources and may proceed with
construction. All required compliance
letters are on file with the Communrty
Development Department.

California
Department of
Fish and Game,

and City of
Folsom
Community
Development
Department

Cultural and Tribal Culfural Resources

City of Folsom
Community
Development
Department;
U.S. Army
Corp of
Engineers;

City of Folsom
Community
Development
Department

Before approval
of grading or
improvement
plans or any
ground

disturbing
activities,
including
grubbing or
clearing, for
any project
phase.

During all
construction
phases

Before approval
of grading ot
improvement
plans or any
ground

disturbing
activities,
including
grubbing or
clearing, for
any project
phase,

Preconstruction Nesting Bird Survey.

The Project Applicant shall conduct a preconstruction nesting bird survey of all areas assocrated with
construction activities on the project site within l4 days prior to commencement of construction during the

nesting season (1 February through 3l August).

Ifactive nests are found, a no-disturbance buffer around the nest shall be established. The buffer distance
shall be established by a qualified biologist in consultation with CDFW. The buffer shall be maintained until
the fledglings are capable of flight and become independent of the nest, to be determined by a qualified
biologist. Once the young are independent ofthe nest, no further measures are necessary. Pre-construction
nesting surveys are not required for construction activity outside ofthe nesting season.

Comply with the Programmatic Agreement

The PA for the project is incorporated by reference. The PA provides a management framework for
identi$ing historic properties, determining adverse effects, and resolving those adverse effects as required
under Section 106 ofthe National Historic Presewation Act. This document is incorporated by reference. The
PA is available for public inspection and review at the California Office of Historic Preservation 1725 23rd
Street Sacramento, CA 958 16.

Perform an Inventory and Evaluation of Cultural Resources for the California Register of Historic
Places, Minimize or Avoid Damage or Destruction, and Perform Treatment Where Damage 0r
Destruction Cannot be Avoided,

These steps may be combined witb deliverables and management steps performed for Section I 06 provided
that management documents prepared for the PA also clearly reference the California Register of Historical
Resources (CRHR) listing criteria and significance thresholds that apply under CEQA. Prior to ground
disturbing work for each individual development phase or ofl'-site element, the applicable oversight agency
(City of Folsom, El Dorado County, Sacramento County, or Caltrans), or the project applicant(s) of all
project phases, with applicable oversight agency, shall perform the following actions:

> The project applicant shall retain the services of a qualified archaeologist to perform an inventory of
cultural resources within each individual development phase or off-site element subject to approval
under CEQA. Identitied resources shall be evaluated for listing on the CRHR. The inventory report shall
also identifu locations that are sensitive for undiscovered cultural resources based unon the location of

NB-1
(Addendum)

3,4Sla
(Addendum)

3A$1b
(Addendum)

r06
-t<

106

-?i

106

Resolution No. 10670
Page 82 of 140

Page 207

06/14/2022 Item No.9.



known resources, geomorphology, and topography. The inventory report shall specifu the location of
monitoring of ground-disturbing work in these areas by a qualified archaeologist and monitoring in the

vicinity of identified resources that may be damaged by construction, if appropriate.

> The identification ofany sensitive locations subject to monitoring during construction ofeach individual

development phase shall be performed in concert with monitoring activities performed under the PA to

minimize the potential for conflicting requirements.

> For each resource that is determined eligible for the CMR, the applicable agency or the project

applicant(s) for any particular discretionary development (under the agency's direction) shall obtain the

services of a qualified archaeologist who shall determine if implementation of the individual prolect

development would result in damage or destruction of "significant" (under CEQA) cultural resources.

These findings shall be reviewed by the applicable agency for consistency with the significance

thresholds and treatment measures provided in this EIR/EIS.

> Where possible, the project shall be configured or redesigned to avoid impacts on eligible or listed

resources. Altematively, these resources may be preserved in place ifpossible, as suggested under

Calitbrnia Public Resources Code Section 21083.2. Avoidance of historic properties is required under

certain circumstances under the Public Resource Code and 36 CFR Part 800.

> Where impacts cannot be avoided, the applicable agency or the project applicant($ ofall project phases

(under the applicable agency's direction) shall prepare and implement treatment measures that are

determined to be necessary by a qualified archaeologist. These measures may consist of data recovery

excavatrons for resources that are eligible for listing because ofthe data they contain (which may

contribute to research). Alternatively, for historical architectural, engineered, or landscape features,

treatment measures may consist of a preparation of interpretive, narrative, or photographic

documentation. These measures shall be reviewed by the applicable oversight agency for consistency

with the significance thresholds and standards provided in this EIfuEIS.

> To support the evaluation and treatment required under this Mitigation Measure, the archaeologist

retained by either the applicable oversight agency or the project applicant(s) of all prqect phases shall

prepare an appropriate prehistoric and historic context that identifies relevant prehistoric, ethnographic,

and historic themes and research questions agarnst which to determine the significance of identified

resources and appropriate treatment.

> These sleps and documents may be combined with the phasing of management and documents prepared

pursuant to the FAPA to minimize the potential for inconsistency and duplicative management efforts.

Mitigation for the off'-site elements outside of the City of Folsom's jurisdictional boundaries shall be

coordinated by the project applicant(s) of each applicable project phase with the affected oversight

agency(ies) (i.e., El Dorado and/or Sacramento Counties, or Caltrans).

Resolution No. 10670

Page 83 of 140

Page 208

06/14/2022 Item No.9.



YesOn June 10, 2019, the US Army Corps
of Engineers, in consultation with the

City, SHPO, the tribes and consulting
parties determined that the entire Toll
Brothers at Folsom Ranch Regency
project has satisfied its pre-construction

compliance requirements for cultural
resources and may proceed with
construction. All required compliance
letters are on file with the Community
Development Department. Compliance
with this condition is monitored through
construction inspection.

City of Folsom
Community
Development
Department;

U.S. Army
Corp of
Engineers

Before approval
of grading or
improvement
plans or any

ground
disturbing
activities,
including
grubbing or
clearing, for
any project
phase.

Conduct Construction Personnel Education, Conduct On-Site Monitoring IfRequired, Stop Work if
Cultural Resources are Discovered, Assess the Significance of the tr'ind, and Perform Treatment or
Avoidance as Required,

To reduce potential impacts to previously undiscovered cultural resources, the project applicant(s) of aJl

project phases shall do the following

> Before the start of ground-disturbing activities, the project applicant(s) of all project phases shall retain a

qualified archaeologist to conduct training for construction workers as necessary based upon the

sensitivity ofthe project APE, to educate them about the possibility of encountering buried cultural
resources and inform them ofthe proper procedures should cultural resources be encountered.

> As a result of the work conducted for Mitigation Measures 3A.5-la and 3A.5-lb, if the archaeologist

determines that any portion ofthe SPA or the oft'-site elements should be monitored for potential

discovery of as-yet-unknown cultural resources, the project applicant(s) of all project phases shall
implement such monitoring in the locations specified by the archaeologist. USACE should review and

approve any recommendations by archaeologists with respect to monitoring.

> Should any cultural resources, such as structural features, unusual amounts ofbone or shell, artifacts, or
architectural remains be encountered during any construction activities, work shall be suspended in the

vicinity of the find and the appropriate oversight agency(ie$ (identified below) shall be notified
immediately. The appropriate oversight agency(ies) shall retain a qualified archaeologist who shall

conduct a field investigation ofthe specific site and shall assess the significance ofthe find by evaluating

the resource for eligibility for listing on the CRHR and the NRHP. if the resource is eligible for listing
on the CRHR or NRHP and it would be subject to disturbance or destruction, the actions required in
Mitigation Measures 3A.5-la and 3A.5-lb shalt be implemented. The oversight agency shall be

responsible for approval of recommended mitigation if it is determined to be feasible in light of the

approved land uses and shall implemenl the approved mitigation before resuming constructron activities
at the archaeological site.

Mitigation for the off-site elements outside of the City of Folsom's lurisdictional boundaries must be

coordinated by the project applicant(s) of each applicable project phase with the affected oversight
agency(ies) (i.e., EI Dorado and/or Sacramento Counties, or Caltrans).

The project applicant, in coordination with USACE, shall ensure that an archaeological sensitivity training
program is developed and implemented during a pre-construction meeting for construction supervisors. The

sensitivity training program shall provide information about notification procedures when potential
archaeologica.l material is discovered, procedures for coordination b€tween construction personnel and

monitoring personnel, and information about other treatment or issues that may arise if cultural resources
(including human remains) are discovered during project construction. Thrs protocol shall be communicated to
all new constructton oersonnel durins orientation and on a ooster that is placed in a visible location inside the

3A"$2
(Addendum)

r06
-8

Resolution No. 10670
Page 84 of 140

Page 209

06/14/2022 Item No.9.



YesThere have been no human rematns
discovered during the course of grading

and construction in the project.

Sacramento

County
Coroner; Native
American
Heritage
Commission;
City of Folsom
Community
Development
Department

During
ground

all

disturbing
activities, for
any ptoject
phase.

job trailer. The phone number ofthe USACE cultural resources staff member shall also be

included.

The on-site sensitivity training shall be canied out each trme a new contractor will begin work in the APE

and at the beginning of each construction season by each contractor.

Ifunanticipated discoveries ofadditional historic properties, defined in 36 CFR 800.16 (l), are made during
the construction of the project, the USACE shall ensure that they will be protected by implementing the

lollowing measures:

> The Construction Manager, or archaeological monitor, ifgiven the authority to halt construction

activities, shall ensure that work in that area is immediately halted within a 100-foot radius ofthe
unanticipated discovery until the find is examined by a person meeting the professional qualifications

standards specified in Section 2,2 of Attachment G of the HPMP. The Construction Manager, or

archaeological monitor, if present, shall notifu the USACE within 24 hours of the discovery.

> The USACE shall notiS the State Historic Preservation Officer (SHPO) within one working day of an

unanticipated discovery and may initiate interim treatment measures in accordance with this HPTP.

Once the USACE makes a formal determination of eligibility for the resource, the USACE will notifu

the SHPO within 48 hours of the determination and afford the SHPO an opportunity to comment on

appropriate treatment. The SHPO shall respond within 72 hours of the request to consult, Failure of the

SHPO to respond within 72 hours shall not prohibit the USACE from implementing the treatment

measures.

The prgect applicants shall be required to submit to the City proofofcompliance in the form ofa completed trairung

roster and copy oftraining materials.

Suspend Ground-Disrturbing Activities if Human Remains are Encountered and Comply with California
Ilealth and Safety Code Procedures

In accordance with the Califomia Health and Safety Code, if human remains are uncovered during ground-

disturbing activities, including those associated with off-site elements, the project applicant(s) of all project

phases shall immediately halt all ground-disturbing activities in the area of the find and notifu the

Sacramento County Coroner and a professional archaeologist skilled in osteological analysis to determine the

nafure ofthe remains. The coroner is required to examine all discoveries of human remains within 48 hours

of receiving notice of a discovery on private or public lands (California H€alth and Safety Code Section

7050.5[b]) If the coroner determines that the remains are those of a Native American, he or she must contact

the NAHC by phone wilhin 24 hours of making that determination (Califomia Health and Safety Code

Section 7050[c]).

After the coroner's frndings are complete, the project applicant(s), an archaeologist, and the NAHC-
designated Most Likely Descendant shall determine the ultimate treatment and disposition of the remains and

take appropriate steps to ensure that additional human interments are not disturbed. The responsibilities for

(Addendum)
3AS3106

:29

Resolution No. 10670
Page 85 of 140

Page 210

06/14/2022 Item No.9.



YesThe owner/applicant has provlded

Geotechnical Report to the City. The
Ceotechnical report for the subdivision is

on file with the City.

Geolory and Soils

Crty of Folsom
Community
Development
Department

Befbre issuance

of building
permits and
ground-

acting on notification ofa discovery ofNative American human remains are identified in Section 5097.9 of
the California Public Resources Code.

Upon the discovery ofNative American remains, the procedures above regarding involvement ofthe
applicable county coroner, notification ofthe NAHC, and identification of an Most Likely Descendant shall
be followed. The project applican(s) of aJI project phases shall ensure that the immediate vicinity (according

to generally accepted cultural or archaeological standards and practices) is not damaged or disturbed by
further development activity until consultation wilh the Most Likely Descendant has taken place. The Most
Likely Descendant shall have 48 hours after being granted access to the site to inspect the site and make

recommendations. A range of possible treatments for the remains may be discussed: nondestructive removal
and analysis, preservahon in place, relinquishment of the remains and associated items to the descendants, or
other culturally appropriate treatment. As suggested by AB 2641 (Chapter 863, Statutes of 2006), the
concerned parties may extend discussions beyond the inrtial 48 hours to allow for the discovery of additional
remains. AB 2641(e) includes a list of site protection measures and states that the project applicant(s) shall
comply with one or more of the following requirements:

> record the site with the NAHC or the appropriate Information Center,

> use an open-space or conservation zoning designation or easement, or

> record a reinternment document with the county.

The project applicant(s) or its authorized representative of all project phases shall rebury the Native
American human remains and associated grave goods with appropriate dignity on the property in a location
not subject to further subsurface disturbance ifthe NAHC is unable to identi$ an Most Likely Descendant or
if the Most Likely Descendant fails to make a recommendation within 48 hours atler being granted access to
the site. The project applicant(s) or its authorized representative may also reinter the remains in a location not
subject to further dishrbance if it rejects the recommendation of the Most Likely Descendant and mediation
by the NAHC fails to provide measures acceptable to the landowner. Ground disturbance in the zone of
suspended activity shall not recommence without authorization from the archaeologist.

Mitigation for the off-site elements outside of the City of Folsom's jurisdictional boundaries must be

coordinated by the project applicant(s) of each applicable project phase with the affected oversight
agency(ies) (i.e., El Dorado and/or Sacramento Counties, or Caltrans).

The project applicants shall be required to submit to the City proof of compliance in the form of a completed
training roster and copy of training materials.

Prepare Srte-Specrfic Geotechnrcal Report per CBC Requrrements and Implement Appropnate
Recommendafions. Before building permits are issued and construction activities begin any project
development phase, the project applicant(s) of each projecl phase shall hire a licensed geotechnical engineer
to prepare a final geotechnical subsurface investigation report for the on- and off-site facilities, which shall be

3A.7-la
(FPASP
ErR/ErS)

106
-30

Resolution No. 10670
Page 86 of 140

Page 211

06/14/2022 Item No.9.



Yes

Yes

Compliance with this condition has been

monitored through construction
inspection by the City.

Compliance with this condition has been

monitored through construction
inspection by the City.

City of Folsom
Community
Development
Department

City ofFolsom
Community

disturbing
activities.

Before issuance

of building
permits and
ground-
disturbing
activities.

Before the start
of construction
activities.

submitted for review and approval to the appropriate City or county department (identified below). The final
geotechnical engineering report shall address and make recommendations on the following:

> site preparation;

> soil bearing capacity;

> appropriate sources and types of fill;
> potential need for soil amendments;

> road, pavement, and parking areas;

> structural foundations, including retaining-wall design;

> grading practices;

> soil conosion ofconcrete and steel;

> erosion/winterization,

> seismic ground shaking;

> liquefaction; and

> expansive/unstablesoils.

In addition to the recommendations for the conditions listed above, the geotechnical investigation shall
include subsurface testing of soil and groundwater conditions, and shall determine appropriate foundation

designs that are consistent with the version ofthe CBC that is applicable at the time building and grading

permits are applied for. All recommendations contained in the final geotechnical engineering report shall be

implemented by the project applicant(s) of each project phase. Special recommendations contained in the
geotechnical engineering report shall be noted on the grading plans and implemented as appropriate before

construction begins. Design and constructron of all new project development shall be in accordance with the

CBC. The project applicant(s) shall provide for engineenng inspection and certification that earthwork has

been performed in conformity with recommendations contained in the geotechnical report.

Monitor Earthwork during Earthmoving Activities. All earthwork shall be monitored by a qualified
geotechnical or soils engineer retained by the project applicant(s) of each project phase The geotechnical or
soils engineer shall provide oversight during all excavation, placement of fill, and disposal of materials
removed from and deposited on both on- and off-site construction areas.

Mitigation for the off-site elements outside of the City of Folsom's jurisdictional boundaries must be

coordinated by the project applicant(s) of each applicable prqect phase with the affected oversight
agency(ies) (i.e., El Dorado and/or Sacramento Counties, or Caltrans).

Prepare and Implement the Appropriate Grading and Erosion Control Plan. Before grading permits are

issued, the project applicant(s) of each project phase that would be located within the City of Folsom shall
retain a California Registered Civil Engineer to prepare a grading and erosion control plan. The grading and

erosion control plan shall be submitted to the City Public Works Department before issuance of grading

34.7-1b
(FPASP
EIR/ErS)

3A.7-3 (FPASP
EIR/EIS)

106
-31

t06
-32

Resolution No. 10670
Page 87 of 140

Page 212

06/14/2022 Item No.9.



YesThe Community Development
Department has reviewed and all
improvement plans in the subdivision to
verifu compliance with mitigation
measure.

Development
Department

City of Folsom
Community
Development
Department

Betbre and

during
earthmoving
activities.

permits for all new development, The plan shall be consistent with the City's Grading Ordinance, the City's
Hillside Development Guidelines, and the stale's NPDES permit, and shall include the site+pecific grading

associated with development for all project phases.

For the two off-site roadways into El Dorado Hills, the project applicant(s) of that phase shall retain a

Califomia Registered Civil Engineer to prepare a grading and erosion control plan. The grading and erosion

control plan shall be submitted to the El Dorado County Public Works Department and the El Dorado Hills
Community Service District before issuance of grading permits for roadway construction in El Dorado Hills.
The plan shall be consistent with El Dorado County's Grading, Erosion, and Sediment Control Ordinance

and the state's NPDES permit, and shall include the site-specific grading associated with roadway

development.

For the off-site detention basin west of Praine City Road, the project applicant($ of that phase shall retain a

Califomia Registered Civil Engineer to prepare a grading and erosion control plan. The grading and erosion

control plan shall be submitted to the Sacramento County Public Works Department before issuance of a
grading permit. The plan shall be consistent with Sacramento County's Grading, Erosion, and Sediment

Control Ordinance and the state's NPDES permit, and shall include the site-specific grading associated with
construction of the detention basin.

The plans referenced above shall include the location, implementation schedule, and maintenance schedule of
all erosion and sediment control measures, a description ofmeasures designed to control dust and stabilize

the construction-site road and entrance, and a description of the location and methods of storage and disposal

of construction materials. Erosion and sediment control measures could include the use of detention basins,

berms, swales, wattles, and silt fencing, and covering or watering of stockpiled soils to reduce wind erosion.

Stabilization on steep slopes could include construction of retaining walls and reseeding with vegetation after

construction. Stabilization ofconstruction entrances to minimize trackout (control dust) is commonly

achieved by installing filter fabric and crushed rock to a depth of approximately I foot. The project

applicant(s) shall ensure that the construction contractor is responsible for securing a sourcq oftransportation
and deposition of excavated materials.

Mitigation for the off-site elements outside of the City of Folsom's jurisdictional boundaries must be

coordinated by the project applicant(s) of each applicable project phase with the affected oversight
agency(ies) (i e., El Dorado and/or Sacramento Counties).

Implementation of Mitigation Measure 3A.9-l (discussed in Section 3A.9, "Hydrology and Water Quality -
Land") would also help reduce erosion-related impacts.

Divert Seasonal Water f,'lows Away from Building Foundations. The project applicant(s) of all project

phases shall either install subdrains (which typically consist of perforated pipe and gravel, surrounded by
nonwoven geotextile fabric), or take such other actions as recommended by the geotechnical or civil engineer

for the project that would serve to divert seasonal flows caused by surface infiltration, water seepage, and

perched water during the winter months away from building foundations.

3A.7-s (FPASP
ErwErs)

106

-33

Resolution No. 10670
Page 88 of 140

Page 213

06/14/2022 Item No.9.



Yes

Yes

The City and its Environmental

Compliance Consultant (Helix) have

reviewed all MMRP conditions and

verified compliance with this Mitigation
Measure. Compliance was verified prior
to commencement of grading and

construction in the Summer ol 2020. The

compliance table is on file with the City.

The City and its Environmental
Compliance Consultant (Helix) have

reviewed all MMRP conditions and

verified compliance wrth this Miligalion
Measure. Compliance was verified prior
to commencement of grading and

construction in the Summer of 2020. The

compliance table is on file with the City.

City of Folsom
Community
Development
Department

Greenhouse Gas Emissions and Climate Change
City ofFolsom
Community
Development
Department

During
earthmoving
activities in the
Ione and

Mehrten
Formations.

Before approval
of small-lot
final maps and

building
permits for all
discretionary
development
project,

including all
on- and off-site
elements and

implementation
throughout

Con{uct Construction Personnel Education, Stop Work if Paleontological Resources are Discovered,

Assess the Signilicance ofthe Find, and Prepare and Implement a Recovery Plan as Required.

To minimize potential adverse impacts on previously unknown potentially unique, scientitically important

paleontological resources, the project applicant($ of all project phases where construction would occur in the

Ione and Mehrten Formations shall do the following:

> Before the start ofany earthmoving activities for any project phase in the Ione or Mehrten Formations,

the project applicant(s) shall retain a qualified paleontologist or archaeologist to train all construction

personnel involved with earthmoving activities, including the site supenntendent, regarding the

possibility of encountering fossils, the appearance and types of fossils likely to be seen during

consiruction, and proper notification procedures should fossils be encountered.

> Ifpaleontological resources are discovered during earthmoving activities, the construction crew shall

immediately cease work in the vicinity of the find and notif, the appropriate lead agency (identified

below). The project applicant(s) shall retain a qualified paleontologist to evaluate the resource and

prepare a recovery plan in accordance with Society ofVertebrate Paleontology guidelines (1996). The

recovery plan may include, but is not limited to, a field survey, construction monitoring, sampling and

data recovery procedures, museum storage coordination for any specimen recovered, and a report of
findings. Recommendations in the recovery plan that are determined by the lead agency to be necessary

and feasible shall be implemented before construction activities can resume at the site where the -
paleontological resources wer€ discovered.

Mitigation for the off-site elements outside of the City of Folsom's jurisdictional boundaries must be

coordinated by the project applicant(s) of each applicable project phase with the affected oversight

agency(ies) (i.e., Sacramento County).

Implement Additional Measures to Control Construction-Generated GHG Emissions.

To further reduce construction-generated GHG emissions, the project applicant(s) any particular

discretionary development application shall implement all feasible measures tbr reducing GHG emissions

associated with construction that are recommended by SMAQMD at the time individual portions of the site

undergo construction. Such measures may reduce GHG exhaust emissions from the use ofon-site equipment,

worker commute trips, and truck trips carrying materials and equipment to and from the SPA, as well as

GHG emissions embodied in the materials selected for construction (e.g., concrete). Other measures may

pertain to the materials used in construction. Prior to releasing each request for bid to contractors for the

construction of each discretionary development entitlement, the project applicant(s) shall obtain the most

current list of GHG reduction measures that are recommended by SMAQMD and stipulate that these

measures be implemented in the respective request for bid as well as the subsequent construction contract

with the selected primary confiactor. The prqect applicant(s) for any particular discretionary development

aoolication mav submit to the CiW and SMAQMD a report that substantiates why specific measures are

34.7-10
(FPASP
ErR/EIS)

3A.4-1(FPASP
EIR/EIS)

106

-34

r06
-35

Resolution No. 10670

Page 89 of 140

Page 214

06/14/2022 Item No.9.



project

construction.
considered infeasible for construction of that particular development phase and/or at that point in time. The

report, including the substantiation for not implementing particular GHG reduction measures, shall be

approved by the City, in consultation with SMAQMD prior to the release of a request for bid by the project
applicant(s) for seeking a primary contractor to manage the construction of each development project. By
requiring that the list of feasible measures be established prior to the selection of a primary contractor, this
measure requires that the ability of a contractor to effectively implement the selected GHG reduction
measures be inherent to the selection process,

SMAQMD's recommended measures for reducing construction-related GHG emissions at the time of writing
this EIRJEIS are listed below and the project applicant(s) shall, at a minimum, be required to implement the

following:

> Improve fuel efficiency from construction equipment:

. reduce unnecessary idling (modifli work practices, install auxiliary power for driver comfort);

. perlbrm equipment maintenance (inspections, detect lailures early, conections);

. train equipment operators in proper use ofequipment;

. use the proper size of equipment for the job; and

. use equipment with new technologies (repowered engines, electric drive trains).

> Use altemative fuels for electricity generators and welders at construction sites such as propane or solar,

or use electrical power.

> Use an ARB-approved low-carbon fuel, such as biodiesel or renewable diesel for construction

equipment. (Emissions of oxides of nitrogen [NOx] emissions from the use of low carbon fuel must be

reviewed and increases mitigated,) Additional information about low carbon fuels is available from

ARB's Low Carbon Fuel Standard Program (ARB 2009b)

> Encourage and provide carpools, shuttle vans, transit passes and/or secure bicycle parking for
construction worker commutes.

> Reduce electricity use in the construction office by using compact fluorescent bulbs, powering off
computers every day, and replacing heating and cooling units with more etTicient ones.

> Recycle or salvage non-hazardous construction and demolition debris (goal ofat leastT5o/o by weight)

> Use locally sourced or recycled materials for construction materials (goal ofat least 20% based on costs

for building materials, and based on volume tbr roadway, parking lot, sidewalk and curb materials).

> Minimize the amount ofconcrete used for paved surfaces or use a low carbon concrete option.

> Produce concrete on-site ifdetermined to be less emissive than transporting ready mix.

Resolution No. 10670
Page 90 of 140

Page 215

06/14/2022 Item No.9.



Yes

Yes

The owner/applicant worked with an

organization Urban Wood Rescue which
is a program in association with the

Sacramento Tree Foundation that makes

wood products tiom large trees that are

removed as a result of development, The
owner/applicant provided most of the

large trees that were removed as a part of
the grading and construction for the
project to Urban Wood Rescue and they
made table, furniture, etc. fiom the trees

that were provided. The remaining trees

and tree canopy was mulched by the

owner/applicant and is stored on site to
use as mulch in the landscape areas

throughout the project. No removed trees

were transported to the landfill in
accordance with this condition of
approval.

The subdivision is not within any
identified area where contaminated
groundwater is present. Therefore there
is no required Phase 1 or Phase 2

Environmental Assessment required.

City of Folsom
Community
Development
Department

Hazards and Hazardous Materials

City of Folsom
Community
Development
Department

Betbre approval
of final maps

and/or building
permits for all
project phases

requlnng
discretionary
approval,
including all
on- and off-site
elements.

Before and

during earth
moving
activities

> Use EPA-certified SmartWay fucks for deliveries and equipment transport. Additional information
about the SmartWay Transport Partnership Program is available from ARB's Healy-Duty Vehicle

Greenhouse Gas Measure (ARB 2009c) and EPA (EPA 2009).

> Develop a plan in consultation with SMAQMD to efficiently use water for adequate dust control. This

may consist ofthe use ofnonpotable water from a local source.

In addition to SMAQMD-recommended measwes, construction activity shall comply with all applicable mles and

regulations established by SMAQMD and ARB.

Participate in and Implement an Urban and Community Forestry Program and/or Off-Site Tree
Program to Off-Set Loss of On-Site Trees. The trees on the project site contain sequestered carbon and

would continue to provide future carbon sequestration during their growing life. Fot all harvestable trees that
are subject to removal, the project applicant(s) for any particular discretionary development application shall
participate in and provide necessary tunding for urban and community forestry program (such as

the UrbanWood program managed by the Urban Forest Ecosystems Institute [Urban Forest Ecosystems

Institute 2009]) to ensure that wood with an equivalent carbon sequestration value to that of all harvestable

removed trees is harvested for an end-use that would retain its carbon sequestration (e.g., furniture building,
cabinet making). For all nonharvestable trees that are subject to removal, the project applicant(s) shall
develop and fund an off-site tree program that includes a level of tree planting that, at a minimum, increases

carbon sequestration by an amount equivalent to what would have been sequestered by the blue oak
woodland during its lifetime. This program shall be funded by the project applicant(s) of each development
phase and reviewed for comment by an independent Certified Arborist unaffiliated with the project
applicant(s) and shall be coordinated with the requirements of Mitigation Measure 3.3-5, as stated in Section
3A.3, "Biological Resources - Land." Final approval ofthe program shall be provided by the City
Components of the program may include, but not be limited to, providing urban tree canopy in the City of
Folsom, or reforestation in suitable areas outside the City. Reforestation in nafural habitat areas outside the

City of Folsom would simultaneously mitigate the loss of oak woodland habitat while planting trees within
the urban tbrest canopy would not. The California Urban Forestry Greenhouse Gas Reporting Protocol shall
be used to assess this mitigation program (CCAR 2008). All unused vegetation and tree material shall be

mulched for use in landscaping on the project site, shipped to the nearest composting facility, or shipped to a
landfill that is equipped with a methane collection system, or combusted in a biomass power plant. Tree and

vegetative material should not be bumed on- or off-site unless used as fuel in a biomass power plant.

Complete Investigations Related to the Extent to Which Soil and/or Groundwater May Have Been
Contaminated in Areas Not Covered by the Phase I and II Environmental Site Assessments and
Implement Required Measures. The project applicant(s) for any discretionary development application
shall conduct Phase I Environmental Site Assessments (where an Phase I has not been conducted), and if
necessary, Phase II Environmental Site Assessments, and/or other appropriate testing for all areas ofthe SPA

3A.AAV
(FPASP
ErR/ErS)

3A.8-2 (FPASP
f,rR/Ers)

I06
-36

106
-37

Resolution No. 10670
Page 9l of 140

Page 216

06/14/2022 Item No.9.



YesThere are no overhead powerlines

existing within this subdivision and all
proposed and future utility lines to serve

this subdivision will be placed

Citv of Folsom
Communitv

At the
submission of

and include, as necessary, analysis of soil and/or groundwater samples for the potential contamination sites

that have not yet been covered by previous investigations (as shown in Exhibit 34.8-l) before construction

activities begin in those areas. Recommendations in the Phase I and II Environmental Site Assessments to

address any contamination that is found shall be implemented before initiating ground-disturbing activities in

these areas.

The project applicant(s) shall implement the following measures before ground-disturbing activities to reduce

health hazards associated with potential exposure to hazardous substances:

> Prepare a plan that identifies any necessary remediation activities appropriate for proposed on- and off-
site uses, including excavation and removal of on-site contaminated soils, redistribution of clean fill
material in the SPA, and closure of any abandoned mine shafts. The plan shall include measures that

ensure the safe transport, use, and disposal of contaminated soil and building debris removed from the

site. In the event that contaminated goundwater is encountered during site excavation activities; the

contractor shall report the contamination to the appropriate regulatory agencies, dewater the excavated

area, and treat the contaminated groundwater to remove contaminants before discharge into the sanitary

sewer system. The project applicant(s) shall be required to comply with the plan and applicable Federal,

state, and local laws. The plan shall outline measures for specific handling and reporting procedures for
hazardous materials and disposal of hazardous materials removed from the site at an appropriate off-site

disposal facility.

> Notify the appropriate Federal, state, and local agencies ifevidence ofpreviously undiscovered soil or
groundwater contamination (e.g., stained soil, odorous groundwater) is encountered during construction

activities. Any contaminated areas shall be remediated in accordance with recommendations made by the

Sacramento County Environmental Management Department, Central Valley RWQCB, DTSC, and/or

other appropriate Federal, state, or local regulatory agencies.

> Obtain an assessment conducted by PG&E and SMUD pertaining to the contents ofany existing pole-

mounted transformers located in the SPA. The assessment shall determine whether existing on-site

electrical transformers contain PCBs and whether there are any records of spills from such equipment. If
equipment containing PCB is identified, the maintenance and/or disposal of the transformer shall be

subject to the regulations ofthe Toxic Substances Control Act under the authority of the Sacramento

County Environmental Health Department.

Mitigation for the off-site elements outside of the City of Folsom's jurisdictional boundaries must be

coordinated by the project applicant(s) of each applicable project phase with the affected oversight

agency(ies) (i.e., Sacramento County).

Prudent Avoidance and Notilication of EMF Exposure. Potential purchasers ofresidential properties near

the transmission lines shall be made aware ofthe controversy surrounding EMF exposure. The California
Department of Real Estate shall be requested to insert an appropriate notification into the applicant's final
Subdivision Public Reoort aoolication. which shall be provided to purchasers of properties within I 00 feet

3A.8{ (FPASP
ErR/ErS)

106

-38

Resolution No. 10670
Page 92 of 140

Page 217

06/14/2022 Item No.9.



Yes

underground in accordance with the
subdivision's conditions of approval

The City and its Environmental
Compliance Consultant (Helix) have

reviewed all MMRP conditions and

verified compliance with this Mitigation
Measure. Compliance was verified prior
to commencement of grading and

construction in the Summer of 2020. The
compliance table is on file with the City.

Development
Department

City of Folsom
Community
Development
Department

tentative map
applications.

Before issuance

of grading
permits for the
project water
features.

from the 100-l l5kV power line , or within 150 feet from the 220-230 kV power line . The notification would
include a discussion of the scientific studies and conclusions reached to date, acknowledge that the
notification distance is not based on specific biological evidence, but rather, the distance where background
levels may increase, and provide that, given some uncertainty in the dat4 this notification is merely provided

to allow purchasers to make an informed decision.

Prepare and Implement a Vector Control Plan in Consultation with the Sacramento-Yolo Mosquito and
Vector Control District To ensure that operation and design ofthe stormwater systerl including multiple
planned detention basins, is consistent with the recommendations of the Sacramento-Yolo Mosquito and Vector
Control District regarding mosquito control, the prqect applicant(s) of all project phases shall prepare and

implement a Vector Control Plan. This plan shall be prepared in coordination with the Sacramento-Yolo
Mosquito and Vector Control District and shall be submitted to the City for approval before issuance ofthe
grading pernut for the detenhon basins under the City's jurisdiction. For the off+ite detention basin, the plan

shall be submitted to Sacramento County for approval before issuance ofthe grading permit for the off+ite
detention basin. The plan shall incorporate specific measures deemed sufficient by the City to minimize public

health risks from mosquitoes, and as contained within the Sacramento-Yolo Mosquito and Vector Control

Distnct BMP Manual (Sacramento-Yolo Mosqurto and Vector Control Distnct 2008). The plan shall include,

but is not limited to, the following components:

> Description ofthe project.

> Description ofdetention basins and all water features and facilities that would control on-site water

levels.

> Goals ofthe plan.

> Description ofthe water management elements and features that would be implemented, including:

. BMPs that would implemented on-site;

. public education and awareness;

r sanitary methods used (e.g., disposal ofgarbage);

. mosquitocontrolmethodsused(e.g,,fluctuatingwaterlevels,biologicalagents,pesticides,larvacides,
circulating water); and

r stormwater management (consistent with Stormwater Management Plan).

> Long-term maintenance ofthe detention basins and all related facilities (e.g., specific ongoing

enforceable conditions or maintenance by a homeowner's association).

To reduce the potential for mosquitoes to reproduce in the detention basins, the project applicant($ shall
coordinate with the Sacramento-Yolo Mosquito and Vector Control District to identify and implement BMPs

based on their potential efl'ectiveness for SPA conditions. Potential BMPs could include, but are not limited
to, the following:

3A.8-7 (FPASP
EIR/EIS)

106

-39

Resolution No. 10670
Page 93 of 140

Page 218

06/14/2022 Item No.9.



YesThe Owner/applicant has received a

NPDES permit from the State Regional

Water Quality Control Board
(SRWQCB). The NDES Permit
requires the implementation of BMP's,
monitoring and reporting for stormwater
runoff. The NPDES Permit includes a

Storm Water Pollution Prevention Plan
(SWPPP). which outlines monitoring
standards, frequency and baseline
modeling. The Owner/applicant has

submitted monthly reports to the City
and SRWQCB,

Ilydrology and Water Quality
City of Folsom
Community
Development
Department

Submittal of the
State

Construction
General Permit
NOI and

SWPPP (where

applicable) and

development
and submittal of
any other
locally required
plans and

specifications
before the
issuance of
grading permits
for all on-site
project phases

> buitd shoreline perimeters as steep and uniform as practicable to discourage dense plant growth;

> perform routine maintenance to reduce emergent plant densities to facilitate the ability ofmosquito

predators (i.e,, fish) to move tlroughout vegetated area;

> design distribution piping and containment basins with adequate slopes to drain fully and prevent

standing water. The design slope should take into consideration buildup of sediment between

maintenance periods. Compaction during grading may also be needed to avoid slumping and settling;

> coordinate cleaning of catch basins, drop inlets, or storm drains with mosquito treatment operations;

> entbrce the prompt removal ofsilt screens installed during construction when no longer needed to

protect water quality;

> if the sump, vault, or basin is sealed against mosquitoes, with the exception of the inlet and outlet,

submerge the inlet and outlet completely to reduce the available surface area of water for mosquito egg-

laying (female mosquitoes can fly through pipes); and

> design structures with the appropriate pumping, piping, valves, or other necessary equipment to allow tbr

easy dewaterrng of the unit if necessary (Sacramento Yolo Mosquito and Vector Control District 2008).

The project applicant(s) of the project phase containing the off-site detention basin shall coordinate

mitigation for the off-site with the affected oversight agency (i.e., Sacramento County).

Acquire Appropriate Regulatory Permits and Prepare and Implement SWPPP and BMPs. Prior to the

issuance of grading permits, the project applicant($ of all projects disturbing one or more acres (including
phased construcfion of smaller areas which are part of a larger project) shall obtain coverage under the

SWRCB's NPDES stormwater permit for general construction activity (Order 2009-0009-DWQ), including
preparation and submittal of a projeclspecitic SWPPP at the time the NOI is tlled, The project applicant(s)

shall also prepare and submit any other necessary erosion and sediment control and engineenng plans and

specifications for pollution prevention and control to Sacramento County, City of Folsom, El Dorado County
(for the off-site roadways into El Dorado Hills under the Proposed Project Alternative). The SWPPP and

other appropriate plans shall identifu and specify:

> the use ofan effective combination ofrobust erosion and sediment control BMPs and construction

techniques accepted by the local jurisdictions for use in the project area at the time of construction, that

shall reduce the potential for runoff and the release, mobilization, and exposure of pollutants, including
legacy sources of mercury from project-related construction sites. These may include but would not be

limited to temporary erosion control and soil stabilization measures, sedimentation ponds, inlet
protection, perforated riser pipes, check dams, and silt fences

> the implementation of approved local plans, non-stormwater management controls, permanent post-

construction BMPs, and inspection and maintenance responsibilities;

3A.9-1(FPASP
EIR/EIS)

106
-40

ResolutionNo. 10670
Page 94 of 140

Page 219

06/14/2022 Item No.9.



YesThe Owner/applicant has received a

NPDES permit from the State Regional
Water Quality Control Board
(SRWQCB). The NDES Permit

City of Folsom
Public Works
Department

and off*ite
elements and

implementation
throughout
project
construction-

Before approval
of grading plans
and building

> the pollutants that are likely to be used during construction that could be present in stormwater drainage

and nonstormwater discharges, including fuels, lubricants, and other types of materials used for
equipment operation;

> spill prevention and contingency measures, including measures to prevent or clean up spills ofhazardous

waste and of hazardous materials used for equipment operation, and emergency procedures for
responding to spills;

> personnel training requirements and procedures that shall be used to ensure that workers are aware of
permit requirements and proper installation methods for BMPs specified in the SWPPP; and

> the appropriate personnel responsible for supervisory duties related to implementation ofthe SWPPP.

> Where applicable, BMPs identified in the SWPPP shall be in place throughout all site work and

constructior/demolition activities and shall be used in all subsequent site development activities. BMPs
may include, but are not limited to, such measures as those listed below.

> Implementing temporary erosion and sediment control measures in disturbed areas to minimize
discharge of sediment into nearby drainage conveyances, in compliance with state and local standards in

effect at the time of construction. These measures may include silt fences, staked straw bales or wattles,

sediment/silt basins and traps, geofabric, sandbag dikes, and temporary vegetation.

> Establishing permanent vegetative cover to reduce erosion in areas disturbed by construction by slowing

runoff velocities, trapping sediment, and enhancing filhation and transpiration.

> Using drainage swales, ditches, and earth dikes to control erosion and runoffby conveying surface

runoff down sloping land, intercepting and diverting runoff to a watercourse or channel, preventing sheet

flow over sloped surfaces, preventing runoff accumulation at the base of a grade, and avoiding flood
damage along roadways and facility infrastructure.

A copy of the approved SWPPP shall be maintained and available at all times on the construction site

For those areas that would be disturbed as part of the U.S. 50 interchange improvements, Caltrans shall
coordinate with the development and implementation of the overall project SWPPP, or develop and

implement its own SWPPP specific to the interchange improvements, to ensure that water quality
degradation would be avoided or minimized to the maximum extent practicable.

Mitigation for the off-site elements outside of the City of Folsom's jurisdictional boundaries must be

coordinated by the project applicant(s) of each applicable project phase with the affected oversight
agency(ies) (i.e., EI Dorado and/or Sacramento Counties, or Caltrans).

Prepare and Submit Final Drainage Plans and Implement Requirements Contained in Those Plans,

Before the approval of grading plans and building permits, the project applicant($ of all project phases shall
submit final drainage plans to the City, and to El Dorado County for the off+ite roadway connections into El
Dorado Hills- demonstratins that ofl'-site uostream runoffwould be anorooriatelv conveved throush the SPA.

3A.9-2 (FPASP
EIR/EIS)

106

-41

Resolution No. 10670
Page 95 of I 40

Page 220

06/14/2022 Item No.9.



requires the implementation of BMP's,
monitoring and reporting for stormwater
runoff. The NPDES Permit includes a

Storm Water Pollution Prevention Plan

(SWPPP), which outlines monitorrng

standards, frequency and baseline
modeling. The Owner/applicant has

submitted monthly reports to the City
and SRWQCB.

permits of all
project phases.

and that project-related on+ite runoff would be appropriately contained in detention basins or managed with
through other improvements (e.g., source controls, biotechnical stream stabilization) to reduce flooding and

hydromodfication impacts,

The plans shall include, but not be limited to, the following items:

> an accurate calculation of pre-project and post-project runoff scenarios, obtained using appropriate

engineering methods, that accurately evaluates potential changes 1o runoff, including increased surface

runoff;

> runoffcalculations for the l0-year and 100-year (0.01 AEP) storm events (and other, smaller storm

events as required) shall be performed and the trunk drainage pipeline sizes confirmed based on

alignments and detention facility locations finalized in the design phase;

> a description ofthe proposed maintenance program forthe on-site drainage system;

> prqecfspecific standards for installing drainage systems;

> City and El Dorado County flood control design requirements and measures designed to comply with
them;

implementation of stormwater management BMPs that avoid increases in the erosive force of flows beyond a

specific range of conditions needed to limit hydromodification and maintain current stream geomorphology.

These BMPs will be designed and constructed in accordance with the forthcoming SSQP Hydromodification
Management Plan (to be adopted by the RWQCB) and may

include, but are not limited to, the following:

> use of Low Impact Development (LID) techniques to limit increase s in stormwater runoff at the point of
origination (these may include, but are not limited to: surface swales; replacement ofconventional
impervious surfaces with pervious surfaces [e.g., porous pavement]; impervious surfaces disconnection;

and trees planted to intercept stormwater);

> enlarged detention basins to minimize flow changes and changes to flow duration characteristics;

> bioengineered stream stabilization to minimize bank erosion, utilizing vegetative and rock $abilization,
and inset floodplain restoration features that provide for enhancement of riparian habitat and

maintenance of natural hydrologic and channel to floodplain interactions;

> minimize slope differences between any stormwater or detention facility outfall channel with the existing
receiving channel gradient to reduce flow velocity; and

> minimize to the extent possible detention basin, bridge embankment, and other encroachments into the

channel and floodplain conidor, and utilize open bottom box culverts to allow sediment passage on

smaller drainage courses.

The final drainage plan shall demonstrate to the satisfaction ofthe City ofFolsom Community Development
and Public Works Deoartments and E[ Dorado Countv DeDartment ofTransportation that 100-vear (0.01

Resolution No. 1 0670
Page 96 of 140

Page 221

06/14/2022 Item No.9.



YesThe Owner/applicant has received a

NPDES permit from the State Regional
Water Quality Control Board
(SRWQCB) The NDES Permit
requires the implementation of BMP's,
monitoring and reporting for stormwater
runoff. The NPDES Permit includes a

Storm Water Pollution Prevention PIan
(SWPPP), which outlines monitoring
standards, frequency and baseline
modeling. The Owner/applicant has

submitted monthly reports to the City
and SRWQCB.

The owner/applicant has prepared storm
drain design reports and provided storm
drain calculations for all of the proposed

storm drainage features and

detention/water quality and

hydromoditication basins necessary to
serve this subdivision. These reports
have been reviewed and approved by the
Community Development and Public
Works Departments.

City of Folsom
Community
Development
Department and

Public Works
Department

Prepare plans

before the

issuance of
grading permits
for all project
phases and off-
site elements
and

implementation
throughout
prqect
construction.

AEP) flood flows would be appropriately channeled and contained, such that the risk to people or damage to
structures within or down gradient of the SPA would not occur, and that hydromodification would not be

increased from pre-development levels such that existing stream geomorphology would be changed (the

range of conditions should be calculated for each receiving water if feasible, or a conservative estimate
should be used, e.g., an Ep of 1 +10% or other as approved by the Sacramento Stormwater Qualrty
Partnership and/or City of Folsom Public Works Department).

Mitigation for the off-site elements outside of the City of Folsom's jurisdictional boundaries must be

coordinated by the project applicant(s) of each applicable project phase with El Dorado County.

Develop and Implement a BMP and Water Quality Maintenance Plan. Befbre approval of the gradrng
permits for any development project requiring a subdivision map, a detailed BMP and water quality
maintenance plan shall be prepared by a qualified engineer retained by the project applicant(s) the
development project. Drafts of the plan shall be submitted to the City of Folsom and El Dorado County for
the off*ite roadway connections into El Dorado Hills, for review and approval concwrently with
development of tentative subdivision maps for all project phases. The plan shall finalize the water quality
improvements and further detail the structural and nonstructural BMPs proposed for the project. The plan

shall include the elements described below.

> A quantitative hydrologic and water quality analysis ofproposed conditions incorporating the proposed

drainage desi gn features.

> Predevelopment and post development calculations demonstrating that the proposed water quality BMPs

meet or exceed requirements established by the City of Folsom and including details regarding the size,

geometry, and functional timing of storage and release pursuant to the "'Stormwater Quality Design

Manual for Sacramento and South Placer Regions" ([SSQP 2007b] per NPDES Permit No. CAS082597

WDR Order No. R5-2008-0142, page 46) and El Dorado County's NPDES SWMP (County of El
Dorado 2004).

> Source control programs to control water quality pollutants on the SPA, which may include but are

limited to recycling, street sweeping, siorm drain cleaning, household hazardous waste collection, waste

minimization, prevention of spills and illegal dumping, and effective management of public trash

collection areas.

> A pond management component for the proposed basins that shall include management and maintenance

requirements for the design features and BMPs, and responsible parties for maintenance and funding.

> LID control measures shall be integrated into the BMP and water quality maintenance plan. These may

include, but are not limited to;

. surface swales;

. replacementofconventionalimpervioussurfaceswithpervioussurfaces(e.g.,porouspavement);

. impervious surfaces disconnection; and

3A.9-3 (FPASP
ErnvErs)

106
-42

Resolution No. 10670
Page 97 of 140

Page 222

06/14/2022 Item No.9.



Yes

Yes

There are no existing or proposed dams

upstream from this subdivision and

therefore there is no requirement to
perform the analysis required in this
condition ofapproval.

The owner/applicant has implemented
noise reducing construction practices

included as part of the required Noise
Control Plan. Compliance with these

requirements has been monitored
through construction inspection.

City of Folsom
Community
Development
Department

Noise and Vibration

City of Folsom
Community
Development
Department

Prior to
submittal to the

City oftentative
maps or
improvement
plans.

Before and

during
construction
activities on the

SPA and within
El Dorado
Hills.

. trees planted to intercept stormwater.

New stormwater facilities shall be placed along the nafural drainage courses within the SPA to the extent
practicable so as to mimic the natural drainage patterns. The reduction in runoff as a result ofthe LiD
configurations shall be quantified based on the runoff reduction credit system methodology described in
"Stormwater Quality Design Manual for the Sacramento and South Placer Regions, Chapter 5 and Appendix
D4" (SSQP 2007b) and proposed detention basins and other water quality BMPs shall be sized to handle

these runoffvolumes.

For those areas that would be disturbed as part ofthe U.S. 50 interchange improvements, it is anticipated that

Caltrans would coordinate with the development and implementation of the overall project SWPPP, or
develop and implement its own SWPPP specific to the interchange improvements, to ensure that water
quality degradation would be avoided or minimized to the maximum extent practicable.

Mitigation for the off-site elements outside of the City of Fotsom's jurisdictional boundaries must be

coordinated by the project applicant(s) of each applicable prqect phase with El Dorado County and Caltrans.

Inspect and Evaluate Existing Dams Within and Upstream of the Project Site and Make
Improvements if Necessary. Prior to submittal to the City of tentative maps or improvement plans the
project applicant(s) of all project phases shall perform conduct studies to determine the extent of inundation

in the case of dam failure. If the sfudies determine potential exposure of people or structures to a significant
risk of flooding as a result of the failure of a dam, the applicants(s) shall implement of any feasible

recommendations provided in that study, potentially through drainage improvements, subject to the approval
of the City of Folsom Public Works Department.

Implement Noise-Reducing Construction Practices, Prepare and Implement a Noise Control Plan, and
Monitor and Record Construction Noise near Sensitive Receptors. To reduce impacts associated with
noise generated during project related construction activities, the prolect applicant(s) and their primary
contractors for engineering design and construction of all project phases shall ensure that the following
requirements are implemented at each work site in any year of project construction to avoid and minimize
construction noise effects on sensitive receptors. The project applicant(s) and primary construction
contractor(s) shall employ noise-reducing construction practices. Measures that shall be used to limit noise

shall include the measures listed below:

> Noise-generating construction operations shall be limited to the hours between 7 a.m. and 7 p.m.

Monday through Friday, and between 8 a.m. and 6 p.m. on Saturdays and Sundays.

> All construction equipment and equipment staging areas shall be located as far as possible from nearby
noise-sensitive land uses.

3A.9-4 (FPASP
EIR/0IS)

3A.ll-l
(FPASP
ErR/ErS)

106

-43

106
-44

Resolution No. 10670
Page 98 of 140

Page 223

06/14/2022 Item No.9.



YesBlasting has been necessary throughout
the course of grading and construction in
this subdivision. The blasting has not
been within 2000 feet of any sensitive
receDtor. The blastine contractor has

City of Folsom
Community
Development
Department

Before and

during
bulldozing and

blasting
activities on the

> All construction equipment shall be properly maintained and equipped with norse-reduction intake and

exhaust mufflers and engine shrouds, in accordance with manufacfurers' recommendations. Equipment

engine sh,rouds shall be closed during equipment operation.

> All motorized construction equipment shall be shut down when not in use to prevent idling.

> Individual operations and techniques shall be replaced with quieter procedures (e.g., using welding

instead of nveting, mixing concrete offsite instead of on+ite).

> Noise-reducing enclosures shall be used around stationary noise-generating equipment (e.g.,

compressors and generators) as planned phases are built out and future noise sensitive receptors are

located within close proximity to future construction activities.

> Written notification ofconstruction activities shall be provided to all noise-sensitive receptors located

within 850 feet of construction activities. Nofification shall include anticipated dates and hours during
which construction activities are anticipated to occur and contact information, including a daytime

telephone number, for the project representative to be contacted in the event that noise levels are deemed

excessive. Recommendations to assist noise-sensitive land uses in reducing interior noise levels (e.g.,

closing windows and doors) shall also be included in the notification,

> To the extent feasible, acoustic baniers (e.g., lead curtains, sound barriers) shall be constructed to reduce

construction-generated noise levels at affected noise-sensitive land uses. The barriers shall be designed

to obstruct the line of sight between the noise-sensitive land use and on-site construction equipment.

When installed properly, acoustic barriers can reduce constmction noise levels by approximately 8-10
dB (EPA r97r).

> When future noise sensitive uses are within close proximity to prolonged construction noise, noise-

attenuating buffers such as structures, truck trailers, or soil piles shall be located between noise sources

and future residences to shield sensitive receptors liom construction noise.

> The primary contractor shall prepare and implement a construction noise management plan. This plan

shall identifu specific measures to ensure compliance with the noise control measures specified above.

The noise control plan shall be submitted to the City of Folsom before any noise-generating construction

activity begins. Construction shall not commence until the construction noise management plan is

approved by the City of Folsom. Mitigation for the two off*ite roadway connections into El Dorado

County must be coordinated by the project applicant($ of the applicable project phase with El Dorado

County, since the roadway exlensions are outside ofthe City ofFolsom'sjurisdictional boundaries.

Implement Measures to Prevent Exposure of Sensitive Receptors to Groundborne Noise or Vibration
from Project Generated Construction Activities.

> To the extent feasible, blasting activities shall nol be conducted within 275 feet ofexisting or fuhre
sensitive receptors.

3A.ll-3
(FPASP
ErR/ErS)

t06
-45

Resolution No. 10670
Page 99 of 140

Page 224

06/14/2022 Item No.9.



Yes

obtained a blasting permit fiom the City
and the Community Development

Department has verified compliance with
the permit tbrough construction
inspection,

The owner/applicant has implemented
noise reducing construction practices

included as part of the required Noise

Control Plan. Compliance with these

requirements has been monitored
through construction inspection.

There are no sensitive receptors within
600 feet of any on-going construction
and grading activity in the subdivision.

City ofFolsom
Community
Development
Department

SPA and within
El Dorado Hills
and the County
of Sacramento

Before
submittal of
improvement
plans for each
prqect phase,

and during
project
operations for
testing of
emergency
generators.

> To the extent feasible, bulldozing activities shall not be conducted within 50 feet ofexisting or futwe
sensitive receptors.

> All blasting shall be performed by a blast contractor and blasting personnel licensed to operate in the

State of Califomia.

> A blasting plan, including estimates ofvibration levels at the residence closest to the blast, shall be

submitted to the enforcement agency for review and approval prior to the commencement ofthe first

blast.

> Each blast shall be monitored and documented for groundboume noise and vibration levels at the nearest

sensitive land use and associated recorded submitted to the enforcement agency.

Implement Measures to Reduce Noise from Project-Generated Stationary Sources,

The project applicant(s) for any particular discretionary development project shall implement the following
measures to reduce the effect of noise levels generated by on-site stationary noise sources that would be

located within 600 feet of any noise-sensitrve receptor:

> Routine testing and preventive maintenance ofemergency electrical generators shall be conducted

during the less sensitive daytime hours (i.e., 7:00 a.m. to 6:00 p.m.). All electrical generators shall be

equipped with noise control (e.g., muffler) devices in accordance with manufacturers' specifications.

> External mechanical equipment associated with buildings shall incorporate features designed to reduce

noise emissions below the stationary noise source criteria. These features may include, but are not

limited to, locating generators within equipment rooms or enclosures that incorporate noise-reduction

features, such as acoustical louvers, and exhaust and intake silencers. Equipment enclosures shall be

oriented so that major openings (i.e., intake louvers, exhaust) are directed away from nearby noise-

sensitive receptors.

> Parking lots shall be located and designed so that noise emissions do not exceed the stationary noise

source criteria established in this analysis (i.e., 50 dB for 30 minutes in every hour during the daytime [7
a,m. to l0 p.m.l and less than 45 dB for 30 minutes of every hour during the night time [10 p.m. to 7
a.m l). Reduction of parking lot noise can be achieved by locating parking lots as far away as feasible

from noise sensitive land uses, or using buildings and topographic features to provide acoustic shielding

fbr noise-sensitive land uses.

> Loading docks shall be located and designed so that noise emissions do not exceed the stationary norse

source criteria established in this analysis (i.e., 50 dB for 30 minutes in every hour during the daytime [7
a.m. to l0 p m.l and less than 45 dB for 30 minutes of every hour during the night time [0 p.m. to 7
a.m.]). Reduction of loading dock noise can be achieved by locating loading docks as far away as

possible from noise sensitive land uses, constructing noise barriers between loading docks and noise-

3A.11-s
(FPASP
ErR/ErS)

106

-6

Resolution No. 10670
Page 1 00 of 140

Page 225

06/14/2022 Item No.9.



Condition
will be

satisfied
prior to
issuance of
aCofOin
the
appropriate
phase of
developme
nt of the
project.

will be

satisfied
prior to
issuance of
aCofOin
the
appropriate
phase of
developme
nt of the
project.

The landscape and streetscape plans for
the subdivision include the required
masonry walls in the required height and

required locations. The Community

Development Departrnent will monitor
compliance during construction and

veri$ that the sound walls are complete
prior to issuance of a Certificate of
Occupancy in the subdivision.

The Community Development
Department will monitor compliance

during construction and verifu that the

sound walls are complete prior to
issuance ofa Certificate ofOccupancy tn

the subdivision.

City of Folsom
Community
Development
Department

City of Folsom
Community
Development
Department

Prior to
building
0ccupancy

Prior to
building
0ccupancy

sensitive land uses, or using buildings and topographic features to provide acoustic shielding for notse-

sensitive land uses.

Exterior Traffic Noise Reduction Measures

Prior to building occupancy, the project applicant shall design and construct noise barriers, as detailed below,

to reduce haffic noise levels below the City of Folsom exterior criteria of 60 dB Ldn.

> 6-foot tall solid noise barriers, relative to backyard elevations, shall be constructed along all property

boundaries adjacent to Ea$ Bidwell Street, Mangini Parkway, and Oak Avenue Parkway.

> For the proposed Traditional Subdivisions portion of the project, a 7-foot tall solid noise banier, relative

to backyard elevations, shall be constructed along all property boundaries adjacent to White Rock Road.

> For the proposed Regency at Folsom Ranch Phase I and Phase 2 portions of the project, an 8-foot tall

solid noise banier, relative to baclryard elevations, shall be constructed along all property boundaries

adjacent to White Rock Road.

Suitable materials tbr the traific noise baniers include masonry and precast concrete panels. The overall

banier height may be achieved by utilizing a barrier and earthen berm combination. Other materials may be

acceptable but shall be reviewed by an acoustical consultant prior to use.

Barrier height requirements are based on a property boundary setback of 117-122 feetfromthe ultimate

alignment of White Rock Road under the approved Capital Southeast Connector project. If 90 days prior to

pulling building permits for the Toll Brothers site, it is determined that there is no evidence that the White

Rock Road improvements are funded and moving forward, as described under the approved Capital

Southeast Connector projec! the project applicant shall obtain the services of a noise consultant to reconduct

a site-specific acoustical analysis based on the actual property boundary setback to determine the appropriate

noise reduction measures to reduce traffic noise levels in accordance with adopted City of Folsom noise

standards.

Interior Tralfic Noise Reduction Measures

Prior to building occupancy, the project applicant shall ensure the following construction design features

have been implemented.

> For the first-row ofhomes located along White Rock Road, the west-, south-, and east-facing upper-floor

buitding facades shall maintain minimum window assembly STC ratings of 34.

> Mechanical ventilation (air conditioning) shall be provided for all residences in this development to

allow the occupants to close doors and windows as desired to achieve compliance with the applicable

interior noise level criteria.

4.lt-l
(Addendum)

4.13-2
(Addendum)

r06
-47

106
-48

Resolution No. 10670

Page l0l of 140

Page 226

06/14/2022 Item No.9.



Yes

Condition
will be

satisfied
prior to
issuance of
a building
permit.

The Community Development
Department has reviewed and
approved all traffrc conhol plans
required for the construction of both
off-site and on-site improvements
for this subdivision to verifr
compliance with City ordinances and
to minimize delays to the travelling
public.

There are no off-site elements outside
the City limits for this subdivision

The City Fire Department has reviewed
and approved all proposed improvements
for the subdivision. The City FD will
verifi adequate fire flow Prior to
building permit issuance in the

subdivision.

Public Services

City of Folsom
Public Works
Department

City of Folsom
Fire
Department,
City of Folsom
Community
Development
Department

Before the

approval of all
relevant plans

and/or permits

and during
construction of
all project
phases.

Before issuance

of building
permits and

issuance of
occupancy
permits or final
inspections for
all project
phases.

Prepare and Implement a Construction Traffic Control Pldn. The project applicant(s) of all project
phases shall prepare and implement traffic control plans for construction activities that may affect road
rights-of-way. The traffic control plans must follow any applicable standards ofthe agency responsible for
the affected roadway and must be approved and signed by a professional engineer. Measures typically used in
traffic control plans include advertising of planned lane closures, warning signage, a flag person to direct
traffic flows when needed, and methods to ensure continued access by emergency vehicles. During project
construction, access to existing land uses sha[[ be maintained at all times, with detours used as necessary

during road closures. Traffic control plans shall be submitted to the appropriate City or County department or
the California Department ofTransportation (Caltrans) for review and approval before the approval of all
project plans or permits, tbr all project phases where implementation may cause impacts on traffic.

Mitigation for the off-site elements outside of the City of Folsom's jurisdictional boundaries must be

coordinated by the project applicant(s) of each applicable project phase with the affected oversight
agency(ies) (i.e., El Dorado and/or Sacramento Counties and Caltrans).

Incorporate California Fire Code; City of Folsom Fire Code Requirementsl and EDHf,'I)
Requirements, if Necessary into Project Design and Submit Project Design to the City of Folsom Fire
Department for Review and Approval. To reduce impacts related to the provision of new fire services, the
project applicant(s) of all project phases shall do the following, as described below

L Incorporate into project desrgns fire flow requirements based on the California Fire Code, Folsom Fire
Code (City of Folsom Municipal Code Title 8, Chapter 8.36), and other applicable requirements based on the
City ofFolsom Fire Department fire prevention standards.

Improvement plans showing the incorporation automatic sprinkler systems, the availability of adequate fire
floq and the locations of hydrants shall be submitted to the City of Folsom Fire Department for review and

approval. In addition, approved plans showing access design shall be provided to the City of Folsom Fire
Department as described by Zoning Code Section 17.57.080 ("Vehicular Access Requirements"). These
plans shall describe access-road length, dimensions, and finished surfaces for firefighting equipment. The
installation of security gates across a fire apparatus access road shall be approved by the City of Folsom Fire
Department. The design and operation of gates and barricades shall be in accordance with the Sacramento

County Emergency Access Gates and Baniers Standard, as required by the City of Folsom Fire Code.

2. Submit a Fire Systems New Buildings, Additions, and Alterations Document Submittal List to the City of
Folsom Community Development Department Building Division for review and approval before the issuance

of building permits.

In addition to the above measures, the project applicant(s) ofall project phases shall incorporate the
provisions described below for the portion ofthe SPA within the EDHFD service area, if it is determined
through City/El Dorado County negotiations that EDHFD would serve the I 78-acre portion of the SPA.

34.14-t
(FPASP
ErR/ErS)

34,.14-2
(FPASP
EIR/ErS)

106
-49

106

-50

Resolution No. 10670
Page 102 of 140

Page 227

06/14/2022 Item No.9.



Condition
will be

satisfied
prior to
issuance of
a building
permit.

Condition
will be

satrsfied
prior to
issuance of
a building
permit.

The City Fire Department has revtewed
and approved all proposed improvements
for the subdivision. The City FD will
verifu adequate fire flow prior to
building permit issuance in the

subdivision.

This subdivision will pay its fair share of
the following improvements with the
payment of Specific Plan Infrastructure
Fees (SPIF), City Traffic Impact Fees

and Sacramento County Wide
Transportation fees collected prior to

building permit issuance in this

subdivision.

City of Folsom
Fire
Department,
City of Folsom
Community
Development
Department

City of Folsom
Community
Development
Department

Before issuance

of building
permits and

issuance of
occupancy
permits or tinal
inspections for
all project
phases.

A phasing

analysis shall be
performed prior
to approval of
the first
subdivision
map to
determine when
the
improvement
should be

implemented

3. Incorporate into project designs applicable requirements based on the EDHFD fire prevention standards.

For commercial development, improvement plans showing roadways, land splits, buildings, fire sprinkler

systems, fire alarm systems, and other commercial building improvements shall be submitted to the EDHFD
for review and approval. For residential development, imprbvement plans showing property lines and

adjacent streets or roads; total acreage or square footage of the parcel; the footprint of all structures, driveway

plan views describing width, lengh, tumouts, turnarounds, radiuses, and surfaces; and driveway profile

views showing the percent grade from the access road to the structure and vertical clearance shall be

submitted to the EDHFD for review and approval.

4. Submit a Fire Prevention Plan Checklist to the EDHFD for review and approval before the issuance of
building permits. In addition, residential development requiring automation fire sprinklers shall submit

sprinkler design sheet(s) and hydraulic calculations from a California State Licensed C-l 6 Contractor.

The City shall not authorize the occupancy of any structures until the project applicant($ have obtained a

Certificate of Occupancy from the City of Folsom Community Development Department verifying that all

fire prevention items have been addressed on-site to the satisfaction of the City of Folsom Fire Department

and/or the EDHFD for the I 78-acre area ofthe SPA within the EDHFD service area.

Incorporate Fire Flow Requirements into Project Designs. The project applicant(s) of all project phases

shall incorporate into their project designs fire flow requirements based on the Califomia Fire Code, Folsom

Fire Code, and/or EDHFD for those areas ofthe SPA wrthin the EDHFD service area and shall verifu to City

of Folsom Fire Department that adequate water flow is

available, prior to approval of improvement plans and issuance of occupancy permits or final inspections for
all prqect phases.

The Applicant Shall Pay a Fair Share to Fund the Construction of Improvements to the Folsom
Boulevard/Blue Ravine Road Intersection (Intersection l), To ensure that the Folsom Boulevard/Blue

Ravine Road intersection operates at an acceptable LOS, the eastbound approach must be reconfigured to
consist oftwo left-turn lanes, one through lane, and one right-h.rn lane, The applicant shall pay its

proportionate share of funding of improvements, as may be determined by a nexus study or other appropriate

and reliable mechanism paid for by applicant, to reduce the impacts to the Folsom Boulevard/Blue Ravine

Road intersection (Intersection I ).

3,{.14-3
(FPASP
ErR/ErS)

3A.15-la
(FPASP
EIR/ErS)

106
-51

r06
-(t

Resolution No. 10670
Page 103 of 140

Page 228

06/14/2022 Item No.9.



Condition
will be

satisfied
prior to
issuance of
a building
permit.

Condition
will be

satisfied
prior to
issuance of
a building
permit.

Condition
will be
satisfied
prior to
issuance of
a building
permit.

This subdivision will pay its fair share of
the following improvements with the
payment of Specific Plan Infrastructure
Fees (SPIF), City Traffic Impact Fees

and Sacramento County Wide
Transportation fees collected prior to
building permit issuance in this
subdivision.

This subdivision will pay its fair share of
the following improvements with the
payment of Specific Plan Infrastructure
Fees (SPIF), City Traffic Impact Fees

and Sacramento County Wide
Transportation fees collected prior to
building permit issuance in this
subdivision.

This subdivision will pay its fair share of
the fbllowing improvements with the
payment of Specific Plan Infrastructure
Fees (SPIF), City Traffic Impact Fees

and Sacramento County Wide
Transportation fees collecled prior to

City of Folsom
Community
Development
Department

City of Folsom
Community
Development
Department

City of Folsom
Community
Development
Department

and when fair
share funding
should be paid.

A phasing

analysis shall be
performed prior
to approval of
the first
subdivision
map to
determine when
the
improvement
should be

implemented
and when farr
share funding
should be paid.

A phasing

analysis shall be
performed prior
to approval of
the first
subdivision
map to
determine when
the
improvement
should be

implemented.

A phasing
analysis shall be
performed prior
to approval of
the first
subdivision
map to

The Applicant Shall Pay a Fair Share to Fund the Construction of Improvements at the Sibley
Street/Blue Ravine Road Intersection (Intersection 2), To ensure that the Sibley StreeVBlue Ravine Road
intersection operates at an acceptable LOS, the northbound approach must be reconfigured to consist of two
lell-turn lanes, trvo through lanes, and one right-turn lane. The applicant shall pay its proportionate share of
funding of improvements, as may be determined by a nexus sfudy or other appropriate and reliable
mechanism paid for by applicant, to reduce the impacts to the Sibley StreeVBlue Ravine Road intersection
(Intersection 2).

The Applicant Shall Fund and Construct Improvements to the Scott Road (West)Ailhite Rock Road
Intersection (Intersection 28). To ensure that the Scott Road (West)/White Rock Road intersection operates

at an acceptable LOS, a traffic signal must be installed,

Fund and Construct Improvements to the Hillside Drive/Easton Valley Parkrvay Intersection

(Intersection 41), To ensure that the Hillside Drive/Easton Valley Parkway intersection operates at an

acceptable LOS, the eastbound approach must be reconfigured to consist of one dedicated left tum lane and

two through lanes, and the westbound approach must be reconfigured to consist of hvo through lanes and one

dedicated right-turn lane. The applicant shall fund and construct these improvements.

34.15-1b

(FPASP
ErR/ErS)

3A.15-1c
(FPASP
ErR/ErS)

3A.15-le

(FPASP
ErR/ErS)

106

-53

106

-54

106
-55

Resolution No. 10670
Page I 04 of 140

Page 229

06/14/2022 Item No.9.



Condrtion
will be

satisfied
prior to
issuance of
a building
permit.

Condition
will be

satisfied
prior to
issuance of
a building
permit.

Condition
will be

satisfied
prior to
issuance of
a building
permit.

building permit issuance in this

subdivision.

This subdivision will pay its fair share of
the following improvements with the
payment of Specific Plan Infrastructure
Fees (SPIF), City Traffic Impact Fees

and Sacramento County Wide
Transportation fees collected prior to
building permit issuance in this

subdivision.

This subdivision will pay its fair share of
the following improvements with the

payment of Specific Plan Infrastructure
Fees (SPIF), City Traffic Impact Fees

and Sacramento County Wide
Transportation fees collected prior to
building permit issuance in this
subdivision.

This subdivision will pay its fair share of
the following improvements with the
payment of Specific Plan Infrastructure
Fees (SPIF), City Traffic Impact Fees

and Sacramento County Wide
Transportation fees collected prior to
building permit issuance in this
subdivision.

City of Folsom
Community
Development
Department

Sacramento

County Public
Works
Department and

Caltrans

Sacramento
County Public
Works
Department

determine when
the
improvement
should be

implemented

A phasing

analysis shall be
performed prior
to approval of
the first
subdivision
map to
determine when
the
improvement
should be

implemented,

A phasing

analysis shall be

performed prior
to approval of
the first
subdivision
map to
dgtermine when
the

improvement
should be

implemented.

Before project

build out.

Design ofthe
White Rock
Road widening
to four lanes,

from Grant Line
Road to Prairie

Fund and Construct Improvemetrts t0 the Oak Avenue Parkway/l\{iddle Road Intersection

(Intersection 44). To ensure that the Oak Avenue Parkway,Middle Road intersection operates at an

acceptable LOS, control all movements with a stop sign. The applicant shall fund and construct these

improvements.

Participate in Fair Share Funding of Improvements to Reduce Impacts to the Hazel Avenue/Folsom
Boulevard Intersection (Sacramento County Intersection 2). To ensure that the Hazel Avenue/Folsom

Boulevard intersection operates at an acceptable LOS, this intersection must be grade separated including
"jug handle" ramps. No at grade improvement is feasible. Grade separating and extended (south) Hazel

Avenue with improvements to the U.S. 50/Hazel Avenue interchange is a mitigation measure for the

approved Easton-Glenbrough Specific Plan development project. The applicant shall pay its proportionate

share of funding of improvements to the agency responsible for improvements, based on a program

established by that agency to reduce the impacts to the Hazel Avenue/Folsom Boulevard intersection
(Sacramento County Intersection 2).

Participate in Fair Share Funding oflmprovements to Reduce Impacts on the Grant Line RoadAilhite
Rock Road Intersection and to White Rock Road widening between the Rancho Cordova City limit to
Prairie City Road (Sacramento County Intersection 3). Improvements must be made to ensure that the

Grant Line Road/White Rock Road intersection operates at an acceptable LOS. The currently County
proposed White Rock Road widening project will widen and realign Whrte Rock Road from the Rancho

Cordova City limit to the El Dorado County line (this analysis assumes that the Proposed Project and build
altematives will widen White Rock Road to five lanes from Prairie City road to the El Dorado County Line).
This widening includes improvements to the Grant Line Road intersection and realigning White Rock Road

3A.15-lf
(FPASP
ErR/ErS)

3A.15-lh

(FPASP
ErR/ErS)

3A.15-li
(FPASP
f,rR/DIS)

r06
-5b

106

-57

106
-58

Resolution No. 10670

Page 105 of 140

Page 230

06/14/2022 Item No.9.



Condition
will be

satist'ied
prior to
issuance of
a building
permit.

This subdivision will pay its fair share of
the following improvements with the

payment of Specific Plan Inliastructure
Fees (SPIF), City Traffic Impact Fees

and Sacramento County Wide
Transportation fees collected prior to
building permit issuance in this
subdivision.

Sacramento

County Public
Works
Department

City Road, wrth
Intersection
improvements
has begun, and

because this
widening
project is
environmentally
cleared and

fully funded,
it's construction
is expected to
be complete
before the first
phase of the

Proposed

Project or
alternative is

built.

Before project

build out
Construction of
phase two of
the Hazel
Avenue
widening, from
Madison
Avenue to
Curragh Downs
Drive, is

expected to be

completed by
yeu 2013,
before the first
phase ofthe
Proposed

Project or
alternative is

to be the through movement. The improvements include two eastbound through lanes, one eastbound right
turn lane, two northbound left turn lanes, two northbound right tum lanes, two westbound left turn lanes and

two westbound through lanes. This improvement also includes the signalization of the While Rock Road and

Grant Line Road intersection, With implementation of this improvement, the intersection would operate at an

acceptable LOS A. The applicant shall pay its proportionate share of funding of improvements to the agency

responsible for improvements, based on a program established by that agency to reduce the impacts to the

Grant Line Road,{Vhite Rock Road intersection (Sacramento County Intersection 3).

Participate in Fair Share Funding of Improvements to Reduce Impacts on Hazel Avenue between
Madison Avenue and Curragh Downs Drive (Roadway Segment l0). To ensure that Hazel Avenue

operates at an acceptable LOS between Curragh Downs Drive and Gold Country Boulevard, Hazel Avenue
must be widened to six lanes. This improvement is part ofthe County adopted Hazel Avenue widening
project.

3A.rs-lj
(FPASP
EIR/EIS)

t06
-59

Resolution No. 10670
Page 106 of 140

Page 231

06/14/2022 Item No.9.



Condition
will be

satist'ied
prior to
issuance of
a building
permlt ln
the
subdivision

This subdivision will pay its fair share of
the following improvements with the
payment of Specitic Plan Infiastructure
Fees (SPIF), City Traffic Impact Fees

and Sacramento County Wide
Transportation fees collected prior to
buitding permit issuance in this
subdivision.

El Dorado
Counfy
Department of
Transportation

complete. The
applicant shall
pay its
proportionate

share ol funding
of
improvements
to the agency

responsible for
improvements,
based on a
program

established by
that agency to
reduce the

impacts to
Hazel Avenue
between
Madison
Avenue and

Curragh Downs
Drive
(Sacramento

County
Roadway
Segment 10).

Before project

build out. A
phasing
analysis should
be performed
prior to
approval ofthe
first subdivision
map to
determine
during which
oroiect ohase

Participate in Fair Share Funding of Improvements to Reduce Impacts on the White Rock
RoadAilindfield Way Intersection (El Dorado County Intersection 3). To ensure that the White Rock
Road/Windfield Way intersection operates at an acceptable LOS, the intersection must be signalized and

separate northbound left and right fum lanes must be striped. The applicant shall pay its proportionate share

of funding of improvements to the agency responsible for improvements, based on a program established by
that agency to reduce the impacts to the White Rock Road/Windfield Way intersection (El Dorado County
Intersection 3).

3A.15-Ir
(FPASP
ErR/ErS)

106
-60

Resolution No. 10670
Page 107 of 140

Page 232

06/14/2022 Item No.9.



Condition
will be

satisfied
prior to
issuance of
a building
permit.

Condition
will be

satisfied
prior to
issuance of
a building
permit.

Condition
will be

satisfied
nrior to

This subdivision will pay its fair share of
the following improvements with the

payment of Specific Plan Infrastructure

Fees (SPIF), City Traffic Impact Fees

and Sacramento County Wide
Transportation fees collected prior to

building permit issuance in this

subdivision.

This subdivision will pay its fair share of
the following improvements with the

payment of Specific Plan Infrastructure

Fees (SPIF), City Traffic Impact Fees

and Sacramento County Wide
Transportation fees collected prior to
building permit issuance in this
subdivision,

This subdivrsion wrll pay rts tarr share of
the following improvements with the
payment of Specific Plan Infrastructure
Fees (SPID. Citv Traffic Impact Fees

City of Folsom
Community
Development
Department and

Sacramento

County
Department of
Transportation

Sacramento
County
Department of
Transportation
and the City of
Rancho
Cordova
Department of
Public Works

Caltrans

the

improvement
should be built.

Betbre prolect

build out. A
phasing

analysis should
be performed
prior to
approval of the
first subdivision
map to
determine
during which
project phase

the

improvement
should be built.

Before project

build out. A
phasing

analysis should
be performed
prior to
approval of the
first subdivision
map to
determine
during which
project phase

the

improvement
should be built.

Before project

build out.

Construction of
the Sacramento

Participate in Fair Share Funding of Improvements to Reduce Impacts on Eastbound U.S. 50 as an

alternative to improvements at the Folsom Boulevard/U.S. 50 Eastbound Ramps Intersection (Caltrans

Intersection 4). Congestion on eastbound U.S. 50 is causing vehicles to use Folsom Boulevard as an alternate
parallel route until they reach U.S. 50, where they must get back on the freeway due to the lack of a parallel

route. It is preferred to alleviate the congestion on U.S. 50 than to upgrade the intersection at the end ofthis
reliever route. The applicant shall pay its proportionate share of funding of improvements to the agency

responsible for rmprovements, based on a program established by that agency to reduce the impacts to the

Folsom Boulevard/U.S. 50 Eastbound Ramps intersection (Caltrans Intersection 4). To ensure that the

Folsom Boulevard/U.S. 50 eastbound ramps intersection operates at an acceptable LOS, auxiliary lanes

should be added to eastbound U.S. 50 from Hazel Avenue to east ofFolsom Boulevard. This was

recommended in the Traffic Operations Analysis Report for the U.S. 50 Auxiliary Lane Prqect.

Participate in Fair Share Funding of Improvements to Reduce Impacts on the Grant Line Road/ State

Route 16 Intersection (Caltrans Intersection l2), To ensure that the Grant Line Road/State Route 16

intersection operates at an acceptable LOS, the northbound and southbound approaches must be reconfigured

to consist of one left-turn lane and one shared through/right-turn lane. Protected left-turn signal phasing must

be provided on the northbound and southbound approaches. improvements to the Grant Line Road/State

Route 16 intersection are contained within the County Development Fee Program, and are scheduled for
Measure A funding.

Improvements to this intersection must be implemented by Caltrans, Sacramento County, and the City of
Rancho Cordova.

The applicant shall pay its proportionate share of funding of improvements to the agency responsible for
improvements, based on a program established by that agency to reduce the impacts to the Grant Line
Road/State Route 16 intersection (Caltrans Intersection l2).

Participate in Fair Share Funding of Improvements to Reduce Impacts on Eastbound U.S. 50 between

Zinfandel Drive and Sunrise Boulevard (Freeway Segment 1), To enswe that Eastbound U,S. 50 operates

at an acceptable LOS between Zinfandel Drive and Sunrise Boulevard, a bus-carpool (HOV) lane must be

constructed. This imnrovement is cunentlv nlanned as oart ofthe Sacramento 50 Bus-Camool Lane and

3A.15-lo
(FPASP
ErR/ErS)

3A.15-lp
(FPASP
ErwErs)

3A.15-lq
(FPASP
ErR/ErS)

r06
-61

r06
-62

106

-63

Resolution No. 10670
Page 108 of 140

Page 233

06/14/2022 Item No.9.



issuance of
a building
permit.

Condition
wilt be

satisfied
prior to
issuance of
a building
permit.

and Sacramento County Wide
Transportation fees collected prior to
building permit issuance in this
subdivision.

This subdivision will pay its fair share of
the following improvements with the
payment of Specific Plan Infrastruch.ue
Fees (SPIF), City Traffic Impact Fees

and Sacramento County Wide
Transportation fees collected prior to
building permit issuance in this
subdivision.

City of Folsom
Community
Development
Department and

Sacramento

County
Department of
Transportation

50 Bus-Carpool
Lane and

Community
Enhancements
Project is
expected to be

completed by
yew 2013,
before the first
phase ofthe
Proposed
Project or
alternative is

complete,
Construction of
the Sacramento

50 Bus-Carpool
Lane and

Community
Enhancements
Project has

started since the

writing of the

Draft EIS/EIR.

Befbre project

build out. A
phasing
analysis should
be performed to
determine
during which
project phase

the
improvement
should be built.

Community Enhancements Project. The applicant shall pay its proportionate share offunding ot
improvements to the agency responsible for improvements, based on a program established by that agency to
reduce the impacts to Eastbound U. S. 50,between Zinfandel Drive and Sunrise Boulevard (Freeway Segment

1).

Participate in Fair Share Funding oflmprovements t0 Reduce Impacts on Eastbound U.S, 50 between
Hazel Avenue and Folsom Boulevard (Freeway Segment 3). To ensure that Eastbound U.S. 50 operates at
an acceptable LOS between Hazel Avenue and Folsom Boulevard, an auxiliary lane must be constructed.
This improvement was recommended in the Traffic Operations Analysis Report for the U.S. 50 Auxiliary
Lane Project. This improvement is included in the proposed 50 Conidor Mobility Fee Program.

The applicant shall pay its proportionate share of funding of improvements to the agency responsible for
improvements, based on a program established by that agency to reduce the impacts to Eastbound U.S. 50
between Hazel Avenue and Folsom Boulevard (Freeway Segment 3).

3A.r5-1r
(FPASP
ErR/ErS)

r06
-64

Resolution No. 10670
Page 109 of 140

Page 234

06/14/2022 Item No.9.



Conditron
will be

satisfied
prior to
issuance of
a building
permit.

Condrtlon
will be

satisfied
prior to
issuance of
a building
permit.

Condition
will be

satisfied
prior to
issuance of
a building
permit.

This subdivision will pay its fair share of
the following improvements with the

payment of Specific Plan Infrastructure
Fees (SPIF), City Traffic Impact Fees

and Sacramento County Wide
Transportation fees collected prior to
building permit issuance in this
subdivision.

This subdivision will pay its fair share of
the following improvements with the
payment of Specific Plan Infrastructure
Fees (SPIF), City Traffic Impact Fees

and Sacramento County Wide
Transportation fees collected prior to
building permit issuance in this
subdivision.

This subdivision will pay its fair share of
the following improvements with the

payment of Specific Plan Infrastructure
Fees (SPIF), City Traffrc Impact Fees

and Sacramento County Wide
Transportation fees collected prior to
building permit issuance in this
subdivision.

City of Folsom
Community
Development
Department and

Sacramento

County
Department of
Transportation

City of Folsom
Community
Development
Department and

Sacramento

County
Department of
Transportation

City of Rancho
Cordova
Department of
Public Works
and Sacramento

County
Department of
Transportation

Before project

build out. A
phasing
analysis should
be performed
prior to
approval of the
first subdivision

map to
determine
during which
project phase

the

improvement
should be built.

Before project

build out. A
phasing
analysis should
be performed
prior to
approval of the

first subdivision
map to
determine
during which
project phase

the

improvement
should be built.

Before project

build out, A
phasing
analysis should
be performed
prior to
approval ofthe
first subdivision

Participate in Fair Share Funding oflmprovements to Reduce Impacts on f,astbound U.S, 50 between
Folsom Boulevard and Prairie City Road (Freeway Segment 4). To ensure that Eastbound U.S, 50

operates at an acceptable LOS between Folsom Boulevard and Prairie City Road, an auxiliary lane must be

constructed. This improvement was recommended in the Traffic Operations Analysis Report for the U.S. 50

Auxiliary Lane Project. This improvement is included in the proposed 50 Corridor Mobility Fee Program.

The applicant shall pay its proportionate share of funding of improvements, as may be determined by a nexus

study or other appropriate and reliable mechanism paid for by applicant, to reduce the impacts to Eastbound

U.S. 50 between Folsom Boulevard and Prairie City Road (Freeway Segment 4).

Participate in Fair Share Funding of Improvements to Reduce Impacts on Westbound U,S. 50 between
Prairie City Road and Folsom Boulevard (Freeway Segment 16), To ensure that Westbound U.S. 50

operates at an acceptable LOS between Prairie City Road and Folsom Boulevard, an auxiliary lane must be

constructed. This improvement was recommended in the Traffic Operations Analysis Report for the U.S. 50

Auxiliary Lane Project. This improvement is included in the proposed 50 Corridor Mobility Fee Program.

The applicant shall pay its proportionate share of funding of improvements, as may be determined by a nexus

study or other appropriate and reliable mechanism paid for by applicant, to reduce the impacts to Westbound
U.S. 50 between Prairie City Road and Folsom Boulevard (Freeway Segment l6).

Participate in Fair Share Funding of Improvements to Reduce lmpacts on Westbound U,S. 50 between
Hazel Avenue and Sunrise Boulevard (Freeway Segment 18). To ensure that Westbound U.S. 50 operates

at an acceptable LOS between Hazel Avenue and Sunrise Boulevard, an auxiliary lane must be conslructed.
This improvement was recommended in the Traffic Operations Analysis Report for the U.S. 50 Auxiliary
Lane Project, and included in the proposed Rancho Cordova Parkway interchange project.

Improvements to this freeway segment must be implemented by Caltrans. The applicant shall pay its
proportionate share of funding of improvements to the agency responsible for improvements, based on a

3.4..15-ls
(FPASP
ErR/ErS)

3A.15-1u
(FPASP
EIR/EIS)

3A.15-lv
(FPASP
ErR/ErS)

r06
-t5

106
-66

106

-67

Resolution No. 10670

Page I l0 of 140

Page 235

06/14/2022 Item No.9.



Condition
will be

satisfied
prior to
issuance of
a building
permit.

Condition
will be

satisfied
prior to
issuance of
a building
permit.

This subdivision will pay its fair share of
the following improvements with the

payment of Specific Plan Infrastruchre
Fees (SPIF), City Traffic Impact Fees

and Sacramento County Wide
Transportation fees collected prior to
building permit issuance in this
subdivision.

This subdivision will pay its fair share of
the following improvements with the
payment of Specific Plan Infrastructure
Fees (SPIF), City Traffic Impact Fees

and Sacramento County Wide
Transportation fees collected prior to
building permit issuance in this
subdivision,

City of Folsom
Community
Development
Department and

Sacramento

County
Department of
Transportation

City of Folsom
Community
Development
Department and

Sacramento

County
Department of
Transportation

map to
determine
during which
project phase

the

improvement
should be built.

Before project

build oul A
phasing

analysis should
be performed
prior to
approval of the
first subdivision
map to
determine
during which
project phase

the

improvement
should be built.

Before project

build out. A
phasing

analysis should
be performed
prior to
approval ofthe
first subdivision
map to
determine
during which
project phase

the

improvement
should be built.

program established by that agency to reduce the impacts to Westbound U.S. 50 between Hazel Avenue and
Sunrise Boulevard (Freeway Segment 18).

Participate in Fair Share Funding oflmprovements to Reduce Impacts on U,S. 50 Eastbound/Folsom
Boulevard Ramp Merge (Freeway Merge 4). To enswe that Eastbound U.S. 50 operates at an acceptable

LOS at the Folsom Boulevard merge, an auxiliary lane from the Folsom Boulevard merge to the Prairie City
Road diverge must be constructed. This improvement was recommended in the Traffic Operations Analysis
Report for the U.S. 50 Auxiliary Lane Project. This improvement is included in the proposed 50 Corridor
Mobility Fee Program. The applicant shall pay its proportionate share of funding of improvements to the

agency responsible for improvements, based on a program established by that agency to reduce the impacts to
the U.S. 50 Eastbound/Folsom Boulevard Ramp Merge (Freeway Merge 4).

Participate in Fair Share Funding of Improvements to Reduce Impacts on U,S. 50 Eastbound/Prairie
City Road Diverge (Freeway Diverge 5), To ensure that Eastbound U.S. 50 operates at an acceptable LOS
at the Prairie City Road off-ramp diverge, an auxiliary lane from the Folsom Boulevard merge must be.
constructed. This improvement was recommended in the Traffic Operations Analysis Report for the U.S. 50
Auxiliary Lane Project. This auxiliary lane improvement is included in the proposed 50 Corridor Mobility
Fee Program. The applicant shall pay its proportionate share of funding of improvements, as may be
determined by a nexus study or other appropriate and reliable mechanism paid for by applicant, to reduce the
impacts to the U.S, 50 Eastbound/Prairie City Road diverge (Freeway Diverge 5).

34.15-lw
(FPASP
f,rR/EIS)

3A.15-lx
(FPASP
ErwErs)

r06
-6E

106

-69

Resolution No. 10670
Page lll ofl40

Page 236

06/14/2022 Item No.9.



Condition
will be

satisfied
prior to
issuance of
a building
permit.

Condition
will be

satislled
prior to
issuance of
a building
permit.

Condition
will be

satisfied
prior to
issuance of
a building
permit.

This subdivision will pay its fair share of
the following improvements with the
payment of Specific Plan Infrastructure
Fees (SPiF), City Traffic Impact Fees

and Sacramento County Wide
Transporlation fees collected prior to

building permit issuance in this
subdivision.

This subdivision will pay its fair share of
the following improvements with the
payment of Specific Plan Infrastructure
Fees (SPIF), City Traffic impact Fees

and Sacramento County Wide
Transportation fees collected prior to
building permit issuance in this

subdivision.

This subdivision will pay its fair share of
the following improvements with the

payment of Specific Plan Infrastructure
Fees (SPIF), City Tnffic Impact Fees

and Sacramento County Wide
Transportation fees collected prior to
building permit issuance in this

subdivision.

City of Folsom
Community
Development
Department

Crty of Folsom

Community
Development
Department

City of Folsom
Community
Development
Department

Before prqect
build out. A
phasing
analysis should
be performed
prior to
approval of the

first subdivision
map to
determine
during which
project phase

the

improvement
should be built.

Before project

build out. A
phasing
analysis should
be performed
prior to
approval of the
first subdivision
map to
determine
during which
project phase

the

improvement
should be built.

Before project

build out, A
phasing

analysis should
be performed
prior to
approval ofthe
first subdivision

Participate in Fair Share Funding of Improvements to Reduce Impacts on U,S. 50 Eastbound/Prairie
City Road Direct Merge (Freeway Merge 6), To ensure that Eastbound U.S. 50 operates at an acceptable

LOS at the Prairie City Road onramp direct merge, an auxiliary lane to the East Bidwell Street - Scott Road

diverge must be constructed. This auxiliary lane improvement is included in the proposed 50 Conidor
Mobility Fee Program. The applicant shall pay its proportionate share of funding of improvements, as may be

determined by a nexus study or other appropriate and reliable mechanism paid for by applicant, to reduce the

impacts to the U.S. 50 Eastbound/Prairie City Road direct merge (Freeway Merge 6).

Participate in Fair Share Funding oflmprovements to Reduce Impacts on U.S.50 Eastbound/Prairie
City Road Flyover On-Ramp to Oak Avenue Parkway Off-Ramp Weave (Freeway Weave 8). To ensure

that Eastbound U.S. 50 operates at an acceptable LOS at the Prairie City Road flyover on-ramp to Oak

Avenue Parkway off-ramp weave, an improvement acceptable to Caltrans should be implemented to

eliminate the unacceptable weaving conditions. Such an improvement may involve a "braided ramp".

The applicant shall pay its proportionate share of funding of improvements, as may be determined by a nexus

study or other appropriate and reliable mechanism paid for by applicant, to reduce the impacts to the U.S. 50

Eastbound / Prairie City Road flyover on-ramp to Oak Avenue Parkway off-ramp weave (Freeway Weave 8),

Participate in Fair Share Funding of Improvements to Reduce Impacts on U.S. 50 Eastbound/Oak
Avenue Parkway Loop Merge (F'reeway Merge 9). To ensure that Eastbound U.S. 50 operates at an

acceptable LOS at the Oak Avenue Parkway loop merge, an auxiliary lane to the East Bidwell Street - Scott

Road diverge must be constructed. This auxiliary lane improvement is included in the proposed 50 Conidor
Mobility Fee Program. The applicant shall pay its proportionate share of funding of improvements, as may be

determined by a nexus study or other appropriate and reliable mechanism paid for by applicant, to reduce the

impacts to the U.S. 50 Eastbound/ Oak Avenue Parkway loop merge (Freeway Merge 9).

3A.15-ly
(FPASP
EIR/EIS)

3A.15-lz
(FPASP
ErR/ErS)

3A.15-laa
(FPASP
EIR/EIS)

106

-70

106

-71

t06
-72

Resolution No. 10670

Page I 12 of 140

Page 237

06/14/2022 Item No.9.



Condition
will be

satisfied
prior to
issuance of
a building
permit.

Condition
will be

satisfied
prior to
issuance of
a building
permit.

This subdivision will pay its fair share of
the following improvements with the
payment of Specific Plan Infrastructure
Fees (SPIF), City Traflic Impact Fees

and Sacramento County Wide
Transportation fees collected prior to
building permit issuance in this
subdivision.

This subdivision will pay its fair share of
the following improvements with the
payment of Specific Plan Infrastructure
Fees (SPIF), City Traffic Impact Fees

and Sacramento County Wide
Transportation fees collected prior to

building permit issuance in this

subdivision.

Crty of Folsom
Community
Development
Department

City of Folsom
Community
Development
Department

map to
determine
during which
project phase

the

improvement
should be built.

Before project

build out. A
phasing

analysis should
be performed
prior to
approval of the

first subdivision
map to
determine
during which
project phase

the
improvement
should be built.

Before project

build out. A
phasing

analysis should
be performed
prior to
approval ofthe
first subdivision
map to
determine
during which
project phase

the

improvement
shduld be built.

Participate in Fair Share Funding oflmprovements to Reduce Impacts on U,S. 50

Westbound/Empire Ranch Road Loop Ramp Merge (Freeway Merge 23). To ensure that Westbound

U.S. 50 operates at an acceptable LOS, the northbound Empire Ranch Road loop on ramp should start the

westbound auxiliary lane that ends at the East Bidwell Street - Scott Road off ramp. The slip on ramp from
southbound Empire Ranch Road would merge into this extended auxiliary lane. Improvements to this

freeway segment must be implemented by Caltrans. The applicant shall pay its proportionate share of funding
of improvements, as may be determrned by a nexus study or other appropriate and reliable mechanism paid

for by applicant, to reduce the impacts to the U.S. 50 Westbound/Empire Ranch Road loop ramp merge

(Freeway Merge 23).

Participate in Fair Share Funding of Improvements to Reduce Impacts on U,S, 50 Westbound/Oak
Avenue Parkway Loop Ramp Merge (Freeway Merge 29). To ensure that Westbound U.S. 50 operates at

an acceptable LOS, the northbound Oak Avenue Parkway loop on ramp should start the westbound auxiliary
lane that ends at the Prairie City Road off ramp. The slip on ramp from southbound Oak Avenue Parkway

would merge into this extended auxiliary lane. Improvements to this freeway segment must be implemented

by Calhans. The applicant shall pay its proportionate share of funding of improvements, as may be

determined by a nexus study or other appropriate and reliable mechanism paid for by applicant, to reduce the

impacts to the U.S. 50 Westbound/Oak Avenue Parkway loop ramp merge (Freeway Merge 29).

3A.15-ldd
(FPASP
EIR/f,IS)

34. I 5-l ee

(FPASP
EIR/EIS)

r06
-73

106

-74

Resolution No. 1 0670
Page 113 of140

Page 238

06/14/2022 Item No.9.



Condrtron
will be

satisfied
prior to
issuance of
a building
permit.

Condition
will be

satisfied
prior to
issuance of
a building
permit.

Condition
will be

satisfied
prior to
issuance of
a building
permit.

This subdivision will pay its fair share of
the following improvements with the
payment of Specific Plan Infrastructure
Fees (SPIF), City Traffic Impact Fees

and Sacramento County Wide
Transportation fees collected prior to

building permit issuance in this
subdivision.

This subdivision will pay its fair share of
the following improvements with the

payment of Specitic Plan Infrastructure
Fees (SPIF), City Traffic Impact Fees

and Sacramento County Wide
Transportation fees collected prior to
building permit issuance in this
subdivision.

This subdivision will pay its fair share of
the following improvements with the
payment of Specific Plan Infrastructure
Fees (SPIF), City Traffic Impact Fees

and Sacramento County Wide
Transportation fees collected prior to
building permit issuance in this
subdivision.

City of Folsom
Community
Development
Department and

Sacramento

County
Department of
Transportatron

City of Folsom
Community
Development
Department and

Sacramento

County
Department of
Transportation

City of Folsom
Community
Development
Department and

Sacramento

County
Department of
Transportation

Before project

build out. A
phasing
analysis should
be performed
prior to
approval of the
first subdivision
map to
determine
during which
project phase

the
improvement
should be built.

Before project

build out. A
phasing
analysis should
be performed
prior to
approval ofthe
first subdivision
map to
determine
during which
project phase

the

improvement
should be built.

Before prolect
build out A
phasing

analysis should
be performed
prior to
approval ofthe
first subdivision

Participate in Fair Share Funding of Improvements to Reduce Impacts on U.S, 50 Westbound/Prairie
City Road Loop Ramp Merge (Freeway Merge 32), To ensure that Westbound U.S. 50 operates at an

acceptable LOS at the Prairie City Road loop ramp merge, an auxiliary lane to the Folsom Boulevard off
ramp diverge must be constructed. This auxiliary lane improvement is included in the proposed 50 Conidor
Mobility Fee Program. The applicant shall pay its proportionate share of funding of improvements, as may be

determined by a nexus study or other appropriate and reliable mechanism paid for by applicant, to reduce the

impacts to the U.S. 50 Westbound/Prairie City Road Loop Ramp Merge (Freeway Merge 32).

Participate in Fair Share tr'unding of Improvements to Reduce Impacts on U.S. 50 Westbound/Prairie
City Road Direct Ramp Merge (Freeway Merge 33). To ensure that Westbound U.S. 50 operates at an

acceptable LOS at the Prairie City Road direct ramp merge, an auxiliary lane to the Folsom Boulevard off
ramp diverge must be constructed. This auxiliary lane improvement is included in the proposed 50 Corridor
Mobility Fee Program. The applicant shall pay its proportionate share offunding ofimprovements, as may be

determined by a nexus study or other appropriate and reliable mechanism paid for by applicant, to reduce the

impacts to the U.S, 50 Westbound/Prairie City Road direct ramp merge (Freeway Merge 33).

Participate in tr'air Share Funding of Improvements to Reduce Impacts on U,S, 50 Eastbound/Folsom
Boulevard Diverge (Freeway Diverge 34). To ensure that Westbound U.S. 50 operates at an acceptable LOS

at the Folsom Boulevard Diverge, an auxiliary lane from the Prarrie City Road loop ramp merge must be

constructed. improvements to this freeway segment must be implemented by Caltrans. This auxiliary lane

improvement is included in the proposed 50 Conidor Mobility Fee Program. The applicant shall pay its
proportionate share of funding of improvements, as may be determined by a nexus study or other appropnate

and reliable mechanism paid for by applicant, to reduce the impacts to the U.S. 50 Eastbound / Folsom

Boulevard diverge (Freeway Divetge 34).

3A.t5-1ff
(FPASP
EIR/EIS)

3A.1s-lgg
(FPASP
ErR/f,IS)

3A.15-1hh
(FPASP
EIR/EIS)

106

-/3

106

-76

106

-77

Resolution No. 10670
Page I 14 of 140

Page 239

06/14/2022 Item No.9.



Condition
will be

satisfied
prior to
issuance of
a building
permit.

Condition
will be

satisfied
prior to
issuance of
a building
permit.

This subdivision will pay its fair share of
the following improvements with the
payment of Specific Plan Infrastructure
Fees (SPIF), City Traffic Impact Fees

and Sacramento County Wide
Transportation fees collected prior to
building permit issuance in this
subdivision.

This subdivision will pay its fair share of
the following improvements with the
payment of Specific Plan Infrastructure
Fees (SPIF), City Traffic Impact Fees

and Sacramento County Wide
Transportation fees collected prior to
building permit issuance in this

subdivision

Sacramento

County
Department of
Transportation
and City of
Rancho
Cordova
Department of
Public Works

City ofFolsom
Community
Development
Department

map to
determine
during which
project phase

the

improvement
should be built.

Before prolect

build out. A
phasing

analysis should
be performed
prior to
approval ofthe
first subdivision
map to
determine
during which
project phase

the

improvement
should be built.

Before approval
of improvement
plans for all
project phases

any particular
discretionary
development
application that
includes
residential and

commercial or
mixed-use
development.
As a condition
of project

aooroval and/or

Participate in Fair Sbare Funding of Improvements to Reduce Impacts on U.S. 50 Westbound/flazel
Avenue Direct Ramp Merge (Freeway Merge 38). To ensure that Westbound U.S. 50 operates at an

acceptable LOS at the Hazel Avenue direct ramp merge, an auxiliary lane to the Sunrise Boulevard off ramp

diverge must be constructed. This auxiliary lane improvement is included in the proposed 50 Corridor
Mobility Fee Program. The applicant shall pay its proportionate share of funding of improvements to the

agency responsible for improvements, based on a program established by that agency to reduce the impacts to

the U.S. 50 Westbound/Hazel Avenue direct ramp merge (Freeway Merge 38).

Develop Commercial Support Services and Mixed-use Development Concurrent with Housing Development,

and Develop and Provide Options for Alternative Transportation Modes. The project applicant(s) for any

particular discretionary development application including commercial or mixed-use development along with
residential uses shall develop commercial and mixed-use development concurrent with housing development,

to the extent feasible in light of market realities and other considerations, to internalize vehicle trips.

Pedestrian and bicycle facilities shall be implemented to the satisfaction of the City Public Works
Department. To further minimize impacts from the increased demand on area roadways and intersections, the

project applicant($ for any particular discretionary development application involving schools or commercial

centers shall develop and implement safe and secure bicycle parking to promote alternative transportation

uses and reduce the volume of single-occupancy vehicles using area roadways and intersections. The project

applicant(s) for any particular discretronary development application shall participate in capital

improvements and operating funds for transit service to increase the percent oftravel by transit. The project's

fair-share participation and the associated timing ofthe improvements and service shall be identified in the

project conditions ofapproval and/or the project's development agreement. Improvements and service shall

be coordinated, as necessary, with Folsom Stage Lines and Sacramento RT.

3A.15-1ii
(FPASP
EIR/EIS)

3A.15-2a
(FPASP
ErR/ErS)

106

-78

106

-79

Resolution No. 10670

Page ll5ofl40

Page 240

06/14/2022 Item No.9.



Condition
will be

satisfied
prior to
issuance of
a building
permit.

Condition
will be

satistied
prior to
issuance of
a building
permit.

Condrtion
will be

satisfied
prior to
issuance of
a building
permit.

Condition
will be

satisfied
prior to
issuance of

This subdivision will pay its fair share of
the following improvements with the
payment of Specific Plan Infrastructure
Fees (SPIF), City Traffic Impact Fees

and Sacramento County Wide
Transportation fees collected prior to
building permit issuance in this
subdivision.

This subdivision will pay its fair share of
the following improvements with the
payment of Specitic Plan Intiastructure
Fees (SPIF), City Traffic Impact Fees

and Sacramento County Wide
Transportation fees collected prior to

building permit issuance in this
subdivision.

This subdivision will pay its fair share of
the following improvements with the
payment of Specific Plan Infrastructure
Fees (SPIF), City Traffic Impact Fees

and Sacramento County Wide
Transportation fees collected prior to
building permit issuance in this
subdivision.

This subdivision will pay its fair share of
the following improvements with the
payment of Specific Plan Infrastructure
Fees (SPIF), City Traffic Impact Fees

and Sacramento County Wide
Transnortation fees collected orior to

City of Folsom
Community
Development
Department

City of Folsom
Community
Development
Department

City of Folsom
Community
Development
Department

City of Folsom
Community
Development
Department

as a condrtion
of the
development
agreement for
all project
phases.

Concurrent wrth
construction for
all project
phases.

Concurrent with
construction for
all project
phases.

As a condition
of prqect
approval and/or
as a condition
of the

development
agreement for
all project
phases.

Before project
build out. A
phasing

analysis should
be performed

orior to

Participate in the City's Transportation System Management Fee Program, The project applican(s) for
any particular discretionary development application shall pay an appropriate amount into the.City's existing
Transportation System Management Fee Program to reduce the number of single-occupant automobile travel

on area roadways and intersections.

Participate with the 50 Corridor Transportation Management Association, The project applicant(s) for
any particular discretionary development application shall join and participate with the 50 Comdor
Transportation Management Association to reduce the number of single-occupant automobile travel on area

roadways and intersections.

Pay Full Cost of ldentified Improvements that Are Not Funded by the City's Fee Program, In
accordance with Measure W, the project applicant(s) for any particular discrehonary development application

shall provide fair-share contributions to the City's transportation impact fee program to fully fund
improvements only required because of the Specific Plan.

The Applicant Shall Pay a Fair Share to Fund the Construction of Improvements to the Sibley
Street/Blue Ravine Road Intersection (Folsom Intenection 2). To ensure that the Sibley Streettslue Ravine
Road intersection operates at a LOS D with less than the Cumulative No Project delay, the northbound approach
must be reconfigured to consist of two left-tum lane, two through lanes, and one dedicated right-tum lane. The
applicant shall pay its proportionate share offunding of improvements, as may be determined by a nexus study

34.15-2b
(FPASP
EIR/EIS)

3A.15-2c
(FPASP
f,rR/f,rs)

3A.15-3
(FPASP
EIR/ErS)

3A.15-4a
(FPASP
EIR/EIS)

106
-80

106
-81

106

-82

r06
-83

Resolution No. 10670
Page I 16 of 140

Page 241

06/14/2022 Item No.9.



a building
permit.

Condition
will be

satisfied
prior to
issuance of
a building
permit.

Condition
will be

satisfied
prior to
issuance of
a building
permit.

building permit issuance in this
subdivision.

This subdivision will pay its fair share of
the tbllowing improvements with the
payment of Specific Plan Infrastructure
Fees (SPIF), City Traffic impact Fees

and Sacramento County Wide
Transportation fees collected prior to
building permit issuance in this
subdivision.

This subdivision will pay its fair share of
the following improvements with the

payment of Specific Plan Infrastruchre
Fees (SPIF), City Traffic Impact Fees

and Sacramento County Wide
Transportation fees collected prior to
building permit issuance in this
subdivision.

City ofFolsom
Community
Development
Department

City of Folsom
Community
Development
Department

approval of the

first subdivision
map to
determine
during which
project phase

the

improvement
should be built.

Before project

build out. A
phasing

analysis should
be performed
prior to
approval of the

first subdivision
map to
determine
during which
project phase

the
improvement
should be built.

Before project

build out. A
phasing

analysis should
be performed
prior to
approval ofthe
first subdivision
map to
determine
during which
project phase

the

or other appropriate and reliable mechamsm paid for by applicant, to reduce the impacts to the Sibley

Streeltslue Ravine Road intersection (Folsom Intersection 2).

The Applicant Shall Pay a Fair Share to Fund the Construction of Improvements to the Oak Avenue

Parkway/East Bidwell Street Intersection (Folsom Intersection 6). To ensure that the Oak Avenue

Parkway/East Bidwell Street intersection operates at an acceptable LOS, the eastbound (East Bidwell Street)

approach must be reconfigured to consist of two left-turn lanes, four through lanes and a right-turn lane, and

the westbound (East Bidwell Street) approach must be reconfigured to consist of two left tum lanes, four
through lanes, and a right-turn lane. It is against the City ol Folsom policy to have eight lane roads because of
the impacts to non motorized traffic and adjacent development; therefore, this improvement is infeasible.

The Applicant Shall Pay a Fair Share to Fund the Construction of Improvements to the East Bidwell
Street/College Street Intersection (Folsom Intersection 7), To ensure that the East Bidwell StreeVCollege

Street intersection operates at acceptable LOS C or better, the westbound approach must be reconfigured to

consist of one left-turn lane, one letl-through lane, and two dedicated right-turn lanes. The applicant shall pay

its proportionate share of funding of improvements, as may be determined by a nexus study or other

appropriate and reliable mechanism paid for by applicant, to reduce the impacts to the East Bidwell
StreetNesmith Court intersection (Folsom Intersection 7).

3A.15-4b
(FPASP
EIR/EIS)

3A.15-4c
(FPASP
EIRiEIS)

106

-84

106
-8s

Resolution No. 10670
Page I 17 of 140

Page 242

06/14/2022 Item No.9.



Condition
will be

satisfied
prior to
issuance of
a building
permit.

Condition
will be

satisfied
prior to
issuance of
a building
permit.

Condrtton
will be

satisfied
prior to
issuance of

This subdivision will pay its fair share of
the following improvements with the

payment of Specific Plan Infrastructure
Fees (SPIF), City Traffic Impact Fees

and Sacramento County Wide
Transportation fees collected prior to

building permit issuance in this
subdivision.

This subdivision will pay its fair share of
the following improvements with the
payment of Specific Plan Infrastructure
Fees (SPIF), City Traffic Impact Fees

and Sacramento County Wide
Transportation fees collected prior to
building permit issuance in this
subdivision,

This subdivision will pay its fair share of
the following improvements with the

payment of Specific Plan Infrastructure
Fees (SPIF), City Traffic Impact Fees

and Sacramento Countv Wide

City of Folsom
Community
Development
Department

City of Folsom
Community
Development
Department

City of Folsom
Community
Development
Department

improvement
should be built.

Before project

build out, A
phasing

analysis should
be performed
prior to
approval ofthe
first subdivision
map to
determine
during which
project phase

the

improvement
should be built.

Before project

build out. A
phasing

analysis should
be performed
prior to
approval of the
first subdivision
map to
determine
during which
project phase

the
improvement
should be built.

Before project

build out. A
phasing

analysis should
be performed

The Applicant Shall Pay a Fair Share to F'und the Construction of Improvements to the East Bidwell
Street/Iron Point Road Intersection (Folsom Intersection 2l). To ensure that the East Bidwell Street /lron
Point Road intersection operates at an acceptable LOS, the northbound approach must be reconfigured to
consist oftwo left-turn lanes, four through lanes and a right-turn lane, and the southbound approach must be

reconfigured to consist of two left-tum lanes, four tlrough lanes and a right-turn lane, It is against the City of
Folsom policy to have eight lane roads because ofthe impacts to non motorized traffic and adjacent

development; therefore, this improvement is infeasible.

The Applicant Shall Pay a Fair Share to Fund the Construction of Improvements to the Serpa Way/
Iron Point Road Intersection (Folsom Intersection 23). To imptove LOS at the Serpa Way/ kon Point

Road intersection, the northbound approaches must be restriped to consist of one left-turn lane, one shared

Ieft-through lanes, and one right-turn lane. The applicant shall pay its proportionate share offunding of
improvements, as may be determined by a nexus study or other appropriate and reliable mechanism paid for
by applicant, to reduce the impacts to the Serpa Way/lron Point Road Intersection (Folsom Intersection 23).

The Applicant Shall Pay a Fair Share to Fund the Construction of Improvements to the Empire Ranch
Road/Iron Point Road Intersection (Folsom Intersection 24). To ensure that the Empire Ranch Road /
Iron Point Road intersection operates at a LOS D or better, all ofthe following improvements are required:
The eastbound approach must be reconfigured to consist of one left-turn lane, hvo through lanes, and a righl
turn lane. The westbound aooroach must be reconfigured to consist of two left-turn lanes. one through lane,

3A.15-4d
(FPASP
EIR/EIS)

3A.15-4e
(FPASP
EIR/f,rS)

3A.1s-4f
(FPASP
ErR/ErS)

106
-86

106

-87

106

-88

Resolution No. 10670
Page 1 l8 of 140

Page 243

06/14/2022 Item No.9.



a butldtng
permit.

Condition
will be

satisfied
prior to
issuance of
a building
permit.

Condrtion
will be

satistied
prior to
issuance of
a building
permit.

Transportation fees collected prior to
building permit Issuance in this

subdivision.

This subdivision will pay its fair share of
the following improvements with the

payment of Specific Plan Infrastructure

Fees (SPIF), City Traffic Impact Fees

and Sacramento County Wide
Transportation lees collected prior to
building permit issuance in this

subdivision.

This subdivision will pay its fair share of
the following improvements with the
payment of Specific Plan Infrastructure
Fees (SPIF), City Traffic Impact Fees

and Sacramento County Wide
Transportation fees collected prior to
building permit issuance in this
subdivision.

City of Folsom
Community
Development
Department

Sacramento

County
Department of
Transportation.

prior to
approval of the

first subdivision
map to
determine
during which
project phase

the

improvement
should be built.

Betbre project

build out. A
phasing

analysis should
be performed
prior to
approval of the
first subdivision
map to
determine
during which
project phase

the

improvement
should be built.

Before project

build out. A
phasing
analysis should
be performed
prior to
approval ofthe
first subdivision
map to
determine
during which
prqect phase

the

and a tlrough+ight lane. The northbound approach must be reconfigured to consist of two left-turn lanes,

three through lanes, and a right-turn lane. The southbound approach must be reconfigured to consist oftwo
left-turn lanes, ttree tfuough lanes, and a right-hrn lane. The applicant shall pay its proportionate share of
funding of improvements, as may be determined by a nexus study or other appropriate and reliable

mechanism paid for by applicant, to reduce the impacts to the Empire Ranch Road / Iron Point Road

Intersection Before project build out. A phasing analysis should be performed prior to approval of the first
subdivision map to determine during which project phase the improvement should be built. (Folsom

Intersection 24).

The Applicant Shall Fund and Construct Improvements to the Oak Avenue Parkway/Easton Valley
Parkway Intersection (Folsom Intersection 33). To ensure that the Oak Avenue Parkway/Easton Valley

Parkway intersection operates at an acceptable LOS the southbound approach must be reconfigured to consist

of two left-turn lanes, two through lanes, and two right-turn lanes, The applicant shall fund and construct

these improvements.

Participate in Fair Share tr'unding of Improvements to Reduce Impacts on the Grant Line RoadAVhite
Rock Road Intersection (Sacramento County Intersection 3). To ensure that the Grant Line Road,Mhite
Rock Road intersection operates at an acceptable LOS E or better this intersection should be replaced by

some type ofgrade separated intersection or interchange. Improvements to this intersection are identified in
the Sacramento County's Proposed General Plan. Implementation ofthese improvements would assist in

reducing traffic impacts on this intersection by providing acceptable operation. Intersection improvements

must be implemented by Sacramento County. The applicant shall pay its proportionate share of funding of
improvements to the agency responsible for improvements, based on a program established by that agency to

reduce the impacts to the Grant Line Road/White Rock Road Intersection (Sacramento County Intersection

3)

3A.15-4g
(FPASP
ErwErs)

34.15-4i
(FPASP
EIR/EIS)

t06
-89

106
-90

Resolution No. 10670
Pagell9ofl40

Page 244

06/14/2022 Item No.9.



Condition
will be

satisfied
prior to
issuance of
a building
permit.

Condition
will be

satisfied
prior to
issuance of
a building
permit.

Condition
will be

satisfied
prior to
issuance of

This subdivision will pay its fair share of
the following improvements with the
payment of Specific Plan Infrastructure

Fees (SPIF), City Traffic Impact Fees

and Sacramento County Wide
Transportation fees collected prior to
building permit issuance in this
subdivision.

This subdivision will pay its fair share of
the following improvements with the

payment of Specific Plan Infrastructure
Fees (SPIF), City Traffic Impact Fees

and Sacramento County Wide
Transportation fees collected prior to
building permit issuance in this
subdivision.

This subdivision will pay its fair share of
the following improvements with the
payment of Specific Plan Infrastructure
Fees (SPIF), City Traffic Impact Fees

and Sacramento Countv Wide

Sacramento

County
Department of
Transportation.

Sacramento

County
Department of
Transportation.

Sacramento
County
Department of
Transportatron.

improvement
should be built.

Before project

build out. A
phasing

analysis should
be performed
prior to
approval of the
first subdivision
map to
determine
during which
project phase

the

improvement
should be built.

Before project

build out. A
phasing

analysis should
be performed
prior to
approval of the
first subdivision
map to
determine
during which
project phase

the
improvement
should be built.

Betbre prqect
build out. A
phasing
analysis should
be performed

Participate in Fair Share Funding of Improvements to Reduce Impacts on Grant Line Road between
White Rock Road and Kiefer Boulevard (Sacramento County Roadway Segments 5-7). To rmprove

operation on Grant Line Road between White Rock Road and Kiefer Boulevard, this roadway segm€nt must

be widened to six lanes. This improvement is proposed in the Sacramento County and the City of Rancho
Cordova General Plans; however, it is not in the 2035 MTP. Improvements to this roadway segment must be

implemented by Sacramento County and the City of Rancho Cordova. The applicant shall pay its
proportionate share of funding of improvements to the agency responsible for improvements, based on a
program established by that agency to reduce the impacts to Grant Line Road between White Rock Road and

Kiefer Boulevard (Sacramento County Roadway Segments 5-7). The identified improvement would more
than offset the impacts specifically related to the Folsom South of U. S. 50 project on this roadway segment.

Participate in Fair Share tr'unding of Improvements to Reduce Impacts on Grant Line Road between
Kiefer Boulevard and Jackson Highway (Sacramento County Roadway Segment 8). To improve

operation on Grant Line Road between Kiefer Boulevard Jackson Highway, this roadway segment could be

widened to six lanes. This improvement is proposed in the Sacramento County and the City of Rancho
Cordova General Plans; however, it is not in the 2035 MTP. Improvements to this roadway segment must be

implemented by Sacramento County and the City of Rancho Cordova The applicant shall pay its
proportionate share of funding of improvements to the agency responsible for improvements, based on a
program established by that agency to reduce the impacts to Grant Line Road between Kiefer Boulevard and

Jackson Highway (Sacramento County Roadway Segment 8). The identified improvement would more than

offset the impacts specifically related to the Folsom South of U.S. 50 project on this roadway segment,

Participate in Fair Share Funding of Improvements to Reduce Impacts on Hazel Avenue between
Curragh Downs Drive and U,S. 50 Westbound Ramps (Sacramento County Roadway Segments 12-13).
To improve operation on Hazel Avenue between Cunagh Downs Drive and the U.S. 50 westbound ramps,
this roadway segment could be widened to eight lanes. This improvement is inconsistent with Sacramento

Countv's general olan because the countv's policv requires a maximum roadway cross section of six lanes.

3A.rs-4j
oPASP
ErR/[rs)

3A.15-4k
(FPASP
f,rwErs)

3A.15-4t
(FPASP
f,IR/XIS)

t06
-91

106

-92

106

-93

Resolution No. 1 0670
Page 120 of 140

Page 245

06/14/2022 Item No.9.



a building
permit.

Condition
will be

satisfred
prior to
issuance of
a building
permit.

Condition
will be

satistied
prior to
issuance of
a building
permit.

Transportation fees collected prior to
building permit issuance in this
subdivision.

This subdivision will pay its fair share of
the following improvements with the
payment of Specific Plan Infrastructure
Fees (SPIF), City Traffrc Impact Fees

and Sacramento County Wide
Transportation fees collected prior lo
building permit issuance in this
subdivision.

This subdivision will pay its fair share of
the following improvements with the
payment of Specific Plan Inliastructure
Fees (SPIF), City Traffic Impact Fees

and Sacramento County Wide
Transportation fees collected prior to
building permit issuance in this
subdivision.

Sacramento

County
Department of
Transportation.

Sacramento

County
Department of
Transportation.

prior to
approval of the
first subdivision
map to
determine
during which
project phase

the
improvement
should be built.

Betbre project

build out. A
phasing

analysis should
be performed
prior to
approval ofthe
first subdivision
map to
determine
during which
project phase

the

improvement
should be built.

Before project

build out. A
phasing
analysis should
be performed
prior to
approval of the
first subdivision
map to
determine
during which
project phase

the

Analysis shown later indicates that improvements at the impacted intersection in this segment can be

mitigated (see Mitigation Measure 3A. l54q). Improvements to impacted intersections on this segment will
improve operations on this roadway segment and, therefore; mitigate this segment impact. The applicant shall
pay its proportionate share of funding of improvements to the agency responsible for improvements, based on

a program established by that agency to reduce the impacts to Hazel Avenue between Curragh Downs Drive
and U.S. 50 Westbound Ramps (Sacramento County Roadway Segments 12-13).

Participate in Fair Share Funding of Improvements to Reduce Impacts on White Rock Road between
Grant Line Road and Prairie City Road (Sacramento County Roadway Segment 22). To improve

operation on White Rock Road between Grant Line Road and Prairie City Road, this roadway segment must

be widened to six lanes. This improvement is included in the 2035 MTP but is not included in the

Sacramento County General Plan, Improvements to this roadway segment must be implemented by

Sacramento County. The identified improvement would more than offset the impacts specifically related to
the Folsom South of U.S. 50 project on this roadway segment. However, because of other development in the
region that would substantially increase traffic levels, this roadway segment would continue to operate at an

unacceptable LOS F even with the capacity improvements idenfified to mitigate Folsom South ofU S, 50

impacts. The applicant shall pay its proportionate share of funding of improvements to the agency

responsible for improvements, based on a program established by that agency to reduce the impacts to White
Rock Road between Grant Line Road and Prairie City Road (Sacramento County Roadway Segment 22).

Participate in Fair Share F'unding of Improvements to Reduce Impacts on White Rock Road between
Empire Ranch Road and Carson Crossing Road (Sacramento County Roadway Segment 28), To
improve operation on White Rock Road between Empire Ranch Road and Carson Crossing Road, this
roadway segment must be widened to six lanes. Improvements to this roadway segment must be implemented
by Sacramento County. The applicant shall pay its proportionate share of funding of improvements to the

agency responsible for improvements, based on a program established by that agency to reduce the impacts to
White Rock Road between Empire Ranch Road and Carson Crossing Road (Sacramento County Roadway
Segment 28).

3A.154m
(FPASP
ErR/f,rs)

3A.15-4n
(FPASP
EIR/EIS)

106

-94

106
-95

Resolution No. 10670

Page 121 of 140

Page 246

06/14/2022 Item No.9.



Condition
will be

satisfied
prior to
issuance of
a building
permit.

Condition
will be

satisfied
prior to
issuance of
a building
permit.

Condition
will be

satisfied
prior to
issuance of

This subdivision will pay its fair share of
the following improvements with the

payment of Specific Plan Infrastructure
Fees (SPIF), City Traffic Impact Fees

and Sacramento County Wide
Transportation fees collected prior to
building permit issuance in this
subdivision.

This subdivision will pay its fair share of
the following improvements with the
payment of Specific Plan Infrastructure
Fees (SPIF), City Traffic Impact Fees

and Sacramento County Wide
Transportation fees collected prior to
building permit issuance in this
subdivision.

This subdivisron will pay its fair share of
the following improvements with the
payment of Specific Plan Infrastructure
Fees (SPIF), City Traffic Impact Fees

and Sacramento County Wide

Sacramento

County
Department of
Transportation.

Sacramento

County
Department of
Transportation.

Sacramento

County
Department of
Transportation,

improvement
should be built.

Before project

build out. A
phasing

analysis should
be performed
prior to
approval of the
first subdivision
map to
determine
during which
project phase

the
improvement
should be built.

Before project

build out. A
phasing
analysis should
be performed
prior to
approval ofthe
first subdivision
map to
determine
during which
project phase

the
improvement
should be built.

Betbre pro.yect

build out. A
phasing
analysis should
be performed

Participate in Fair Share Funding of Improvements to Reduce Impacts on the White Rock
Road/Carson Crossing Road Intersection (EI Dorado County l). To ensure that the White Rock
Road/Carson Crossing Road intersection operates at an acceptable LOS, the eastbound right turn lane must

be converted into a separate free right turn lane, or double right. Improvements to this intersection must be

implemented by El Dorado County. The applicant shall pay its proportionate share of t'unding of
improvements to the agency responsible for improvements, based on a program established by that agency to
reduce the impacts to the White Rock Road/Carson Crossing Road Intersection (El Dorado County I ).

Participate in Fair Share tr'unding of Improvements to Reduce Impacts on the Hazel Avenue/U.S. 50

Westbound Ramps Intersection (Caltrans Intersection 1), To ensure that the Hazel Avenue/U.S. 50

westbound ramps intersection operates at an acceptable LOS, the westbound approach must be reconfigured
to consist ofone dedicated left turn lane, one shared left through lane and three dedicated right-turn lanes.

improvements to this intersection must be implemented by Caltrans and Sacramento County. The applicant

shall pay its proportionate share of funding of improvements to the agency responsible for improvements,

based on a program established by that agency to reduce the impacts to the Hazel AvenueIJ.S. 50 Westbound
Ramps Intersection (Caltrans Intersection 1).

Participate in Fair Share Funding of Improvements to Reduce Impacts on Eastbound US 50 between
Zinfandel Drive and Sunrise Boulevard (Freeway Segment 1). To ensure that Eastbound US 50 operates

at an acceptable LOS between Zinfandel Drive and Sunrise Boulevard, an additional eastbound lane could be

constructed. This improvement is not consistent with the Concept Facility in Caltrans State Route 50

Conidor Svstem Manasement Plant therefore. it is not likelv to be implemented bv Caltrans bv 2030.

3A.15-4o
(FPASP
EIR/EIS)

3A.15-4p
(FPASP
EIR/EIS)

3A.15-4q
(FPASP
ErR/f,rs)

106

-96

106

-97

r06
-98

Resolution No. 10670
Page 122 of 140

Page 247

06/14/2022 Item No.9.



a building
permit.

Condition
will be

satisfied
prior to
issuance of
a building
permit.

Condition
will be

satisfied
prior to
issuance of
a building
permit.

Transportation fees collected prior to
building permit issuance in this
subdivision,

This subdivision will pay its fair share of
the following improvements with the

payment of Specific Plan Infrastructure
Fees (SPIF), City Traffic Impact Fees

and Sacramento County Wide
Transportation fees collected prior to
building permit issuance in this
subdivision.

This subdivision will pay its fair share of
the following improvements with the
payment of Specific Plan Intiastructure
Fees (SPIF), City Traffic Impact Fees

and Sacramento County Wide
Transportation fees collected prior to
building permit issuance in this
subdivision.

Sacramento

County
Department of
Transportation.

Sacramento
County
Department of
Transportation.

prior to
approval ofthe
first subdivision
map to
determine
during which
project phase

the

improvement
should be built.

Betbre project
build out. A
phasing

analysis should
be performed
prior to
approval of the

tirst subdivision
map to
determine
during which
project phase

the
improvement
should be built

Before project

build out. A
phasing

analysis should
be performed
prior to
approval ofthe
first subdivision
map to
determine
during which
project phase

the

Construction of the Capitol South East Connector, including widening White Rock Road and Grant Line
Road to six lanes with limited access, could divert some traffic from U.S. 50 and partially mitigate the
project's impact. The applicant shall pay its proportionate share offunding ofimprovements to the agency
responsible for improvements, based on a program established by that agency to reduce the impacts to
Eastbound U.S. 50 between Zinfandel Drive and Sunrise Boulevard (Freeway Segment l).

Participate in Fair Share Funding of lnprovements to Reduce Impacts on Eastbound US 50 between
Rancho Cordova Parkway and Hazel Avenue (Freeway Segment 3). To ensure that Eastbound US 50

operates at an acceptable LOS between Rancho Cordova Parkway and Hazel Avenue, an additional
eastbound lane could be constructed. This improvement is not consistent with the Concept Facility in
Caltrans State Route 50 Corridor System Management Plan, therefore, it is not likely to be implemented by
Caltrans by 2030. Construction of the Capitol South East Connector, including widening White Rock Road
and Grant Line Road to six lanes with limited access, could divert some traffic offofU.S. 50 and partially
mitigate the project's impact, The applicant shall pay its proportionate share of lunding of improvements t0
the agency responsible for improvements, based on a program established by that agency to reduce the
impacts to Eastbound U.S. 50 between Rancho Cordova Parkway and Hazel Avenue (Freeway Segment 3).

Participate in Fair Share Funding of Improvements to Reduce Impacts on Eastbound US 50 between
Folsom Boulevard and Prairie City Road (f,'reeway Segment 5), To ensure that Eastbound US 50 operates
at an acceptable LOS between Folsom Boulevard and Prairie City Road, the eastbound auxiliary lane should
be converted to a mixed flow lane that extends to and drops at the Oak Avenue Parkway off ramp (see

mitigation measure 3A.l5-4t). Improvements to this freeway segment must be implemented by Caltrans. This
improvement is not consistent with the Concept Facility in Caltrans State Route 50 Conidor System
Management Plan; therefore, it is not likely to be implemented by Caltrans by 2030. Construction of the

Capitol South East Connector, including widening White Rock Road and Grant Line Road to six lanes with
limited access, could divert some traffic offofU.S. 50 and partially mitigate the project's impact. The
applicant shall pay its proportionate share of funding of improvements, as may be determined by a nexus
study or other appropriate and reliable mechanism paid for by applicant, to reduce the impacts to Eastbound
U.S. 50 between Folsom Boulevard and Prairie City Road (Freeway Segment 5).

3A.15-4r
(F'PASP

EIR/XIS)

34.15-4s
(FPASP
ErR/f,rs)

106
-99

106

100

Resolution No. 10670

Page 123 of 140

Page 248

06/14/2022 Item No.9.



Condrtion
will be

satisfied
prior to
issuance of
a building
permit.

Condition
will be

satisfied
prior to
issuance of
a building
permit.

Condition
will be

satisfied
prior to
issuance of

This subdivision will pay its fair share of
the following improvements with the
payment of Specific Plan Infrastructure

Fees (SPIF), City Traffic Impact Fees

and Sacramento County Wide
Transportation fees collected prior to
building permit issuance in this
subdivision.

This subdivision will pay its fair share of
the following improvements with the

payment of Specific Plan Infrastructure
Fees (SPIF), City Traffic Impact Fees

and Sacramento County Wide
Transportation fees collected prior to
building permit issuance in this
subdivision,

This subdivision will pay its fair share of
the following improvements with the
payment of Specific Plan Infrastructure
Fees (SPIF), City Traffic impact Fees

and Sacramento Countv Wide

Sacramento

County
Department of
Transportation.

Sacramento
County
Department of
Transportation.

Sacramento

County
D€partment of
Transportation,

improvement
should be built.

Before project

build out. A
phasing

analysis should
be performed
prior to
approval ofthe
first subdivision
map to
determine
during which
project phase

the

improvement
should be built.

Before project

build out. A
phasing
analysis should
be performed
prior to
approval of the
first subdivision
map to
determine
during which
project phase

the
improvement
should be built.

Before project

build out. A
phasing
analysis should
be oerformed

Participate in F'air Share Funding of Improvements to Reduce Impacts on Eastbound US 50 between

Prairie City Road and Oak Avenue Parkway (Freeway Segment 6). To ensure that Eastbound US 50

operates at an acceptable LOS between Prairie City Road and Oak Avenue Parkway, the northbound Prairie

City Road slip on ramp should merge with the eastbound auxiliary lane that extends to and drops at the Oak

Avenue Parkway off ramp (see Mitigation Measures 34. l5-4u, v and w), and the southbound Prairie City
Road flyover on ramp should be braided over the Oak Avenue Parkway off ramp and start an extended full
auxiliary lane to the East Bidwell Street - Scott Road off ramp. Improvements to this fieeway segment must

be implemented by Caltrans. The applicant shall pay its proportionate share of funding of improvements, as

may be determined by a nexus study or other appropriate and reliable mechanism paid tbr by applicant, to

reduce the impacts to Eastbound U.S. 50 between Prairie City Road and Oak Avenue Parkway (Freeway

Segment 6).

Participate in Fair Share Funding oflmprovements to Reduce Impacts on the U.S. 50 Eastbound /
Prairie City Road Slip Ramp Merge (Freeway Merge 6), To ensure that Eastbound US 50 operates at an

acceptable LOS, the northbound Prairie City Road slip on ramp should start the eastbound auxiliary lane that

extends to and drops at the Oak Avenue Parkway off ramp (see mitigation measure 3A. I 5-4u, w and x), and

the southbound Prairie City Road flyover on ramp should be braided over the Oak Avenue Parkway off ramp

and start an extended full auxiliary lane to the East Bidwell Street - Scott Road off ramp. Improvements to

this freeway segment must be implemented by Caltrans. The applicant shall pay its proportionate share of
funding of improvements, as may be determined by a nexus study or other appropriate and reliable

mechanism paid for by applicant, to reduce the rmpacts to the U.S. 50 Eastbound / Prairie City Road slip
ramp merge (Freeway Merge 6).

Participate in Fair Share Funding of Improvements to Reduce Impacts on the U.S, 50 Eastbound /
Prairie City Road Flyover On Ramp to Oak Avenue Parkway Off Ramp Weave (Freeway Weave 7).

To ensure that Eastbound US 50 operates at an acceptable LOS, the northbound Prairie City Road slip on
ramp should start the eastbound auxiliary lane that exlends to and drops at the Oak Avenue Parkway off ramp
(see mitieation measure 3A.15-4u. v and x). and the southbound Prairie City Road flyover on ramp should be

3A.15-4r

OPASP
EIR/EIS)

3A.15-4u
(FPASP
ErR/ErS)

3A.15-4v
(FPASP
ErR/ErS)

r06

t01

r06

102

142

t03

Resolution No. 1 0670
Pagel24 of 140

Page 249

06/14/2022 Item No.9.



a building
permit.

Condrtion
will be

satisfied
prior to
issuance of
a building
permit.

Condrtion
will be

satisfled
prior to
issuance of
a building
permit.

Transportation fees collected prior to
building permit issuance in this
subdrvision.

This subdivision will pay its fair share of
the following improvements with the
payment of Specific Plan Infrastructure

Fees (SPIF), City Traffic Impact Fees

and Sacramento County Wide
Transportation fees collected prior to
building permit issuance in this
subdivision.

This subdivision will pay its fair share of
the following improvements with the

payment of Specific Plan Infrastructure
Fees (SPIF), City Traffic Impact Fees

and Sacramento County Wide
Transportation fees collected prior to
building permit issuance in this
subdivision.

Sacramento

County
Department of
Transportation.

Sacramento

County
Department of
Transportation.

prior to
approval of the

first subdivision
map to
determine
during which
project phase

the
improvement
should be built.

Betbre project

build out. A
phasing

analysis should
be performed
prior to
approval ofthe
tirst subdivision
map to
determine
during which
project phase

the

improvement
should be built.

Before project

build out. A
phasing
analysis should
be performed
prior to
approval of the

first subdivision
map to
determine
during which
project phase

the

braided over the Oak Avenue Parkway off ramp and start an extended full auxiliary lane to the East Bidwell
Street - Scott Road off ramp. Improvements to this freeway segment must be implemented by Caltrans. The
applicant shall pay its proportionate share of funding of improvements, as may be determined by a nexus

study or other appropriate and reliable mechanism paid for by applicant, to reduce the impacts to the U.S. 50

Eastbound / Prairie City Road Flyover On Ramp to Oak Avenue Parkway Off Ramp Weave (Freeway Weave

7)

Participate in Fair Share Funding oflmprovements to Reduce Impacts on U,S. 50 Eastbound / Oak
Avenue Parkway Loop Ramp Merge (Freeway Merge 8). To ensure that Eastbound US 50 operates at an

acceptable LOS, the southbound Oak Avenue Parkway loop on ramp should merge with the eastbound

auxiliary lane that starts at the southbound Prairie City Road braided flyover on ramp and ends at the East

Bidwell Street - Scott Road off ramp (see mitigation measure 34. l5-4u, v and w). Improvements to this

freeway segment must be implemented by Caltrans. The applicant shall pay its proportionate share of funding
of improvements, as may be determined by a nexus study or other appropriate and reliable mechanism paid

for by applicant, to reduce the impacts to U.S. 50 Eastbound i Oak Avenue Parkway Loop Ramp Merge
(Freeway Merge 8).

Participate in Fair Share Funding of Improvements to Reduce Impacts on U.S, 50 Westbound /
Empire Ranch Road Loop Ramp Merge (Freeway Merge 27). To ensure that Westbound US 50 operates

at an acceptable LOS, the northbound Empire Ranch Road loop on ramp should start the westbound auxiliary
lane that ends at the East Bidwell Street - Scott Road off ramp. The slip on ramp from southbound Empire

Ranch Road slip ramp would merge into this extended auxiliary lane. Improvements to this freeway segment
must be implemented by Caltrans. The applicant shall pay its proportionate share of funding of
improvements, as may be determined by a nexus study or other appropriate and reliable mechanism paid for
by applicant, to reduce the impacts to the U.S. 50 Westbound / Empire Ranch Road loop ramp merge
(Freeway Merge2T).

3A.15-4w
(FPASP
EIR/EIS)

3A.15-4x
(FPASP
ErR/ErS)

106

104

106

I05

Resolution No. 10670

Page 125 of 140

Page 250

06/14/2022 Item No.9.



Condition
will be

satisfied
prior to
issuance of
a building
permit.

Condition
will be

satisfied
prior to
issuance of
a

Certificate
of
Occupancy
in the

subdivision

Condition
will be

satisfied
prior to
issuance of
a

This subdivision will pay its fair share of
the following improvements with the
payment of Specific Plan Infrastructure

Fees (SPIF), City Traffic Impact Fees

and Sacramento County Wide
Transportation fees collected prior to
building permit issuance in this
subdivision.

This condition will be satisfied prior to
issuance of the 546s building permit in
the Phase 2 portion ofthe Toll Brothers
at Folsom Ranch Regency project in
accordance with previous conditions of
approval. The Phase I portion ofthe
Regency project consists of 545 dwelling
units, The VTSM for the Phase 2 portion

of the Regency project has not yet been

approved by the City Council.

The Capital Southeast Connector -JPA

has executed a construction contract with
Goodfellow Brothers, Inc. to construct
the Capital Southeast Connector from
Prairie City Road to East Bidwell Street.

The construction contract was executed

Sacramento

County
Department of
Transportation.

City ofFolsom
Community
Development
Department

City of Folsom
Community
Development
Department

improvement
should be built.

Before project

build out. A
phasing

analysis should
be performed
prior to
approval ofthe
first subdivision
map to
determine
during which
project phase

the

improvement
should be built.

Prior to
issuance of
phase 3

building
permits.

Prior to
issuance of
phase I
building
permits.

Participate in Fair Share tr'unding of Improvements to Reduce Impacts on U,S. 50 Westbound / Prairie
City Road Loop Ramp Merge (Freeway Merge 35). To ensure that Westbound US 50 operates at an

acceptable LOS, the northbound Prairie City Road loop on ramp should start the westbound auxiliary lane

that continues beyond the Folsom Boulevard off ramp. The slip on ramp from southbound Prairie City Road

slip ramp would merge into this extended auxiliary lane. Improvements to this fieeway segment must be

implemented by Caltrans, The applicant shall pay its proportionate share of funding of improvements, as may

be determined by a nexus study or other appropriate and reliable mechanism paid for by applicant, to reduce

the impacts to the U.S. 50 Westbound / Prairie City Road Loop Ramp Merge (Freeway Merge 35).

East Bidwell Street/Regency Parkway (Driveway #6). Prior to buildout of the Toll Brothers Site, the

project applicant shall construct the intersection as shown in Figure 4-2 of the Addendum:

Northbound: one thru lane and one left turn lane in a I 50-foot pocket with 60-loot taper,

Southbound: one thru lane and one right turn lane in a 150-foot pocket with 60-foot taper;

Westbound: one shared lane, plus a 300-foot northbound acceleration lane on East Bidwell Street to

receive left-turns from Regency Parkway (a second northbound lane on East Bidwell Sheet starting from
Regency Parkway is equivalent to the 300-foot acceleration lane); and

> Control: side-street-stop-control;

Note that unsignalized left turns to East Bidwell Street are against City poticy. The northbound acceleration

lane on East Bidwell Street is an interim configuration until the intersection wanants signalization.

Signalization will be triggered as part of the entitlement process on neighboring parcels. A future signal at

this location is included in Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan, and plan area fees paid by the Project contribute

towards its construction in the fuhre.

Erst Bidwell StreetMhite Rock Road, Prior to buildout of the Toll Brothers Site, the project applicant shall

implement either (A) or (B) below:

(A) The Capital Southeast Connector Joint Powers Authority project has programmed to relocate and

signalize the East Bidwell StreetMhite Rock Road intersection as shown in the October 2017 geometric

conceptual drawing, or equivalent improvements (i.e., three southbound approach lanes, four eastbound

approach lanes, and three westbound approach lanes). Figure 4-3 of the Addendum provides a conceptual

3A.15-4y

OPASP
ErR/XrS)

4.17-l
(Addendum)

4.17-2
(Addendum)

106

106

106

107

106

r08

Resolution No. 10670

Page 126 of 140

Page 251

06/14/2022 Item No.9.



Certificate
of
Occupancy
in the
subdrvision

Condition
will be

satisfied
prior to
issuance of
a building
permit.

Yes

in December of 2020. Grading and

construction commenced in April 2021

The project will include the relocation
and signalization of the existing White
Rock Road/East Bidwell Street

intersection. The owner/applicant will
pay the Sacramento County
Transportation Development Fee prior to
issuance of all building permits in the
subdivision.

The Community Development
Department has reviewed and approved
the improvement plans for the

construction of these required
improvements including the plans for the

modification to the existing traffic signal
at the intersection of East Bidwell Street

and Mangini Parkway. These

improvements are cunently under
construction.

The required improvements in this
condition have been completed and

accepted by the City. These

improvements were constructed as part

of the off-site improvements for the

City of Folsom
Community
Development
Department

City of Folsom
Community
Development
Department

Signalize the

intersection and

conduct all
geometric
improvements,
with the

exception of the
second

northbound thru
lane prior to
issuance of
phase I
building
permits.

Construct the
second

northbound thru
lane prior to
issuance of
phase 2

building
permits.

Construct all
geometric
improvements
with the

exception of
one thru

intersection layout for this mitigation. Under this scenario, fair share is defined as the project's
responsibility to the Sacramento County Transportation Development Fee. The project applicant is
required to pay the Sacramento County Transportation Development Fee. Option A can be considered to
be implemented once the JPA has let contracts for construction of the new intersection. This will insure
that the mitigation is constructed before project traffic adds five or more seconds of delay to the

intersection.

(B) Signalize the existing East Bidwell StreetAVhite Rock Road intersection with the existing geometry
Figure 4-4 of the Addendum provides a conceptual intersection layout for this mitigation.

East Bidwell Street/Mangini Parkway, Prior to buildout of the Toll Brothers Site, the project applicant
shall signalize the intersection with the following geome try @igure 4-5 of the Addendum):

> Northbound: One left-turn lane in a 200-foot pocket with a 60-foot taper, two th'ru lanes, and one right-
turn lane in a I 50-foot pocket with a 60-foot taper (the second tluu lane shall be developed 300 feet

south of the intersection);

> Southbound: One left-turn lane in a 200-foot pocket with a 60-foot taper, one thru lane, and one right-
tum lane in a I 50-foot pocket with a 60-foot taper;

> Eastbound and westbound: One left-turn lane in a 200-foot pocket with a 60-foot taper, one thru lane,

and one right-turn lane in a 200-foot pocket with a 60-lbot taper.

Note that northbound East Bidwell street will remain at two lanes from Mangini Parkway to US 50.

East Bidwell Street/Savannah Parkway. Prior to buildout of the Toll Brothers site, the project applicant
shall reconstruct the rntersection with the following geometry (Figure 4-6 of the Addendum):

> Northbound approach: One thru lane and one shared through-right lane with a 150-foot taper;

> Southbound approach: One left turn lane in a 150-foot pocket plus 60-foot taper, and one through lane;

> Westbound approach; One left turn lane in a 60-foot pocket plus 60-foot taper, and one through lane;

4.17-3
(Addendum)

4.17-4
(Addendum)

106

t09

r06

110

Resolution No. 10670
Page 127 of 140

Page 252

06/14/2022 Item No.9.



Condition
will be

satisfied
prior to
issuance of
a building
permit in
the
subdivision

Mangini Ranch Phase 2, Village No. 7
subdivision.

The Community Development
Department has approved the plans for
the reconstruction and signalization of
the East Bidwell Street/Alder Creek
Parkway intersection in accordance with
this condition.

City of Folsom
Community
Development
Department

northbound lane
prior to
issuance of
phase 1

building
permits.

Construct the
second thru
northbound lane

prior to
issuance of
phase 3

building
permits.

Construct all
geometric

improvements
with the
exception of
one thru
northbound lane

and one thru
southbound
Iane prior to
issuance of
phase 1

building
permits.

Construct the
second thru
northbound lane

and the second

thru southbound
lane prior to
issuance of
phase 3

building
permits.

> Southbound departure: Construct a southbound receiving and acceleration lane for westbound left turn

traffic. The acceleration lane should be in a 300-foot pocket plus an appropriate taper.

Note that unsignalized left tums to East Bidwell Street are against City policy. The southbound acceleration

lane on East Bidwell Street is an interim configuration until the intersection wanants signalization.

Signalization will be triggered as part of the entitlement process on neighboring parcels. A future signal at

this location is included in FPASP, and plan area fees paid by the project applicant contribute towards its

construction in the future,

East Bidwell Street/Alder Creek Parkway. Prior to buildout of the Toll Brothers Site, the project applicant
shall reconstruct and signalize the intersection as shown in Figure 4-7 ofthe Addendum:

> Northbound approach: One U-turn lane in a 150-foot pocket with a 60-fbot taper, two through lanes, and

one right turn lane in a 150-foot pocket plus 60-foot taper.

> Southbound approach: One left turn lane in a 240-foot pocket plus 60-foot taper, and two through lanes.

The second southbound through lane can be dropped south of Old Ranch Way.

> Westbound approach: One right turn lane, plus one left-turn lane in a 200-foot pocket plus 60-foot taper.

The above mitigations are consistent with the ultimate geometry for East Bidwell near Alder Creek Pkwy and

builds on conditions of approval from neighboring projects.

4.17-S
(Addendum)

I06

llt

Resolution No. 10670
Page 128 of 140

Page 253

06/14/2022 Item No.9.



Condition
will be

satisfied
prior to
issuance of
a

Certificate
of
Occupancy
in the

Phase 3
subdivision

Yes

Yes

The Capital Southeast Connector-JPA
project rs cunently under construction.
The Connector project will implement
and complete Option A in this condition.
The owner/applicant shall implement the

required improvements to the

intersection in compliance with this
condition prior to issuance of the first
Certificate ofOccupancy in the Phase 3
(Traditional Subdivision) portion of the

project.

The Phase I Sanitary Sewer
infrastructure including the off-site
sewer trunk main, the Alder Creek
Parkway sewer lift station and forced
main to serve this subdivision have been

constructed by the FPA landowners and

have been completed and accepted by
the City and are cunently in operation.

The City obtained a letter from Regional
San which provides verification that
there is adequate capacity in the existing
Regional San conveyance and treatment
system to accommodate the entire
Folsom Plan Area at buildout.
Confirmation from Regional San was

required because the Folsom Plan Area
is served bv the existins Resional San

Crty of Folsom
Community
Development
Department

Utilities and Service Systems

Crty of Folsom
Community
Development
Department and

City of Folsom
EWR
Department

City of Folsom
Community
Development
Department and

City of Folsom
EWR
Department

Prror to
issuance of
phase 3

building
permits

Before approval
of final maps

and issuance of
building
permits for any
project phases.

Betbre approval
of final maps

and issuance of
building
permits tbr any
project phases.

White Rock Road/Oak Avenue Parkway. Prior to project buildout, the project applicant shall implement
either (A) or (B) below:

(A) The Capital Southeast Connector Joint Powers Authority (JPA) project has programmed to realign this
portion of White Rock Road and build a partial signal to accommodate anticipated U-Turns. Expand or
construct a signalized intersection as follows:

> Southbound. A single shared lane for left and right turns.

> Eastbound: A thru lane and a leff,{J-turn in 300-foot pocket plus taper.

> Westbound: A thru lane and a right-turn in 300-foot pocket plus taper.

> Signalize with protected phasing for left-turns and U-tums.

> Geometric design shall be consistent with Capital Southeast Connector Joint Powers Authority adopted

standards.

(B) Channelize the White Rock Road/Oak Avenue Pkwy intersection on the existing White Rock Road

alignment to restrict turning movements to westbound right turns and southbound right turns. The westbound
right turn requires a 365-foot deceleration lane, and the southbound right turn requires a 960-foot acceleration

lane. Figure 4-8 ofthe Addendum provides a conceptual layout for the mitigated intersection.

Submit Proof of Adequate On- and Off-Site Wastewater Conveyance F'acilities and Implement On-
and Off-Site Infrastructure Service Systems or Ensure That Adequate Financing Is Secured. Before the

approval of the final map and issuance of building permits for all project phases, the project applicant(s) of
all project phases shall submit proof to the City of Folsom that an adequate wastewater conveyance system
either has been constructed or is ensured through payment of the City's iacilities augmentation fee as

described under the Folsom Municipal Code Title 3, Chapter 3.40, "Facilities Augmentation Fee - Folsom

South Area Facilities Plan," or other sureties to the City's satisfaction. Both on*ite wastewater conveyance
infrastructure and offxite force main sufficient to provide adequate service to the project shall be in place for
the amount ofdevelopment identified in the tentative map before approval ofthe final map and issuance of
building permits for all project phases, or their financing shall be ensured to the satisfaction of the City.

Demonstrate Adequate SRWTP Wastewater Treatment Capacity. The project applicant(s) of all project
phases shall demonstrate adequate capacity at the SRWTP for new wastewater flows generated by the
project. This shall involve preparing a tentative maplevel study and paying connection and capacity fees as

identified by SRCSD. Approval ofthe final map and issuance ofbuilding permits for all project phases shall
not be granted until the City verifies adequate SRWTP capacity is available for the amount of development
identified in the tentative map.

4.17-6
(Addendum)

34.16-1
(FPASP
f,rR/f,rs)

3A.16-3
(FPASP
f,IR/ErS)

106

tt2

r06

lt3

r06

114

Resolution No. 1 0670
Page 129 of 140

Page 254

06/14/2022 Item No.9.



Yes

Yes

Yes

Lift Station on Iron Point Road. The City
Sewer Lift Station and Forced Main
which connects to the Regional San Lift
Station has been accepted by the City
and is currently in operation.

The owner/applicant has constructed the
necessary intrastructure to provide
potable waterto the subdivision The
potable Phase I water infrastructure for
the Folsom Plan Area has been reviewed,
approved and accepted by the City and is
currently in operation.

The off-site potable water infrastructure
to serve the subdivision has been

reviewed, approved and accepted by the

City and is cunently in operation. In
addition, the City has verified that the
off-site potable water infrastructure is
adequate to serve the subdivision.

This condition is not applicable to this
subdivision. The water supply for this
subdivision is provided by the City of
Folsom Water Treatment Plant rather
than an Off-Site Water Treatment Plant

City of Folsom
Community
Development
Department and

City of Folsom
EWR
Department

City of Folsom
Community
Development
Department and

City of Folsom
EWR
Department

City of Folsom
Community
Development
Department and

City of Folsom
EWR
Department

Before approval
of tinal maps

and issuance of
building
permits for any
project phases.

Before approval
of final maps

and issuance of
building
permits for any
project phases.

Before approval
offinal maps

and issuance of
building
permits for any
project phases.

Submit Proof of Surface Water Supply Availability. a. Prior to approval of any small-lot tentative
subdivision map subject to Government Code Seclion 66473.7 (SB 221), the City shall comply with that
statute. Prior to approval of any smalllot tentative subdivision map for a proposed residential project not
subject to that statute, the City need not comply with Section 66473.7, or formally consult with any public
water system that would provide water to the affected area; nevertheless, the City shall make a factual
showing or impose conditions similar to those required by Section 66473.7 to ensure an adequate water
supply for development authorized by the map. b. Prior to recordation of each final subdivision map, or pnor
to City approval of any similar project-specific discretionary approval or entitlement required for
nonresidential uses, the project applicant(s) ofthat project phase or activity shall demonstrate the availability
of a reliable and sufficient water supply from a public water system for the amount of development that
would be authorized by the final subdivision map or project-specific discretionary nonresidential approval or
entitlement. Such a demonstration shall consist of information showing that both existing sources are

available or needed supplies and improvements will be in place prior to occupancy.

Submit Proof of Adequate Ofl-Site Water Conveyance tr'acilities and Implement Off-Site
Infrastructure Service System or Ensure That Adequate Financing Is Secured, Before the approval of
the final subdivision map and issuance of building permits for all project phases, the project applicant(s) of
any particular discretionary development application shall submit proof to the City of Folsom that an

adequate off-site water conveyance system either has been constructed or is ensured or other sureties to the
City's satisfaction. The off-site water conveyance infrastructure sufficient to provide adequate service to the
project shall be in place for the amount ofdevelopment identified in the tentative map before approval ofthe
final subdivision map and issuance of building permits for all project phases, or their financing shall be
ensured to the satisfaction ofthe City. A certificate of occupancy shall not be issued for any building within
the SPA until the water conveyance iniiastructure sufTicient to serve such building has been constructed and
is in place.

Demonstrate Adequate Off-Site Water Treatment Capacity (if the Off-Site Water Treatment Plant
Option is Selected), If an off*ite water treatment plant (WTP) alternative is selected (as opposed to the on-
site WTP alternative), the project applicant(s) for any particular discretionary development application shall
demonstrate adequate capacity at the off-site WTP. This shall involve preparing a tentatlve map-level study
and paying connection and capacity fees as determined by the City. Approval ofthe final project map shall
not be granted until the City verifies adequate water treatment capacity either is available or is certain to be
available when needed for the amount of development identified in the tentative map before approval ofthe
final map and issuance of buildine permits for all proiect phases. A certificate of occuDancv shall not be

34.18-1
(FPASP
EIR/EIS)

3A.18-2a
(FPASP
ErR/ErS)

3A.lE-2b
(FPASP
ErR/[rs)

106

lls

106

1r6

106

117

Resolution No. 10670
Page 130 of 140

Page 255

06/14/2022 Item No.9.



Condition
will be

satistled
prior to
approval of
a future
TMP,

The Community Development
Department and the Public Works
Department will work closely to
implement the future Truck Management
Plan (TMP) and coordinate responses to

any future entitlement and CEQA
compliance need for the TMP and make

sure the requirements in this condition of
approval are met to the satisfaction of the

City

Additional Measures

City of Folsom
Community
Development
Department

Prior to
approval of first
tentative map or
drscretionary
approval within
SPA that would
place sensitive
receptors along
roadways that
quarry trucks
would
reasonably use

to access U.S.
Highway 50.

issued for any building within the SPA until the water treatment capacity sufficient to serve such building has

been constructed and is in place.

Implement East Sacramento Regional Aggregate Mining Truck Management Plan or Other Measures

to Reduce f,xposure of Sensitive Receptors to Operational Emissions of Toxic Air Contaminants from

Quarry Truck Traffic, The City of Folsom is a participant in the development of an East Sacramento

Regional Aggregate Mining Truck Management Plan (TMP), a cooperative effort led by the County of
Sacramento, with the input ofthe City ofFolsom, the City ofRancho Cordova and other interested parties,

including representatives of quarry project applicants. When the County Board of Supervisors approved

entitlements for the Teichert quarry project in November 201 0, it also adopted conditions of approval and a

development agreement that requires Teichert's participation in, and fair share funding of, a TMP to
implement roadway capacity and safety improvements required to improve the compatibility of truck traffic
from the quarries with the future urban development in the Folsom Specific Plan area and otherjurisdictions
that will be affected by quarry truck traffic. The development agreement adopted by the County for the

Teichert project imposes limits on the amounts ofannual aggregate sales from Teichert's facility unhl a TMP
is adopted. The City of Folsom does not have directjurisdiction over the Teichert, DeSilva Gates, or
Walltown quarry project applicants as these projects are located within the unincorporated portion of the

County. The County, as the agency with the primary authority over the quanies, has indicated that it intends

to prepare an environmental analysis in accordance with CEQA prior to adoption of a TMP. The City's
authority to control the activities ofthe quarry trucks includes restrictions or other actions, such as the

approval and implementation of specialized road improvements to accommodate quarry truck traffic, that

would be applicable within the City's jurisdictional boundaries. For the foregoing reasons, the City of
Folsom considers itself a "responsible agency" (as that term is defined at State CEQA Guidelines, CCR

Section 15381), in that it has some discretionary power over some elements of a future TMP, if such TMP
calls for improvements or other activities on roadways within the jurisdiction of the City. In a responsible
agency role, the City would follow the process specified in the CEQA Guidelines for consideration and

approval of the environmental analysis prepared by the County for a TMP after such documentation is
prepared and adopted by the County. (State CEQA Guidelines, CCR Section 15096.)

Because no final project description for aTMP has been developed as ofthe completion ofthis FEIRTFEIS,
the City would have to speculate as to those portions of a TMP that might be proposed for implementation
within its jurisdiction, or the impacts that could arise from the implementation of as-yet uncertain
components. Accordingly, formulation of the precise means of mitigating the potential cumulative air quality
impacts pursuant to the TMP is not cunently feasible or practical. However, as the preferred, feasible, and

intended mitigation strategy to address the cumulative impacts of quarry truck traffic through the SPA, the
City shall implement, or cause to be implemented those portions of the TMP (as described above) that are

within its authority to control. In implementing the TMP, the City shall ensure that the TMP or traffic
measures imposed by the City within the SPA reduce the risk of cancer to sensitive receptors along routes

within the SPA from toxic air contaminant emissions to no more than 296 in one million (SMAQMD 2009.

Cumulative
Mitigation
Measure AIR-
l-Land
(FPASP
ErR/f,rs)

106

I18

Resolution No. 10670

Page 131 of 140

Page 256

06/14/2022 Item No.9.



March. Recommended Protocol for Evaluating the Location of Sensitive Land Uses Adjacent to Major
Roadways, Version 2 2:7), or such different tlueshold of significance mandated by SMAQMD or ARB at the

time, if any. With this mitigation, the cumulative air quality impacts from truck toxic air contaminants would
be less than significant.

As an alternative (or in addition) to implementing the TMP within the SPA, the following measures could
(and should) be voluntarily implemented by the quarry project applicant(s) (Teichert, DeSilva Gates, and

Granite [Walltown]) to help ensure exposure of sensitive receptors to TACs generated by quarry truck traffic
to the 296-in-one-million threshold of significance identified above. The City encourages implementation of
the following measures:

> The quarry project applicant(s) should meet with the City of Folsom to discuss mitigation strategies,

implementation, and cost.

> A site-specific, project-level screening analysis and/or Health fusk Assessment (HRA) should be

conducted by the City of Folsom and funded by the truck applicant($ for all proposed sensitive receptors
(e.g., residences, schools) in the SPA that would be located along the sides of roadway segments that are

identified in Table 4-4 as being potentially significant under any of the analyzed scenarios. Each project-
level analysis shall be performed according to the standards set forth by SMAQMD for the purpose of
disclosure to the public and decision makers, The projecllevel analysis shall account for the location of
the receptors relative to the roadway, their distance from the roadway, the prqected future traffic volume

for the year 2030 (including the proportion ofdiesel trucks), and emission rates representative ofthe
vehicle fleet for the year when the sensitive land uses would first become operational and/or occupied. If
the incremental increase in cancer risk determined by in the HM exceeds 296 in one million (or a
different threshold of significance recommended by SMAQMD or ARB at the time, if any), then project

design mitigation should be employed, which may include the lbllowing:

. Increase the setback distance between the roadway and affected receptor. If this mitigation measure is

determined by the City of Folsom to be necessary, based on the results of the HRA, the quarry truck
applicant(s) should pay the Folsom South ofU.S. 50 Specific Plan project applicant(s) and the City of
Folsom a fee that shall serve as compensation for lost development profit and lost City tax revenues, all
as determined by the parties, Said mitigation t'ee shall be determined in consultation with the quarry
project applicant(s), the Folsom South ofU.S. 50 Specific Plan project applicant(s), and the City of
Folsom. No quarry trucks shall be allowed to pass on any roadway segment immediately adjacent to or
within the SPA until said mitigation fees are paid.

. Implement tiered tree planting of fine-needle species, such as redwood, along the near side of the

roadway segments and, if feasible, along the roadway 500 feet in both directions of the initial planting
(e.g., 500 feet north and south ofa roadway that runs east-west) to enhance the dispersion and filtration
of mobile-source TACs associated with the adjacent roadway. These trees should be planted at a density
such that a solid visual buffer is achieved after the trees reach maturitv. which breaks the line of sisht

Resolution No. 10670
Page 132 of 140

Page 257

06/14/2022 Item No.9.



Condrtion
will be

satisfied
prior to
approval of
a future
TMP,

The Community Development
Department and the Public Works
Department will work closely to
implement the future Truck Management

Plan (TMP) and coordinate responses to

any future entitlement and CEQA
compliance need for the TMP and make

sure the requirements in this condition of
approval are met to the satisfaction of the

City.

City of Folsom
Community
Development
Department

Prior to
approval of first
tentative map or
discretionary
approval within
SPA that would
place sensitive
receptors along
roadways that
quarry trucks
would
reasonably use

to access U.S.
50.

between U. S. 50 and the proposed homes. These trees should be planted before occupation of any

affected sensitive land uses. This measure encourages the planting ofthese trees in advance ofthe
construction of potentially affected receptors to allow the trees to become established and progress

toward maturity. The life of these trees should be maintained through the duration of the quany

projects. The planting, cost, and ongoing maintenance ofthese trees should be funded by the quarry

project applicant(s),

. To improve the indoor au quality at affected receptors, implement the following measures before the

occupancy ofthe attected residences and schools:

. equip all affected residences and school buildings developed in the SPA with High Efficiency Particle

Arresting (HEPA) filter systems at all mechanical air intake points to the interior rooms;

. use the heating, ventilation, and air conditioning (HVAC) systems to maintain all residential units under

positive pressure at all times;

. locate air intake systems for HVAC as far away from roadway air pollution sources as possible; and

. develop and implement an ongoing education and maintenance plan about the filhation systems

associated with HVAC for residences and schools.

To the extent this indoor air quality mitigation would not already be implemented as part of the Folsom South

ofU.S. 50 Specific Plan project development, this mitigation should be paid for by the quarry project

applicant(s) before any quarry trucks are allowed to pass on any roadway that is within 400 feet of any

residence or school within ihe SPA.

Implement East Sacramento Regional Aggregate Mining Truck Management Plan or Other Measures

to Reduce Exposure of Sensitive Receptors to Operational Noise from Quarry Truck Traffic, The City
of Folsom is a participant in the development of an East Sacramento Regional Aggregate Mining Truck
Management Plan (TMP), a cooperative effort led by the County of Sacramento, with the input of the City of
Folsom, the City of Rancho Cordova and other interested parties, including representatives of quarry project

applicants. When the County Board of Supervisors approved entitlements for the Teichert quarry prqect in
November 2010, it also adopted conditions ofapproval and a development agreement that requires Teichert's
participation in, and fair share funding of, a TMP to implement roadway capacity and safety improvements

required to improve the compatibility oftruck traffic from the quanies with the future urban development in
the SPA and other jurisdictions that will be affected by quarry truck traffic. The development agreement

adopted by the County for the Teichert project imposes limits on the amounts of annual aggregate sales from
Teichert's facility until a TMP is adopted. The City ofFolsom does not have directjurisdiction over the

Teichert, DeSilva Gates, or Walltown quarry project applicants as these projects are located within the

unincorporated portion of the County. The County, as the agency with the primary authority over the

quanies, has indicated that it intends to prepare an environmental analysis in accordance with CEQA prior to
adoption of a TMP. The City's authority to control the activities of the quarry trucks includes restrictions or
other actions" such as the aooroval and imolementation of specialized road imDrovements to accommodate

Cumulative
Mitigation
Measure
NOISE-1-Land

(FPASP
ErR/ErS)

106

r19

Resolution No. 10670
Page 133 of 140

Page 258

06/14/2022 Item No.9.



quarry truck traffic, that would be applicable within the City's jurisdictional boundaries. For the foregoing
reasons, the City of Folsom considers itself a "responsible agency" (as that term is defined at State CEQA
Guidelines, CCR Section 1538 I ), in that it has some discretionary power over some elements of a future
TMP, if such TMP calls for improvements or other activities on roadways within the jurisdiction of the City.
In a responsible agency role, the City woutd follow the process specified in the CEQA Guidelines for
consideration and approval of the environmental analysis prepared by the County for a TMP after such
documentation is prepared and adopted by the County. (State CEQA Guidelines, CCR Section 15096.)

Because no final project description for a TMP has been developed as of the completion of this FEIR/FEIS,
the City would have to speculate as to those portions of a TMP that might be proposed for implementation
within its jurisdiction, or the impacts that could arise from the of as yet uncertain components. Accordingly,
formulation of the precise means of mitigating the potential cumulative noise impacts pursuant to the TMP is
not cunently feasible or practical. However, as the preferred, feasible, and intended mitigation strategy to
address the cumulative impacts of quarry truck traffic through the SPA, the City shall implement, or cause to
be implemented those portions of the TMP (as described above) that are within its authority to control. In
implementing the TMP, the City shall ensure that the TMP or traffic measures imposed by the City within the
SPA reduce the traffic noise exposure to sensitive receptors along routes within the SPA so as to ensure that
sensitive receptors are not exposed to interior noise levels in excess of45 dBA, or increases in interior noise
levels of 3 dBA or more, whichever is more resfrictive. Wlth this mitigation, the cumulative noise impacts
from truck traffic would be less than significant.

As an alternative (or in addition) to implementing the TMP within the SPA, the following measures could
(and should) be voluntarily implemented by the quarry project applicant(s) (Teichert, DeSilva Gates, and
Granite [Walltown]) to help ensure interior noise levels for sensitive receptors to noise generated by quarry
truck traffic would not exceed 45 dBA or increase of 3 dBA over existing conditions, as identified above.
The City encourages implementation ofthe following measures:

> The quarry project applicant(s) should meet with the City ofFolsom to discuss mitigation strategies,

implementation, and cost.

> A site-specific, project-level screening analysis should be conducted by the City of Folsom and funded
by the quarry truck applicant(s) for all proposed sensitive receptors (e.g., residences, schools) in the SPA
that would be located along the sides of roadway segments that a-re identified in Table 4-8 as being
potenhally significant under any of the analyzed scenarios. The analysis should be conducted using an

approved three dimensional traffic noise modeling program (i,e., TNM or SoundPlan). Each project-
level analysis should be performed according to the standards set forth by the City of Folsom for the
purpose of disclosure to the public and decision makers. The project-level analysis should account for
the location ofthe receptors relative to the roadway, their distance from the roadway, and the projected
future traffic volume for the vear 2030 (includine the Dercentase of heaw trucks). If the incremental

Resolution No. 10670
Page I 34 of 140

Page 259

06/14/2022 Item No.9.



The FPA landowners have satisfied all of
the mitigation measures for the design
and construction of the Phase I Water

Crty of Folsom
Community
Development

Belbre approval
of final maps

and issuance of

increase in traffic noise levels are determined to exceed the threshold of significance recommended by

the City of Folsom, then design mitigation should be employed, which may include the following:

> Model the benefits of soundwalls (berm/wall combination) along the quarry truck hauling roadways and

affected receptors not to exceed a total height of eight feet (two-foot berm and six-foot concrete mason

wall). If this mitigation measure is determined by the City of Folsom to be inadequate, additional three
dimensional traffic noise modeling should be conducted with the inclusion of rubberized asphalt at the
expense of the quarry truck applicant(s). No quarry trucks should be allowed to pass on any roadway
segment immediately adjacent to or within the SPA until said mitigation has been agreed upon by the

City of Folsom and fees for construction of said mitigation are paid by the quarry truck applicant(s).

> Implement the installation ofrubberized asphalt (quiet pavement) on roadway segments adjacent to
sensitive receptors that cany quarry trucks if soundwalls do not provide adequate reduction of traffrc
noise levels. The inclusion of rubberized asphalt would provide an additional 3 to 5 dB of traffic noise
reduction. The cost of construction using rubberized asphalt should be borne by the quarry truck
applicant(s). Said mitigation fee should be determined in consultation with the quarry project

applicant(s), the Folsom South of U.W. 50 Specific Plan project applicant(s), and the City of Folsom. No
quarry trucks should be allowed to pass on any roadway segment immediately adjacent to or within the

SPA until said mitigation fees are paid.

> To improve the indoor noise levels at affected receptors, implement the following measures before the
occupancy ofthe affected residences and schools.

' Conduct an interior noise analysis once detailed construction plans ofresidences adjacent to affected
roadways are available to determine the required window package at second and third floor receptors to
achieve the interior noise level standard of 45 dB Ldn without quarry trucks.

. Determine the interior quarry truckfaffic noise level increases at second and third floor receptors
adjacent to affected roadways compared to no quarry truck conditions. Window package upgrades are

expected to be necessary due to the traffic noise level increases caused by quarry trucks along affected
roadways. Quarry truck applicant(s) should pay for the cost of window package upgrades (increased

sound transmission class rated windows) required to achieve the interior noise level standard of 45 dB
Ldn with the inclusion of quarry truck traftlc.

To the extent this noise mitigation would not already be implemented as part of the Folsom South of
U.W. 50 Specific Plan project development, this mitigation should be paid for by the quarry project
applicant(s) before any quarry trucks are allowed to pass on any roadway that is within 400 feet of any
residence or school within the SPA.

Coordinate and Fund the Backbone Infrastructure and Off-Site Water Facility Alternative, The project
applicant shall participate in the FPASP owners' group and shall fund and contribute their fair share to the

backbone infrastructure and off+ite water facility altemative improvements. The project applicant shall

N/A106

t20

Resolution No. 10670
Page I 35 of I 40

Page 260

06/14/2022 Item No.9.



and Sewer Backbone Infrastructure to

serve the first of development in the
FPA. The Phase 1 backbone
Infrastrucfure was completed and

accepted by the City in 20 I 8 and is

cunently in use in the FPA and being
owned and operated by the City. The off-
site water facility altemative
improvements were not implemented.
The water for the FPA was provided

through the conservation of existing
water in the City. The new water supply
alternative was validated in 2014

Department and

City of Folsom
Public Works
Department

building
permits for any
project phase,

the project

applicant shall
demonstrate to
the City's
satisfaction the
fair share

contribution
towards
implementation
of Backbone
Infrastrucfure
and Off-Site
Water Facility
improvements
and associated

required
mitigation as

identified in the

Folsont South of
U.S. Highwav
50 Backbone
Infrastructure
Mitigated
Negative
Declaration
(December

2014) or the
Revised
Proposed Ofl-
Site Water
Facility
Alternative
Addendum to
the FPASP
EINEIS

coordinate with owners' group to implement the following measures detailed inlhe Folsom Soulh of U.S.

Highway 5 0 Backb one Infrastructure Mitigated Negativ e Declaration (December 20 I 4):

> Backbone MND Mitigation Measure I-l: Design above ground pump station and storage tank facilities
to reduce visual impacts.

> Backbone MND Mitigation Measure I-2: Develop and implement a landscaping plan for pump station

and storage tank facilities to reduce visual impacts.

> Backbone MND Mitigation Measure III-l: Prepare and Implement NOX Reduction Plan

> Backbone MND Mitigation Measure III-2: Pay Off-site Mitigatron Fee to SMAQMD to off-set NOX
Emissions Generated by Constructron.

> Backbone MND Mitigation Measure III-4: Implement A Site Investigation to Determine the Presence of
NOA and, if necessary, Prepare and Implement an Asbestos Dust Control Plan.

> Backbone MND Mitigation Measure IV-l: Conduct Special'Status Plant Surveys; Implement Avoidance

and Mitigation Measures or Compensatory Mitigation

> Backbone MND Mitigation Measure IV-2: Implement Conditions of the Biological Opinion (BO) for
Federally Lisled Vernal Pool Invertebrates.

> Backbone MND Mitigation Measure IV-3: Implement Conditions of the Biological Opinion for Impacts

on Valley Elderberry Longhorn Beetle.

> Backbone MND Mitigation Measure IV-4: Western Spadefoot Toad

> Backbone MND Mitigation Measure IV-5: Western Pond Turtle

> Backbone MND Mitigation Measure IV-6(a): Swainson's Hawk Nesting Habitat

> Backbone MND Mitigation Measure IV-6(b): Swainson's Hawk Foraging Habitat

> Backbone MND Mitigation Measure IV-7. Tncolored Blackbird

> Backbone MND Mitigation Measure IV-8:Nesting Raptors

> Backbone MND Mitigation Measure IV-9: Nesting Special Status Birds and Migratory Birds

> Backbone MND Mitigation Measure IV-10: Special-Status Bats

> Backbone MND Mitigation Measure IV-12: Implement Section 1602 Master Streambed Alteration
Agreement

> Backbone MND Mitigation Measure IV-13: Conduct Suweys to Identify and Map Valley Needlegrass

Grassland; Implement Avoidance and Minimization Measures or Compensatory Mitigation, if necessary

> Backbone MND Mitigation Measure IV-14: Secure Amended Clean Water Act Section 404 Permit and

Section 401 Permit and Implement All Permit Conditions; Ensure No Net Loss of Functions of
Wetlands, Other Waters of the U,S., and Waters of the State

Resolution No. 10670
Page 136 of 140

Page 261

06/14/2022 Item No.9.



(approved

December
2012); as

applicable.

> Backbone MND Mitigation Measure IV-15: Conduct Tree Survey, Prepare and Implement an Oak
Woodland Mitigation Plan, Replace Native Oak Trees Removed, and implement Measures to Avoid and

Minimize Indirect Impacts on Oak Trees and Oak Woodland Habitat Retained On-Site.

> Backbone MND Mitigation Measure IV-l l: American Badger

> Backbone MND Mitigation Measure V-l: Comply with the applicable procedures in the FAPA and

implementation of applicable historic property treatment plans

> Backbone MND Mitigation Measure V-2: Conduct Construction Personnel Education, Conduct On-Site
Monitoring if Required, Stop Work if Cultural Resources are Discovered, Assess the Significance ofthe
Find, and Perform Treatment or Avoidance as Required.

> Backbone MND Mitigation Measure V-3: Suspend Ground-Disturbing Activities if Human Remains are

Encountered and Comply with California Health and Safety Code Procedures.

> Backbone MND Mitigation Measure VI-l: Prepare Site-Specific Geotechnical Report per CBC
Requirements and Implement Appropriate Recommendations.

> Backbone MND Mitigation Measure VI-3: Monitor Earthwork durrng Earthmoving Activities.

> Backbone MND Mitigation Measure VI-5(a): Prepare and Implement the Appropriate Grading and

Erosion Control Plan.

> Backbone MND Mitigation Measure VI-5(b): Prepare and Implement the appropriate Grading and

Erosion Control Plan for the detention basin West of Prairie City Road.

> Backbone MND Mitigation Measure IX-l: Acquire Appropriate Regulatory Permits and Prepare and

Implement SWPPP and BMPs.

> Backbone MND Mitigation Measure MI-l: Greenhouse Gas Emissions

> Backbone MND Mitigation Measure XVI-I: Prepare and Implement a Construction Traffic Control
Plan.

> Backbone MND Mrtigation Measure III-3: North of U.S. Highway 50 Water Improvements

> Backbone ltND Mitigation Measure V-4 North of U.S. Highway 50 Water Improvements

> Backbone MND Mitigation Measure VI-2 North of U.S. Highway 50 Water Improvements

> Backbone MND Mitigation Measure Vl-4 North of U.S. Highway 50 Water Improvements

> Backbone MND Mitigation Measure XII-I North of U.S. Highway 50 Water Improvements

In addition, the project applicant shall coordinate with owners' group to implement the following measures
detailed in the Revised Proposed Off-Site Vy'ater Facility Alternative Addendum to the FPASP EINEIS
(approved December 11, 2012):

> 3B.l-2a. Enhance Exterior Appearance of Structural Facilities.

Resolution No. 10670
Page 137 of 140

Page 262

06/14/2022 Item No.9.



> 38.l-2b: Prepare LandscapingPlan.

> 38. l-3a: Conformance to Construction Lighting Standards.

> 38 l-3b: Prepare and Submrt a Lighting Master Plan.

> 38.2-la. Develop and implement a Construction NOX Reduction Plan.

> 3B.2-lc: Implement Fugitive Dust Control Measures and a Particulate Matter Monitoring Program

during Construction.

> 3B2-3a: Cite Pump Siting Buffers Away from Sensitive Receptors.

> 3B,2-3b: Conduct Project-Level DPM Screening and Implement Measures to Reduce Annual DPM to

Acceptable Concentrations.

> 3B.4'la: Implement GHG Reduction Measures during Construction.

> 38.4-1b Prepare and Implement an Off+ite Water Facilities Climate Action Plan.

> 34.5-1a: Comply with the Programmatic Agreement.

> 3A.5-lb: Perform an Inventory and Evaluation ofCultural Resources for the California Register of
Historic Places, Minimize or Avoid Damage or Destruction, and Perform Treatment Where Damage or

Destruction Cannot be Avoided.

> 3A.5-2: Conduct Construction Personnel Education, Conduct On-Site Monitoring if Required, Stop

Work if Cultural Resources are Discovered, Assess the Significance ofthe Find, and Perform Treatment

or Avoidance as Required.

> 3A.5-3: Suspend Ground-Disturbing Activities if Human Remains are Encountered and Comply with
California Health and Safety Code Procedures.

> 38,7-la: Prepare Geotechnical Report(s) for the Revised Proposed Off+ite Water Facilities and

Implement Required Measures.

> 38.7-1b' Incorporate Pipeline Failure Contingency Measures Into Final Pipeline Design.

> 3B.7-4. Implement Conosion Protection Measures.

> 38.7-5: Conduct Construction Personnel Education, Stop Work ifPaleontological Resources are

Discovered, Assess the Significance of the Find, and Prepare and Implement a Recovery Plan as

Required.

> 3B.8-la: Transport, Store, and Handle Construction-Related Hazardous Matenals in Compliance with
Relevant Regulations and Guidelines.

> 3B,8-1b: Prepare and Implement a Hazardous Materials Management Plan.

> 3B.8-5a: Conduct Phase I Environmental Site Assessment for Selected Alignment.

Resolution No. 10670

Page 138 of 140

Page 263

06/14/2022 Item No.9.



YesThe Capital Southeast Connector - JPA
project commenced construction in April
2021. Since the project has commenced
with construction this condition has been

satisfied.

cD (E)M

> 3B.8-5b: Develop and Implement a Remediation Plan.

> 38.8-7a: Keep Construction Area Clear of Combustible Materials.

> 3B.8-7b: Provide Accessible Fire Suppression Equipment.

> 3B.9-la: Acquire Appropriate Regulatory Permits and Prepare and Implement SWPPP and BMPs,

> 38,9-1b: Properly Dispose of Hydrostatic Test Water and Construction Dewatering in Accordance with
the Central Valley Regional Water Quality Control Board.

> 3B.9-3a, Prepare and Implement Drainage Plan(s) for Structural Facilities.

> 38.9-3b: Ensure the Provision of Sufficient Outlet Protection and On-site Containment.

> 38.11-1a: Limit Construction Hours.

> 38.11-1b: Minimize Noise from Construction Equipment and Staging.

> 38,I l-1c: Maximize the Use of Noise Baniers.

> 3B. I I -1 d: Prohibit Non-Essential Noise Sources During Construction.

> 3B. I 1-l e: Monitor Construction Noise and Provide a Mechanism for Filing Noise Complaints.

> 38.I I -3: Implement Operational Noise Minimization Measures.

> 38.12-1 Provide tbr Continued Recreational Access as Identrtied in Mitigation Measure 3.14-la.

> 38.15-1a: Prepare Traffrc Control Plan.

> 38. l5-1b: Assess Pre-Off-site Water Facilities Roadway Conditions.

> 38.l6-3a: Minimize Utility Conflicts by Implementing an Underground Services Alert.

> 38 l6-3b: Coordinate with Utility Providers and Implement Appropriate Installation Methods to
Minimize Potential Utility Service Disruptions.

> 38.17 -la. Implement Construction Dewatering Best Management Practices.

> 38.17-lb: Implement a Dewatering Discharge Monitoring Program

> 3A. I 8-l : Submit Proof of Surtace Water Supply Availability.

> 3A. l8-2a: Submit Proof of Adequate Off-Site Water Conveyance Facilities and Implement Off-Site
Infrastructure Service System or Ensure That Adequate Financing Is Secured.

White Rock Road Shoulder Improvements
The owner/applicant shall construct shoulder improvements along the project's entire frontage of
westbound White Rock Road to the satisfaction of the City prior to approval of the first small lot
final map. In lieu of constructing the aforementioned interim shoulder improvements, the
owner/applicant may enter into a Subdivision Improvement Agreement with the City and post

20.

Resolution No. 10670
Page I 39 of 140

Page 264

06/14/2022 Item No.9.



YesThis condition will apply to the futwe
Phase 3 (Traditional Subdivision) and

therefore does not apply to the Phase lD
subdivision.

cD (E) (P)

cD (E) (P)

M

M

adequate security to the City's satisfaction to ensure construction ofsaid improvements; the
security shall be for a mimmum period of 10 years.

Ifshoulder improvements are constructed and/or funded by the owner/applicant, then said costs

may be included in any applicable fee program established and approved for the Folsom Plan
Area subject to approval by the City and the actual costs expended by the owner/applicant may
therefore be eligible for a credit and/or relmbursement.

If construction ofthe Capital Southeast Connector Project between Scott Road and the El Dorado
County line has commenced during the term of the required Subdivision Improvement
Agreement, then the shoulder improvement condition will be deemed satisfied and the security
shall be released to the owner/applicant.

The owner/applicant shall preserve the oak trees shown in the blue color on the attached Site Plan

Exhibit for the Traditional Subdivision. The owner/applicant shall also make every attempt to
preserve the tree shown in red on the attached Site Plan Exhibit provided that the City Arborist
concurs(sincethisoaktreewillbeapproximately3'lowerthanadjacentpadgrades). The
additional land created from elimination of lots 49, 56, and 57 as shown on the Site Plan Exhibit
shall be incorporated into the adjacent residential lots to the satisfaction ofthe Community
Development Department. Consistent with FPASP Policy 10.19, the Community Development
Director will allow modifications to the development standards to order to accommodate
preservation ofthe oak tree on Lot 62 as shown on the attached Site Plan Exhibit. This condition
shall be satisfied nrior to aooroval ofthe Final Mao for the Traditional Subdivision.

21.

Resolution No. 10670
Page 140 of 140

Page 265

06/14/2022 Item No.9.



This page is intentionally left blank.

Page 266

06/14/2022 Item No.9.



Folsom City Council
Staff Re ort

RECOMMENDATION / COIINCIL ACTION

Staff recommends that the City Council move to adopt Resolution No. 10867 - A Resolution
Authorizing the City Manager to Execute Non-Exclusive Agreements with Approved Licensed
Contractors to Implement the Sacramento Housing and Redevelopment Agency Inter-Agency
Contract for the Seniors Helping Seniors Home Repair Program.

BACKGROUND / ISSUE

On June 9,2020, the City Council approved Resolution No. 10463 which authorized the City
Manager to Execute an Agreement with the Sacramento Housing and Redevelopment Agency
(SHRA) for continued participation in the Community Development Block Grant (CDBG)
Program from January 1,2021to December 31, 2023. As part of the city's participation in
CDBG, the City Manager is currently in process to enter into an Inter-Agency Contract with
SHRA to receive $200,000 in CDBG funds to subsidize the City of Folsom Seniors Helping
Seniors (SHS) Program for FY 202212023.

On June 8, 2021, the City Council approved Resolution No. 10640, authorizing the City
Manager to execute agreements with a total of seven contractors (ABC Home Improvements,
Benchmark Plumbing, F.L. Electric Service Company, Gray Construction and Securement

Services, Inc., Robnett Construction, Inc., Roseville Sheet Metal Inc., and Sacramento City
Building Co.) to perform contractor services in accordance with the Sacramento Housing and

Redevelopment Agency (SHRA) Seniors Helping Seniors (SHS) Inter-Agency Contract.

I

MEETING DATE: 61t412022

AGENDA SECTION: Consent Calendar

SUBJECT: Resolution No. 10867 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager
to Execute Non-Exclusive Agreements with Approved Licensed
Contractors to Implement the Sacramento Housing and
Redevelopment Agency Inter-Agency Contract for the Seniors
Helping Seniors Home Repair Program

FROM: Community Development Department

Page 267

06/14/2022 Item No.10.



For Fiscal Year 2021-22 the City Manager approved annual contracts with six of the seven

Senior Helping Seniors contractors (ABC Home Improvements, Benchmark Plumbing, F.L.

Electric Service Company, Gray Construction and Securement Services, Inc., Roseville Sheet

Metal Inc., and Sacramento City Building Co.). The seventh contractor, Robnett Construction,

Inc. elected not to continue participation in the program. The existing six non-exclusive

agreements will terminate on June 30, 2022 and staff is recommending that the City Manager

be authorized to execute new contracts with the six aforementioned contractors which will be

in effect until June 30,2023 and with a not-to-exceed amount of $200,000 (total aggregate

amount for all contractors).

POLICY / RIII,E,

In accordance with Section 2.36.120 of the Folsom Municipal Code, City Council approval is

required for professional services contracts in excess of$66,141.

ANALYSIS

The Seniors Helping Seniors Home Repair Program is available to all low-income, age-

qualified senior citizens who reside in the City of Folsom. The program is designed to assist

those seniors who do not have the assets or financial capability to make necessary home repairs

related to health and safety. Both manufactured homes and non-manufactured homes are

eligible for the program. On average, the City's SHS Program responds to over 300 calls for
service each year.

A total of six contractors previously submitted their qualification packages to the City and

currently perform contractor services in accordance with the Seniors Helping Seniors Home

Repair Program. With approval of this resolution and the necessary contracts (not-to-exceed

a combined total of $200,000 for all said contracts), the following contractors will continue to

assist the City with providing contractor services as needed for the SHS Program:

ABC Home Improvements
Benchmark Plumbing
F.L. Electric Service Company
Gray Construction and Securement Services, Inc.
Roseville Sheet Metal Inc.
Sacramento City Building Co.

Each ofthe six contractors are qualified to provide a range ofcontracting services necessary

for the SHS Program. Furthernore, all six contractors are experienced in small home repairs

and working with low-income senior citizens and/or physically disabled homeowners.

F'INANCIA I,IMPACT

There is no financial impact to the General Fund. The CDBG funding program requires the

expenditure of funds with reimbursement requested and therefore the Community

1.

2.
J.

4.

5.

6.

2
Page 268

06/14/2022 Item No.10.



Development Block Grant Fund (Fund 201) is utilized to cover the upfront contractor and

material costs and invoices are sent to SHRA monthly for reimbursement from the grant

proceeds. For the Fiscal Year 2022-23, atotal of $220,000 of the Community Development

Block Grant Fund (Fund 201) has been appropriated for the SHS Program to cover the cost of
materials and outside contractors.

ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW

This action by the City Council is exempt from environmental review pursuant to Section

15061(bX3) (Review for Exemption) of the California Environmental Quality Act.

ATTACHMENT

Resolution No. 10867 - A Resolulion Authorizing the City Manager to Execute Non-Exclusive
Agreements with Approved Licensed Contractors to Implement the Sacramento Housing and

Redevelopment Agency Inter-Agency Contract for the Seniors Helping Seniors Home Repair

Program

Submitted,

Pam Johns, Community Development Director

a
J

Page 269

06/14/2022 Item No.10.



RESOLUTION NO. 10867

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE
NON.EXCLUSIVE AGREEMENTS WITH APPROVED LICENSED CONTRACTORS

TO IMPLEMENT THE SACRAMENTO HOUSING AND REDEVELOPMENT
AGENCY INTER.AGENCY CONTRACT F'OR THE

SENIORS HELPING SENIORS HOME REPAIR PROGRAM

WHEREAS, Resolution No. 10463, adopted by the City Council on June 9,2020,
authorized the City Manager to execute an agreement with the Sacramento Housing and

Redevelopment Agency (SHRA) for continued participation in the Community Development
Block Grant (CDBG) Program from January 1,2021to December 31, 2023; and

WHEREAS, funds from the CDBG Program subsidize the City's Seniors Helping
Seniors (SHS) Program, which provides eligible senior citizens in the City with financial
assistance to repair and remedy health and safety hazards in their homes; and

WHEREAS, SHRA has allocated $200,000 in CDBG funds to subsidize the City's SHS

Program for Fiscal Year 2022-23; and

WHEREAS, the City Manager is required to enter into an Inter-Agency Contract with
SHRA to receive the allocated $200,000 CDBG funds; and

WHEREAS, the CDBG funding program requires the expenditure of funds with
reimbursement requested and for Fiscal Year 2022-23; and

WHEREAS, the proposed Fiscal Year 2022-23 Budget, includes an appropriation of
$220,000 in the Community Development Block Grant Fund (Fund 20I); and

WHEREAS, contractors are selected based on their professional qualifications and

experience to perform services under the SHS Program; and

WHEREAS, the six contractors (ABC Home Improvements, F.L. Electrical Service
Company, Gray Construction and Securement Services, Inc., Roseville Sheet Metal Inc., and

Sacramento City Building Co.) have existing contracts with the City for performing this work to
June 30, 2022; and

WHEREAS, in accordance with Chapter 2.36 of the Folsom Municipal Code, contracts
of $66,141 or greater shall be approved by the City Council.

NOW' THEREFORE' BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Folsom
hereby authorizes the City Manager to execute non-exclusive contracts for professional licensed
contractor services with ABC Home Improvements, Benchmark Plumbing, F.L. Electric Service
Company, Gray Construction and Securement Services, Inc., Roseville Sheet Metal Inc., and

Resolution No. 10867
Page 1 of2

Page 270

06/14/2022 Item No.10.



Sacramento City Building Co., to render services under the City's SHS Program through June

30,2023, not-to-exceed a combined total of $200,000 for all said contracts.

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 14th day of June 2022, by the following roll-call vote:

AYES: Councilmember(s):

NOES: Councilmember(s):

ABSENT: Councilmember(s):

ABSTAIN: Councilmember(s):

Keni M. Howell, MAYOR

ATTEST:

Christa Freemantle, CITY CLERK

Resolution No. 10867
Page2 of2

Page 271

06/14/2022 Item No.10.



This page is intentionally treft blank.

Page 272

06/14/2022 Item No.10.



,.:'i 3-t,1J:1. i ixl;l
i.!nlll.:tlna l. .rr' 4l

Folsom City Council
Staff ort

RECOMMENDATION / CITY COUNCIL ACTION

The Public Works Department recommends that the City Council pass and adopt Resolution
No. 10869 - A Resolution Authorizingthe City Manager to adopt Local Assistance Procedures
Manual Chapter 10, Consultant Selection, Policies and Procedures for Federal and State-only
funded projects.

BACKGROUND / ISSUE

The City has received Federal-Aid funding approval for the Intelligent Transportation System
Implementation Project. As of January 1,2019, Caltrans is requiring that all agencies utilizing
federal and state reimbursement funds have a written procedure adopted by resolution and
approved by Caltrans. Although the Master Service Agreement references many similar
procedures, Caltrans is requiring each agency to provide a written procedure approved by
Caltrans and adopted by the agency's governing body, which describes the consultant selection
and procurement procedures for design and construction management contracts.

From Division of Local Assistance Office Bulletin 2l-05:

Title 23 Code of Federal Regulations Part 172 (23 CFR 172) allows Caltrans Divisionof Local
Assistance (DLA) to prescribe the policies and procedures for engineering and design related
services, also known as Architectural and Engineering (AS.E). Local Public Agencies (LPA|
are responsible for adopting the written policies and procedures prescribed by the awarding
State Transportation Agency 6f4.

I

MEETING DATE: 6/r4/2022

AGENDA SECTION: Consent Calendar

SUBJECT: Resolution No. 10869 - A Resolution Authorizing the City
Manager to Adopt Local Assistance Procedures Manual Chapter
10, Consultant Selection, Policies and Procedures for Federal and
State-only Funded Projects

FROM: Public Works Department

Page 273

06/14/2022 Item No.11.



FHWA's expectation is to achieve a 100% compliance rate in this area. Past process review

findings by DLA showed a significant lack of, or incomplete A&E procurement policies and
procedures as one of the most commonfindings. A non-compliance of this matter can result in

a loss offunds and/or other sanctions.

This action only applies to consultant contracts awarded using Federal-Aid / FHWA funding.

The City will continue to use existing procedures for City-funded projects and will utilize other
procedures as required by alternate project funding sources.

POLICY / RULE

Adoption of conhact policies and procedures requires City Council approval

ANALYSIS

In order for the City to be reimbursed for transportation projects funded by state only funding
sources, the CiW must adopt Local Assistance Procedures Manual (LAPM) Chapter 10,

Consultant Selection, policies and procedures. A completed Exhibit 10-C for new or amended

federal and/or state funded consultant contracts must be accepted by Caltrans prior to award.

Items not completed in the Exhibit 10-C checklist may jeopardize federal and/or state funding.

FINAIICIAL IMPACT

The adoption of LAPM Chapter 10 will likely not have an impact on the cost of professional

services. It will increase the number of staff hours spent on contract procurement and project

administration tasks.

ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW

Environmental review is not required for adoption ofthis resolution. Each project will evaluate

environmental impacts on a project-by-project basis.

ATTACHMENT

Resolution No. 10869 - A Resolution Authorizingthe City Manager to adopt Local Assistance

Procedures Manual Chapter 10, Consultant Selection, Policies and Procedures for Federal and

State-only Funded Projects

Submitted,

2

Mark Rackovan, Public Works Director

Page 274

06/14/2022 Item No.11.



RESOLUTION NO. 10869

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MAI\AGER TO
ADOPT LOCAL ASSISTANCE PROCEDURES MANUAL CHAPTER 10, CONSULTANT

SELECTION, POLICIES AND PROCEDURES
FOR FEDERAL AND STATE-ONLY FUNDED PROJECTS

WHEREAS, the City of Folsom through the Department of Public Works is responsible for
the execution offederal and state funded project(s); and

WHEREAS, the provision of 23 CFR 172.5(b), subrecipients shall develop and sustain

organizational capacity and provide the resources necessary for the procurement, management, and

administration of engineering and design related consultant services, reimbursed in whole or in part
with Federal-Aid Highway Program funding as specified in 23 U.S.C. 106(gXa)(A); and

WHEREAS, 23 CFR 172.5(bX1) requires subrecipients to adopt written policies and
procedures prescribed by the awarding State Transportation Agency for the procurement,
management, and administration of engineering and design related consultant services in accordance

with applicable Federal and State laws and regulations; and

WHEREAS, the State of California Department of Transportation (Caltrans) has developed
the Local Assistance Procedures Manual (LAPM), Chapter 10, Consultant Selection, which sets forth
policies and procedures for procurements and management of contracts for engineering and design
related consultant services contracts on federal and state funded transportation projects to ensure

compliance with applicable Federal and State laws and regulations; and

WHpREAS, LAPM Chapter 10, Consultant Selection, describes the consultant selection
and procurement process local agencies must follow to maintain eligibility for federal and state

reimbursement; and

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLYED that the City Council of the City of Folsom
adopts Caltrans Local Assistance Procedures Manual, Chapterl0, Consultant Selection, and any
updates thereto, in the procurement of architectural and engineering services for federal and state-

only funded projects.

PASSED AI\D ADOPTED this 14th day of June 2022,by the following roll-call vote:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:

ATTEST:

Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):

Christa Freemantle, CITY CLERK

Resolution No. 10869
Page I ofl

Keri M. Howell, MAYOR

Page 275

06/14/2022 Item No.11.



This page is intentionally left blank.

Page 276

06/14/2022 Item No.11.



,.1

Folsom City Council
Staff rt

RECOMMENDATION / CITY COUNCIL ACTION

Staff recommends that the City Council adopt Resolution No. 10872 - A Resolution
Authorizing the City Manager to Submit an Application for Grant Funds to the United States
Department of Justice, Community Oriented Policing Service (COPS) Hiring Program.

BACKGROT'ND / ISSUE

Since the pre-recession staffing high in 2008, the Folsom Police Department has lost 11 police
officer positions. During this same l6-year timespan, the population within the City of Folsom
has grown just over 23o/o and lrl.2020, Folsom was rated the second fastest growing city in the
state of California. With the rapid development of Folsom's south ofUS Highway 50 properly,
the Folsom Police Department is seeking alternate funding sources to support desperptely
needed staffing increases.

We pride ourselves on being a full-service organrzation that practices community policing and
problem-solving strategies as a matter of course. To maintain that ability in the face of the
groWh, we need to add officers that the City can't fully fund at this time.

POLJSY / RULE

The City Council adopted Resolution No. 10405 Amending Financial Policies of the City of
Folsom regarding grant administation on April 14,2020. Section D - Intergovernmental

MEETING DATE: 61t412022

AGENDA SECTION: Consent Calendar

SUBJECT: Resolution No. 10872 - A Resolution Authorizing the City
Manager to Submit an Application for Grant Funds to the United
States Department of Justice, Community Oriented Policing
Service (COPS) Hiring Program

F'ROM: Police Department

Page 277

06/14/2022 Item No.12.



Revenues, Paragraph A - Grant Applications states, *Grant application shall be the
responsibility of the department seeking the grant. Grant applications which require an
expenditure of funds by the City of less than or equal to the City Manager contract authority
amount may be approved by the City Manager prior to submittal to the grantor. All other grant
applications, including any requiring an ongoing commitment of resources or staff, shall be
reviewed and approved by the City Council prior to submittal. In circumstances where it is not
possible for the City Council to approve the grant application prior to submittal, the City
Manager may approve the application subject to the City Council ratification as soon as

practicable to do so.

Requests to the City Council or the City Manager for approval of a grant application shall
identifr anticipated long-term maintenance and/or renovation costs, required City matching
funds, and additional personnel that may be needed if the grant is awarded for a capital project.
With respect to grants for staffing, the source of funds for long-term staffing after the expiration
of the grant shall also be identified in the request for approval of the grant application.

All grant applications on behalf of the City shall be reviewed by the Finance Director before
submittal to the City Council or the grantor."

ANALYSIS

The City of Folsom and the Folsom Police Department are committed to being a full-service
city and agency. The Folsom Police Department is committed to Relentlessly Pursuing
Criminal Behavior and Proactively Fostering Positive Relationships throughout the
community. With the addition of the three (3) requested entry level police officers, the Folsom
Police Department would be able to expand the Neighborhood Services Division as well as the
number of officers assigned to patrol services within the operations division to provide partial
law enforcement services south of US Highway 50. These officers would be deployed in a
manner to address qualrty of life issues, conduct proactive Community Oriented Policing
activity, provide additional resources to persons in crisis and proactively foster positive
relationships with the citizens and businesses within the city

The only allowable costs under Community Oriented Policing Service (COPS) Hiring Program
are the approved full-time, entry-level salaries and fringe benefits of newly hired or rehired
sworn career law enforcement officers who are hired or rehired on or after the award start date.

A "career law enforcement officer" is a person hired on a permanent basis who is authorized
by law or by a state, local, or tribal agency to engage in or oversee the prevention, detection,
or investigation of violations of criminal laws.

All items other than entry-level personnel costs (salaries and fringe benefits) as described in
the preceding section are considered unallowable under COPS Hiring Program Therefore,
requests for equipment, training, travel, uniforms, vehicles, and indirect costs are notpermitted
under CHP.

In addition, the following personnel costs are unallowable:

2

Page 278

06/14/2022 Item No.12.



.Salaries and fringe benefits of existing locally-funded officers, unless those officers are
currently scheduled to be laid off on a specific future date

. Salaries and fringe benefits over and above an agency's entry-level salary and fringe beneltts
for offrcers

. Salaries and fringe benefits for civilian or nonswom personnel

. Salaries and fringe benefits for part-time officer positions

. Salaries and fringe benefits for furloughed offrcers

. Salaries and fringe benefits for correctional officers

. Overtime costs, severance pay, hazafipay

The Chief of Police requests approval to apply for the United States Department of Justice,
Community Oriented Policing Service (COPS) Hiring Program for three (3) entry level police
officers.

FINANCIAL IMPACT

FY 2022 COPS Hiring Program awards will cover up to 75 percent of the entry-level salary
and fringe benefits for each approved position for a three-year funding period, based on the
applicant's current entry level salary levels for full-time officers. There is a minimum 25%
local match (cost share) requirement. The maximum federal share per officer position is
$41,666.66 per year over the three-year period, totaling $125,000. Any additional costs for
higher than entry-level salaries and fringe benefits will be the responsibility of the recipient
agency.

During the first year of the grant there will be initial City expense to purchase uniforms and
equipment for the entry-level positions. The Police Department has some of the required
equipment (weapon and radio) but will need to pwchase uniforms, duty belt and bullet resistant
vest. The approximate cost for each officer is $2,500.00.

In FY 2022-2023 the salary and benefits for each of the three entry level officers will be

approximately $165,203of which approximately $41,666.66 per officer will be paid for by the
COPS Hiring Program,

In FY 2023-2024 the salary and benefits for each of the three entry level officers will be

approximately $173,894 of which approximately $41,666.66 per officer will be paid for by the
COPS Hiring Program.

3

Page 279

06/14/2022 Item No.12.



In FY 2024-2025 the salary and benefits for each of the three entry level officers will be
approximately $178,436 of which approximately $41,666.66 per officer will be paid for by the
COPS Hiring Program.

Over the three-year period the COPS Hiring Program would provide funding, the total for three
(3) entry level officers (Full salary & benefits) would be approximately, $1,552,599.

The mar<imum federal grant award ($125,000 cap per Officer over 3 years) is $375,000.

The total cost to the City of Folsom (match amount) is approximately,$1,177,599

At the end of the period of performance, the City of Folsom must maintain the awarded
positions for a minimum of 12 months.

This grant also contains a nonsupplanting requirement, which means the grant may only be
applied to positions that are not otherwise budgeted and would not be funded.

The City of Folsom will be notified of the award no later than September 30,2022.

ATTACIIMENT

Resolution No. 10872 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Submit an
Application for Grant Funds to the United States Department of Justice, Community
Oriented Policing Service (COPS) Hiring Program.

Submitted,

Hillman, Chief of Police

4

Page 280

06/14/2022 Item No.12.



RESOLUTION NO. 10872

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO SUBMIT AN
APPLICATION FOR GRANT FUNDS TO THE

U. S. DEPARTMENT OF'JUSTICEO COPS HIRING PROGRAM

WHEREAS, the City qualifies for federal grant funds through the United States

Department of Justice, Community Oriented Policing Service (COPS) Hiring Program; and

WHEREAS, the COPS Hiring Program will cover up to $125,000 for each of the entry-
level police officers hired within the designated award period the salary and fringe benefits for
each approved position for a three-year period with a minimum 25Yolocal match requirement; and

WHEREAS, the maximum federal share per officer position is $125,000 over the three-
year period (not $125,000 per year); and

WHEREAS, the City desires to accept these funds to hire three police officers to add to
the Neighborhood Service Division and patrol division to address staffing needs for development
south of Highway 50, community oriented policing activities, provide additional resources to those
in crisis and to help build trust through transparency within the community and foster positive
relationships; and

WHEREAS, the City of Folsom will comply with state and federal statutes, regulations,
policies, guidelines and requirements for application, acceptance and use of federal funds; and

NOW, THEREFORE' BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Folsom
authorizes the City Manager to submit an application for grant funds to the United States
Department of Justice, COPS Hiring Program

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 14th day of June,2022, by the following roll-call vote:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:

Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):

Keni M. Howell, MAYOR

ATTEST:

Christa Freemantle, CITY CLERK

Resolution No. 10872
Page I of I Page 281

06/14/2022 Item No.12.



This page is intentionally left blank.

Page 282

06/14/2022 Item No.12.



Folsom City Council
Staff rt

MEETING DATE: 6n412022

AGENDA SECTION: Consent Calendar

SUBJECT: Resolution No. 10873 - A Resolution Authorizing the City
Manager to Execute an Agreement with BrightView Landscape

Services for Landscaping and Lighting Districts, Community
Facilities Districts, and Folsom Plan Area Landscapes for the

City of Folsom and Appropriation of Funds

FROM: Parks and Recreation Department

RECOMMENDATION / CITY COUNCIL ACTION

Staff recommends the City Council approve Resolution No. 10873 - A Resolution Authorizing
the City Manager to Execute an Agreement with BrightView Landscape Services for
Landscaping and Lighting Districts, Community Facilities Districts, and Folsom Plan Area
Landscapes for the City of Folsom and Appropriation of Funds.

BACKGROUND / ISSUE

On March 31,2022, the Parks and Recreation Department advertised on ClPlist.com and the

City of Folsom website the availability of two landscape maintenance contracts that will
service the City's Landscaping and Lighting Districts, Community Facilities Districts, and the

Folsom Plan Area Landscaping. The city requested both qualifications and a proposal
(RFQ/RFP) from perspective contractors for this bid package.

As part of the city's outreach, staff sent targeted emails to those contractors who over the last
years requested to be on our bidder's list to inform them of the availability and details of
upcoming contracts, as well as other landscape maintenance firms in our area that could be

interested in submitting a proposal and their qualifications.

1

Page 283

06/14/2022 Item No.13.



POLICY / RULE

In accordance with Chapter 2.36.090 (AXl) and 2.36.120 of the Folsom Municipal Code,
professional services are not subject to competitive sealed bidding requirements, and those
costing $66,141or greater shall be awarded by City Council.

ANALYSIS

The City currently contracts for landscape maintenance in these areas and this contract is a
continuation of those services. The overall bid process consisted of the following steps:

Posting of bid package: March 31,2022
Mandatory Pre-Bid meeting: April 13, 2022
RFQ/RFP's Due to City: May 6, 2022 (4:00PM)
Interviews of Qualified Contractors: May 127 13,2022
RFP's of Qualified Contractors Opened: May 16,2022
Notice of Award: May 17,2022

Some of the notable changes to this contract package from the prior contracts was more defined
details about the maintenance areas. Staff went district by district creating overlays to calculate
exact quantities of areas to be maintained as well as identified the levels of maintenance each

area will receive (i.e., Streetscapes, quarterly weed abatement areas, trails, dog stations & trash

cans, biofiltration areas, and vegetative swales)

The city received responses to the RFQiRFP package from BrightView, TerraCare, New
Image, and JG Landscaping. The evaluation process was comprised of three factors. The first
phase was the independent evaluation oftheir request for qualifications by three staff members.
The second was a panel interview consisting of 10 scored questions. The last factor that was
taken into account was price. Based on these three criteria we scored and ranked the firms as

shown in the table below:

Terracare JG Landscaping New Image BriehtView
RFO SCORE 78 81.83 69 92.5

INTERVIEW SCORE 75.83 78 84 97

COST 22.29 50 1.5 2t.5
TOTAL t76.12 209.83 154.5 2tt

Pursuant to the existing agreement with Terracare, the City has been operating on a month-to-
month basis to maintain contract services in the interim until the new contract is adopted. The
proposed three-year agreement allows for two, one-year extensions based on successful service
and adherence to specifications in the original agreement. The proposed agreement is expected
to begin on July 1,2022. Agreement extensions after the three-year base agreement will each
be reconsidered for approval by the City Council.

2
Page 284

06/14/2022 Item No.13.



FINANCIAL IMPACT

While this is a professional services agreement, staff will highlight the cost comparisons of the
proposals. The yearly maintenance cost as included in each proposal is shown below:

Company Proposal Annual Maintenance Cost
Terracare $2.894.976.00
JG Landscaping $1,290,933.32
New Image 3.s29.607.00
Brightview 2,994,508.68

With Brightview being the highest ranking on the RFQ and interview process, staff proceeded
to discuss the proposed yearly maintenance cost with them as there was a significant increase
over the estimated budgets. Recognizing the estimated budgets were based on current costs
for service which were established over three years ago, staff expected costs to increase but
wanted to ensure the scope of work and available funding were in alignment. Staff reviewed
current levels of service and the proposed scope of services for all the maintenance areas
(streetscapes, open space, turf, weed abatement, etc.) and determined that there could be

savings achieved with some modified scope requirements without reducing the overall quality
of service and city expectations. Staff proposed several scope adjustments in such areas as less

visible slope or landscape areas as well as modified maintenance frequencies for less dense

open space areas. No modifications to scope were made to the areas of highest visibility, public
safety, fire safety, general weed control, etc.

As a result of some modifications to the scope of work, Brightview tailored their proposed
maintenance costs which resulted in a revised yearly cost (that would not be adjusted for the
first three years) to $1,987,666.23. This is the amount being proposed for the new agreement.
In addition, this agreement allows for unscheduled services in FY 2022-23 such as plant
replacements, fence repairs, irrigation repairs, etc., in the amount, not to exceed, $430,000. All
unscheduled work is approved by the Landscape Services Manager prior to work beginning
and contractor is not entitled to such funds unless authorized by the City.

In reviewing each district's fund balance, adequate funding is available in all of the districts
however, new allocations will be needed in twenty-two of the thirty districts. The baseline
amount already proposed in the existing budget is $1,513,115.95. The amount that is needed
to augment the baseline budget is $474,550.28. The total contract amount would then be
1,987,666,23. The other eight districts (Prairie Oaks Ranch, Prairie Oaks Ranch No.2,
American River Canyon North No. 3, The Islands at Parkshore, Folsom Heights, Folsom
Heights No. 2, Folsom Plan Area CFD 19, Folsom Plan Area CFD 23) have adequate funds
already budgeted. As such, additional funds will need to be appropriated in the FY 2022-23
L&L and CFD budgets. Districts requiring appropriations are outlined in the table provided
below:

J Page 285

06/14/2022 Item No.13.



District Fund Number (sl New Cost Estimated Budgets New Allocation Oriqinal Budset Total New BudPetTotal

ARC North #2 267 s 10s.094.58 s 56.500.00 S 48.s94.s8 s 139.2s5.00 s 187.8s0.s8

Blue Ravine Oaks 250,278 s 22.080.06 S 17,soo.oo S 4.s8o.o6 s 19.397.00 s 23.977.06

Broadstone #3 266 s 390.sss.61 S 2zs,ooo.oo s 165.555.51 s 1.244.240.OO S 1.409.795.61

Broadstone 1.2. & 4 2r0,282 s 291,404.10 S 18o,ooo.oo s 111.404.10 s 255.161.00 s 355.565.10

Cobble Hills Ridee ll 2L4 s 2s.218.38 s 20,000.00 S s.218.38 s s4.046.00 s s9.254.38

Natoma Station 207 S 101,443.35 s 95.000.00 s 6.443.35 s 24r.L74.OO s 247.617.36

Willow Creek Estates South 252 5 76,442.54 s 25.000.00 E sr.442.s4 s 256.790.00 s 3r8.232.s4

Willow Sorinqs 262 s 89.488.17 s 58.0s0.00 E 2r.43a.fl s 777.750.OO s 199.188.17

Briass Ranch 205 s 66,042.9s s 4s.000.00 E 2r.o42ss s toz.612.oo s 123.5s4.9s

Cobble Ridse 234 S 8,185.57 s 7.s00.00 s 586.57 s 77.592.OO s L8.278.67

Folsom Plan Area- (CFD 18) 288 5 304,082,11 s 300.000.00 s 4.082.11 s 901.369.00 s 905.451.11

Hannaford Cross 212 S 15,951.76 S 11.5oo.oo s 5.467.75 s 28.438.00 s 33.899.75

Lake Natoma Shores/Preserve 2L3 s 77,637.84 s 7.000.00 s 10.637.84 s 23.r73.OO s 33.810.84

Los Cerros 204 s 27,64t.70 s 26.500.00 s 7.74r.70 s 91.532.00 s 92.773.70

Natoma Vallevfi he Knolls 232 s 39,8s6.36 s 39.000.00 s 855.35 s 57.500.00 s s8.355.35

Prosoect Ridse 285 s 74,669.94 s 8.000.00 s 5.669.94 s 27.759.OO s 34.438.94

Sierra Estates 23r S 8,s32.70 s 4.s00.00 s 4-032.70 s 77.445.OO s 21.477.70

Silverbrook 237 S 5,380.44 s 3.155.00 s 3.225.44 s 70.770.OO s 13.99s.44

Steeolechase 25r S 14.300.28 S 14.ooo.oo s 300.28 s 45.355.00 s 46.566.28

The Residences at ARC/ ARC 2 27r S 14.90s.05 s 14.000.00 s 90s.05 s 31_866.00 s 32.77r.06

Willow Creek Estates East 249,284 s ss,830.68 S ss,ooo.oo S 830.68 s 28.481.00 s 29.311.58

Total s 474,ss0.28 s 3,782,827.00 s 4.2s7.t77.28

For additional information about each districts total budget that includes all costs beyond the

landscape maintenance contracts such as utilities cost, streetlight maintenance, irrigation
maintenance, planned projects, etc., the two last columns of the table show what is reflected in
this yearly engineers report that is approved by City Council annually.

ATTACHMENT

Resolution No. 10873 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute an Agreement
with BrightView Landscape Services for Landscaping and Lighting Districts, Community
Facilities Districts, and Folsom Plan Area Landscapes for the City of Folsom and

Appropriation of Funds

Submitted,

Lorraine Poggione,
Parks & Recreation Director

4
Page 286

06/14/2022 Item No.13.



RESOLUTION NO. 10873

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE AN
AGREEMENT WITH BRIGHTVIEW LANDSCAPE SERVICES FOR LANDSCAPING

AND LIGHTING DISTRICTS, COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICTS, AND
F'OLSOM PLAN AREA LANDSCAPES FOR THE CITY OF FOLSOM AND

APPROPRIATION OF' FUNDS

WHEREAS, the City of Folsom desires to enter into a professional services agreement for
an initial period beginning July 1, 2022through June 30,2025, for landscape maintenance services

in the City of Folsom Landscaping and Lighting Districts, Community Facilities Districts, and the
Folsom Plan Area Landscapes; and

WHEREAS, the City of Folsom can, at its discretion based on successful completion of
the initial agreement, extend the contract for up to two additional one-year extensions; and

WHEREAS, proposals were solicited in accordance with Folsom Municipal Code Section
2.36.100 and advertised on March 31,2022; and

WHEREAS, BrightView Landscape Services was the most qualified contractor; and

WHEREAS' funds are available in the respective districts current fund balance and

budgeted in the FY 2022-23 budget; and

WHEREAS, additional funds required to be allocated are available in each respective
district fund balance, and

WHEREAS, the agreement will be in a form acceptable to the City Attorney; and

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Folsom
authorizes the City Manager to execute an agreement with BrightView Landscape Services for
landscape maintenance in Landscaping and Lighting Districts, Community Facilities Districts, and

Folsom PlanAreaLandscapes inthe amount of $1,987,666.23 for scheduled services and $430,000
for unscheduled services for FY 2022-23.

NOW' THEREFORE, BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Finance Director is
authorized to appropriate to each fund the amount listed on the attachment showing the
appropriation amount as well as the total fund adjusted budget for FY 2022-23.

PASSED AND ADOPTED this l4th day of June 2022by the following roll-call vote:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:

Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):

Resolution No. 10873
Page I of3

Page 287

06/14/2022 Item No.13.



Keni M. Howell, MAYOR
ATTEST:

Christa Freemantle, CITY CLERK

Resolution No. 10873

Page2 of3 Page 288

06/14/2022 Item No.13.



Attachment

District Fund Number (s) New Cost Estimated Budgets New Allocation Orieinal Budset Total New Budset Total

ARC North #2 267 S r.os.094.58 S s6,soo.oo s 48,594.58 s 139,256.00 s L87,850.58

Blue Ravine Oaks 250,278 s 22.080.06 S 17.soo.oo s 4,580.06 s 19,397.00 5 23,977.06

Broadstone #3 266 S 390,ss5.61 s 22s.000.00 s r.6s,s55.61 S t.244.240.o0 s 1,409,79s.61

Broadstone L, 2, & 4 2L0,282 s 291,404.10 S 18o,ooo.oo S r.i.1,404.10 s 255.151.00 s 356,s6s.10

Cobble Hills Ridee ll 2L4 s 25.218.38 s 20.000.00 S 5,218.38 s 54,045.00 s s9,264.38

Natoma Station 207 S 10i..443.36 S gs.ooo.oo s 6,443.36 S , 24L,174.O0 S 247,617.36

Willow Creek Estates South 252 5 76,442.54 s 2s.000.00 s 5L.442.54 s 266,790.O0 S 318,232.54

Willow Sorinss 262 s 89,488.17 s 68,0s0.00 s 2t,438.L7 s L77,750.00 S 199,188.17

Briggs Ranch 205 s 66,042.95 S 4s,ooo.oo S 2r,042.9s s to2,6t2.00 s 123,6s4.9s

Cobble Ridee 234 s 8.186.67 s 7,500.00 S oso.oz s t7,s92.00 S L8,278.67

Folsom Plan Area- (CFD 18) 288 s 304,082.11 s 300,000.00 S 4,082.11 s 901,369.00 S 90s,451.11

Hannaford Cross 2L2 S 16,961.76 s 11,s00.00 S s,qatte s 28.438.00 s 33.899.76

Lake Natoma Shores/Preserve 213 s L7,637.84 s 7,000.00 S t0,637.94 s 23,L73.00 S 33,810.84

Los Cerros 204 S z7.64L.7o s 26,500.00 S 1..L4L.70 s 91,632.00 S 92,773.70

Natoma Vallev/The Knolls 232 s 39,8s6.36 s 39.000.00 s 8s6.36 s s7.500.00 S s8,356.36

Prosoect Ridse 285 s 14,669.94 s 8,000.00 s 5,569.94 s 27.769.00 s 34.438.94

Sierra Estates 231 s 8,532.70 s 4,500.00 S 4,032.70 s t7,445.00 S zt,qtz.to
Silverbrook 237 s 6,380.44 s 3.1s5.00 s 3.225.44 s t0,770.00 S 13,995.44

Steeolechase 25L S 14,300.28 S 14,ooo.oo s 300.28 s 46,366.00 s 46,666,28

The Residences at ARC/ ARC 2 27L s r.4.905.06 S 14,ooo.oo S gos.oo s 31,866.00 5 32,77L.06

Willow Creek Estates East 249,284 s ss,830.68 s 55,000.00 s 830.68 s 28,481.00 S 29,311.68

Total S 474.ss0.28 s 3.782.827.00 S 4,257,377.28

Resolution No. 10873
Page 3 of3 Page 289

06/14/2022 Item No.13.



This page is intentionally trefr blank.

Page 290

06/14/2022 Item No.13.



fi :!!r.r1:,1 tt t:;a1 tl

Folsom City Council
Staff ort

RECOMMENDATION / CITY COUNCIL ACTION

Staff recommends that the City Council pass and adopt Resolution No. 10861 - A Resolution

Adopting the City Manager's Fiscal Year 2022-23 Operating and Capital Budgets for the City
of Folsom, the Successor Agency, the Folsom Public Financing Authority, and the Folsom

Ranch Financing Authority.

BACKGRO / ISSIIE

In February and March 2022, a discussion was held with the City Council to provide

information regarding the five-year forecast and the challenges in future years. Direction
provided by the City Council at these three meetings provided the framework for staff to begin

the preparation of the FY 2022-23 Budget. The City Manager's Fiscal Year 2022-23

Preliminary Operating Budget and Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) was presented to the City
Council on May 10,2022. Staff reviewed the different components of the proposed budget,

highlighted the various proposed projects, and answered questions by Council Members. A
public hearing was held on May 24, 2022, during which staff was asked to provide some

additional information. The public hearing on May 24,2022 was continued to June 14,2022

to provide time for staff to provide the requested additional information.

POLICY / RULE

Folsom Municipal Code. Section 3.02.030. Budget

1

MEETING DATE: 6tr412022

AGENDA SECTION: Public Hearing

SUBJECT: Resolution No. 10861 - A Resolution Adopting the City
Manager's Fiscal Year2022-23 Operating and Capital Budgets
for the City of Folsom, the Successor Agency, the Folsom Public
Financing Authority, and the Folsom Ranch Financing Authority

FROM: Finance Department

Page 291

06/14/2022 Item No.14.



"An Annual Budget shall be prepared by the City Manager, with the assistance of the Finance

Director. . . . (G) The City Council shall adopt the annual budget by Resolution by fund and

program by affirmative vote of at least three members, on or before the last working day of the

iast month of the current fiscal year. If the City Council fails to adopt the budget by the last

working day of the current fiscal year, the budget as presented by the City Manager shall be

deemed adopted."

ANALYSIS

The FY 2022-23 Operating Budget as presented totaled $248,593,092. Below is a breakdown

by Fund category:

The FY 2022-23 Operating Budget and CIP also includes 479.25 full and permanent part time
positions across all funds. A total of 18 new positions have been added in this budget. The

added positions are listed below along with the department.

Department Position
Fire Department
Parks & Recreation*
Police Department
Police Department
Police Department
Solid Waste

Water
Water
Wastewater
Wastewater

Firefighters (10)

Maintenance Worker
Police Officer
Dispatcher
Animal Control Officer
Refuse Driver
Water Utilrty Worker
Administrative Technician (. 50)

Revenue Technician
Administrative Technician (. 50)

*The Parks and Recreation position is funded by L&L and Maintenance Districts

The proposed Operating and CIP Budgets are available on the City's web site at

https ://www. folsom.ca.us/govemment/fi nance/citv-budget.

During the public hearing on June 14,2022 staff will report back to the council on the requested

information. If the council decides to accept the budget as presented it can be adopted. If

2

$248 ,092

FY?3 Propos_ed Amg-ugt

s102,422,714

Debt Service Funds

Capital Project Funds

Internal Service Funds

Funds

Revenue Funds

C._?tq.gotyFund

1

General Fund

Fiduciary Fuqds.

Total

s52,475,276

s13,724,606

s29,048,244

s21,680,299

Page 292

06/14/2022 Item No.14.



based on the requested information the Council would like to make changes to the presented

budget staff will make the requested changes and return on June 28, 2022 with the updated

documents for the Council to approve.

ATTACHMENTS

1. Resolution No. 10861 - A Resolution adopting the City Manager's Fiscal Year 2022-

23 Operuting and Capital Budgets for the City of Folsom, the Successor Agency, the

Folsom Public Financing Authority, and the Folsom Ranch Financing Authority
2. Summary of Revenues, pages II-26 through II-31
3. Summary of Appropriations, pages II-34 through II-39
4. Staffing Detail, pages VII-14 through VII'22

Submitted,

I
Tamagni, Finance Director

J Page 293

06/14/2022 Item No.14.



ATTACHMENT 1

Page 294

06/14/2022 Item No.14.



RESOLUTION NO. 10861

A RESOLUTION ADOPTING THE CITY MANAGER'S F'ISCAL YEAR 2022.23

OPERATING AND CAPITAL BUDGETS FOR THE CITY OF F'OLSOM, THE
SUCCESSOR AGENCY, THE F'OLSOM PUBLIC FINANCING AUTHORITY' AND

THE FOLSOM RANCH FINANCING AUTHORITY

WHEREAS, section 3.02.030 of the Folsom Municipal Code states o'An Annual Budget

shall be prepared by the City Manager, with the assistance of the Finance Director ...."; and

WHEREAS' onthe l0thday of May 2022,the City Managerpresentedto the City Council

the FY 2022-23 Preliminary Operating Budget and Capital lmprovement Plan; and

WHEREAS, the Preliminary Budget includes the budget recommendations of each office

and department of the City, including the FY 2022-23 Preliminary Budget for the Successor

Agency, the Folsom Public Financing Authority and the Folsom Ranch Financing Authority as

well as the FY 2022-23 Capital Improvement Plan; and

WHEREAS, the Preliminary Operating Budget and Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) is on

file and available for inspection on the City website; and

WHEREAS, the City Council reviewed the Preliminary Operating Budget, CIP, and all

components thereof on May 10, 2022,May 24,2022 ar]d June 14, 2022;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Folsom

that the sgmmary of revenues, summary of appropriations by fund and staffing levels as attached

to this resolution, are hereby appropriated to the departments' offices and operations in the

amounts and for the objects and purposes therein stated.

pASSED AND ADOPTED this 14th day of June 2022, by the following roll-call vote:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:

Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):

Keni M. Howell, MAYOR

ATTEST:

Christa Freemantle, CITY CLERK

Resolution No. 10861

Page I of I Page 295

06/14/2022 Item No.14.



ATTACHMENT 2

Page 296

06/14/2022 Item No.14.



City of Folsom FY 2022-23 Budget

GneralFund $$$$

$$$ $Conanunity Developnrnt Block Crant $

Transpofi ation Sys temManagenrnt

FolsomArts & C\rlture Comnission

Housing Trust

Humbug WillowCreek

Crneral Plan

Tree Planting & Replacennnt

ft nrnunity Affordable Housing

ParkDodication

Planning Services

Local Transportation Tax

Historical District

Cas Tax- Road Maint & Repait

Cas Tax2l06

Cas Tax2107

Cns Tax2107.5

Cas Tax2l05

MeasureA

Traffic Congestion Rslief

lns Cenos L&L
Briggs Ranch L& L

NatonnStationL&L

FolsomHeights L&L
BroadstoneUnit3L&L

Broadstone L&L
I{annaford Crcss L&L
lake Natonu Shores L & L

Cobble Hils/Reflections L& L

Prairie Oaks RanchL &L#2

SienaBtatesL&L
NatonnValleyL&L

Cobble Ridge L& L
Prairie Oaks Ranch L & L

SilverbrookL & L
WillowOeekhstL&L
Blue Ravine Oaks L & L

Steeplechase L& L

WillowCreekSouthL&L

Anprican River Canyon North L & L

WillowSprings L&L
Willow Springs CFD l1 Mtn. Dist.

CFD#12Mtn. Dist.

CFD#13ARCMtn.Dst.

ARCNorth L&LDist. #2

The Residences at ARC, North L & L

Folsom Plan Area-Sphere of Influence

Oah at WillowSprings

ARCNorth L& LDist. #3

$ $ 220,000

80,000

1,876,069

346,585

n5,440

818,102

531,007

2,966,W3

I) rrlt.,j,illl
'lIl|

ilitlir, illr llirr'

I i;ti, ,

iij rrrrt:.r'lrrt,

ai,ira'llir iritr\i

illr :ril r\,trtr,

'l: 
lrr!.1i,)r

iii,r;rrir jiii.r,t

i!i,i,).

. ii'1,; 
'1., 

" ', 
r

I l:',1,r rlt ii,,

ii,I! J"ir lr\ii

I llr\'.,t rlt t, r.lii\rtrtiir

;ri i 1 (i:y,ir;11r 1L;1 i\r t r ti,1

tt-26
Page 297

06/14/2022 Item No.14.



Summnry of Revenues by Fund

Charges

for Senices

Iines &
Forfeitures

Interest

Rswnue

Transfers

h
Ile of

llmdBalanceMsc Tohl

$ 11,111,946 $ 120,300 $ 230,000 $ 584,567 $ 8,312,192 $ $ 102,422,714

Cieneral

GneralFund

$ 11.111,946 $ 120,300 $ 230,000 $ 584,567 $ 8J12,192 $ $ rx2422,7r4 Suhotal Gbneral

Spcial Rerrnue

$

35,000

50,000

89,610

100,000

175,000

250,000

300,000

600

41,200

81,000

174,500

21,9s0

23,200

388,500

20,000

21,100

43,800

3r8,950

8,900

68,200

13,600

195,600

60,100

36y'00

24,000

161,500

104,200

14200

1 1 5,800

604,000

107,200

12,200

21,100

500

1,200

400

8,000

1,500

8,000

150,000

15,000

5,000

1,500

100

6,000

8,000

6,000

7,500

6,000

15,000

1,200

1,000

500

250

3,000

1,000

1,000

r,ooo

700

6,500

500

500

3,000

19,000

900

1,800

1,000

1,000

300

13,000

600) $

(r,03t

37,600

93,753

(88,744)

48,726

139,286

2s,829

(10,61)

60,624

(45,500)

4,342

1 13,680

(106,07r)

Q28,721)

(38e,637)

15,795

(568,978)

49,232

21,612

66,674

21,087

) \61

(133,339)

8,438

1,073

10,246

(38,700)

8,29s

(13,700)

2,992

(s2,6t2)

9,710

(31,619)

08,003)

21,666

98,790

46,278

525

58,950

a\240
31,r56

18,174

9,766

(1,000)

(300)

135,889

220,000

35,1 65

40,000

151,753

866

150,226

322,286

465,829

4,187

,65,624

36,000

5,042

1,995,7 49

248,514

502,719

435,965

552,802

2,412,025

91,632

102,612

241,17 4

43,337

26,067

255,161

28,438

23,17t

54,046

280,750

l7,445

57,500

l7,592

l42,ggg

10,770

28,481

19,197

46,t66

266,790

150,978

15,225

177,750

1,244240

119,256

t2,174

31,866

$ $ $ Community Development Block Grant

Transportation System Management

FolsomArts & C\lture Commission

Housing Trust

Humbug Willow Creek

GneralPlan

Tree Planting & Replacement

Community Affordable Housin g

ParkDedication

Planning Services

l.ocal Transportation Tax

Historical District

Cus Tax- Road Maint & Repair

&s Tax2106

Cns Tax2107

&s Tax210i.5

&s Tax2105

Measure A

Traffic C,ongestion Relief

Lns Cenos L&L
BriggsRanchL&L

NatomaStationL&L

FolsomHeights L&L
Broadstone Unit 3 L&L

Broadstone L & L

Hannaford Cross L&L
Lake Natoma Shores L & L

ftbble Hilh/Reflections L & L

Pmirie Oals Ranch L& L

SienaEstatesL&L

NatornaValleyL&L

ftbbleRidgeL&L
Prairie 0als Ranch L & L

Silverbrook L & L

WrllowCreekhst L& L

Blue Ravine 0als L & L

Steeplechase L & L

Willow Creek South L & L

American RiverCanyon North L& L

WillowSpringsL&L

Willow Springs CFD I I Mtn. Dist,

CFD#l2Mtn. Dst.

CFD#13 ARCMtn. Dst.

ARCNofth L& LDist. #2

The Residences at ARC,North L& L

Folsom Plan Area-Sphere of Influence

Oala at Willow Springs

ARCNorth L&LDist. #3

2,000

40,000

,o
300

246,500

tt-27

395,389

Page 298

06/14/2022 Item No.14.



City of Folsom FY 2022-23 Badget

Blue Ravine Oaks No. 2 L & L

FolsomHeights #2L&L
Broadstone #4

CFD # 16 The Islands

Willow Creek Btate &st L & L Dst

ProspectRidgeL&LDst

CFD#lSMaintDist

CFD#19MaintDist

CFD#23 Al Maint Dist

CFD #23 A2 Maint Dist

Police Special Revenue

Zoo SpecialRevenue

Wetland Maintenance

CCT kbt Service

G0 School Facilities Bonds DS

Folsom South AD Refunding

1982-l Ninfius AD

Traffic SignalRetunding

Recreation Facilify COP DS

Folsom Public Financing Authority

FolsomRanch

Supplenrntal ParkFee

Parklnprovennnt

Johnny Cash TrailArt

Zoo Capital Projects

Police Capital

Cbntral FolsomArea Capital Projects

Fire Apital

CrneralCapital

Transportation hproverrnt

Drainage Capital

Light Rail Transportation

Crneral Park fr uipnnnt Capital

Waterlnpact

library Developrnnt

FolsomPlan Area Infrastructurc

FolsomPlan Ana Transit Capital

FolsomPlan Area Corp Yard Capital

FolsomPlan Area Hway 50 Ilrp

FolsomPlan Area Hwy 50 Intch.

Folsom Plan Area Capital

Major Capital and Renovation

Prairie Oak l9l5AD

CFD #10 Russell Ranch

ii: 'rlr: r ir',

i,r

' l; il irlli ,i". r'-.ll r- i '|itttLtlri

li1,t ir rr't,'rl

il: t:tll,irir:

i,ri:irri.i (ij

ril 
it:t 

' 
l; i 1., l

r iIlr1. r

iIrt l:lrt;r.,'t

lirtltriffl

lrii 1,'i rlif
'iir'.1 rlr trr:lli\rirtii,

!tht,tliillrli.

I ;liitrji,irl,.llirrrtiit

250,000

CFD l

II.28
Page 299

06/14/2022 Item No.14.



Summary of Revenues by Fund

(('jit t,j,.i,:r.

lirt,'l:ll,t irii,ltr;

'itl r t,l: I,l
riirtrji,liiirl 

1,,;:

iri i ),lrrrtr

liltlrrlr(l

'l 1,,"r r ti arl,rt.

:ri

I ;. i|1r1

.ir trri I lt' ' li'rtilii{ l:iL.

I'j ilil{lii'l,ilr iill. i: i,' 'i;1li:, 
I itl. i,, I,. ;rlr.i|irll lii ilr\!r)rlrtriiirl

l,'i:ji,: ll:r,,it,j, tiiirrli

l;i irr;,iirili;irri, :,i, i! ii;iillirl :: r,,il.,,rr.i:riliri,,l;',:, iii,:l'1','r:llri :lj rtl:iri;,1 1l ii. l-i1r1:,1'(,)llirrr(i

56,443

71,489

363,446

135,651

147,261

27 J69

901,369

79J38

45,890

3,500

5,288

570

643

19,343

638e

nwA6

66,84e)

74,061

(2,53r)

150,369

(80262)

(4,110)

0,500)

(50,712)

(31,930)

(1,000)

(5,000)

35,600

a,600

%2W

188,000

72,00fr

30,000

745,000

154,000

50,000

5,000

50,000

22,4_W

1,500

2,500

1,000

4500

1,200

300

6,000

oTo

6,000

500

1,000

5,000

1,000

50,000

800

9,000

1r00

2,000

8,000

15,000

8,000

10,000

2,000

100

125

15,000

5,000

15,000

50,000

200,000

900

4,500

Blue Ravine 0als No. 2 L & L

FolsomHeights #2L&L
Broadstone #4

CTD #16 The Islands

Willow GeekBtate East L & LDst

hospectRidgeL&LDst

CFD #18 Maint dist

CFD #19 Maint dist

CFD#23 Al MaintDst

CFD#23 42Maint Dst

Police Special Revenue

Zoo Special Revenue

Wetland

CCFDebt Service

G0 School Facilities Bonds DS

Folson South AD Refu nding

1982-lNimbus AD

Traffic SignalRefunding

Recreation Facility COP DS

Folsom Public Financing Authority

FolsomRanch

Supplemental Park Fee

Parkhnprovement

Johnny Cash Trail Art

Zoo &pitalhojects

Police Capital

Central Folsom Area Capital hojgcts

Fhe Capital

ftneral Capital

Transportation hprcvement

Drainage Capital

Light Rail Transpoft ation

Crneral Park Equipment Capital

WatetlnPact

Library Development

Folsom Plan Area Infrastructure

FolsomPlan Area Transit &pital

FolsomPlan Area Cbrp Yard Capital

FolsomPlan Area Hwy 50Imp

FolsomPlan Area Hwy 50lntch

Fols om Plan Area Cbpital

Major Capital and Renovation

Pmide Oak 1915 AD

CFD #10 RussellRanch

10,000

15,000

Q,A\025) 5,471,8316,992,856

2477,995

350J15

9,000

133248

(5,800)

Q51p72)

0,003)

(406510)

(828,753)

1,627,5%

162,605

(98,871

1144t4

1,632$70

10,000

2fi6t;1,4t

10,000

2,641

197

n6;],40

I,187

4,586,851

104,660

167,595

196,414

2,og4,g7o

25,000

50,688

50,000

100,000

18,199,980

50,000

676

540,750

82t940

2,%4255

534,055

256,470

80,000

212,\W

1n7,540

905,000

1,188,370

21t7,075

11,021,045

02t
(1217,540)

(859,312)

(1,153J70)

Q367975)

6yt8935

49,100

l

1T.29

0,824)
cFD#14

Page 300

06/14/2022 Item No.14.



Cityof Folsom FY2022-23 Budget

ilttrii rr

'llrii:;:tr,illrrlit'[rtii,

l' r11, I '' ,,

':
f:ljjl.r:j ;! 'r r' l : 

, t : l i l r t ! , l r : l

, itltl!:rlji i,

ii t l ,,r,"t,

I 'rrl:-i't

jl ,: I rl l,i trt

.i,r1 l:

'i'l lll: r,jl

iirr ill i.ii:

irll l 'ri ;11': 
:

iiilrllrirl:1,

liriirjrrrtriiilirl \iirir llilrlii

lii, rr,jtrlrr) liirtrri::

Tmnsit

Water

WaterCapital

WaterMeters

Wastewater

Wastewater Capital

CriticalAugmentation

Crneral Augmentation

Solid Waste

Solid Waste Capital

landfill Closure

Solid lVaste Plan Area

Capital Replacement

RjskManagement

Leaves

Assessment & CFD Agency Funds $

Redevelopment Prop Tax Trust

Redevelopnent SA Trust -Housing

FolsomPlan Area Plan Fee

$$ $$$ $

120/15

$$

3,6n222

$$$

Ir-30
Page 301

06/14/2022 Item No.14.



Summary of Revenaes by Fund

$

18,954,500

491,505

n5,w
10,985,200

60,000

20,397,000

125,000

19,129,018

$ 15,494,79 $

Q476,676)

Q04,60q

(58,450)

(1,223,669)

26,471

(1e0

88,518

2,379,499

(43,093)

16,822,824

326,899

228,550

9,911,531

92,471

54

89,118

23,426,914

E5,907

100,000

494i14

20,535,985

14,772J,09

3,741850

$ $ $ $$

100,000

43

494,314

1,375,%7

$ 91,207 $ (911,150) $

- tr4J28

- (1,000)

Transit

Water

WaterCapital

WaterMeten

Wastewater

Wastewater Capital

Critical Augmentation

&neral Augnrntation

Solid Waste

Solid Waste Capital

landfill Closure

Solid Waste Plan Area

Capital Replacenrnt

RiskManagement

kaves

Assessnrnt & CFD Agency Funds

Redevelopment hop TaxTrust

Redevelopnent SA Trust - Housing

FolsomPlan Area Plan Fee

$

145,000

40,000

12,000

150,000

6 000

?50

600

70,000

4,000

200,000

470,000

30,000

%500 $

1,000

1,000

200

$

i1 lirtrr:,1,i;,

iiiii l:il\it'j.ll
iittrt,tr'!l,r

I tirt,iijfirt,r,tr;

;irii.t'i,lrr i

lit\lljrlr( l;!lljri' :1ri: 1rtti.,

: 'rlrlirl ) rii

'ii':1,'

r r,1i,1 rt lilrl llrl

i ! 'ij i,l:iilllj,i,l{ll :,j :.1, 't l;j,;.,:1.i1) l,'l ,1 :,ij ,illl;fllii, i,, il r l, \lj,i';il ,\ ',j'l:::'i,r:i'irr i:.ll il i,l;,ti ir .ll:r,liilIrir

I i rt i,r,i rlrl i i,i,t,it i'1,;. iir i r tl I

i', :illll(irir'rrillir i' It:r ,i1li:'riil' ,rl ..rtitlt: : .,])lj tiiil ,. ,1. i. I ,,ll{il.,r'lri litii.trjll riLti.t'rrr,ll, r,t rli,lr l;trt

litri rt,jtri 'jirriilr

\': i;l,\i'l)i:i:)i.i:)
,,, lli ,iri ' i"r ;,,iit.. r

l:l tii'iri;ri ,llii rlirt

"iirt: rt:i irtrrii rrt ii ,iirtr t,li

II.31
Page 302

06/14/2022 Item No.14.



ATTACHMENT 3

Page 303

06/14/2022 Item No.14.



Cityof Folsom FY2022-23 Badget

I i i, i ril,r i i ( i, i' 1 i l' rr i I I I I I irir t r I ri l.;r t),:'),) .jil ' , .r.rl.,it ii:'rrlr ri)i ,i 1 t\.:,', i.tt:,:li; :'r.ir:lill,l rii;r

t ,i::,,,i,,"i:lrljiji'

rl,.,t;::il i i\l!rlilrt

, i:Ji:1'r rl)ii i."

lll ri:rr; ,.:r,:'

i j,l t:l

,:,.r r 
'l'1,; 

.,;;

:lli,trli:i l,'i,,r'^ rrr:Iir I i\.1Iifii.':

Crneral Fund $$$

$$

110

C-omnnrnity Developnrent Block Gant
Traffrc System Manag ernent

FolsomArts & Culture C.ommission

Housing Trust
Humbug WillowCreek
Ceneral Plan
Tree Planting & Replacement
C-omnmn ity A ffordab le Hous ing
ParkDedication
Planning Services

Local Transportation Tax
Historical District
Css Tax- Road Maint & Repair
Gas Tax2106
Cl,sTax2l0T
Cas Tax2107.5
Css Tax2l05
Measure A
Traffrc C.on ges tion Relief
Los Ceros L& L
Briggs Ranch L& L
Natorm Station L&L
FolsomHeights L& L
Broadstone Unit 3 L& L
Broadstone L& L
Hannaford Cross L& L
lake Natonra Shores L & L
Cobble Hills/Reflections L& L
Prairie Oaks Ranch L & L#2
SierraEstates L&L
Natonu Valley L& L
C,obble Ridge L& L
Prairie Oaks Ranch L& L
SilverbrookL& L
Willow Creek East L & L
Blue Favine Oaks L& L
Steeplechase L & L
WillowCreek South L& L
American River Canyon North L & L
WillowSprings L&L
Willow Springs CFD 11Mtn. Dist.
CFD#12Mtn. Dist.
CFD#13 ARCMtn. Dist.
ARCNorth L&LDtst.#2
The xe-s idences at ARC, North L & L
Fols om Plan Area-Sphere of Influence
Oaks at Willow Springs
ARCNorth L& LDist. #3

$ 220,W0

35,000
40,000

150,000

150,000

300,000

350,300

350,000
36,000

5,000

4Vt,M9

84,150

85,250
201,250
42,900

25,250
L93,250
22,000
18,200

42,100

275,750

14,525

47,375
L4,650

80,750
7,755

2,6,750

18,450

39,950
255,750

147,250

14,750
159,550

1,t69,700
I 16,000

31,750
2s,700

$

1T.34

374,350

Page 304

06/14/2022 Item No.14.



Sammnry of Appropriations by Fund

714

22O,0O0

35,165
40,000

151,753
866

15o,226
322,286
465,829

4387
365,624

36,000
5,042

1,995,749
248,514
502,719
435,965
552,802

2,412,025

91,632
102,612
241,174

43,337
26,067

255,161
29,438
23,173
54,O46

28O,750
17,445
57,500
17,592

142,988
1o,770
28,481
19,397
46,366

266,790
150,978

15,225
177,750

1244,240
139,256
32,174
31,866

General Fund

165

Cornrnunity Development Block Crant
Traffic System Management

FolsomArts & Culture Commission
Housing Trust

Humbug Willow Creek

Crneral Plan

Tree Planting & Replacement
Community Afordab le Hous ing

Park Dedication
Planning Services

Local Transportation Tax
Historical District

Gas Tax- Road Maint & Repair
Cas Tax2l06
Cas Tax2107

Cl,sTax2l07.5
Cas Tax2l05

Measure A
Traffic Congestion Relief

Los Crrros L& L
Briggs Ranch L& L

Natoma Station L& L
FolsomHeights L&L

Broadstone Unit 3 L& L
Broadstone L & L

Hannaford Cross L& L
Iake Natoma Shores L& L

Cobble Hills/Reflections L& L
Prairie Oaks Ranch L & L #2

SienaEstatesL&L
Natoma Valley L& L
Cobble Ridge L& L

Prairie Oaks Ranch L & L
SilverbrookL& L

Willow Creek East L & L
Blue Ravine Oaks L& L

Steeplechase L& L
Willow Creek South L & L

American River Canyon North L & L
WillowSprings L&L

Willow Springs CFD 11 Mtn. Dist.
CFD #12Mtn. Dist.

CFD#13 ARCMtn. Dist.
ARCNorth L&LDist.#2

The Residences at ARC, North L & L
Folsom Plan Area-Sphere of Influence

Oaks at Willow Springs
ARCNorth L&LDist.#3

1,571,680

200,000

1,500"000

42

24,8,514

s02,719

435,965

352,802

9t2,025

1,753

866

2?5

22,286

115,529

4,387

15,624

7,482
t7,362
39,924

437

817

6t,9rt
6,438

4,973

tt,946
5,000

2,920

10,t25
2,942

62,238
3,015

1,731

947

6,416
11,040

3,728
475

18,200

74,540
23,256

424
6,166

21,039

II.35

395,389

Page 305

06/14/2022 Item No.14.



Cityof Folsom FY2022-23 Budget

i;:r', ::i ,.tlr|t,tr.

r;rlljl i:;,1;1,:1r

: lr:: r'1,,r i

I,i-l,lli r.illrl':lli\rlrtii.r :,rii'!.rrr;.';

ir;. j p, 1..j,1; :1i1l,rr1 i iri11 1 11 l;,

;tlr iiill ,liirrit irt; Iiirlrtjl;:

l)rlillI illliti i :i 1t1p ir,ri I I i 1,ir11,1"r,, Iiil i r i,'r: .::, ,!' lilijl i'i r i ,':1,'i

Blue Ravine Oaks L& LDist.#2
FolsomHeights L& LDist. #2
Broadstone #4
CFD #16 The Islands
Willow Cleek Estates Fast L & L Dist
ProspectRidgeL&LDist
CFD #18 Maint Dist
CFD #19 Maint Dist
CFD#23 Al MaintDist
Cf,.D#23 A2MaintDist
Police Special Revenue
Zoo Special revenue

Wetland Maintenance

CCF Debt Service
GO SchoolFacilities Bonds DS
Folsom South AD Refunding
1982-l Nimbus AD
Traffrc SignalRefunding
Recreation Facility COP DS
Fols om Public Financing Authority
FolsomRanch

Supplemental Park Fee

Park Inprovement
Johnny Cash Trail Art
Zoo CapitalProjects
Police Capital
Central Folsom Area Capital Projects
Fire Capital
Ccneral Capital
Trans portation krprovement
Drainage Capital
Light Rail Trans portation
C-rneral Park Equipment Cap ital
Water Inpact
Library Development
Fols om Plan Area Infrastructure
FolsomPlan Area Transit Capital
FolsomPlan Area Corp Yard Capital
FolsomPlan Area Hwy 50 Inprovement
FolsomPlan Area Hwy 50 Interchange
Fols om Plan Area Capital
Major Capital and Renovation
Prairie Oak 1915 AD
CFD #10 Russell Ranch

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

34000 2,60t

49,550

64,025

348,250

1 18,600

130,750

20,525

707,500
76,500
29,500

3,500

126,335

10,000

7s,000

100,000

15,000

60,000
155,000

25,000

50,000

50,000
100,000

366,060
50,000

CFD#14 tr

u-36

1,535,000

Page 306

06/14/2022 Item No.14.



Summary of Appropriations by Fund

Deh Service
Cafitat Transfers

Out

$3' 71.680 $ 3F08,752 s 13.724,606

$

91,207 5,471,831
5255,863

Bfue Ravine Oaks L& LDist.#2
FolsomHeights L & L Dist. #2

Broadstone #4
CFD #16 The Islands

Willow Creek Estates East L & L Dist
Prospect Ridge L& LDist

CFD # 18 Maint Dist
CFD # 19 Maint Dist

CnD#23 Al Maint Dist
CED#23 .A2Maint Dist
Police Special Revenue

Zoo Special Revenue

Wetland Open Space Maintenance

Suhotal Special Rerrcnue

Debt Service
CCF Debt Service

GO School Facilities Bonds DS

Folsom South AD Refunding
1982-l Nimbus AD

Traffrc Signal Refunding
Recreation Facility COP DS

Fols om Public Financing Authority
Folsom Ranch Financing Authority

Suhotal Debt Service Fhnds

Ca$tal Project Funds
Supplemental Park Fee

Park IrrProvement

Johnny Cash Trail An
Zoo Capital Projects

Police Capital
Central Folsom Area Capital Projects

Fire Capital
General Capital

Tran s p ortation InproEfi:l

Light Rail Trans portation
Crneral Park Equipment Capital

Water Impact
Library DeveloPment

Folsom Plan Area Inllastructure
FolsomPlan Area Transit Capital

FolsomPlan Area Corp Yard Capital
FolsomPlan Area Hway 50 Irnprovement

Folsom Plan Area Hwy 50 Interchange
Folsom Plan Area Capital

Major C-apital and Renovation
Prairie Oak 1915 AD

CFD #10 Russell Ranch
CTD # 14 ParkwaY tr

Suhotal Ca$tal Project Fun&

6,893
7,464

15,196

17,051

16,511

7,244

193,869

3,238
16,390

5,288

570

643

56,443
71,489

363,446
135,651
147,261
27,769

90L,369
79,738
45,890

3,500
5,288

570
643

$

$ $$

5,380,624

5,255,863

$ 10,636,487 $ $ 9t2O7 $ t0.727.694

$$$$

2,200,000

10,000

2,490,000

1,916,600

500,000
100,000

1,731,030

2,643
197

136,240

1,187

395,2s1
104,660

52,595

136,4t4
208,840

8,307

8,460

10,000
2,661,243

10,000

2,643
197

136,240
l,lg7

4,586,851
704,660
167,595
196,414

2,094,870

688

676

25,000
50,688
50,000

100,000
18,199,980

50,000

$ 1,056,158 $$ 2200,000 $

16,290,460

rt-37

676

Page 307

06/14/2022 Item No.14.



Cityof Folsom FY2022-23 Budget

tllrL;ti'

I i:irl i,:r ri,i it i(,ltr) I l:\r I rti i:,

11r1.,;,,1;; :r,;. .i:"

l:..il:r I j, i':lir il, j'l

i. irq' lllri

i:,) t; i l. ,ir-I ;l,ltr :,,1.. ;]:;:r')iq r''

: 1r,.1: itliiill,l ',i, lir i:.,::tt: :r ,ll l ilir.:r;,::..q1i.ii, !ll, 'i\,li; .,i,.1i,'.11.

ir'r(rlrr)rlri I l:irll,.ri:1,; i if r lrli

| 1;r'irli)I i lf r.i{,,r il i. i: ;.t( 
. :,il i r ri irl

' rr i II iilt,r: j i I i r i i'I I! rl.iI i i,llilr i\jrii, i'.r i',il1 rl;i i
t.l:" 

r:

r il r i ir ir'i;1 I r',1 i irir: r; i I

iirrirl itlirtutti;trt,rii i l:!tri,,";

Transit
Water
Water Capital
Water Meters
Wastewater
'Wastewater Capital
Critical Augmentation
Crneral Augrnentation
Solid Waste
Solid Waste Capital
Iandfill Closure
Solid Waste Plan Area

Capital Replacenrent
RiskManagement

ated kaves

Assessnrent & CFD Agency Funds
Redevelopment Prop Tax Trust
Redevelopnrnt SA Trust - Housing
FolsomPlan Area Plan Fee

$$$$
3,420,W2

1,861,036

4,175,995

153,293

2,384,664

1,399,527

3,183,766

11,675,735

6,321,519

300,000
225,N0

2,L21,380

90,000

89,000
g,l42,l5g

85,000

100,000

$

8,706,957

$ l43l,u6 $

250,000

215,000

5,142,714

1

$$

$

$

$

II.38
Page 308

06/14/2022 Item No.14.



Swnmory of Appropriations by Fund

$$$

363,732 $ 14J72309
- 3 J41,950

Transit
Water

Water Capital
Water Meters

Wastewater
Wastewater Capital

Critical Augmentation
Creneral Augmentation

Solid Waste
Solid Waste Capital

Landfill Closure
Solid Waste Plan Area ital

Capital Replacement
RiskManagement

ated Iraves

Assessment & CFD Agency Funds
Redevelopment Prop TaxTrust

Redevelopment SA Trust - Housing
FolsomPlan Area Plan Fee

$

L84s,A2

12,977,331

3,741,950

1,733,471

3,559,916

61,000

867,277

26,899
3,550

765,672

2,47L

54

118

1,721,291

907

16$22,824
326,899
228,550

9,911,531
92,471

54
89,118

23,426914
85,907

100,000

$

997

$ 494,314 $

1 I

4943r4
20,535,985

$

$$ $

rl';r11 li,ri!

I il!l!t ii\,'1, rr!i .l )i::

Ilir:rIrl:lii-,rrl.
1.,l,itll i r'i I i iI rl'.i!li i.l;lrj'tl 'i,,

rr r,i i,t rl ,Ii.:IL .Iirir;rt

i,. i.\il i!1rt...'l ;- r; ;i:i r:tr lirit'1,1., I trl: i'i,:r'

i1t.i,l'r;rirl. )',,r',r li',rlrir

i:,ltl:ll ii'ilrtj

:ii' rii,, ;,1/'/,,i.1 r.ll)il,l

II-39
Page 309

06/14/2022 Item No.14.



ATTACHMENT 4

Page 310

06/14/2022 Item No.14.



Stffing Detail
Below is a comparison of full time (FT) and permanent part time (PPT) positions for the FY 2019 through
FY 2022 Budgets and the proposed FY 2022-23 Budget. All positions are listed as full-time equivalent
except for City Council which is listed as number of members.

FY19

Amroved

F"r20

Amrorrcd

rr21
Amrorrcd

Fy22

Amrorrcd

Fr23
Proposed

City Council
Mayor
CouncilMember

1.00

4.00
1.00

4.00
1.00

4.00
1.00

4.00
1.00

4.00

Total City Council s.00 s.00 5.00 5.00 5.00

City Manager's Office
Administration

City Manager
Assistant City Manager
Administrative Support Specialist

Public Information
Public Information O fficer
Media Specialist

1.00

0.50
1.00

1.00

0.75

1.00

1.00

1.00

1.00

1.00

1.00

1.00

0.50
1.00

1.00

1.00

1.00

1.00

1.00

0.75

1.00

1.00

1.00

1.00

1.00

Total City Manager 5.00 4.50 4.50 4.75 4.75

City Attorney
Cily Attomey
Deputy/Asst City Attomey
Legal Analyst
Legal Secretary

1.00

1.00

1.00

1.00

1.00

l.00
1.00

1.00

1.00

1.00

l.00
1.00

1.00

1.00

1.00

1.00

1.00

1.00

1.00

1.00

Total Citv Attorney 4.00 4.00 4.00 4.00 4.00 .

City Clerk
Ciry Clerk
Deputy City Clerk
Assistant Cily Clerk
Cfu Clerk Technician II
Ciry Clerk Technician I

1.00

1.00

1.00

1.00

1.00

1.00

1.00

1.00

1.00

1.00

l 00

1.00 1.00 I .00 1.00

Total Citv Cledr 3.00 3.00 3.00 3.00 3.00

Community Development
Administration

C ommunity Development Director
Administrative As sistant

Office Assistant

Senior Office Assistant

1.00

1.00

1.00

1.00

1.00

1.00

l.00
1.00

1.00

1.00

2.00

1.00 1.00 1.00

VII.14
Page 311

06/14/2022 Item No.14.



City of Folsom FY 2022-23 Budget Staffing Detail

Frl9
Amrorrcd

FY20

Amorrcd

FY2I
Amorrcd

Flt22
Aorored

FY23

Proposed

Community Development (cont.)
Building

Build ing Irspector I/II
Building Plans Coordinator
Building Technician I/II
Plan Check Engineer

S enior Building Irspecto r
Principal C ivil Engineer

Code Enforcement
Code Enforcernent Officer I/II
C ode Enforcernent S upervisor

Engineering
Arborist
S enior C orstruction Irspector
C onstruction Irspector I/II
Engineering Technician I/II
City Engineer

Senior Civil Engineer

Planning
Building Inspector II
Plarrrer I (Asst)/Plarxrer II (Associate)

Plarudng Manager
Prhcipal Planner

Senior Planner

2.00
1.00

2.00
2.00
1.00

1.00

1.00

1.00

1.00

1.00

1.00

1.00

2.00

1.00

1.00

1.00

2.00
1.00

2.00
1.00

2.00
2.00
1.00

l 00

1.00

1.00

1.00

1.00

1.00

1.00

2.00

2.00
1.00

2.00
1.00

2.00
1.00

2.00
2.00
1.00

1.00

1.00

1.00

l 00
1.00

1.00

l 00
2.00

2.00
1.00

2.00
1.00

2.00
1.00

2.00
2.00
l 00

l.00

1.00

1.00

1.00

1.00

1.00

1.00

2.00

2.00
1.00

2.00
1.00

2.00
1.00

2.00
2.00
1.00

1.00

1.00

1.00

1.00

1.00

1.00

1.00

2.00

2.00
1.00

2.00
1.00

Total Community Development 26.00 26.00 26.A0 26.00 26.00

Fire Department
Administration

Fire Chief
Fire Division Chief
Accounting Technician I/II
Administrative Tec hnic ian
Administrative As s istant

Ofice Assistant

Senior Office Assistant

Emergency Operations
Fire Division Chief
Fire Battalion Chief
Fire Captain- Stppression
Fire Engineer

Firefiglter

1.00

1.00 1.00

1.00 1.00

1.00

3.00
1.00

t2.00
t2.00
42.00

1.00

1.00

1.00

1.00

1.00

1.00

1.00

1.00

2.00
1.00

15.00

15.00

36.00

1.00

2.OO

1.00

1.00

l 00

1.00

2.00

1.00

1.00

1.00

1.00

2.00
15.00

15.00

46.00

2.00
1.00

15.00

15.00

36.00

1.00

2.00
15.00

15.00

36.00

vII-15
Page 312

06/14/2022 Item No.14.



City of Folsom FY 2022-23 Badget Stffing Detail

F r19
Arxrorrcd

FY2O

Atmor,ed

F.tt2l
Anrorrcd

Ftr22
.A.rnrorrcd

tv23
Prorxrsed

Fire Depaftment (cont.)
Fire Prevention

Deputy Fire Marshall
Fire Prevention Officer

1.00

2.00
1.00

2.00
1.00

2.00
1.00

2.00
1.00

2.00

Total Ffue 77.00 77.00 77.00 78.00 88.00
Human Resources

Human Resources Director
Human Resources Manager
Ad ministrative Assistant

Human Resources Technician I/II
S enior Mana gement Analyst

0.50 0.2s 0.s0 1.00

1.00

2.00
2.00

1.00

2.00
2.00

1.00

2.00
2.OO

1.00

2.00
2.OO

1.00

1.00

2.00
2.00

Total lluman Resources 5.50 s.2s 5.50 6.00 6.00
Library

Library Director
Administrative Assistant

Librarian
Lflorary Assistant

Lilor ary C irculation C oord inator

Library Technician

Marketing & Graphics Coord
Senior Librarian
Senior Office Assistant

1.00

1.00

2.00
4.00
1.00

2.00
0.75

1.00

1.00

1.00

2.00
4.00
1.00

2.OO

0.75

1.00

1.00

1.00

2.00
4.00
1.00

2.00
0.75

1.00

1.00

1.00

2.00
4.00
1.00

2.00

r.00

1.00

1.00

2.00
4.00
1.00

2.00

1.00

Total Library 12.75 12.75 12.75 t2.O0 12.00
Office of Management and Budget

Administration
Chief F inancial O fficerlF inance Director
Finance Director
Administrative Assistant

Disbursements
Disbursements Specialist

Payroll Specialist

Disbursements Technician

Revenue
Revenue Technician I/II
Revenue/Disbursements Manager
Revenue Supervisor

S enior Revenue Technician

1.00

2.00
l 00

1.00

2.00
1.00

1.00

2.00
1.00

4.00
1.00

0.50

1.00

1.00

2.00
1.00

4.00
1.00

0.2s
1.00

1.00

4.00
1.00

1.00

1.00

1.00

2.00
l 00

1.00

1.00 1.00

1.00 1.00

3.00 3.00

1.00 1.00

1.00

2.OO

1.00

2.00

vrl-16
Page 313

06/14/2022 Item No.14.



Cityof Folsom F12022-23 Budget Stalfing Detail

fr '" I I

:.,\ ! .j ij\r'ii

l:,'l.r I

ir- | :rri1,:l-i

ti 'i "'J, ,'

rii qa11.i1;;riill: ': :,,t\: ti

;.:,,'/.,,

il iir\::li

OIIice of Management and Budget (cont.)
Financial Seruices

Accounting Technician II
Financial Specblist
Senior Finarrcial Analyst
Deputy Treasurer

Financial Services Manager

Information Systems
Inforrnation Systems Manager

Inforrnation S ystems Analyst

Inforrnation Systems Technician I/II
GIS Analyst

1.00

1.00

2.00
1.00

1.00

3.00
1.00

1.00

1.00

1.00

2.00
1.00

1.00

3.00
1.00

1.00

1.00

1.00

2.00
1.00

1.00

1.00

3.00

1.00

1.00

1.00

1.00

2.00
1.00

1.00

1.00

3.00

1.00

1.00

1.00

1.00

2.00
1.00

1.00

1.00

2.00
1.00

1.00

1.00

1.00 1.00

Process

Parks & Recneation
Administntion

Parks & Recreation Director
Administrative Assistart
Marketing & Graphics Coordinator
Maniagement Ana$st
S enior Management Anatyst

Park Maintenance
Mairfenance Specialist

Mairtenance Worker IAI
Parks/Facilities Maintenance Manager

Parks Srpervisor
Senior Mainterrance Worker

Park I)evelopment
Senior Park Planner

Park Planner

Trails
Senior Trails Planner

7no
Zookeeper I / II
Lead Zookeeper
Recreation C oordinator I
Recreation C oordinator II
Zoo Sr4rervisor

1.00

3.00
1.00

1.00

1.00

3.00
1.00

1.00

3.00
1.00

1.00

2.00
1.00

1.00

1.00

2.00

1.00

1.00

s.00
1.00

1.00

2.00
1.00

1.00

1.00

2.O0

s.00
1.00

1.00

1.00

3.00
1.00

1.00

2.00
1.00

1.00

1.00

2.00

s.00
1.00

1.00

1.00

1.00

3.00
1.00
1.00

2.00
1.00

r.00
1.00

2.00

5.00
1.00

1.00

1.00

1.00

2.00
1.00

1.00

1.00

2.00

s.00
1.00

1.00

1.00

1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00

1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00

1.00 1.00

iilrrlltrli{())iiil'trl,) ili' ltrYiil,lill,ti,,i"rllirilil, :r,li\il. lr)ltal,t,'ii ,.,..:,,.. ,ii: :'; ,),' , :rl ii),i, ,.,i,1 ilil) '.:',,,,itrt 
t

VII.17
Page 314

06/14/2022 Item No.14.



City of Folsom FY 2022-23 Budget Staffing Detail

FY19
Amrored

F'Y20

Anprorrcd

Fv2l
Aprorrcd

Ftt22
Annorrcd

Fr23
Pronosed

Parks & Recreation (cont.)
Aquatics

Recreation Coordinator I
Recreation Coordinator II
Recreation Marleget
Recreation Supervisor

Senior Maintenance Worker
Community & Cultural Services /
Community Facilities

Commtrrity & Cultwal Services Manager

Recreation Coordinator I
Recreation Coordinator II
Recreation Supervisor

S enior Recreation Coordinator

Recreation / Sports Complex
Recreation Coordinator I
Recreation Coordinator II
Recreation Manager
Recreation Supervisor

S enior Re creation C oo rdin;ator

Facility Services
Facililies Maintenance Stpervisor
S enior Building Tradesworker
Build ing Trade sworker I/II

Municipal Landscaping
Lighting & Landscape District Manager

Construction Inspector I
Irrigation Systems C o ordinator

Maintenance S tpervisor
Senior Maintenance Worker
Maintenance Worker I/II

0.50
1.00

0.50
1.00

1.00

r.00
2.00
1.00

1.00

1.00

1.50

1.00

0.50
1.00

1.00

1.00

3.00
1.00

1.00

2.00
1.00

0.50
1.00

1.00

0.50
1.00

0.50 1.50

1.00

1.00

3.00
1.00

1.00

1.50

1.00

1.00

1.00

1.00

1.00

1.00

1.00

1.00

1.00

1.00

1.00

1.00

3.00
1.00

1.00

1.00

1.50

1.00

1.00

1.00

3.00
1.00

1.00

1.00

1.00

1.00

1.00

1.00

1.00

1.00

1.00

3.00
1.00

1.00

1.00

1.50

1.00

1.00

1.00

3.00
1.00

1.00

1.00

1.00

1.00

1.00

1.00

3.00
1.00

1.00

1.00

1.00

1.00

1.00

00

50

I
I

1.00

3.00
1.00

1.00

1.00

1.00

3.00
1.00

1.00

1.00

1.00

1.00

1.00 2.00

Total Par*s & Recreation 48.00 48.00 48.00 48.00 49.00

Police Depaftment
Administration

Police Chief
Police Commarder
Administrative As sistant

Administrative Technician

Police Sergeant

Police Officer

1.00 1.00

1.00 1.00

1.00

1.00

1.00

1.00

1.00

1.00

1.00

1.00

1.00

1.00

1.00

1.00

1.00

1.00

1.00

1.00

1.00

1.00

1.00

1.00

vrr-18

1.00

1.00

Page 315

06/14/2022 Item No.14.



Cityof Folsom FY2022-23 Budget Staffing Detail

F"r 19

Amrorrcd

FY2O

Amorrcd
F"r2l

Apmorrcd

Fv22
Approrrcd

r'r23
Proposed

Police Department (cont.)
Support Services

Police Comrnander

Police Lietilenant

Police Support Services Manager

C ommunications S upervisor
Dispatcher I/II
Administrative Technician

Senior Records Clerk
Police Records Clerk
Police Records Clerk - PPT
Police Records S r.pervisor

Operations
Police Commarder
Commr.mity Service O fficer
Police Lieutenant

Police Sergeant

Police Corporal
Police Officer
Po lice Volunteer C oordinator

Investigations
Police Lieutenant

Police Sergeant

Police Offcer
Property and Evidence Technician

Commrmity Service Offcer
Crime & Intelligence Analyst

Animal Care Services
Animal Control Officer

2.00
1.00

2.00
1.00

1.00 1.00

1.00

3.00
13.00

1.00

1.00

2.00
0.50
1.00

1.00

1.00

3.00
9.00
5.00

43.00
1.00

1.00

2.00
10.00

2.00

1.00

3.00
13.00

1.00

1.00

2.00
0.s0
1.00

1.00

1.00

3.00
9.00
5.00

43.00
1.00

1.00

2.00
10.00

2.00

3.00
13.00

1.00

3.00
13.00

1.00

2.00
0.50
1.00

1.00

1.00

3.00
9.00
5.00

43.00

1.00

1.00

2.00
10.00

1.00 1.00

3.00

14.00

1.00

2.00
0.50

1.00

1.00

1.00

3.00

9.00

5.00

44.00
1.00

1.00

2.00
10.00

2.00

1.00

2.00
0.50
l 00

1.00

l.00
3.00
9.00
5.00

43.00
1.00

1.00

2.00
10.00

2.00
1.00

1.00

1.00 1.00

1.00 1.00 1.00

Total Police Department 107.s0 107.50 107.50 107.50 110.50

Public Works Depaftment
Adminis tration / Enginee ring

Public Works Director
Administrative As s istant

C onstruction Irspector I/II
Engineering Technician I/II
PWfutilities Section Manager
Ofice Assistant

Senior Civil Engineer

S enior Management Analyst
Senior Office Assistant

0.80
r.00
1.00

1.00

1.00

1.00

3.00
0.75

0.80
1.00

1.00

1.00

1.00

0.80
1.00

1.00

1.00

1.00

0.80
1.00

1.00

1.00

1.00

1.00

3.00
0.50

0.80
1.00

1.00

1.00

1.00

3.00
0.75

1.00

3.00
0.75

1.00

VII-19

3.00

0.7s
1.00

Page 316

06/14/2022 Item No.14.



Cityof Folsom FY2022-23 Budget Staffing Detail

Public Works Department (cont.)
Fleet Maintenance

PW / Utilities Section Manager
Fleet/ Solid Waste Manager
Administrative Assistarr
Inverrtory Clerk
Lead Senior Mechanic
Mechanic II
Maintenance Worker I/II
S enior Equipment Mechanic

Streets
Maintenance Specialist
Mairtenance Worker I/II
Mechanic II
Senior Maintenarpe Worker
Streets Operations Srryervisor

Traffic Maintenance
Associate Civil Engineer .

Mairtenance Specialist
Senior CivilEngineer
Senior Maintenarrce Worker
Senior Traffic Control & LiEltt';rg Technician
Traftc Corrtrol & Lighting Srpervisor
Traffic Control & Lrytlting Technician I/II

Transit*
PW / Utilities Section Manager
Administrative As sistar$

Senior Managemerrt Ana$st
Transit Chief
Transit Bus Driver
Transit Br.rs Driver - PPT (@ 8O%)

Transit Coordinator
Transit Scheduler
Transit Trainer

0.30
o.20
0.10
1.00
1.00
4.00
o.10
1.00

3.00
4.to

1.OO

1.00

1.00
2.OO

1.00
1.O0

3.OO

0.10
0.40
o.25
1.00
4.00
6.40
1.00
1.00
1.00

0.35
o.20
0.10
1.00
1.00
4.00
0.10
1.00

3.OO

4.to

1.00
1.00

1.00
2.OO

1.00
1.00

3.OO

0.35
o.20
0.10
1.00
1.00
4.00
0.10
1.00

3.00
4.10

1.00
1.00

1.00
1.00

1.O0

l.o0

0.35
0.35
0.10
1.OO

1.00
4.to

3.OO

4.OO

0.10
1.00
1.00

1.00
1.00

1.00
1.00

o.3s
0.35
0.10
1.00
1.00
4.to

1.OO 1.00

3.00
4.00
0.10
1.00
1.00

1.00
1.00
1.00
1.00

4.00 4.OO 4.00

Environmental and Water Resourtes
Wate r Re s ources Administtation

Director
Administrative Assistarr
Administrative Technician
Associate Civil Engineer
Engineering Technician I/II
Marketing & Graphics Coord
PW / Utilities SectionManager
SCADA Programmer
Senior CivilEngineer
Senior Office Assistant

1.00
1.00

1.00
1.00
o.25
1.00
1.00
2.OO

1.00

1.00
1.00

1.00
1.00
o.25
1.00
1.00
2.OO

1.OO

1.00
1.00
o.2s
1.O0

l.o0
2.OO

l.oo

1.OO

1.00

1.00
1.00

1.00
1.00
2.OO

2.OO

1.00
1.00
1.00
1.00
1.00

1.00
1.00
2.OO

2.OO

00
00

I
1

VII.2O
Page 317

06/14/2022 Item No.14.



Cityof Folsom FY2022-23 Badget Staffing Detoil

l. 
, 

.,, l.1i: : t, .i .:., 
I

/:lr it,::l1rir .l^.,,r1;r.\-L I, r,t,ji.i rr|rlrIi rit, lr:l'rt I

Lr\'1: ri

Environmental and Water Resources (cont.)

Wastewater
Revenue Technician I/II
Senior Wastewater Collection Teclmician

Utilities Technician

Wastewater C ollection S upervisor
Wastewater Collection Tech I/II

Water Conservation
Water Management Coordinator
Water Management Specialist

Wate r Utility Maintenance
Senior Water Utility Worker
Utilrty Maintenance S r.pervisor

Water Utilrty Worker I/II
WaterTrcatment Plant

Lead Plant Mechanic

Plant Mechanic
Senior Offce Assistant

Water Treatrnent Plant Chief Operator
Water Treatrnent Plant Operator III
Water Treatrnerfi Plant Operatorl /lI
Water Treatment Plant Sr.pervisor

Water Quality
Water Distribtrion Chief Operator

Water Disfribrlion Operator IAI
Water Quality Technician

Water Distribdion Sr4pervisor

WaterMetering Pmgram
Utilfy Maintenance Sr4ervisor

Senior Water Utility Worker
Senior Water Meter Worker

2.00
1.00

1.00

10.00

1.00

2.00

1.00

r.00
s.00

1.00

1.00

1.00

1.00

3.00
1.00

1.00

1.00

3.00
1.00

1.00

1.00

3.00

2.00

1.00

11.00

1.00

2.00

1.00

1.00

5.00

1.00

1.00

1.00

1.00

3.00
1.00

1.00

1.00

3.00
1.00

1.00

1.00

3.00

2.O0

1.00

11.00

1.00

2.00

1.00

1.00

5.00

1.00

1.00

1.00

1.00

3.00
1.00

1.00

1.00

3.00
1.00

1.00

1.00

1.00

2.O0

1.00

11.00

1.00

2.00

1.00

1.00

s.00

1.00

4.00
1.00

1.00

1.00

3.00
1.00

1.00

1.00

1.00

1.00
2.00

1.00

11.00

1.00

2.00

1.00

1.00

5.00

1.00 1.00

1.00 1.00

1.00

4.00
1.00

1.00

1.00

3.00
1.00

1.00

1.00

2.00

Water Worker I/II 3.00 3.00 3.00

iililtlilflirt,':jiitrjjlitlirt)!l'if;r.r)riL i'..i.riiirrli ll.i:,I.:j(1)illii,iilrr; '.,:,' ',.t",' ', ,"::,,,:'i' '.,'t ).t'.'i. ',i ;.liiir t,ltrlilll,

vtr-21
Page 318

06/14/2022 Item No.14.



City of Folsom FY 2022-23 Budget Stalling Detail

Solid Waste Department
Solid Waste Collections

Public Works Director
PW / Utilities Section Manager

Solid Waste / Fleet Manager
Solid Waste Supervisor

Administrative Assistant

Account Technician

S enior Management Analyst

Maintenance Worker I/II
Mechanic II
Refuse Driver
S enior Maintenance Worker
Senior Office Assistant

Hazardous Materials
Hazardous Materials Coordinator
Mainternnce Specialist

S enior Environmental Specialist

Recycling
Environmental Specialist Supervisor 1.00 1.00 1.00

0.20
0.60
0.80
1.00

0.50
1.00

0.2s
1.80

1.00

31.00
2.00
3.00

1.00

1.00

1.00

0.20
0.65
0.80
1.00

0.90
1.00

0.25
1.80

1.00

31.00
2.00
3.00

1.00

1.00

1.00

0.20
0.65
0.80
1.00

0.90
1.00

0.25

1.80

1.00

31.00
2.00
3.00

1.00

1.00

1.00

0.20
0.65
0.6s
1.00

0.90
1.00

0.25

1.00

1.80

37.00
2.00
3.00

1.00

1.00

1.00

1.00

2.OO

0.20

0.65

0.65

1.00

0.90
1.00

0.25

1.00

l.80
38.00

2.00
3.00

1.00

1.00

1.00

1.00

2.00Senior Environmental S

*Transit - During Fiscal Year 2079 the City Transit Services were annexed by Sacramento Regional Transit

vrt-22
Page 319

06/14/2022 Item No.14.



This page is intentionally left blank.

Page 320

06/14/2022 Item No.14.



Folsom City Council
Staff Re rt

RECOMMENDATION / COUNCIL ACTION

Staff recommends that the City Council approve Resolution No. 10871- A Resolution
Adopting the Public Works and Parks and Recreation Departments2022 Active
Transportation Plan (ATP).

BACKGROUND / ISSUE

In July 2019, the city received Sacramento Area Council of Governments (SACOG)2019
State of Good Repair Planning and Project Development Grant Program funding in the

amount of $150,000, with a crty match of $50,000, to develop a citywide Active
Transportation Plan (ATP). Folsom's first ATP will combine and update the master plans for
both pedestrian and bicycle facilities. The ATP will guide the planning, development, and

maintenance of existing and future bicycle and pedestrian facilities within the city, including
recommended citywide active transportation network improvements and Safe Routes to
School. The city is committed to the design and operation of what is referred to as,

"Complete Streets", providing equitable, safe, and effective use of all streets by all users. The
pu{pose of the ATP is to increase bicycling and walking opportunities through the creation of
a safe, connected, convenient, and visible active transportation network.

The Draft Active Transportation Plan (ATP) was presented at the April28, 2022, Traffic
Safety Committee; April 5,2022, Parks and Recreation Commission meeting; April 6, 2022,
Planning Commission meeting; and April 12,2022, City Council meeting. A presentation
was made at eachmeeting and comments received. The final ATP was presented to the Parks

I

MEETING DATE: 6114/2022

AGENDA SECTION: Old Business

SUBJECT: Resolution No. 10871- A Resolution Adopting the Public Works
and Parks and Recreation Departments2l22 Active
Transportation Plan (ATP)

FROM: Parks and Recreation Department

Page 321

06/14/2022 Item No.15.



and Recreation Commission on June 7,2022, where the Commission recommended to the
City Council to adopt the ATP.

ANALYSIS

The City of Folsom Active Transportation Plan (ATP) is the city's plan for improving
mobility for all residents and visitors who walk, bike, and run in and around Folsom. It
evaluates what exists today and recommends policies, infrastructure projects, supporting
programs, and implementation priorities to achieve this vision. Through improved bikeways,
shared use paths, and sidewalks, the ATP establishes a complete and connected network that
supports people of all ages and abilities.

The ATP is an update to the previously adopted Bicycle Master Plan (2007), and Pedestrian

Master Plan (2014). It focuses on improving the safety and comfort of active transportation
facilities, improving connections among on-and-off-street facilities, and supporting
connections to destinations across the city.

The ATP contents include the following:

Chapter 1: Introduction outlines the purpose of the ATP, its relationship to other
plans, and considers the benefits of active transportation.

Chapter 2: Goals, Objectives, and Policies establishes the vision and priorities for
the ATP.

Chapter 3: Existing Conditions evaluates the broader context of the ATP, including
demographic and development trends; the transportation system; and the current state

of the active transportation network, including bicycle, pedestrian, and shared use

path facilities in the city.

Chapter 4: Outreach & Community Engagement summarizes the engagement

activities and findings conducted as part of the ATP.

Chapter 5: Recommendations describes the proposed improvements to the
pedestrian, path, and bicycle networks. Recommendations include programs and
policies to support an expanded active transportation system.

Chapter 6 : Implementation prioritizes recommended active transportation
improvements, presents ranked project lists, and explores implementation
opportunities and strategies.

Throughout the ATP process, Folsom residents and visitors were invited to share their
experiences with and vision for the city's active transportation network. Through in-person
events and online forums, members of the public provided input at every phase of the plan.

This chapter provides an overview of engagement opportunities and a sunmary of key trends
of feedback received. Engagement occurred in two primary phases:

a

a

a

a

a

o

2
Page 322

06/14/2022 Item No.15.



Phase 1: During this phase, project staff provided information about the plan,
gathered input on key questions, and answered questions about the process. Staff also

asked how people travel today, including community-specific needs and challenges.

Phase 2: During this phase, community members were encouraged to review draft
plan goals and proposed location-specific project recommendations, and to indicate
anything missing and their highest priority projects.

The engagement strategy included both in-person and virtual events to provide multiple
opportunities to participate while adhering to public health guidance. Each event considered
the city's active transportation system comprehensively; at each event or input opportunity,
questions sought feedback on the bicycle, pedestrian, and path networks simultaneously to
better understand how the networks work together. Participants provided more than2,500
comments through digital tools. In-person and virtual events were promoted through city
channels, including the city website, social mediapages, and crty's newsletters.

FINANCIAL IMPACT

The City of Folsom Active Transportation Plan (ATP) includes more than 300 projects that
will advance the safety and function of.the active transportation network, with about 65

projects identified as high priority. Based on planning-level cost estimates, it is expected to
cost more than $301 million to implement all recommended projects, and $88,000,000 to
implement the high priority projects outlined in the Plan.

Project implementation requires a deliberate strategy and exploration of innovattve
approaches. With limited resources and high demand for improvements, the city should
coordinate with relevant departments and partners to identiS opportunities for project
delivery. The strategies explored below are opportunities for the city to support the
implementation of the ATP's programs, recommended project improvements, and goals and
policies over time.

Additional strategies for project implementation can be found beginning on page 91 of the
ATP and should be considered not only for the projects listed here but also for future project
phases to advance the ATP.

ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW

The development and adoption of the ATP is a planning and feasibility study that will guide

future actions by the City Council and is exempt from the California Environmental Quality
Act (CEQA) review pursuant to the CEQA Guidelines Section 15262.

ATTACHMENTS

1. Resolution No. 10871 - A Resolution Adopting the Public Works and Parks and
Recreation Department s 2022 Active Transportation Plan (ATP)

o

o

J Page 323

06/14/2022 Item No.15.



2. Final Active Transportation Plan (ATP)

Submitted,

Lorraine Poggione, Parks and Recreation Director

4
Page 324

06/14/2022 Item No.15.



ATTACHMENT 1

Page 325

06/14/2022 Item No.15.



RESOLUTION NO. 10871

A RESOLUTION ADOPTING THE PUBLIC WORKS AND PARKS AND
RECREATTON DEPARTMENTS 2022 ACTTVE TRANSPORTATTON PLAN (ATP)

WHEREAS, in May 20l9,the Sacramento Area Council of Governments (SACOG) released
a call for applications for the 2019 State of Good Repair Planning and Project Development Grant
Funding Program; and

WHEREAS, in July 2019, staff was notified that the City was awarded a grant in the amount
of $150,000, plus $50,000 in City matching funds from Measure A (Fund 276); and

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Folsom desires to develop a complete and
balanced system of walking and biking conditions to support residents as they travel and recreate in
and around the city; and

WHEREAS, the ATP builds on prior planning and policy efforts, including the General Plan,
to create a cohesive and comprehensive plan; and

WHEREAS, the City Council finds that the Active Transportation Plan (ATP) will not add
any new or significant adverse impacts and is therefore exempt under Section 15061(b)(3) of the
California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) with individual future projects to be separately
analyzed under CEQA; and

WHEREAS, the Active Transportation Plan (ATP) is the long-term capital improvement
program for active transportation facilities; and

WHEREAS, on June 7,2022, the Parks and Recreation Commission recommended adoption
of the ATP to the City Council.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Folsom,
based on its review and consideration of the Active Transportation Plan, and all public testimony:

1, Finds that the Active Transportation Plan is in the public interest and will advance
the health, safety, and general welfare of the City of Folsom.

2. Finds that the Active Transportation Plan is consistent with the Folsom General Plan

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 14ft day of June 2022,by the following roll-call vote

AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:

ATTEST:

Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):

Christa Freemantle, CITY CLERK

Resolution No. 10871
Page I of I

Keni M. Howell, MAYOR

Page 326

06/14/2022 Item No.15.



ATTACHMENT 2

Page 327

06/14/2022 Item No.15.



Page 328

06/14/2022 Item No.15.



Acknowledgments

Parks and Recreation Department
Lorraine Poggione
Director

Public Works Department
Mark Rackovan
Director

City Council
Kerri Howell
Moyor

Brett Bollinger
Senior Troils Planner

Zach Bosch
Sen i or Civi I Engi n eer/Traffic

Rosario Rodriguez
Vice Moyor

Tim O'Shea
Focilities Manager Traffic Safety Committee

Scott Bailey
Citi ze n Rep rese ntotive

David Soulsby
Citi ze n Rep rese ntative

Bob Delp
Bicycle/Pedestrio n Sofety

Matt washburn
Folsom Cordovo Unified School District
(FCUSD)

Sarah Aquino
Councilmember

Lesley Miller
Mo rketing o nd Gro phics Coord i n ator

YK Chalamcherla
Councilmember

Parks and Recreation
Commission
Dave Nazworth
Chair

Mike Kozlowski
Councilmember

Brian Wallace
Vice Choir

Stakeholders

Jim Kirstein
Friends of Folsom Parkwoys (FOFP)

Samantha Davidson
Commissioner

Zach Bosch
Pu b I ic Wo rks Depa rtment

Chief Rick Hillman
Police Deportment

Lynn LePage
Friends of Folsom Porkwoys (FOFP)

Matt Hedges
Commissioner

Tony Powers
Resident

WillKempton
Commissioner

Chief Ken Cusano
Fire Deportment

Robert Goss
Resident

Marina Leight
Commissioner

Gina Silvernale
Resident

Tanya Morales
Commissioner

Page 329

06/14/2022 Item No.15.



Table of Contents

CHAPTER I I TNTRODUCTTON

CHAPTER il | GOALS, OBJECTTVES, AND POLtCtES

CHAPTER ilt i EXtSTtNG CONDTIONS

AND NETWORK NEEDS .. ..

CHAPTER IV I COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT

CHAPTER V I RECOMMENDATIONS

CHAPTERVt I TMPLEMENTATTON ...

APPENDICES

APPENDIX A: DESIGN GUIDELINES

APPENDIX B: EXISTING CONDITIONS AND NEEDS ANALYSIS

5

0
1

13

31

37

59

City of Folsom Active Transportation Plan I Table of Contents I iii
Page 330

06/14/2022 Item No.15.



))

Chapter I I Introduction
Page 331

06/14/2022 Item No.15.



Plan Purpose I
The City of Folsom Active Transportation
Plan (ATP) is the city's plan for improving
mobility for all residents and visitors who
walk, bike, run, and rolll in and around
Folsom. lt evaluates what exists today
and recommends policies, infrastructure
projects, supporting programs, and
implementation priorities to achieve
this vision. Through improved bikeways,
shared use paths, and sidewalks, the ATP

establishes a complete and connected
network that supports people of all ages
and abilities.

The ATP is an update to the previously-
adopted Bicycle Master Plan (2007) and
Pedestrian Master Plan (2014).lt focuses
on improving the safety and comfort of
active transportation facilities, improving
connections among on- and off-street
facilities, and supporting connections to
destinations across the city.

1 The term roll refers to a person who might use a wheelchair,
assisfive mobility devices, or other human-powererl de'Jice on wheels.

PLAN CONTENTS

Chapter 1: Introduction outlines the
purpose of the ATP, its relationship to other
plans. and considers the benefits of active
tra nsp0 rtation.

Chapter 2: Goals, Objectives, and Policies
establishes the vision and priorities for the
ATP.

Chapter 3: Existing Conditions evaluates
the broader context of the ATP, including
demographic and development trends; the
transportation system; and the current
state of the active transportation network,
including bicycle, pedestrian, and shared use
path facilities in the city.

Chapter 4: Outreach & Community
Engagement summarizes the engagement
activities and findings conducted as part of
thE ATP.

Chapter 5: Recommendations describes
the proposed improvements to the
pedestrian, path, and bicycle networks.
Recommendations include programs and
policies to support an expanded active
transportation system.

Chapter 6: lmplementation prioritizes
recommended active transportation
improvements, presents ranked project
lists, and explores implementation
opportunities and strategies

RELATIONSHIP TO OTHER PLANS

The City of Folsom ATP aims to create a

complete and balanced system of walking,
biking, and rolling conditions to support
residents as they travel and recreate
in and around the city. The ATP builds
on prior planning and policy efforts to
create a cohesive and comprehensive
plan. A thorough review of relevant and
applicable planning and policy efforts
from local, regional, and federal level plans
helped inform the process, goals, and
recommendations in the ATP.

Local and regional planning documents-
specifically those aimed at improving
walking and biking-informed
development of the ATP.

City of Folsom Active Transportation Plan Executive Summary i 2

Page 332

06/14/2022 Item No.15.



Local plans reviewed include the City of
Folsom Bicycle Master Plan (2007), the City
of Folsom Pedestrian Master Plan (2014),

the Folsom Generol Plan, the City of Folsom
Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) Self-

Evaluation and Transition Plan (2009) and
the Folsom Plan Area Specific P/on (FPA).

Regional plans reviewed include the
Sacramento Area Council of Governments
(SACOG) Metropolitan Transportation Plan/
Susta i n a b I e Co m m u n ities Strategy (2020);

lhe Regional Bicycle, Pedestrian, and Trails

Master Plan (2013); the Sacramento County
Bicycle Master Plan (2011);the Sacramento
County Pedestrian Master Plan (2007);

lhe Sacromento County Americons with
Disabilities Act Transition Plan (2020); the
Sacramento Region Parks and Trails Strategic
Development Plan; the Cslifornia State Parks
Recreational Trail Plan (2002); and the E/

Dorado County Active Transportation Plan

(2020).

BENEFITS OF ACTIVE
TRANSPORTATION

lnvestment in active transportation
infrastructure-including bikeways,
sidewalks, and shared use paths*
supports residents, employees, and
visitors as they travel in and around
Folsom. Active transportation can
support a more active lifestyle; support
people as they connect to employment,
educational opportunities, or recreation;
or serve as the primary way to travel. The

benefits of active transportation are well-
documented and broad-reaching, including
environmental, economic, and health and
wellness^ Benefits lnclude:

Health and Equity Benefits

A connected active transportation
network can provide safer and more
comfortable ways to travel for all ages
and abilities. Low-stress networks can
expand access to schools, jobs, homes,
and parks-connecting residents to
economic, educational, and recreational
opportunities. Active transportation
supports those who cannot drive, choose
not to drive, or cannot afford to own a car

Furthermore, active transportation
supports mental and physical well-being
through reduced stress and anxiety, and
other health benefits associated with
higher levels of activity. Creating reliable
bicycling and pedestrian infrastructure can
also improve access to parks and other
active recreation destinations.

Recommendations put forth in the ATP

incorporate previous planning efforts,
while acknowledging changing conditions
in the city influencing the growth of active
transportation networks.

3 r Executive Summary City of Folsom Active Transportation Plan
Page 333

06/14/2022 Item No.15.



Safety Benefits

Prioritizing development of bicycling and
walking infrastructure can improve safety
and comfort levels for all active users.
Developing bicycling and walking facilities,
improving crossings, and promoting
education for safer travel can reduce
potential conflicts among people walking,
bicycling, and driving. Well-designed
roadways and active transportation
facilities can improve safety for all roadway
users through increased predictability and
increased separation from motor vehicles.

Quality of Life Benefits

Active transportation provides more
options for how people get around,
regardless of their reason for travel.
lmproved infrastructure that provides
comfortable and safe routes of travel
can encourage more people to use active
modes and increase connections to
educational, economic, and recreational
opportunities.

Environ mental Benefits

More people walking and biking supports
environmental goals by reducing vehicle
miles traveled (VMT), improving air quality,
and reducing greenhouse Bas emissions.
This further supports increased quality of
life, particularly for individuals vulnerable
to respiratory conditions and other
sensitive groups.

City of Folsom Active Transportation Plan i Executive Summary i 4

Page 334

06/14/2022 Item No.15.



))

Chapter II I Goals, Objectives, and Policies

Page 335

06/14/2022 Item No.15.



Folsom Active Transportation Goals, Objectives, and Policies I

The ATP reflects community values and a

vision for an active transportation network
that supports biking, walking, and rolling
for residents of all ages and abilities. The
Goals, Objectives, and Policies presented
below establish concrete procedures
and priorities that will guide Folsom in

achieving this vision.

The Goals, Objectives, and Policies of
the ATP were informed by relevant local
and regional plans, the results of the
needs analysis, and public feedback. The

framework reflects a vision consistent with
previous active transportation planning
efforts and localand regional plans,
including the Folsom GeneralPlon; and the
SACOG Bicycle, Pedestrian, and Trails Master
Plan.

The Goals, Objectives, and Policies
informed project and program
recommendations, project prioritization,
and implementation strategies. As the city
grows, implements projects, and changes
over time, these Goals, Objectives, and
Policies should be used to guide future
actions.

GOAL 1:
SAFETY & COMFORT

Folsom will be a safe and comfortable
place for people of all ages and abilities
to walk, bike, and roll.

Objective 1.1: Reduce the number of
severe injuries and fatalities involving
people walking, bicycling, and rolling.

Policy 1.7.1: Evaluate local design
standards for bikeways, pedestrian
facilities, and paths. Revise as applicable
for consistency with best practices and
state and federal standards.

Policy 1.1.2: Prioritize low-stress
facilities, such as separated bikeways,
and improve safety for people walking
and bicycling at intersections and street
crossings.

Policy 1.1.3: Establish and implement a

comprehensive Vision Zero program to
advance safety for all users.

Policy 1.1.4: Monitor bicycle- and
pedestrian-involved collisions annually
and adjust infrastructure and program
approaches as needed to achieve a

reduction in bicycle- and pedestrian-
involved collisions.

Objective 1.2: Advance and expand the
safety and comfort of Class I facilities in

Folsom.

Policy 1.2.1: lmprove the safety and
comfort for people utilizing Class I

facilities at intersections and street
crossings.

Policy 1.2.2: Prioritize grade-separated
crossings at intersection of Class I

facilities and major arterial streets.

Policy 1.2.3: Utilize best practices
design standards and guidelines to
accommodate all path user groups.
Consider wider paths, separated
spaces for travel. and other design
interventions to improve safety and
comfort along Class I facilities.

City of Folsom Active Transportation Plan i Goals. Objectives, and Policies i 6

Page 336

06/14/2022 Item No.15.



Objective'1.3: Streets and paths should be
safe and accessible to people with limited
mobility and other disabilities.

Policy 1.3.7: Evaluate and revise design
guidelines as needed to provide
for accessible facilities. New and
reconstructed facilities shall meet the
requirements of the Americans with
Disabilities Act (ADA).

Policy 1.3.2: lmplement the City of Folsom
ADA Self-Evaluation & Transition Plan
(200e)

Objective 1.4: Create a comfortable
and sustainable environment for people
walking, biking, and rolling.

Policy 1.4.1: lmprove lighting along
designated walking and biking routes,
particularly near local destinations such
as schools, parks, transit stops, and
commercial areas

Policy 1.4.2: lncorporate green
infrastructure, when possible, into
bicycle and pedestrian facilities. Green
infrastructure describes sustainable
stormwater management practices
and infrastructure such as biofiltration
planters, bioretention swales, trees, and
permeable pavement surfaces.

Policy 7.4.3: Adopt a Complete Streets
Ordinance to ensure that Folsom
streets consider the needs of all users,
including bicyclists, public transit
users, children, seniors, persons with
disabilities, pedestrians, motorists, and
movers of commercial goods.

Policy 1,4.4: Prioritize incorporating
cooling infrastructure to reduce
extreme heat along bicycle and
pedestrian facilities, including shade
structures, cool paving areas, and
extended planting areas.

7 i Goals, Objectives, and Policies I City of Folsom Active Transportation Plan
Page 337

06/14/2022 Item No.15.



r+o.....h
+ba

GOAL 2:
CONNECTIVITY
& ACCESS

A connected network of bicycle and
pedestrian facilities will provide
Folsom residents access to destinations
within neighborhoods, across the city, and
in neighboring ju risdictions.

Objective 2.1: Develop a continuous,
interconnected system of paths, bikeways,
and pedestrian facilities.

Policy 2.1.1: ldentify and fill sidewalk
gaps in the pedestrian network to
provide for a complete and connected
network.

Policy 2.1.2: Require sidewalks along all
new arterial, collector, and local roads.

Policy 2.1.3: ldentify and complete gaps
in the bicycle network. Prioritize low-
stress facilities, including Class I Paths,
Class lV Separated Bikeways, and Class
lllB Bicycle Boulevards.

Policy 2.1.4: lmprove connections
between low-stress facilities to
provide for a complete and connected
multimodal network.

Policy 2.1.5: Encourage the use of natural
and manmade corridors such as creeks,
powerline corridors, railroad corridors,
and other corridors for future bike path
alignments. This includes the Southern
Pacific Rail right-of-way.

Objective 2.2: lmprove and expand
bicycle and pedestrian access to local and
regional destinations, to other modes
of transportation, and across physical
ba rriers.

Policy 2.2.1: lmprove and provide
connections across physical barriers
such as creeks, highways, and major
arterials. This includes overcrossings in

areas with limited connectivity.

Policy 2.2.2: Provide connections
between modes, including bicycle
and pedestrian connections to local
and regional transportation options,
including transit, buses that can
accommodate bicycles, and park-and-
ride lots.

Policy 2.2.3: lmprove bicycle and
pedestrian access from residential areas
to schools, transit, commercial areas,
and employment centers.

Policy 2.2.4: Require the continuation of
the street network between adjacent
development projects to enhance active
transportation and allow easier access
for emergency vehicles.

Policy 2.2.5: Connect the city's bikeways
with state parks, Lake Natoma, and
Folsom Lake paths.

Policy 2.2.6: Connect bicycle and
pedestrian facilities in Folsom to
su rrou nding ju risd ictions.

Policy 2.2.7: Provide connections
between residential neighborhoods,
where appropriate, to encourage
pedestrian and bicycle travel.

Objective 2.3: Provide navigation support
for people walking and biking.

Policy 2.3.1: Develop and implement a

comprehensive wayfinding program
that is unified, legible, and supports
people walking, biking, or using the path
system.

Policy 2.3.2: Develop supporting
navigational material, including city-
wide path and bicycle maps. These
materials should be made widely
available both in print and online.

City of Folsom Active Transportation Plan r Goals, Objectives, and Polictes 8

Page 338

06/14/2022 Item No.15.



GOAL 3:
MAINTENANCE
& SUPPORTIVE
INFRASTRUCTURE

The active transportation network will
remain in a state of good repair and
incorporate support facilities that work
toward improving the quality of life for all
residents.

Objective 3.1: Actively maintain bicycle
and pedestrian facilities.

Policy 3.1.1: Maintain active
transportation facilities, including
bikeways, sidewalks, crossings, and
paths, to provide for safe travel for all
use rs.

Policy 3.1.2: Regularly sweep streets and
clear bicycle and pedestrian facilities of
debris, with priority given to those with
higher pedestrian and bicycle traffic and
low-stress bicycle facilities.

Policy 3.1.4: Provide alternate routes
for people who walk and bike during
construction activities.

. Policy 3.7.5; Develop funding strategies
to provide ongoing path maintenance.

Objective 3.2: Supplement the bicycle
and pedestrian networks with high
quality support facilities such as bike
corrals, lockers, bike parking, showers,
bike storage, repair stations, and water
fountains.

Policy 3.2.1: Develop a coordinated
strategy to develop and implement
support facilities in Folsom.

Policy 3.2.2: Review and revise city
bicycle parking requirements for all
land uses, including commercial areas,
parks and open space, at trailheads,
and in connection with transit. Require
adequate short- and long-term bicycle
parking.

Policy 3.2.4: Coordinate with local
businesses and organizations to locate
and implement support facilities.

Policy 3.2.5: Work with local and regional
transit agencies to install secure bike
parking and to maintain bike racks on
b uses.

Policy 3.2.6: Work with local and regional
transit agencies to incorporate shade
trees, bus shelters, and other cooling
infrastructure at transit stops.

Policy 3.2.7: Provide bike repair stations
at convenient locations.

Policy j.l.3: Trim overhanging and
encroaching vegetation to maintain a

clear travel path along Class I Paths in
Folsom.

9 I Goals, Objectives, and Policies r City of Folsom Active Transportation Plan
Page 339

06/14/2022 Item No.15.



GOAL 4:
EDUCATION &
ENCOURAGEMENT

Folsom will support walking, bicycling,
and rolling through new and expanded
education, encouragement, and awareness
programs.

Objective 4.1: Promote Safe Routes
to School

Policy 4.1.1: Coordinate and collaborate
with all local school districts to create a

citywide Safe Routes to School Program

, Policy 4.1.2: Support school travel
safety assessments at Folsom schools
to identify needs and opportunlties
and pursue grant funding for
implementation.

Objective 4.2: Encourage people to walk
and bike through education and awareness
e ffo rts.

Policy 4.2.7: Participate in regional
planning activities and awareness
programs.

Policy 4.2.2: Promote public education of
bicycle and pedestrian safety and traffic
laws.

Policy 4.2.3: Develop a citywide
Transportation Demand Management
Program, which provides a menu of
strategies and programs for developers
and employers to reduce single-
occupant vehicle travel in the city.

City of Folsom Active Transportation Plan : Goals, Objectives, and Policies , 10

Page 340

06/14/2022 Item No.15.



Page 341

06/14/2022 Item No.15.



GOAL 5:
FUNDING
& IMPLEMENTATION

Folsom will implement recommended
infrastructure projects and programs that
are funded through a variety of sources,
including grants, repaving programs, and
coordinating with other development
projects or partner agencies.

Objective 5.1: Provide sufficient funding
t0 construct, maintain, and operate
transportation facilities and services
needed to achieve the city's active
transportation goals.

. Policy 5.7.1: ldentify regional, state, and
federal funding programs and attempt
to secure as much funding as possible
for pedestrian and bicycle facilities and
programs.

Objective 5.2: Utilize private development
to implement improvements to the bicycle
and pedestrian network.

. Policy 5.2.7: Require allnew
development to provide a system of
sidewalks, paths, and bikeways that link
all land uses, provide accessibility to
parks and schools, and connect to all
existing or planned external street and
path facilities.

Policy 5.2.2: Require all new
development to dedicate rights-of-
way, construct facilities, or pay its
fair share for needed transportation
infrastructure improvements that
support all travel modes, including
pedestrian, bicycle, and transit facilities,
roadway improvements, and ITS and
transportation demand management
(TDM) programs and services.

Objective 5.3: Prioritize recommended
infrastructure projects and programs.

. Policy 5.3.7: Develop a comprehensive
active transportation plan, including a

list of prioritized, practical, and publicly-
supported infrastructure projects and
programs. lncorporate priority projects
into the city's Capital lmprovement Plan

City of Folsom Active Transportation Plan I Goals, Objectives, and Policies i 12

Page 342

06/14/2022 Item No.15.



>

Chapter III I Existing Conditions
and Network Needs

Page 343

06/14/2022 Item No.15.



Context and Demographics I
PROJECT SETTING

The City of Folsom prides itself in being
an active city with a small-town feel and

a high quality of life. Located at the base

of the foothills of the Sierra Nevada along
the American River and adjacent to the
Folsom Lake State Recreation Area, the
city's proximity to regional multi-use paths
and parks makes it a popular destination
for active recreation. Building upon
Folsom's extensive bikeway network, the
city is an ideal place to focus on improving
the bicycle and pedestrian network for
everyday transportation.

DEMOGRAPHICS

Folsom is located in the northeast corner
of Sacramento County, approximately 18

miles northeast of the City of Sacramento.
The city covers approximately 28 square
miles and is home to nearly 81,000
residents.l Since 2010, the population
of Folsom has increase d by 130/* and is
projected to continue growing each year.3

Nearly one-quarter of Folsom residents
are under 1B years of age, while 130/o are
age 65 or older. Although this represents
less than 500/o of the population, residents
in these age groups are often the most
vulnerable road users, and opportunities
to provide safer routes to access schools,
services, and other destinations should be
a priority.

US CensLrs, American Commu nity Survey 20 I9

U.S. Census Bureau, 2010 Census ol Paplllation and Housing

Folsom General Plan, HoLrsing Element 2fJ21

Figure 1 Demographic Characteristicsl

CITY OF
FOLSOM

SACRAMENTO
COUNTV

I
36.640.1 medion

age

median
household

income
$119,924 $zz,otz

2g%
persons

wtith at-home
longuage other

than English
33%

22.9% 23.4%

12.6% \ii:#i r4.4%

persons
1 8 years

& younger

'l U.S. Census, Ameri(an Cornqrunity SuIVey 201-c)

City of Folsom Active Transportation Plan , Existing Conditions and Network Needs I 14

Page 344

06/14/2022 Item No.15.



Land Use & Development

Folsom's land use is primarily residential,
with a suburban character. Residential
areas are comprised of primarily
single-family homes, which account for
approximately 750/o of all housing units.
Neighborhoods include a series of winding
roadways and cul-de-sacs in residential
areas that limit connectivity within and
among neighborhoods. These areas are
also distinct from commercial areas, often
separated by major arterials that limit
connections between areas. Commercial
areas are focused in two main areas:
the Folsom Historic District and along
East Bidwell Street from Coloma Street
to Highway 50. Other commercial areas

extend along streets such as lron Point
Road and Blue Ravine Road.

Folsom has both neighborhood-
focused destinations, such as parks
and schools, in addition to citywide and
regional destinations, including Folsom
Lake College, shopping centers, and
employment centers. Many neighborhood
destinations are located within or near
residential areas, making these relatively
short trips good candidates for active
transportation instead of driving. Citywide
and regional serving destinations likely

require travel on or across an arterial or
collector road. These high-volume and
high-speed roadways typically serve as

barriers to walking and biking.

The Folsom Historic District, adjacent to
Lake Natoma, is distinct from other areas

in Folsom. This area has a grid-based
street network that provides residents with
direct connections to destinations within
the district. The arterials and collector
streets radiate from the Historic District,
deviating from the grid and following a

more suburban development pattern.
The majority of Folsom's residential areas

are connected to the Folsom Historic
District by these major arterials, serving
as a barrier for people walking and biking.
ldentified through public input and as a
guiding principle of the Folsom General
Plan, the Folsom Historic District is a major
attraction for shopping, dining, recreation,
and culture. Improved biking and walking
connections to and from the district,
especially along arterials. will be important
in maintaining the vibrancy of the area.

The Folsom Plan Area, which includes
3,520 acres south of HighwaY 50, is a

rapidly developing community that, once
implemented, will include a mix of uses

and housing types with a focus on parks,
walkability, transit connectivity, and paths
Currently, however, Highway 50 serves as

a barrier to access the Folsom Plan Area.
lmproving biking and walking connections
across Highway 50 will be crucial to
integrating this new community with the
rest of the city.

I

15 , Existing Conditions and Network Needs I City of Folsom Active Transportation Plan

Page 345

06/14/2022 Item No.15.



Transportation Overview

Despite these travel options, most Folsom
workers drive to work alone (77%), while
a significantly smaller percentage walk
(1.BVo\, take transit (1.60/o), or bike to work
(0.60/o). Nearly 800/o of workers living in
Folsom leave the city each day, with
the majority traveling to employment
locations in Sacramento.s Similarly, more
than 35,000 workers enter Folsom each

day for work. while a similar number of
people enter the city each day.6 Given the
commute patterns of workers in Folsom.
the active transportation network should
consider opportunities to improve access

to and from regional transportation
options such as regional bus routes, light
rail stations, and the regional bikeway
network.

Figure 2 Commute Mode Share
Means of transportation to work

77o/o

7o/0"

-

2a/o* 1o/o* 2o/o-

Bicycle Walked

5. Folsom General Plan, City of Folsom Housing Element Background Report 2021

6. Data reflect 2019 American Community Survey estimates. This data does not reflect changes to commute patterns due

to the COVID-19 pandemic.

0
ln addition to the city's robust network of
paths and roadways, existing on-street
bikeways. sidewalks, and transit support
travel in and around the city. Light rail
stations, as part of the Sacramento
Regional Transit (5acRT) Gold Line, are
located along Folsom Boulevard in the
western area of the city and connect to
Downtown Sacramento. These include
the lron Point, Glenn, and Historic Folsom
stations. Local bus service is also run
by SacRT on the Folsom Stage Line and
El Dorado Transit operates regional bus
service through Folsom on the 50 Express.

Drove alone Carpooled Public Transit
*Unlverse: Workers 16 and over: ACS 2019 S-year data

Commute patterns, however, do not
reflect trips made for other reasons, such

as travel to school, nor do they account
for recreational use of shared use paths,
on-street facilities, and supporting
facilities. COVID-l9 has also shifted travel
patterns and the necessity of office work
for some professions. These shifts may
have medlum- to long-term effects on

commute-related transportation. The total
percentage of residents that walk and
bicycle for recreation and to meet their
daily needs, therefore, is likely higher than
what the census data shows.

1o/o*

Other

110/o-

-

Worked at home

City of Folsom Active Transportation Plan Existing Conditions and Network Needs i 16

Page 346

06/14/2022 Item No.15.



Bicycle Faeility Types

CLASS I SHARED USE PATH (PATH)

Shared use paths are bicycle facilities
that are completely separated from the
street. They allow two-way travel by people
bicycling.and walking, as well as other
non-motorized or e-powered users like

skateboards or scooters. Class I facilities
are among the most comfortable facilities
for children and inexperienced riders as

there are few potential conflicts between
people bicycling and people driving.

CLASS II BICYCLE LANE

Bicycle lanes are striped preferential lanes
on the roadway for one-way bicycle travel.
Some bicycle lanes include a striped buffer
on one or both sides to increase separation
from the traffic lane or from parked cars.
When this striped buffer is included in the
design, the facility is known as a Class llB

Buffered Bicycle Lane.

CLASS III BICYCLE ROUTE

Bicycle routes are signed where people
bicycling share a travel lane with people
driving. Because they are shared facilities,
bicycle routes are most appropriate for
low-speed and low-volume streets. Some

Class lll Bicycle Routes include shared lane
markings or "sharrows" that recommend
proper bicycle positioning in the center
of the travel lane and alert drivers that
people biking may be present.

CLASS IIIB BICYCLE BOULEVARD

Bicycle boulevards are low-traffic, local
streets where people biking have priority
but share roadway space with motor
vehicles. Shared roadway bicycle markings
on the pavement as well as traffic calming
features such as speed humps and
traffic diverters keep these streets more
comfortable for bicyclists.

CLASS IV SEPARATED BIKEWAY

Separated bikeways are on-street bicycle
facilities that are physically separated from
motor vehicle traffic by a vertical element
or barrier, such as a curb, bollards, or
vehicle parking aisle. They can allow for
one-or two-way travel on one or both sides

of the roadway.

0

17 i Existing Conditions and Network Needs i City of Folsom Active Transportation Plan
Page 347

06/14/2022 Item No.15.



Page 348

06/14/2022 Item No.15.



Existing Bicyele Network

Today, Folsom has more than 130 miles of
designated bikeways. This intludes more
than 64 miles of existing Class I Shared Use

Paths and more than 50 miles of Class ll

Bicycle Lanes (Table 1).

The on-street bicycle network consists
mainly of Class ll Bicycle Lanes, most of
which are along major arterials with high
travel speeds and traffic volumes. Despite
providing limited separation from motor
vehicles, the existing bicycle lane network
is comprehensive, covering more than 800/o

of major roads within the city.

ln recent years. the city has started
investing in facilities that provide more
separation from motor vehicles. This
includes both Class llB Buffered Bicycle

Lanes, which provide additional visual
separation from general purpose travel
lanes, and Class lV Separated Bikeways,
which include physical separation. The
short segments of Class lV Separated
Bikeways exist along Blue Ravine Road-
connecting the Oak Parkway Trail at
Arrowsmith Drive to the path at Manseau
Drive-and along Leidesdorff Street in
the Historic District. While these facilities
improve separation and comfort for

people biking, they currently are limited to
short segments throughout the city and do
not always connect to other low-stress bike

facilities.

Within neighborhoods, local roads provide
lower-stress routes for travel within
neighborhoods. Lower posted speeds,
fewer motor vehicles, and narrow rights-
of-way contribute to more comfortable
bicycling conditions. These routes also
provide connections to neighborhood
destinations, such as schools and parks.
However, limited connectivity of low-stress
routes across major roadways limits the
utility of these routes and reduces the
number of connections to destinations
beyond the local area.

ln addition to the on-street network,
Folsom also has a comprehensive off-
street shared use path network. Many of
these paths follow creeks (Humbug-Willow
Creek Trail), railroad corridors, and Lake

Natoma/American River (American River
Bike Trail). This network forms the core of
the bicycle network and connects residents
both locally and regionally, providing low-
stress routes for all trip types.

Table 1 Existing Bikeways in Folsom

I

Class I Shared

Use Path (Path)

Class ll Bicycle Lane

Class llB Buffered
Bicycle Lane

Class lll Shared
Bikeway

Class lV Separated

Bikeway

50.3

59.7

3.6

0.9

0.5

However, this network is not complete,
with gaps in locations across the network,
and is limited in its connections to
commercial areas.

A description of bikeway types is included
on page 1Z and the existing bikeways are

shown in Figure 3.

Facility Type
Existing
Mileage

19 i Existing Conditions and Network Needs i City of Folsom Active Transportation Plan

Page 349

06/14/2022 Item No.15.



:
o
z

Figure 3 Existing Bikeways

Project Area
FOLSOM ATP

Existing Bikeways

- 

Class I

Shared Use Path

- 

Class ll
Bicycle Lane

- 

Class llB
Buffered Bicycle Lane

- 

Class lll
Bicycle Route

- 

Class lV
Separated Bikeway

Destinations + Boundaries

City Hall

Community Center

School

Light Rail Station

City Boundary

Park

fusse/
Ranch

@
o
o
@
;--'-:
:----:

m

Station
Elementary- - . '

-t

'.d"'1..
l-l-t-lMtLES Ao -l'.s 'i''"-- N

Data provided by the City of Folsom, SACOG

City of Folsorn Active Transportation Plan I Existing Conditions and Network Needs | 20

Page 350

06/14/2022 Item No.15.



Existing Pedestrian Network

A comprehensive pedestrian network
includes the many elements that support
travel to places people want to go.
This includes sidewalks and paths that
pedestrians travel along, as well as the
features that support travel across a

street, such as curb ramps, crosswalks,
traffic signals, and pedestrian signal heads.
Each of these elements are a vital piece of
helping pedestrians of all ages and abilities
connect to schools, parks, employment,
transit, and more.

Some of the major arterials such as

Folsom Boulevard, Folsom-Auburn
Road, Greenback Lane, and large
sections of Oak Ave Parkway, E Natoma
Street, and Broadstone Parkway lack
sidewalks either on both sides or one
side ofthe street.

The majority of Folsom north of Lake

Natoma and the Folsom Historic
District, such as the American River
Canyon and Valley Pines neighborhoods,
do not have any sidewalks.

ln addition to the sidewalk network,
Folsom's shared use paths provide low-
stress connections for people walking.
However, entrances may be difficult
to access for pedestrians, due to lack
of crosswalks and pedestrian signals
across major roadways; limited sidewalk
connections leading to the path; and
the trailhead requires significant out of
direction travel, limiting the utility of the
path as an alternate route.

While there is not comprehensive data
representing sidewalk locations within
neighborhoods, most residential areas
include sidewalks, with the exception
of residential streets north of Lake

Natoma, such as the American River
Canyon and Valley Pines neighlrorhoods.
Neighborhoods generally support
low-stress routes, however the lack of
sidewalks in some areas can limit the utility
of these routes for children, people who
use assisted mobility devices, etc.

I

While many major roadways in Folsom
have a sidewalk on at least one side of the
roadway, there are many areas that have
incomplete sidewalk networks or do not
have any sidewalks. Data depicting existing
sidewalks along arterials and within the
Folsom Historic District was collected as
part of this plan. This is shown in Figure 4.

Key findings of this data review include:

Most residential streets in the Folsom
Historic District lack sidewalks.

21 ; Existing Conditions and Network Needs 1 City of Folsom Active Transportation Plan

Page 351

06/14/2022 Item No.15.



Figure 4 Existing Sidewolks and
Pedestrian Borriers

Pedestrian Barriers
FOLSOM ATP

Existing Pedestrian Barriers

- 

Sidewalk Missing
(Both sides)

- 

Sidewalk Missing
(One side)

- 

ArterialRoadway

Existing Pedestrian Network

- 

Path (paved)

FullSidewalk

Destinations + Boundaries

City Hall

Community Center

School

Light RailStation

City Boundary

Park

,t'

I

;:l-r.

3

@
o
o
@
i""i
:,----:

il
)

Station o

A
N.5 1

,
Data provided by the City of Folsom, SACOG

City of Folsom Artive TraRsport€tion Plan I Existing Conditions and Network Needs | 22

Page 352

06/14/2022 Item No.15.



Network Comfort

The Existing Conditions review provides
insight into how complete the active
transportation network ls today. However,
evaluation of network comfort through the
Level of Traffic Stress (LTS) provides greater
insight into opportunities to develop an all

ages and abilities network. The LTS analysis
refers to the perceived comfort level of a
roadway based on factors such as vehicle
travel speed on the roadway, the width of
the roadway, and provision of space for
bicycles.T A roadway with fewer lanes for
motor vehicles, lower posted speeds, and
greater separation from motor vehicles is

considere d most comfortable, while high
speeds and mixed traffic conditions are
least comfortable. Generally, LTS 1 and LTS

2 are considered low stress, while LTS 3

and LTS 4 are high-stress roadways.

These scores guide understanding of
who might bike along a roadway. The
Four Types of Cyclists, shown in Figure

5, consider one's interest and comfort
bicycling. The majority of the population-
those who are interested but concerned-
are most likely to be comfortable biking
only on low stress (LTS 1 and LTS 2)

roadways.

A bicycle LTS analysis was conducted to
provide insight into network gaps or focus
areas for improving the bicycle network.
The main findings from the LTS analysis, as

shown in Frgure 6, include:

. Neighborhood roadways are typically
low stress.

Many minor collectors are high stress,
with an LTS score of 3. Examples include
two lane roadways such as Willow Creek

Drive, Sibley Street, and Silberhorn
Drive.

Major arterials are high stress. While
many major arterials include designated
Class ll Bicycle Lanes, factors such as

high motor vehicle speeds and number
of lanes result in high-stress routes for
bicyclists. Examples include East Bidwell
Street, Blue Ravine Road, Oak Avenue
Parkway, lron Point Road, and Folsom-
Auburn Road.

0

Figure 5 The Four Types of Cyclists

lnterested but
Concerned

Comfortable on paths

and streets with buffered
or separated bikeways;

interested in biking more.

Not currently lnterested

Physically unable or very
uncomfortable biking, even
on streets with separated

bi keways.

Strong & Fearless

Very comfortable and willing
to ride on streets with no

designated bike facilities.

Enthusiastic & Confident
Very comfortable riding
but prefer streets with
designated bike lanes.

23 i Existing Conditions and Network Needs i City of Folsom Active Transportation Plan
Page 353

06/14/2022 Item No.15.



Figure 6 Bicycle Level of
Traffic Stress

Bicycle Level of
Traffic Stress

FOLSON/IATP

Bicycle Level of Traffic Stress
(BLTS) Score

- 

LTS 1: AllAges and Abilities

- 

LTS 2: Average Adult

M LTS 3: Confident Adult

- 

LTS 4: Fearless Adult

Destinations + Boundaries

City Hall

Community Center

School

Light Rail Station

City Boundary

Park

'Fotsorrt
'-Laker"

t
I
I
I

clenn

@
o
o
o

Folsom Lake
State Rec Area -
Mississippi Bar

Station

,
I
I
I

lron

Lalce
Natona

+o

I-I-I-]MILES00.5 1

A
N

r

"t

TI\,

Data provided by the City of Folsorr, SACOG

City of Folsom Active Transportation Plan Fxisting Conditions and Network Needs , 24

Page 354

06/14/2022 Item No.15.



Low Stress Bicycle Network and Barrier Roadways O

The results of the LTS analysis clearly
identify the barrier that major roadways
present for travel within Folsom. These

roadways, typically scoring as high stress
(LIS 4), disrupt travel along lower stress
routes, and limit connections between
neighborhoods and to destinations. This
can be seen in Figure 6, where high-
stress roadways are shown in red (LTS

4) and yellow (LTS 3). This map shows
that destinations within neigh borhoods,
such as smaller neighborhood parks and
schools, are accessible via low-stress local
streets. Destinations that require travel
outside of a particular neighborhood are
difficult to access because distances are far
and require travel along or across high-
stress arterials.

Low-stress travel-either along local
residential streets or paths-is possible
across some high-stress roadways where
there are protected crossings. Protected
crossings are places where dedicated
signals exist or where the crossing is

separated from the roadway. Examples
include:

Crossing Riley Street at Sutter Street
Folsom Historic District

. Humbug Willow Creek Trail overcrossing
of East Bidwell Street (south of Blue
Ravine Road)

. Humbug Willow Creek Trail
undercrossing of East Bidwell Street
(south of Creekside Drive)

. Folsom Parkway Rail Trail signalized
crossing of Parkshore Drive

More typically, however, low stress travel is

not possible across high-stress roadways
because of unprotected crossings where
no dedicated signals or separated
crossings exist. Examples include:

The crossing of Folsom-Auburn Road
connecting Berry Creek Drive to

Jedediah Smith Memorial Trail

The path along Natomas Ditch at lron
Point Road

The crossing of American River Canyon
Drive at Crow Canyon Drive

Path crossing of Oak Avenue Parkway
(just south of Blue Ravine Road)

The crossing of Blue Ravine Road at Big
Valley Road

An additional barrier is crossing Highway
50. Crossings of Highway 50 at Prairie
City Road and East Bidwell Street are

currently high stress. As the area south of
Highway 50 continues to grow, as outlined
in the Folsom Plan Area, it has become
critically important to provide low stress
travel for residents across Highway 50 in

order to access the rest of Folsom. Plan

recommendations consider opportunities
to improve travel along and across the
major, high-stress roadways in Folsom
in order to expand low stress travel to
schools, light rail, shopping, and other
destinations.

25 Existing Conditions and Network Needs I City of Folsom Active Transportation Plan
Page 355

06/14/2022 Item No.15.



Safety

ln addition to identifying high-stress
corridors, it's also important to understand
where safety concerns are greatest
on Folsom's roadways. A review of the
reported collisions between 2015 and
20198 in Folsom provides insight into
locations with high frequencies of collisions
involving people walking or biking, as

well as where the most severe collisions
are occurring in the city. This analysis
only includes data on reported collisions.
It is important to note that bicycle and
pedestrian collisions summarized here
only reflect those that are reported; this
analysis does not consider near-misses or
unreported collisions.

While people wolking ond biking
were involved in only 4.80/o (144

out of 2,948) of all collisions, they
occounted for 100/o of oll injury
collisions ond 25ok (25 out of 95)

of collisions resulting in the victim
being killed or severely injured (KSl).

CO LLISIONS CHARACTERISTICS
AND TRENDS

Severity

There were a total of 2,948 reported
collisions between 2015 and 2019 in
Folsom, including 144 collisions involving
someone walking (52) or biking (92).

Generally, crashes involving people
bicycling (92) occurred at nearly twice
the frequency of those involving people
walking (52). Howevel pedestrians were
involved more often in KSI collisions than
bicyclists (15 and 10 respectively).

Collision Location

Pedestrian- and bicycle-involved collisions
during this time period occurred most
often at intersections. ln fact, more
than 750/o of these collisions occurred
at an intersection (1'10), as opposed to
along a roadway (34). Collisions that
occurred along a roadway, however, were
generally more severe, with a slightly
higher percentage QA.sa/o or 7 out of 34)
of collisions along a roadway resulting in

serious injury or fatalities compared to
those that occurred at an intersection ('160lo

or 18 out of 110).

Time of Collision

Bicycle- and pedestrian-involved collisions
occurred more often during the day (111)

than at night (33). However, collisions
occurring at night were more severe,
particularly for pedestrians. For example,
430/o (9 out of 21) of collisions occurring at
night and involving a pedestrian resulted
in serious injury or fatality, compared to
13o/o (14 out of 11 1) of pedestrian collisions
occurring during the day.

Cause of Collision

Contributing factors refer to potential
causes of the collision and are recorded by
the reporting officer. They do not describe
blame or fault but do reflect aspects of
the built environment, environmental
conditions, or human behavior that
contributed to the collision. Within Folsom,
the most common contributing factors
include:

. Driver failing to yield right-of-way to a
pedestrian in a legal crosswalk

People walking not yielding right-of-way
to vehicles outside of a crosswalk

People biking against the direction of
traffic

9

8. statewicle lntegrated Traffic Records system (SWITRS)

City of Folsom Active Transportation Plan i Existing Conditions and Network Needs j 26

Page 356

06/14/2022 Item No.15.



While not as common, improper
turning movements were also noted
often, particularly in connection with
unsignalized intersections. Understanding
these factors is important in identifying
possible solutions-or countermeasures

-to improve roadway safety. Provision of
more crossing opportunities with marked
crosswalks and provision of a complete
and connected bicycle network should be
considered in plan recommendations and
implementation strategies.

Presence of Bicycle Facilities

More than 780/o (72 out of 92) of bicycle-
involved collisions occurred on corridors
with bicycle lanes, including 800/o (8 out of
10) of KSI collisions involving people biking.

Collisions Near Schools

The number and severity of collisions
involving school-aged people walking
or biking were investigated within one-
quarter mile of each elementary, middle,
and high school in Folsom. While Folsom
Cordova K-8 Community Charter and
Folsom Lake High School had the greatest
number of bicycle- and pedestrian-

involved collisions, Natoma Station
Elementary, Empire Oaks Elementary, and
Folsom High School had collisions with the
greatest severity.

COLLISION FOCUS AREAS

Figure 7 and Figure B that follow show
areas for further focus based on both
collision frequency and severity for each
mode. Areas shown in red depict these
focus areas and include:

Pedestrian Collision Focus Areas

Folsom Boulevard from Natoma Street
to Greenback Lane

Natoma Street from Reading Street to
Wales Drive

East Bidwell Street from Coloma Street
to Blue Ravine Road

Bicycle Collision Focus Areas

. Greenback Lane from Main Street (city
limits)to American River Canyon Drive

. Folsom-Auburn Road from Greenback
Lane to Folsom Lake Crossing

Riley Street from Sutter Street to Wales
Drive

East Bidwell Street from Market Street
to Harrington Way

lron Point Road from Williard Drive to
Buckingham Way

As shown in the following figures, the
collision focus areas for both bicycle-
and pedestrian-involved collisions are
located on major roadways-all of which
are high stress according to the LTS

analysis on page 21, Consistentwith the
collision trends highlighted in the previous
section, the majority of bicycle collision
focus areas are located on roadways
with existing bicycle lanes;the remaining
corridors do not have any existing bicycle
i nfrastructu re.

ln addition to the focus areas, the map also
identifies other locations where either KSI

collisions occurred or a high frequency of
collisions occurred.

27 ; Existing Conditions and Network Needs i City of Folsom Active Transportation Plan
Page 357

06/14/2022 Item No.15.



Figure 7 Pedestrian Collisisn
Focus Areos

Pedestrian-
lnvolved Collisions
FOLSOM ATP

Fatality

Pedestrian-lnvolved Collision

Collision Focus Area

Existing Bikeways

- 

Class I Paved Shared Use Path

Destinations + Boundaries

@ City Hall

O Community Center

O School

O Light Rail Station

:::j City Boundary

m Park

Data provided by the City of Folsom, SACOG

o
a

9r
'-4 t

?il

Station

.a'*
-""4 l--l-l-l vtr-Es A

h{.--d'
I
I o o.5

City of Folsom Active Transportation Plan I Existing Conditions and Network Needs | 28

Page 358

06/14/2022 Item No.15.



Figure 8 Bicycle Collision Facus
Areos

Bicycle-lnvolved
Collisions
FOLSOM ATP

Fatality

Bicycle-l nvolved Collision

Collision Focus Area

Existing Bikeways
n Class I Paved Shared Use Path

- 

Class ll Bicycle Lane

- 

Class llB Buffered Bicycle Lane
n Class lll Bicycle Route

- 

Class lV Separated Bikeway

Destinations + Boundaries

@ City Hall

O Community Center

O School

1@ Light RailStation

i::! City Boundary
ffi Park

-a--.---

o
a

Station

*-t
t,-" l-l-J--lvtt-esoo.5 I

A
N{*d'--1.,Data provided by the City of Folsom, SAcoG

29 | Existing Conditions and Network Needs I City of Folsom Active Transportation Plan
Page 359

06/14/2022 Item No.15.



Summary of Challenges and Opportunities I
The Existing Conditions analysis outlined
in this chapter identifies several key
opportunities and challenges for the
bicycle and pedestrian network in Folsom
ln summary, these include the following:

Opportunities

Enhance the already extensive shared
use path network to be complete, with
connections to destinations such as

commercial centers, schools, parks, and
tra n sit.

Develop an on-street bikeway network
that is low stress, with particular focus
on upgrading Class ll Bicycle Lanes on
high-stress roadways and improving
connections to shared use paths.

lmprove connections to and from the
three Sacramento Regional Transit Gold
Line Light Rail stations.

Build upon the existing active
recreational community by enhancing
the shared use path network and
improving bicycle and pedestrian
connections to parks and shared use
paths.

Challenges

. Arterials are high-stress roadways

lntersections and crossings, particularly
along major arterials, are challenging
for people walking and biking.

Many existing standard Class ll Bicycle

Lanes are located on high-stress
roadways.

Sidewalk gaps limit connections to
commercial centers, jobs, and the
Historic District.

The active community is focused
more heavily on recreation instead
of biking and walking for everyday
transportation.

The street network-with cul-de-sacs,
winding roadways, and high-stress
roadways-has limited connectivity
between destinations.

These opportunities and challenges inform
the plan recommendations in Chapter 5.

City of Folsom Active Transportation Plan I Existing Conditions and Network Needs | 30

Page 360

06/14/2022 Item No.15.



>

Chapter IV I Community Engagement

Page 361

06/14/2022 Item No.15.



Process Overview

Throughout the ATP process, Folsom
residents and visitors were invited to
share their experiences with and vision
for the city's active transportation
network. Through in-person events and
online forums, members of the public
provided input at every phase of the plan.
This chapter provides an overview of
engagement opportunities and a summary
of key trends of feedback received.

Engagement occurred in two primary
phases:

Phase 1: During this phase, project staff
provided information about the plan,
gathered input on key questions, and
answered questions about the process.
Staff also asked how people travel today,
including community-specific needs and
challenges.

Phase 2: During this phase, community
members were encouraged to review draft
plan goals and proposed location-specific
project recommendations, and to indicate
anything missing and their highest priority
projects.

The engagement strategy included both
in-person and virtual events to provide
multiple opportunities to participate while
adhering to public health guidance. Each

event considered the city's active
transportation system comprehensively;
at each event or input opportunity,
questions sought feedback on the
bicycle, pedestrian, and path networks
simultaneously to better understand how
the networks work together. Participants
provided more than 2,500 comments
through digital tools. ln-person and
virtual events were promoted through
city channels, including the city website,
social media pages, and city's newsletters.
The four main methods for collecting
community feedback included:

POP-UP EVENTS

Events were held to share information and
receive comments and feedback. Pop-
events included two path pop-up events at
Humbug Willow Creek Trail and two pop-
up events at the Folsom Farmers Market.
These pop-up events took place at existing
community gatherings and aimed to reach
as many residents as possible by meeting
community members where they are.

PUBLIC WORKSHOPS

The Public Workshop provided a more
traditional opportunity for public
engagement. These events include a brief
presentation followed by unstructured
time to review project materials, ask

questions about the planning process, and
provide feedback. The Phase 'l workshop
was held in-person at City Lion's Park
in Folsom. The Phase 2 workshop was
conducted online.

STAKEHOLDER GROUP

The Stakeholder Group guided the
planning process. lncluding Folsom
residents and active transportation
advocates in the community, this group
of nearly 40 people helped shape the
vision and goals, engagement methods,
and recommendations. Stakeholder
Group meetings took place during the two
outreach phases.

I

City of Folsom Active Transportation Plan I Community Engagement | 32

Page 362

06/14/2022 Item No.15.



ONLINE ENGAGEMENT

ln addition to pop-up events, workshops,
and stakeholder group meetings, Folsom
community members had the opportunity
to share feedback through an online tool
during both engagement phases. This
tool introduced the plan purpose and
timeline; it also featured an interactive
map for participants to share feedback
about specific locations across the city.
During Phase 1 of outreach, community
members were asked to draw routes.
identify barriers to walking and biking
on an online interactive map, and share
other comments about what they would
like to see. During Phase 2 of outreach,
Folsom community members provided
feedback on draft plan goals and proposed
reco m mendations.

Nearly 500 comments were shared during
both phases of engagement. Further,
the online tool encouraged additional
interaction among participants, providing
the opportunity to comment, "like," or
"dislike" input shared by others. ln total,
more than 2,500 points of interaction
occurred using these tools.

Confirm understanding of the existing
network, including pedestrian facilities,
on-street bikeways, and paths.

Develop a more comprehensive
understanding of where residents
would like to walk, bike, or roll.

Table 2 Phase 1 Public Outreoch Events

lnteractive Web Map folsomatp.alta pla nning.cloud/#/

Gain insight into current network
challenges, such as network
connectivity or safety concerns.

Learn which facility types and types
of improvements are preferred by the
public.

lnform plan goals and project
recommendations.

April, 15,2021 through

)uly 31,2021

May 1,2021

June 5,2021

)une 17,2021

)une 26,2021

PHASE 1

Goals

Pop-up Event #1

Pop-up Event #2

Stakeholder Meeting #1

Public Workshop #1

Folsom Farmers Market

Humbug Willow Creek Trail

Virtual Meeting through Zoom

Lions Park

Event DateEvent LocationEvent Type

33 I Community Engagement i City of Folsom Active Transportation Plan
Page 363

06/14/2022 Item No.15.



What We Heard

Throughout the ATP process, Folsom
community members shared a range of
feedback, concerns, and support ofthe
plan goals and project recommendations.
There were consistent themes throughout
the outreach process, including the
following:

. Safety was a common concern,
particularly along major roadways and
locations with high motor vehicle travel
speeds.

. Similarly, many community members
indicated the need for more crossings
and improved safety at crossings.

. Community members were interested in

improved sidewalk network connectivity
to popular destinations. Respondents
shared that current conditions do not
allow for seamless connections to areas
that community members travel to
most.

Overall, community members were
interested in improving access to paths
including improving existing crossings,
new mid-block crossings, and improved
pedestrian and bicycle connections to
paths.

Community members shared their
concerns around safety when riding
their bicycles around Folsom. Some of
their insights included lack of dedicated
crossings for bikes, the need for
designated bike facilities, and greater
protection for on street facilities.

City of Folsom Active Transportation Plan I Community Engagement | 34

Page 364

06/14/2022 Item No.15.



PHASE 2

Goals

Gather feedback on proposed
plan goals and draft project
reco m mendations.

Gain further insight into the challenges
and opportunities associated with plan
implementation.

Learn which project recommendations
are priorities for the public.

lnform the public and gather
feedback on specific types of
potential improvements including:
intersection, connectivity, and
crossing improvements for
bicyclists and pedestrians; program
recommendations; and bicycle facility
types.

Table 3 Phase 2 Public Outreoch Events

lnteractive Web Map folsomalp.altaplanning.cloudi#/

Pop-up Event #3

Pop-up Event #4

Stakeholder Meeting #2

Public Workshop #2

Humbug Willow Creek Trail

Folsom Farmers Market

Virtual Meeting through Zoom

Virtual meeting, via Zoom

November 12, 2021 through

January 3,2022

November 13,2021

November 13,2021

December 8,2A21

December 16,2CI21

What We Heard

Project Cost and lmplementation:
Throughout Phase 2 of outreach, the
majority of community members were
interested in learning how projects will
be funded. They were also interested in

how the ATP project costs fits within the
larger city budget.

Spot lmprovements: Community
members are interested in project
recommendations that connect them
to different active transportation
destinations throughout the city.
The most popular proposed spot
improvement is on Folsom-Auburn
Road and connects community
members to Folsom Lake Paths.

Sidewalk lmprovements: Community
members are interested in improved
network connectivity to popular
destinations. The most popular
pedestrian sidewalk proposed projects
are located on East Natoma Street,
Green Valley Road, Oak Avenue
Parkway, and Greenback Lane.

Shared Use Path lmprovements:
Community members were interested
in improving the access, width and
condition of shared use paths, as well
as improving the conflicts between path
users.

These key themes and other results from
the community engagement process not
only helped inform the ATP's goals and
objectives, but also informed project
recommendations and prioritization.

Event DateEvent LocationEvent Type

35 ; Community Engagement i City of Folsom Active Transportation Plan
Page 365

06/14/2022 Item No.15.



City of Folsom Active Transportation Plan i Community Engagement i 36

Page 366

06/14/2022 Item No.15.



>

Chapter V I Recommendations

Page 367

06/14/2022 Item No.15.



The recommended active transportation
system in Folsom seeks to improve safety
and comfort for all users through network
improvements (physical infrastructure) and
programs and policies (non-infrastructure).
These recommendations are developed
based on previous plans, results of the
existing conditions analysis, and the public
input.

The sections that follow outline the
recommended infrastructure and non-
infrastructure components of the active
transportation network that aim to make
biking and walking an integral part of
everyday life for people who live, work,
and visit Folsom.

Network lmprovements: Capital projects that are identified along

the street and path network (linear recommendations) and at specific

locations (spot recom mendations). Network improvements include

the following:

. Linear bicycle recommendations: On-street bikeways and paths

. Linear pedestrian recommendations: New and enhanced sidewalks

' Spot recommendations (bicycle and pedestrian): Specific
intersections, path connections, or mid-block locations for
improvement; may include new or improved crossings, improved
access to destinations, or specific safety improvements

Programs and Policies: lnitiatives that support a well-functioning
active transportation system and improve outcomes for each capital
investment.

Programs can provide education about how to get around by bike or
by foot, including route options, safety tips, and how to connect with
other modes, like transit. Programs also provide encouragement,
whether it's helping connect people through walking or bicycling
groups, incentives for trying out other ways to get around, or
supporting the choice to walk or bike more generally, Policies

address issues such as the longevity of the city's investment in

the active transportation network, access and use of the network,
the design standards for the network, and evaluation of the active
tra nsportation network.

City of Folsom Active Transportation Plan I Recommendations i 38

Page 368

06/14/2022 Item No.15.



Bieycle and Shared Use Path Network Improvements I
Recommended improvements to the
bicycle network, shown in Figure 9, seek

to improve network connectivity, increase
low-stress network connections, and

support safer and more comfortable
travelfor people bicycling. The proposed
network includes a combination of on-
street improvements. enhanced paths, and
new off-street shared use paths.

The recommended network builds on

the backbone of existing paved shared
use paths and expands connections to
the path system through low-stress on-
street connections. Paths located along
creeks, rail corridors, and roadways
support more direct routes and improved
recreational opportunities. Low-stress
on-street facilities, such as Class lllB
Bicycle Boulevards and Class lV Separated
Bikeways, support connections to the path
network.

A network of Class lV Separated Bikeways
provides greater separation for travel
along major roadways, connecting to
the path network and other destinations
such as transit, shopping centers, office
parks, and the Folsom Historic District.
Where a separated bikeway may not be
desired or feasible, other facilities such

as Class llB Buffered Bicycle Lanes, Class ll

Bicycle Lanes, and Class lll Bicycle Routes

supplement the low-stress bicycle network.

The proposed bicycle network, including
the specific bicycle facility types. was
informed by public input, the existing
conditions (needs) analysis, typical roadway
conditions, plan goals, and best practices
in bikeway design. While low stress
facilities and greater levels of protection
are desirable across the city, development
patterns, available right-of-way, and other
constraints may require different bikeway
treatments. Further, some locations may
require further analysis of on-street

Table 4 Bicycle Facility Miles by Classification

parking needs to better allocate available
pavement for the movement of residents
and visitors. For more information,
reference the Design Guide in Appendix A

This Plan recommends 145 miles of new or
upgraded bicycle facilities across Folsom,
proposing upgrades to about 37 miles of
existing facilities and adding about 108

miles of new bikeways. Table 5 provides an

overview of the proposed bicycle network
broken down by bikeway class. When fully
built out, Folsom will have over 200 miles
of dedicated bicycle facilities that form a

connected network.

Class I Shared Use Path (Path)

Class ll Bicycle Lane

Class llB Buffered Bicycle Lane

Class lll Shared Bikeway

Class lllB Bicycle Boulevard

Class lV Separated Bikeway

Total

50.3

59.7

3.6

0.9

0.0

0.5

129.4

39.9

2.3

3.7

0.6

24.8

36.7

108

0.0

35.5

1.5

0.0

0.0

0.0
a-7

90.2

26.5
l-7

1.5

24.8

37.2

200.3

Existing
Mileage

Proposed
Mileage

Full Buildout
MileageFacility Type M

Upgraded

39 J Recommendations i City of Folsom Active Transportation Plan
Page 369

06/14/2022 Item No.15.



BICYCLE BOUTEVARDS

Bicycle boulevards provide an all ages and abilities route along neighborhood
roadways. With lower travel speeds and fewer cars, these routes are designed to
prioritize bicycle travel.

Bicycle Boulevards include three main components:

. Speed Management and Traffic Calming, including reduced speed limits, speed
tables (1), chicanes (2), and more to increase route comfort and safety

. Volume Management, to discourage cut-through traffic and limit non-localtrips

. Bicycle and Pedestrian Priority at tntersections, including improved crossing
infrastructure (3) to support safe crossings at major roadways

ln combination with wayfinding, bicycle boulevards not only support connections
to neighborhood destinations but also provide on-street connections to shared use

paths to create a complete, connected bicycle network. For more information on the
components of a bicycle boulevard, see Appendix A.

-
A
m

Pavement Marki

Traffic Circle

City of Folsom Active Transportation Plan I Recommendations ! 40

Page 370

06/14/2022 Item No.15.



Figure 9 Proposed Bikeways

Proposed Bikeways
FOLSOIVI ATP

Proposed Bikeways
r - r Class I Shared Use Path

Class ll Bicycle Lane

r d il Class llB Buffered Bicycle Lane

!s F tr Class lll Bicycle Route

- r r Class lllB Bicycle Boulevard

r r r Class lV Separated Bikeway

- 

Widen Existing Path

Existing Bikeways
ffi Class I Shared Use Path

Class ll Bicycle Lane

Class llB Buffered Bicycle Lane

Class lll Bicycle Route

il Class lv separated Bikeway

Destinations + Boundaries

@ City Hall

O Community Center

O School

O Light Rail Stalion

::: j City Boundary

Pa rk

Data proviclecl by the Cily of Folsom, SACOG

E

tl

t

I

I
t

a

t

a,.L
$n
aA

t1

o
t:
o
z

t

' Folsom3-- Lake '

t
I
t
t
I
t

) l1
NATOMA T

I
I

Emprrc
Oaks ,

tl

I
t

-6-

tI
I 9\

t

q
(-

ou

I
t
I
I

!

I,
I ,

1 c Susse/t
,
I

Falsom Lake
State Rec
- Misisippi lron

Statian

Natoma

t

I
I
J

I
t

tz

,

a ,
\I(

t,1

,1,

41 Recommendations , City of Folsom Active Transportation Plan
Page 371

06/14/2022 Item No.15.



Shared Used Path Enhancements 0
Shared use paths form the backbone
of the low-stress active transportation
network in Folsom. ln addition to nearly 40
miles of proposed new shared use paths,
the plan also recommends enhancements
to existing corridors, as shown in Figure 9.

Locations of enhanced shared use path
segments include along the Humbug-
Willow Creek Trail, Folsom RailTrail, and
Oak Parkway Trail.

Shared use path enhancements not only
improve the quality of existing paths
but also seek to improve the safety and
comfort for all user groups.

Shared use paths with a high volume and
variety of users are good candidates for
enhancements. Unlike on-street bikeways
or sidewalks, shared use paths include
people walking, biking, and rolling. A
popular shared use path, for example,
can create tension and discomfort among
users, especially when there is limited
space and users are traveling at a wide
range of speeds. Path enhancements
can include a variety of measures such
as increasing the path width, adding
a shoulder, centerline striping, and

separating users. Shared use path
enhancements can also include wayfinding
and/or policy changes to improve user
experience. Wayfinding improvements can
include directional pavement markings and
other types of signage to guide users, while
policy and related promotional campaigns
can encourage users to share the path.
For more information, see the Policy and
Programs section.

ln addition to the enhancements
mentioned above. shared use paths
also provide an opportunity to integrate
green stormwater infrastructure into
the path design. Green infrastructure
is a catchall term that describes
sustainable stormwater management
practices and infrastructure. Through
strategies including biofiltration planters,
bioretention swales, trees, native
landscaping, and permeable pavement
surfaces, more water can return to the
ground and natural systems while reducing
strain on existing water systems.

Some of the benefits of green
infrastructure include:

Reduces the surface temperature of the
street/path and the surrounding area.

lmproves water quality, air quality,
and reduces energy use by capturing
stormwater runoff.

Provides habitat for a variety of insects
and birds and improves habitat in local
watersheds.

lmproves mental and physical health
through better air quality, shade and
cooler temperatures, beautification, and
contact with nature.

City of Folsom Active Transportation Plan Recommendations I 42

Page 372

06/14/2022 Item No.15.



Centerline striping along a shqred use path in Folsom helps to communicate
that users should expecttrqvel in both directions ond encourages users to
travel on the right ond poss on the left.

Delineating separate spaces for pedestrions and bicyclists can help olleviate
conflict among modes in high use areqs. This can be completed through
pavement morkings or use of different mctterials to clearly designate space.

Povement signage further emphasizes that the path is bi-directionql ond
shsred among a variety of users. While this does not creqte additionol space,

it provides reminders of poth etiquette along the length of the path.

A soft-surfoce shoulder alongside q shared use poth provides odditional space

for path users, porticularly runners or others who prefer natural surfoce paths.

43 | Recommendations i City of Folsom Active Transportation Plan
Page 373

06/14/2022 Item No.15.



Pedestrian Network

Sidewalks form the foundation of the
pedestrian network, connecting residents
to destinations such as schools, transit,
parks, and shopping. Pedestrian Network
recommendations build on the sidewalk
inventory completed during the existing
conditions phase of this plan and identify
opportunities to complete the sidewalk
network along the corridors inventoried.

Recommendations shown in Figure 10

include completion of the sidewalk
network on both sides of the roadway
to provide a complete and connected
pedestrian network and enhanced
connections to and from the path network.
This includes completing sidewalks along
most residential streets in the Folsom
Historic District and sections of major
arterials both north and south of the
Historic District such as Folsom Boulevard,
Folsom-Auburn Road, Greenback Lane,
and large sections of Oak Ave Parkway,
East Natoma Street, and Broadstone
Parkway.

This Plan recommends 21.5 miles of new or
upgraded sidewalks across Folsom, which
includes 11.7 miles of filling sidewalk gaps
on both sides of the street and 9.8 miles
of filling sidewalk gaps on one side of the
street.

Corridor sidewalk recom mendations
should be considered in coordination
with spot recommendations (outlined in

the next section) to further facilitate a

connected network in Folsom and improve
access to the city's path system.

I

City of Folsom Active Transportation Plan i Recommendations 44

Page 374

06/14/2022 Item No.15.



Figure 10 Proposed Sidewalks

Proposed Walking Network
lmprovements
FOLSOM ATP

Proposed Pedestrian
lmprovements
e Fill in Sidewalk Gaps

(Both Sides)

-
Fill in Sidewalk Gaps
(One Side)

Proposed Shared Use Paths
r r - Class I Shared Use Path

Existing Shared Use Paths

- 

Class lShared Use Path

Destinations + Boundaries

City Hall

Community Center

School

Light Rail Station

City Boundary

Park

Data provided by the City of Folsom, SACOG

f

n

I

--1.,'

I
--l

\
I I

E$ !
1

I
t
I

I

'k
:* _*

t

1

t

t
a

@
o
o
@
:-___:

t

a

I

Station

I
I
i
I
I
I
?
I
i
I
I

--f\-

I
T

a

t

?

45 | Recommendations I City of Folsom Active Transportation Plan

r*]-r-lMtLES Ao -o.s i'"--- N

Page 375

06/14/2022 Item No.15.



Interseetion and Crossing Improvements I
lntersection and crossing improvements
are crucial to a complete and connected
active transportation network. This
includes upgrading existing crosswalks
to provide safer crossing opportunities,
installing new crosswalks at high-
demand locations, and facilitating access
to the shared use path network along
major roadways. The recommendations
identified seek to improve the comfort
and safety of intersections; enhance
network connectivity; and provide access
to destinations.

ln addition to supporting a complete and
connected low-stress network, intersection
improvements were also one of the most
commonly-requested improvements
during the public engaSement phase of
this plan.

The resulting recommendations (Figure 11)

locate specific intersections, path
connections, or mid-block locations for
improvement and are intended to improve
conditions for both people walking
and people biking. Spot locations were
identified based upon factors such as a

history of collisions, high stress crossings,

access to key destinations, identification in
previous planning efforts, and connections
to and from linear recommendations such
as paths, sidewalks, and bikeways.

lntersection and Crossing lmprovements
are categorized based on the type of
roadway, whether or not there is a traffic
signal, if there is existing infrastructure to
support crossings, and if it provides direct
access to shared use paths. Overcrossings
or undercrossings are also identified
at locatlons that cross a major barrier
such as a highway, and therefore could
benefit from a crossing that is completely
separated from motor vehicle traffic.

The following tables identify the
recommended improvements associated
with each category. Each locatton should
be further analyzed as the project
advances through design to determine
the specific infrastructure needs. More
information about crossing treatments can

be found in Appendix A.

The following tables break down the
different types of spot recommendations
and potential design improvements.

City of Folsom Active Transportation Plan I Recommendations , 46

Page 376

06/14/2022 Item No.15.



Minor Road

Path Spot Recommendations

These locations represent locations
where a path intersects with a roadway
It considers existing conditions of this
crossing, including existing traffic signal
locations, existing stop control and
crossing infrastructure, and roadway
functional classification.

Table 5 Path Spot Recommendations

Existi ng Traffic Signal

Unsignalized,
No Existing Crossing
lnfrastructure

Unsignalized, with
Existing Stop Control,
Crosswalk(s)

Unsignalized -
Existing High Visibility
Crosswalk and Refuge
lsland

Establish a dedicated bike crossing to reduce conflict with pedestrians.
Remove slip lanes and reduce curb radius to slow turning speeds

Signal improvements, including pedestrian countdown signal, APS
buttons, lengthening pedestrian crossing times and/or Leading Pedestrian
lnterval, No Right on Red, and dedicated left turn phase where applicable
lmplement high visibility crosswalks and upgrade curb ramps to comply
with ADA standards as needed
lmprove visibility through liBhting and improved sight lines

lmplement high visibility crosswalks and upgrade curb ramps to comply
with ADA standards as needed
Evaluate opportunity for rectangular rapid flashing beacon (RRFB)

or pedestrian hybrid beacon (PHB)

Shorten crossing distances through pedestrian refuge islands, curb
extensions, and other traffic calming
lmprove visibility through lighting and improved sight lines

lmplement high visibility crosswalks and upgrade curb ramps to comply
with ADA standards as needed
Evaluate pedestrian hybrid beacon or rectangular rapid flashing beacon
i nsta I lati o n

Shorten crossing distances through pedestrian refuge islands, curb
extensions, and other traffic calming
Improve visibility through lighting and improved sight lines

Evaluate pedestrian hybrid beacon or rectangular rapid flashing beacon
installation
lnstall ADA compliant curb ramps
lmprove visibility through lighting and improved sight lines

lmplement high visibility crosswalks and upgrade curb ramps to comply
with ADA standards as needed
In-Street Pedestrian Crossing Sign

Reduce crossing distances through curb extensions and other traffic calming

lmprove visibility through lighting and improved sight lines

Description of lmprovementsType

47 Recommendations I City of Folsom Active Transportation Plan

Page 377

06/14/2022 Item No.15.



Major Roadway Spot Reeommendations

These locations represent crossing
improvements involving a major roadways,
including arterials. The locations may
intersect with existing or proposed bicycle
and pedestrian infrastructure and should
integrate accordingly. For locations with
adjoining bicycle facilities, additional
improvements may be considered, such as

bike signals, bike crossings, and bike boxes

Table 6 Major Roadway Spot Recommendations

I

Existing Traffic Signal

Unsignalized

Signal improvements, including pedestrian countdown signal, lengthening
pedestrian crossing times and/or Leading Pedestrian Interval, No Right on
Red, and dedicated left turn phase where applicable

lmplement high visibility crosswalks and upgrade curb ramps to comply
with ADA standards as needed
lmprove visibility through lighting and improved sight lines

Provide pedestrian refuge island

Consider bike boxes and dashed green pavement markings through
intersection for bikes when appropriate
lnstall advanced yield/stop bars

lmplement high visibility crosswalks and upgrade curb ramps to comply
with ADA standards as needed. Raised crosswalks may be considered.

lmprove visibility through lighting and improved sight lines

5horten crossing distances through pedestrian refuge island

Evaluate pedestrian hybrid beacon or rectangular rapid flashing beacon
installation
lnstall advanced yield/stop bars

Description of lmprovementsType

City of Folsom Active Transportation Plan j Recommendations 48

Page 378

06/14/2022 Item No.15.



Minor Roadway Spot Recommendations

These locations represent crossing
improvements involving minor roadways,
including local roads. They are typically
surrounded by residential land uses,
are not located along major commercial
corridors, and have limited existing
crossing infrastructure. These locations
may intersect with existing or proposed
bicycle and pedestrian infrastructure and
should integrate accordingly. For locations
with adjoining bicycle facilities, additional
improvements may be considered, such as

bike signals, bike crossings, and bike boxes

Table 7 Minor Roadway Spot Recommendations

U nsignalized

O

lmplement high visibility crosswalks and upgrade curb ramps to

comply with ADA standards as needed

Reduce crossing distances through curb extensions and other
traffic calming

Coordinate improvements with Class lllB as applicable

Systemwide I mprovements

While spot recommendations identify
areas of specific concern, the Folsom ATP

also recommends the city explore system-
wide improvements to crossings, such as

the implementation of Leading Pedestrian
lntervals and No Right on Red restrictions
in locations with high pedestrian demand.
These areas may include commercial
centers, transit stations, schools, paths,
and parks. Leading Pedestrian lntervals,
for example, give pedestrians a head-

start crossing the street at signalized
intersections by activating the walking
signal a few seconds before cars are
permitted to go. This can dramatically
improve visibility and predictability
between vehicles and pedestrians,
particularly for motor vehicle turning
movements. Systemwide improvements
are explored further as part of the Design
Guide in Appendix A and are not reflected
on the spot recommendation
maps or project tables.

Description of lmprovementsType

49 Recommendations r City of Folsom Active Transportation Plan
Page 379

06/14/2022 Item No.15.



Figure 11 Proposed lntersection
lmprovements

Proposed Spot lmprovements
FOLSOM ATP

Proposed Spot lmprovements
O Patn / Major Road Signalized

O Pattr / Major Road Unsignalized

O Patfr / Minor Road

I wtajor Road Signalized

I lvtalor Road Unsignalized

{D Minor Road Unsignalized

I Overcrossing I Undercrossing

Existing Bikeways
r Class I Shared Use Path

- 

Class ll Bicycle Lane
r Class llB Buffered

Bicycle Lane

- 

Class lll Bicycle Route

- 

Class lV Separated
Bikeway

Destinations + Boundaries

@ City Hall

O Community Center

O School

1@ Light RailStation

i-:: City Boundary

n Park

Data provided by the City of Folsom, SACOG

# I
.l
I
I
I

Carl

!

:L'-.

86s,
FAnch

ef!Yt
I

I

t-

station
ElementaN ;

at'',- -t-{

I-I-I-]MILES A
00.s1N

.l:ago
Del

jrl

rj

I

City of Folsom Active Transportation PIan I Recommendations | 5O

Page 380

06/14/2022 Item No.15.



Programs + Polieies

PROGRAMS

Programs refer to non-infrastructure
efforts that support walking, bicycling, and
other mobility options in the city. Programs
supplement infrastructure improvements
by helping connect residents and visitors
to these new ways to get around"

The ATP recommends the programs
outlined in the sections that follow..
Successful implementation of programs
may require addition'al investment in city
stafl including increasing the number of
staff dedicated to bicycle and pedestrian
issues. Dedicated staff are crucial to
ensuring the success and longevity of
these programs. Partnering with local
organizations and other agencies is also an
essential strategy to creating a sustainable
program.

Safe Routes to School (SRTS)

improvements focused on improving the
safety of students traveling to and from
school.

Currently, the Sacramento Area Council of
Governments (SACOG) and Civic Thread
(previously known as WalkSacramento)
promote and support SRTS programs
and projects throughout the Sacramento
region. SACOG adopted a SRTS policy
in 2012 and Civic Thread partners with
communities throughout the region
to implement and establish sRTS
programming. Additionally, the 50 Corridor
Transportation Management Association
(TMA) works with schools in the region,
including the Folsom-Cordova Unified
School District, through a Smart Routes to
School Program.

The City of Folsom should implement
a comprehensive SRTS program in

coordination with the Folsom-Cordova
Unified School District and other schools
operating in the city. This is consistent
with the goals of the ATP and supports
the mobility component of the Folsom
General Plan. Coordination with SACOG,

Civic Thread, and/or the 50 Corridor TMA
can help connect the city with existing
resources, funding opportunities, and the
formation of a SRTS program.

Potential Safe Routes to School program
offerings to schools include educational
resources to promote active travel to
school; regular events to celebrate
walking and biking; a crossing guard
program to promote safe pedestrian and
driver behavior at school crossings; data
collection to understand existing mode
share and family perception of active travel
to school;walking school buses and bike
trains to support travel to school; and
suggested route maps to help families
identify the best route to school.

O

SRTS initiatives provide education and
encouragement to students, family, and
school communities seeking to increase
the use of active and shared modes of
travel. This program can include a wide
range of activities and events and may
be accompanied through local street

51 Recommendations i City of Folsom Active Transportation Plan
Page 381

06/14/2022 Item No.15.



Bicycling Classes for Adults

The city should partner with other
organizations, such as Friends of Folsom
Parkways or Cycle Folsom, to provlde a

regular education program that connects
adults in the community with information
about bicycling. ldentified in the previous
Bicycle Master Plan, the Mobility
component of the Folsom General Plan.
and as a point for irnprovement in the 2016
Bicycle Friendly Community Report Card,
an adult bicycle education program would
connect adults in Folsom with information
they need to integrate blcycling into their
transportation options.

Courses for bicycle safety are based
on a curriculum from the League of
American Bicyclists that focuses on how
bicyclists should behave to be safer, more
predictable, and more confident riding on
streets both with and without dedicated
bicycle facilities. The classes can also
incorporate photos and video clips of
local roads to help students understand
how various scenarios apply to Folsom
locations. The city can provide additional
support by advertising the courses and
providing meeting space.

Path Ambassador Program

The City should expand upon the City's
Citizens Assisting Public Safety (CAPS)

Volunteer program to include a Path
Ambassador program. Similar to the
existing American River Bike Patrol, the
program would consist of volunteers
who assist with education around path
etiquette, provide safety and equipment
advice, and directional advice on the City's
path network.

Traffic Safety/Marketi ng/
Promotional Campaigns

The city should expand upon the
recommendations from the previous
Pedestrian Master Plan and Bikeway
Master Plan to implement a holistic traffic
safety campaign that provides community
education about safe driving, bicycling,
and walking behavior. This can be further
expanded to include information on how
to safely share the path and encourage
path etiquette along Folsom's shared use
paths.

Campaign messages should respond to
common issues in Folsom and address
community safety priorities. This may
include not texting while driving or

walking, how to securely lock your bicycle,
the importance of being seen at night as

a pedestrian or bicyclist, helping drivers
understand where to anticipate bicyclists,
and increasing awareness of California's
Three-Foot Passing law.

Local students could create artwork for
the updated campaign as part of a Traffic
Safety Poster Contest. The posters can
highlight and share information about
newly completed projects, such as green
transition areas and new separated
bikeways. Funding could be provided by a
grant from the California Office of Traffic
Safety. The city can develop messaging
and choose graphics with involvement
from local stakeholders, law enforcement,
schools, business owners, civic leaders,
and community advocates to maximize
engagement and effectiveness.

"STREETSMARTS" CAM PAIGN

Folsam can join other Californis cities
in implementing "Streetsmarts" media
compaigns. Streetsmarts uses print media,
rodio, and television to educate the
community about safe driving, bicycling,
skateboa rd i ng, a nd wal ki ng behavior.

City of Folsom Active Transportation Plan j Recommendations 52

Page 382

06/14/2022 Item No.15.



Transportation Demand Management
Campaign

Consistent with the Mobility component
of the Folsom GeneralPlan (M 1.1.9),

develop a citywide Transportation Demand
Management (TDM) Program to reduce
single occupancy vehicle trips. This effort
will build on the City's existing involvement
with the 50 Corridor Transportation
Management Association (TMA), a public-
private partnership that seeks to reduce
single-occupancy vehicle trips along the
Highway 50 corridor. The proposed program
will provide a menu of strategies and
programs that can support developers and
employers in promoting more active and
shared travel for commutes. Some examples
of TDM strategies include employer-based
ridesharing programs, subsidized travel for
nonmotorized commutes, and requiring
developers to minimize available parking and
contribute funding for nonmotorized forms
of transportation. Explore opportunities
to expand partnership with the City of
Sacramento due to the commute patterns
between the two cities.

Bike Parking Program

Bicycle parking and related trip end facilities
complete the bicycle network. A convenient

and secure location to store a bicycle while
at a destination is necessary for trips made
by bike, especially when connecting to
transit. While bicycle parking is available in

many locations around Folsom, requests
for more parking options was one of the
most frequent comments provided during
public engagement activities. This includes
requests for both increased quantity
of parking options as well as greater
distribution across the city.

Bike parking can be either short-term or
secure and long-term. Short-term parking
is meant to accommodate bicyclists who
park for up to two hours and is common
along Sutter Street in the Historic District,
for example, but less common in other
areas of the city, such as at shopping
destinations, parks, and community
centers. Long-term parking, such as bike
lockers, is intended for riders who park
over two hours, e.g., employees, students,
and residents. BikeLink-secure and
enclosed bike lockers-at the light rail
stations in Folsom are one example. More
information bike parking types can be
found in Appendix A.

Consistent with the Mobility component of
the Folsom General Plan, the city should
coordinate with local businesses, property

owners, and open space agencies to
install secure bicycle parking near major
destinations across Folsom. Bike parking
options should include locations that
accommodate bikes of differing sizes or
supporting e-bikes and charging locations,
particularly within secure parking areas.
Folsom should also review and update
its development standards to encourage
greater provision for bicycle parking in new
developments.

53 | Recommendations I City of Folsom Active Transportation Plan
Page 383

06/14/2022 Item No.15.



Citywide Wayfinding

A comprehensive wayfinding program will
support active transportation users across
the city. Through a series of signs, kiosks,
and pavement medallions, a wayfinding
system will direct people walking and
biking to their destinations, encourage
greater exploration of the city, and help
people feel more comfortable traveling
across on-street and off-street networks.

Throughout the public engagement for
the ATq participants frequently noted
a lack of navigation support, especially
for preferred routes oftravel and access
to the shared use path network. The
City of Folsom currently has minimal
wayfinding throughout the bicycle, path,
and pedestrian network; elements that are
in place are not part of a comprehensive
system that is easy to recognize and
understand.

As part of the implementation of the ATP,

the city should establish a consistent
wayfinding system for its bicycle. path, and
pedestrian networks that leverages the
city's visual brand; supports connections
to transit, paths, parks, and schools;
and celebrates the active transportation
opportunities across the city.

Figure 12 Typical Locations forWayfinding Signage

To Center City

o

To River Trail

Some of the common components of a
wayfinding system are described below,
including the types of common signs, the
required standards and guidelines, and
other optional elements.

Sample Slgns

o O o"asonsrsn

o Sfr-*

@_l
O rum sisn

example, decision signs (D) are located
before an intersection of two routes;
turn signs (T) are found before turns; and
confirmation signs (C) are located after
the turning movement and periodically
along routes to confirm that the user is

on the right path. The predictability of
sign locations can help users feel more
comfortable and confident navigating the
city, whether walking or bicycling.

Signage Technical Guidance

A variety of standards and guidelines
influence both the design and placement
of wayfinding elements in Folsom. The

o

o
o
o

o

Novigationql Elements

The types of signs that provide bicyclists
and pedestrians with navigational
information consist of decision,
confirmation, and turn signs (described
in Table 8). Figure 12 provides typical
locations of signs. These signs are featured
at specific points along a route that users
can rely on throughout their trip. For

Elenrentary
School

+ &rqi.]rtl P2rl

I a,1y {.:"le'

TO Center

City of Folsom Active Transportation Plan i Recommendations I 54

Page 384

06/14/2022 Item No.15.



Manual of Traffic Control Devices (MUTCD)
provides standards and guidelines for the
design, size, and content of wayfinding
signs. However, many jurisdictions have
implemented unique signs to enhance
visibility while reinforcing local identity.

Bicycle Guide Signs

Both on-street and off-street bicycle
facilities are required to follow the
standards within the MUTCD. The State
of California has adopted specific state

Table 8 Wayfinding Sign Types

Clarify route optiorls when more
than one is available

Typically include a system brand

Up to 3 destinations

Distance in time or miles (based on
10 mph or 6 minutes per mile)

FHWA standard size for 3
destinations is 18" H x 30" W

Municipalities can modify, often 24"
W x 30" or 35" H, and place a bicycle
symbol at the top

Generally, 6" ofvertical space per
destination

5ign width not standardized by the
CA MUTCD

standards for all traffic control devices
called the CA MUTCD, which supersedes
the MUTCD:

D11-'l: Bicycle Route Guide Sign

D1-1b: Destination Supplemental Sign

M7-1 through M7-7 Directional Arrow
Supplemental Sign

The combination of standard signs with
modifications allows for consistent signage
throughout Folsom while branding the
network.

Community Woyfinding

Community wayfinding signs allow for an
expression of community identity, reflect
local values and character, and provide more
information. California has not yet adopted
M UTCD community wayfinding standards,
but many communities use these.

Oth e r Wayfi nd i ng EIem e nts

ln addition to the core elements, several
other wayfinding elements should be
considered;

Distance and time:Adding distance
in familiar units can be a helpful
encouragement tool for bicycling and
walking. Some cities include travel time

Street name sign blades and sign toppers
Some cities have enhanced street name
sign blades to recognize bikeways and
major pedestrian routes.

Pavement markings: Directional
pavement markings indicate confirmation
of bicycle or pedestrian presence on
a designated route and indicate turn
locations. Pavement markings can often
be more visible and can help supplement
or reinforce signage.

Placed after turn
movement or intersection
to reassure that lhey are
on the correct route

Standard D1'l-1 series
signs, system brand mark,
and route or pathway
name may be included

The minimum size of 24"
W x 18" H should be used
for bike route signs, both
on and ofF-street

Clarily a specific route at
changes in direction

Used when only one route
option is available

Standard D1-1 series sign:
system brand mark, route
or pathway name, and/or
a directional arrow may be
included

A minimum of 6" should
be used for arrow plaque,
the width may vary with
destination length

Standard turn arrows (M5 and
M6 series) may be used to
clarify movements

Decision Sign (D) Confirmation Sign (C) Turn Sign (T)

55 I Recommendations i City of Folsom Active Transportation Plan
Page 385

06/14/2022 Item No.15.



POLtCtES

As biking, walking, and rolling in Folsom
grows, it is important to identify
opportunities within city policy and
practice to better support development
of the active transportation network.
The following policy recommendations
consider issues such as the longevity
of the city's investment in the active
transportation network, access and use of
the network, and evaluation of the active
transportation network.

Facility Standards

The city should review and update all
relevant policy and design standards
regarding bikeway, path, and sidewalk
design, materials, and supporting
amenities to be consistent with best
practices and state and federal standards.
Evaluate and revise facility standards as
needed to provide for accessible facilities.
New and reconstructed facilities shall meet
the requirements of the Americans with
Disabilities Act.

For Class I Shared Use Paths, utilize best
practices design standards and guidelines
to accommodate all path user groups.
Consider wider paths, separated spaces for
travel, and other design interventions to
improve safety and comfort along Class I

facilities.

Maintenance

Routine maintenance can prolong the life
of surface materials, increase the utility of
the system, and encourage greater use of
the network. This includes maintaining bike
lanes, protected facilities, and sidewalks
by keeplng them clear of debris, surfaces
free from obstructions, and crossings well-
marked. For shared use path, maintaining
access points, path surface, and crosswalks
are important components to a well-
functioning and effective system that
supports trips of all types.

It is recommended that the city expand
upon the maintenance recommendations
outlined in the Folsom Bikeway Master
Plan (Policy 7.5.2)to develop a routine
maintenance schedule and track
maintenance over time. These activities
should include all components of the
bicycle, pedestrian, and path networks.

ln addition to routine maintenance, the city
should track more significant maintenance
needs and integrate these improvements
into annual budgeting. This should include
a mechanism for public reporting of issues
along the network. This information should
be tracked in a manner consistent with the
system inventory recommended as part of
this plan.

Data Ma nagement/Collection

Data regarding all active transportation
facilities and activity should be collected
regularly. Three primary areas for data
collection that should be explored and
expanded include:

. Safety: To better understand
crash patterns and who is affected,
opportunities to record additional
information on crash types and parties
should be explored.

User Counts: lmplement an annual
counts program to track use of existing
facilities and identify areas for future
facility irnplementation" Counts
programs can rely on permanent
automatic cou nters, temporary
counters, or manual counts completed
in coordination with local volunteers.

City of Folsom Active Transportation Plan i Recommendations ; 56

Page 386

06/14/2022 Item No.15.



Counts should be collected annually,
utilizing consistent locations and
methodology. The National Bicycle
and Pedestrian Documentation project
provides information on how to get
sta rted.

lnfrastructure lnventory: Project
implementation and maintenance is

best supported when location and
quality of assets is known. To better
track implementation progress and
identify locations for new crosswalks,
maintenance needs, or other project
opportunities, the City should develop
a comprehensive database that
documents existing infrastructure, such
as: signal locations; crosswalk locations
and quality; sidewalk and bikeway
location, quality, and width; pedestrian-
scale lighting location; traffic calming
locations; bicycle parking location, type,
and capacity; and similar. The data
plan should include considerations for
regular updates to the data set and
protocols for integrating new projects

Annual Report Card

An annual report card assesses the city's
progress toward goals and objectives
outlined in the ATP, its projects and
programs, and shifting mode share for
active transportation. Annual report cards
can also incorporate a review of project
effectiveness to evaluate the costs and
benefits of various efforts and adjust
investments to maximize results.

The ATP recommends the City to develop
an annual report card that tracks progress
toward implementing this plan. The report
card should incorporate annual collision
data, safe routes to school program and
participation data (once implemented),
walking and bicycling counts, and other
relevant information to highlight successes
and challenges of improving walking and
bicycling each year.

Vision Zero

The City should consider the adoption of a
Vision Zero policy and program that seeks
to eliminate all traffic fatalities and severe
injuries. The strategy also includes a focus
on creating safe, healthy, and equitable

mobility for all. Adoption of a Vision Zero
strategy includes data collection and
analysis, community engagement and
education, engineering approaches, and a

clear timeline for action. This effort should
build on the findings of the City of Folsom
Local Road Safety Plan (2021), which
further analyzed collision characteristics
within the city for all modes.

Path Management

The path system supports both
recreational and transportation trips
in Folsom. With an increasing number
of personal e-bikes and e-scooters*as
well as the potential for a future shared
mobility program-the City should develop
clear policy regarding the use of shared
use paths by these modes. This guidance
should be consistent with county, regional,
and state guidance. lnformation regarding
this policy should be made available
through educational and encouragement
materials, including at trailheads and
other key access points. This information
can also provide guidance to users about
path etiquette and help reduce potential
conflicts along the pathway.

57 Recommendations i City of Folsom Active Transportation Plan
Page 387

06/14/2022 Item No.15.



Page 388

06/14/2022 Item No.15.



)

Chapter VI I Implementation

Page 389

06/14/2022 Item No.15.



Project Prioritization

While the ATP recommends a series of
projects that support a complete and
connected low-stress network, limited
resources require an action plan that
identifies which projects may have the
greatest impact. This section presents
the prioritization strategy lor evaluating
projects recommended in the City of
Folsom Active Transportation Plan. The
factors included in this strategy are based
on plan goals to advance the community
vision for active transportation.

Table 11 summarizes the prioritization
criteria as well as the scoring applied
for each. Projects are evaluated against
only those within the same category
of improvements (e.9., sidewalk
improvements are evaluated only against
other sidewalk improvements). Maps
displaying the results for each type of
improvement and the resulting project
tables are shown in the pages that follow.

Projects are sorted into Short-Term,
Mid-Term, and Long-Term improvements.
Short-term improvements received a

high prioritization score and are expected
to have the greatest impact on the
network; these improvements should be
considered in the near-term based on
funding availability. Conversely, long-term
improvements received lower prioritization
scores and are expected to have less
impact on the network. However, the
following project lists are not intended
to restrict the order of implementation.
Projects may be implemented to reflect
current city funding priorities and as

opportunities become available-such
as funding availability, projects that are
already in process, and coordination with
other projects or development.

O

City of Folsom Active Transportation Plan I lmplementation i 50

Page 390

06/14/2022 Item No.15.



Table 9 Prioritization Fromework

Prioritization
Factor Proposed ScoringDefinition

Network
Com pleteness

Network
Connectivity

Project closes an existing gap in the
network

Project improves connections to
destinations, including schools, parks,
transit, paths, and employment centers

10 Points: Segment connects on both ends to fill a gap in the existing network

5 Points: Segment connects to an existing facility on only one end

lf project is located within /a mile of a destination, it receives 2 points (up to 10

points total)

10 Points: Project improves an existing LTS 3 or LTS 4 route; for spot
improvements, project improves crossing of LTS 3 of LTS 4 route

10 Points: A severe injury or fatal collision occurred along the project segment
and/or within 500 feet of the project locatlon (if spot improvement)

5 Points: A collision occurred along project segment and/or within 500 feet of
the project location (if spot improvement)

'10 points: Project is located within a census tract where low-income workers
either work or live (Top '1070)

10 points: Project/Corridor was identified and supported through public
comments

10 points: Project or corridor was identified in a previous planning effort

Network Comfort Project improves an existing high stress
route or crossing.

Network Safety Collision occurred at the project
intersection or along the identified
project segment.

Equity Project improves active transportation
networks in areas with a high proportion
of low-income workers.

Community Support Project reflects needs or barriers
identified through Folsom ATP

community input.

Previous Plan Project is in alignment with previous
planning efforts.

61 lmplementation I City of Folsom Active Transportation Plan
Page 391

06/14/2022 Item No.15.



Figure 13 High Priority Bikeways

High Priority Bikeways
FOLSOM ATP

Proposed Bikeways
r r r Class I Shared Use Path

r r r Class llB Buffered Bicycle Lane

r r r Class lll Bicycle Route

r r r Class IllB Bicycle Boulevard

r r r Class lV Separated Bikeway

- 

Widen Existing Path

Existing Bikeways

- 

Class lShared Use Path

- 

Class ll Bicycle Lane

r Class llB Buffered Bicycle Lane

- 

Class lll Bicycle Route

- 

Class lV Separated Bikeway

Destinations + Boundaries

@ City Hall

O Community Center

O School

@ Light Rail Station

i:: j City Boundary

ffi Park

Data provided by the City of Folsom, SACOG

E'

z
3oJ
c0'#

t

t'
-j- .t"

I

:r

{ ,t(
-'^h

f,u*/
Randtil

Station

r-r-r-lMtLES A00.s1N
, - f -

I

City of Folsom Active Transportation Plan I lmplementation | 62

Page 392

06/14/2022 Item No.15.



Figure 14 Medium Priority Bikeways

Medium Priority Bikeways
FOLSOM ATP

Proposed Bikeways
r r r Class I Shared Use Path

- r r Class lllB Bicycle Boulevard

r r r Class lV Separated Bikeway

- 

Widen Existing Path

Existing Bikeways
n Class I Shared Use Path

e Class ll Bicycle Lane

- 

class llB Buffered Bicycle Lane

- 

Class lll Bicycle Route
e Class lV Separated Bikeway

Destinations + Boundaries

@ City Hall

O Community Center

O School

O Light'Railstation

i:: j City Boundary

il Park

Data provided by the City of Folsom, SACOG

# I
,l

I
I
t--
I

I
!

il
i!l

ElemehtarY ' ''

8us$/
Randr

t-l-t-lMlLES00.5 1

t

I

{.

.sfafion

1.."'
A
N

-- :t.'
a

I
t;

tuliom

63 | lmplementation I City of Folsom Active Transportation Plan

**"-

Page 393

06/14/2022 Item No.15.



Figure "15 Low Priority Bikeways

Low Priority Bikeways
FOLSOM ATP

Proposed Bikeways
r r r Class I Shared Use Path

r r r Class ll Bicycle Lane

r r r Class llB Buffered Bicycle Lane

r ! r Class lll Bicycle Route

r r r Class lllB Bicycle Boulevard

r r r Class lV Separated Bikeway

- 

Widen Existing Path

Existing Bikeways
e Class I Shared Use Path

- 

Class ll Bicycle Lane

- 

Class llB Buffered Bicycle Lane

e Class lll Bicycle Route

- 

Class lV Separated Bikeway

Destinations + Boundaries

@ City Hall

O Community Center

O School

f,) Light RailStation

l::: City Boundary

f Park

Data provided by the City of Folsom, SACOG

t'

I
I

,-li

. l.r
la
,

Susssr.
Rffich

all
n

,l ,i- tl

-t'-r'.r,'
I

L
trlI rfJ

I
rJ

I
,

t t
r -r'!- -

/-- .,
station

I
I
I
t
l.t
I

l, {oc:l
,t t

Jr. I
I ."t

I
I LI

I
I l,.r l-1-r-lMrLES Ao o.s f"'--- Nrt

City of Folsom Active Transportation Plan I lmplementation | 64
Page 394

06/14/2022 Item No.15.



Table 1O Priority Bikewoys Projects

Length
(Miles)

Priority
Category

Planning Level
Cost EstimateProposed BikewayEndStartLocation

Folsom Placerville Rail Trail

New Path (Parallelto Hwy 50)

New Path (Parallel to Hwy 50)

Willow Creek
Tra il

Serpa Ct

Prairie City Rd

lron Point Rd Class I Shared-Use Path o.97

1.26

2.54

1 CA

o.46

0.99

6.25

4.13

2.52

1,72

0.64

1.44

2.03

0.89

1.76

0.40

High

High

High $1,891,9s0

Folsom Blvd

Glenn Dr

Riley 5t

Prairie City Rd/Sibley St

Grover Rd

Natoma Station Dr

lron Point Rd

Blue Ravine Rd / Green Valley
Rd

Oak Avenue Pkwy

E Bidwell St

Aerojet Rd (City
Boundary)

Folsom Blvd

Persifer St

Hwy 50

Russi Rd

Folsom Blvd

Folsom Blvd

Folsom Blvd

lron Point Rd

Riley 5t

City Boundary

lron Point Rd / E

Bidwell 5t

lron Point Rd

Riley St

Oak Avenue
Pkwy

Glenn Dr

lron Point Rd

Blue Ravine Rd

City Boundary

Arrowsmith Dr

Willow Creek Dr

Frazer Ct (Path)

Broadstone Pkwy

lron Point Rd

Empire Ranch Rd

Natoma St

E Bidwell St

Scott St

Class I Shared-Use Path

Class I Shared-Use Path

Class I Shared-Use Path

Class lV Separated Bikeway

Class lV Separated Bikeway

Class lV Separated Bikeway

Class lV Separated Bikeway

Class lV Separated Bikeway

Class lV Separated Bikeway

Class lV Separated Bikeway

Class lV Separated Bikeway

Class llB Buffered Bicycle
Lane

Class lV Separated Bikeway

Class lV Separated Bikeway

Class lV Separated Bikeway

Class lllB Bicycle Boulevard

Class lllB Bicycle Boulevard

Class lll Bicycle Route

1.40

2.50

High

High

1.41 High $2,747,75A

$2,470,750

$4,971,445

$2,879,830

$5,153,710

$3,262,955

$943,585

$2,037,210

s12,851,795

$8.514,755

$5,183,30s

$272,351

s1,309,225

$2,955,135

$4,180,140

$258,760

$51 1,970

$21,345

High

High

High

High

High

High

High

Clarksville Rd

Scholar Way / Cavitt Dr

E Natoma St

Wales Dr

Dean Way / Montrose Dr

Riley 5t

E Bidwell St

E Bidwell St

Blue Ravine Rd

Riley 5t

Coloma St

Persifer St

High

High

High

High

High

High

65 I lmplementation i City of Folsom Active Transportation Plan

Page 395

06/14/2022 Item No.15.



Table 10 Priority Bikeway Projects, continued

Length
(Miles)

Priority
Category

Planning Level
Cost EstimateProposed BikewayEndStartLocation

Slbley St

White Rock Rd

Natoma 5t

Folsom RailTrail

Folsom RailTrail

Folsom RailTrail

Scholar Way

New Path

New Path

E Natoma St

New Path - Econome Family
Park

New Path

Greenback Ln

Folsom-Auburn Rd

Oak Ave

lron Point Station Blue Ravine Rd

Parkshore Dr Glenn Dr

Glenn Dr Bidwell St

Cavitt Dr Broadstone Pkwy

Class llB Buffered Bicycle
Lane

Class I Shared-Use Path

Class llB Buffered Bicycle
Lane

Shared-Use Path

Enhancement

Shared-Use Path
Enha ncement

Shared-Use Path

Enhancement

Class llB Buffered Bicycle
Lane

Class I Shared-Use Path

Class I Shared-Use Path

Class I Shared-Use Path

Class lV Separated Bikeway

Class lV 5eparated Bikeway

Class lV Separated Bikeway

0.86 High $13200s

4.18 Hlgh $8,167,785

0.35 High $s4,730

0.86 High $316,295

0.32 High $117,395

0.29 High $108,185

0.54 High $85,53s

Glenn Dr

Prairie City Rd

Stafford St

Greenback Ln

Jedediah Smith
MemorialTrail

Existing E

Natoma Path

Blue Ravine Rd

Bidwell St

City Boundary

Folsom Blvd

Santa Juanita Ave

Figueroa 5t

City Boundary
(eastern)

Fargo Way

Placer Mine Rd

Greenback Ln

Glenn Dr

Folsom Blvd

City Boundary

Lew Howard Park
Path

0.42

0.08

Medium

Medium

Medium

Medium

Medium

Medium

$830,060

$1s0,980

$1,116,460

$2,669,490

$4,562,390

$3,222,770

Blue Ravine Rd Class I Shared-Use Path

Oak Pkwy Trail Class I Shared-Use Path

0.16 Medium $322,260

0.08 Medium $157,665

0.57

1.30

2.22

1.57

City of Folsom Active Transportation Plan i lmplementation i 56

Page 396

06/14/2022 Item No.15.



Table 10 Priority Bikeway Projects, continued

Length
(Miles)

Priority
Category

Planning Level
Cost EstimateProposed BikewayEndLocation Start

American River Canyon Dr Greenback Ln

Blue Ravine Rd

lron Point Rd

Golf Links Dr

Hwy 50

Path (just south
of Silberhorn Dr)

Wales Dr

Leidesdorff St

Leidesdorff St

Frankwood Dr

Dean Way

Blue Ravine Rd

New Folsom Area
Plan Path

Mormon St

American River
Canyon Dr (north
of Oak Ave)

Riley 5t

E BidwellSt

Empire Ranch Rd

Broadstone Pkwy

<Null>

Prison Rd

E BidwellSt

BidwellSt

Blue Ravine Rd

Blue Ravine Rd

Souza Way

New Roadway

Reading St

Class lV Separated Bikeway 1.71 Medium $3,518,315

Russi Rd

Broadstone Pkwy

Broadstone Pkwy

Empire Ranch Rd

Golf Links Dr

Natoma St /E Natoma 5t

Coloma St

Wool St

Flower Dr / Briarcliff Dr

School St

Parkway Dr / Morganite Ct

New Folsom Area Plan Path -
Parellel to Hwy 50

Folsom RailTrail

Class lV Separated Bikeway

Class lV Separated Bikeway

Class lV Separated Bikeway

Class lV Separated Bikeway

Class lV Separated Bikeway

Class lV Separated Bikeway

Class lllB Bicycle Boulevard

Class lllB Bicycle Boulevard

Class lllB Bicycle Boulevard

Class lllB Bicycle Boulevard

Class lllB Bicycle Boulevard

Class I Shared-Use Path

Shared-Use Path
Enhancement

Shared-Use Path

Enhancement

Shared-Use Path
Enhancement

Class I Shared-Use Path

0.20 Medium $74,920

o.2B Medium $103,605

0.58 Medium $251,875

1.08

0.59

0.91

0.65

o.28

Medium

Medium

Medium

Medium

Medium

Medium

Medium

Medium

Medium

Medium

Medium

Medium

$2,217,140

$1,213,010

$1,881,875

$1,336,925

$581,665

$4s0,18s

$164,700

$121,485

$312,345

$285,735

$296,900

$5,663,890

0.22

0.57

0.42

1.08

0.98

1.02

2.90

Historic Powerhouse Canal
Trail

Humbug Creek Trail

Scott St

Riley St

American River
Bike Trail

E BidwellSt

Santa Juanita Ave Oak Avenue
Pkwy

Canyon Falls Dr

67 i lmplementation I City of Folsom Active Transportation Plan

0.15 Low $283,320

Page 397

06/14/2022 Item No.15.



Table 10 Priority Bikeway Projects, continued

Length
(Miles)

Priority
Category

Planning Level
Cost EstimateProposed BikewayEndLocation Start

Santa Juanita Ave

New Path

New Path

New Path

New Path

New Path

E Natoma 5t

New Path

New Path

lngersoll Way

Empire Ranch Rd

Oak Ave

Baldwin Dam Rd

Davis Park

Temperence
River Ct / Baldwin
Dam Rd

Folsom Lake
Crossing

Folsom Lake Path

Humbug Willow
Creek Trail

Humbug Willow
Creek Trail

Johnny Cash Trail

Willow Creek
Trail

Serpa Way

Natoma Station
Dr

Empire Ranch
Trail

Lew Howard Park

Oak Ave

Alabaster Point
way

Folsom-Auburn
Rd

Class I Shared-Use Path

Class I Shared-Use Path

Folsom Lake Path Class I Shared-Use Path

0.49

0.57

0.12

0.73

0.61

0.40

Q.12

0.28

0.35

o.23

Low

Low

Low $950,790

Low $1,122,530

Low $235,940

City Boundary

City Boundary

Folsom Lake Path
(Proposed)

E Natoma St /
Folsom Lake
Crossing

Riley St

Class I Shared-Use Path

Class I Shared-Use Path

Class I Shared-Use Path

Class I Shared-Use Path

Class I Shared-Use Path

Low $774,340

Low $230,730

Low $555,980

$1,420,865

$1,197,440

$683,51 5

$473,455

Caversham Way

lron Point Rd

Class I Shared-Use Path

Class lV Separated Bikeway

Low

Low

City Boundary

Folsom-Auburn
Rd

Baldwin Dam Rd
Path

Berry Creek Dr

Class lV Separated Bikeway

Class ll Bicycle Lane

Class lll Bicycle Route

Class lllB Bicycle Boulevard

0.35

0.49 Low $362,205

0.20 Low $10,665

0.56 Low $163,80s

Low $723,845

Valley Pines Dr Baldwin Dam Rd

City of Folsom Active Transportation Plan I lmplementation | 68

Page 398

06/14/2022 Item No.15.



Table 10 Priority Bikeway Projects, continued

Length
(Miles)

Priority
Category

Planning Level
Cost EstimateProposed BikewayEndStartLocation

Berry Creek Dr / Fithian Way /
Van Winkle Ct

Figueroa St

Stafford St

Scott 5t

Diggins / Oxburough lVierra /
Cobble Ridge Dr

Persifer 5t

Randall Dr

Hancock Dr

Willow Creek Dr

Stanton Ct

Hildebrand Cir

Acorn Ridge Ct / Porter Ct

Carpenter Hill Rd

Blough Way

Halidon Way / Densmore Way

Marsh Hawk Dr

Barnhill Dr / Blossom Rock Ln

Ca rter St

Stewart St

Parkshore Dr / Woodmere Rd

Folsom-Auburn
Rd

Folsom Parkway
Rail Trail

Johnny Cash Trail

Johnny Cash Trail

Lembi Dr

lnwood Rd

Coloma St

Dean Way

Persifer 5t

BidwellSt

Class lllB Bicycle Boulevard 0.54

Class lllB Bicycle Boulevard 0.60

Low $157,535

Low $174,865

Sibley St

E Natoma St

E Natoma St

Randall Dr

Folsom Middle
School

Empire Ranch Rd

Path

Path

Halidon Way

Path

McAdoo Dr

Path

Grover Rd

Russi Rd

Willow Creek
Trail

Stafford St

Briggs Ranch Dr

Oak Pkwy Trail

Flower Dr

Flower Dr

Path

Owl Meadow St

lron Point Rd

Walden Dr

Knopfler Cir

Path

lron Point Rd

McAdoo Dr

Grover Rd

Jedediah Smith
Memorial Trail

Class lllB

Class lllB

Class lllB

Class lllB

Class lllB

Class lllB

Class lllB

Class lllB

Class lllB

Class lllB

Bicycle

Bicycle

Bicycle

Bicycle

Bicycle

Bicycle

Bicycle

Bicycle

Bicycle

Bicycle

Boulevard

Boulevard

Boulevard

Boulevard

Boulevard

Boulevard

Boulevard

Boulevard

Boulevard

Boulevard

$'100,205

$101,515

$51298s

$2s6,62s

$233,62s

$179,820

$283,570

$32,020

$88,22s

$127,780

$159,895

$33,99s

$318,655

$188,515

$1 33,325

$ 153,205

$111,045

$154,150

Class lllB Bicycle Boulevard

Class lllB Bicycle Boulevard

Class lllB Bicycle Boulevard

Class lllB Bicycle Boulevard

Class lllB Bicycle Boulevard

Class lllB Bicycle Boulevard

Class lllB Bicycle Boulevard

Class lllB Bicycle Boulevard

0.3s

0.35

1.78

0.88

0.80

0.62

0.98

0.11

0.30

0.44

0.59

0.12

1.10

0.65

0.46

0.53

0.38

0.53

Low

Low

Low

Low

Low

Low

Low

Low

Low

Low

Low

Low

Low

Low

Low

Low

Low

Low

69 lmplementation i City of Folsom Active Transportation Plan

Page 399

06/14/2022 Item No.15.



Table 10 Priority Bikewoy Projects, continued

Length
(Miles)

Priority
Category

Planning Level

Cost EstimateProposed BikewayEndStartLocation

Glenn Dr

Placerville Rd

Empire Ranch Rd

New Folsom Area Plan Path

Mangini Pkwy

Rock Springs Ranch Dr

Sycamore Creek Way

Sycamore Creek Way

New Folsom Area Plan Path

New Folsom Area Plan Path

New Folsom Area Plan Path

New Folsom Area Plan Path

New Folsom Area Plan Path

Mangini Pkwy

Alder Creek Pkwy

Empire Ranch Connector

Russell Dr / Sundahl Dr

E BidwellSt

Mangini Pkwy

New Path (south
of Hwy 50)

Grand Prairie Rd

Placerville Rd

Mangini Pkwy

Grand Prairie Rd

Sycamore Creek
way

Sycamore Creek
way

Concelly Cir

Conelly Cir

New Roadway

New Roadway

Exising Class ll
(1000ft west of
Placerville Rd)

E BidwellSt

Empire Ranch
Trail

Broadstone
Pkwy

Wales Dr

White Rock Rd

White Rock Rd

New Road

Rock Springs
Ranch Dr

Gold Rush Dr

White Rock Rd

Rock Springs
Ranch Dr

White Rock Dr

White Rock Dr

Placerville Rd

New Roadway

New Roadway

Placerville Rd

Placerville Rd

Sundahl Dr

Class lllB Bicycle Boulevard

Class I Shared-Use Path

Class I Shared-Use Path

Class I Shared-Use Path

Class I Shared-Use Path

Class I Shared-Use Path

Class I Shared-Use Path

Class I Shared-Use Path

Class I Shared-Use Path

Class I Shared-Use Path

Class I Shared-Use Path

Class I Shared-Use Path

Class I Shared-Use Path

Class ll Bicycle Lane

Class ll Bicycle Lane

Class I Shared-Use Path

0.33

0.29

1.25

0.09

0.59

0.32

0.52

0.14

0.04

0.'16

0.22

0.32

0.49

o.24

0.56

0.09

Low

Low

Low

Low

Low

Low

Low

Low

Low $264,045

$95,02s

$5s5,895

$2,460,550

$3,050,180

$1 75,085

$1,154,390

$633,835

$1,015,065

$85,815

$312,875

$430,525

$633,900

$964,510

$412,140

$'178,095

Low

Low

Low

Low

Low

Low

Low

Class lllB Bicycle Boulevard 1.08 Low $312,985Path

Cityof FolsomActiveTransportation Plan j lmplementation i 70

Page 400

06/14/2022 Item No.15.



Tabfe 10 Priority Bikeway Projects, continued

Length
(Miles)

Priority
Category

Planning Level
Cost EstimateProposed BikewayEndStartLocation

New Path - Nisenan
Community Park

Humbug Creek Trail
Connector

Aldworth Way / Chadwick Way

Ainsworth Way / Keller Cir /
Bloomfield Way

Harvest Loop / Bowen Dr

Big Valley Rd

Bittercreek Dr / Big Valley Rd

Elderberry Cir

Humbug Creek Dr

Chaffin Ct - Brown Duvall Ln -
Teceira Way

Glenn Station Connector Path

Prairie City Rd

Oak Avenue Pkwy

Rowberry Dr

Wildland Way

Empire Ranch
Trail

Charlemont Pl

Humbug Willow
Creek Trail

N Lexington Dr

Humbug Willow
Creek Trail

Blue Ravine Rd

Willow Creek Dr

Blue Ravine Rd

lron Point Rd

Placerville Rd

Sundahl Dr

Humbug Willow
Creek Trail

N Lexington Dr

Humbug Willow
Creek Trail

Hazel McFarland
Pa rk

Bittercreek Dr

Blue Ravine Rd

Humbug Creek
Dr

Parkway Dr

Riley 5t

New
Development

New
Development

Amber Grove Ct

Class I Shared-Use Path

Class I Shared-Use Path

Class lllB Bicycle Boulevard

Class lllB Bicycle Boulevard

Class lllB Bicycle Boulevard

Class lllB Bicycle Boulevard

Class lllB Bicycle Boulevard

Class lllB Bicycle Boulevard

Class lllB Bicycle Boulevard

Class lllB Bicycle Boulevard

Class llB Buffered Bicycle
Lane

Class ll Bicycle Lane

Class IIB Buffered Bicycle
Lane

Class I Shared-Use Path

0.31

0.08

0.22

0.28

0.50

0.36

0.81

0.14

Low

Low

Low

Low

Low

Low $607,345

Low $162,190

Low $63,675

Low $81,995

Low $146,210

0.42

0.94

$104,17s

$235,020

$41,795

$121,865

$272,280

Humbug Creek Ct

Humbug Willow
Creek Trail

American River
Trail

Hwy 50 Off Ramp White Rock Rd

lron Point Rd

Folsom Blvd Class I Shared-Use Path 0.23

2.16

0.63

o.37

Low $443,710

Low $342,555

Low $463,870

Low $107,960

71 i lmplementation I City of Folsom Active Transportation Plan

0.17 Low $336,4-/O

Page 401

06/14/2022 Item No.15.



Table 10 Priority Bikewoy Projects, continued

Length
(Miles)

Priority
Category

Planning Level
Cost EstimateProposed BikewayEndStartLocation

New Folsom Area Plan Path

New Folsom Area Plan Path

New Folsom Area Plan Path

New Folsom Area Plan Path

New Folsom Area Plan Path

New Folsom Area Plan Path

New Folsom Area Plan Path

New Folsom Area Plan Path

New Folsom Area Plan Path

New Folsom Area Plan Path

New Folsom Area Plan Path

New Folsom Area Plan Path

New Folsom Area Plan Path

Placerville Rd
(north)

New Folsom Area
Plan Path

New Folsom Area
Plan Path

New Folsom Area
Plan Path

Sparrow Dr

White Rock Rd

Placerville Rd
(south)

New Folsom Area
Plan Path

New Folsom Area
Plan Path

White Rock Rd

Class I Shared-Use Path

Class I Shared-Use Path

Class I Shared-Use Path

Class I Shared-Use Path

0.78

1.14

o.41

1.19

0.22

0.48

Low

Low

Low 51,517,760

Low $2,222,435

Low $792,460

Low $2,333,560

Hummingbird Cir

New Folsom Area
Plan Path

White Rock Rd

New Folsom Area
Plan Path

New Folsom Area
Plan Path

New Folsom Area
Plan Path

New Folsom Area
Plan Path

New Folsom Area
Plan Path

New Folsom Area
Plan Path

New Folsom Area
Plan Path

Class I Shared-Use Path

Class I Shared-Use Path

Class I Shared-Use Path

Class I Shared-Use Path

Class I Shared-Use Path

Class I Shared-Use Path

Class I Shared-Use Path

Class I Shared-Use Path

Class I Shared-Use Path

Class I Shared-Use Path

$430,505

$937,665

New Folsom Area
Plan Path

New Folsom Area
Plan Path

New Folsom Area
Plan Path

New Folsom Area
Plan Path

New Folsom Area
Plan Path

New Folsom Area
Plan Path

New Folsom Area
Plan Path

New Folsom Area
Plan Path

0.82 Low $1,604,705

1.42 Low $2,765,745

0.11 Low $208,77A

0.52 Low $1,015,335

0.76 Low $1,481,120

1.21 Low $2,362,025

0.65 Low $1,262,360

0.40 Low $784,465New Folsom Area Plan Path

City of Folsom Active Transportation Plan i lmplementation I 72

Page 402

06/14/2022 Item No.15.



Table 10 Priority Bikewoy Projects, continued

Length
(Miles)

Priority
Category

Planning Level
Cost EstimateProposed BikewayEndStartLocation

New Folsom Area Plan Path Prairie City Rd

New Folsom Area Plan Path

New Folsom Area Plan Path

New Folsom Area Plan Path

New Folsom Area Plan Path

New Folsom Area Plan Path

Folsom Blvd

Oak Ave

Owl Meadow Rd

Oak Parkway Trail

Willow Creek Trail

Willow Creek Trail

Oak Parkway Trail

Oak Ave Pkwy (west)

New Folsom Area
Plan Path

New Folsom Area
Plan Path

Prairie City Rd

New Folsom Area
Plan Path

New Folsom Area
Plan Path

South of Hwy 50

New Folsom Area
Plan Path

New Folsom Area
Plan Path

White Rock Rd

New Folsom Area
Plan Path

New Folsom Area
Plan Path

New Folsom Area
Plan Path

North of Hwy 50

Class I Shared-Use Path

Class I Shared-Use Path

Class I Shared-Use Path

Class I Shared-Use Path

Class I Shared-Use Path

Class I Shared-Use Path

Class llB Buffered Bicycle
Lane

Class I Shared-Use Path

Class lllB Bicycle Boulevard

Shared-Use Path
Enhancement

Shared-Use Path
Enhancement

Shared-Use Path

Enha ncement

Shared-Use Path
Enhancement

Class I Shared-Use Path

0.92

0.67

1.09

4.44

0.'18

0.58

o.29

0.09

0.37

0.72

0.72

0.66

0.36

Low

Low

Low $1,797,155

Low $1,312550

Low $2,128.090

Low $864,665

Low $342,870

Low $'1,131,190

Low $46,475

Low $167,420Santa Juanita Ave

Carpenter Hill Rd

Willow Creek Dr

Lew Howard Park
Trail

Porter Rd

Blue Ravine Rd

$1 08,230

$265,340

Riley St E Bidwell St

Parkshore Dr Near Glenn Dr

Oak Parkway
Trail

Willow Creek Dr

Low $266,105

Low $244,195

Low $131,755

Path south of
Blue Ravine Rd

Cummings Family
Pa rk

Low $218,665

73 i lmplementation i City of Folsom Active Transportation Plan

0.11

Page 403

06/14/2022 Item No.15.



Figure 16 High Priority
Sidewolks

Hight PriorityWalking
Network lmprovements
FOLSOM ATP

Pedestrian lmprovements

- 

Fill in Sidewalk Gaps
(Both Sides)

n Fill in Sidewalk Gaps
(One-side)

Proposed Shared use paths
r r r Class I Shared Use Path

Existing Bikeways
Class I Paved
Shared Use Path

Destinations + Boundaries

@ City Hall

O Community Center

O School

1ff) Light Rail Station

i::: City Boundary

n Park

z

=aJ
of

T

L

*

:l

Mangini
to

Staticin

t-]-t-]MtLES Ao o.s i:"'--- N

lm

:f,.
a

Data provided by the City of Folsom, SACOG

City of Folsom Active Transportation Plan I lmplementation | 74

Page 404

06/14/2022 Item No.15.



Figure 17 Medium
Priority Sidewolks

Medium Priority Walking
Network lmprovements
FOLSOM ATP

p

Pedestria n lmprovements

- 

Fill in Sidewalk Gaps
(Both Sides)

- 

Fillin Sidewalk Gaps
(One-side)

Proposed Shared use paths
! r r Class I Shared Use Path

Existing Bikeways
Class I Paved
Shared Use Path

Destinations + Boundaries

@ City Hall

O Community Center

O School

1@ Light RailStation

i:: j City Boundary

f Park

Folsom
Lake

funch

t
I

Sfatbn

I
I
I
I
I
I
I

'I

,
- I ...| - -'r-

J.'--;
Data provided by the City of Folsom, SACoG

75 | lmplementation I City of Folsom Active Transportation Plan

I_]-I-IMILES A
00.s1N

Page 405

06/14/2022 Item No.15.



Figure 18 Low Priority
Sidewolks

Low Priority Walking
Network lmprovements
FOLSOM ATP

Pedestrian lmprovements

- 

Fill in Sidewalk Gaps
(Both Sides)

- 

Fill in Sidewalk Gaps
(One-side)

Proposed Shared use paths
r r r Class I Shared Use Path

Existing Bikeways
Class I Paved
Shared Use Path

Destinations + Boundaries

@ City Hall

O Community Center

O School

G) Light RailStation

:::! City Boundary

n Park

#
i

\

I

"ErL-EXiNglQ[o_R.

". Folsomo
2.
o'u

I

: l?uss€/
Ranch
t

Lake

o
f

Ioz

'I

&il
'4

-J I

t tt^
I-l
,-,iijI

I
I
I
I

t,
i

.station
I.-l

I
I
I
I
I
t
]..r
I

,

I
I
I

. I 
__.-

T

-I'.-
t-]-t-lMtLES A
00.s1N

:sprqntz

-q

Folsm

Data provided by the City of Folsom, SACOG

City of Folsorn Active Transportation Plan I lmplementation | 75

Page 406

06/14/2022 Item No.15.



Table 11 Priority Pedestrion Network Projects

Side of
Street

Length
(Miles)

Priority
Category

Planning Level Cost Estimate

Sidewalk (6 ft) Sidewalk (10 ft)Project Name

Greenback Ln from Historic Truss Bridge to Scott St

Greenback Ln from American River Canyon Dr to Folsom-Auburn Rd

Riley 5t from Sutter St to E Bidwell 5t

Riley St from Natoma St to Persifer St

Folsom Blvd from West of lron Point Station to Blue Ravine Rd

Folsom Blvd from Highway 50 to West of lron Point Station

Folsom Blvd from Parkshore Dr to Glenn Dr

Blue Ravine Rd from School St to Flower Dr

Bidwell St from Orange Grove Way to Kelly Way

Bidwell St from Kelly Way to Decatur St

Bidwell St fom Decatur St to West of Riley 5t

E Bidwell 5t from Oak Ave Pkwy to lron Point Rd

Sibley St from Natoma St to North of Kelly Way

Sibley St from North of Kelly Way to South of Martin Ct

Sibley St from South of Martin Ct to North of Holley Ct

Sibley St from North of Holley Ct to Lembi Dr

Sibley St from South of Lembi Dr to Brilliance Pl

Sibley 5t from Brilliance Pl to Glenn Dr

Coloma 5t from Persifer St to Duchow Way - E Bidwell St Alley

Oak Avenue Pkwy from Baldwin Dam Rd to Grant Ln

Dean Way from Coloma St to Stafford St

Folsom-Auburn Rd from Oak Ave to Folsom Lake Crossing

School St from Dean Way to Market St

Both

Both

Both

One

One

Both

One

One

Both

One

Both

One

Both

One

Both

One

Both

One

One

Both

Both

Both

Both

0.19

o.72

0.44

0.07

0.82

0.42

0.33

0.54

0.13

0]2
0.15

1.60

0.18

0.09

0.03

0.06

0.17

0.16

0.17

0.85

0.26

1.36

0.19

High

High

High

High

High

High

High

High

High

High

High

High

High

High

High

High

High

High

High

High

High

High

High

$286,61 5

$1,068,570

9646,23s

$51,160

$604,300

$620,450

$245,135

$401,015

$1 BZ585

$85,720

$222,985

$1,185,075

$263,660

$65,830

$47,815

$40,760

$256,460

$1 1 Z8s0

$ 1 24,050

$1,251,805

$390,630

2014545

274325

$348,030

$1,297,545

$784,715

$62,125

$733,795

$753,405

$297,665

$486,945

$227,780

$104,090

$270,765

$'1,439,020

$320,160

579,93s

$58.065

$49,495

$311,415

$143,10s

$1s0,63s

$1,520,04s

$474,340

$2,446,235

$333,1 10

77 i lmplementation i City of Folsom Active Transportation Plan
Page 407

06/14/2022 Item No.15.



Table 11 Priority Pedestriqn Network Projects, continued

Side of
Street

Length
(Miles)

Priority
Category

Planning Level Cost Estimate

Sidewalk (6 ft) Sidewalk (10 ft)Project Name

E Natoma 5t from Prison Rd to Folsom Lake Crossing

Folsom Blvd from Blue Ravine Rd to Parkshore Dr

Green Valley Rd from Cummings Way to Sophia Pkwy

Glenn Dr from 330' east of Coolidge Dr to 950'west of Sibley St

Bidwell St from Folsom Blvd to West of Orange Grove Way

Bidwell St from West of Orange Grove Way to Orange Grove Way

Broadstone Pkwy from lron Point Rd to Clarksville Rd

Leidesdorff 5t from Folsom Blvd to Gold Lake Dr

Oakdale St from Bidwell St to South of Natoma St

Oakdale St/Mormon 5t from Natoma St to Sibley St

Mormon St from Sibley 5t to West of Reading St

Mormon St from West of Reading St to Decatur St

Mormon St from East of Wool St to East of Riley St

Figueroa St from Decatur St to the East End

Wool St from Figueroa 5t to Bidwell 5t

Decatur 5t from Mormon 5t to Mormon Street Natoma St Alley

Decatur St from Natoma Street Persifer St Alley to Bidwell St

Reading St from North End to Mormon Street Natoma St Alley

Persifer St from Sibley 5t to Riley St

Persifer St from Riley St to Bridge St

Persifer 5t from Coloma St to 300' East of Rumsey Way

Sibley St from Glen Dr to Levy Rd

American River Canyon Rd from Greenback Ln to Morning Dove Ln

One

One

Both

One

Both

One

One

Both

Both

Both

Both

One

One

Both

Both

One

Both

Both

Both

One

Both

One

One

1.16

0.32

1.06

0.67

0.22

0.03

0.38

0.20

0.20

n 1?

0.06

0.12

0.09

0.52

0.28

0.03

0,10

0.17

0.35

0.18

0.10

0.33

0.27

Medium

Medium

Medium

Medium

Medium

Medium

Medium

Medium

Medium

Medium

Medium

Medium

Medium

Medium

Medium

Medium

Medium

Medium

Medium

Medium

Medium

Medium

Medium

$860,295

$238,110

$1,561,140

$496,570

$320,585

$21,610

$283,500

$291 ,505

$301,900

$193,130

$82,815

$89,250

$6s,29s

$775,540

$409,230

$24,875

$153,900

$253,605

$524,08A

$130,385

$ 1 52,61 0

$242,830

$202,625

$1,044,645

$289,130

$1,895,670

$602,975

$389,280

$26,240

$344,250

$353,970

$366,s90

$234,520

$1 00,56s

$1 08,375

$79,290

$941,730

$496,925

$30,205

$1 86.875

$307,950

$636,38s

$158,325

$185,315

$294,860

$246,045

City of Folsom Active Transportation Plan ; lmplementation i 78

Page 408

06/14/2022 Item No.15.



Table 11 Priority Pedestrian Network Projects, continued

Side of
Street

Length
(Miles)

Planning Level Cost Estimate

Sidewalk (6 ft) Sidewalk (10 ft)
Priority

CategoryProject Name

Blue Ravine Rd from Riley 5t to E Bidwell St

lron Point Rd from Broadstone Pkwy to Palladio Pkwy

lron Point Rd from E Bidwell St to Cavitt Dr

Canal St from Scott St to Bridge St

Sutter St from East of Scott St to West End

Mormon St from Decatur 5t to East of Wool St

Mormon 5t from East of Riley St to lhe East End

Figueroa St from West End to Decatur 5t

Decatur 5t from Sutter St to Figueroa St

Decatur St from Figueroa St to Mormon St

Reading St from Natoma Street Persifer St Alley to South End

Scott St from Peddlers Ln to Mormon St

Parkshore Dr from 1300' West of Folsom Blvd to Extraspacestorage
Entra nce

Parkshore Dr from ExtraSpaceStorage Entrance to Folsom Blvd

Coloma St from Leidessdorff St to Mormon Street Natoma 5t Alley

Persifer St from 300' East of Rumsey Way to Rumsey Way Stafford St Alley

Santa Juanita Ave from Oak Avenue Pkwy to Northwest City Boundary

Oak Ave from Baldwin Dam Rd to Folsom Auburn Rd

Oak Avenue Pkwy from Katarina Ln to Lew Howard Park

E Bidwell St from Coloma 5t to Market 5t

Natoma 5t from Folsom Blvd to Sibley 5t

Blue Ravine Rd from Lake Forest Way to Folsom Blvd

One

One

One

Both

Both

Both

Both

One

One

Both

Both

Both

One

Both

Both

One

Both

Both

One

One

Both

One

0.58

0.37

0.19

0.26

0.23

0.13

0.31

0.15

o.o7

0.07

0.23

0.10

0.14

0.'10

0.24

0.07

1.00

o.43

0.22

0.20

0.13

0.21

Low

Low

Low

Low

Low

Low

Low

Low

Low

Low

Low

Low

Low

Low

Low

Low

Low

Low

Low

Low

Low

Low

$429,210

$271,710

$142,800

$379,890

$333,245

$185,150

$461,305

$1 18,985

$52,035

$102,475

$336,640

$1s3,885

$10'1,670

$154,935

$3s8,190

$49,940

$1,477,050

$632,180

$1s9,360

$145,255

$194,215

$158,270

$521,18s

$320,160

$173,395

$461,295

$404,650

$224,825

$560,155

$144,480

$63,',18s

$124,430

$408,775

$ 186.860

$123,455

$188,13s

$434,945

$60,640

$1,793,560

$767,645

$193,510

$1 76,380

$235,830

$192,185

79 i lmplementation i City of Folsom Active Transportation Plan
Page 409

06/14/2022 Item No.15.



Figure 19 High Priority Spot
lmprovements

High Priority Spot
lmprovements
FOLSOM ATP

Spot lmprovements
O Patfr / Major Road Signalized

O Patn / Major Road Unsignalized

I vajor Road Signalized

I Vta.lor Road Unsignalized

O Overcrossing / Undercrossing

Existing Bikeways
r Class I Shared Use Path

- 

Class ll Bicycle Lane

- 

Class llB Buffered Bicycle Lane

- 

Class lll Eicycle Route

- 

Class lV Separated Bikeway

Destinations + Boundaries

@ City Hall

O Community Center

O School

1fi) Light RailStation

i::: City Boundary

n Park

F

t

,:}

Susse/
Ranch

o

t

t
i
t.

A
N

ILES

fo
.sfat/on

Elementary-.n"

*rJti'
I 0.5 1

Ioz

r
I
I

I

Data provided by the City of Folsom, SACOG

City of Folsom Active Transportatioh Plan I lmplementation 80

Page 410

06/14/2022 Item No.15.



Figure 2O Medium Priority
Spot lmprovements

Medium Priority Spot
lmprovements
FOLSOM ATP

Spot lmprovements
O Pattr / Major Road Signalized

I Path / Major Road Unsignalized

O tvtajor Road Signalized

! n/ajor Road Unsignalized

'*fi Minor Road Unsignalized

I Overcrossing / Undercrossing

Existing Bikeways
r Class I Shared Use Path

- 

Class ll Bicycle Lane

- 

Class llB Buffered Bicycle Lane

e Class lll Bicycle Route

- 

Class lV Separated Bikeway

Destinations + Boundaries

@ City Hall

O Community Center

O School

O Light RailStation

:::i City Boundary

I Park

Paneh

Station
Elementary_

t
,-,Data provided by fhe City of Folsom, SACOG

81 | lmplementation I City of Folsom Active Transportation Plan

a\- I_]-I-IMILES A6 -o.s i.'--- N

Page 411

06/14/2022 Item No.15.



Figure 2'l Low Priority
Spot lmprovements

Low Priority Spot
lmprovements
FOLSOM ATP

Spot lmprovements
O Patfr / Major Road Signalized

O Patfr / Major Road Unsignalized

tJ vla.lor Road Signalized

I Valor Road Unsignalized

'$ Minor Road Unsignalized
(| Overcrossing I Undercrossing

Existing Bikeways

- 

Class I Shared Use Path

- 

Class ll Bicycle Lane

- 

Class llB Buffered Bicycle Lane

- 

Class lll Bicycle Route

e Class lV Separated Bikeway

Destinations + Boundaries

@ City Hall

O Community Center

O School

1f,) Light RailStation

::: j City Boundary

il Park

t'
I
I
I
I
I
t.
t,
I

f 'lr'
-lih

t

0.5 1

8us/
Ranch

l.

ILES ft

t-

Station
Hementary- )

Jr. i,

City of Folsom Active Transportation Flan I lmplementation | 82

Frilrcm.

oCommunity

I\
t

t

Data provided by the City of Folsom, SACOG

Page 412

06/14/2022 Item No.15.



Table 12 Priority Spot lmprovement Projects

Priority
Category

Planning Level
Cost Estimatelmprovement TypeCross Street BCross Street A

lron Point Rd

Folsom Blvd

Folsom Blvd

Folsom Blvd

lron Point Rd

Natoma St

Folsom-Auburn Rd

lron Point Rd

Glenn Dr

Reading St

Folsom Blvd

E Bidwell 5t

Blue Ravine Rd

Blue Ravine Rd

Blue Ravine Rd

Clarksville Rd

Clarksville Rd

E Natoma St

Folsom Blvd

Folsom Blvd

Folsom-Auburn Rd

lron Point Rd

Greenback Ln

Natoma St

Natoma St

Prairie City Rd

Natoma Station Dr

lron Point Rd

Glenn Dr

Serpa Way

Wales Dr

Berry Creek Dr

Grover Rd

Folsom RailTrail

Leidesdorf St

Natoma St

South of Hwy 50

Arrowsmith Dr

E BidwellSt

Naloma Station Dr

Walden Dr

Broadstone Pkwy

Ballou Cir

Blue Ravine Rd

Parkshore Dr

lnwood Rd

Natomas Ditch Patj

American River Canyon Dr

Sibley St

Reading 5t

Major Road Signalized

Path / Major Road Signalized

Path / Major Road Signalized

Overcrossing / Undercrossi ng

Major Road Signalized

Major Road Signalized

Major Road Unsignalized

Major Road Signalized

Path / Major Road Signalized

Major Road Unsignalized

Path / Major Road Signalized

Overcrossing / Undercrossing

Path / Major Road Unsignalized

Major Road Signalized

Major Road Unsignalized

Path / Major Road Signalized

Major Road Signalized

Major Road Signalized

Path / Major Road Signalized

Path / Major Road Signalized

Major Road Signalized

Path / Major Road Unsignalized

Path / Major Road Signalized

Major Road Signalized

Major Road Signalized

$105,625

$136,230

$'136,230

Further study required

$105,625

$105,525

$442,370

$105,625

$413,850

$442,370

$136,230

$3,500,000

$4'13,850

$10s,625

$442,370

$136,230

$1 05,625

$105,625

$136,230

$136,230

$1 05,625

$413,850

$136,230

$105,62s

$1 05,625

High

High

High

High

High

High

High

High

High

High

High

High

High

High

High

High

High

High

High

High

High

High

High

High

High

83 lmplementation i City of Folsom Active Transportation Plan

Page 413

06/14/2022 Item No.15.



Table 12 Priority Spot lmprovement Projects, continued

Priority
category

Planning Level
Cost Estimatelmprovement TypeCross Street BCross Street A

Natoma St

Natoma St

Natoma St

Natoma St

Glenn Dr

Hwy 50

lron Point Rd

E Bidwell St

E Bidwell St

E Natoma St

Riley 5t

Broadstone Pkwy

E Bidwell St

lron Point Rd

Oak Ave Pkwy

Riley 5t

Broadstone Pkwy

E Natoma St

Riley 5t

Blue Ravine Rd

Blue Ravine Rd

Empire Ranch Rd

Manseau Dr

Prairie City Rd

Scholar Way

Decatur St

Wool St

Scott St

Bridge St

Humbug Willow Creek Trail

Empire Ranch Rd (future)

Willard Dr

Coloma St

Mid-block

Bowen Dr

E Bidwell 5t

Cavitt Dr

Scholar Way

McAdoo Dr

Creekside Dr

Lembi Dr

Serpa Way

Haddington Dr

Teceira Way

Folsom Middle School

Folsom Middle School

Owl Meadow St

Arrowsmith Dr

American Aggregate Rd

Cavitt Dr

Major Road Signalized

Major Road Signalized

Major Road Signalized

Major Road Signalized

Path / Major Road Unsignalized

Overcrossing / Undercrossing

Major Road Signalized

Major Road Signalized

Major Road Unsignalized

Major Road Signalized

Major Road Unsignalized

Path / Major Road Signalized

Path i Major Road Signalized

Major Road Signalized

Major Road Signalized

Major Road Unsignalized

Path / Major Road Unsignalized

Path / Major Road Signalized

Major Road Unsignalized

Path / Major Road Signalized

Path / Major Road Unsignalized

Major Road Signalized

Minor Road Unsignalized

Major Road Signalized

Path / Major Road Unsignalized

$105,625

$1 05,625

$105,62s

$1 05,625

$413,850

Further study requlred

$1 05,625

$105,625

$442,370

$105,625

$442,370

$i 36,230

$136,230

$1 05,625

$1 0s,625

$442,370

$3220s0

$136,230

$442,370

$136,230

$413,8s0

$105,625

$1 00,130

$105,52s

$327,050

High

High

High

High

Medium

Medium

Medium

Medium

Medium

Medium

Medium

Medium

Medium

Medium

Medium

Medium

Medium

Medium

Medium

Medium

Medium

Medium

Medium

Medium

Medium

City of Folsom Active Transportation Plan I Recomendations i 84
Page 414

06/14/2022 Item No.15.



Table 12 Priority Spot lmprovement Projects, continued

Priority
Category

Planning Level
Cost Estimatelmprovement TypeCross Street BCross Street A

Blue Ravine Rd

Blue Ravine Rd

Broadstone Pkwy

Broadstone Pkwy

Broadstone Pkwy

Broadstone Pkwy

Densmore Way

E Bidwell St

E Bidwell 5t

E Bidwell 5t

E Bidwell St

E BidwellSt

E Natoma St

lngersoll Way

lron Point Rd

Placerville Rd

Riley St

Riley St

Rilley St

Russi Rd

E Natoma St

E Natoma St

E Natoma St

Empire Ranch Rd

lron Point Rd

Russi Rd

Plaza Dr

E BidwellSt

Scholar Way

Russell Dr

Stockman Cir

Path

Creekside Dr

lron Point Rd

Glenn Dr

Wales Dr

Power Center Dr

Cimmaron Cir

Parker Dr

Oak Ave Pkwy

Hwy 50

Timson Dr

Levy Rd

Hazelmere Dr

Amos P. Catlin Path

Briggs Ranch Rd

Cameron Dr

Randall Dr

Broadstone Pkwy

Palladio Pkwy

Path / Major Road Signalized

Major Road Signalized

Path / Major Road Signalized

Path / Major Road Unsignalized

Major Road Signalized

Major Road Signalized

Path / Minor Road

Major Road Signalized

Path / Major Road Signalized

Major Road Signalized

Major Road Signalized

Path / Major Road Signalized

Path / Major Road Unsignalized

Major Road Unsignalized

Major Road Signalized

Overcrossing / Undercrossing

Major Road Unsignalized

Major Road Unsignalized

Major Road Unsignalized

Path / Major Road Unsignalized

Path / Major Road Signalized

Major Road Unsignalized

Path / Major Road Unsignalized

Path / Major Road Signalized

Major Road Signalized

$136,230

$10s,625

$136,230

$322050

$1 05,62s

$105,625

$69,750

$1 os,62s

$136,230

$1 05.62s

$1 05,625

$136,230

$43,090

$442,370

$105,625

Further study required

$442,370

$442,370

$442,370

$41 3.850

$136,230

$442,370

$43,090

$136,230

$105,625

Low

Low

Low

Low

Low

Low

Low

Low

Low

Low

Low

Low

Low

Low

Low

Low

Low

Low

Low

Low

Low

Low

Low

Low

Low

85 i Recomendations i City of Folsom Active Transportation Plan

Page 415

06/14/2022 Item No.15.



Table 12 Priority Spot lmprovement Projects, continued

Planning Level
Cost Estimate

Priority
lmprovementCross Street BCross Street A e

lron Point Rd

lron Point Rd

McAdoo Dr

Oak Ave

Oak Ave Pkwy

Prairie City Rd

Folsom-Auburn Rd

E BidwellSt

Folsom-Auburn Rd

Montrose Dr

Oak Ave Pkwy

Bundrick Dr

E Natoma St

Turn Pike Dr

American River Canyon Dr

E Natoma 5t

E Natoma St

Empire Ranch Rd

Placerville Rd

Canyon Rim Dr

Oak Ave Pkwy

Oak Ave Pkwy

Outcropping Way

Marsh Hawk Dr

Path (Lew Howard Park)

Haverhill Dr

Willard Dr

Hillswood Dr

Montrose Dr

Folsom Lake Crossing

Marchant Dr

Baldwin Dam Rd

Rundgren Way

Golf Links Dr

Hopfield Dr

Crow Canyon Dr

Wesley Dr

Hancock Dr

Woodhead St

White Rock Rd

Blue Canyon Way

Blue Ravine Rd

Major Road Signalized

Path / Major Road Signalized

Minor Road Unsignalized

Path / Major Road Unsignalized

Major Road Signalized

Major Road Signalized

Major Road Unsignalized

Major Road Signalized

Major Road Signalized

Minor Road Unsignalized

Path / Major Road Unsignalized

Path / Minor Road

Major Road Signalized

Minor Road Unsignalized

Major Road Unsignalized

Major Road Unsignalized

Path / Major Road Unsignalized

Major Road Unsignalized

Path / Major Road Unsignalized

Path / Minor Road

Overcrossing / Undercrossing

Low

Low

Low

Low

Low

Low

Low

Low

Low

Low

Low

Low

Low

Low

Low

Low

Low

Low

Low

Low

Low

$1 05,62s

$136,230

$100,130

$413,850

$10s.625

$1 05,625

$442,37A

$1 05,625

$1 05,625

$100,130

$32Z0sO

$69,750

$10s,625

$100,130

$442,370

$442,370

$4'13,8s0

$442,370

$3220s0

$59,750

$2,500,000

City of Folsom Active Transportation Plan i | 86

Page 416

06/14/2022 Item No.15.



Where Do We Start?

The City of Folsom Active Transportation
Plan includes more than 300 projects that
will advance the safety and function of the
active transportation network, with about
65 projects identified as high priority.
Based on planning-level cost estimates, it
is expected to cost more than $88,000,000
to implement the high priority projects
outlined in the Plan.

While this is a significant investment
in the City's future, the City can build
momentum by advancing projects that
not only demonstrate the benefit of active
transportation but also leverage existing
projects, available funding sources, and
more.

Building on the prioritized project list
presented in the previous section, the
following projects are recommended for
the first phase of ATP implementation.
These projects are included in the first
phase for a range of reasons, including
active project grant applications, alignment
with ongoing development, and more.

Additional strategies for project
implementation can be found beginning on
page 91 and should be considered not only
for the projects listed here but also for
future project phases to advance the ATP.

I

87 i City of Folsom Active Transportation Plan
Page 417

06/14/2022 Item No.15.



Table 13 Phase One Bikeway Projects

Length
(miles)

Planning Level
Cost EstimateProposed BikewayEndStartLocation

Folsom Placerville Rail
Trail

New Trail (Parallel to
Hwy 50)

New Trail (Parallel to
Hwy 50)

lron Point Rd

Oak Avenue Pkwy

Slbley St

Willow Creek Trail

Serpa Ct

Prairie City Rd

Folsom Blvd

lron Point Rd

Glenn Dr

lron Point Rd

City Boundary

lron Point Rd / E Bidwell St

City Boundary

Willow Creek Dr

Figueroa 5t

Class I 5hared-Use Path

Class I Shared-Use Path

Class I Shared-Use Path

Class lV Separated Blkeway

Class lV Separated Bikeway

Class llB Buffered Bicycle Lane

0.97

1.26

2.54

6.25

2.52

0.86

$1,891,950

$2,470,750

*4,971,445

$12,861,795

$5,183,305

$132005

Table 14 Phase One Pedestrian Network Projects

Planning Level Cost Estimate

Sidewalk (6 ft) Sidewalk ('10 ft)Project Name Side of Street Length (Miles)

Riley St from Sutter 5t to E Bidwell 5t

Riley St from Natoma 5t to Persifer St

Oak Avenue Pkwy from Baldwin Dam Rd to Grant Ln

Dean Way from Coloma St to Stafford 5t

Folsom-Auburn Rd from Oak Ave to Folsom Lake Crossing

School St from Dean Way to Market St

Natoma St from Prison Rd to Folsom Lake Crossing

Oak Ave from Baldwin Dam Rd to Folsom Auburn Rd

E Bidwell St from Coloma St to Market St

Both

One

Both

Both

Both

Both

One

Both

One

0.44

o.o7

0.85

0.26

1.36

0.19

1.16

0.43

0.20

$646,235

$s1,160

$1.2s1,805

$390,630

$2,014,545

$274,325

$860,295

$632,180

$145,255

$784,715

$62,125

$1,520,045

$474,34A

$2,446,235

$333,110

s1,044,645

$767,645

$176,380

City of Folsom Active Transportation Plan i 88

Page 418

06/14/2022 Item No.15.



Table 15 Phase One Spot lmprovement Projects

Planning Level
Cost EstimatelmprovementCross Street BCross Street A e

Folsom Blvd

Folsom-Auburn Rd

E Bidwell St

Folsom Blvd

Folsom-Auburn Rd

Greenback Ln

Natoma St

Natoma St

Natoma St

Natoma St

Natoma 5t

Natoma St

Riley 5t

Riley 5t

Placerville Rd

Riley St

Oak Ave Pkwy

Placerville Rd

Oak Ave Pkwy

Glenn Dr

Berry Creek Dr

South of Hwy 50

Parkshore Dr

lnwood Rd

American River Canyon Dr

Sibley St

Reading St

Decatur St

Wool St

Scott St

Bridge St

E Bidwell 5l

Lembi Dr

Hwy 50

Timson Dr

Baldwin Dam Rd

White Rock Rd

Blue Ravine Rd

Overcrossi ng / U ndercrossing

Major Road Unsignalized

Overcrossing / Undercrossing

Trail/ Major Road Signalized

Major Road Signalized

Trail / Major Road Signalized

Major Road Signalized

Major Road Signalized

Major Road Signalized

Major Road Signalized

Major Road Signalized

Major Road Signalized

Major Road Unsignalized

Major Road Unsignalized

Overcrossing / Undercrossing

Major Road Unsignalized

Trail / Major Road Unsignalized

Trail/ Major Road Unsignalized

Overcrossing / Undercrossing

Further study required

$442,370

$3,500,000

$136,230

$105,625

$136,230

$105,625

$1 05,625

$105,625

$1'a5,625

$105,625

$1 05,625

$442,370

5442,370

Further study required

$44237A

$327,050

$327,050

$2,500,000

89 i City of Folsom Active Transportation Plan
Page 419

06/14/2022 Item No.15.



Figure 23 Phase Ane Projects

Phase One Projects
FOLSOM ATP

Phase One Projects

O spot Improvement
rrr ProposedBikeway

- 

Pedestrian lmprovement

Destinations + Boundaries

@ city Hal

O community center

O School

(l Light Rail station

L--'---l city Boundary

ffi P"tt

I .--
t

:.-"il FN"ei
Hills .

Chan

ll

- Ii

'.Sprcntz .. f,I

q
1O,o
'1.

:--
lx

(t
m,f'4.
t Del Lago

il

"3^t
'>at.

,rn r't
-***

o
cAt-..

':^

Sr
.Q,

'8r6se/
.Ranch

J.
0
oz tA

N il t[-]-l-lvtes
o o.5 'l

Data Frovided by the City
of Folsom, 5ACOG.

J-.

--

o
I

t
.t

t-

t.

Mangini

Station

Elemntarvo-

I
I
I

'-lr, '

City of Folsorn Active Transportation Plan I I 90

Page 420

06/14/2022 Item No.15.



Implementation Strateg;r

Project implementation requires a

deliberate strategy and exploration of
innovative approaches. With limited
resources and high demand for
improvements, the city should
coordinate with relevant departments
and partners to identify opportunities for
project delivery. The strategies explored
below are opportunities for the city
to support the implementation of the
ATP's programs, recommended project
improvements, and goals and policies over
time.

cAPTTAL PROJECTS

lnclude the projects and priorities of the
ATP in the annual Capital lmprovement
Plan (ClP). ldentify additional opportunities
for coordination among projects in the CIP

that both advance the ATP and the city's
Public Works and Parks and Recreation
Departments' Cl P goals.

tDENTtFY QUTCK BUTLD PROJECTS

Quick build refers to projects that are
implemented using relatively low-cost
materials compared to long-term capital
projects. Quick build projects are not
only faster and less costly to implement,

they also create an opportunity to
pilot a project design or treatment for
community feedback and observation.
Where feasible, the City of Folsom should
identify specific network improvements or
packaged improvements that can advance
on an accelerated timeline through quick
build implementation. The ATP project
list provides the blueprint for a more
balanced transportation network but
also includes a large price tag for system-
wide implementation. Quick build tactics
can advance basic design elements of a
project to provide immediate relief from
a safety, comfort, or access issue. The city
can demonstrate visible "early wins" and
build support for increased investments in

projects proposed in this Plan. Quick build
projects also allow the city to be more
responsive to communities including the
workforce population that may have faced
historic disinvestment and often face the
greatest risk when traveling. This approach
helps address the urgency around needed
improvements while also providing a

mechanism to gather feedback from the
community impacted by the improvement.

FLEXIBLE PROJECT DELIVERY

The City of Folsom will need to work
internally and across city departments to
find flexibility within any existing processes
and how projects are implemented.
Remaining flexible will help reduce hurdles
typically faced in project delivery and
streamline decision-making.

The city will need to continue to develop
flexible approaches to project delivery and
not exactly how projects are prioritized in
the Plan. Recommended ATP projects will
require ongoing evaluation and pivoting
within an annual work plan and project
development.

CROSS DEPARTMENT
OPPORTUNITIES

lnterdepartmental city staff coordination
is key to the success of the ATP project
implementation. Aligning with existing or
future projects across city departments
will ensure that there is a shared
understanding that ATP project delivery is

a priority across the city. Aligning across
city departments is also an opportunity
to share the need for the proposed
improvements and how all the city's
networks interact.

O

91 i City of Folsom Active Transportation Plan

Page 421

06/14/2022 Item No.15.



FUNDING STRATEGY

It is crucial for the city to identify and
secure funding for programs and
infrastructure projects to advance the
goals established in this Plan. A variety
of sources exist to fund bicycle and
pedestrian infrastructure programs,
projects, and studies. These sources
include local, regional, state, and federal
funding opportu nities.

ENGAGING WITH THE ACTIVE
TRANSPORTATION PLAN AS
A LIVING DOCUMENT

The ATP describes the many ways that the
City of Folsom and its mobility context are
changing over time. Many factors influence
both where people live and work as well
as h':w they move around Folsom, and the
projects outlined in this Plan reflect what
we know about these conditions today.
As conditions change, the city should
review projects periodically, considering
new needs, the impact of implemented

projects, and available funding. The city
should evaluate the ATP project list every
five years and update as needed. Further,
it is recommended that the city develop a
public input tool and process for residents
to submit project ideas. ln all cases,
revisions to the project list should further
the ATP's goals and objectives.

City of Folsom Active Transportation Plan ie2
Page 422

06/14/2022 Item No.15.



Funding Sources

The following section highlights the various
funding sources that can be used to
implement the city's bicycle and pedestrian
infrastructure projects, programs, and
studies. The funding opportunities include
competitive grants, im pact fee/assessment
district strategies, and formula-based
funding methods.

LOCAL AND REGIONAL FUNDING

Sacra mento Tra nsportation
Authority (STA) Measure A

This funding source is derived from a

half-cent sales tax imposed in Sacramento
County, administered by STA, and
distributed to incorporated cities and
unincorporated Sacramento County to
fund specific transportation maintenance
and projects. Measure A included three
ongoing programs: Traffic Safety, Bicycle/
Pedestrian Safety, and Maintenance funds
Additionally, there is a capital component
to help fund large capital improvement
projects identified in the Countywide
Transportation Expenditure Plan.

Funds are programmed by STA.

Sacramento Area Council
of Government (SACOG)

Regional Program

SACOG's Regional Program funds cost-
effective transportation projects that
advance the goals established in SACOG's
Metropolitan Transportation Plan/
Sustainable Com munities Strategy (MTP/
SCS). These goals include decreasing
vehicle miles traveled, increasing the
number of bicycle and pedestrian trips,
and reducing greenhouse gas emissions,
among others. The Regional program will
fund projects identified explicitly in the
MTP/SCS or lump-sum category projects,
such as "Bike/Ped" or "Capacity" projects.
The program seeks to promote effective
and efficient use of limited state and
federal resources to develop and maintain
the regional transportation network.

Funds are programmed by SACOG.

Transportation Development Act
(TDA) Article 3

TDA is administered locally by the
Sacramento Area Council of Governments
(SACOG). This act allocated federal funding
toward transit and transportation projects,
including bicycle and pedestrian facilities.
2% of the funding allocated to Sacramento
County is designated for bicycle and
pedestrian projects under the TDA Local
Transportation Fund (LTF).

Funds are programmed by SACOG.

Sustainable Transportation Equity
Project (STEP)

The Sustainable Transportation Equity
Project (STEP) is a grant program that
will provide safe, environmentally
sustainable, accessible, and affordable
transportation options to low-income
communities and communities of color.
STEP applicants can either apply for
either a Planning and Capacity Building
grant or an lmplementation Grant. The
lmplementation grant program will help
fund the construction of new pedestrian,
bicycle, and complete streets facilities.

Funds are programmed by the California
Air Resources Board (CARB).

I

93 I City of Folsom Active Transportation Plan
Page 423

06/14/2022 Item No.15.



New Development
or Redevelop ment/Rehabil itation

Future new development and
redevelopment projects including new
road construction, resurfacing, and
construction projects, are one method of
providing pedestrian improvements and
bike facilities. To ensure that pedestrian
and bicycle improvements are included
in these projects, the review process
must include an individual (designated
active transportation coordinator) or
group (bicycle and pedestrian advisory
committee) to monitor the process.

Funds are programmed by Sacramento
Cou nty.

Assessment Districts

Different types of assessment districts
can be used to fund the construction and
maintenance of bikeway facilities. Examples
include Mello-Roos Community Facility
Districts, lnfrastructure Financing Districts
(SB 308), Open Space Districts, or Lighting
and Landscape Districts. These types of
districts have specific requirements relating
to the establishment and use of funds.

Funds are programmed by Sacramento
County.

IMPACT FEES

The Sacramento County Transportation
Development Fee/Transportation lmpact
Fee Program (SCTDF/TlF)funds the
construction of roadway and transit
improvements needed to accommodate
traffic and transit ridership generated
by new land development allowed by
the County General Plan and land use
zoning through development impact fees.
Assessing such fees is also a condition of
receiving Measure'A" Transportation Sales
Tax allocations. The County should ensure
that planning policies consider bicycle
and pedestrian planning, design, and
construction costs to be an eligible use of
these fees.

Funds are programmed by Sacramento
County.

SACOG Active Transportation
Program

SACOG's Active Tra nsportation
Program (ATP) funds infrastructure and
programmatic projects that support the
program goals of shifting trips to walking
and bicycling, reducing greenhouse gas
emissions, and improving public health.
Competitive application cycles occur every

one to two years, typically in the spring
or early summer. Eligible projects include
the construction of bicycling and walking
facilities, safe routes to school projects,
new or expanded programmatic activities,
or projects that include a combination
of infrastructure and non-infrastructure
components. Projects not funded through
the state program (described in the
next section) are eligible for regional
consideration.

Funds are programmed by SACOG.

SACOG Community Design
Funding Program

The Community Design Funding Program
provides funding to local jurisdictions
to build placemaking projects. Projects
that implement any of the seven SACOG
Blueprint Principles are eligible for funding
'l) housing options 2) transportation
options; 3) infill development; 4) mixed
land uses; 5) compact developmenU 6)
preservation of natural resources, and 7)
quality design.

Funds are programmed by SACOG.

City of Folsom Active Transportation Plan 94

Page 424

06/14/2022 Item No.15.



J

Page 425

06/14/2022 Item No.15.



SACOG Transportation Demand
Management (TDM) Program

SACOG's TDM Program aims to reduce
vehicle trips and vehicle miles traveled
using a variety of programs, services,
infrastructure projects, travel strategies,
and policies to change travel behavior.
SACOG periodically offers TDM-focused
grant opportunities to fund infrastructure
and program projects that work towards
TDM program goals. These include
traditional grants, mini-grants, and
innovations grants.

Funds are programmed by SACOG

ACOG lnnovative Mobility Program

The lnnovative Mobility Program designs
and launches projects and programs
that increase transportation options and
reduce vehicle miles traveled (VMT) to
make options like biking, walking, and
taking transit the easy choice for all types
of trips. The program has four goals:
1) reduce VMT and vehicle emissions,
2) leverage new technologies and
partnerships, 3) increase access to existing
transit and micromobility services, 4)

inform the Metropolitan Transportation
Plan/Sustainable Commu nities Strategy
(MTP/SCS), and 5) support policies that
increase access and benefit underserved
communities.

Funds are programmed by SACOG

STATF AND FEDERAL FUNDING

CA Federal Land Access Program
(FLAP)

The Federal Land Access Program offers
fu nding for transportation projects,
including bicycle and pedestrian
infrastructure, that improve access to,
from, and within Federal Lands.

Funds are programmed by Caltrans, the
FHWA, and a representative from a state
political subdivision.

California Active Transportation
Program

California's Active Transportation
Program (ATP) funds infrastructure and
programmatic projects that support the
program goals of shifting trips to walking
and bicycling, reducing greenhouse gas
emissions, and improving public health.
Competitive application cycles occur every

one to two years, typically in the spring
or early summer. Eligible projects include
the construction of bicycling and walking
facilities, safe routes to school projects,
new or expanded programmatic activities,
or projects that include a combination
of infrastructure and non-infrastructure
components. Typically, no local match is
required for statewide funding, though
extra points are awarded to applicants
who identify matching funds.

Funds are programmed by the California
Transportation Commission (CTC).

Sustaina ble Transportation
Planning Grants

Caltrans Sustainable Transportation
Planning Grants are available to
communities for planning, study, and
design work to identify and evaluate
projects, including conducting outreach or
implementing pilot projects. Com munities
are typically required to provide an
11.47o/o local match, but staff time or
in-kind donations are eligible to be used
for the match provided the required
documentation is submitted.

Funds are programmed by Caltrans.

City of Folsom Active Transportation Plan 
I

96

Page 426

06/14/2022 Item No.15.



H ighway Safety I m provement
Program

Caltrans offers Highway Safety
lmprovement Program (HSIP) grants every
one to two years. Projects on any publicly
owned road or active transportation
facility are eligible, including bicycle
and pedestrian improvements. HSIP

focuses on projects that explicitly
address documented safety challenges
through proven countermeasures, are
implementation-ready, and demonstrate
cost-effective n ess.

Funds are programmed by Caltrans.

Solutions for Congested
Corridors Program

Funded by SB1, the Congested Corridors
Program strives to reduce congestion
in highly-traveled and congested roads
through performance improvements that
balance transportation improvements,
community impacts, and environmental
benefrts. This program can fund a wide
array of enhancements, including bicycle
facilities and pedestrian facilities. Eligible
projects must be detailed in an approved

corridor-focused planning document.
These projects must include aspects that
benefit all modes of transportation using
an array of strategies that can change
travel behavior, dedicate right-of-way for
bikes and transit, and reduce vehicle nriles
traveled.

Funds are programmed by the CTC.

Safe Streets And Roads for All (SS4A)

Program

Funded by the Bipartisan lnfrastructure
Law (BlL), the Safe Streets and Roads
for All program provides discretionary
funding over the next five years to local,
regional, and Tribal initiatives to prevent
roadway deaths and serious injuries.
Funding can be used to develop or update
a Comprehensive Safety Action Plan (ex:

Vision Zero Plan); conduct planning, design,
and development activities in support of
the Action PIan; and to carry out projects
to implement the Action Plan.

Funds are programmed by the U,S.

Department of Transportation.

Office of Traffic Safety

Under the Fixing America's Surface
Transportation (FAST) Act, five percent of
Section 405 funds address non-motorized
safety. These funds may be used for
law enforcement training related to
pedestrian and bicycle safety. enforcement
campaigns, and public education and
awareness campaigns.

Funds are programmed by the California
Office of Traffic Safety

Recreational Trails Program

The Recreational Trails Program helps
provide recreational paths for both
motorized and non-motorized path use.
Eligible products include path maintenance
and restoration, pathside and trailhead
facilities, equipment for maintenance, new
path construction, and more.

Funds are programmed by the California
Department of Parks and Recreation.

97 City of Folsom Active Transportation Plan

Page 427

06/14/2022 Item No.15.



Affordable Housing and Sustainable
Communities Program

The Affordable Housing and Sustainable
Communities Program (AHSC) funds land-
use, housing, transportation, and land
preservation projects that support infill
and compact development that reduces
greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions. Projects
must fall within three project area types:
transit-oriented development, integrated
connectivity project, or rural innovation
project areas. Fundable activities include
affordable housing developments,
sustainable transportation infrastructure,
transportation-related amenities, and
program costs.

Funds are programmed by the Strategic
Growth Council and implemented by the
Department of Housing and Community
Development.

Urban Greening Grants

Urban Greening Grants support the
development of green infrastructure
projects that reduce GHG emissions
and provide multiple benefits. Projects
must include one of three criteria, most
relevantly: reduce commute vehicle miles
traveled by constructing bicycle paths,
bicycle lanes, or pedestrian facilities that
provide safe routes for travel between
residences, workplaces, commercial
centers, and schools. Eligible projects
include green streets and alleyways and
non-motorized urban paths that provide
safe routes for travel between homes,
workplaces, commercial centers, and
schools.

Funds are programmed by the California
Natural Resources Agency

Habitat Conservation Fund

The Habitat Conservation Fund Program
supports projects that bring urban
residents into park and wildlife areas,
protect plant and animal species, and
acquire and develop wildlife corridors and
paths.

Funds are programmed by the California
Department of Parks and Recreation.

Statewide Park Program (SPP)

The Statewide Park Program solicits
competitive grants to fund new parks
and recreation opportunities in critically
underserved communities across
California. Funds can be used to create
and expand/renovate existing parks.
All projects must include at least one
"recreation feature," which includes non-
motorized paths. No match is required.

Funds are programmed by the California
Department of Parks and Recreation.

City of Folsom Active Transportation Plan i98
Page 428

06/14/2022 Item No.15.



Table 16 Funding Summory Table

Local and Regional Programs

Measure A (5TA)

SACOG Regional Program
(SACOG)

SACOG Active Tra nsportation
Program

Sustainable Transportation
Equity Project (CARB)

Transportation Develo pment
Act Article 3 (SACOG)

New Developments/Resurfacing
Projects (5acra-mento Cou nty)

Assessment District
(Sacramento County)

lmpact Fees (Sacramento
County)

SACOG Community Design
Funding Program

SACOG Transportation Demand
Management (TDM) Program

SACOG lnnovative Mobility
P m

Stat€wide and Federal Grants

Active Transportation Program
(CTC)

Sustainable Transportation
Planning Crants (Cal-trans)

H ighway Safety I mprovement
Program (Caltrans)

P/D/C

D/C

aa

P

It

Planning/
Design/

Construction

On-Street
Bikeways &
Sidewalks

Safe
Routes

Paths to School

Safe
Routes to
Transit

Crossings/
lntersections Programs StudiesFunding Source

t

a

a

aa

a

a

a

t

a

a

a

a

a

a

a

I

a

a

t

a

!

a

i

a

a

a

a

a

a

a

a

a

P/D/C

PID/C

PID/C

D/C

D/C

D/C

PlD/C

P/DIC

PID/C

P/D/C

D/C

a

a

a

I

99 | r City of Folsom Active Transportation Plan
Page 429

06/14/2022 Item No.15.



a

a

I

a

a

a

t

a

a

a

a

I

a

t

a

a

a

a

a

a

a

o

a

I

I

I

a

a

P/DIC

P/D/C

C

C

D/C

P/D/C

C

c

c

C

c

Planning/
Design/

Construction

On-Street
Bikeways &
Sidewalks

Safe
Routes

Paths to School

Safe
Routes to
Transit

Crossings/
lntersections Programs StudiesFunding Source

Solutions for Congested
Corridors (CTC)

Safe Streets And Roads for All
(SS4A) Program

Office of Traffic Safety (CA OTS)

Recreationa I Trails Program
(CA DPR)

Affordable Housing &
5ustainable Communities
(cA HCD)

Urban Greening Grants
(cA NRA)

Statewide Park Program
(cA DPR)

Trade Corridor Enhancement
Program (CTC)

USHUD Community
Development Block Grant
Program

USHUD Community
Development Block Grant
Program

Local Partnership Program (CTC)

Road Maintenance and
Rehabilitation Program

ntroller's Offi

Other State Funds

Local Partnership Program (CTC)

Road Maintenance and
Rehabilitation Program
(Controller's Office)

C

D/C

oIIa

a

a

City of Folsom Active Transportation Plan . r 100

Page 430

06/14/2022 Item No.15.



tia
Av
0
lt
Av
tu

Page 431

06/14/2022 Item No.15.



This page is intentionally left blank.

Page 432

06/14/2022 Item No.15.



. Ir! r-!J-r:\'!
I rJ I i'

t:f ri!.;rl'E Er ! ili *$

Folsom City Council
Staff rt

RECOMMEI\pATION / CITY COUNCIL ACTTON

The Public Works Department recommends that the City Council pass and adopt Resolution

No. 10868 - A Resolution of the City Council Determining that the Proposed Lease Renewal

is Exempt from the California Environmental Quality Act and Authorizing the City Manager

to Execute and Agreement to Renew aLand Lease with the Placerville & Sacramento Valley
Railroad for the Use of the Wye Property

BACKGROLIND / ISSUE

In November 2005, the City of Folsom entered into a land lease agreement with the Folsom, El
Dorado, Sacramento Historical Railroad Association, Inc. (FEDSHRA) to use approximately

137,000 square feet ofCity-owned lane located atthe corner of Bidwell Street and Oakdale Street

(commonly refened to as the "'Wye" property) for the storage of equipment and supplies

associated with their rail activities. The agreement was set to expire in 2009.

The original agreement has since been amended on four occasions:

Amendment 1 in November 2009, added an additional 11,000 square feet of Wye
property to the leased space and extended the term ofthe agreement another four years;

a

1

MEETING DATE: 61t412022

AGENDA SECTION: New Business

SUBJECT: Resolution No. 10868 - A Resolution of the City Council
Determining thatthe Proposed Lease Renewal is Exempt from the

California Environmental Quality Act and Authorizing the City
Manager to Execute and Agreement to Renew aLand Lease with
the Placerville & Sacramento Valley Railroad for the Use of the

Wye Property

F'ROM: Public Works Department

Page 433

06/14/2022 Item No.16.



Amendment 2 in December 2013, added the Station Master's house and grounds to the

lease, which would become FEDSHRA's responsibility to maintain; added a list of
equipment and rolling stock that FEDSHRA owned and maintained on the site, and

extended the term of the agreement another four years;

The amended lease agreement was renewed in 2017 to extend the terms of the lease

agreement for another four years, to Novembet 2021.
In October 2019 the lease agreement was assigned to the Placerville & Sacramento

Valley Railroad, Inc. (P&SVRR) and authorized P&SVRR to add several pieces of rail
equipment and a storage shed within the leased area; the term of the lease was not

extended, leaving the end of term at November 2021.

The purpose of this item is to renew the land lease agreement for an additional four year term,

retroactive to November 2\Zl,leaving the end of term at November 2025.

POLICY / RULE

Article III of the Folsom City Charter assigns the City Manager the authority to administer

contracts of which the City is a party.

ANALYSIS

P&SVRR utilizes the leased area for the storage and maintenance of several pieces of rolling
stock (rail vehicles) as well as the tools and supplies necessary for their maintenance and

operations. Through a separate license agreement with the Southern Pacific Transportation

Corridor Joint Powers Authority (SPTC JPA), P&SVRR is authofizedto operate on the portion

ofthe SPTC between the Wye property and the Sacramento/El Dorado County line.

FINAI\CIAL IMPACT

There would be no significant financial impact to the City of Folsom as a result of renewing

this land lease agreement.

ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW

This action is exempt from environmental review under the California Environmental Quality
Act (CEQA) under Class 1 (Existing Facilities), .

ATTACHMENTS

1. Resolution No. 10868 - A Resolution of the City Council Determining that the

Proposed Lease Renewal is Exempt from the California Environmental Quality Act
and Authorizingthe City Manager to Execute and Agreement to Renew a Land Lease

with the Placerville & Sacramento Valley Railroad for the Use of the Wye Property

2. Exhibit A - Map of Wye Property and vicinity

a

o

a

2

Page 434

06/14/2022 Item No.16.



Submitted,

Mark Rackovan, PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR

aJ

Page 435

06/14/2022 Item No.16.



Attachment 1

Resolution No. 10868

Page 436

06/14/2022 Item No.16.



RESOLUTION NO. 10868

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL DETERMINING THAT THE PROPOSED
LEASE RENEWAL IS EXEMPT FROM THE CALIFORNIA ENVIRONMENTAL
QUALITY ACT AND AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE AN

AGREEMENT TO RENEW A LAND LEASE WITH THE PLACERVILLE &
SACRAMENTO VALLEY RAILROAD FOR USE OF THE WYE PROPERTY

WHEREAS' the City of Folsom owns a property located at the corner of Bidwell Street

and Oakdale Street, commonly known as the Wye Property; and

WHEREAS, the Wye Property is a railroad junction and location of the former station

master's house; and

WHEREAS' the City of Folsom entered into a land lease agreement in 2005 with the

Folsom, El Dorado, Sacramento Historical Railroad Association (FEDSHRA) for the use of the

Wye Property for railroad activities; and

WHEREAS, the land lease agreement was amended and the term extended on three

occasions, with the third extension ending on November 2021; and

WHEREAS, in 2019, FEDSHRA requested that the land lease agreement be assigned to

the Placerville & Sacramento Valley Railroad with the term of the agreement remaining unchanged

as a result of that action; and

WHEREAS, the term of the renewal shall be four years, starting November 2021; and

WHEREAS, the lease of existing public structures and facilities involving negligible or
no expansion of existing or formal use is categorically exempt from the California Environmental

Qualrty Act (CEQA); and

WHEREAS, the agreement will be in a form acceptable to the City Attorney.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Folsom

that the proposed lease renewal is categorically exempt from CEQA pursuant to Section 15301 of
the CEQA Guidelines.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the City Manager is hereby authorized to execute an

agreement in a form acceptable to the City Attorney to renew a land lease with the Placerville &
Sacramento Valley Railroad for Use of the Wye Property.

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 14ft day of June,2022, by the following roll-call vote:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:

Resolution No. 10868
Page I of2

Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):

Page 437

06/14/2022 Item No.16.



ABSTAIN: Councilmember(s):

ATTEST:

Keni M. Howell, MAYOR

Christa Freemantle, CITY CLERK

Resolution No. 10868
Page2 of2 Page 438

06/14/2022 Item No.16.



Attachment 2

Exhibit A -Wye Property artd Vicinity

Page 439

06/14/2022 Item No.16.



EXHIBIT A - WYE PROPERW AND VICINIW

Page 440

06/14/2022 Item No.16.



i, :r,:1J,!i ,.. r,.t: 1:

Folsom Crty Council
Staff

RECOMMENDATION / COI]NCIL ACTION

It is recommended that the City Council adopt the following resolution:

Resolution No. 10870 - A Resolution of Consideration of the City Council of the City of
Folsom to Amend the Rate and Method of Apportionment for Improvement AreaNo. 6 within
the City of Folsom Community Facilities DistrictNo. 23 (Folsom Ranch) and Related Matters.

BACKGROUND / ISSUE

The Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan Public Facilities Financing Plan ("PFFP"), approved by

the City Council on January 28, 2014 via Resolution 9298, is an $877 million plan that

describes the backbone infrastructure and facility requirements, presents a comprehensive

financing strategy, and sets forth the estimated time horizon for the development of the Folsom

Plan Area ("FPA").

The City Council previously approved the Resolution of Formation (ResolutionNo. 10435) on

May 26,2020 to form Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) ("CFD No. 23"),

designate Improvement Area No. 6, authorize a special tax to finance the acquisition and

construction of certain public facilities and certain public services, authorize the issuance of
debt to finance the public facilities, and establish the appropriations limit and maximum
bonded indebtedness for Improvement Area No. 6.

1

MEETING DATE: 611412022

AGENDA SECTION: New Business

SUBJECT: ResolutionNo. 10870 - A Resolution of Consideration ofthe City
Council of the City of Folsom to Amend the Rate and Method of
Apportionment for Improvement Area No. 6 within the City of
Folsom Community Facilities DistrictNo. 23 (Folsom Ranch) and

Related Matters

FROM: Finance Department

Page 441

06/14/2022 Item No.17.



The landowners within Improvement AreaNo. 6 have requested to amend the Rate and Method

of Apportionment to adjust the maximum special tax rates based on the planned development

of property within Improvement Area No. 6. The proposed development plan for Improvement

Area No. 6 includes 9.46 acres of multi-family medium density, 9.26 acres of multi-family
high density, and 11.71 acres of non-residential use.

The attached resolution begins the proceedings to amend the Rate and Method of
Apportionment for Improvement Area No. 6. Resolution 10870 will consider the amended

Rate and Method of Apportionment for Improvement Area No. 6.

If the resolution is approved, a Public Hearing concerning the amendment of Improvement

AreaNo. 6 will be scheduled, along with an election of owners ofproperty within Improvement

AreaNo. 6 for July 26,2022.

POLICY / RULE

Chapter 5 of the Folsom Plan Area Public Facilities Financing Plan authorizes the formation

of CFDs to finance the construction, acquisition, and servicing of FPA backbone infrastructure

and public facilities

Section 2.5.3 of the First Amended and Restated Tier I Development Agreement authorizes

the formation of infrastructure CFDs.

Resolution No. 9282 - A Resolution of the City Council of the City of Folsom Approving

Goals and Policies for Community Facilities Districts

Mello-Roos Community Facilities Act of 1982

ANALYSIS

CFD No. 23 is structured as an extended-term CFD and will provide the necessary funding to

help fund all or a portion of the project's share of PFFP backbone infrastructure and facilities,

including related environmental mitigation obligations. The PFFP backbone infrastructure and

facilities will be financed using both bond proceeds and PAYGO special tax revenues. The

extended-term CFD structure is proposed to help to meet the challenge of high-cost

infrastructure and facilities while also aligning the timing of future funding availability with
the need for such funding.

The proposed amendment to the Rate and Method of Apportionment for Improvement Area

No. 6 will remove the maximum facilities special tax rates from the multi-family high density

land use and the non-residential land use. The maximum facilities special tax will be levied

upon the multi-family medium land use only. There is no single-family detached property

planned for development within Improvement AreaNo. 6. A comparison of the approved CFD

No. 23 Improvement AreaNo. 6 Rate and Method of Apportionment and the changes proposed

2
Page 442

06/14/2022 Item No.17.



withinthe Amended CFDNo. 23 ImprovementAreaNo. 6 Rate and Method ofApportionment
is included in Attachmerft2.

The special tax revenue generated from taxable parcels within Improvement Area No. 6 will
be comprised of a special tax to fund facilities and a special tax to fund services. The amended

2021122 maximum facilities special tax rates and maximum services special tax rates, for each

land use category, are provided in the table below:

Land Use Category

202U22
Maximum
Facilities

Special Tax
Rate

202U22
Maximum
Services

Special Tax
Rate Per

Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD
Zonins,

$o $o Unit

Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning $0 $o Unit

MMD Multi-Family Attached Property $30,600 $310 Acre

MHD Multi-Family Auached Property $0 $310 Acre

Non-Residential Property $0 $o Acre

The facilities special tax can be levied and collected through Fiscal Year 2079180. Each fiscal
year, commencing with Fiscal Year 2022123, the maximum facilities special tax rate will be

increased by 2% annually. The services special tax can be levied and collected in perpetuity
for Improvement Area No. 6. Each fiscal year, commencing with Fiscal Year 2022123, the
maximum services special taxruIe will be increased by the June annualized percentage change

of the Consumer Price Index for all Urban Consumers, for the San Francisco-Oakland-San
Jose area, notto exceed4o/o.

Upon passage of the resolution, a Public Hearing concerning the amendment of Improvement
AreaNo. 6 will be scheduled, along with an election of owners ofproperty within Improvement
Area No. 6, for July 26,2022.

FINANCIAL IMPACT

There is no direct General Fund impact on the City of Folsom. The Improvement Area No. 6
amendment and expenses are solely the responsibility of Improvement Area No. 6. The

General Fund is not impacted by the Improvement Area No. 6 Amended Rate and Method of
Apportionment.

J Page 443

06/14/2022 Item No.17.



ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW

An Initial Study and Mitigated Negative Declaration prepared for the Folsom Plan Area
Backbone Infrastructure Project were previously prepared for, and adopted by the City Council
on February 24, 2015, in accordance with the requirements of the California Environmental

Quality Act. Pursuant to CEQA Guidelines section 15378(c), the term "project" does not mean
each separate govemmental approval for an approved activity which may be subject to several
discretionary approvals by governmental agencies. Additionally, the creation of government
funding mechanisms which do not involve any commitment to any specific project which may
result in a potentially significant physical impact on the environment is not defined as a
o'project" under CEQA. CEQA Guidelines Section 15378(bX4) and 15061(b)(3).

ATTACHMENTS

1. Resolution No. 10870 - A Resolution of Consideration of the City Council of the City of
Folsom to Amend the Rate and Method of Apportionment for Improvement Area No. 6
within the City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) and
Related Matters

2. Redline Amendments to Rate and Method of Apportionment for City of Folsom
Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) Improvement Area 6

Submitted,

Tamagni
Finance Director

4 Page 444

06/14/2022 Item No.17.



ATTACHMENT 1

Page 445

06/14/2022 Item No.17.



RESOLUTION NO. 10870

A RESOLUTION OF CONSIDERATION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF
THE CITY OF FOLSOM TO AMNND THE RATE AND METHOD OF

APPORTIONMENT FOR IMPROVEMENT AREA NO. 6 WITHIN THE
CITY OF FOLSOM COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO.23

(FOLSOM RANCH), AND RELATED MATTERS

WHEREAS, the City Council (the "City Council") of the City of Folsom (the "City")
conducted proceedings under and pursuant to the terms and provisions of the "Mello-Roos
Community Facilities Act of 1982," being Chapter 2.5,Part 1, Division 2,Title 5 (beginning with
Section 53311) ofthe Government Code ofthe State of Califomia (the "Act"), among otherthings,
(i) to form a community facilities district within the City of Folsom, designated and known as

"City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)" (the "Community
Facilities District"), (ii) to designate Improvement Area No. 6 therein, (iii) to authorize a special

tax (the "special Tax") to finance the acquisition and construction of certain public facilities (the

"Facilities") and certain public services (the "Services"), (iv) to authorize the issuance of debt to
finance the Facilities, and (v) to establish the appropriations limit for Improvement Area No. 6 of
the Community Facilities District, all as set forth in the City Council's Resolution No. 10435 (the

"Resolution of Formation"), adopted on May 26,2020; and

WHEREAS, the Facilities and Services authorized to be financed through the Community
Facilities District are set forth in Exhibit A and Exhibit B to the Resolution of Formation,
respectively and

WHEREAS, the authorized rate and method of apportionment and manner of collection
of the special tax (the "RMA") for Improvement Area No. 6 of the Community Facilities District
is set forth in Exhibit D-6 to the Resolution of Formation; and

WHEREAS, at a special, mailed ballot election held on }i4ay 26,2020, at least two-thirds
of the votes eligible to be cast in such election were in favor of lelying the special tax in and for
the Community Facilities District pursuant to the RMA; and

WHEREAS, the owners of the land subject to the special tax within the Community
Facilities District (the "Owners") have requested that the authority to levy the special taxes be

amended to adjust the maximum special tax rates based on the planned development within
Improvement Area No. 6; and

WHEREAS, these proposed changes in the authority conferred upon the City Council by
the Community Facilities District are referred to herein as the "Proposed Amendments"; and

WHEREAS, there has been no change in the name of the Community Facilities District
since its formation, nor is any contemplated here; and

WHEREAS, there has been no change to the Facilities and Services authorized to be

financed by the Community Facilities District since the formation of the Community Facilities
District, nor is any contemplated here; and

Resolution No. 10870

Page 1 of33 Page 446

06/14/2022 Item No.17.



WHEREAS, the original boundaries of the Community Facilities District are shown on
the boundary map approved by Resolution No. 10414, adopted on April 14,2020, which map was
recorded in the official records of the County of Sacramento on April 20, 2020, in Book 130 of
Maps of Assessment and Community Facilities Districts atpage2T; and

WHEREAS, there has been no change to the boundaries of Improvement Area No. 6
within the Community Facilities District since the formation of the Community Facilities District,
nor is any contemplated here; and

WHERB,AS, no debt has been issued for Improvement Area No. 6 and therefore the
changes contemplated herein would not interfere with the timely retirement of any debt; and

WHEREAS, the City Council has determined that the public convenience and necessity
require the consideration of the Proposed Amendments; and

WHEREAS, the City Council is fully advised in this matter;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Folsom as

follows

Section 1. The City Council hereby specifically finds and declares that the actions
authorized hereby constitute and are with respect to public affairs of the City and that the
statements, findings and determinations of the City set forth above are true and correct and that
the consideration of the Proposed Amendments to the authority conferred upon the City Council
by the Community Facilities District is important to the public welfare of the residents of the City,
and involve significant public benefits.

Section 2. It is proposed to replace the Rate and Method of Apportionment as set forth
in Exhibit D-6 to the Resolution of Formation, with the Amended Rate and Method of
Apportionment set forth in Exhibit A attached hereto.

Section 3. The City Council hereby sets Tuesday, July 26,2022, at 6:30 p.m., or as

soon thereafter as the City Council may reach the matter, at the City Hall, 50 Natoma Street,
Folsom, CA 95630, as the time and place for a public hearing to be held by the City Council to
consider the Proposed Amendments and all other matters set forth in this resolution. At the public
hearing, any persons interested, including all taxpayers, property owners, and registered voters
within the Community Facilities District, may appear and be heard, and the testimony of all
interested persons or taxpayers for or against the adoption of the Proposed Amendments or on any
other matters set forth herein, will be heard and considered.

Section 4 Any protests to the proposals in this resolution may be made orally or in
writing by any interested persons or taxpayers, except that any protests pertaining to the regularity
or sufficiency of these proceedings must be in writing and must clearly set forth the irregularities
and defects to which objection is made. The City Council may waive any irregularities in the form
or content of any written protest and at the public hearing may correct minor defects in the
proceedings. All written protests not presented in person by the protester at the public hearing
must be filed with the City Clerk at or before the time fixed for the public hearing in order to be

Resolution No. 10870
Page 2 of 33

Page 447

06/14/2022 Item No.17.



received and considered. Any written protest may be withdrawn in writing at any time before the
conclusion of the public hearing.

Section 5. Written protests by a majority of the registered voters residing and

registered within the Community Facilities District (if at least six such voters so protest), or by the

owners of a majority of the land area within the Community Facilities District not exempt from
the special tax, will require suspension of these proceedings for at least one year. If such protests

are directed only against certain elements of the Proposed Amendments, only those elements need

be excluded from the proceedings.

Section 6. The public hearing may be continued from time to time, but shall be

completed within 30 days, except that if the City Council finds that the complexity of the
Community Facilities District or the need for public participation requires additional time, the
public hearing may be continued from time to time for a period not to exceed 6 months.

Section 7. At the public hearing, the City Council may modif,/ this resolution by
eliminating or modifring (by reducing the extent of) any of the Proposed Amendments.

Section 8. At the conclusion of the public hearing, the City Council may abandon these
proceedings or may, after passing upon all protests, determine to proceed with conducting special

mailed-ballot elections within the Community Facilities District to determine if the Proposed

Amendments should be adopted. If, at the conclusion of the public hearing, the City Council
determines to proceed with the elections, it expects that the proposed voting procedure will involve
an election by the landowners within the Community Facilities District voting in accordance with
the Act, as the City Council is informed that during the 90 days prior to the date set for the hearing,
there were no registered voters residing within the Community Facilities District. The City
Council will require this information to be confirmed before ordering the election.

Section 9. The City Clerk shall give notice of the time and place of the public hearing
by publishing a Notice of Public Hearing substantially in the form attached hereto as Exhibit B
once in a newspaper of general circulation published in the area of the Community Facilities
District, pursuant to section 6061 of the California Government Code, and publication must be

completed at least ten (10) days prior to the date set for such public hearing.

Resolution No. 10870
Page 3 of33 Page 448

06/14/2022 Item No.17.



Section 10. This Resolution shall take effect from and after its date of adoption.

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 14th day of June,2022,by the following roll-call vote:

AYES: Councilmember(s):

NOES: Councilmember(s):

ABSENT: Councilmember(s):

ABSTAIN: Councilmember(s):

Kerri M. Howell, MAYOR

ATTEST:

Christa Freemantle, CITY CLERK

Resolution No. 10870
Page 4 of33 Page 449

06/14/2022 Item No.17.



EXHIBIT A

AMENDED RATE AND METHOD OF APPORTIONMENT FOR

CITY OF FOLSOM

COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 23
(FOLSOM RANCHI

lmprovement Area No.6

A Special Tax, as hereinafter defined, shall be levied on each Assessor's Parcel of Taxable Property within

the City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) lmprovement Area No. 6 (CFD No.

23 146) and collected each Fiscal Year in an amount determined by the CFD No. 23 146 Administrator

throughtheapplicationoftheAmendedRateandMethodofApportionmentasdescribedbelow. Allof
the real property within CFD No. 23 lA6, unless exempted by law or by the provisions hereof, shall be

taxed for the purposes, to the extent and in the manner herein provided.

A. GENERAT DEFINITIONS

The terms hereinafter set forth have the following meaning

"Acre or Acreage" means the land area of an Assessor's Parcel as shown on County records, such as

an Assessor's Parcel Map and secured roll data, or if the land area is not shown on an Assessor's Parcel

Map, the land area shown on the applicable Large Lot Map, Small Lot Final Subdivision Map,

condominium plan, record of survey, or other recorded document creating or describing the parcel.

lf the preceding maps for a land area are not available, the Acreage of such land area may be

determined utilizing available spatial data and GlS. The square footage of an Assessor's Parcel is equal

to the Acreage of such parcel multiplied by 43,560.

"Act" means the Mello-Roos Community Facilities Act of L982, as amended, being Chapter 2.5,

Division 2 of Title 5 of the Government Code of the State of California.

"Assessor's Parcel" or "Pircel" means a lot or parcel shown in an Assessor's Parcel Map with an

assigned Assessor's Parcel number.

"Assessor's Parcel Map" means an official map of the County Assessor of the County designating lots

or parcels by an Assessor's Parcel number.

"Authorized Services" means the landscape corridor, enhanced open space and street light

maintenance, services, and expenses authorized to be financed by CFD No. 23 146.

"Bond Year" means a one year period beginning on September 2nd in each year and ending on

September l't in the following year, unless defined differently in the applicable lndenture.

"Bonds" means any bonds or other debt (as defined in the Act), whether in one or more series, issued

by CFD No. 23 146 under the Act.

"CFD No. 23 lA6" means City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area No. 6.

Resolution No. 10870
Page 5 of33

A-1
Page 450

06/14/2022 Item No.17.



"CFD No. 23 lA6 Administrator" means the City's Finance Director, or designee thereof, responsible
for determining the Facilities Special Tax Requirement, Services Special Tax Requirement and
providing for the levy and collection of the Special Taxes.

"City" means the City of Folsom.

"City Council" means the City Council of the City, acting as the legislative body of CFD No. 23 lA6.

"County" means the County of Sacramento

"Developed Property" means, for each Fiscal Year, all Taxable Property for which a building permit
for new construction was issued prior to June 30 of the previous Fiscal Year.

"Effective Tax Rate Evaluation" means an evaluation of the Total Effective Tax Rate of Residential
Property at the time of such evaluation. The Effective Tax Rate Evaluation will be based upon a

prepared Price Point Study to determine the Total Effective Tax Rate for Residential Property, based

upon the calculated Total Estimated Tax Burden.

"Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax" means the total maximum annual
Facilities Special Tax, as determined during the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation, in accordance with the
provisionsof Section C.2, which may be levied in any FiscalYearon anyAssessor's Parcelof Taxable
Property.

"Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rate" means the maximum annual
Facilities Special Tax rate for each land use category of Taxable Property that will be set forth in
Attachment C, following the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation, which may be levied in any Fiscal Year on
any Assessor's Parcel of Taxable Property.

"Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities Revenue" means, following the Effective Tax Rate

Evaluation, the total minimum amount of CFD No. 23 146 Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum
Facilities Special Tax, as adjusted annually by the Facilities Special Tax Escalation Factor after the Fiscal

Year in which the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation occurs, less any Effective Tax Rate Evaluation
Maximum Facilities SpecialTax amounts prepaid and permanently satisfied pursuant to Section K. The
Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities Revenue, based on Planned Development, is set
forth in Attachment D of this Amended Rate and Method of Apportionment.

"Exempt Property" means all Assessors' Parcels that are exempt from the Special Tax pursuant to
Section F. Assessor's Parcels exempt from the SpecialTax pursuant to Section 53340 of the Act shall
also be designated as Exempt Property.

"Facilities Administrative Expenses" means the actual or reasonably estimated costs directly related
to the administration of the Facilities Special Tax including, but not limited to, the following: the costs
of computing the Facilities Special Tax and preparing the annual Facilities Special Tax collection
schedules (whether by the City or designee thereof or both); the costs of collecting the Facilities
Special Taxes (whether by the County, the City, or otherwise); the costs of remitting the Facilities
SpecialTaxes to the Trustee; the costs of the Trustee (including its legal counsel) in the discharge of
the duties required of it under the lndenture; the costs to the City, CFD No. 23l.A6, or any designee

Resolution No. 10870

Page 6 of33
A-2

Page 451

06/14/2022 Item No.17.



thereof of complying with arbitrage rebate requirements or responding to questions from the IRS or
SEC pertaining to any Bonds or any audit of any Bonds by the SEC or IRS; the costs to the City, CFD No.

231A6, or any designee thereof of providing continuing disclosure regarding the Bonds pursuant to
applicable state or federal securities law; the costs associated with preparing Facilities Special Tax

disclosure statements and responding to public inquiries regarding the Facilities Special Taxes; the

costs of the City, CFD No. 23 lA6, or any designee thereof related to any appeal of the levy or

application of the Facilities Special Tax; the costs associated with the release of funds from an escrow

account, if any; and the costs associated with computing and preparing the Effective Tax Rate

Evaluation, including the Price Point Study. Facilities Administrative Expenses shall also include

amounts estimated or advanced by the City or CFD No. 23 lA6 for any other administrative purposes,

including, but not limited to, attorney's fees and other costs related to commencing and pursuing to
completion any foreclosure of delinquent Facilities Special Taxes.

"Facilities Special Tax" means the annual Special Tax to be levied in each Fiscal Year on each

Assessor's Parcel of Taxable Property to fund the Facilities Special Tax Requirement.

"Facilities Special Tax Escalation Factor" means two percent (2%) annually

"Facilities Special Tax Requirement" means that amount of SpecialTax revenue required in any Fiscal

Year for CFD No. 23 146 to: (i) Pay Facilities Administrative Expenses in an amount designated by the

City; (ii) pay annual debt service on all Outstanding Bonds due in the Bond Year beginning in such

Fiscal Year; (iii) pay other periodic costs on Outstanding Bonds, including but not limited to, credit
enhancement and rebate payments on Outstanding Bonds; (iv) pay any amounts required to establish

or replenish any reserve funds for all Outstanding Bonds in accordance with the lndenture; (v) pay for
reasonably anticipated delinquent Special Taxes based on the delinquency rate for Special Taxes

levied in the previous Fiscal Year and known upcoming delinquencies; and (vi) pay for Pay As You Go

Costs; less (vii) a credit for funds available to reduce the annual Facilities Special Tax levy as

determined by the CFD No. 23 146 Administrator pursuant to the lndenture.

"Facilities Special Tax Term" means the earlier of Fiscal Year 2O79-2080 or the Fiscal Year occurring
50 years following the Fiscal Year in which the first building permit was issued or the first series of
Bonds was issued within CFD No. 23 lA6.

"Fiscal Year" means the period starting July 1 and ending on the following June 30.

"lndenture" means the indenture, fiscal agent agreement, trust agreement, resolution or other
instrument pursuant to which Bonds are issued, as modified, amended and/or supplemented from
time to time, and any instrument replacing or supplementing the same.

"Large Lot Map" means a recorded subdivision map creating larger parcels by land use. The Large Lot

Map does not create individual lots for which building permits may be issued for single-family
Residential Units.

"Large Lot Property" means, for each FiscalYear, allTaxable Property for which a Large Lot Map was

recorded prior to June 30 of the previous Fiscal Year, excluding any portion(s) thereof classified as

Developed Property, Small Lot Final Map Property, or Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential
Property. Large Lot Property also means, for each Fiscal Year, all Taxable Property classified as Small

Lot Final Map Remainder Property as of June 30 of the previous Fiscal Year.

Resolution No. 10870

PageT of33
A-3

Page 452

06/14/2022 Item No.17.



"Maximum Facilities SpecialTax" means the total maximum annual Facilities SpecialTax, determined
in accordance with the provisions of Section C, which may be levied in any Fiscal Year on any Assessor's

Parcel of Taxable Property.

"Maximum Facilities SpecialTax Rate" means the maximum annual Facilities SpecialTax rate for each

land use category of Taxable Property, as shown in Attachment A, which may be levied in any Fiscal

Year on any Assessor's Parcel of Taxable Property.

"Maximum Services Special Tax" means the total maximum annual Services Special Tax, determined
in accordance with the provisions of Section D, which may be levied in any Fiscal Year on any
Assessor's Parcel of Taxable Property.

"Maximum Services SpecialTax Rate" means the maximum annual Services Special Tax rate for each

land use category of Taxable Property, as shown in Attachment A, which may be levied in any Fiscal

Year on any Assessor's Parcel of Taxable Property.

"Maximum Special Tax" means the total annual Maximum Facilities SpecialTax (or Effective Tax Rate

Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax) and Maximum Services Special Tax, determined in

accordance with the provisions of Section C and Section D, which may be levied in any FiscalYear on
any Assessor's Parcel of Taxable Property.

"Maximum Total Effective Tax Rate" means I.8O%o, unless the City determines, in its sole discretion,
that a higher Maximum Total Effective Tax Rate is appropriate.

'MHD Multi-Family Attached Property" means all Assessor's Parcels for which a building permit could
be issued for purposes of constructing one or more attached Residential Units per Assessor's Parcel

with a permitted density range of greater than 20 Residential Units per Acre and more fully described
in the Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan adopted on June 28,20LL and as amended by the City Council.
MHD Multi-Family Attached Property shall also include an Assessor's Parcel or that portion of an

Assessor's Parceldesignated as a Mixed Use Residential Parcel.

"Minimum Facilities Revenue" means the minimum amount of total CFD No. 23 146 Maximum
Facilities Special Tax, as adjusted annually by the Facilities Special Tax Escalation Factor, less any
Maximum Facilities Special Tax amounts prepaid and permanently satisfied pursuant to Section K. The

Minimum Facilities Revenue, based on Planned Development, is set forth in Attachment B of this
Amended Rate and Method of Apportionment.

"Mixed Use Residential Parcel" means a mixed use Assessor's Parcelthat is designated for residential
land use. lf the mixed use Assessor's Parcel contains a combination of residential land use and non-
residential land use, only that portion of an Assessor's Parcel designated for residential land use shall

be classified as a Mixed Use Residential Parcel and the remaining non-residential land use of the
Assessor's Parcel shall be classified as Non-Residential Property.

"MMD Multi-Family Attached Property" means all Assessor's Parcels for which a building permit
could be issued for purposes of constructing one or more attached Residential Units per Assessor's

Parcel with a permitted density range of 12-20 Residential Units per Acre and more fully described in
the Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan adopted on June 28,201L and as amended by the City Council.

Resolution No. 10870

Page 8 of33
A-4 Page 453

06/14/2022 Item No.17.



"Non-Residential Property" means, for each Fiscal Year, all Taxable Property for which a building
permit could be issued for purposes of constructing non-residential buildings.

"Open Space Property" means property within the boundaries of CFD No. 23 146 which (a) has been

designated with specific boundaries and acreage on a Small Lot Final Subdivision Map as open space,

or (b) is classified by the City zoning code or County Assessor as open space, or (c) has been irrevocably

offered for dedication as open space to the federal government, the State of California, the County,

the City, any other public agency, a private, non-profit organization, or (d) is encumbered by an

easement or other restriction required by the City limiting the use of such property to open space.

"Outstanding Bonds" means all Bonds, which remain outstanding as defined in the lndenture
pursuant to which such Bonds were issued.

"Pay as You Go Costs" means that portion of the Facilities Special Tax Requirement attributable to
the direct payment for the acquisition and/or construction of public improvements, which are

authorized to be financed by CFD No. 23 146.

"Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property" means an Assessor's Parcel of Taxable

Property zoned for multi-family or non-residential land use for which all discretionary entitlements
have been obtained, including without limitation, development plan review and improvement plan

approval, such that building permits may be issued without further approvals for the construction of
multi-family Residential Units or non-residential buildings within such Assessor's Parcel. The City shall

have sole discretion, based upon available development information, in classifying an Assessor's

Parcel as Permit Ready M u lti-Family/Non-Residentia I Property.

"Planned Development" means the planned number of Residential Units, MHD Multi-Family

Attached Property Acreage, MMD Multi-Family Attached Property Acreage, and Non-Residential

Property Acreage planned within CFD No. 23lA6, set forth in Attachment B or, following the Effective

Tax Rate Evaluation, Attachment D of this Amended Rate and Method of Apportionment, as amended

by the future recordation of all Large Lot Maps and Small Lot Final Subdivision Maps within CFD No.

23 rA6.

"Price Point Study" means an analysis, prepared by an independent firm, to verify the estimated

average sales price within each land use category of Residential Property given the project location

and current market conditions.

"Property Owner Association Property" means any property within the boundaries of CFD No. 23

146, which is (a) owned by a property owner association or (b) designated with specific boundaries

and Acreage on a Small Lot Final Subdivision Map as property owner association property. As used in

this definition, a property owner association includes any master or sub-association.

"Proportionately" means for Taxable Property that the ratio of the Facilities Special Tax levy to the

Maximum Facilities Special Tax (or Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax) and

the Services Special Tax levy to the Maximum Services Special Tax is equal for all Assessors' Parcels

within each classification (Developed Property, Single Family Final Map Property, Permit Ready Multi-
Family/Non-Residential Property, Large Lot Property, etc.) within CFD No. 23 146.

Resolution No. 10870
Page 9 of33

A-5 Page 454

06/14/2022 Item No.17.



"Public Property" means any propertywithin the boundaries of CFD No.23lA6, which (a) isowned
by a public agency, (b) has been irrevocably offered for dedication to a public agency, or (c) is

designated with specific boundaries and Acreage on a Small Lot Final Subdivision Map as property,

which will be owned by a public agency. For purposes of this definition, a public agency includes the
federal government, the State of California, the County, the City, or any other public agency.

"Residential Floor Area" means all of the square footage of living area within the perimeter of a

residential structure, not including any carport, walkway, garage, overhang, patio, enclosed patio, or
similar area. The determination of Residential Floor Area shall be made by the CFD No. 23 146

Administrator by reference to appropriate records kept by the City's building department. Residential

Floor Area for a residential structure will be based on the building permit(s) issued for such structure
prior to it being classified as Developed Property, and shall not change as a result of additions or
modifications made to such structure after such classification as Developed Property.

"Residential Lot" means an individual lot of land for which a building permit could be issued to
construct a Residential Unit,

"Residential Property" means, for each Fiscal Year, all Taxable Property for which a building permit
could be issued for purposes of constructing Residential Units, including Single-Family Detached

Property - SF/SFHD Zoning, Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning, MHD Multi-Family
Attached Property, and MMD Multi-Family Attached Property.

"Residential Unit" means a residential dwelling unit, not including guest quarters or "granny flats" as

allowed by the City zoning code.

"Services Administrative Expenses" means the actual or reasonably estimated costs directly related
to the administration of the Services Special Tax including, but not limited to, the following: the costs

of computing the Services Special Taxes and preparing the annual Services Special Tax collection
schedules (whether by the City or designee thereof or both); the costs of collecting the Services Special

Taxes (whether by the County, the City, or otherwise); the costs associated with preparing Special Tax

disclosure statements and responding to public inquiries regarding the Services Special Tax; and the
costs of the City, CFD No. 23 lA6, or any designee thereof related to any appeal of the levy or
application of the Services Special Tax. Services Administrative Expenses shall also include amounts
estimated or advanced by the City or CFD No. 23 146 for any other administrative purposes related to
the Services Special Tax.

"services SpecialTax" means the annual SpecialTax to be levied in each Fiscal Year on each Assessor's

Parcel of Taxable Property to fund the Services Special Tax Requirement.

"services Special Tax Escalation Factor" means the June annualized percentage change of the
Consumer Price lndex for all Urban Consumers, for the San Francisco-Oakland-San Jose area, not to
exceed four percent (4%).ln the event that the percentage change is negative, the Services Special

Tax Escalation Factor shall be equal to zero.

"services Special Tax Requirement" means the amount of Services Special Tax revenue required in

any Fiscal Year for CFD No. 23lAG to: (i) Pay Services Administrative Expenses in an amount designated

by the City; (ii) pay Authorized Services expenses; (iii) pay any amounts required to establish or
replenish any repair and contingency funds, capital improvement funds, or reserve funds related to

Resolution No. 10870
Page l0 of33

A-6
Page 455

06/14/2022 Item No.17.



the Authorized Services expenses; (iv) cover any shortfalls that exist if, in any Fiscal Year, the levy of
the Facilities Special Tax on each Assessor's Parcel of Taxable Property is insufficient to pay the
Facilities Special Tax Requirement in that Fiscal Year. Facilities SpecialTax Requirement shortfalls shall

not include Pay As You Go Costs, and (v) pay for reasonably anticipated delinquent Services Special

Taxes based on the delinquency rate for Services Special Taxes levied in the previous Fiscal Year; less

(vi) a credit for funds available to reduce the annual Services Special Tax levy as determined by the

CFD No. 23 lA6 Administrator.

"singfe-Family Detached Property - MLD Toning" means, for each Fiscal Year, all Taxable Property

for which a building permit could be issued for purposes of constructing one or more detached or
attached Residential Units with a permitted density range of 7-12 Residential Units per Acre and more

fully described in the Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan adopted on June 28,2OI'J, and as amended by

the City Council.

"single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning" means, for each Fiscal Year, all Taxable

Property for which a building permit could be issued for purposes of constructing one or more

Residential Units. Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning shall consist of either single-

family property with a permitted density range of 1-4 Residential Units per Acre or single-family high

density property with a permitted density range of 4-7 Residential Units per Acre, which is more fully

described in the Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan adopted on June 28,2OLt and as amended by the City

Council.

"special Tax" means the annual Facilities Special Tax and Services Special Tax to be levied in each

Fiscal Year on each Assessor's Parcel of Taxable Property to fund the Facilities Special Tax Requirement

and the Services Special Tax Requirement.

"Small Lot Final Map Property" means, for each Fiscal Year, all Taxable Property for which a Small Lot

Final Subdivision Map was recorded prior to June 30 of the previous Fiscal Year.

"Small Lot Final Map Remainder Property" means an Assessor's Parcel that is created from the
subdivision of Large Lot Property by the recordation of a Small Lot Final Subdivision Map that has not
yet been mapped for final development approval. Small Lot Final Map Remainder Property is that
portion of property for which the Small Lot Final Subdivision Map definition does not apply (i.e., does

not contain individual lots for which building permits may be issued for Residential Units without
further subdivision of such property). Each Fiscal Year, all Taxable Property classified as Small Lot Final

Map Remainder Property, as of June 30 of the previous Fiscal Year, will be considered Large Lot

Property.

"Small Lot Final Subdivision Map" means a subdivision of property created by recordation of a final

subdivision map, parcel map or lot line adjustment, approved by the City pursuant to the Subdivision

Map Act (California Government Code Section 66410 et seq.) or recordation of a condominium plan

pursuant to California Civil Code 1352, that creates individual lots for which building permits may be

issued for Residential Units without further subdivision of such property.

"State" means the State of California

"Taxable Property" means allof the Assessor's Parcels within the boundaries of CFD No. 23 lA6 that
are not exempt from the CFD No. 23 lA6 Special Tax pursuant to law or Section F below.

Resolution No. 10870
Page 11 of33

A-7
Page 456

06/14/2022 Item No.17.



"Total Effective Tax Rate" means the percentage of the Total Estimated Tax Burden as compared to
the estimated average sales price identified in the Price Point Study for each land use category of
Residential Property.

"Total Estimated Tax Burden" means the total amount of overlapping property taxes anticipated to
be levied upon a Residential Unit, based upon the estimated average sales price identified in the Price

Point Study and existing property tax rates for the current Fiscal Year. Existing property tax rates shall

reflect the actual property tax rates levied upon Taxable Property in the Fiscal Year that the Effective

Tax Rate Evaluation is completed.

"Trustee" means the entity appointed pursuant to an lndenture to act as the trustee, fiscal agent, or
paying agent or a combination thereof.

"Undeveloped Property" means, for each Fiscal Year, allTaxable Property not classified as Developed

Property, Small Lot Final Map Property, Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property, or Large

Lot Property.

B. ASSIGNMENT TO LAND USE CATEGORIES

Each Fiscal Year, using City and County records, City zoning information, and land use development
plans, all Assessor's Parcels within the boundaries of CFD No. 23 lA6 shall be designated as either
Taxable Property or Tax-Exempt Property.

All Taxable Property shall be further classified as Developed Property, Small Lot Final Map Property,

Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property, Large Lot Property, or Undeveloped Property
and shall be subject to the levy of the annual Special Tax determined pursuant to Sections C and D

below.

C. FACILITIES SPECIAL TAX

A Maximum Facilities Special Tax shall be assigned to all Taxable Property within CFD No. 23 lA6
according to the Maximum Facilities SpecialTax Rates set forth in Attachment A of this Amended Rate

and Method of Apportionment.

Once assigned, the sum of the total Maximum Facilities SpecialTax shall be equal to or greater than
the Minimum Facilities Revenue, unless adjusted by an Effective Tax Rate Evaluation as described

below. The Minimum Facilities Revenue for Fiscal Year 2O2'J.-2O22 is set forth in Attachment B of this
Amended Rate and Method of Apportionment.

On each July 1, commencing on July L,2022, the Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates and Minimum
Facilities Revenue shall be increased by the Facilities Special Tax Escalation Factor of the Maximum
Facilities Special Tax Rates and Minimum Facilities Revenue in effect for the previous Fiscal Year.

Resolution No. 10870

Page 12 of 33

A-8
Page 457

06/14/2022 Item No.17.



C.l. Future Assessor's Parcel Changes - Prior to an Effective Tax Rate Evaluation
The Maximum Facilities Special Tax shall be assigned to all future Assessor's Parcel(s) created
from a subdivision, lot line adjustment, or merger of one or more Assessor's Parcels so that the
revised sum of the total Maximum Facilities Special Tax revenue is not less than the Minimum
Facilities Revenue set forth in Attachment B of this Amended Rate and Method of
Apportionment.

Undeveloped Property Subdividing into Large Lot Property
When Undeveloped Property subdivides into Large Lot Property, the Maximum Facilities Special

Tax shall be calculated for all Taxable Property as if all of the Taxable Property was classified as

Developed Property. The expected Developed Property Maximum Facilities Special Tax for any

Large Lot Property and any remaining Undeveloped Property shall be based upon the Planned

Development for the Large Lot Property and remaining Undeveloped Property.

lf the sum of the totalexpected Developed Property Maximum Facilities SpecialTax generated

by all of the Taxable Property is greater than or equal to the Minimum Facilities Revenue, there
will be no further adjustments to the Developed Property, Small Lot Final Map Property and

Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates for
the Large Lot Property created from the Undeveloped Property subdivision.

lf the sum of the total expected Developed Property Maximum Facilities Special Tax is less than
the Minimum Facilities Revenue, the Developed Property, Small Lot Final Map Property and

Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property Maximum Facilities SpecialTax Rates shall

be Proportionately increased, on the Large Lot Property created from the Undeveloped Property
subdivision, until the sum of the total expected Developed Property Maximum Facilities Special

Tax is equalto the Minimum Facilities Revenue. Further, if the sum of the totalcurrent Maximum
Facilities Special Tax is less than the Minimum Facilities Revenue, the Maximum Facilities Special

Tax Rates for the Large Lot Property and any remaining Undeveloped Property created from the
Undeveloped Property subdivision shall be Proportionately increased until the sum of the total
current Maximum Facilities Special Tax is equal to the Minimum Facilities Revenue. Attachment
B of this Amended Rate and Method of Apportionment shall be updated to reflect any increases

to the Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates from the Undeveloped Property subdivision. The

Developed Property, Small Lot Final Map Property and Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-
Residential Property Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates shall not be adjusted for any Taxable

Property already classified as Developed Property, Small Lot Final Map Property or Permit Ready

M ulti-Fa mily/Non-Residentia I Property.

Large lot Property Subdividing into Small Lot Final Map Property and Permit Ready Multi-
Family/Non-Residential Property
When Large Lot Property subdivides into Small Lot Final Map Property or Permit Ready Multi-
Family/Non-Residential Property, the Maximum Facilities Special Tax shall be calculated for all

Taxable Property as if all of the Taxable Property was classified as Developed Property. lf the
Large Lot Property subdivision also creates Small Lot Final Map Remainder Property, the
expected Developed Property Maximum Facilities Special Tax for the Small Lot Final Map

Remainder Property shall be based upon the Planned Development for the Small Lot Final Map

Remainder Property. The expected Developed Property Maximum Facilities Special Tax for any

remaining Large Lot Property and Undeveloped Property shall be based upon the Planned

Development of the Large Lot Property and the Undeveloped Property.

Resolution No. 10870

Page 13 of33
A-9

Page 458

06/14/2022 Item No.17.



lf the sum of the total expected Developed Property Maximum Facilities Special Tax is greater

than or equal to the Minimum Facilities Revenue, there will be no further adjustments to the
Developed Property, Small Lot Final Map Property and Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-
Residential Property Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates for the Small Lot Final Map Property,

Small Lot Final Map Remainder Property and Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential
Property created from the Large Lot Property subdivision.

lf the sum of the total expected Developed Property Maximum Facilities SpecialTax is less than
the Minimum Facilities Revenue, and such difference is not eliminated by the full or partial
prepayment of the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax pursuant to
Section K, the Developed Property, Small Lot Final Map Property and Permit Ready Multi-
Family/Non-Residential Property Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates shall be Proportionately
increased, on the Small Lot Final Map Property, Small Lot Final Map Remainder Property and

Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property created from the Large Lot Property
subdivision, until the sum of the total expected Developed Property Maximum Facilities Special

Tax is equalto the Minimum Facilities Revenue. Attachment B of this Amended Rate and Method

of Apportionment shall be updated to reflect any increases to the Maximum Facilities Special Tax

Rates from the Large Lot Property subdivision. The Developed Property, Small Lot Final Map
Property and Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property Maximum Facilities Special

Tax Rates shall not be adjusted for any Taxable Property already classified as Developed

Property, Small Lot Final Map Property or Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property
created prior to the Large Lot Property subdivision.

C.2. Effective Tax Rate Evaluation
Prior to the issuance of the first building permit or the first series of Bonds within CFD No. 23 lA6,
whichever comes earlier, an Effective Tax Rate Evaluation will be completed. Following the
Effective Tax Rate Evaluation, Attachment C of this Amended Rate and Method of
Apportionment will be updated to reflect the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities

Special Tax Rate for all Taxable Property in CFD No. 23 146.

Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates

As partof the EffectiveTax Rate Evaluation, a Price PointStudywill be prepared and estimated
average sales prices will be established for each Residential Property land use category. Using

the estimated average sales price information determined in the Price Point Study, the Total

Estimated Tax Burden and Total Effective Tax Rate will be calculated, using the Developed

Property Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates set forth in Attachment A, for each Residential

Property land use category. lf the calculated Total Effective Tax Rate is less than or equalto the
Total Maximum Effective Tax Rate for a Residential Property land use category, the Maximum
Facilities SpecialTax Rate shall not be adjusted and will be assigned using the Developed Property
Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates set forth in Attachment A. Attachment C of this Amended

Rate and Method of Apportionment will be updated to set forth the Developed Property
Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rate for each Residential Property
land use category.

lf the Total Effective Tax Rate for any Residential Property land use category exceeds the Total
Maximum Effective Tax Rate, the Developed Property Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rate set

forth in Attachment A shall be reduced until the Total Effective Tax Rate is less than or equal to

Resolution No. 10870
Page 14 of33

A-10
Page 459

06/14/2022 Item No.17.



the Total Maximum Effective Tax Rate for that Residential Property land use category.
Attachment C of this Amended Rate and Method of Apportionment will be updated to set forth
the Developed Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rate for
each Residential Property land use category.

Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities Revenue
As a result of the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation, if the calculated Total Effective Tax Rate is less

than or equal to the Total Maximum Effective Tax Rate for a Residential Property land use

category used in the Minimum Facilities Revenue calculation, the Developed Property Maximum
Facilities Special Tax Rate for the applicable Residential Property land use category shall not be

adjusted and the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Developed Property Maximum Facilities Special

Tax Rate will be assigned using the Developed Property Maximum Facilities SpecialTax Rates set
forth in Attachment B. Attachment D of this Amended Rate and Method of Apportionment will
be updated to set forth the Developed Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities
Special Tax Rate for each Residential Property land use category and the Effective Tax Rate

Evaluation Minimum Facilities Revenue.

lf the calculated Total Effective Tax Rate exceeds the Total Maximum Effective Tax Rate for a

Residential Property land use category used in the Minimum Facilities Revenue calculation, the
Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Developed Property Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rate will be

assigned using the Developed Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special

Tax Rates set forth in Attachment C. Attachment D of this Amended Rate and Method of
Apportionment will be updated to set forth the Developed Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation

Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rate for each Residential Property land use category and the
Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities Revenue.

C.3. Future Assessorrs Parcel Changes - After an Effective Tax Rate Evaluation
The Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax shall be assigned to all future
Assessor's Parcel(s) created from a subdivision, lot line adjustment, or merger of one or more
Assessor's Parcels so that the revised sum of the total Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum
Facilities Special Tax revenue is not less than the total EffectiVe Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum
Facilities Revenue set forth in Attachment D of this Amended Rate and Method of
Apportionment.

Undeveloped Property Subdividing into Large Lot Property
When Undeveloped Property subdivides into Large Lot Property, the Effective Tax Rate

Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax shall be calculated for all Taxable Property as if all of
the Taxable Property was classified as Developed Property. The expected Developed Property
Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax for any Large Lot Property and any

remaining Undeveloped Property shall be based upon the Planned Development for the Large

Lot Property and remaining Undeveloped Property.

lf the sum of the total expected Developed Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum
Facilities Special Tax generated by all of the Taxable Property is greater than or equal to the
Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities Revenue, there will be no further adjustments
to the Developed Property, Small Lot Final Map Property and Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-
Residential Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates for the
Large Lot Property created from the Undeveloped Property subdivision.

Resolution No. 10870
Page 15 of33

A-11
Page 460

06/14/2022 Item No.17.



lf the sum of the total expected Developed Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum

Facilities Special Tax is less than the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities Revenue,

the Developed Property, Small Lot Final Map Property and Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-
Residential Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates shall be

Proportionately increased, on the Large Lot Property created from the Undeveloped Property

subdivision, untilthe sum of the totalexpected Developed Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation

Maximum Facilities SpecialTax is equal to the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities

Revenue. Further, if the sum of the total current Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities

Special Tax is less than the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities Revenue, the

Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates for the Large Lot Property and

any remaining Undeveloped Property created from the Undeveloped Property subdivision shall

be Proportionately increased until the sum of the total current Effective Tax Rate Evaluation

Maximum Facilities SpecialTax is equal to the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities

Revenue. Attachment D of this Amended Rate and Method of Apportionment shall be updated

to reflect any increases to the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates

from the Undeveloped Property subdivision. The Developed Property, Small Lot Final Map

Property and Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation

Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates shall not be adjusted for any Taxable Property already

classified as Developed Property, Small Lot Final Map Property or Permit Ready Multi-
Family/Non-Residential Property.

Large Lot Property Subdividing into Small Lot Final Map Property and Permit Ready Multi-
Family/Non-Residential Property
When Large Lot Property subdivides into Small Lot Final Map Property or Permit Ready Multi-
Family/Non-Residential Property, the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special

Tax shall be calculated for all Taxable Property as if all of the Taxable Property was classified as

Developed Property. lf the Large Lot Property subdivision also creates Small Lot Final Map

Remainder Property, the expected Developed Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum

Facilities Special Tax for the Small Lot Final Map Remainder Property shall be based upon the

Planned Development for the Small Lot Final Map Remainder Property. The expected Developed

Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax for any remaining Large

Lot Property and Undeveloped Property shall be based upon the Planned Development of the

Large Lot Property and the Undeveloped Property.

lf the sum of the total expected Developed Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum

Facilities Special Tax is greater than or equal to the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum

Facilities Revenue, there will be no further adjustments to the Developed Property, Small Lot

Final Map Property and Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property Effective Tax Rate

Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates for the Small Lot Final Map Property, Small Lot

Final Map Remainder Property and Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property created

from the Large Lot Property subdivision.

lf the sum of the total expected Developed Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum

Facilities Special Tax is less than the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities Revenue,

and such difference is not eliminated by the full or partial prepayment of the Effective Tax Rate

Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax pursuant to Section K, the Developed Property, Small

Lot Final Map Property and Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property Effective Tax

Resolution No. 10870

Page l6 of33
A-t2

Page 461

06/14/2022 Item No.17.



Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates shall be Proportionately increased, on the
Small Lot Final Map Property, Small Lot Final Map Remainder Property and Permit Ready Multi-
Family/Non-Residential Property created from the Large Lot Property subdivision, until the sum

of the total expected Developed Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities
SpecialTax is equal to the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities Revenue. Attachment
D of this Amended Rate and Method of Apportionment shall be updated to reflect any increases

to the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates from the Large Lot

Property subdivision. The Developed Property, Small Lot Final Map Property and Permit Ready

Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special

Tax Rates shall not be adjusted for any Taxable Property already classified as Developed
Property, Small Lot Final Map Property or Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property
created prior to the Large Lot Property subdivision.

C.4. Method of Apportionment of Facilities Special Tax
Using the definitions and procedures described herein, the CFD No. 23 146 Administrator shall

determine the Facilities Special Tax Requirement and levy the Facilities Special Tax until the
amount of Facilities Special Taxes equals the Facilities Special Tax Requirement. The Facilities
Special Tax shall be levied each Fiscal Year as follows:

Prior to an Effective Tax Rate Evaluation
First: The Facilities SpecialTax shall be levied Proportionately on all Developed Property at a rate
up to L00% of the Maximum Facilities Special Tax in order to satisfy the Facilities Special Tax

Requirement.

Second: lf additional monies are needed to satisfy the Facilities Special Tax Requirement after
the first step has been completed, the Facilities Special Tax shall be levied Proportionately on all

Small Lot Final Map Property at a rate up to 10O% of the Maximum Facilities Special Tax. The

Facilities Special Tax shall be levied on Small Lot Final Map Property for the entire portion of the
Facilities Special Tax Requirement, excluding only Pay As You Go Costs.

Third: lf additional monies are needed to satisfy the Facilities Special Tax Requirement after the
first two steps have been completed, the Facilities Special Tax shall be levied Proportionately on

all Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property at a rate up to 100% of the Maximum
Facilities Special Tax. The Facilities Special Tax shall be levied on Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-
Residential Property for the entire portion of the Facilities Special Tax Requirement, excluding
only Pay As You Go Costs.

Fourth: lf additional monies are needed to satisfy the Facilities Special Tax Requirement after
the first three steps have been completed, the Facilities Special Tax shall be levied
Proportionately on all Large Lot Property at a rate up to 100% of the Maximum Facilities Special

Tax. The Facilities SpecialTax shall be levied on Large Lot Property for the entire portion of the
Facilities Special Tax Requirement, excluding only Pay As You Go Costs.

Fifth: lf additional monies are needed to satisfy the Facilities Special Tax Requirement after the
first four steps have been completed, the Facilities Special Tax shall be levied Proportionately on

all Undeveloped Property at a rate up to LOO% of the Maximum Facilities Special Tax. The

Facilities Special Tax shall be levied on Undeveloped Property for the entire portion of the
Facilities Special Tax Requirement, excluding only Pay As You Go Costs.

Resolution No. 10870
Page l7 of33

A-13
Page 462

06/14/2022 Item No.17.



After an Effective Tax Rate Evaluation
First: The Facilities SpecialTax shall be levied Proportionately on all Developed Property at a rate

up to 100% of the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax in order to satisfli

the Facilities Special Tax Requirement.

Second: lf additional monies are needed to satisfy the Facilities Special Tax Requirement after

the first step has been completed, the Facilities Special Tax shall be levied Proportionately on all

SmallLot FinalMap Propertyata rate upto 100%of the EffectiveTax Rate Evaluation Maximum

Facilities Special Tax. The Facilities SpecialTax shall be levied on Small Lot Final Map Property for
the entire portion of the Facilities Special Tax Requirement, excluding only Pay As You Go Costs.

Third: lf additional monies are needed to satisfy the Facilities Special Tax Requirement after the

first two steps have been completed, the Facilities Special Tax shall be levied Proportionately on

all Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property at a rate up to tOO% of the Effective Tax

Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax. The Facilities Special Tax shall be levied on

Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property for the entire portion of the Facilities

Special Tax Requirement, excluding only Pay As You Go Costs.

Fourth: lf additional monies are needed to satisfy the Facilities Special Tax Requirement after
the first three steps have been completed, the Facilities Special Tax shall be levied

Proportionately on all Large Lot Property at a rate up to L00% of the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation

Maximum Facilities Special Tax. The Facilities Special Tax shall be levied on Large Lot Property

for the entire portion of the Facilities Special Tax Requirement, excluding only Pay As You Go

Costs.

Fifth: lf additional monies are needed to satisfy the Facilities Special Tax Requirement after the

first four steps have been completed, the Facilities Special Tax shall be levied Proportionately on

all Undeveloped Property at a rate up to 100% of the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum

Facilities Special Tax. The Facilities Special Tax shall be levied on Undeveloped Property for the

entire portion of the Facilities Special Tax Requirement, excluding only Pay As You Go Costs.

D. SERVICES SPECIAT TAX

A Services Special Tax shall be assigned to all Taxable Property within CFD No. 23 146 according to the

Maximum Services Special Tax Rates set forth in Attachment A of this Amended Rate and Method of
Apportionment.

D.1. lncrease in the Maximum Services SpecialTax
On each July L, commencing on July L,2022, the Maximum Services SpecialTax Rates shall be

increased by the Services Special Tax Escalation Factor of the Maximum Services Special Tax

Rates in effect for the previous Fiscal Year.

D.2. Method of Apportionment of Services Special Tax

lf, in any FiscalYear, the Facilities SpecialTax is levied against each Assessor's Parcelof Taxable

Property within CFD No. 23 lA6 and the Facilities Special Tax revenues generated are insufficient

Resolution No. 10870
Page 18 of33

A-14
Page 463

06/14/2022 Item No.17.



to pay the Facilities Special Tax Requirement such shortfall shall be deemed a component of the
Services Special Tax Requirement in that Fiscal Year, and proceeds from the levy of the Services

SpecialTax shallfirst be applied to mitigate the shortfall in the Facilities SpecialTax Requirement

before being used to pay for Authorized Services. The Services Special Tax revenue shall not be

applied to any Facilities Special Tax Requirement shortfalls attributable to Pay As You Go Costs

authorized to be financed by CFD No. 23 146.

Using the definitions and procedures described herein, the CFD No. 23 146 Administrator shall

determine the Services Special Tax Requirement and levy the Services Special Tax until the
amount of Services SpecialTax equals the Services SpecialTax Requirement. The Services Special

Tax shall be levied each Fiscal Year as follows:

First: The Services SpecialTax shall be levied Proportionately on all Developed Property at a rate

up to L00% of the Maximum Services Special Tax in order to satisfy the Services Special Tax

Requirement.

Second: lf additional monies are needed to satisfy the Services Special Tax Requirement after
the first step has been completed, the Services Special Tax shall be levied Proportionately on all

Small Lot Final Map Property at a rate up to 1"00% of the Maximum Services SpecialTax in order
to satisfy the Services Special Tax Requirement.

Third: lf additional monies are needed to satisfy the Services Special Tax Requirement after the
first two steps have been completed, the Services Special Tax shall be levied Proportionately on

all Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property at a rate up LotOO% of the Maximum
Services Special Tax in order to satisfy the Services Special Tax Requirement.

Fourth: lf additional monies are needed to satisfy the Services Special Tax Requirement after the
three steps have been completed, the Services Special Tax shall be levied Proportionately on all

Large Lot Property at a rate up to 100% of the Maximum Services Special Tax in order to satisfy

the Services Special Tax Requirement.

E. DELINQUENCIES

Notwithstanding the above, under no circumstances will the CFD No. 23 lA6 Facilities Special Tax

levied against any Assessor's Parcel of Developed Property classified as Residential Property, in any

FiscalYear, be increased as a consequence of the delinquency or default in the payment of the CFD

No. 23 146 Facilities Special Taxes by the owner or owners of any other Taxable Property by more than
ten percent (10%) above the amount that would have been levied against such Assessor's Parcel in

such Fiscal Year had there been no delinquencies or defaults.

F. EXEMPTIONS

F.1. TheCFDNo.23lA6AdministratorshallclassifythefollowingasExemptProperty:PublicProperty,
Property Owner Association Property, Open Space Property, Assessor's Parcels exempt from the
Special Tax pursuant to Section 53340 of the Act, and Assessor's Parcels with public or utility

Resolution No. 10870
Page 19 of33

A-15
Page 464

06/14/2022 Item No.17.



easements making impractical their utilization for any use other than the purposes set forth in
the easement.

F.2. The Maximum Facilities SpecialTax obligation or, if applicable, the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation

Maximum Facilities Special Tax obligation for Taxable Property which will be transferred or
dedicated to a public agency and will be classified as Public Property shall be prepaid in full by

the seller, pursuant to Section K, prior to the transfer/dedication of such Taxable Property. Until

the Maximum Facilities Special Tax obligation or, if applicable, the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation

Maximum Facilities Special Tax obligation for any such Taxable Property is prepaid, the Taxable

Property shall continue to be subject to the levy of the Facilities Special Tax. An exception to this

may be made if an Assessor's Parcel of Public Property, such as a school site, is relocated to an

Assessor's Parcel of Taxable Property, in which case the Assessor's Parcel of previously Public

Property becomes Taxable Property and the Assessor's Parcel of previously Taxable Property

becomes Public Property. This trading of an Assessor's Parcel from Taxable Property to Public

Property will be permitted to the extent there is no loss in Maximum Facilities Special Tax

revenue or, if applicable, Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax revenue,

and the transfer is agreed to by the owners of all Assessor's Parcels involved in the transfer and

the City Council.

F.3. lf the use of an Assessor's Parcel changes so that such Assessor's Parcel is no longer eligible to
be classified as one of the uses set forth in Section F.1 above that would make such Assessor's

Parcel eligible to continue to be classified as Exempt Property, such Assessor's Parcel shall cease

to be classified as Exempt Property and shall be deemed to be Taxable Property and subject to
the Special Tax.

G. TRANSFERS

Prior to the issuance of the first series of Bonds within CFD No. 23lA6, the City may permit the transfer
of Maximum Facilities Special Tax or Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities SpecialTax from
one Assessor's Parcel to another Assessor's Parcel. Before recordation of a Small Lot Final Subdivision

Map, if a subdivision map is required, the City may permit a transfer if the number of planned

Residential Units, Multi-Family Attached Property Acreage, or Non-Residential Property Acreage is

transferred from one Assessor's Parcel(s) to another Assessor's Parcel(s) in any portion of Large Lot

Property. The City may, in its sole discretion, allow for a transfer of the Maximum Facilities Special Tax

or Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax from one Assessor's Parcel to another
Assessor's Parcel provided such a transfer shall be allowed only if (1)alladjustments are agreed to in
writing by the affected property owners and the City's Finance Director, and (2) there is no reduction
in the sum of the total Maximum Facilities SpecialTax or sum of the total Effective Tax Rate Evaluation

Maximum Facilities SpecialTax as a result of the transfer. Should a transfer result in an amendment
to Attachment B or, following an Effective Tax Rate Evaluation, Attachment D of this Amended Rate

and Method of Apportionment, the requesting property owner shall bear the costs to affect the

transfer in the CFD No. 23 lA6 records and prepare the required amendments to Attachment B or,
following an Effective Tax Rate Evaluation, Attachment D of this Amended Rate and Method of
Apportionment.

Resolution No. 10870
Page 20 of33

A-16
Page 465

06/14/2022 Item No.17.



H. INTERPRETATIONS

The City reserves the right to make minor administrative and technical changes to this document that
do not materially affect the Amended Rate and Method of Apportionment of Special Tax. ln addition,
the interpretation and application of any section of this document shall be at the City's discretion.
lnterpretations may be made by the City by ordinance or resolution for purposes of clarifying any

vagueness or ambiguity in this Amended Rate and Method of Apportionment of Special Tax.

I. REVIEWAPPEALS

The CFD No. 23 146 Administrator may establish such procedures, as it deems necessary to undertake
the review of any such appeal. The CFD No. 23 146 Administrator shall interpret this Amended Rate

and Method of Apportionment of Special Tax and make determinations relative to the annual

administration of the Special Tax and any property owner appeals, as herein specified.

Any property owner may file a written appeal of the SpecialTax with the CFD No. 23 146 Administrator
claiming that the amount or application of the Special Tax is not correct. The appeal must be filed not
later than one calendar year after having paid the Special Taxes that are disputed, and the appellant
must be current in all payments of SpecialTaxes. ln addition, during the term of the appeal process,

all Special Taxes levied must be paid on or before the payment date established when the levy was

made. The appeal must specify the reasons why the appellant claims the Special Taxes are in error.
The CFD No. 23 146 Administrator shall review the appeal, meet with the appellant if the CFD No. 23

146 Administrator deems necessary, and advise the appellant of its determination.

lf the property owner disagrees with the CFD No. 23 lA6 Administrator's decision relative to the
appeal, the owner may file a written notice with the City Manager appealing the amount of the Special

Tax levied on such Assessor's Parcel. lf following such consultation and action, if any, by the City

Manager, the property owner believes such error still exists, such person may file a written notice
with the City Council appealing the amount of the Special Tax levied on such Assessor's Parcel. The

decision of the City shall be final and binding to all persons. lf the decision of the CFD No. 23 146

Administrator or subsequent decision by the City Manager or City Council requires the Special Taxes

to be modified or changed in favor of the property owner, no cash refund shall be made for prior
years' Special Taxes, but an adjustment shall be made to credit future Special Taxes. This procedure

shall be exclusive and its exhaustion by any property owner shall be a condition precedent to filing
any legal action by such owner.

J. MANNER OF COTTECTION

The annual Special Tax shall be collected in the same manner and at the same time as ordinary ad

valorem property taxes; provided, however, that CFD No. 23 146, may, at the sole discretion of the
City, directly bill the Special Tax, may collect Special Taxes at a different time or in a different manner
as necessary to meet its financial obligations, and may covenant to foreclose and may actually
foreclose on Assessor's Parcels of Taxable Property that are delinquent in the payment of Special

Taxes.

Resolution No. 10870

Page2l of33
A-t7 Page 466

06/14/2022 Item No.17.



K. PREPAYMENT OF FACILITIES SPECIAL TAX

The Facilities SpecialTax obligation of an Assessor's Parcelof Taxable Property may be prepaid and

permanently satisfied as described herein; provided that there are no delinquent SpecialTaxes with
respect to such Assessor's Parcel at the time of prepayment. An owner of an Assessor's Parcel

intending to prepay the Facilities SpecialTax obligation shall provide the CFD No. 23 146 Administrator
with written notice of intent to prepay. Within 30 days of receipt of such written notice, the CFD No.

23 lA6 Administrator shall notify such owner of the prepayment amount of such Assessor's Parcel.

Prepayment must be made not less than 60 days prior to the next occurring date that notice of
redemption of Bonds, whichever date is earlier, from the proceeds of such prepayment may be given

to the Trustee pursuant to the lndenture. The CFD No. 23 146 Administrator may charge a fee for
providing this service.

K.1. Prepayment in Full
As of the proposed date of prepayment, the Prepayment Amount shall be calculated as follows

Step 1: Determine the current Fiscal Year Maximum Facilities Special Tax for the Assessor's

Parcel based on the assignment of the Maximum Facilities Special Tax described in Section C. lf
an Effective Tax Rate Evaluation has occurred, determine the current Fiscal Year Effective Tax

Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities SpecialTaxforthe Assessor's Parcel based on the assignment

of the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax described in Section C. lf the

Assessor's Parcel is not already classified as Developed Property, the Maximum Facilities Special

Tax (or Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax) shall be assigned as though

the Assessor's Parcel was already designated as Developed Property.

Step 2: Calculate the annual revenue produced, by annually applying the Facilities Special Tax

Escalation Factor, from the Maximum Facilities Special Tax (or Effective Tax Rate Evaluation

Maximum Facilities Special Tax) from the date of prepayment through the Facilities Special Tax

Term, except that this final date may be amended by the City no later than the time of the

calculation of the prepayment. lf the final date used in the prepayment calculation is amended

by the City, this amended final date shall apply to any and all prepayment calculations from that
point forward.

Step 3: Calculate the present value of the Assessor's Parcel's annual Maximum Facilities Special

Tax (or Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities SpecialTax) revenue stream determined

in Step 2. The present value shall be calculated using a discount rate that earns a rate of interest

that, when the prepayment is invested in City permitted and available investments, would
produce annual revenues equal to the amounts calculated in Step 2.

lf there are Outstanding Bonds at the time of the Prepayment Amount calculation, the

Prepayment Amount shall be first allocated to the Redemption Amount. lf the Prepayment

Amount is insufficient to fund the Redemption Amount, then the Prepayment Amount shall be

increased to equalthe Redemption Amount.

The Redemption Amount is calculated as follows

Step 1: Divide the Maximum Facilities Special Tax (or Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum

Facilities Special Tax) computed pursuant to Step L of Section K.1 by the total Maximum

Resolution No. 10870
Page 22 of 33

A-18
Page 467

06/14/2022 Item No.17.



Facilities Special Taxes (or total Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special

Taxes) for the entire CFD No. 23 lA6, based on the Maximum Facilities Special Taxes (or

Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Taxes) that could be charged in the

current Fiscal Year if all Taxable Property were designated as Developed Property, excluding

any Assessor's Parcels which have prepaid the Maximum Facilities Special Tax (or Effective

Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities SpecialTax) obligation (the "Prepayment Quotient").

Step 2: Multiply the Prepayment Quotient by the Outstanding Bonds to compute the amount

of Outstanding Bonds to be redeemed (the "Bond Redemption Amount").

Step 3: Multiply the Bond Redemption Amount by the applicable redemption premium, if any,

on the Outstanding Bonds to be redeemed.

Step 4: Compute the amount needed to pay interest on the Bond Redemption Amount from
the first Bond interest payment date following the current Fiscal Year until the earliest

redemption date for the Outstanding Bonds.

Step 5: Determine that portion of Facilities Special Taxes levied on the Assessor's Parcel in

the current Fiscal Year to satisfy the Facilities Special Tax Requirement, which have not yet

been paid.

Step 6: A reserve fund credit shall equal the lesser of: (a) the expected reduction in the
reserve requirement (as defined in the lndenture for the Bonds), if any, associated with the
redemption of Outstanding Bonds as a result of the prepayment, or (b) the amount derived

by subtracting the new reserve requirement (as defined in the lndenture for the Bonds) in

effect after the redemption of Outstanding Bonds as a result of the prepayment from the

balance in the reserve fund on the prepayment date, but in no event shall such amount be

less than zero. Such reserve fund credit will not decrease the balance in the reserve fund

below the new reserve requirement.

Step 7: lf any capitalized interest for the Outstanding Bonds will not have been expended at

the time of the first interest and/or principal payment following the current Fiscal Year, a

capitalized interest credit shall be calculated by multiplying the quotient computed pursuant

to Step 1- by the expected balance in the capitalized interest fund after such first interest
payment.

Step 8: The redemption amount is equal to the sum of the amounts computed pursuant to
Steps 2, 3,4, and 5, less the amount computed pursuant to Steps 6 and 7 (the "Redemption

Amount").

lf the Prepayment Amount exceeds the Redemption Amount, then any remaining Prepayment

Amount, after allocating the Redemption Amount, shall be designated as Pay as You Go Costs.

The Prepayment Amount shall include any fees or expenses, including the costs of computation

of the prepayment, the costs to invest the prepayment proceeds, the cost of redeeming Bonds,

and the costs of recording any notices to evidence the prepayment and the redemption (the

"Administrative Fees and Expenses").

Resolution No. 10870
Page23 of33

A-19
Page 468

06/14/2022 Item No.17.



ln addition, the City has the authority to adjust the Prepayment Amount calculated above if a

portion or all of the current property tax bill and the portion attributable to the payment of the
Facilities Special Tax has not been used to make an interest and/or principal payment on the
Bonds.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, no Facilities Special Tax prepayment shall be allowed unless the
amount of Maximum Facilities SpecialTaxes (or Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities

Special Taxes), net of any priority administration, if any as defined in the Bond documents, that
may be levied on Taxable Property, in each Fiscal Year, both prior to and after the proposed

prepayment, is at least 1.1 times the annual debt service on all Outstanding Bonds to be paid

from the Maximum Facilities SpecialTaxes (or Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities

Special Taxes) in each Fiscal Year.

K.2. Prepayment in Part
The Facilities Special Tax obligation may be partially prepaid in any percentage of the full
Prepayment Amount. The amount of the partial prepayment shall be calculated as in the above

Section K.1; except that a partial prepayment shall be calculated according to the following
formula:

PP=((PE-A)xF)+A

These terms have the following meaning:

PP = the Partial Prepayment Amount
PE = the Prepayment Amount calculated according to Section K.1 above

A = the Administrative Fees and Expenses calculated according to Section K.1 above

F = the percent by which the owner of the Assessor's Parcel(s) is partially prepaying the
Facilities Special Tax obligation.

The owner of an Assessor's Parcel who desires to partially prepay the Facilities Special Tax

obligation shall notify the CFD No. 23 l46 Administrator of (i) such owner's intent to partially
prepay the Facilities Special Tax obligation, (ii) the amount of partial prepayment expressed in

increments equal to percentage of the full Prepayment Amount, and (iii) the company or agency

that will be acting as the escrow agent, if applicable. Partial prepayment must be made not less

than 60 days prior to the next occurring date that notice of redemption of Bonds, whichever date

is earlier, from the proceeds of such prepayment may be given to the Trustee pursuant to the

lndenture. The CFD No. 23 146 Administrator may charge a fee for providing this service.

With respect to any Assessor's Parcel that is partially prepaid, the CFD No. 23 lA6 Administrator
shall indicate in the records of CFD No. 23 lA6 that there has been a partial prepayment of the
Facilities Special Tax obligation and that a portion of the Facilities Special Tax obligation equal to
the outstanding percentage (1.00 - F) of the remaining Facilities Special Tax obligation shall

continue to be authorized to be levied on such Assessor's Parcel pursuant to Section C.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, no partial prepayment shall be allowed unless the amount of
Maximum Facilities Special Taxes (or Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special

Taxes), net of any priority administration, if any as defined in the Bond documents, that may be

levied on Taxable Property, in each Fiscal Year, both prior to and after the proposed partial

Resolution No. 10870
Page24 of 33

A-20
Page 469

06/14/2022 Item No.17.



prepayment, is at least 1-.1- times the annual debt service on all Outstanding Bonds to be paid

from the Maximum Facilities SpecialTaxes (or Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities
Special Taxes) in each Fiscal Year.

t. TERM OF SPECIAT TAX

The Maximum Facilities SpecialTax and Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities SpecialTax
shall be levied commencing in Fiscal Year 2021-2022 to the extent necessary to fully satisf,i the
Facilities Special Tax Requirement and shall be levied for the Facilities Special Tax Term.

The Maximum Services Special Tax shall be levied commencing in Fiscal Year 2O2'J,-2O22 and shall be

levied in perpetuity, unless and until such time the City determines that revenues are no longer
needed to pay the Services Special Tax Requirement.

Resolution No. 10870
Page25 of33

A-2t
Page 470

06/14/2022 Item No.17.



ATTACHMENTA
City of Folsom

Community Facilities District No.23 (Folsom Ranch)
lmprovement Area 6

Maximum Special Tax Rates
(Fisca I Y ear 2O2L-2O221

Resolution No. 10870
Page26 of33

Taxed Per

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Acre

Acre

Acre

202L-2022
Maximum

Services Special
Tax Rate(21

So

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

310

310

0

2021-2022
Maximum

Facilities Special
Tax Rate(l)

So

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

30,600

0

0

Residential
Floor Area

> 3,600

3,200 - 3,599

2,800 - 3,199

2,400-2,799

2,OOO-2,399

< 2,000

> 3,600

3,200 - 3,599

2,800 - 3,199

2,400-2,799

2,OOO-2,399

< 2,000

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Land Use Category

Developed Property:

Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning

MMD Multi-Family Attached Property

MHD Multi-Family Attached Property

Non-Residential Property

A-22

Page 471

06/14/2022 Item No.17.



ATTACHMENTA
City of Folsom

Community Facilities District No.23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 5
Maximum Special Tax Rates

(Fisca I Y ear 2O2L-2O221

(1) On each July 1, commencing on July L,2022, the Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates shall be increased by the Facilities Special Tax Escalation

Factor of the Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates in effect for the previous Fiscal Year.

(2) OneachJulyl,commencingonJuly!,2022,theMaximumServicesSpecial TaxRatesshall beincreasedbyanamountequal totheServices

Special Tax Escalation Factor of the Maximum Services Special Tax Rates in effect forthe previous Fiscal Year.

(3) Excludes MHD Multi-FamilyAttached Property and Non-Residential Property.
(4) ExcludesNon-Residential Property.

Resolution No. 10870
Page27 of33

Taxed Per

Residential Lot

Residential Lot

Acre

Acre

Acre

2021-2022
Maximum

Services Special
Tax Rate(2)

So

0

S3totor

S3torot

S3totor

202L-2022
Maximum

Facilities Special
Tax Rate(l)

5o

0

Sgo,ooo(s)

s3O,6oottt

S3o,600(3)

Residential
Floor Area

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Land Use Category

Small Lot Final Map Property:

Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning

Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential
Property

Large Lot Property

Undeveloped Property

A-23

Page 472

06/14/2022 Item No.17.



(1)

ATTACHMENT B

City of Folsom
Community Facilities District No,23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 5
Minimum Facilities Revenue

(Fisca I Y ear 2021-2O221

On each July 1, commencing on July 1,2022, the Developed Property Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates and Minimum Facilities

Revenue shall be increased by the Facilities Special Tax Escalation Factor of the Developed Property Maximum Facilities Special

Tax Rates and Minimum Facilities Revenue in effect for the previous Fiscal Year.

As a result of future Assessor's Parcel changes, described in Section C.1, the assigned Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates for
Developed Property may exceed the Developed Property Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates set forth in this table.
The total Minimum Facilities Revenue may be decreased as result of all or a portion of Maximum Facilities Special Tax obligations
being prepaid and permanently satisfied pursuant to Section K.

Based upon the Developed Property Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rate for Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning

and Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning with Residential Floor Area of less than 2,000 square feet.

(2)

(3)

(4)

Resolution No. 10870
Page 28 of33

202L-2022
Minimum Facilities

psygnus (rxl)

So

0

289,476

0

0

5289,476

2021-2022
Developed Propefi
Maximum Facilities
SPeciallsx Pa1g(rxzl

So

0

30,600

0

0

Planned Number
of Residential
Units / Acres

0

0

9.46

9.26

TL.7L

Land Use Category

Developed Property:

Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning(+l

Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning(+l

M M D M ulti-Family Attached Property

M H D M ulti-Family Attached Property

Non-Residential Property

Total Minimum Facilities Revenue

A-24

Page 473

06/14/2022 Item No.17.



ATTACHMENT C

City of Folsom
Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 6
Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates

(Fisca I Y ear 2O2L-2O221

Resolution No. 10870
Page29 of33

Taxed Per

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Acre

Acre

Acre

2021-2022
Effective Tax Rate

Evaluation
Maximum Facilities
SPecial f3x ft31s(rxz)

So

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

30,600

0

0

Residential
Floor Area

> 3,600

3,200 - 3,599

2,800 - 3,1"99

2,400-2,799

2,OOO-2,399

< 2,000

> 3,600

3,200 - 3,599

2,800 - 3,199

2,4OO-2,799

2,OOO-2,399

< 2,000

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Land Use Category

Developed Property:

Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning

M MD Multi-Family Attached Property

MHD Multi-Family Attached Property

Non-Residential Property

A-25

Page 474

06/14/2022 Item No.17.



ATTACHMENT C

City of Folsom

Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 5
Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates

(Fisca I Y ear 2O21.-2O221

(1) Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates will be inserted following the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation.
(2) On each July 1, commencing in the Fiscal Year after the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation occurs, the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation

Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates shall be increased by the Facilities Special Tax Escalation Factor of the Effective Tax Rate

Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates in effect for the previous Fiscal Year.

(3) Excludes MHD Multi-Family Attached Property and Non-Residential Property.

Resolution No. 10870
Page 30 of33

Taxed Per

Residential Lot

Residential Lot

Acre

Acre

Acre

2021-2022
Effective Tax Rate

Evaluation
Maximum Facilities
SPeciallxx P31g(rxz)

5o

0

S3o,6oot'l

53O,6oottt

S3o,6oottt

Residential
Floor Area

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Land Use Category

Small Lot Final Map Property:

Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning

Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property

Large Lot Property

Undeveloped Property

A-26

Page 475

06/14/2022 Item No.17.



ATTACHMENT D

City of Folsom
Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 6
Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities Revenue

(Fisca I Y ear 2O2L-2O221

(L) Planned Number of Residential Units/Acres, Developed Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rate and
Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities Revenue to be inserted following the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation.

(2) On each July 1, commencing in the Fiscal Year after the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation occurs, the Developed Property Effective Tax Rate

Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates and Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities Revenue shall be increased by the
Facilities Special Tax Escalation Factor of the Developed Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates and
Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities Revenue in effect for the previous Fiscal Year.

(3) As a result of future Assessor's Parcel changes, described in Section C.3, the assigned Developed Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation
Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates may exceed the Developed Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax

Rates set forth in this table.
(4) The total Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities Revenue may be decreased as result of all or a portion of Effective Tax Rate

Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax obligations being prepaid and permanently satisfied pursuant to Section K.

(5) Based upon the Developed Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rate for Single-Family Detached
Property - SF/SFHD Zoning and Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning with Residential Floor Area of less than 2,000 square feet.

Resolution No. 10870
Page 31 of33

2021.2022
Effective Tax Rate

Evaluation
Minimum Facilities

pgygnug (rXzXnl

So

0

289,476

0

0

$299,476

202L-2022
Developed Property Effective

Tax Rate Evaluation
Maximum Facilities Special

12x p31g(rxzXrl

So

0

30,600

0

0

Planned
Number of
Residential

Units / Acres(1)

0

0

9.46

9.26

1.r.71.

Land Use Category

Developed Property:

Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning(st

Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning(s)

MMD Multi-Family Attached Property

M HD Multi-Family Attached Property

Non-Residentia I Property

Total Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum
Facilities Revenue

A-27

Page 476

06/14/2022 Item No.17.



EXHIBIT B

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING
REGARDING PROPOSED CHANGES TO

IMPROVEMENT AREA NO. 6 OF THE CITY OF FOLSOM'S COMMUNITY
FACTLTTTES DISTRTCT NO.23 (FOLSOM RANCH)

Tuesday, July 2612022
6:30 p.m.

Folsom City Hall
50 Natoma Street, Folsom, California

On Tuesday, June 14,2022, the City Council (the "City Council") of the City of Folsom
(the "City") adopted its Resolution No. 10870 (the "Resolution of Consideration") by which it has

scheduled a public hearing to give consideration to amending the powers currently conferred upon

the City Council by the City's Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) (the

"Community Facilities District") for its Improvement Area No. 6.

At a special election within Improvement Area No. 6 held on May 26, 2020, the City
Council was authorized, among other things, to levy a special tax to finance the acquisition and

construction of certain public facilities (the "Facilities") and certain public services (the

"services") and to issue debt to finance the Facilities. The Community Facilities District was

formed under the "Mello-Roos Community Facilities Act of 1982," Chapter 2.5,Pafi 1, Division 2,

Title 5 of the Government Code of the State of Califomia, commencing with Section 53311 (the
ttAct").

The Act provides that changes in the powers conferred upon the City Council by the

Community Facilities District may be considered and submitted to the qualified electors of the

Community Facilities District. The first step in that process is to describe the proposed changes

and to schedule and hold a public hearing on them. In its Resolution of Consideration, the City
Council has set forth the proposed changes (the "Proposed Amendments") and scheduled the

public hearing.

This Notice contains a brief summary of the Proposed Amendments, but you are referred

to the Resolution of Consideration for the definitive description of the Proposed Amendments,

including a description of the amended rate and method of apportionment.

The Public Hearing: The City of Folsom City Council will hold the public hearing on

Tuesday, July 26,2022, at6:30 p.m. at the City Hall, 50 Natoma Street, Folsom, CA 95630.

At the public hearing, any persons interested, including all taxpayers, property owners and

registered voters within the Community Facilities District, may appear and be heard, and the oral

or written testimony of all interested persons or taxpayers for or against any of the proposed

changes to the authority conferred on the City Council by the Community Facilities District, will
be heard and considered.

Resolution No. 10870

Page 32 of 33

B-1
Page 477

06/14/2022 Item No.17.



Any protests to the proposed changes may be made orally or in writing by any interested
persons or taxpayers, except that any protests pertaining to the regularity or sufficiency of the
proceedings shall be in writing and shall clearly set forth the irregularities and defects to which
objection is made. The City Council may waive any irregularities in the form or content of any
written protest and atthe public hearing may correct minor defects in the proceedings. All written
protests not presented in person by the protester at the public hearing must be filed with the City
Clerk at or before the time fixed for the public hearing in order to be received and considered. Any
written protest may be withdrawn in writing at any time before the conclusion of the public
hearing.

Written protests by a majority of the registered voters residing and registered within the
Community Facilities District (provided they number at least 6), or by the owners of a majority of
the land area within the Community Facilities District not exempt from the special tax, will require
suspension ofthese proceedings for at least one year. If such protests are directed only against
certain elements of the proposed changes, only those elements need be excluded from the
proceedings.

The Proposed Amendments: The proposed changes are to amend the authority to levy the
special tax by adjusting the maximum special tax rates based on the planned development within
Improvement Area No. 6. For a definitive description of the Proposed Amendments you are
referred to the Resolution of Consideration itself, a copy of which is available from the City Clerk.

For the Proposed Amendments to take effect, a public hearing must be held on the Proposed
Amendments and the qualified electors within the Community Facilities District must approve the
Proposed Amendments by a two-thirds vote. As the Community Facilities District is uninhabited,
or inhabited by fewer than 12 registered voters, the qualified electors are, pursuant to the Act, the
owners of property within the Community Facilities District.

Dated: I _1,2022

City Clerk
City of Folsom

Resolution No. 10870

Page 33 of33
B-2

Page 478

06/14/2022 Item No.17.



ATTACHM ENT 2

Page 479

06/14/2022 Item No.17.



AMENDED RATE AND METHOD OF APPORTIONMENT FOR

CITY OF FOLSOM

COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 23
(FOLSOM RANCHI

lmprovement Area No. 6

A Special Tax, as hereinafter defined, shall be levied on each Assessor's Parcel of Taxable Property within
the City of Folsom Community Facilities District No, 23 (Folsom Ranch) lmprovement Area No. 6 (CFD No.

23 lA6) and collected each Fiscal Year in an amount determined by the CFD No. 23 lA6 Administrator
through the application of the Amended Rate and Method of Apportionment as described below. All of
the real property within CFD No. 23 lA6, unless exempted by law or by the provisions hereof, shall be

taxed for the purposes, to the extent and in the manner herein provided.

A. GENERAT DEFINITIONS

The terms hereinafter set forth have the following meaning:

"Acre or Acreage" means the land area of an Assessor's Parcel as shown on County records, such as

an Assessor's Parcel Map and secured roll data, or if the land area is not shown on an Assessor's Parcel

Map, the land area shown on the applicable Large Lot Map, Small Lot Final Subdivision Map,

condominium plan, record of survey, or other recorded document creating or describing the parcel.

lf the preceding maps for a land area are not available, the Acreage of such land area may be

determined utilizing available spatial data and GlS. The square footage of an Assessor's Parcel is equal

to the Acreage of such parcel multiplied by 43,560.

"Act" means the Mello-Roos Community Facilities Act of 1982, as amended, being Chapter 2.5,

Division 2 of Title 5 of the Government Code of the State of California.

"Assessol's Parcel" or "Patcel" means a lot or parcel shown in an Assessor's Parcel Map with an

assigned Assessor's Parcel number.

"Assessor's Parcel Map" means an official map of the County Assessor of the County designating lots

or parcels by an Assessor's Parcel number,

"Authorized Services" means the landscape corridor, enhanced open space and street light
maintenance, services, and expenses authorized to be financed by CFD No. 23 lA6,

"Bond Year" means a one year period beginning on September 2nd in each year and ending on

September L't in the following year, unless defined differently in the applicable lndenture.

"Bonds" means any bonds or other debt (as defined in the Act), whether in one or more series, issued

by CFD No, 23 lA5 under the Act.

"CFD No. Zg lA6" means Citv o
lmprovenent4reaNo. e

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area No. 6 - Amended
@

Page 1
Page 480

06/14/2022 Item No.17.



leED_Ng,23 lA6 Administrato/' means the City's Finance Director, or designee thereof, responsible

for determining the Facilities Special Tax Requirement, Services Special Tax Requirement and

providing for the levy and collection of the Special Taxes,

"€rB Hs: 13 tA5" mea
+merevemcn+n'rea-+

"City" means the City of Folsom

"City Council" means the City Council of the City, acting as the legislative body of CFD No, 23 lA5,

"County" means the County of Sacramento.

"Developed Property" means, for each Fiscal Year, all Taxable Property for which a building permit

for new construction was issued prior to June 30 of the previous Fiscal Year.

"Effective Tax Rate Evaluation" means an evaluation of the Total Effective Tax Rate of Residential

Property at the time of such evaluation. The Effective Tax Rate Evaluation will be based upon a

prepared Price Point Study to determine the Total Effective Tax Rate for Residential Property, based

upon the calculated Total Estimated Tax Burden.

"Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax" means the total maximum annual

Facilities Special Tax, as determined during the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation, in accordance with the

provisions of Section C.2, which may be levied in any Fiscal Year on any Assessor's Parcel of Taxable

Property.

"Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rate" means the maximum annual

Facilities Special Tax rate for each land use category of Taxable Property that will be set forth in

Attachment C, following the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation, which may be levied in any Fiscal Year on

any Assessor's Parcel ofTaxable Property.

"Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities Revenue" means, following the Effective Tax Rate

Evaluation, the total minimum amount of CFD No. 23 146 Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum

Facilities SpecialTax, as adjusted annually by the Facilities Special Tax Escalation Factor after the Fiscal

Year in which the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation occurs, less any Effective Tax Rate Evaluation

Maximum Facilities SpecialTax amounts prepaid and permanently satisfied pursuant to Section K. The

Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities Revenue, based on Planned Development, is set

forth in Attachment D of this Amended Rate and Method of Apportionment.

"Exempt Property" means all Assessors' Parcels that are exempt from the Special Tax pursuant to

Section F. Assessor's Parcels exempt from the Special Tax pursuant to Section 53340 of the Act shall

also be designated as Exempt Property,

"Facilities Administrative Expenses" means the actual or reasonably estimated costs directly related

to the administration of the Facilities Special Tax including, but not limited to, the following: the costs

of computing the Facilities Special Tax and preparing the annual Facilities Special Tax collection

schedules (whether by the City or designee thereof or both); the costs of collecting the Facilities

Special Taxes {whether by the County, the City, or otherwise); the costs of remitting the Facilities

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area No. 6 - Amended
W

Page 2
Page 481

06/14/2022 Item No.17.



SpecialTaxes to the Trustee; the costs of the Trustee (including its legal counsel) in the discharge of

the duties required of it under the lndenture; the costs to the City, CFD No. 231A6, or any designee

thereof of complying with arbitrage rebate requirements or responding to questions from the IRS or

SEC pertaining to any Bonds or any audit of any Bonds by the SEC or IRS; the costs to the City, CFD No.

231A6, or any designee thereof of providing continuing disclosure regarding the Bonds pursuant to

applicable state or federal securities law; the costs associated with preparing Facilities Special Tax

disclosure statements and responding to public inquiries regarding the Facilities Special Taxes; the

costs of the City, CFD No. 23 lA6, or any designee thereof related to any appeal of the levy or

application of the Facilities Special Tax; the costs associated with the release of funds from an escrow

account, if any; and the costs associated with computing and preparing the Effective Tax Rate

Evaluation, including the Price Point Study. Facilities Administrative Expenses shall also include

amounts estimated or advanced by the City or CFD No. 231A6 for any other administrative purposes,

including, but not limited to, attorney's fees and other costs related to commencing and pursuing to

completion any foreclosure of delinquent Facilities Special Taxes.

"Facilities Special Tax" means the annual Special Tax to be levied in each Fiscal Year on each

Assessor's Parcel of Taxable Property to fund the Facilities Special Tax Requirement.

"Facilities Special Tax Escalation Factor" means two percent (2%) annually.

"Facilities Special Tax Requirement" means that amount of SpecialTax revenue required in any Fiscal

Year for CFD No. 23 lA6 to: (i) Pay Facilities Administrative Expenses in an amount designated by the

City; (ii) pay annual debt service on all Outstanding Bonds due in the Bond Year beginning in such

Fiscal Year; (iii) pay other periodic costs on Outstanding Bonds, including but not limited to, credit

enhancement and rebate payments on Outstanding Bonds; (iv) pay any amounts required to establish

or replenish any reserve funds for all Outstanding Bonds in accordance with the lndenture; (v) pay for
reasonably anticipated delinquent Special Taxes based on the delinquency rate for Special Taxes

levied in the previous Fiscal Year and known upcoming delinquencies; and (vi) pay for Pay As You Go

Costs; less (vii) a credit for funds available to reduce the annual Facilities Special Tax levy as

determined by the CFD No. 23 lA6 Administrator pursuant to the lndenture.

"Facilities Special Tax Term" means the earlier of Fiscal Year 2O79-2080 or the Fiscal Year occurring

50 years following the Fiscal Year in which the first building permit was issued or the first series of

Bonds was issued within CFD No. 231A6.

"Fiscal Yea/' means the period starting July 1 and ending on the following June 30.

"lndenture" means the indenture, fiscal agent agreement, trust agreement, resolution or other

instrument pursuant to which Bonds are issued, as modified, amended and/or supplemented from

time to time, and any instrument replacing or supplementing the same'

"Large Lot MaD" mean

Uao aoes not create

Besidefiiaf-UniIs"

"Large Lot Property" means, for each Fiscal Year, all Taxable Property for which a Large Lot Map was

recorded prior to June 30 of the previous Fiscal Year, excluding any portion(s) thereof classified as

Developed Property, Small Lot Final Map Property, or Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area No. 6 - Amended
W

Page 3
Page 482

06/14/2022 Item No.17.



property. Large Lot Property also means, for each Fiscal Year, all Taxable Property classified as Small

Lot Final Map Remainder Property as of June 30 of the previous Fiscal Year.

"Urye tot mle" mean
Map dees net €reat€
Residen#gftits'

"Maximum Facilities Special Tax" means the total maximum annual Facilities Special Tax, determined

in accordance with the provisions of Section C, which may be levied in any Fiscal Year on any Assessor's

Parcel of Taxable Property.

"Maximum Facilities SpecialTax Rate" means the maximum annual Facilities Special Tax rate for each

land use category of Taxable Property, as shown in Attachment A, which may be levied in any Fiscal

Year on any Assessor's Parcel ofTaxable Property.

"Maximum Services Special Tax" means the total maximum annual Services Special Tax, determined

in accordance with the provisions of Section D, which may be levied in any Fiscal Year on any

Assessor's Parcel of Taxable Property.

"Maximum Services Special Tax Rate" means the maximum annual Services SpecialTax rate for each

land use category of Taxable Property, as shown in Attachment A, which may be levied in any Fiscal

Year on any Assessor's Parcel ofTaxable Property.

"Maximum Special Tax" means the total annual Maximum Facilities Special Tax (or Effective Tax Rate

Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax) and Maximum Services Special Tax, determined in

accordance with the provisions of Section C and Section D, which may be levied in any Fiscal Year on

any Assessor's Parcel ofTaxable Property.

"Maximum Total Effective Tax Rate" means L.80%, unless the City determines, in its sole discretion,

that a higher Maximum Total Effective Tax Rate is appropriate,

"Minimum f.€ilitl

ftlinimHm fa€iliti
@

"MHD Multi-Family Attached Property'' means all Assessor's Parcels for which a building permit could

be issued for purposes of constructing one or more attached Residential Units perAssessor's Parcel

with a permitted density range of greater than 20 Residential Units per Acre and more fully described

in the Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan adopted on June 28,20'J,1, and as amended by the City Council.

MHD Multi-Family Attached Property shall also include an Assessor's Parcel or that portion of an

Assessor's Parcel designated as a Mixed Use Residential Parcel.

"tvtinimum facilit
facitities Specia

Vaximum facititie

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area No. 6 - Amended
W

Page 4
Page 483

06/14/2022 Item No.17.



Minimum Facilitie
Amended Rate and Method of Apportionment.

"Mixed Use Residential Parcel" means a mixed use Assessor's Parcel that is designated for residential

land use, lf the mixed use Assessor's Parcel contains a combination of residential land use and non-

residential land use, onlythat portion of an Assessor's Parcel designated for residential land use shall

be classified as a Mixed Use Residential Parcel and the remaining non-residential land use of the

Assessor's Parcel shall be classified as Non-Residential Property.

"MMD Multi-Family Attached Property" means all Assessot's Parcels for which a building permit

could be issued for purposes of constructing one or more attached Residential Units per Assessor's.

Parcel with a permitted density range of 12-20 Residential Units per Acre and more fully described in

the Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan adopted on June 28,zOtI and as amended by the City Council.

"Non-Residential Property" means, for each Fiscal Year, all Taxable Property for which a building

permit could be issued for purposes of constructing non-residential buildings.

"Open Space Property" means property within the boundaries of CFD No. 23 146 which (a) has been

designated with specific boundaries and acreage on a Small Lot Final Subdivision Map as open space,

or (b) is classified by the City zoning code or County Assessor as open space, or (c) has been irrevocably

offered for dedication as open space to the federal government, the State of California, the County,

the City, any other public agency, a private, non-profit organization, or (d) is encumbered by an

easement or other restriction required by the City limiting the use of such property to open space.

"Outstanding Bonds" means all Bonds, which remain outstanding as defined in the lndenture

pursuant to which such Bonds were issued.

"Pay as You Go Costs" means that portion of the Facilities Special Tax Requirement attributable to

the direct payment for the acquisition and/or construction of public improvements, which are

authorized to be financed by CFD No. 23 lA6.

"Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property" means an Assessor's Parcel of Taxable

Property zoned for multi-family or non-residential land use for which all discretionary entitlements

have been obtained, including without limitation, development plan review and improvement plan

approval, such that building permits may be issued without further approvals for the construction of

multi-family Residential Units or non-residential buildings withih such Assessor's Parcel. The City shall

have sole discretion, based upon available development information, in classifying an Assessor's

Parcel as Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property.

"Planned Development" means the planned number of Residential Units, MHD Multi-Family

Attached Property Acreage, MMD Multi-Family Attached Property Acreage, and Non-Residential

Property Acreage planned within CFD No. 23 146, set forth in Attachment B or, following the Effective

Tax Rate Evaluation, Attachment D of this Amended Rate and Method of Apportionment, as amended

by the future recordation of all Large Lot Maps and Small Lot Final Subdivision Maps within CFD No.

23 tA6.

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

I mprovement Area No. 6jlng!9!gd
W

Page 5
Page 484

06/14/2022 Item No.17.



"price Point Study" means an analysis, prepared by an independent firm, to verify the estimated

average sales price within each land use category of Residential Property given the project location

and current market conditions.

"property Owner Association Property" means any property within the boundaries of CFD No. 23

146, which is (a) owned by a property owner association or (b) designated with specific boundaries

and Acreage on a Small Lot Final Subdivision Map as property owner association property' As used in

this definition, a property owner association includes any master or sub-association.

"Proportionately" means for Taxable Property that the ratio of the Facilities Special Tax levy to the

Maximum Facilities SpecialTax (or Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities SpecialTax) and

the Services Special Tax levy to the Maximum Services Special Tax is equal for all Assessors' Parcels

within each classification (Developed Property, Single Family Final Map Property, Permit Ready Multi-

Family/Non-Residential Property, Large Lot Property, etc.) within CFD No. 23 lA6.

"public Property" means any property within the boundaries of CFD No. 23 lA6, which (a) is owned

by a public agency, (b) has been irrevocably offered for dedication to a public agency, or (c) is

designated with specific boundaries and Acreage on a Small Lot Final Subdivision Map as property,

which will be owned by a public agency. For purposes of this definition, a public agency includes the

federal government, the State of California, the County, the City, or any other public agency'

"Residential Floor Area" means all of the square footage of living area within the perimeter of a

residential structure, not including any carport, walkway, garage, overhang, patio, enclosed patio, or

similar area. The determination of Residential Floor Area shall be made by the CFD No. 23 lA6

Administrator by reference to appropriate records kept by the City's building department. Residential

Floor Area for a residential structure will be based on the building permit(s) issued for such structure

prior to it being classified as Developed Property, and shall not change as a result of additions or

modifications made to such structure after such classification as Developed Property,

"Residential Lot" means an individual lot of land for which a building permit could be issued to

construct a Residential Unit.

"Residential Property" means, for each Fiscal Year, all Taxable Property for which a building permit

could be issued for purposes of constructing Residential Units, including Single-Family Detached
property - SF/SFHD Toning, Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning, MHD Multi-Family

Attached Property, and MMD Multi-Family Attached Property.

"Residential Unit" means a residential dwelling unit, not including guest quarters or "granny flats" as

allowed by the City zoning code.

"Se;ices Administrative Expenses" means the actual or reasonably estimated costs directly related

to the administration of the Services Special Tax including, but not limited to, the following: the costs

of computing the Services Special Taxes and preparing the annual Services Special Tax collection

schedules (whether by the City or designee thereof or both); the costs of collecting the Services Special

Taxes (whether by the County, the City, or otherwise); the costs associated with preparing Special Tax

disclosure statements and responding to public inquiries regarding the Services Special Tax; and the

costs of the City, CFD No. 23 lA6, or any designee thereof related to any appeal of the levy or

application of the Services Special Tax. Services Administrative Expenses shall also include amounts

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch W
Page 6lmprovement Area No. 6 - Amended

Page 485

06/14/2022 Item No.17.



estimated or advanced by the City or CFD No. 23 lA6 for any other administrative purposes related to

the Services Special Tax.

'.services Special Tax" means the annual Special Tax to be levied in each Fiscal Year on each Assessor's

Parcel of Taxable Property to fund the Services Special Tax Requirement.

.,services Special Tax Escalation Factor" means the June annualized percentage change of the

Consumer Price lndex for all Urban Consumers, for the San Francisco-Oakland-San Jose area, not to

exceed four percent (a%1. ln the event that the percentage change is negative, the Services Special

Tax Escalation Factor shall be equal to zero.

,,Services Special Tax Requirement" means the amount of Services Special Tax revenue required in

any Fiscal Year for CFD No. 23 lA6 to: (i) Pay Services Administrative Expenses in an amount designated

by the City; (ii) pay Authorized Services expenses; (iii) pay any amounts required to establish or

replenish any repair and contingency funds, capital improvement funds, or reserve funds related to

the Authorized Services expenses; (iv) cover any shortfalls that exist if, in any Fiscal Year, the levy of

the Facilities Special Tax on each Assessor's Parcel of Taxable Property is insufficient to pay the

Facilities SpecialTax Requirement in that Fiscal Year. Facilities Special Tax Requirement shortfalls shall

not include pay As You Go Costs, and (v) pay for reasonably anticipated delinquent Services Special

Taxes based on the delinquency rate for Services Special Taxes levied in the previous Fiscal Year; less

(vi) a credit for funds available to reduce the annual Services Special Tax levy as determined by the

CFD No. 23lAG Administrator.

,,Single-Famity Detached Property - MtD Zoning" means, for each Fiscal Year, all Taxable Property

for which a building permit could be issued for purposes of constructing one or more detached or

attached Residential Units with a permitted density range of 7-72 Residential Units per Acre and more

fully described in the Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan adopted on June 28,2OtI and as amended by

the City Council.

,,Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning" means, for each Fiscal Year, all Taxable

property for which a building permit could be issued for purposes of constructing one or more

Residential Units. Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning shall consist of either single-

family property with a permitted density range of L-4 Residential Units per Acre or single-family high

density property with a permitted density range of 4-7 Residential Units per Acre, which is more fully

described in the Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan adopted on June 28,2O1'! and as amended bythe City

Council.

,,Special Tax" means the annual Facilities Special Tax and Services Special Tax to be levied in each

FiscalYear on each Assessor's Parcel of Taxable Property to fund the Facilities SpecialTax Requirement

and the Services Special Tax Requirement.

,,Small Lot Final Map Property" means, for each Fiscal Year, all Taxable Property for which a Small Lot

Final Subdivision Map was recorded prior to June 30 of the previous Fiscal Year.

,'Small lot Final Map Remainder Property" means an Assessor's Parcel that is created from the

subdivision of Large Lot Property by the recordation of a Small Lot Final Subdivision Map that has not

yet been mapped for final development approval. Small Lot Final Map Remainder Property is that

portion of property for which the Small Lot Final Subdivision Map definition does not apply (i.e', does

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No' 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area No. 6 -l\mgndgd
W

Page 7
Page 486

06/14/2022 Item No.17.



not contain individual lots for which building permits may be issued for Residential Units without

further subdivision of such property). Each Fiscal Year, all Taxable Property classified as Small Lot Final

Map Remainder Property, as of June 30 of the previous Fiscal Year, will be considered Large Lot

Property.

'.Small Lot Final Subdivision Map" means a subdivision of property created by recordation of a final

subdivision map, parcel map or lot line adjustment, approved by the City pursuant to the Subdivision

Map Act (California Government Code Section 66410 et seq.) or recordation of a condominium plan

pursuant to California Civil Code 1352, that creates individual lots for which building permits may be

issued for Residential Units without further subdivision of such property.

"State" means the State of California

"Taxable Property" means all of the Assessor's Parcels within the boundaries of CFD No. 23 lA6 that

are not exempt from the CFD No. 23 146 Special Tax pursuant to law or Section F below.

"Total Effective Tax Rate" means the percentage of the Total Estimated Tax Burden as compared to

the estimated average sales price identified in the Price Point Study for each land use category of

Residential Property.

,.Total Estimated Tax Burden" means the total amount of overlapping property taxes anticipated to

be levied upon a Residential Unit, based upon the estimated average sales price identified in the Price

Point Study and existing property tax rates for the current Fiscal Year. Existing property tax rates shall

reflectthe actualpropertytax rates levied upon Taxable Property in the FiscalYearthatthe Effective

Tax Rate Evaluation is comPleted.

"Trustee" means the entity appointed pursuant to an lndenture to act as the trustee, fiscal agent, or

paying agent or a combination thereof.

"Undeveloped Property" means, for each Fiscal Year, all Taxable Property not classified as Developed
property, Small Lot Final Map Property, Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property, or Large

Lot Property.

B. ASSIGNMENT TO LAND USE CATEGORIES

Each Fiscal Year, using City and County records, City zoning information, and land use development

plans, all Assessor's Parcels within the boundaries of CFD No. 23 146 shall be designated as either

Taxable Property or Tax-Exempt Property.

All Taxable Property shall be further classified as Developed Property, Small Lot Final Map Property,
permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property, Large Lot Property, or Undeveloped Property

and shall be subject to the levy of the annual Special Tax determined pursuant to Sections C and D

below.

C. FACILITIES SPECIAL TAX

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area No. 6 - Amended
W

Page 8
Page 487

06/14/2022 Item No.17.



A Maximum Facilities Special Tax shall be assigned to all Taxable Property within CFD No. 23 lA6

according to the Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates set forth in Attachment A of this Amended Rate

and Method of APPortionment.

Once assigned, the sum of the total Maximum Facilities Special Tax shall be equal to or greater than

the Minimum Facilities Revenue, unless adjusted by an Effective Tax Rate Evaluation as described

below, The Minimum Facilities Revenue for Fiscal Year W202I-2022 is set forth in Attachment B

of thisAnenelgd Rate and Method of Apportionment.

On each July 1, commencing on July L,2W, the Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates and

Minimum Facilities Revenue shall be increased by the Facilities Special Tax Escalation Factor of the

Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates and Minimum Facilities Revenue in effect for the previous Fiscal

Year,

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch W
Page 9lmprovement Area No. 6 - Amended

Page 488

06/14/2022 Item No.17.



C.1. Future Assessor/s Parcel Changes - Prior to an Effective Tax Rate Evaluation

The Maximum Facilities Special Tax shall be assigned to all future Assessor's Parcel(s) created

from a subdivision, lot line adjustment, or merger of one or more Assessor's Parcels so that the

revised sum of the total Maximum Facilities Special Tax revenue is not less than the Minimum

Facilities Revenue set forth in Attachment B of this Amended Rate and Method of

Apportionment.

Undeveloped Property Subdividing into Large Lot Property

When Undeveloped Property subdivides into Large Lot Property, the Maximum Facilities Special

Tax shall be calculated for all Taxable Property as if all of the Taxable Property was classified as

Developed Property. The expected Developed Property Maximum Facilities Special Tax for any

Large Lot Property and any remaining Undeveloped Property shall be based upon the Planned

Development for the Large Lot Property and remaining Undeveloped Property.

lf the sum of the total expected Developed Property Maximum Facilities Special Tax generated

by all of the Taxable Property is greater than or equal to the Minimum Facilities Revenue, there

will be no further adjustments to the Developed Property, Small Lot Final Map Property and

permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates for

the Large Lot Property created from the Undeveloped Property subdivision.

lf the sum of the total expected Developed Property Maximum Facilities Special Tax is less than

the Minimum Facilities Revenue, the Developed Property, Small Lot Final Map Property and

permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates shall

be proportionately increased, on the Large Lot Property created from the Undeveloped Property

subdivision, until the sum of the total expected Developed Property Maximum Facilities Special

Tax is equal to the Minimum Facilities Revenue. Further, if the sum of the total current Maximum

Facilities SpecialTax is less than the Minimum Facilities Revenue, the Maximum Facilities Special

Tax Rates for the Large Lot Property and any remaining Undeveloped Property created from the

Undeveloped Property subdivision shall be Proportionately increased until the sum of the total

current Maximum Facilities Special Tax is equal to the Minimum Facilities Revenue, Attachment

B of thisArnerulggl Rate and Method of Apportionment shall be updated to reflect any increases

to the Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates from the Undeveloped Property subdivision. The

Developed Property, Small Lot Final Map Property and Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-

Residential Property Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates shall not be adjusted for any Taxable
property already classified as Developed Property, Small Lot Final Map Property or Permit Ready

Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property'

Large Lot Property Subdividing into Small Lot Final Map Property and Permit Ready Multi-

Family/Non-Residential Property

When Large Lot Property subdivides into Small Lot Final Map Property or Permit Ready Multi-

Family/Non-Residential Property, the Maximum Facilities Special Tax shall be calculated for all

Taxable Property as if all of the Taxable Property was classified as Developed Property. lf the

Large Lot Property subdivision also creates Small Lot Final Map Remainder Property, the

expected Developed Property Maximum Facilities Special Tax for the Small Lot Final Map

Remainder Property shall be based upon the Planned Development for the Small Lot Final Map

Remainder Property. The expected Developed Property Maximum Facilities Special Tax for any

remaining Large Lot Property and Undeveloped Property shall be based upon the Planned

Development of the Large Lot Property and the Undeveloped Property.

lmprovement Area No. 6 - Amended

(Folsom Ranch)City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 W
Page 10

Page 489

06/14/2022 Item No.17.



lf the sum of the total expected Developed Property Maximum Facilities Special Tax is greater

than or equal to the Minimum Facilities Revenue, there will be no further adjustments to the
Developed Property, Small Lot Final Map Property and Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-
Residential Property Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates for the Small Lot Final Map Property,
Small Lot Final Map Remainder Property and Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential
Property created from the Large Lot Property subdivision.

lf the sum of the total expected Developed Property Maximum Facilities Special Tax is less than
the Minimum Facilities Revenue, and such difference is not eliminated by the full or partial
prepayment of the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax pursuant to
Section K, the Developed Property, Small Lot Final Map Property and Permit Ready Multi-
Family/Non-Residential Property Maximum Facilities SpecialTax Rates shall be Proportionately
increased, on the Small Lot Final Map Property, Small Lot Final Map Remainder Property and

Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property created from the Large Lot Property
subdivision, until the sum of the total expected Developed Property Maximum Facilities Special
Tax is equal to the Minimum Facilities Revenue. Attachment B of this Amended Rate and Method
of Apportionment shall be updated to reflect any increases to the Maximum Facilities Special Tax

Rates from the Large Lot Property subdivision. The Developed Property, Small Lot Final Map
Property and Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property Maximum Facilities Special

Tax Rates shall not be adjusted for any Taxable Property already classified as Developed
Property, Small Lot Final Map Property or Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property
created prior to the Large Lot Property subdivision.

C.2. Effective Tax Rate Evaluation
Prior to the issuance of the first building permit or the first series of Bonds within CFD No. 231A6,
whichever comes earlier, an Effective Tax Rate Evaluation will be completed. Following the
Effective Tax Rate Evaluation, Attachment C of this Amended Rate and Method of
Apportionment will be updated to reflect the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities

Special Tax Rate for allTaxable Property in CFD No. 23 146.

Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates
As part of the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation, a Price Point Study will be prepared and estimated
average sales prices will be established for each Residential Property land use category. Using

the estimated average sales price information determined in the Price Point Study, the Total
Estimated Tax Burden and Total Effective Tax Rate will be calculated, using the Developed
Property Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates set forth in Attachment A, for each Residential
Property land use category. lf the calculated Total Effective Tax Rate is less than or equalto the
Total Maximum Effective Tax Rate for a Residential Property land use category, the Maximum
Facilities SpecialTax Rate shall not be adjusted and will be assigned using the Developed Property
Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates set forth in Attachment A. Attachment C of this Amended
Rate and Method of Apportionment will be updated to set forth the Developed Property
Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rate for each Residential Property
land use category.

lf the Total Effective Tax Rate for any Residential Property land use category exceeds the Total
Maximum Effective Tax Rate, the Developed Property Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rate set
forth in Attachment A shall be reduced until the Total Effective Tax Rate is less than or equal to

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area No. 6 - Amended
W

Page 11

Page 490

06/14/2022 Item No.17.



the Total Maximum Effective Tax Rate for that Residential Property land use category.

Attachment C of this Amended Rate and Method of Apportionment will be updated to set forth

the Developed Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rate for

each Residential Property land use category'

Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities Revenue

As a result of the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation, if the calculated Total Effective Tax Rate is less

than or equal to the Total Maximum Effective Tax Rate for a Residential Property land use

category used in the Minimum Facilities Revenue calculation, the Developed Property Maximum

Facilities Special Tax Rate for the applicable Residential Property land use category shall not be

adjusted and the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Developed Property Maximum Facilities Special

Tax Rate will be assigned using the Developed Property Maximum Facilities SpecialTax Rates set

forth in Attachment B. Attachment D of this Amended Rate and Method of Apportionment will

be updated to set forth the Developed Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities

Special Tax Rate for each Residential Property land use category and the Effective Tax Rate

Evaluation Minimum Facilities Revenue.

lf the calculated Total Effective Tax Rate exceeds the Total Maximum Effective Tax Rate for a

Residential Property land use category used in the Minimum Facilities Revenue calculation, the

Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Developed Property Maximum Facilities special Tax Rate will be

assigned using the Developed Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special

Tax Rates set forth in Attachment C. Attachment D of this Amended Rate and Method of

Apportionment will be updated to set forth the Developed Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation

Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rate for each Residential Property land use category and the

Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities Revenue.

C.3. Future Assessot/s Parcel Changes - After an Effective Tax Rate Evaluation

The Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax shall be assigned to all future

Assessor's Parcel(s) created from a subdivision, lot line adjustment, or merger of one or more

Assessor's Parcels so that the revised sum of the total Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum

Facilities Special Tax revenue is not less than the total Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum

Facilities Revenue set forth in Attachment D of this Amended Rate and Method of

Apportionment.

Undeveloped Property Subdividing into Large Lot Property

When Undeveloped Property subdivides into Large Lot Property, the Effective Tax Rate

Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax shall be calculated for all Taxable Property as if all of

the Taxable Property was classified as Developed Property. The expected Developed Property

Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax for any Large Lot Property and any

remaining Undeveloped Property shall be based upon the Planned Development for the Large

Lot Property and remaining Undeveloped Property.

lf the sum of the total expected Developed Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum

Facilities Special Tax generated by all of the Taxable Property is greater than or equal to the

Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities Revenue, there will be no further adjustments

to the Developed Property, Small Lot Final Map Property and Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-

Residential Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates for the

Large Lot Property created from the Undeveloped Property subdivision.

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No' 23 (Folsom Ranch W
Page 12lmorovement Area No. 6 - Amended

Page 491

06/14/2022 Item No.17.



lf the sum of the total expected Developed Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum

Facilities Special Tax is less than the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities Revenue,

the Developed Property, Small Lot Final Map Property and Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-

Residential Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates shall be

Proportionately increased, on the Large Lot Property created from the Undeveloped Property

subdivision, until the sum of the total expected Developed Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation

Maximum Facilities Special Tax is equal to the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities

Revenue, Further, if the sum of the total current Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities

Special Tax is less than the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities Revenue, the

Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates for the Large Lot Property and

any remaining Undeveloped Property created from the Undeveloped Property subdivision shall

be Proportionately increased until the sum of the total current Effective Tax Rate Evaluation

Maximum Facilities Special Tax is equal to the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities

Revenue. Attachment D of this Amended Rate and Method of Apportionment shall be updated

to reflect any increases to the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates

from the Undeveloped Property subdivision. The Developed Property, Small Lot Final Map

Property and Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation

Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates shall not be adjusted for any Taxable Property already

classified as Developed Property, Small Lot Final Map Property or Permit Ready Multi-
Family/Non-Residential Property.

Large Lot Property Subdividing into Small Lot Final Map Property and Permit Ready Multi'
Family/Non-Residential Property
When Large Lot Property subdivides into Small Lot Final Map Property or Permit Ready Multi-
Family/Non-Residential Property, the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special

Tax shall be calculated for all Taxable Property as if all of the Taxable Property was classified as

Developed Property. lf the Large Lot Property subdivision also creates Small Lot Final Map

Remainder Property, the expected Developed Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum

Facilities Special Tax for the Small Lot Final Map Remainder Property shall be based upon the

Planned Development for the Small Lot Final Map Remainder Property. The expected Developed

Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax for any remaining Large

Lot Property and Undeveloped Property shall be based upon the Planned Development of the

Large Lot Property and the Undeveloped Property.

lf the sum of the total expected Developed Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum

Facilities Special Tax is greater than or equal to the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum

Facilities Revenue, there will be no further adjustments to the Developed Property, Small Lot

Final Map Property and Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property Effective Tax Rate

Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates for the Small Lot Final Map Property, Small Lot

Final Map Remainder Property and Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property created

from the Large Lot Property subdivision.

lf the sum of the total expected Developed Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum

Facilities Special Tax is less than the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities Revenue,

and such difference is not eliminated by the full or partial prepayment of the Effective Tax Rate

Evaluation Maximum Facilities SpecialTax pursuant to Section K, the Developed Property, Small

Lot Final Map Property and Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property Effective Tax

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area No. 6j1ngnglggl
W

Page L3
Page 492

06/14/2022 Item No.17.



Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates shall be Proportionately increased, on the

Small Lot Final Map Property, Small Lot Final Map Remainder Property and Permit Ready Multi-

Family/Non-Residential Property created from the Large Lot Property subdivision, until the sum

of the total expected Developed Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities

Special Tax is equalto the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities Revenue. Attachment

D of thisAfngrclCgl Rate and Method of Apportionment shall be updated to reflect any increases

to the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates from the Large Lot

Property subdivision. The Developed Property, Small Lot Final Map Property and Permit Ready

Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special

Tax Rates shall not be adjusted for any Taxable Property already classified as Developed

Property, Small Lot Final Map Property or Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property

created prior to the Large Lot Property subdivision.

C.4. Method of Apportionment of Facilities Special Tax

Using the definitions and procedures described herein, the CFD No. 23 lA5 Administrator shall

determine the Facilities Special Tax Requirement and levy the Facilities Special Tax until the

amount of Facilities Special Taxes equals the Facilities Special Tax Requirement. The Facilities

Special Tax shall be levied each Fiscal Year as follows:

Prior to an Effective Tax Rate Evaluation
First: The Facilities SpecialTax shall be levied Proportionately on all Developed Property at a rate

up to 100% of the Maximum Facilities Special Tax in order to satisfy the Facilities Special Tax

Requirement.

Second: lf additional monies are needed to satisfy the Facilities Special Tax Requirement after

the first step has been completed, the Facilities Special Tax shall be levied Proportionately on all

Small Lot Final Map Property at a rate up to 100% of the Maximum Facilities Special Tax. The

Facilities Special Tax shall be levied on Small Lot Final Map Property for the entire portion of the

Facilities Special Tax Requirement, excluding only Pay As You Go Costs.

Third: lf additional monies are needed to satisfy the Facilities Special Tax Requirement after the

first two steps have been completed, the Facilities SpecialTax shall be levied Proportionately on

all Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property at a rate up to 100% of the Maximum

Facilities Special Tax. The Facilities SpecialTax shall be levied on Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-

Residential Property for the entire portion of the Facilities Special Tax Requirement, excluding

only Pay As You Go Costs.

Fourth: lf additional monies are needed to satisfy the Facilities Special Tax Requirement after

the first three steps have been completed, the Facilities Special Tax shall be levied

Proportionately on all Large Lot Property at a rate up to 100% of the Maximum Facilities Special

Tax. The Facilities Special Tax shall be levied on Large Lot Property for the entire portion of the

Facilities Special Tax Requirement, excluding only Pay As You Go Costs.

Fifth: lf additional monies are needed to satisfy the Facilities Special Tax Requirement after the
first four steps have been completed, the Facilities Special Tax shall be levied Proportionately on

all Undeveloped Property at a rate up to tOO% of the Maximum Facilities Special Tax. The

Facilities Special Tax shall be levied on Undeveloped Property for the entire portion of the

Facilities Special Tax Requirement, excluding only Pay As You Go Costs.

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) W
Page L4lmprovement Area -Amended

Page 493

06/14/2022 Item No.17.



After an Effective Tax Rate Evaluation
First: The Facilities SpecialTax shall be levied Proportionately on all Developed Property at a rate

up to 100% of the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax in order to satisfy

the Facilities Special Tax Requirement.

Second: lf additional monies are needed to satisfy the Facilities Special Tax Requirement after

the first step has been completed, the Facilities Special Tax shall be levied Proportionately on all

Small Lot Final Map Property at a rate up to 100% of the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum

Facilities Special Tax. The Facilities SpecialTax shall be levied on Small Lot Final Map Property for

the entire portion of the Facilities Special Tax Requirement, excluding only Pay As You Go Costs,

Third: lf additional monies are needed to satisfy the Facilities Special Tax Requirement after the

first two steps have been completed, the Facilities Special Tax shall be levied Proportionately on

all Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property at a rate up to 100% of the Effective Tax

Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax. The Facilities Special Tax shall be levied on

Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property for the entire portion of the Facilities

Special Tax Requirement, excluding only Pay As You Go Costs.

Fourth: lf additional monies are needed to satisfy the Facilities Special Tax Requirement after

the first three steps have been completed, the Facilities Special Tax shall be levied

Proportionately on all Large Lot Property at a rate up to 100% of the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation

Maximum Facilities Special Tax. The Facilities Special Tax shall be levied on Large Lot Property

for the entire portion of the Facilities Special Tax Requirement, excluding only Pay As You Go

Costs.

Fifth: lf additional monies are needed to satisfy the Facilities Special Tax Requirement after the

first four steps have been completed, the Facilities Special Tax shall be levied Proportionately on

all Undeveloped Property at a rate up to 100% of the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum

Facilities Special Tax, The Facilities Special Tax shall be levied on Undeveloped Property for the

entire portion of the Facilities Special Tax Requirement, excluding only Pay As You Go Costs.

D. SERVICES SPECIAT TAX

A Services Special Tax shall be assigned to all Taxable Property within CFD No. 23 lA6 according to the

Maximum Services Special Tax Rates set forth in Attachment A of this Amended Rate and Method of

Apportionment.

D.1. Increase in the Maximum Services SpecialTax
On each July 1, commencing on July t,WM, the Maximum Services SpecialTax Rates shall

be increased by the Services Special Tax Escalation Factor of the Maximum Services Special Tax

Rates in effect for the previous Fiscal Year.

D.2. Method of Apportionment of Services Special Tax

lf, in any FiscalYear, the Facilities SpecialTax is levied against each Assessor's Parcelof Taxable

Property within CFD No. 23 146 and the Facilities Special Tax revenues generated are insufficient

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area No. 6 -Amended
W

Page 15

Page 494

06/14/2022 Item No.17.



to pay the Facilities Special Tax Requirement such shortfall shall be deemed a component of the

Services Special Tax Requirement in that Fiscal Year, and proceeds from the levy of the Services

Special Tax shallfirst be applied to mitigate the shortfall in the Facilities SpecialTax Requirement

before being used to pay for Authorized Services. The Services Special Tax revenue shall not be

applied to any Facilities Special Tax Requirement shortfalls attributable to Pay As You Go Costs

authorized to be financed by CFD No. 23 lA6.

Using the definitions and procedures described herein, the CFD No. 23 IAG Administrator shall

determine the Services Special Tax Requirement and levy the Services Special Tax until the

amount of Services Special Tax equals the Services Special Tax Requirement. The Services Special

Tax shall be levied each Fiscal Year as follows:

First: The Services Special Tax shall be levied Proportionately on all Developed Property at a rate

up to 100% of the Maximum Services Special Tax in order to satisfY the Services Special Tax

Requirement.

Second: lf additional monies are needed to satisfy the Services Special Tax Requirement after

the first step has been completed, the Services Special Tax shall be levied Proportionately on all

Small Lot Final Map Property at a rate up to 100% of the Maximum Services Special Tax in order

to satisfy the Services Special Tax Requirement.

Third: lf additional monies are needed to satisfy the Services Special Tax Requirement after the

first two steps have been completed, the Services Special Tax shall be levied Proportionately on

all permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property at a rate up to 100% of the Maximum

Services Special Tax in order to satisfy the Services Special Tax Requirement.

Fourth: lf additional monies are needed to satisfy the Services Special Tax Requirement after the

three steps have been completed, the Services SpecialTax shall be levied Proportionately on all

Large Lot Property at a rate up to 100% of the Maximum Services Special Tax in order to satisfy

the Services Special Tax Requirement.

E. DELINQUENCIES

Notwithstanding the above, under no circumstances will the CFD No. 23 lA6 Facilities Special Tax

levied against any Assessor/s Parcel of Developed Property classified as Residential Property, in any

Fiscal Year, be increased as a consequence of the delinquency or default in the payment of the CFD

No. 23 146 Facilities Special Taxes by the owner or owners of any other Taxable Property by more than

ten percent (L0%) above the amount that would have been levied against such Assessor's Parcel in

such Fiscal Year had there been no delinquencies or defaults.

F. EXEMPTIONS

F.1. The CFD No. 23 lA6 Administrator shall classify the following as Exempt Property: Public Property,
property Owner Association Property, Open Space Property, Assessor's Parcels exempt from the

Special Tax pursuant to Section 53340 of the Act, and Assessor's Parcels with public or utility

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No' 23 (Folsom Ranch) W
Page 16lmprovement Area No. 6 ded

Page 495

06/14/2022 Item No.17.



easements making impractical their utilization for any use other than the purposes set forth in

the easement.

F.2. The Maximum Facilities Special Tax obligation or, if applicable, the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation

Maximum Facilities Special Tax obligation for Taxable Property which will be transferred or

dedicated to a public agency and will be classified as Public Property shall be prepaid in full by

the seller, pursuant to Section K, prior to the transfer/dedication of such Taxable Property' Until

the Maximum Facilities Special Tax obligation or, if applicable, the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation

Maximum Facilities Special Tax obligation for any such Taxable Property is prepaid, the Taxable

property shall continue to be subject to the levy of the Facilities Special Tax. An exception to this

may be made if an Assessor's Parcel of Public Property, such as a school site, is relocated to an

Assessor's Parcel of Taxable Property, in which case the Assessor's Parcel of previously Public

property becomes Taxable Property and the Assessor's Parcel of previously Taxable Property

becomes Public Property. This trading of an Assessor's Parcel from Taxable Property to Public

property will be permitted to the extent there is no loss in Maximum Facilities Special Tax

revenue or, if applicable, Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax revenue,

and the transfer is agreed to by the owners of all Assessor's Parcels involved in the transfer and

the City Council.

F.3. lf the use of an Assessor's Parcel changes so that such Assessor's Parcel is no longer eligible to

be classified as one of the uses set forth in Section F.L above that would make such Assessor's

Parcel eligible to continue to be classified as Exempt Property, such Assessor's Parcel shall cease

to be classified as Exempt Property and shall be deemed to be Taxable Property and subject to

the Special Tax.

G. TRANSFERS

prior to the issuance of the first series of Bonds within CFD No. 231A6, the City may permit the transfer

of Maximum Facilities Special Tax or Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax from

one Assessor's Parcel to another Assessor's Parcel. Before recordation of a Small Lot Final Subdivision

Map, if a subdivision map is required, the City may permit a transfer if the number of planned

Residential Units, Multi-Family Attached Property Acreage, or Non-Residential Property Acreage is

transferred from one Assessor's Parcel(s) to another Assessor's Parcel(s) in any portion of Large Lot

property. The City may, in its sole discretion, allow for a transfer of the Maximum Facilities Special Tax

or Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax from one Assessor's Parcel to another

Assessor's Parcel provided such a transfer shall be allowed only if (1) all adjustments are agreed to in

writing by the affected property owners and the City's Finance Director, and (2) there is no reduction

in the sum of the total Maximum Facilities SpecialTax or sum of the total Effective Tax Rate Evaluation

Maximum Facilities Special Tax as a result of the transfer. Should a transfer result in an amendment

to Attachment B or, following an Effective Tax Rate Evaluation, Attachment D of this Amended Rate

and Method of Apportionment, the requesting property owner shall bear the costs to affect the

transfer in the CFD No. 23 lA6 records and prepare the required amendments to Attachment B or,

following an Effective Tax Rate Evaluation, Attachment D of this Amended Rate and Method of

Apportionment.

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No' 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area No. 6 - Amended
W

Page 17
Page 496

06/14/2022 Item No.17.



H. INTERPRETATIONS

The City reserves the right to make minor administrative and technical changes to this document that

do not materially affect the Amended Rate and Method of Apportionment of Special Tax. ln addition,

the interpretation and application of any section of this document shall be at the City's discretion.

lnterpretations may be made by the City by ordinance or resolution for purposes of clarifying any

vagueness or ambiguity in this Amended Rate and Method of Apportionment of Special Tax'

I. REVIEWAPPEATS

The CFD No. 23 146 Administrator may establish such procedures, as it deems necessary to undertake

the review of any such appeal. The CFD No. 23 146 Administrator shall interpret this Amended Rate

and Method of Apportionment of Special Tax and make determinations relative to the annual

administration of the Special Tax and any property owner appeals, as herein specified.

Any property owner may file a written appeal of the Special Tax with the CFD No. 23 IAG Administrator

claiming that the amount or application of the Special Tax is not correct. The appeal must be filed not

later than one calendar year after having paid the Special Taxes that are disputed, and the appellant

must be current in all payments of Special Taxes. ln addition, during the term of the appeal process,

all Special Taxes levied must be paid on or before the payment date established when the lew was

made. The appeal must specify the reasons why the appellant claims the Special Taxes are in error.

The CFD No. 23 lA6 Administrator shall review the appeal, meet with the appellant if the CFD No. 23

146 Administrator deems necessary, and advise the appellant of its determination.

lf the property owner disagrees with the CFD No. 23 lA6 Administrator's decision relative to the

appeal, the owner may file a written notice with the City Manager appealing the amount of the Special

Tax levied on such Assessor's Parcel. lf following such consultation and action{-if any. by the City

Managerf. the property owner believes such error still exists, such person may file a written notice

with the City Council appealing the amount of the Special Tax levied on such Assessor's Parcel, The

decision of the City shall be final and binding to all persons. lf the decision of the CFD No. 23 lA5

Administrator or subsequent decision by the City Manager or City Council requires the Special Taxes

to be modified or changed in favor of the property owner, no cash refund shall be made for prior

years' Special Taxes, but an adjustment shall be made to credit future Special Taxes. This procedure

shall be exclusive and its exhaustion by any property owner shall be a condition precedent to filing

any legal action by such owner,

J. MANNER OF COLLECTION

The annual Special Tax shall be collected in the same manner and at the same time as ordinary ad

valorem property taxes; provided, however, that CFD No. 23 lA6, may, at the sole discretion of the

City, directly bill the Special Tax, may collect Special Taxes at a different time or in a different manner

as necessary to meet its financial obligations, and may covenant to foreclose and may actually

foreclose on Assessor's Parcels of Taxable Property that are delinquent in the payment of Special

Taxes.

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch W
Page L8lmprovement Area No. 6 - Amended

Page 497

06/14/2022 Item No.17.



K. PREPAYMENT OF FACILITIES SPECIAL TAX

The Facilities Special Tax obligation of an Assessor's Parcel of Taxable Property may be prepaid and

permanently satisfied as described herein; provided that there are no delinquent Special Taxes with

respect to such Assessor's Parcel at the time of prepayment. An owner of an Assessor's Parcel

intending to prepay the Facilities Special Tax obligation shall provide the CFD No. 23 lA5 Administrator

with written notice of intent to prepay. Within 30 days of receipt of such written notice, the CFD No.

23 lA6 Administrator shall notify such owner of the prepayment amount of such Assessot/s Parcel.

prepayment must be made not less than 60 days prior to the next occurring date that notice of

redemption of Bonds, whichever date is earlier, from the proceeds of such prepayment may be given

to the Trustee pursuant to the lndenture. The CFD No. 23 lA6 Administrator may charge a fee for

providing this service.

K.1. Prepayment in Full

As of the proposed date of prepayment, the Prepayment Amount shall be calculated as follows

Step 1: Determine the current Fiscal Year Maximum Facilities Special Tax for the Assessor's

parcel based on the assignment of the Maximum Facilities Special Tax described in Section C

ab€ve. lf an Effective Tax Rate Evaluation has occurred, determine the current Fiscal Year

Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax for the Assessor's Parcel based on

the assignment of the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax described in

Section C+beve. lf the Assessor's Parcel is not already classified as Developed Property, the

Maximum Facilities SpecialTax (or Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax)

shall be assigned as though the Assessor's Parcel was already designated as Developed Property.

Step 2: Calculate the annual revenue produced, by annually applying the Facilities Special Tax

Escalation Factor, from the Maximum Facilities Special Tax (or Effective Tax Rate Evaluation

Maximum Facilities Special Tax) from the date of prepayment through the Facilities Special Tax

Term, except that this final date may be amended by the City no later than the time of the

calculation of the prepayment. lf the final date used in the prepayment calculation is amended

by the City, this amended final date shall apply to any and all prepayment calculations from that

point forward.

Step 3: Calculate the present value of the Assessor's Parcel's annual Maximum Facilities Special

Tax (or Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities SpecialTax) revenue stream determined

in Step 2. The present value shall be calculated using a discount rate that earns a rate of interest

that, when the prepayment is invested in City permitted and available investments, would

produce annual revenues equal to the amounts calculated in Step 2.

lf there are Outstanding Bonds at the time of the Prepayment Amount calculation, the
prepayment Amount shall be first allocated to the Redemption Amount. lf the Prepayment

Amount is insufficient to fund the Redemption Amount, then the Prepayment Amount shall be

increased to equal the Redemption Amount.

The Redemption Amount is calculated as follows:

Step 1: Divide the Maximum Facilities Special Tax (or Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum

Facilities Special Tax) computed pursuant to Step 1 of Section K.1 by the total Maximum

lmprovement Area No. 6 - Amended

Ranch)City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom W
Page 19

Page 498

06/14/2022 Item No.17.



Facilities Special Taxes (or total Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special

Taxes) for the entire CFD No. 23 146, based on the Maximum Facilities Special Taxes (or

Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Taxes) that could be charged in the

current Fiscal Year if all Taxable Property were designated as Developed Property, excluding

any Assessor's Parcels which have prepaid the Maximum Facilities Special Tax (or Effective

Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax) obligation (the "Prepayment Quotient").

Step 2: Multiply the Prepayment Quotient by the Outstanding Bonds to compute the amount

of Outstanding Bonds to be redeemed (the "Bond Redemption Amount").

Step 3: Multiply the Bond Redemption Amount by the applicable redemption premium, if any,

on the Outstanding Bonds to be redeemed.

Step 4: Compute the amount needed to pay interest on the Bond Redemption Amount from

the first Bond interest payment date following the current Fiscal Year until the earliest

redemption date for the Outstanding Bonds.

Step 5: Determine that portion of Facilities Special Taxes levied on the Assessor's Parcel in

the current Fiscal Year to satisfy the Facilities Special Tax Requirement, which have not yet

been paid.

Step 6: A reserve fund credit shall equal the lesser of: (a) the expected reduction in the

reserve requirement (as defined in the lndenture for the Bonds), if any, associated with the

redemption of Outstanding Bonds as a result of the prepayment, or (b) the amount derived

by subtracting the new reserve requirement (as defined in the lndenture for the Bonds) in

effect after the redemption of Outstanding Bonds as a result of the prepayment from the

balance in the reserve fund on the prepayment date, but in no event shall such amount be

less than zero. Such reserve fund credit will not decrease the balance in the reserve fund

below the new reserve requirement.

Step 7: lf any capitalized interest for the Outstanding Bonds will not have been expended at

the time of the first interest and/or principal payment following the current Fiscal Year, a

capitalized interest credit shall be calculated by multiplying the quotient computed pursuant

to Step 1 by the expected balance in the capitalized interest fund after such first interest

payment.

Step 8: The redemption amount is equal to the sum of the amounts computed pursuant to
Steps 2, 3,4, and 5, less the amount computed pursuant to Steps 6 and 7 (the "Redemption

Amount").

lf the Prepayment Amount exceeds the Redemption Amount; then any remaining Prepayment

Amount, after allocating the Redemption Amount, shall be designated as Pay as You Go Costs.

The Prepayment Amount shall include any fees or expenses, including the costs of computation

of the prepayment, the costs to invest the prepayment proceeds, the cost of redeeming Bonds,

and the costs of recording any notices to evidence the prepayment and the redemption (the

"Administrative Fees and Expenses").

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area No. 6 - Amended
W

Page 20

Page 499

06/14/2022 Item No.17.



ln addition, the City has the authority to adjust the Prepayment Amount calculated above if a

portion or allof the current propertytax billand the portion attributable to the payment of the

Facilities Special Tax has not been used to make an interest and/or principal payment on the

Bonds.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, no Facilities Special Tax prepayment shall be allowed unless the

amount of Maximum Facilities SpecialTaxes (or Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities

Special Taxes), net of any priority administration, if any as defined in the Bond documents, that

may be levied on Taxable Property, in each Fiscal Year, both prior to and after the proposed

prepayment, is at least 1.1 times the annual debt service on all Outstanding Bonds to be paid

from the Maximum Facilities Special Taxes (or Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities

Special Taxes) in each Fiscal Year,

K.2. Prepayment in Part
The Facilities Special Tax obligation may be partially prepaid in any percentage of the full

Prepayment Amount. The amount of the partial prepayment shall be calculated as in the above

Section K.1; except that a partial prepayment shall be calculated according to the following

formula:

PP=((Pr-A)xF)+A

These terms have the following meaning:

PP = the Partial Prepayment Amount
PE = the Prepayment Amount calculated according to Section K.1 above

A = the Administrative Fees and Expenses calculated according to Section K.L above

F = the percent by which the owner of the Assessor's Parcel(s) is partially prepaying the

Facilities Special Tax obligation.

The owner of an Assessor's Parcel who desires to partially prepay the Facilities Special Tax

obligation shall notify the CFD No. 23 146 Administrator of (i) such owner's intent to partially

prepay the Facilities Special Tax obligation, (ii) the amount of partial prepayment expressed in

increments equal to percentage of the full Prepayment Amount, and (iii) the company or agency

that will be acting as the escrow agent, if applicable. Partial prepayment must be made not less

than 60 days prior to the next occurring date that notice of redemption of Bonds, whichever date

is earlier, from the proceeds of such prepayment may be given to the Trustee pursuant to the

lndenture. The CFD No. 23 146 Administrator may charge a fee for providing this service,

with respect to any Assessor's Parcel that is partially prepaid, the cFD No. 23 lA6 Administrator

shall indicate in the records of CFD No. 23 IAG that there has been a partial prepayment of the

Facilities Special Tax obligation and that a portion of the Facilities Special Tax obligation equal to

the outstanding percentage (1,0O - F) of the remaining Facilities Special Tax obligation shall

continue to be authorized to be levied on such Assessor's Parcel pursuant to Section C,

Notwithstanding the foregoing, no partial prepayment shall be allowed unless the amount of

Maximum Facilities Special Taxes (or Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special

Taxes), net of any priority administration, if any as defined in the Bond documents, that may be

levied on Taxable Property, in each Fiscal Year, both prior to and after the proposed partial

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area No. 6 - Amended
W

Page 21
Page 500

06/14/2022 Item No.17.



prepayment, is at least 1.1 times the annual debt service on all Outstanding Bonds to be paid

from the Maximum Facilities Special Taxes (or Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities

Special Taxes) in each Fiscal Year.

L. TERM OF SPECIAT TAX

The Maximum Facilities Special Tax and Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax

shall be levied commencing in Fiscal Year M-2021-2O22 to the extent necessary to fully satisfy the

Facilities Special Tax Requirement and shall be levied for the Facilities Special Tax Term,

The Maximum Services Special Tax shall be levied commencing in Fiscal Year 2e2$2021-2022 and

shall be levied in perpetuity, unless and until such time the City determines that revenues are no

longer needed to pay the Services Special Tax Requirement.

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area No. 6 - Amended
W

Page22
Page 501

06/14/2022 Item No.17.



ATTACHMENT A
City of Folsom

Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 6
Maximum Special Tax Rates

( Fisca I Yea r 3ei!&,2 O2t-20221

Taxed Per

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Acre

Acre

Acre

w$202t-2022
Maximum

Services Special
Tax Rate(2)

s{Jsq
ffi
Lf50

{Jsq

L1€'0

t4
8sq

850

850

850

854

8s0

3€e310

3€e310

0

w2g'2023-2022
Maximum

Facilities Special
Tax Rate(l}

$#85q

ffi
3Fse9

w
3p0eq

4eeeq

3fs6q

3Fz+9

sFssa

3#9
3peeQ

2p0eq

30,€eg6QQ

3epeeq

3ep€ea

Residential
Floor Area

> 3,500

3,200 - 3,599

2,800 - 3,199

2,400-2,799

2,OO0 -2,399
< 2,000

> 3,500

3,200 - 3,599

2,800 - 3,199

2,400-2,799

2,OOO -2,399
< 2,000

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Land Use Category

Developed Propefi:

Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning

MMD Multi-Family Attached Property

M HD Multi-Family Attached Property

Non-Residentia I Property

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

I mprovement Area 6l\!neng!gg[
W

Page 23
Page 502

06/14/2022 Item No.17.



ATTACHMENT A
City of Folsom

Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 6
Maximum Special Tax Rates

( Fisca I Yea r 2S!$2 OZ[-2O221

(L) On each July 1, commencing on July L,WM the Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates shall be increased bythe Facilities Special Tax

Escalation Factor of the Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates in effect for the previous Fiscal Year.

(2) On each July 1, commencing on July 7,MUZ the Maximum Services Special Tax Rates shall be increased by an amount equal to the Services

Special Tax Escalation Factor of the Maximum Services Special Tax Rates in effect for the previous Fiscal Year.

(3)Excludesperm*+eaayMnDMulti-Familyl\!Ec[9g!-!ppgrty3nd-Non-ResidentialProperty@
{3X+) rxauaes ruon-n .

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 6 -l\mendggl
W

Page24

Taxed Per

Residential Lot

Residential Lot

Acre

Acre

Acre

w2$202L-2022
Maximum

Services Special
Tax Rate(2l

s+7s0

850

$€g(3310(4)

Ssee31q(t)

S5eg31oF)

?p'g}202t-2022
Maximum

Facilities Special
Tax Rate(ll

s2peeq

2peea

S1{#39Eoo(3'}

Sso,oeeooo(x

$so,egg6gEt3t

Residential
Floor Area

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Land Use Category

SmallLot Final Map Property:

Single-Family Detachdd Property - SF/SFHD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning

Permit Ready Multi'Family/Non-Residential
Property

Large Lot Property

Undeveloped Property

Page 503

06/14/2022 Item No.17.



ATTACHMENT B

City of Folsom

Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 6
Minimum Facilities Revenue
( F isca I Yea r 2ei!S2 O2l-2O221

(1) On each July 1, commencing on luly L,2Q1@ the Developed Property Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates and Minimum

Facilities Revenue shall be increased by the Facilities Special Tax Escalation Factor of the Developed Property Maximum Facilities

Special Tax Rates and Minimum Facilities Revenue in effect for the previous Fiscal Year.

(2) As a result of future Assessor's Parcel changes, described in Section C.1, the assigned Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates for

Developed Property may exceed the Developed Property Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates set forth in this table.

(3) The total Minimum Facilities Revenue may be decreased as result of all or a portion of Maximum Facilities Special Tax obligations

being prepaid and permanently satisfied pursuant to Section K.

(4) Based upon the Developed Property Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rate for Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning

and Single-Famif Detached Property - MLD Zoning with Residential Floor Area of less than 2,000 square feet.

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 6lqmerylgd
@

Page 25

?pp+2021-2022
Minimum Facilities

ggygllus (rl(rl

So

0

w&,476
l.W
133#8sq

SE'gjJpBi-triIS

w,s.202L-2022
Developed Property
Maximum Facilities
Special f3x P31s(rXzl

$peeq
2pesq

30,9@q00

1ffi9
w

Planned Number
of Residential
Units / Acres

0

0

e.s4€

9.?26

17.47t

Land Use Category

Developed Propefi:

Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning(+l

Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning(a)

M MD Multi-Family Attached Property

MHD Multi-Family Attached Property

Non-Residential Property

Total Minimum Facilities Revenue

Page 504

06/14/2022 Item No.17.



ATTACHMENT C

City of Folsom

Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 6
Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities SpecialTax Rates

( Fisca I Yea r 3ei!S2 O2t'2O221

Taxed Per

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

ResidentialUnit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Acre

Acre

Acre

20f2$202L-2022
Effective Tax Rate

Evaluation Maximum
Facilities SpecialTax

g61s(r[z]

:sq

-0
-0
-0
-0

_0
0

-0
-0

-30,600
-0
-0

Residential
Floor Area

> 3,600

3,200 - 3,599

2,800 - 3,199

2,4OO-2,799

2,OOO-2,399

< 2,000

> 3,600

3,200 - 3,599

2,800 - 3,199

2,400-2,799

2,OOO-2,399

< 2,000

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Land Use Category

Developed Propefi:

Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property -MLD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning

MMD Multi-Family Attached Property

M H D Multi-Family Attached Property

Non-Residentia I Property

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 6l\meldgd
W

Page 26
Page 505

06/14/2022 Item No.17.



ATTACHMENT C

City of Folsom

Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 5
Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities SpecialTax Rates

( Fisca I Yea r 2elS2 O2L-2O221

(1) Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates will be inserted fo llowing the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation.

(2) On each July 1, commencing in the Fiscal Year after the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation occurs, the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation

Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates shall be increased bythe Facilities Special Tax Escalation Factor of the Effective Tax Rate

Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates in effect for the previous Fiscal Year.
.. --l rr^- D^-:l^-+i^l D-^^^*r,

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

I mprovement Area 6jmenclgg[
W

Page 27

Taxed Per

Residential Lot

Residential Lot

Acre

Acre

Acre

?4',s.202L-2022
Effective Tax Rate

Evaluation Maximum
Facilities SpecialTax

gslg(rxzl

:$q
_0

-S39Eo0F):S39.6ooF)

s_$3gEg0Fl

Residential
Floor Area

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Land Use Category

Small Lot FinalMap Property:

Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning

Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential
Property

Large Lot Property

Undeveloped Property

Page 506

06/14/2022 Item No.17.



ATTACHMENT D

City of Folsom

Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)
lmprovement Area 5

Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities Revenue
( Fisca I Yea r 2{filS2 O2t-20221

(1) Planned Number of Residential Units/Acres, Developed Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rate and

Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities Revenue to be inserted following the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation.

(2) On each July 1", commencing in the Fiscal Year after the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation occurs, the Developed Property Effective Tax Rate

Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates and Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities Revenue shall be increased by the

Facilities Special Tax Escalation Factor of the Developed Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates and

Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities Revenue in effect for the previous Fiscal Year.

(3) As a result of future Assessor's Parcel changes, described in Section C.3, the assigned Developed Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation

Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates may exceed the Developed Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax

Rates set forth in this table.
( ) The total Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities Revenue may be decreased as result of all or a portion of Effective Tax Rate

Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax obligations being prepaid and permanently satisfied pursuant to Section K.

(5) Based upon the Developed Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rate for Single-Family Detached

Property - SF/SFHD Zoning and Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning with Residential Floor Area of less than 2,000 square feet.

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 6 - Amended
W

Page 28

w+202t-2022
Effective Tax Rate

Evaluation
Minimum Facilities

jgygpug (rXzX+)

:s
_0

-289,476

_0
_0

$-$2E94Zs

?/J,s|202t-2022
Developed Property
Effective Tax Rate

Evaluation Maximum
Facilities SpecialTax

P219(rXzXa)

$--_-sq
_0

_30.500
_________0

-0

Planned Number
of Residential
Units / Acres{ll

-0
-0--9.46 .26

_Lt.7L

Land Use Category

Developed Property:

Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning(st

Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning(s)

MMD Multi-Family Attached Property

MHD Multi-Family Attached Property

Non-Residential Property

Total Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities

Revenue

Page 507

06/14/2022 Item No.17.



This page is intentionally left blank.

Page 508

06/14/2022 Item No.17.


	Top
	06/14/2022 Item No.1.	A Proclamation of the Mayor of the City of Folsom Proclaiming June 19, 2022 as Juneteenth National Freedom Day in the City of Folsom
	06-14 CC STAFF REPORT PROCLAMATION JUNETEENTH

	06/14/2022 Item No.2.	A Proclamation of the Mayor of the City of Folsom Proclaiming July 1 - 3, 2022 as Western Rodeo Days in the City of Folsom
	06-14 CC STAFF REPORT PROCLAMATION WESTERN RODEO DAYS

	06/14/2022 Item No.3.	Approval of May 10, 2022 Special and Regular Meeting Minutes
	06-14 CC STAFF REPORT MINUTES OF MAY 10, 2022

	06/14/2022 Item No.4.	Approval of May 24, 2022 Special and Regular Meeting Minutes
	06-14 CC STAFF REPORT MINUTES OF MAY 24, 2022

	06/14/2022 Item No.5.	Resolution No. 10862 - A Resolution Calling and Giving Notice of the Holding of a General Municipal Election to be Held on Tuesday, November 8, 2022, Requesting the Board of Supervisors of the County of Sacramento Consolidate the General Municipal Election with the Statewide General Election, and Establishing Policies for Candidates’ Statements
	06-14 CC STAFF REPORT RES 10862 GENERAL ELECTION CONSOLIDATE

	06/14/2022 Item No.6.	Resolution No. 10863 – A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute a Regional Water Authority Biological Opinion Services and Support Program Agreement and Appropriation of Funds
	06-14 CC STAFF REPORT RES 10863 RWA BIOLOGICAL OPINION SERVICES AND SUPPORT PROGRAM

	06/14/2022 Item No.7.	Resolution No. 10864 – A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute an Agreement with E Source Companies, LLC to Complete the City of Folsom’s Water Loss Control Program and Appropriation of Funds
	06-14 CC STAFF REPORT RES 10864 WATER LOSS CONTROL PROGRAM

	06/14/2022 Item No.8.	Resolution No. 10865 - A Resolution Authorizing Public Fireworks Displays During the Annual Folsom Pro Rodeo Activities
	06-14 CC STAFF REPORT RES 10865 PUBLIC FIREWORKS DISPLAYS AT RODEO

	06/14/2022 Item No.9.	Resolution No.  10866 – A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute a Subdivision Improvement Agreement and Accept Offers of Dedication for the Toll Brothers at Folsom Ranch Phase 1E Subdivision, and Approval of the Final Map for the Toll Brothers at Folsom Ranch Phase 1E Subdivision
	06-14 CC STAFF REPORT RES 10866 TOLL BROTHERS FOLSOM RANCH PHASE 1E SUBDIVISION

	06/14/2022 Item No.10.	Resolution No. 10867 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute Non-Exclusive Agreements with Approved Licensed Contractors to Implement the Sacramento Housing and Redevelopment Agency Inter-Agency Contract for the Seniors Helping Seniors Home Repair Program
	06-14 CC STAFF REPORT RES 10867 SHRA CONTRACT FOR SENIORS HELPING SENIORS

	06/14/2022 Item No.11.	Resolution No. 10869 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Adopt Local Assistance Procedures Manual Chapter 10, Consultant Selection, Policies and Procedures for Federal and State-only Funded Projects
	06-14 CC STAFF REPORT RES 10869 ADOPT LOCAL ASSISTANCE PROCEDURES MANUAL

	06/14/2022 Item No.12.	Resolution No. 10872 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Submit an Application for Grant Funds to the U.S. Department of Justice, COPS Hiring Program
	06-14 CC STAFF REPORT RES 10872 SUBMIT GRANT APPLICATION FOR COPS PROGRAM

	06/14/2022 Item No.13.	Resolution No. 10873 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute an Agreement with BrightView Landscape Services for Landscaping and Lighting Districts, Community Facilities Districts, and Folsom Plan Area Landscapes for the City of Folsom and appropriation of funds
	06-14 CC STAFF REPORT RES 10873 BRIGHTVIEW LANDSCAPE SERVICES AGREEMENT

	06/14/2022 Item No.14.	Resolution No. 10861 – A Resolution Adopting the City Manager’s Fiscal Year 2022-23 Operating and Capital Budgets for the City of Folsom, the Successor Agency, the Folsom Public Financing Authority, and the Folsom Ranch Financing Authority
	06-14 CC STAFF REPORT RES 10861 ADOPTION OF BUDGET

	06/14/2022 Item No.15.	Resolution No. 10871 - A Resolution Adopting the Public Works and Parks and Recreation Departments 2022 Active Transportation Plan (ATP)
	06-14 CC STAFF REPORT RES 10871 ADOPT PW AND P AND R 2002 ACTIVE TRANSPORTATION PLAN

	06/14/2022 Item No.16.	Resolution No. 10868 - A Resolution of the City Council Determining that the Proposed Lease Renewal is Exempt from the California Environmental Quality Act and Authorizing the City Manager to Execute and Agreement to Renew a Land Lease with the Placerville & Sacramento Valley Railroad for the Use of the Wye Property
	06-14 CC STAFF REPORT RES 10868 PROPOSED LEASE RENEWAL FOR WYE PROPERTY

	06/14/2022 Item No.17.	Resolution No. 10870 - A Resolution of Consideration of the City Council of the City of Folsom to Amend the Rate and Method of Apportionment for Improvement Area No. 6 within the City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch), and Related Matters
	06-14 CC STAFF REPORT RES 10870 CFD 23 AMEND RATE AND METHOD AREA 6

	Bottom

